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No. 5126

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For tke Ninth Circuit

F. B. Macomber,
Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

J. O. (lOLDTH WATTE,

Defendmif in Error.

BRIEF FOR PLAINTIFF IN ERROR.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

F. B. Macomber, plaintiif in error, up to the 14th

day of December, 1921, was president and director of

the Macomber-Savidge Lumber C'ompany, which was

a Californi^^poration, engag-ed in the l)usiness of

buying |PlRellino- hnnber at San Francisco, Cali-

fornia, and was a large stockholder in said company.

(Trans, pag^e 128.)

On the 14th day of December, 1921, all of the stock-

holders of the said INIacomber-Savidge Lumber Com-

pany, which was financially embarrassed and unable to

pay its debts, entered into an agreement of liquidation

in which they appointed William C. Crittenden of San

Francisco, (\alifornia, trustee for, and on behalf of

the officers, directors and stockholders of said coi^po-

ration and the corporation to receive any and all



funds that may be due said corporation and deposit

the same in a named bank, to pay off the indebtedness

of the company and to pay whatever balance that re-

mained to the stockholders. (Trans, pages 127 to

133 inc.)

They also agreed in said agi-eement that the busi-

ness conducted by said corporation was to be dosed
on the 15th day of December, 1921, and that the

trustee should sell before the 30th of December, 1921,

the furniture and equipment of the office. (Trans,

page 129 (4).)

It was further provided in said agreement that the

said trustee shall not

''accept any sum less than the full face valuation
of any obligation due said corporation tinless he
have the written consent of both F. B. Macomher
and George J. Sivers/' (Trans, pages 131, 132.)

' It was further provided in the said agreement that

during the pendency of the proceedings necessary to

carry out the terms of the agreement that

"none of said parties were to transact any busi-
ness for or on behalf of the corporation, save and
except the holding of a meeting for the purpose
of authorizing and carrying out such steps as
were necessary to enable the terms of the agree-
ment to be complied with." (Trans, pages 132,
133.

)

Mr. Crittenden accepted his appointment as trustee

(Trans, pages 133, 134) and immediately after the

execution of the agreement aforesaid entered upon
his duties of liquidating the affairs of the Macomber-
Savidge Lumber Company. He continued this work
until February 21, 1922, when he resigned and was



succeeded by Irving H. Sanborn, Vice President of

the American National Bank of San Francisco, who

was authorized by written agreement of February 21,

1922, of iMaconiber-Savidge Lumber Company and its

stockholders to Ix' sul)stitute(l as trustee instead of

William C. Crittenden. (Tians. pa^v :]2().)

'i'he said Macomber-Savidge Lumber Comi)any and

its stockhoklers by said assignment, assigned and

transferred to the said Irving IL Sanborn, as tnistee,

all of its assets and accounts, including its accomit

against the ^lodoc Lumbei* Company, hereinafter

named, and authorized him to proceed to realize upon

said assets as j)romptly as })ossil)le—to convert the

same into money, and provided that the agreement of

December 14, 1921, to wit, Plaintiff's Exhil)it 11

(Trans, page 127). should be changed oulji in regard

to trustees and paijnietits and that this was done by

execution of this latter agreement. (Trans, page 326.)

By this latter agreement, the provision in the former

agreement which stipulated that Macomber and Sivers

were to consent in irritinf/ to the ti'ustee accepting any

smn less than the full face value of any obligation due

said corporation was left in force, and none of the

stockholders were given back any of the powers, which

liad been taken away by llie former agreement.

J. (). (Joldthwaite, defendant herein, was at the

time of the making of said agreements, the executing

of the notes to ])laintiff in error, sued upon herein,

and the filing of the above entitled case, a resident of

Klamath Falls, Oregon, and was then and for a long

time preceding, had been the ])resident of the Modoc



Lumber Company, an Oregon corporation, which was

engaged in the business of manufacturing lumber and

the sale thereof at Klamath Falls, Oregon. He, at

the time of signing the notes to plaintiff, hereinafter

referred to, was, and had been, for a considerable

period of time, the owner of all the capital stock of

the Modoc Lumber Company, except two shares neces-

sary to qualify its other directors. (Trans, page 138.)

He continued as president and a principal stockholder

of the Modoc Lumber Company up to March 8, 1925.

(Trans, page 140.)

In July, 1921, the Modoc Lumber Company, being

financially embarrassed, placed its affairs in the hands

of the Board of Trade of San Francisco, California.

(Trans, page 141.)

The Williamson River Logging Company was a sub-

sidiary property of the Modoc Lumber Company and
handled the logging end of the operation. (Trans,

page 143.)

During the years 1920 to 1921, the Macomber-
Savidge Lumber Company bought of the Modoc Lum-
ber Company, a large amount of lumber to remain

in the yards of the latter company, subject to the

shipping orders of the former company, for which the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company issued trade

acceptances under a contract with the said Modoc
Lumber Company that when the lumber was shipped

and sold that the Modoc Lumber Company would pay
to Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company the difference

between the face value of the trade acceptances and
the prices at which the same were sold by the Macom-



ber-Savid^^e LiunlKr ('(.i!ij)Miiy. (Trans, pages 139-

140.) These trade aceei)lanees wei-e sold hy the

Modoe Luniher Company and the Maeoniber Savidgo

LunilxT Company was comix-llcd to pay them. The

lumlxT l)<)n,i;li1 by lli<' Macomhcr-Savid^-e Lumber

Company exiK'riciiecHl a falliii;; mai'ket, and the sales

resulted in a heavy loss, and ihcicfore Ihe Modoc

Lumber Company became indebted to Macomber-

Savidue Lumber Company in a Ini-^'e sum. This sum

so owed liy tlie Modoc Lumix-r Comi)any t(> the

JMacomber-Savidge Lumlxr ('ompany was, on oi- al)out

tlie 2n(l day of March, 1922, agreed as being $71,(MM ).0().

(Testimony, F. H. Macomber, Trans, pages 145-1')().)

Statement of Court. (Trans, page 2()8.)

The Modoc Lumber Comi)any, and its subsidiaiy,

the Williamson River Logging Comi)any, having

placed their affairs in the hands of the San Fi-ancisco

Board of Trade, as aforesaid, also assigned at the

same time to the said San Francisco Board of Trade,

its ('([uity in the Modoc Lumber Company and the

"Williamson River Logging Company, together with

the ci»ntrol of the stock in both corporations. After

the said assigmnent, .L O. Coldthwaite, defendant in

error. api)roached L. B. Menefee of Portland, Oregon,

to loan the said Mo(Uh- Lumber Com]»any the sum of

$250,(MM).(M) secured by tirst mortgage on tlie j'lant and

pro])erty of the Modoc Lumber Com])any and the

Williamson River Logging Comi)any. Before Mr.

Menefee would make the loan, he insisted that the un-

secured creditors of the Modoc Lumber Com])any

—

some one hundred and ten in number, of wliicli the

"Macomber-Savidae Lumber Company was the largest,



with its claim of $71,000.00—should be gotten together

and the time for the payment of the claims extended.

Mr. Menefee made a further condition that the amount

of the creditors' claims should be secured by second

mortgage and that the said amount of the creditors'

claims filed should not exceed the sum of $178,582.00.

(Trans, pages 142, 143, 144, 206, 207, 208, 209.)

During the period of these negotiations, the San

Francisco Board of Trade and Mr. Groldthwaite, the

defendant in error, succeeded in obtaining the consent

of i)ractically all the creditors, with the exception of

F. B. Macomber, plaintiff in error (see testimony of

J. O. Goldthwaite, Trans, pages 142, 143, 144, 206, 207,

208), and to secure the success of the negotiations of

Mr. Menefee, it was necessary for J. O. Groldthwaite,

defendant in error, to not only secure the filing of the

Macomber claim with the San Francisco Board of

Trade, but in addition to that it was necessary to have

the claim divided in such a manner that the claim

put in with the Board of Trade would amount to

about $53,000.00, instead of $71,000.00. (Trans, page

218.) If F. B. Macomber would not consent, as pro-

vided in Plaintiff's Exhibit 11, (Trans, page 127), to

the trustee of the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company

reducing the claim, as aforesaid, and filing it with the

said Board of Trade, defendant in error would not be

able to comply with Mr. Menefee 's demands of re-

ducing the amount of the creditors' claims to the sum

of $178,582.00 hereinbefore mentioned. Upon Macom-

ber 's said consent as mi individual, depended the suc-

cess of the negotiations aforesaid.



Til ail attcni])! to comply with ^fr. ]\renefee'8 condi-

tions aforesaid, hctwccn llic dates of December 15,

11)21, and March iJ, 11)122, and duiin^- the time in which

the Mac(»nil)er-Savi(l^e Liiniher Company was in the

])i()cess oT li(|ui(hition and in the liands of its assi^'iiees

and Inistees, and while Mr. l\ I). Afacomhci', })laintiff

in error heiH'in, had, nn(hr the lenns of the agree-

ment liefeinbefore citiMl, no |)ower eitliei- as an officer

or a stockhohk'i', 1o (h) anylhinu, hnt lo consmt on his

(Hi'ii hcJialf thai l!ie hill owin^- hy the Modoc Lumber

Company to tlie Macombei'-Savid^c Lumher Comi)any

be divided as afoi-esaid, and or to consent to its filing

witii the San Francisco Doard of Trade,— J. O.

(Joldtliwaite, the defendant in error, knoirinfj that the

company was in the hands of an assignee and tnistee

(testimony of d. O. (Joldtliwaite, paiies 153, 210, 212,

213), undertook neiiotiations with F. B. Macx)mber,

plaintitf in error, to obtain his consent to the trustee

tilim;- a chiim in hankruptey in the reduced amount

of $53,000.00.

Ml'. Macomher. on February 28, 1922, a.^-reed to, as

far as he was concerned, and in accordance with tlie

only ])oweis tliat lie liad left niu'er the trustee a^Tee-

ment aforesaid to (-(nisoif to the division and reduc-

tion of tile claim of the Macomber-Saviduc Lumber

Com])any and to conseut to the filin<i- by the trustee of

])art of said claim in the sum of about $53,000.00 if

J. O. (n)ldthwaite, defendant in error, would ajiprove

the entire amount owiiui' by his ('om])any to Maeom-

ber-Savidge Lumber Company, and would personally

uive his individual ten notes to F. B. Maconibcr as an
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individual in the sum of $5000.00 each for obtaining

the individual consent of Mr. Macomber to the loss

to his individual interest, which would result because

of the loss of the immediate right to proceed against

the debtor, because of the allowing the Menefee inter-

ests priority in security between the mortgages, and

also because it would effectuate the giving- up by the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company of a right to

have the balance of its claim, to wit about $18,000.00

secured, postponing it to a third and inferior position

and thus involving Macomber in an individual loss.

This was agreed to by Mr. J. O. Goldthwaite, and the

agreement so reached was reduced to writing, a copy

of which agreement is as follows:

''February 28, 1922.
Mr. J. O. Goldthwaite,
Aspgrove, Oregon,
Dear Sir:

Referring to our conversation to-day and our
personal agreement in connection with" the claim
of the Macomber Savidge Lumber Co. against the
Modoc Lumber Co. which has developed through
the purchase of lumber under certain agreements
and guarantees:

You hereby approve the claim of the Macomber
Savidge Lumber Co. as submitted with the under-
standing that all items of interest on Trade Ac-
ceptances still unpaid are to be added to this
account, and I hereby agree that any and all pay-
ments wade by the Modoc Lumher Co. either
direct or through the San Francisco Board of
Trade, are to apply against the personal notes
given to me by you to the amount of said notes.

Yours very truly,

F. B. Macomber,
Approved: J. O. Goldthwaite/'
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'PIu' next (lay, to wit, March 1, 1922, defendant

signed and delivered to F. H. Maeoniber, j)lainliff in

error, llic said ten (10) indi\i(lual notes, all of which

wei'c daled of said date. Tlic first ol" said notes was

made to fall due Septemlx-i' 1, 1922, and the remain-

ing notes respectively, .Januaiy 1, 192:>, April 1, 1923,

.Inly 1, 1923, October 1, 1923, January 1, 1924, April

1, 1})24, -July 1, 1924, October 1, 1924, and January 1,

1925. (See Plaint iff's Kxhi))its 1 to 10 inc., Trans.

])|). 1()() to 109 inc.)

For more conveinent icrcrence hei-eto the f'oi-m of

the notes so executed is set foi'th as follows:

jfr),000.()()

San Francisco, Calif.

March 1, 1922

On or before Se])tember 1st, 1922, after date I

])i()mise to ])ay to the ordei- of F. B. Macomber
five thousand and no/100 dollars at 80() llobart

Bldft'., San Fiancisco Value received with interest

at 6% per amnnn.
No Due

J. O. (tOLPTHWAITE.'*

(Documentarv United States Internal Revenue
$1.00 on back.)"

After thus sccui'ino- the said consent of F. B.

Macomber as an individual as recjuired by the auree-

ment of stockholders aforesaid, tlie tiustee of the

^lacomber-Savidiie Jjumber (/om])any. on or about the

2{ith day of ^lay, 1922, filed the said reduced claim of

the Macomber-Savidu'c T^nmber ('om])any with the

Board of Trade of San Francisco, State of California,

and thereafter, in accordance with the crenei'al plan

aforesaid outlined by defendant Goldthwaite, the

^lenefee interests of Portland, Oreiron, advanced to
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the Modoc Lumber Company aforesaid the sum of

$250,000.00 and took a first mortgage over all of the

assets of the Modoc Lumber Company and its sub-

sidiary, the Williamson River Logging Company and

the Board of Trade of San Francisco, California, took

a second mortgage from the Modoc Lumber Company

and the said Williamson River Logging Company in

the sum of about $178,582.00 secured by deed of trust.

Thereupon the said Modoc liumber Company with the

proceeds thus derived from the Menefee interests and

the postponement of any action against them by the

said one hundred and ten (110) creditors resumed

their mill operations for a comparatively short period

and then closed down.

On or about the 4th day of September, 1924, the

Board of Trade of San Francisco sold its claims

against the Modoc Ijumber Company which were se-

cured by second mortgage to the Menefee interests

for the sum of $53,577.78, which was divided among

the creditors. From this sum, the trustee of the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company received the

sum of about $16,500.00, and F. B. Macomber, plain-

tiff in error herein, in accordance with his personal

agreement that any and all payments made by the

Modoc Lumber Company were to apply upon the per-

sonal notes given by J. O. Goldthwaite as an indi-

vidual to F. B. Macomber as an individual applied

the amounts u]X)n the said notes. Thereafter, plaintiff

in error, through his attorneys, made written demand
upon the said defendant in error for the payment of

the notes hereinbefore described, and no payment hav-

ing been made filed suit in the District Court of the



11

United States for the District of Oregon against the

dcrcndniit. 'I'linl was had of the said case on the 22nd

(lay (»r April, 15)2(), hd'oic the (MHirt wilhniil a Jiiiy

and a judgment was rendered in iavoi- oj" llu' defend-

ant in eiToi', and iiom said jnd^nicnt, the plaintiff in

I'lior has hi()UL;hl said Judgment to this court hy writ

of error.

'PI

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR.

he erroi-s assei'ted and i-elied ujxtn hy plaintiff

(])laintity in error) are as follows (Trans. i)ages 80

to 99)

:

I.

The Court eri'ed in i-efusing to sustain and in over-

ruling the i)laintiff's ohjection t(> i)laintifF testifying

under cross-examination, in answer to the following

questions projxmnded hy counsel for defendant, to

wit :

"Was tliere any ar.gimient ])etween you, or
diffei-ences, as to whethei* you would put your
claim into the Board of Trade, or that of your
company, at that time?

A. Anv argmnent with whom ?

Q. Between ^Ir. (roldthwaite and yourself, as
to whether or not the Macomher-Savidge T^umher
Company would ])ut its claim in the Board of
Ti'a(U\ speaking of just l)efore the notes were
signed, or at the time.

Mr. Vax Duyn. I ohject to any convei'sation

immediately before the notes wei-e siirned, or at

the time, on the ground that there would he an
attem])t to vary a written agreement by ])arol

evidence, eonti-ary to the statute of fi'ands, in

tiviug to show security, and contrary to Section
71 :> of the Statutes of the State of Oregon.
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Court. We will consider that question when
the evidence is in.

Mr. Veazie. We don't want to vary a written

contract: only showing the circumstances and
what was preliminary to it ; the groundwork upon
which this is based, as to whether there was any-

thing of the kind.

Mr. Van Duyn. Will the Court allow us an
exception ?

CouET. Certainl V.
'

'

And the Court erred in requiring plaintiff to testify

and admitting, over the above objection, evidence of

oral conversation had between plaintiff and defendant

prior to the execution of Plaintilf 's Exliibits 1 to 10

inclusive, which conversations were in substance and

effect that defendant wanted plaintiff to consent to

the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company putting its

claim into the Board of Trade with other creditors;

that plaintiff did not consent to said claim being filed

with the San Francisco Board of Trade until after

the defendant had handed him the said notes and ex-

hibits; that said consent was only for himself; that

the Crittenden agreement (Plaintiff's Exhibit 11)

says the stockhoklers shall act for themselves; that

plaintiff never told Sanborn, the trustee of the Ma-

comber-Savidge TiUinber Company, what to do in

filing said claim; that said Sanborn was trustee when

the notes were executed; that plaintiff told Sanborn

to file the said claim as far as he (plaintiff) was

personally concerned ; that plaintiff understood at the

time the said notes. Plaintiff's Exhibits 1 to 10, were

executed, that said claim aforesaid was to be filed with

the Board of Trade; that tlie second moii^gage to
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secure said daiin was not talked of between defendant

and ])laintiff inioi- to the execution of said notes,

Plaintiff's Kxhihits 1 to 10; that (ioldthwaitc said in

said conversation that tiicic wcic negotiations with

Menefee, and that lie wanted to ^ct matters in shape;

that defendant stated to |)laintiff in said con\'ersation

tliat he desii'ed to ha\'e tiie claim of Maconiber-

Savid^-e Lumber Company i-educed so it would not

run aboxe a ])reseril)e(l maximum; tliat defendant in

said conversation said that he had made a statement

to the I^oard of Trade that he didn't owe his creditors

to exceed $18(),()(M).(H); that Maconibei--Savid^'e Lum-
ber Company's claim against the Modoc Lumber Com-
]inny would run the indebtedness above that sum; that

said claim had 1o be cut down; that plaintiff at de-

fendant's request uave his ])e]-sonal c-onsent to the

trustee for the ^lodoc Lumber Company to reduce its

claim as:ainst the Modoc Lumber Com])any so as to

fall within the $180.0()0.()() limit.

And the Court erred in takin.u* said evidence into

consideration in its opinion and tindiuiis, conclusions

of law, and judu'ment, as evidence showing and tend-

iuix to show that the notes sued on were collateral

security.

TT.

The Court erred in i-efusino: to sustain and in

overrnliuii- ])laintifF's objection to defendant J. O.

Goldthwaite testifying: in answer to the followinc^

questions propounded to him by counsel for defend-

ant, io wit:

'*Q. At the time of the meetinu: when you
aixreed to a]iprove the account on behalf of your
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company, was Mr. Macomber making any ques-

tion as to whether he represented his company or
himself personally?

Mr. Van Duyn. We object as incompetent,
irrelevant and immaterial, and parol testimony
tending to vary an agreement which was reduced
to writing.

Court. It will be admitted, subject to that

objection.

Mr. Van Duyn. May we have exceptions to

questions of like kind; as I miderstand, the same
iTiling and exception.

Court. Yes."

And the Court erred, over said objection, in per-

mitting defendant to testify in substance and effect

that there was no such question as to whom plaintiff

represented at the meeting at which defendant exe-

cuted his said notes to plaintiff; that Defendant's

Exhibit "E" was considered at that meeting; that

plaintiff agreed to reduce said claim and file it with

the Board of Trade; that defendant told plaintiff

about February 28, 1922, about his desire to give a

first mortgage and to fmid the indebtedness to his

other creditors; that defendant then told plaintiff that

Menefee and Jones, proposed lenders, would not lend

the money to him if there was to be a second mortgage

above the sum of $175,000.00, and that it was neces-

sary to reduce creditors' claims to that sum, and it

was necessary to reduce the Macomber-Savidge Lum-

ber Company's claim to fall within said amount; that

Plainti ft' 's Exhibits 1 to 10 inclusive, and Defendant's

Exhibit "B" were executed at a later date than shown

by said exhibits.
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And tlie Court erred in taking said evidence into

considcialion in its ()j)iui()n and findings, conclusions

oi' law and jnd;;nient, as evidence sliuwing and tending

to show thai tlie notes sued on wei-e collateral secui-ity.

The Court erred in refusing to sustain, and in

overruling ])laintift"s objection to defendant J. O.

Goldthwaite testifying in answer to the following

questions propounded lo him by counsel foi- defend-

ant, and i)ernntting defendant to make the following

answei's, to wit

:

*'(^. Did you have any discussion with ^\v.

Alaeomber as to the note i

A. Yes, I protested at the time that the ac-

count at the time was the Modoc Lumber Com-
})any account of indebtedness to Macomber-Sav-
idge Lumber Com])any.

Mr. Van Duyn. This is understood to be all

subject to the same objection.

CoiHT. All the evidence which may tend to

vary the contract is under vour objection, yes.

^^r. Vkaztk. We don't want to vary it our-

selves; we want to show the setting of it.

Court. I think 1 understand what you are

trying to show, yes.

Q. You may continue your answei-. You say

that you protested that the indebtedness was be-

tween the two corporations i

A. Yes, I told him at the tijiie that the notes

logically sliould run to the Macomber-Savidge
T-.umber Company. At that time the ^facomber-
Savidge Lumber Com])any had no evidence of the

debt outside of an oi)en book account, And Mi*.

^Lacomber explained that to me first—emphasiz.ed

that, I mean. Secondly, he outlined to me again
as he had on a numbei" of occasions ])ast, the fact

that he was havinu: a lireat deal of trouble with
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his other partners in the Macomber Savidge Com-
pany; that he had had trouble with his first as-

signee, Crittenden; that he didn't know how the
new assignee, Sanborn, was going to act, and that

he desired if possible to have these notes in his own
name, in case any trouble arose in the future,

where he would have the whiphand, or dominate
the situation within his own company. He went
into some extensive length in impressing me with
that situation.

Q. Did you at that time owe Mr. Macomber
personally any money?

A. Not at that time or any other time, no, sir.

Q. He never loaned you any money?
A. No, sir."

And the Court erred in taking said evidence into

consideration in its opinion, findings, conclusions and

judgment, as evidence showing or tending to show

that the notes sued on were collateral security.

IV.

The Court erred in refusing to sustain, and in

overruling plaintiff's objection to defendant J. O.

Goldthwaite testifying, in answer to the following

questions propounded to him by counsel for defend-

ant, and pennitting defendant to make the following

answers, to wit:

*'Q. Was there any other considei'ation given
to you for the execution of these notes that you
have set forth in your answer?
Mr. Van Buyn. No failure of consideration

])leaded.

Mr. Veazi?!. We pleaded exactl}- what the con-
sideration was, and I simply asked him if there
was any other consideration.

A. None whatever, no, sir.
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^fr. Van Dtyn. Objected to iiyion the ^nniiid

thai it has not been ])iea(le(l in tlie answer or
t'urtlier (letense of the (h'Tendant, and vai'ies the

cont racl.

Col HT. Admitted, subject to tliat objection and
exception.

(^. rnder these cii'cumstances you then signed

the notes uliich are in evidence.''

A. Yes."

And thi' CN)uit eired in taking said evidence into

considei-ation in its opinion, findings, conchisions and

Judgment, as evidence sliovving o]- tending to show

that tlie notes sued on were collat<'ral security.

V.

Tlie (N)Uit erred in permitting J. (). (loidthwaite,

the (lefeiuhint, a witness on liis own l)ehalf, over the

objection of counsel I'oi- ])huntilf tiiat such testimony

wouUl tend to vary the notes sued upon, to testify in

attempted sup])ort of the further and separate defense

set fortli in tlie amended answer, in su})stance that

there was no personal cxmsideration ])etween plaintiff

and defendant for the notes sued upon : that the said

notes were made payable to i)laintift' over defendant's

protest: that plaintiff insisted that said notes be made
payable to ])laintiff; that said notes were made at

another date than the date of execution set forth

therein; that proceedings we]-e had befoic the Civd-

itors' Committee of the San Francisco lioaid of

Trade that resulted in the claim of Macomber-Savndge

Lumber Com])any being, with other claims being evi-

denced by a series of notes of the ^lodoc Lumber
Company and the AYilliamson River Logging Com-
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pany; and the alleged sale of said notes and mort-

gages to the L. B. Menefee Investment Company, and

the alleged payment and release of the same.

VI.

The Court erred in permitting J. O. Goldthwaite

and G. W. Brainard, witnesses on behalf of the de-

fendant, to testify over the objection of plaintiff, that

said testimony was immaterial and that it would tend

to vary plaintiff's Exhibits 1 to 10 inclusive, as to the

transactions had before the Board of Trade of San

Francisco, and as to the payment of the notes and

mortgages.

VII.

The Court erred in stating the law of the case as

follows

:

In the District Court of the United States

for the District of Oregon

F. B. Macomber, Plaintiff,

vs.

J. O. Goldthwaite, Defendant.

L. 9664

Portland, Oregon, June 7, 1926.

Memorandum by Bean, District Judge:

This is an action on ten promissory notes executed

by the defendant and made payable .to the plaintiff,

each dated March 1, 1922, and each for five thousand

dollars.
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Tlic ('acts arc not seriously in wntrovcrsy. At the

tiinr the notes were ^ivcn Ihc plaintiff was the presi-

dent aii<l t»ne of the i)rinei|)al stoelclioldei-s of the

Macoiiil)er Sa\ idue Lumber Company, a California

eoiporati(tn, whieli had been enucajicd in tin* l)iisiness of

biiyinii' and si'llini;- hinilx'i- in Califoriiia and else-

where, and the defendant was llie ])resident and prin-

ei])al stoekholder and ,t;enei-al maiiauci- of the Modoc

Lumber ('()m])an\-, wliidi liad l)een eii^a^cd in mami-

faeturinu' luinlxT lov saU'.

During tlie wars 1920 and 1921 the Ma<M>nibei- ("<»m-

])any had ])ur<-hased a lar<ie (juantity of lumber from

the Modoe Conipan>-, and on account thereof had a

elai!ii auainst it I'oi- seventy-one thousand dollars, or

thereabouts, some of the items of which, however, were

in disi)ute.

Each of the corimratioiis was in financial ti'ouble.

Till' assets of the Macomber Compauy were in the

hands of a trustee, and the affairs of the Modoc Com-

pany were beinu" liandled by the San Francisco Board

of Trade.

The defendant, as president of the Modoc Company,

liad arranged for refinancinu- his com])any ]>y obtain-

ins: a loan of two hundred and fifty thousand dollars,

to be secured by first mortji:a^e on its property, but as

a condition to makinc; the loan the lender insisted that

the claim of its creditors should not exceed a certain

amomit. and slK^nld he assembk'd and secured l)y a

second niortsraire on the property. To consnmmate

this arranjxement it was necessary that tlie claims of

the creditors of the ^fodoc Coni])any be assiprned to a
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representative of the San Francisco Board of Trade.

By the latter part of February, 1922, all such credi-

tors except the Macomber Company had made such

assignment. In order to accomplish the refinancing of

the coiporation and comply with the conditions im-

posed by the proposed lender of the two hundred and
fifty thousand dollars, it was necessary to obtain a

reduction of the Macomber Company claim to ap-

proximately fifty thousand dollars in amount, and
to assign then to the Board of Trade. The defend-

ant thereupon approached the plaintiif to obtain his

consent to a reduction of the claim to such an amount,

and to the assignment thereof, to a representative of

the Board of Trade, so that the refinancing of the

Modoc Company could be consummated. After some
negotiation the defendant, on behalf of his company,
agreed to approve the claim of the Macomber Com-
pany as made by it, but plaintiff agreed that, for the

purpose of assignment to the Board of Trade, it

might be reduced to about $54,000.00, and the defend-

ant executed and delivered to him the promissory
notes in suit, for the amount thereof, he agreeing in

writing that any and all payments made by the Modoc
Company, either direct or through the Board of
Trade, should be applied on such notes.

The claim of the Macomber Company for the re-

duced amount was thereupon assigned to the Board
of Trade, or to its representatives, and the refinanc-

ing of the Modoc Company accomplished by the exe-

cution by it of a first mortgage on its property for

$250,000.00, and a second mortgage to secure the
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clainis of its creditors, iiu'liidiiig tlic Macoiiihcr Com-

pany.

Thcrcal'ter, and on May 2G, 1922, the Board of

Trade advised tlie Modoc Company in writing that

the churns of the various creditors, including- that of

the Macomber Coini)any, had been fully paid and

satisfied in lull. The second mortgage was subse-

quently sold l)y ihe Board of Trade for thirty cents

on the dollar and the i)roceeds a})])lied on the various

clainis in proportion to tlu-ii- respective amounts, and

the plaintilf gave credit on the notes in suit f(jr the

dividend on the Macomber Company's claim. Later

the second mortgage was ])aid in full 1)>' the Modoc

Com])any to the assignee thereof.

The defendant claims that the leual effect of the

transaction was to make his notes security or a

limited guaranty for the reduced claim of the Macom-

ber Comi)any, and that they were discharged or re-

leased when the moi'tgage of the ^fodoc Company se-

curing the same was ])aid and satisfied in full. While

the ])laintiff's position is that the notes were a ])er-

sonal mailer between himself and the defendant, un-

affectcMl by anv ti-ansactions in which their respective

companies were concei-ned. other than this personal

agreement that any payments niade by the ^fodoc

Company either directly or through the l>oard of

Trade, should be credited on the notes.

Without discussing the question at length, T am dis-

posed to acce])t the defendant's vei-sion of the trans-

action. The ])laintiff and the defendant were each

assuming to act for and on behalf of his respective
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corporation. There was no unsettled differences be-

tween them personally. The only debt existing at the

time the notes were given, and about which they

were dealing, was the debt of the Modoc Company to

the Macomber Company. The plaintiff personally

made no demands on the defendant, nor did the latter

owe him anything. The notes were not given on ac-

count of any personal obligation of the defendant to

the plaintiff, but because of the account due the

Macomber Company from the Modoc Company. They

were made for the benefit of the Modoc Company.

The legal effect was to make them as security or

guaranty of its debt, and when the mortgage securing

the same was paid, the obligation of the maker of the

notes was satisfied.

The admission of parol evidence to show the true

relationship of the parties and the nature and char-

acter of the transaction, did not alter or vary the

terms of the original contract, nor affect its integrity.

It was merely proof of an independent collateral fact

which affected the rights of the parties thereto by

showing that the notes were in fact security for the

debt or liability of another, and not as a personal ob-

ligation to the plaintiff. (Hoff'man v. Habighorst, 38

Or. 361; 49 Or. 379; Silva v. Gordo 224 Pac. 757;

Norton v. Tueson Cattle Co., 236 Pac. 1110; Ledford

V. Huggans, 214 Pac. 686; Clark v. Duchmean, 72

Pac. 331.)

Findings and judginent may be entered according-

ly.
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\ ill.

Tile Court vvwd in |»aiaj;raj)li \'I of its findings of

fact on file licicin, in niakinu' llic foliciwinu- finding:

"'!'( ol)tain said (•<»n(M'ssi<»n, tlic Modnc iiUinl)er

('«iin|)any and tiic (Icrcndant on tlic one jjail,

aui-ccd witli tlic Macoinlx'i'-Savidjz:^ LinnlxT Com-
l)an\' and tlu- |)laintiff licicin, on tlic otlici- part,

that the Maconihcr-SaN id^c Lunihcr ('onii>any,

thi-ough its trustee, should present and assign its

claim to the l^oard of Ti-adc of San Francisco for

inclusion in the second moi'tgage oi- othei- form

of funded indebtedness, in the amount of only

}|<r):;.f)()r).92, and that in consideration thereof the

Modoc Lum))er ('om])any should approve the

claim of the ^Facomher-Savid^c Lumber Com-
])any. as stated by it, in the amount of $<)8,l()4.8:s

and in additi«>n thereto that the defendant should

guarantee the i)ayment of part of the said claim,

to-wit: to the amount of 5i?5(),000.()(), by giving the

|)i-oniis^orv notes described in the coni])laint, and
hereinafter mentioned, on the understanding that

the said ])Oi'tion thereof turned over to the Board
of Trade of San Francisco should be convei'ted

into notes or other evidence of indebtedness signed

by the Modoc Lumber ('om])any and the Wil-

liamson River Logging (\)m])any, and securfnl by

a second mortgage or some form of lien on the

jnoperties above mentioned, and that any and
all i)ayments made on any part of said indebted-

ness of the ^lodoc Lumbei- ('om]>any to the

^Facomber-Savidge Lumbei- ('om])any, whether on
the ])art thereof so tinned over to, or handled
through the r>oard of Trade of San F'rancisco. or

the balance thereof not so turned over oi' assigned,

should be credited against the said pei*sonal notes

to be given b\- the defendant herein as a uiiai'anty,

U]) to the nmnunt of dcCciwIant 's said notes.''

In that there is no evidence of any kind in the rec-

ord to support such o])inion, but on the contrary the
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evidence adequately shows without contradiction, un-

certainty or conflict, that there was no agreement

made between plaintiff and defendant that the de-

fendant should guarantee $50,000.00 or any other

sum, or at all, of the claims of Macomber-Savidge

Lumber Company, by giving the notes sued on herein.

IX.

The Court erred in paragraph VII of its findings

of fact on file herein, in making the following find-

ing:

'

' The said ten promissory notes described in the

Amended Complaint were each and all made,
given and delivered by the defendant, and taken,

accepted and received by the plaintiif, for the

use and benefit of, and as agent for, the Macom-
ber-Savidge Lumber Company, solely on the con-

siderations aforesaid, and on the agreement and
understanding between the parties to said notes,

had and entered into at the same time the notes

were given, that the defendant should thereby be-

come bound as surety and guarantor for the

Modoc Lumber Company, up to the amount of

$50,000.00 for the payment of said indebtedness
then existing and owing from the last named
company to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-
pany, as hereinbefore set forth, and not other-

wise."

In that there is no evidence of any kind in the

record to support such finding or any part thereof.

X.

The Court erred in paragraph XV of its findings

of fact on file herein, in making the following finding:

"By the making of the payments aforesaid

there has been ))aid on account of the said orig-
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iiial iiKlchtcdncss ol" the Mctdoc T.iini])OT Company
to tile MnconihiT-SaN id^c Luiiilxi- Coiiipaiiy ex-

istinij^ and uii|iai(l on the first day of Maivh, 1922,

to wliicli the Holes of till' dclViidaiil sued on licre-

in were a collateinl secui'ity and. stood, as a
limited ^'uaranty, an amount in excess of the

said i;iiaranty, and said tiiiaranty has thei-ehy })een

fully exonerated. Kurlhei-more, the mortj^a^ed
pi-operties which weic icleased from the lien of

said mortgage far exceeded in value the first and
second mortuaucs against the same, and hy the

release ol* the said morl«;au,e security, the defend-
ant has heen released from liahility on said guar-
anty coNci-ed hy the notes sued on hei-ein."

In that there is no evidence whatever in the i-ecoi-d

that said deiendant's notes sued on herein weie col-

lateral security, or stood as a limited guaranty and/or

that any payment has heen made ui)on the notes sued

on, except as in the amended' complaint set forth,

and/or that none of said notes have heen discharged.

XI.

The C'ouit erred in tailing to make findings on all

the material issues of this cause, to wit, in failing and

omitting to find that the Macomber-Savidge Lumber

Company made an assignment on December 14, 1921,

of all its assets, including the claim against the Modoc

Lumber ('om])any, and that by said assignment the

plaintiff herein was deprived of all ])owei- to i-epre-

sent his com])any. and had thereafter no ])ower in re-

lation thereto, exce[)t to give individual consent to acts

of trustee, as is more particularly set out in ])ara-

graph V of the amended reply, and as evidenced by

PlaintitT's Exhibit 11, tlie Crittenden agreement.
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XII.

The Court erred in making the following conclu-

sions of law:

I.

The foregoing facts and circumstances as cov-

ered by the Findings of Fact made herein, were
such as to constitute the defendant nothing more
than a limited guarantor of the payment of the
debt of his company, the Modoc Lumber Com-
pany, to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-
pany, up to the amount of the notes set forth in

the Amended Complaint; said guaranty to be
fully discharged whenever an amount equal to

the total of the notes should be paid on the prin-

ci])al debt to which said guaranty was collateral.

IL
Said guaranty was fully discharged and the

defendant was exonerated from further liability

thereon when the second mortgage notes of the

Modoc Lumber Company were paid and dis-

charged, as set forth in the above Findings.

HI.
Defendant is entitled to have judgment herein

that the plaintiff have and recover nothing on the

promissory notes set forth in the Amended Com-
plaint; that said action be dismissed; and that

defendant have and recover of and from the

plaintiff the defendant's costs and disbursements.

In that said conclusions are based upon no evidence

and are not justified by the findings.

XIIL

The Court erred in giving judgment against the

plaintiff and in favor of the defendant, on the ground

that the notes of defendant sued on by plaintiff herein

were collateral security to the claim of the Macomber-
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Savidp' TiUin])('r Conipany, and the claim liavin^ lx«en

j»ai(l, tlu* notes were disdiar^i'd ; in iliat tlic I'vidcnce

s|i()Ws witliout disputi' or coiitiadiction, tliat tlic only

wriltcn cniitracts Ix'twccn the parties \v('i-<' llic notes

themselvi's and a written personal at^reemenl hetween

plaintiff and defendant identitied in the evidence as

J)efendant's Kxhihit *'JV, which exhil)it states no

ciiiitracl nf siii'clyship ; tlie only evidence antedating

the execntion of said notes and jx'i'taininjj: to the rea-

sons why the same were i^iven, was the evidence of

d. (). (loldthwaite in which lie i-ehites an oi'al conx'er-

sation had with plaintiff, in no |>a?t of which was

nienlion made of snretyship, and defendant's testi-

mony nnder cross-examination that n() convei-sation

was had hetween |)laintiff and defendant concei-nini^

the notes sned on herein

;

The Coni-t ei'red in admitting- in evidence and in

taking into consideration, in giving its opinion and

rendering its findings of fact and conclusions of law

and judgment, said oral conversation, and in con-

sidering any other evidence than Plaintiff's Exhihits

1 to 10 inclusive, and Defendant's Kxhihit ''B".

ARGUMENT.

POINT I.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR I TO VI INCLUSIVE.
(Trans, pp. 80 to 88.)

The notes sued uj)on were plain and unambiguous

promises to pay, needing no oi-al explanations. The
notes in themselves acknowltMlged the consideration

hy stating therein that there was "value received''.

The answer of defendant (Trans. i»p. 22 to 39)
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pleaded no illegal, partial or entire failure of consid-

eration, and admitted the making, execution and de-

livery of the notes. Defendant's only defense was
that said notes were guaranty and surety notes only

to the amount of the Macomber-Savidge Lumber
Company claim against the Modoc Lumber Company,
and that said alleged notes of guaranty were released

because the said claim of the Modoc Lumber Company
was paid. To the end of making proof under this

defense, defendant sought to make oral proof both
through cross-examination of plaintiff, Macomber, and
direct examination of defendant Goldthwaite. To
this, plaintiff objected (Ti'ans. p. 81) on two princi-

pal grounds, to wit:

1. That a written agreement cannot be varied

by parol testimony.

2. That parol testimony, under the Statute of

Frauds, is inadmissible to prove a guaranty. The
objections were reiterated in each of the as-

signments of error named in this subdivision

(Point I).

In view of the law of Negotiable Instruments as
adopted by the legislature of the State of California,

to wit, Sec. 3105, Civil Code of California, in which
State the notes herein in question were executed and
delivered and under which they are to be interpreted
that:

''Every negotiable instrument is deemed prima
tacie to have been issued for a valuable consider-
tion; every person whose signature appears
thereon to have become a party thereto for value"

and in view of the fact that defendant had not
pleaded absence or failure of consideration as re-
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quired by section ^W.) of tlic CiriJ Code of California,

wliicli reads as follows:

"That ahseiiee or failure of eousideration is

a matter i\^ dcfcusc as a^^aiust any pei'son not a
holder in due course."

And in view of the lolhiwiiiu authoi'it ies, defendant,

liavinu" failed to aHeuc an ahseiice or I'ailure of con-

sideration, is not eiitith'd to entei- hy parol iido the

matter of considei'ation in a contract, lor the purpose

of showiuii- that the consideration or the conti'act is

a different one than that set out in the notes.

The Code States i-ecpiire a want of consideration or

illejjality of consideration to l)e sj)ecially pleaded.

In 8 Corpus Juris, Hills (uid Notes, }>. 965, Sec.

^2()'), the rule is laid down as follows:

"At conunon law, failure, illegality, or want of
consideration may he shown under the <^eneral

issue: and it has been held that a ])lea in bar
alleirinii" a want of considei'ation is bad on de-

nuiri'er as amountintj: to the «i-eneral issue. On
the other hand, the general rule, independent of
statute, is that a ])ai1ial failure of consideration
cannot be shown under the general issue. In the

code states, however, where affinnative defenses
are required to be s])ecially ])leaded, and by stat-

ute or rule of court in some of the other states,

it is now the ji^eneral rule that all of such defenses
nuist be s])ecially pleaded, in order to be avail-

ai)le, and that evidence thereof is nnt admissible
under a general denial."

Section 7i), Vol. 1 Lord's ()r<(/()n Laws, provides as

follows

:

"The answer of the defendant shall contain,

—

I. A Li-eiural or specific denial of each material
allegation of the complaint controverted by the

defendant, or of anv knowledge or information
thereof sutKcient to foi'ni a belief; provided, how-
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ever, that nothing can be proved under a general
denial that could not be proved under a specific

denial of the same allegation or allegations.

2. A statement of any new matter constituting

a defense or counter-claim, in ordinary and con-
cise language, without repetition."

The Oregon Courts hold that the Oregon
Code has substituted for the general issue at

common law an answer which must contain a
specific denial of the material allegations intended
to be controverted : Coos Bay B. R. Co. v. Siglin,

26 Or. 390, 38 Pac. 192, that mider a denial,

the defendant should be permitted to show no
fact that does not go directly to disprove the

fact denied. If he merely denies the facts alleged

by his answer, he can only offer in evidence such
facts as go to disprove the plaintiff's cause of

action, and if he intends to rest his defense on
any fact that does not tend to disprove the plain-

tiff's cause, such fact is new matter, and must be
pleaded: Buchtel v. Evans, 21 Or. 312, 28 Pac.
67; that the object of the answer is to notify the

court and the opposite party of the facts relied

on as a defense so plainly that the plaintiif may
be prepared to meet them. A pleading would be
entirely defeated if a plaintiff had a right to aver
in his complaint one ground of action and on the

trial prove another and different one: Troy
Lattndry Co. v. Henry, 23 Or. 237, 31 Pac. 484;
Knahtla v. O. S. L. R. Co., 21 Or. 137, 27 Par.
91."

The California Code provision in regard to new

matter in the answer is almost word for word like

the Oregon Code.

The following California cases uphold the doctrine

stated above:

Pastene v. Pardini, 135 Calif. 431, 67 Pac. 681;

Sharon v. Sharon, 68 Calif. 29, 8 Pac. 614;

Winters v. Rush, 34 Calif. 136.
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And in vii'W of llic law of evidence as to varying

a wiitlcii ('(Hiliact by parol evidence and ])ioving

miaiaiitees ui)(»n oral testimony liereinarter set out,

we contend that tlie ('oui1 was in ci-ioi- in admitting

tile oral conversations which were received in i;vidence.

Parol Evidence Not Admissible to Vary Written Instrument.

''Wliere parties liave entered into a contract or
ap:reenient whicli has lieen rednced to a writing,

it is a general rule that in tlie al)sence of fi'aud

or mistake, if the vvritinj^; is complete upon its

face and unandiiguous, ])arol evidence is not ad-
missible to contradict, vary, alter, add to oi* de-

tract From the terms of tlie instrument.''

Eiic//. of Ki'idencc, Vol. 9, Parol l^vidence,

p. :^2i.

"Where parties have reduced their obligations

or agi-eements to a writing which is upon its face

couched in such terms as to imj)()rt a complete
legal obligation with no uncertainty as to the

nature, character, object and extent of their

agreement, all })rior negotiations and agi'eements
are regarded as merged therein, and the con-

clusive presum])ti()n arises that the whole engage-
ment of the i)arties is exj)ressed in the writing.

This, the common-law rule, was intended to guard
against fraud and injustice by not pei-mitting

parties to deny their solemn written agreements,
or overthrow them by the uncertain words and
memories of unrelial)le witnesses."

I (Ion, ]). !^)25.

"Although this rule is in many cases s])oken

of as a rule of evidence, yet it is declared in a

recent case that according to the modem and
better view^ the rule is one of substantive law and
not of evidence, parol proof being excluded not
because it is lacking in evidentiaiy value, but
because the law for some substantive reason de-

clares that what is sought to be proved by it
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(being outside the writing by which the parties

have undertaken to be bound), shall not be shown.
And this latter view has the support of the mod-
ern text writers upon the subject."

Idem, p. 326.

"Where a written instrument is valid, clear

and unambiguous upon its face, and purports to

contain the complete agreement of the parties,

parol evidence is not admissible to show that the

actual or secret intent of the parties thereto was
other than is expressed in the writing, as in such
a case the terms of the instrument alone must be
looked to to ascertain the intention."

Idem, p. 329.

*'The general rule applies to conversations and
negotiations prior to or in connection with the

execution of a wi-iting, as in such cases all nego-
tiations and conversations are presumed to be
merged in the writing.

It is a general rule that evidence of a prior or
contemporaneous agreement which is incon-

sistent with the temis of a written instrument,
complete upon its face, and unambiguous, is, in

the absence of fraud or mistake, inadmissible

to contradict, vary or in any way alter the terms
of the written instrument, as all such agreements
are presumed to be merged in the writing, or if

not embraced therein, to have been rejected by
the parties.

"The rule excluding parol evidence is ap-
plicable not only to the terms of the instrument,
but also excludes such evidence where it will op-

erate to contradict or vary the legal eifect there-

of. If the instrument as executed by the par-
ties is clear and imambiguous in its meaning,
and has a well-settled legal construction or ef-

fect, such construction or effect will control and
is not subject to contradiction by parol evidence,

in the absence of fraud, accident or mistake."

Idem, pp. 330 to 334.
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**It is a well cstahlislicd rule of tlu; ooinnion

law, which has hvvu cmlxKlicd in statutes in a

inimhci" of states, that wlieii any jii(li;ineiit ol.'

Mii\' eoiiit, or any oth<M' ju(li<-ial oi- ollieial |)ro-

eeedinu-, or .-my aii'ent or other disposition of

pi()))erty, or aii\ eoiitiact, agreement, or uiwhT-

takin^- has Ixcn reduced 1o \vi-itii!iJ:, and is evi-

denced hy a document or series u\' (htcuinents, the

contents of such, (h)cunients cannot l)e contra-

dicted, altered, aihh-d to, or varied hy pai-ol or

extrinsic evidence.

"Reason foi- ruh'. It lias heen said tliat the

nde is foundi'd on tiie Umii: experience tliat writ-

ten evicU'Uce is so much more cert;iin and ac-

curate tlian tliat which rests in tleetini;- memory
only, that it would he unsai'e, when i)arties have

exjiressed the terms of their contract in writinji:,

to admit weakei- evidence to control and vary the

^tronuH'r and to show that the ])arties intended

a (litTerent contract from that ex])ressed in the

writing: signed hv them. And if the uncertainty

of *sli])pery memory' furnislied a jrround for

excluding': such vei-hal testimouv, as (U'clared in

the days of Ivord Coke, certainly the modern
])ractice, admittinii- as witnesses the pai-ties di-

rectly interested, makes a sti-ict adherence to the

rule still more uri^tMit in these days.

"The i-ule is a necessary one because of the

obvious fact that written instruments would

soon come to be of little value if theii- ex])licit

])rovisions could be varied, controlled, or sui)er-

seded by ])arol evidence, and it is also plain that

a different rule would greatly increase the tempta-

tions as to conunit perjuiy: and courts heave ex-

pressed re.c^ret that in their anxiety to avoid pos-

sible injustice in ])articidar cases, they have been

uraduallv construinir away a principle which has

always been considered one of the j^reatest bar-

riers* auainst fraud and jx-rjury."

"Rule of substantive law or of evidence. It

has been assei'ti'd that the rule under discussion
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IS one of evidence merely, and does not depend
upon the doctrine of estoppel at law, or upon the
statute of frauds, although it rests on substan-
tially the same principle. But according- to the
modern and better view the rule which prohibits
the modification of a written contract by parol
IS a rule, not of evidence merely, but of substan-
tive law. As the question is not one of practical
importance it is not deemed necessary to refer
to the numerous cases in which one or the other
view has been expressed."

22 C. J. Sec. 1380, p. 1070.

''The legal effect of a written instrument, even
though not apparent from the terms of the in-
strument itself, but left to be implied by law
can no more be contradicted, explained, or con-
trolled by parol or extrinsic evidence than if
such effect had been expressed, especially if per-
sons who were not present at its execution have
acted on the instrument as legally construed."

Ide^n, Sec. 1381, p. 1075.

''Although the authorities as to the admis-
sibility of parol e\adence to affect commercial
paper are by no means uniform, the general rule
IS that bills, notes, and other instruments of a
similar nature are not subject to be varied or con-
tradicted by parol or extrinsic evidence."

22 C. J., Sec. 1443, p. 1089.

"It is not permissible to show a parol agree-
ment of the payee or holdei- of commercial paper
not to enforce payment against the person or
persons liable thereon ; or a parol agreement that
the pavee or holder shall look to some other per-
son or persons for Dayment, that he shall re-
quire payment only in a certain event or out of
some particular fund, that he shall not require
payment until a certain security has been ex-
hausted, that he shall not call on one of the per-
sons liable for payment until all remedies against
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the others have been exhausted, or that tlie ol)-

lii^ation may l)e extin.uuislicd by part payiueiit."

22 ('. ./., See. 1445, ]>. 1()!H.

"A statute vvbieli all(»\vs a |)arty to call iiis

adversai-y as a witness lurnisbes no ^nound for

establishinu an exception to the parol evidence

rule. Tor if tbe matter could tbus l)e opened up,

other witnesses miulit be called, and all the con-

se(iuenees which the rule is designed to picvciit

nii.uht follow/'

22 r. J., Sec. 15:50, p. 1144.

''Where a bill or note (a- other negotiable in-

stnunent is absolute in its terms, neither the

maker nor the indoi-ser can be allowed to show-

that the obliuation was a conditional one merely

or was to be ])aid only in a certain contin,i;-ency,

and this is true notwithstanding- the 1'act that

the note was u'iven ])ursuant to a verbal a^n-ee-

ment for the ])avment of a sum of money on a

cei'tain continucncy, for the condition nnist be

held to have been waived by the pvin^ of an

unconditional note. Hut it may be showii, as

between the parties or otheis having; uotice, that

the delivery was conditional only and tliat the in-

strument never in fact cdnic hilo force as a bind-

ing obligation."

22 r. J., S(>c. 1542, p. 1152.

"Where the lan.uuaiic used is clear and un-

aml)i,i;uous, exti-insic evidence is not admissible

on tlie ground of aiding- the construction, for in

such case the oidy thino- which coidd be accom-

plislu'd would be to show the meaninu' of the

wi-itin,^- to bi' other than what its terms express,

and tiie instnnn»*nt cannot be varied or con-

tradicted inidi'r the iruise of explanation oi- con-

struction. \or can any evidence of the lanu'uaire

employed by the i)arties in mnkinc: the contract

be resorted to except that which is furnished by

the writing- itself. It is also well established
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that parol evidence is not admissible to give to awriting a construction conformable to the secret
intentions which one or both of the parties mav
have entertained but which the writing; fails to
express." ^

22 C. J., Sec. 1570, p. 1177.

''The parol evidence which can be admitted to
explain the contract must be such as tends toshow the correct interpretation of the language
used, and its only purpose is to enable the court
or jury to understand what the language reallv
means; evidence which has no tendencv to aid in
the construction of \h^ writing or to explain any
ambiguity therein cannot be received It is
therefore necessary that the line which separates
evidence which aids the interpretation of what
IS m the instrument from direct evidence of in-
tention independent of the instrument should bekept s eadily m view, the duty of the court being
to declare the meaning of what is written in the
instrument, not of what was intended to be writ-

22 C. J., Sec. 1571, p. 1179.

For further authorities on the above subject, see the
''Mode^m Law of Evidence/' Chamherlayne,

Sec. 3548;

Bryan v. Idaho Quartz Mining Co., 73 Cal 249
14Pac. 859;

Smith V. Baer, 46 Ore. 143, 79 Pac 497 114
A. S. R. 858;

Swift V. Occidental L. cC- P. Co., 141 Cal 161 •

74 Pac. 700;

Williams V. Mt. Hood Rij. d- Power Co., 57 Ore.
251, Ann. Cases 1913-A 177;

Rwckmmi v. ImUer Lhr. Co., 42 Ore. 231 •

Colvin V. Goff, 82 Ore. 314, 'l. R A "^1917 C
300, 161 Pac. 568;
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J</n€s rni "FAn(Unce'% Vol. 3, Sec. 494;

Dollar V. International Corporation, \?> Cal.

In an acti<ui on a i)r()inisst)ry note, it cannot be

shown by i)ar(>l thai llic note was intended merely as

a nienioiaiiduiii and was to he paid only on a con-

tinu,<'iH'V.

WiUon V. Wilson, 2(i Ore. 251 (by Judge

WolvcTlon).

In Mrl,(H r. Jiradshatr, (Orcuon) IHIJ I'ac li], de-

cided July 2J), 1919, by Judge Harris, the Court, on

page 19 says:

*'ln the last analysis the contention (d' the re-

s])ondent is only an effort to vary and eonti-adict

the written contract of endoi-seiiient, and hence

the ])arol testimony relating to any contempo-

raneous oral agreement was incompetent."

The rule inhibiting ])arol evidence to vary a writing

ai)plies })articularly to negotiable paper.

Smith r. Caro & Bonne, 9 Ore. 278.

Varying Parties to Instrument.

"By engaging to ])ay a ])articular person, the

maker acknowledges his ca]>acity to receive the

money and his cai)acitv to order it ])aid to an-

other."

S(M\ 5893, lyord's Ore(/on Laws.

"It has been held that i)arol evidence will not

be admitted to show that the real parties to an

instnunent ai'e other than those whose names ap-

pear in or are signed thei'eto."

Gill V. General Electric Co., 129 Fed. 349;

Ferguson v. McBean, 91 Cal. ()3.
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Sec. 713, Lord's Oregon Laws, provides as follows:

Parol Evidence—Oregon Statute, Sec. 713, Ore-
gon Laws: "Evidence of Terms of Agreement
Reduced to Writing. When the terms of an
agreement have been reduced to writing by the
parties, it is to be considered as containing all
those terms, and therefore, there can be between
the parties and their representatives or successors
in interest, no evidence of the terms of the agree-
ment, other than the contents of the writing, ex-
cept in the following cases

:

1. Where a mistake or imperfection of the
writing is put in issue hy the pleadings:

2. Where the validity of the agreement is the
fact m dispute. But this section does not exclude
other evidence of the circumstances imder which
the agreement w^as made, or to which it relates, as
defined in section 717, or to explain an ambiguity,

• intrinsic or extrinsic, or to establish illegality or
fraud. The term 'agreement' includes deeds \^nd
wills as well as contracts between parties."

Section 714 of Lord's Oregon Laws, provides as
follows

:

*'
Interpretation, by Law of Place of Execu-

tion. The language of a writing is to be inter-
preted according to the meaning it bears in the
place of its execution, uidess the parties have
reference to a different place."

Section 1625, Civil Code of California, pi'ovides as
follows

:

''Effect of Written Contracts. The execu-
tion of a contract in writing, whether the law re-
quires it to be written or not, su]iersedes all the
negotuitions or stipulations concerning its matter
which preceded or accompanied the execution of
the instrument. (Amendment approved 1905-
Stats. 1905, p. 611.)
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St'ctiuii 1()47, Ciril Cixlc of CaUfunna, providcjs as

follows:

"CONTKACTS KXI'I.VIM.I) UV ( 'lUCl' MSTANCF-S. A
colli ia<t may \)v explained hy reld'eiice to the cir-

euinstances under which it was made, and tlie

mattci- to which it ivlatt'S.

"

Tills section, to wit, IGIT, does nol modify the jtarol

ovidcnce lule. It is invttked only in eases wheir upon

the face of the contract itself tliefe is a douht, and

tile e\idcnce is use<l to dispel that douht.

I'lithd Inni Wor/.s r. ()i(f(r II. etc. Co., 168

Calif. SI, in l*ac. 1)17.

In tile above e!ltitled ca^e, the Colll't Well defined the

rule, when it said

:

"The evidence
(
pari)! ) is used t(t dispel that, not

hy showinu- that the partieulai- parties meant
soinethinu- oilier thnv what the\- said, but by
showinu' what they meant />// what they said."

There is a p'eat (h-al of difference between the ad-

missil)ility of extrinsic evidence to e.rphiin that which

is written and the admissibility of extiinsic evdenco

to contnuUct that which is wi'itten.

The Oregon statute set foi-th above, to wit. Sec.

71 rj, is practically in the same lan^uan'e as Sec. 1(>47

of the Califoi'uia Civil Code, and should be inter-

preted in the same wa\-.

Both statutes are but restatements of the comm(»n

hiw.

There was no aml)ic:nity in the ten note s introduced

by |)laintiff herein, and it was enor to admit evidence

of siu'vonndinL;- cii-cuinstances.

Abraham r. Orrfjon tf ('. /?. Co., 37 Ore. 495;
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82 A. S. R. 779, 64 L. R. A. 391, 60 Pac. 899;
Dunlap V. Lewis, 64 Ore. 482, 130 Pac. 973

•

'

McConnell v. Gordon Const. Co., 105 Wash 659
178 P. 823;

*

'

Meyer v. Everett Pulp etc. Co., 193 Fed. 857,
113 C. C. A. 643 (9th Circuit).

In the above ease, the Court approved the rule
which was stated in Dmjis Calyx Drill Co. v MallorJ
137 Fed. 332, 69 L. R. A. 973, as follows:

''Where the written contract of the parties iscomplete m itself, the conclusive legal presumn
ion IS that it embodies the entire engagCnt ofthe parties and the manner and extent of ?he^r
obligations, so that parol evidence of other terms

dictT'^''' '
^' '''^'''^' '^^'^^^•^^' ^^' ^'^"^^'^-

A Parol Agreement to Answer for the Default of Another
Is Void.

All evidence brought by defendant to contradict the
absolute promise of the notes, is oral,-and being oral
is void.

Section 1624, Civil Code of California, provides as
follows

:

u* *

,, , , . ,
-• ,,A special promise to answer forthe debt default, or miscarriase of another, except ni the cases provided for in section twentv-seven hundred and ninety-four;"

Section 808, Lord's Oreyon Laws, provides as
follows

:

1. ''In the following cases the agreement isvoid unless the same or some note or memoran-dum thereof, expressing the consideration, be in
writing, and subscribed by the partv to be
charged, or l)y liis lawfully authorized agent-
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ovidcncc, thoroforo, of tlie a^rci'iiient shall not be

m-i'ivrd other than the writiii^^ or sccoiKhiry evi-

dence of its contents in the cases prescribed by

law.

2. An aureeinriit l<i answer I'oi- the debt, de-

fault, or miscairiauc «d' another.

See, in support of the above, the I'ollowin^^ au-

thorities;

.l//7/rr r. Li/nrh, 17 Oie. p. ()1, 19 p. 845;

(iiinip r. Ilolhcrsiadl, U") Ore. p. 358, 15 )». 4()T;

Slcuiiis (HI Surefifship, Sec. 35, j). 45, and

Jones on EvidcncCy Proof of (Juaranty, \'ol. 3,

Sec. 427,

holdin.i;- that all coi, tracts of suretyship aie within the

statute of frauds.

Since the above Section 808 of the Ore;;()n Laws pro-

vides that a contract to answer for the debt or default

of another must be in writing*, and that if it is not,

the contract is null mid void, it follows that if in the

case at bar there was in fact any oral evidence, by

which (Joldthwaite had ajxveed to answer for the debt

of :Modoc Lumber Company, such contract would have

been null and void. The plaintiff in this case could

not have recovered on an oral contract of suretyship

ag-ainst the defendant, and conversely the defendant

cannot use it as a defense, or prove a uuaranty. Such

contract in any event would be null and void and

would be useh'ss to either party. So, in addition to the

fact there is n.) oral evidence in this case that the notes

were suretyship notes, we have the further rule of law

that suretyship of the notes cannot be proven by parol

testimonv.
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POINT II.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR VH.

(Trans, p. 89.)

In addition to our contention that parol evidence
was not admissible to contradict the absolute promise
to pay the notes described as Plaintiff's Exhibits 1 to
10 inclusive, we further contend that the Court erred
in co„s,dering the said parol evidence, and in making
It the basis of a finding which is in conflict with andvanes the notes sued upon.

^P 1 ^^.no"^
" '^'*'^'"'*«'^'"'«^ Bankmg Corporation,

(^al.) 109 Pac. on page 504, the Court said-

admlssi;ie\o wfthi's 7^!, Tofif""?''^^,^^wMioiit objectionf be suSnfV:ui,;*oi?tlS^d'

—er varied Z '''^''
V'""

"' "'"'^h in any
parte eXr'ed into

""'"'"' ^""*^^^-* "*"* ^^

debt owing Macomber.from Goldthwaite, and there-

p 92 w "'T
<'°"'^'<^^^-'^«- f«- the notes. (Trans.

PJ2.)
We contend that the Court erred in this matterof consideration,-as the consideration that Gold-

thwaite received from Macomber was injury to his
stockholder's interest in the Macomber-Satulge LuJber Company through—

(1) Postponing the due date of Modoc L„m
tmtToXLr""' '' ''' Macomber-Sa^S

(2) Allowing Menefee's indebtedi.ess to be a

slSrl. mb "r '"' ^'"™ °f t'^^ Macomber

Tride
Company filed with the Board of
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(:)) V>y allowing tlu- otlicr creditors to share

ill ilic licii (.r 11h' second niortpi^-e of the Board

of Trade.

(4) Bv allowin- the hahuice of $18,()0().()() still

due the 'Macoinher-SavidKi' l^uinlu'r Company

alter dividing and Hlin- its clniiu, to wit,

$18,0()(U)0 to he i)Osti)oned as to se.Mirity and

sharino; in the assets (d the M«.<loc Luinher ( om-

])anv.

(5) By j)reservinj;C to defendant this ecinity m
the assets'of the Modo*- Luinher Coinpany, result-

in,.- in the end in ( lol.lthwaite realizm- the sum

of''aV)oiit Ji5l9(J,()()().(K),—which would have hcK-n en-

tirely lost to him had he not ohtained the coijsc'nt

of Aiacoml>er to the trustee tiling the Haini of the

]\[aconiher-Savidj;e Lumher ('ompany. Through

tliis consent Mr. ^Macomher sustained great indi-

vidual loss to his stock interests and Mr. (lold-

thwaite received great individual Ix'iiehts.

The ahove constituted a fair and full consideration

for the $50,000.00 in notes, which had the most remote

chance of ever being realized u])on at the time they

were executed.

POINT m.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERRORS VHI TO X INCLUSIVE.

(Trans, pp. 93 to 95 inc.)

The above assignments cover the question as to

whether the testimony in the case shows any evidence

of suretyship, and will he discussed toirether as one

point.

The princi]ial contention (»f defendant is that the

Goldthwaite notes are collateral surety or gimranty

notes and that th(>y have been satisfied hy what de-

fendant contends is the payment of what he terms the

primary obligation, meaning the $53,905.92 claim of
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the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company. We con-
tend, on the contrary, that the Goldthwaite notes of
$50,000.00 themselves are the principal obligation.

The notes themselves are, of course, absolute promises
to pay, and are in no way conditional upon the pay-
ment of a claimed principal obligation, but are them-
selves the principal obligation. This being the case,
it is necessary for defendant to show by something
outside of the notes themselves, that said notes were
surety notes. Outside of the notes, there are only two
factors to be considered, to wit, the oral conversation
between plaintiff and defendant at or immediately
prior to the time of the execution of the notes, and
defendant's Exhibit B (Trans, p. 113), to wit, the
personal agreement between plaintiff and defendant.

There is not a word in all of the evidence of such an
oral conversation or agreement as to suretyship. On
the contrary, the testimony of Goldthwaite himself is

that the notes that he gave to Macomber were not dis-
cussed at all. In reply to a question of the Court on
cross-examination, the following testimony was given
by Goldthwaite:

''Court. Q. Why were these notes made for
$0,000.00 each, and distributed over the length of
time for payment?

A. Yes.

Q. I say, why was that done?
A. I don't know—that was Macomber 's notionWe never dismissed tJiose notes at all. He iust

presented them to me." (Trans, bottom of pa^e
225 and page 226.)

It follows, therefore, from the foregoing statement
of defendant that the notes were not discussed and
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that tlio iioU'S cannot he construed with any oral testi-

mony to sliow a guaranty, for there is no such tosti-

niony. 11 tlie notes were not discussed, ^larantyship

or suictysliip were certainly not mentioned.

Duiim; the course of Maeomher's redirect examina-

tion, he testirted that (loldthwaite knew he was not

takinu' the notes for the company (Trans. |)a,t;(' I-J.'j),

and in resj)onse to the roHowin^- (juestion the following

statements weie mach' l)y counsel:

**Q. Have you had any lettei-s fi-om him in

regard
Mr. Veazik. May it please the Couit, as far as

that point is concerned there, I think we ou^ht
to ohject to it, as far as it attempts to vary flmf

wriiiuji, because that terifitH/ sjiotcs flic hasis an
(rJn'ch taken.

Mr. Van Dtyx. That is what we claim. If

you want to stand on the writing we will both
stand on it.

Mr. Vea/ie. We will stand on the writing as

fa I- as it states the facts." (Trans, pages i:)5-li56.)

This shows how counsel met on the question of

varying the contract.

Is There Any Statement in the Instrument of February 28,

1922, That Shows Goldthwaite Notes Were Conditional

Guarantees?

The ([uestion of parol e\i(lence showing that the

Goldthwaite notes were j^iiarantees, having been dis-

posed of, we have then only the question of whether

there is anything in the written instrument of Feb-

ruary 28, 19:22, that shows the notes were guarantees.

We can find no statement therein that they were

miarantees. The word "guarantee" or '* suretyship"

is not used. The sul)stantial provision, so far as the
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notes sued upon, is as to how credits shall be given
upon the notes. What payments were to be applied
upon the notes was the purpose and subject of the
agreement. Had Goldthwaite intended these notes to

be guarantees, it would have been easy to have said so
in the personal agreement. Even a man of no experi-
ence, and of little education could have made clear
that the notes were intended to be guarantees. That
payments coming through the San Francisco Board
of Trade, or through the Modoc Lumber Company,
were to be credited on the notes does not constitute a
guarantee. By agreement, a credit on payment, com-
ing through any one, could have been credited. Such
an agreement would constitute no guarantee. Gold-
thwaite evidently considered himself and the com-
pany as being practically one. It made no difference
to him whether the company paid the notes, or
whether he paid them himself. What money he got
came from the company, and he would just as soon
have the company j)ay for him as to have the company
pay him, and then he to pay Macomber.

Had Goldthwaite, the maker of the notes, and Ma-
comber, the payee of the notes, intended to make
Goldthwaite a surety to the $53,905.92 claim filed with
the San Francisco Board of Trade, they both being
business men of experience, would either have ex-
pressly stated in the personal agTeement that the notes
were only guarantee notes or eUe they would have
had the Modoc Lumher Cowpamy wake its votes pay-
able to Samhorn, trustee of the Maeomher-Savidge
Lumher Company, and Goldthtvarte tvonld have en^
dorsed the notes on the had' a, a surety. Certainly
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no person of iiitcllii^ciicc would have undertaken by a

devious, intricate and uncertain nietlKjd, as is at-

tcnij)ted by defendant, to be asserted here to formulate

a guarantee. Only a ])ers()n endeavuring to escape a

liability, and h)()kin«;' lor a hole to crawl thi'ough

could read into tlie pei'sonal wiitten a^'i'eement any-

tliiun' in the nature oj" a liuaranty.

Defendant claims the notes were sureties to the

Board of Trade's notes $5:5,905.92. Why then did not

(}oldthwaite on February 28 and March I, l!i22, make

his notes |)ayal)le at the same time and in the same

amomit .^ Why did he spread the maturity of his

notes ovei' a |)i'i'iod of thirty odd months.^ Why make

them beai- interest.^ Why ])lace these negotiable in-

struments in the hands of Macomber, who could have

transferred them befoi-e maturity, and thus subjected

Goldthwaite to ])ay them without the i-iiilit of making

the defense of suretyshi]) ?

We hohl that a shrewd business man, like Gold-

thwaite, would have nevTr done such an unbusinesslike

act if he had not intended these notes to be. just what

on their face thev pur])ort to be, unconditional and

absolute obliuatioiis to ])ay a certain sum at cei-tain

times. Certainly he is ])resumed to have intended the

natural consequences of his acts.

Goldthwaite's promises to pay ^facomber, as evi-

denced by the notes, wei-e not collatei'al promises and

without consideration. There is a marked difference

between a promise which, without any intei'est in the

subject matter of the promise in the i)romissor, might

be collateral to the obligation of a third party, and
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that which though operating upon the debt of a third
party is also and mainly for the benefit of the promis-
sor. Goldthwaite acknowledges that he was practically

the Modoc Lumber Company—its interests were his

interests—any benefit to the Modoc Lumber Com-
pany inured equally to the interest of Goldthwaite.
Goldthwaite 's promises, in the promissory notes sued
on, were not collateral undertajiings to secure the
promises of the Modoc Lumber Company, but direct
and personal ones to advance his own interests. He
was a real and substantial party in interest to the
performance of the contract. While the Modoc
Lumber Company might be ultimately benefited by
Goldthwaite signing the notes, Goldthwaite was pri-
marily to be benefited—for the Modoc Lumber Com-
pany was but the pocket and conduit from which he
derived his profits and assets. He is an original prom-
issor—not a collateral undertaker.

The defendant contends and pleads that the notes here
in suit were paid or discharged and the alleged limited
guarantee which they constituted, released, when the
notes of the San Francisco Board of Trade which
had been purchased by Menefee from it in 1924, for
thirty cents (30^) on the dollar, were paid by the
Modoc Lumber Company in full to the L. B. Menefee
Investment Company, the then owner of the San
Francisco Board of Trade notes of $178,592.77, on the
14th day of July, 1925. (See Paragraphs XIV and
XV of Defendant's Amended Answer.)

Ill this connection, it will be noted that none of the
money which defendant claims discharged and paid
the Macomber ten notes here in suit, was received by



49

the San Francisco Board of Trade ov by Sanlmin,

the trustee, in li(|iiidalion of tiie Maconil)er-Savidge

l^uniber C'oMii)aii\, from the Modoc I.uiiiber C'onii)any.

It was all received by the L. B. Mcnefee Investment

Company some two years alter the Sao Francisco

Board ol' Trade had sold the imtc of $l78,r)92.77 to the

L. B. Mencfee investment Company lor thirty cents

(:U)^) oil the dollar, which thirty cents, amountLng- to

$1G,500.()0, was all the Alacomber-Savidge Lumber Com-

])aiiy ever got on its indebtedness or chiini of $5:5,905.92.

Defendant, in his oral argument in the Court below

said he did not claim that the sale of the San Francisco

Boai'd of Trade notes to Menefee i)aid or tlischarged

the notes sued on, but that the sale of July 14, 1925

—

all of the moneys of which were received and kept by

Menefee and Goldthwaite—discharged the Goldthwaite

notes, and that although nothing was received by the

Macomber-Savidge Linnber Company, nevertheless,

such transaction should be regarded as a ])ayment.

Therefore, tlic only ])ayinent made ''through the

San Francisco Board of Trade", which, Macomber in

th(> letter of Februaiy 28, 1922, agreed ''to apply

against the personal notes given to me (Macomber)

by you (Goldthwaite) to the amount of said notes"

was this thirty cents (30(*) on the dollar, or $l(S,5()(U)n.

There remains but one other consideration for our

determination in this matter. It is this—What ])ay-

ments ''ma<U hif the Modoc Ltiwher Couijxini/ direct"

were ''to apphf against these ten ])ersonal notes given

by the defendant to the plaintiff"?

Now, what was the subject of the agreement be-

tween Macomber and Goldthwaite as set out in the
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letter of February 28, 1922? It was ''our personal
agreement" in connection with the claim of the Modoc
Lumber Company, and the personal notes of Gold-
thwaite, and what payments made by the Modoc
Lumber Company, either direct or through the San
Francisco Board of Trade were to apply against the
personal notes given by Coldthwaite to Macomber.

Direct payments made by the Modoc Lumber Com-
pany to whom? Surely to the only one that had any
claim at that time—the Macomber-Savidge Lumber
Company, or its trustee in liquidation—Sanborn—and
over which only the parties were negotiating for the
purpose of applying credits on the Coldthwaite per-
sonal notes.

How could the parties to this agreement have had
any other idea in their minds. A consideration of the
circumstances under which the agreement was made
and the matter to which it relates, can lead to no
other conclusion than that the parties had in mind
only money payments to be made directly to the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Co. or to its trustee, San-
born, because at the time it was made these were the

only persons or obligations in which any direct pay-

ments could have been made. The Board of Trade
note of one hundred seventy-eight thousand ($178,-

000.00) dollars did not come into existence until Jime
16, 1922, some three and one-half months after this

agreement of February 28, 1922, was made, and it was
then not certain that it would ever come into existence,

and the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Co. claim repre-

sented only a part of it.
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This coiiclusicui is incsc-ipabli' ulicn we consider

the tcstiiuony at the tiial, of dclVmlaiit (Joldlhwaitc

tliat \w tlicii cxpccti'd ( Kchruary 28, U)22) lo j>ay out

throimli till' pidtits dtrivi'd lioiii the opcial i(»ii of the

mill <>r the Modoc Lumber Company the incU'htechiess

of Ihe Macoml)er-Savi(l,i;-e Lnniher Comj)any and his

other creditors. (Trans, pa^c 277.)

Tliis testinu)ny clearly shows that (loldthwaite only

had in nnnd when he made the pei-sonal wi'itteiL a^:ree-

ment oT Fel)inar\' 28, 1!)22, with Macoinhei- that the

only direct payments to he cre(lite<l on the ten jx-r-

sonal notes here in suit, wei-e money payments to ha

made directly hy the Mod(K* Lumber ('om])any to the

Macomber Sa\ iduc Lumber Comi)any, or its tnistee,

Sanborn,—not ])ayments ma(h' by the Modoc Lumber

Company on notes uiven by it to the San Francisco

Board of Trade months afterward, which notes were

])y the Board of Trade sold to the L. B. Menefee In-

vestment Com])any in 1924 for thiHy cents on the

dollar and paid by the Modoc Lumber Company to the

Menefee Investment Company in 1925, not one cent of

which latter ])avment was ever received l)y the Maconi-

ber-Savid,2:e Luml)er Company, or its ti'ustee, Sanborn.

How could he have had in mind on February 21, 1922,

that through a sale made in -Inly. 192r), the Modoc

Lumber Com])any was to directly pa.\- its indebtedness

to the Macomber-Savidp:e TiUmber Company. The

mere statement of the pro])osition shows its al)surdity.

Finally the claim referred to in the contract of

February 28, 1922, between (Joldtliwaite and Macom-

ber was the then existinu' claim of the Macomber-
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Savidge Lumber Company against the Modoc Lumber
Company not the notes to the Board of Trade that
came into existence over three months later.

These notes at the date of their issuance, therefore,
did not belong to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-
pany, but to the San Francisco Board of Trade, and
the 110 creditors were only beneficially interested in
them to the extent of the amounts of their respective
claims—the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company's
beneficial interest therein being only fifty-three thou-
sand ($53,000.00) dollars, or thereabouts. On Feb-
ruary 28, 1922, plaintiff and defendant could not refer
to payment by the Modoc Lumber Company to the
Board of Trade, or to Menefee.

Now after the Board of Trade sold these notes to
the Menefee Investment (^ompany, neither the Ma-
comber-Savidge Lumber Company, Sanborn, its trus-
tee, or the San Francisco Board of Trade had any
claim against the Modoc Lumber Company. The
ownership of the claim passed to the Menefee Invest-
ment Company, and from the date of the transfer the
Menefee Investmc^nt (^ompany was the only one who
had any claim on these notes against the Modoc Lum-
ber Company. It, therefore, follows that when in July,
1925, the Modoc Lumber Company paid the Board of
Trade notes to the Menefee Investment Company, it
was not paying any claim of the Macomber-Savid-e
Lumber Company, but the debt owed to the Menefee
Investment Company by the Modoc Lumber Company.

The Court erred in finding that Macomber gave no
consideration for the notes. We refer to our brief in



53

tile foregoing point iil as to our position on this

point.

POINT IV.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR XI.

(Trans, p. 96.)

In paragraph V, of iMaintilf's iiepiy (Trans, p. 44)

phiintiff alleged the assignment of the assets of the

Maeoniber-Savidge Lumber Company to Crittenden,

as trustee. This was an issue, and a material one,

since it would show that on the date of signing and

exeeuting Defendant's Exhibit B— (the personal con-

tract) and the notes, that plaintiff had no authority

to make a coutiact with (Joldthwaite for his company.

Evidence was introduced upon this point. (Trans.

})]). lo:!, IMO. 2\'2, '2\:\.)

The Coui-t should find on every material issue in

the case.

Pon r. WltfwfDf, 147 Ci\]. 280, 81 Pac. {)S4.

POINT V.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR XII.

(Trans, pp. 97, 98.)

The Court erred in making the conclusions of law

set forth in Assignment XII, in that the said con-

clusions are insufficient to justify the findings, by rea-

son of the fact that there is no tindiinr that sets foi-th

that an amount ecjual to the total of the notes given

to the Boa I'd of Trade by the Modoc Lumber Co., has

been paid. TIum'c is no allegation in defendants
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pleading or proof supporting the same, that there was
no consideration to him from plaintiff for the execu-

tion, and no allegation that the consideration alleged

in defendant's affirmative defense was the sole con-

sideration. The said finding of the Court is without
foundation on evidence and erroneous, and the con-

clusion of law based upon it is therefore without
sufficient support.

POINT VI.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR XIII.

(Trans, p. 98.)

The judgment based upon the finding based upon
the assigned errors in admission and consideration of

evidence, findings of facts, and conclusions of law is

erroneous in that it based the said errors so assigned.

The reasons why said judgment should be held errone-

ous, are set forth hereinbefore, and they are hereby

referred to and made a part of this subdivision.

We respectfully contend that the judgment should

be reversed.

Dated, San Francisco,

August 17, 1927.

Walter S. Brann,

O. M. Van Duyn,

Brann, Van Duyn, Boekel & Roave,

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.
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OPENING STATEMENT.

The opening statement of the plaintiff in error

fails to state the issues of fact which were presented

by the pleadings, and in the place of the facts as

found by the Court and as they are shown by the

evidence it puts forward as the facts of the case the

ill founded and unsupported theories of plaintiff's

counsel respecting several important points, in par-



ticular as to the supposed effect of the Crittenden

agreement and as to what the consideration for

the notes was. We, therefore, deem it necessary

to make an additional opening statement, and to

point out some of the errors in the one submitted

by the plaintiff.

This is an action at law brought in the District

Court for Oregon by the plaintiff, a citizen and

resident of California, against the defendant, who

was when the case was begun a citizen and resident

of Oregon, to recover balances claimed to be due

on ten promisory notes, each for $5000, alleged to

have been given by the defendant to the plaintiff

on March 1, 1922. The answer admits that not^^s

in the form set forth were made by defendant, but

denies that same were made or delivered except

as in the answer affirmatively alleged, and denies

each and every allegation of the amended complaint

respecting the making of the notes except as af-

firmatively alleged in the answer. In his affirm-

ative answer the defendant states as follows:

That at the time the notes were given and for

a long time prior thereto, plaintiff was president

and one of the principal stockholders of the Ma-

comber-Savidge Lumber Company, and defendant

was president and principal stockholder of the

Modoc Lumber Company; that the latter company

had become indebted to the former company in an

amount around $50,000; that both companies were

financially embarrassed, the Macomber - Savidge
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Lumber Comi)any having assigned its property to

a trustee named Sanborn for the benefit of certain

of its creditors, and the Modoc Lumber Comj)any's

creditors having placed their claims in the hands

of the Board of Trade of San P>ancisco; that the

Modoc Lumber Company was endeavoring to re-

finance its affairs by obtaining new capital through

a first mortgage loan of $250,000, and by inducing

all its creditors to place their claims in the hands

of the Board of Trade and to grant an extension

of time, the payment thereof to be secured by a

second mortgage; that the prospective first mort-

gage lender required that the second mortgage

should not exceed a certain specified sum; that the

amount of the indebtedness of the Modoc Lumber

Company to the Macomber - Savidge Lumber Com-

pany was in dispute; that in order to keep the

second mortgage within the limit required, it was

necessary that the claim of the Macomber-Savidge

Lumber Company to be included therein should not

exceed $54,000; that to obtain this concession the

Modoc Lumber Company and the defendant on the

one part agreed with the Macomber-Savidge Lum-

ber Company and the plaintiff on the other part,

that the Macomber - Savidge Lumber Company
should present and assign its claim to the Board

of Trade of San Francisco for inclusion in the

second mortgage or other form of funded indebted-

ness in the amount of only $53,905.92, and that in

consideration thereof the Modoc Lumber Company
should approve the claim of the Macomber-Savidge
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Lumber Company as stated by it, and in addition

thereto that the defendant should guarantee the

payment of part of said claim, to-wit: to the amount
of $50,000, by giving the promissory notes described

in the amended complaint, on the understanding

that the portion of said claim turned over to the

Board of Trade of San Francisco should be con-

verted into notes or other evidence of indebtedness,

signed by the Modoc Lumber Company and its sub-

sidiary corporation, the Williamson River Logging

Company, and secured by a second mortgage, or

some form of lien on the properties of the two

companies; and that any and all payments made

on any part of said indebtedness of the Modoc Lum-

ber Company should be credited against the said

personal notes to be given by the defendant as a

guaranty, up to the amount of defendant's said

notes; that said ten promissory notes described in

the amended complaint were each and all mad^,

given and delivered by the defendant, and taken,

accepted and received by the plaintiff, for the use

and benefit of and as agent for the Macomber-Sav-

idge Lumber Company, solely on the consideration

aforesaid, and on the agreement and understand-

ing between the parties to said notes, had and en-

tered into at the same time the notes were given,

that defendant should thereby become bound as

surety and guarantor for the Modoc Lumber Com-

pany up to the amount of $50,000 for the payment

of said indebtedness then existing and owing from

the last named company «3«t the Macomber-Savidge
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wise; that the said contemplated arrangement was

carried out; that the claim of the Macomber-Sav-

idge Lumber Company in the reduced amount of

$53,905.92 was assigned to the Board of Trade and

converted into notes secured by a second mortgage

;

that these notes were afterwards sold by the Board

of Trade and later were paid off in full; and that

thereby the defendant has been discharged from

liability on the notes sued on, which were collateral

to the said indebtedness of the Modoc Lumber Com-

pany.

The case was tried by the Court without a jury,

on written stipulation of the parties. The Court

below found the facts to be substantially as alleged

in the answer (Transcript, p. 61), and gave judg-

ment for defendant. The case is brought here on

writ of error by the plaintiff.

No request or motion was made by the plaintiff

in the court below for any findings of fact, either

general or special, nor was any point of law sub-

mitted by plaintiff for the ruling of the court, save

by certain objections to testimony, which will be

discussed later. No exceptions were taken to any

of the findings of fact or conclusions of law as

made. No question is raised on this appeal as to

the sufficiency of the facts found to sustain the

judgment. The assignments of error, with the ex-

ception of two or three respecting admission of

testimony, are based on matters to which no ex-
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this court therefore has no jurisdiction to consider.

We call attention now to certain details in which

the statement of facts made by the plaintiff in his

brief needs correction. A labored effort is evident

therein to have it appear that the plaintiff haa^

ceased, on and after the 14th of December, 1921, the

date of the Crittenden agreement, to act as presi-

dent and director of the Macomber-Savidge Lum-

ber Company. The purpose of this is to escape

from the presumption that in taking security re-

lated to a debt due his company, the plaintiff acted

in the company's interest and not in his own per-

sonal interest, and also to escape from the rule that

an officer of a corporation can not bargain away

his company's rights for a consideration personal

to himself. The court is therefore told by the plain-

tiff in the first sentence of his opening statement

that the plaintiff "up to the 14th day of December,

1921, was president and director of the Macomber-

Savidge Lumber Company", and a large part of

the brief is devoted to the nursing of the idea that

because of the Crittenden agreement the plaintiff

could not after the 14th of December, 1921, take

any action for the protection of the interests of his

corporation, but that he could and did bargain away

those interests for his own personal benefit.

It is admitted in the pleadings, being alleged in

paragraph I of the answer to the amended com-

plaint (Transcript, p. 28) and not denied in the re-
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all the transactions involved in this action, the

plaintiff was the president of the Macomber-Sav-

idge Lumber Company. It is undisputable that the

plaintiff did go on doing business for his corpora-

tion and acting as its president long after the 14th

day of December, 1921. The lower court has found

(Transcript, p. 51), not only that the plaintiff was

president of his company at all times mentioned in

the pleadings, but that he acted in behalf of his

company in this very transaction, and no excep-

tion has been taken by plaintiff to this finding. The

evidence that plaintiff continued to act on behalf

of his corporation as its president and managing

officer up until long after the execution of the

notes in question is abundant and is uncontradicted

except by some feeble pretensions on his part that

he conducted himself according to the terms of the

Crittenden agreement. Inasmuch as the fact has

been found in our favor on this point by the lower

court, and is not here for review, we refrain from

discussing in detail the evidence in relation thereto.

It is also repeatedly stated in plaintiff's brief

that the notes in question were given to plaintiff

in consideration of his own individual consent to

the reduction of his company's claim and the filing

of same with the Board of Trade. This statement

is not only contrary to the findings of the lower

court (Findings VI and VII, Transcript, pp. 64-66)

to which no exceptions were taken, but is contrary

to the evidence and absurd on its face. We do not
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deem it necessary or proper to discuss the evidence

in detail. It suffices to say that nobody—not even

the plaintiff himself—so testified.

The plaintiff is largely staking this appeal on

the theory that the Crittenden agreement complete-

ly barred him from acting on his company's behalf

in respect to any of its affairs. The Macomber-

Savidge Lumber Company was not a party to that

agreement, which was merely a private arrange-

ment between the stockholders. The company made
no transfer of its assets to Crittenden, and he never

became vested with any title thereto. The Critten-

den agreement was cancelled and superseded by a

new agreement to which the corporation was a

party (Defendant's Exhibit No. 12, Transcript, pp.

326, 330) on February 21, 1922. The nev/ agreement

vv^as not and did not purport to be a continuation

of the Crittenden agreement, but completely super-

seded same. The provision contained in the Crit-

tenden agreement forbidding the compromising of

any claims without the written consent of Macom-

ber and Savidge is not contained in the Sanborn

assignment. Even if it were therein, it would have

no such effect as is contended for by plaintiff, but

would render it more rather than less obligatory

on him to represent faithfully the interests of his

company, inasmuch as it designated him as one of

the two officers and directors who were to super-

vise the liquidation of its affairs through the

trustee.

It is assumed all through plaintiff's statement
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of the case that Goldthwaite was dealing with Ma-

comber on the basis of the Crittenden agreement,

although Goldthwaite has testified (p. 212) that he

knew nothing of its terms, and the Crittenden

agreement had been annulled at the time the deal-

ings took place.

We shall show hereafter in this brief that if the

notes were given for Macomber's individual benefit

and the consideration was what he claims it was,

they were void for illegality of consideration.

Before taking up the assignments of error on

the merits excepting in an incidental way, we pro-

pose now to show by a preliminary discussion there-

of that none of them, outside of the first, second and

fourth assignments, are founded on any exceptions

taken below ; and these three are stuffed with matter

which does not come under the objections and ex-

ceptions on which they rest. The plaintiff in error has

therefore no substantial basis for the review he is

seeking to obtain, unless it can be found in that

part of assignments numbered I, II and IV which

legitimately comes under the exceptions on which

these three assignments rest.

PRELIMINARY DISCUSSION OF THE ASSIGN-

MENTS OF ERROR.

The first assignment is founded on the action

of the court, as shown in the bill of exceptions at

page 120 of the transcript, reference to which will

show that the objection and exception cover just
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one specific question, namely, whether immediately

before the notes sued on were signed, there was

any argument between plaintiff and defendant, or

difference, as to whether the Macomber-Savidge

Lumber Company would put its claim into the hands

of the Board of Trade or not. The court permitted

the question to be answered, reserving a ruling on

the objection until after the evidence was in. No
motion to strike or other later effort to obtain a

ruling is shown. Plaintiff in fact appears to have

evaded that particular question and never answered

it. His counsel in their assignment based thereon

have run into the record matter testified to in

answer to other questions which were not objected

to and which did not refer to any conversations be-

tween the parties and were not in any sense within

the scope of the objection. Such loose and general

exceptions and assignments of error based thereon

are insufficient to secure a review of the action of

the lower court. Questions of law, which were not

presented to the lower court and sharply called to

its attention by exceptions properly preserved in

the record, are not open to review, and an excep-

tion which is too general and indefinite to challenge

the attention of the trial court to any specific ques-

tion of law involved in the case will not invoke the

exercise of the appellate jurisdiction. Highway

Trailer Co. v. City of Des Moines, Iowa, 298 Fed.

Rep. 71. Wear v. Imperial Window Glass Co., 224

Fed. Rep. 60. An objection and exception on a

specific point do not give a party carte blanche to
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go into the entire record and assign as coming

thereunder everything he may select.

The second assignment of error is founded on

what appears in the bill of exceptions at page 1^5

of the transcript. The only answer called for by

the question objected to was whether at the time

plaintiff and defendant had the negotiations which

led, among other things, to the adjustment of the

account between their respective corporations, the

plaintiff raisedany question as to whether hewas then

acting for his corporation or for himself personally.

The plaintiff, in assigning error on the overruling

of his objection to the question, has attempted to

run in under the objection extraneous matter not

testified to in response to that question and per-

taining to entirely different subjects. The same

situation exists respecting several of the other

assignments of error. As a matter of course,

assignments of error must be based on exceptions

taken to rulings at the trial. Ritz Carlton Restau-

rant & Hotel Co. v. Gillespie, 1 Fed. Rep. (2d) 921.

Borderland Coal Sales Co. v. Imperial Coal Sal^s

Co., 7 Fed. Rep. (2d) 116. Texas Co. v. Brilliant

Mfg. Co., 2 Fed. Rep. (2d) 1. Northwest Theatres

Co. vs. Hanson, 4 Fed. Rep. (2d) 471. An assign-

ment of error to the ruling of the trial court does

not dispense with the necessity of an exception.

Goldfarb v. Keener, 263 Fed. Rep. 356. Under U.

S. Stat. Sec. 700, the Circuit Court of Appeals is

without jurisdiction to review rulings made on trial

of an action of law by the court, unless they were
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excepted to at the time. U. S. Shipping Board

Emergency Fleet Corp. v. Drew, 288 Fed. Rep. 374.

We will not extend our brief with further citations

on a point so elementary and well settled.

The question, objection, ruling and answer, as

shown at pp. 145-149, are as follows

:

Q. At the meeting when you agreed to ap-
prove the account on behalf of your company,
was Mr. Macomber making any question as to

whether he represented his company or him-
self personally?

MR. VAN DUYN: We object as incom-
petent, irrelevant and immaterial, and as parol

testimony intended to vary an agreement which
was reduced to writing.

COURT: It will be admitted subject to that

objection.

MR. VAN DUYN: May we have an excep-

tion to questions of like kind, as I understand
it—the same ruling and exception?

COURT: Yes.

A. Will you give me the question?

Q. (Question read.)

A. There was no such question.

The testimony called for was competent, relevant

and material and had not the slightest tendency to

vary the written agreement. The plaintiff was en-

deavoring to maintain the position in the lower

court, as he is attempting to do here, that when

he had the transactions with defendant which re-

sulted in the giving of the notes in question, he,
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the plaintiff, was not acting on behalf of the Ma-

comber-Savidge Lumber Co. but was acting only on

behalf of himself individually. The answer alleged,

in paragraphs VI and VII (Transcript, pp. 32 and

33) that plaintiff in said transaction acted on behalf

of his company. These allegations were denied in

paragraphs VI and VII of the reply (Transcript, pp.

47-49). Plaintiff had further alleged affirmatively

in the reply that the Macomber-Savidge Lumber

Company did not make any agreement whatsoever

with the Modoc Lumber Company or the defendant

at said time. Whan on the stand as a witness on

his own behalf at the opening of the trial, plaintiff

had testified (Transcript, p. 114) that the indebted-

ness of the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company
mentioned in Exhibit B, was the indebtedness of

the Modoc Lumber Company to the Macomber-

Savidge Lumber Company that existed on the date

the notes were signed, and that at the same time

plaintiff came to some agreement concerning the

amount of that indebtedness with Mr. Goldthwaite

on behalf of plaintiff's company. After making this

statement, he had endeavored to back up on the

matter by saying:

I did not represent my company officially;

I represented myself alone ; nobody represented

the company in making the agreement. My
company did not come to any adjustment with

the Modoc Lumber Company as to the amount

of the account at this time. The arrangement

that was made was not an agreement between
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the two companies at all. At the time I pre-

sume I was president of the Macomber-Savidge

Lumber Company, but I don't know v/hether I

was or not.

He then went on to set up the claim that the Crit-

tenden agreement barred him from doing any busi-

ness on behalf of his company, though he had to

admit doing a number of specific acts on its behalf

when confronted with writings and other evidence.

Plaintiff had put the Crittenden agreement in evi-

dence as an exhibit (Plaintiff's Exhibit 11, Tran-

script p. 127) and, as shown at page 134 of the tran-

script, his counsel had called attention to the pro-

vision therein that none of the parties to the agree-

ment should transact any business on behalf of

the corporation, and plaintiff had testified that he

had conducted himself in accordance therewith.

Surely the defendant had a right to dispute this

testimony and to testify on the same point. We
grant that the position of the plaintiff was so ab-

surd as scarcely to need any evidence to contradict

it, when he said that in obtaining a written approval

of his company's account (Defendant's Exhibit B,

Transcript, p. 113) he did not act on behalf of his

company but represented himself only and that no

one acted on behalf of his company. The natural

presumption of Mr. Goldthwaite or any one else in

negotiating such a settlement of the account would

be that the president of each company was acting

on behalf of his company and assuming to have

authority to do so. Under such circumstances, if
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plaintifr desired to disclaim authority to bind his

company, it was the plain duty to put the other side

on notice and to say that he had no authority and

was merely acting on his own behalf. The question

put to Mr. Goldthwaite and objected to by plaintiff

was intended to elicit Mr. Goldthwaite's testimony

as tx) whether the plaintiff had at the said tim.e

raised any question as to whether he was acting

for his corporation or for himself personally, and

the answer was that he had not. We think we aro

justified in sayinp: that there was no merit in the

objection , o¥on if thoro had boon an CY^aptifin tn

the ruling !

The third assignment of error is founded on the

action of the court appearing in the bill of excep-

tions at page 152 of the transcript. It is to be

noted that no exception was taken to the ruling.

Indeed, plaintiff did not even ask for or ob-

tain a ruling, let alone an exception. The ques-

tion objected to was a question put to de-

fendant as to whether at the time the notes were

signed, defendant had any dicussion^with plaintiflf

concerning them. Plaintiff asked the court that the

evidence called for should be considered as objected

to, on the ground that same tended to vary the

written contract, and the court assented. There is

no suggestion of an exception. In the case of Fel-

ton V. Newport, 92 Fed. Rep. 470, it was held that

an assignment of error will not lie upon the ad-

mission of testimony, unless the ruling is excepted

to; and that where evidence is admitted subject to
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objection made, and no exception is taken at the

time, the matter must be again called up and a

final ruling obtained, and an exception taken there-

to. This holding is squarely in point and what has

been said above in the discussion of the second as-

signment of error respecting the necessity of an

exception to the ruling if it is to be assigned as

error, also applies here.

Even if there had been a ruling and an excep-

tion, we are satisfied it would be held by the court

that the objection v^^as without merit. We will

discuss the point later.

The action of the court on which the fourth as-

signment is founded appears in the bill of excep-

tions at page 153 oi the transcript. Just prior to

the putting of the question which was objected to,

the defendant had testified that at the time the

notes were presented for his signature, he protest-

ed that they should run to the Macomber-Savidge

Lumber Company, because the indebtedness was to

that company, and that in response thereto, plain-

tiff had said he was having trouble with his asso-

ciates and was distrustful of the assignee and that

he desired if possible to have the notes in his own

name, in case any trouble arose in the future, so that

he would have the whip hand or dominate the situa-

tion within his own company ; and that he, defendant,

did not owe plaintiff personally any money and

plaintiff had never loaned him any money. With

the foregoing as a preface, and with the written
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contract, Defendant's Exhibit B, in evidence, in

which it was stipulated that any payments made

on the debt of the Modoc Lumber Company to the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company were to be

credited on the notes of Goldthwaite to Macomber,

the following took place, forming the basis of plain-

tiff's fourth assignment of error, as set forth in

the Transcript at p. 153:

Q. Was there any other consideration given

to you for the execution of these notes than
you have set forth in your answer?

MR. VAN DUYN : No failure of considera-

tion pleaded at all.

MR. VEAZIE: We pleaded exactly what
the consideration was, and I simply asked him
if there v»as any other consideration.

A. None whatever; no, sir.

MR. VAN DUYN: Objected to upon the

ground that it has not been pleaded in the

answer or further defense of the defendant,

and varies the contract.

COURT: Admitted subject to that objec-

tion and exception.

Q. Under these circumstances you then
signed the notes which are in evidence.

A. Yes.

The objection that what was alleged in the

answer was not pleaded is too nonsensical to dis-

cuss. We will comment later on the contention

that proof of the consideration is to be excluded

because it varies the written contract.
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The fifth assignment is not founded on any par-

ticular objections and exceptions not already cover-

ed by preceding assignments. Much of the matter

referred to therein as alleged error was brought

out by the plaintiff's own counsel on cross examina-

tion of the defendant, as shown at pages 206 to 289

of the transcript. It is a sham assignment, founded

on no objection, ruling of the court or exception,

unless a part of it finds support in the same matter

covered by assignment number IV. It requires no

separate discussion.

The sixth assignment is not founded on any

objection or exception. No such exception as

counsel have imagined in drawing up this assign-

ment, either to the testimony of Mr. Goldthwaite or

of Mr. Brainard, as to the transactions had before

the Board of Trade, or as to the evidence showing

the payment of the notes and mortgages was ever

interposed. The testimony on these points all

came in without any objection thereto, and much

of it in response to cross-examination by plaintiff's

counsel. This assignment may therefore be elimin-

ated from further consideration.

The seventh assignment is a blanket one, alleg-

ing error of the court in stating the law of the case

as set forth in the written opinion. No exception

thereto was taken. Even if an exception had been

noted, it is settled law that assignments of error

cannot be based on the opinion of the court below.

Stoffregen v. Moore, 271 Fed. Rep. 680.

Gibson v. Luther, 196 Fed. Rep. 203.
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Fleischmann Const. Co. v. U. S., 270 U. S.

349, 46 S. Ct. 284.

In addition to the above good reasons why this

assignment of error should be disregarded, we ex-

pect to show, in the discussion which will follow,

that the view of the lower court as to the law, set

forth in the opinion, is correct.

The eighth assignment is not founded on any-

thing in the bill of exceptions, but is based on the

contention that there is no evidence in the record

to establish the facts set forth in the sixth finding

of fact made by the lower court. As we have re-

marked above, the plaintiff made no request or

motion for any findings, general or special, and

took no exceptions to the findings which were made.

Our contention is that he is not entitled to present

for review here any question respecting the suf-

ficiency of the evidence to sustain the findings which

the court did make. In the case of H. F. Dangberg

Land & Livestock Co. v. Day, 247 Fed. Rep. 477,

the Court held that where, at the close of the testi-

mony in an action tried to the Court, plaintiff made

no request for a finding in its favor on the issues,

and by no motion or request presented the question

of law whether there was substantial evidence to

sustain findings for defendant, the sufficiency of

the evidence can not be reviewed on appeal.

In the case of Pabst Brewing Company v. E.

Clemens Horst Co., 264 Fed. Rep. 909, the Court

held that the sufficiency of the evidence to support
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the trial court's findings is not open to review in

the Circuit Court of Appeals, where there was no

request for a contrary finding, and no motion or

request presenting to the trial court the question

of law whether there was substantial evidence to

sustain the finding.

In the case of Security National Bank of Sioux

City, Iowa, v. Old National Bank of Battle Creek,

Mich., 241 Fed. Rep. 1, the Court said that the ques-

tion whether there was any substantial evidence to

sustain the findings, which is the only question as

to the relation of the evidence to the findings re-

viewable by a Federal Appellate Court, can be re-

viewed only when, by motion, objection, or request

for a declaration of law, or some like action, it was

presented to and decided by the trial court,, and

an exception to the ruling taken and allowed.

In the case of Highway Trailer Co. v. City of

Des Moines, 298 Fed. Rep. 71, the Court held that

in an action at law tried to the Court the question

of law whether there is any substantial evidence to

sustain a finding is reviewable only when a request

or a motion is made, denied and exception taken,

or some other like action is taken which fairly pre-

sents that question to the trial court, and secures

its ruling thereon during the trial.

In the case of Fleischmann Const. Co. v. U. S,,

270 U. S. 356, 46 S. Ct. 288, the court said:

"To obtain a review by an appellate court of

the conclusions of law, a party must either ob-
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tain from the trial court special findings which

raise the legal propositions, or present the

propositions of law to the court and obtain a

ruling on them. Norris v. Jackson, supra, 129;

Martinton v. Fairbanks, supra, 673 (5 S. Ct.

321). That is, as was said in Humphreys v.

Third National Bank, supra, 855 (21 C. C. A.

542), "he should request special findings of fact

by the court, framed like a special verdict of

a jury, and then reserve his exceptions to those

special findings, if he deems them not to b«

sustained by any evidence; and if he wishes to

except to the conclusions of the law drawn by

the court from the facts found he should have

them separately stated and excepted to. In

this way, and in this way only, is it possible

for him to review completely the action of the

court below upon the merits."

Scores of additional cases could be cited to the

same effect if it were deemed necessary.

Since the question as to whether there is any

evidence to sustain finding number VI is not really

before the Court, we are not disposed to burden

the record with any extended reference to the testi-

mony to show that the assignment would be with-

out merit if the question were really here for con-

sideration. Inasmuch as the plaintiff in error has

discussed his three assignments numbered VIII to

X inclusive collectively under point three of his

brief, we will take them up in the same manner
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later on and say what we think necessary respect-

ing the evidence to sustain them.

The ninth assignment is in the same situation

as the eighth, being based on finding number VIT.

It likewise rests on no ruling of the lower court,

objection or exception.

The tenth assignment is in the same situation,

being based on finding No. XV and not founded on

any exception.

The eleventh assignment is based on the failure

of the lower court to make a certain finding, to

which plaintiff says he was entitled because of the

allegations contained in paragraph V of the reply.

The allegations of fact contained in paragraph V of

the reply respecting the Crittenden assignment are

immaterial, inasmuch as it appears therefrom that

he had resigned and had been superseded by a new

trustee before the notes in question were given.

The matter alleged in assignment number XI as to

the effect of the Crittenden agreement in depriving

plaintiff of power to represent his company is not

contained in the reply and is a mere illfounded con-

clusion of law. No motion or request was presented

to the lower court to find these facts or draw the

conclusion therefrom now contended for. The as-

signment therefore has no foundation in any ex-

ception or ruling. Even if there had been a special

application to the court to make such a finding,

compliance therewith would have been discretionary

and a refusal would have constituted no reversible
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error, granting that the finding was proper. Mary-

land Casualty Co. v. Orchard Land & Timber Co.,

240 Fed. Rep. 366. Calaf v. Fernandez, 239 Fed.

Rep. 795. U. S. v. Atchison T. & S. F. Ry. Co., 270

Fed. Rep. 1.

Counsel for plaintiff in error appear to be labor-

ing under the idea that the practice in regard to

findings and exceptions in the Federal Court is

governed by the conformity statute, which is not

so. Bank of Waterproof v. Fidelity & Dep. Co.,

299 Fed. Rep. 478. Goldfarb v. Keener, 263 Fed.

Rep. 356.

The twelfth assignment refers solely to the

court's conclusions of law, and is not founded on

any exception. In the case of Arkansas Anthra-

cite Coal & Land Co. v. Stokes, 277 Fed. Rep. 625,

it was held that where defendant made no request

for findings or for any declaration of law in his

favor, and saved no exception and took no other

step prior to rendition of the judgment, the ques-

tion of law as to the sufficiency of the evidence to

sustain the findings is not open to review; it being

too late, after the rendition of the judgment, to

take exception to rulings of the court on the issues

tried.

The thirteenth assignment is a blanket assign-

ment founded on no exception and alleging error

of the court in giving judgment for defendant. Even

if there had been such an exception, it has been

often held that it would present no question for

review.
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In the case of Arkansas Anthracite Coal & Land
Co. V. Stokes, 277 Fed. Rep. 625, it was held that

a general assignment that there was error in ren-

dering judgment one way or the other is too in-

definite for consideration on appeal.

In the case of Pennsylvania Casualty Co. v.

Whiteway, 210 Fed. Rep. 783, it was held that where

an action at law is tried to the court and a jury

is waived, the court's general finding stands as the

verdict of a jury and may not be reviewed, unless

the lack of evidence to sustain the finding has been

suggested by a ruling thereon or a motion for

judgment, or some motion to present to the court

the issue of law so involved before the close of the

trial.

In the case of National Surety Co. v. United

States, 200 Fed. Rep., 142, it was held that in the

absence of any request to find a fact specially or

to find generally for defendant, and a ruling there-

on, and an exception taken, a general finding for

plaintiff stands as the verdict of a jury, and an

exception thereto presents no question for review.

In the case of Phoenix Securities Co. v. Dittmar,

224 Fed. Rep. 892, it was held that under Act March

3, 1865, c 86 Sec. 4, 13 Stat. 501, (Rev. St. Sees. 649,

700,—Comp. St. 1913, Sees. 1587, 1668) providing

that the court's finding on the facts, where the case

is submitted to it by written consent to waive a

jury, shall have the effect of a verdict, and its rul-

ings during the trial, excepted to at the time, may

be reviewed, if presented by bill of exceptions, and
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if the finding is special the sufficiency of the facts

found to support the judgment may be reviewed,

the general finding in such a case is not reviewable,

except where there is no evidence to support it, and

then only when the question was expressly present-

ed to the trial court and exception saved to its rul-

ing thereon.

In the case of Keeley v. Ophir Hill Consol. Min.

ing Co.,^(two cases), it was held that an assign-

ment that there was no evidence to support the

judgment presents a question of law which cannot

be reviewed unless presented to and passed on by

the trial court by some appropriate action before

the end of the trial.

In the case of Mound Valley Vitrified Brick Co.

V. Mound Valley Natural Gas & Oil Co., 205 Fed.

Rep. 147, it was held that where the parties to an

action at law waive a jury and submit the issues

of fact to the court, the court's general finding

thereon cannot be reviewed; but questions sought

to be reviewed must be presented to the trial court

by requests for findings or declarations of law ap-

plicable to the evidence.

In the case of Calaf v. Fernandez, 239 Fed. Rep.

795, it was held that where, in such case, no request

was made during the trial for special findings, nor

any motion for a general finding in favor of the

adverse party, there is no question in respect to the

general finding that can be reviewed by an appellate

court under Rev. St. Sec. 700 (Comp. St. 1915, Sec.
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1668) , which provides for a review in such case only

of "the rulings of the court in the progress of the

trial."

In the case of Bank of Waterproof v. Fidelity

& Deposit Co. of Md., 299 Fed. Rep. 478, it was

held that to secure review of evidence by appellate

court in trial by court without jury under written

stipulation waiving jury, appellant must have mov-

ed for judgment and excepted to court's refusal

thereof; exception to judgment alone not present-

ing anything for review.

In the case of Granite Falls Bank v. Keyes, 277

Fed. Rep. 796, it was held that on trial of an action

at law to the court, where no finding or ruline:

was asked on the conclusion of the evidence, assign-

ments that the court erred in directing judgment

for one party and in not directing judgment for

the other present no question for review under Rev.

St. Sec. 700 (Comp. St. Sec. 1668.)

In the case of United States v. Atchison T. & S.

F. Ry. Co., 270 Fed. Rep. 1, it was held that

general specifications that the court erred in enter-

ing judgment for defendant, or in failing to enter

it for plaintiff, upon specified counts, but setting

forth no specific issues of law or rulings thereon

excepted to, which conditioned the entries or re-

fusals to enter, are too indefinite for review.

In the case of United States Shipping Board

Emergency Fleet Corporation v. Drew, 288 Fed.

Rep. 374, it was held that assignments that the
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court erred in rendering judgment for plaintiff and

in not rendering judgment for defendant are too

general to raise any question for review.

ANSWER TO ARGUMENT OF PLAINTIFF RE-
SPECTING ASSIGNMENTS NUMBERED

I TO VI INCLUSIVE:

We have shown by our analysis above that only

the first, second and fourth assignment; rests on any

exceptions taken in the court below. As to the first

assignment, we have shown that it rests on an

exception and objection to a question which was not

answered, and that the court had reserved a ruling

until after the evidence was in, and was never call-

ed on to rule. For the reasons set forth in our

said analysis, we contend that no substantial que.s-

tion is presented to the court by said assignment.

The intent of the question objected to, as was stated

to the court at the time, was merely to show the

circumstances under which the notes and the writ-

ten agreement, defendant's Ex. B, were executed

and the situation of the subject matter and the

parties ; all of which matters it is expressly provided

in Section 717 Oregon Laws may be shown. That

section reads as follows:

For the proper construction of an instru-

ment, the circumstances under which it was

made, including the situation of the subject of

the instrument and of the parties to it, may

also be shown, so that the judge be placed in
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the position of those whose language he is to

interpret.

This rule, about which there can be no contro-

versy, entitled us to the admission of all of the

evidence we put in respecting the circumstances

surrounding the making of the notes. There were

before the court for consideration the notes and the

written agreement executed simultaneously there-

with. To enable the court to interpret these instru-

ments, we were entitled to show everjrthing this

section of the code says we may show. This em-

braced, of course, the relations between the parties

and the companies they respectively represented,

the facts as to the indebtedness, the dispute con-

cerning the amount thereof and the adjustment they

were making at the time, the arrangement con-

templated with the Board of Trade—all these mat-

ters being expressly referred to in the writings

themselves. It seems to us, that in a case like

this, the rule cited is broad enough to admit also

proof of what the actual consideration for the

notes was, because the other matters we are plainly

entitled to bring out thereunder can hardly be

shown without bringing out the consideration for

the notes at the same time.

At any rate, this section of the statute clearly

entitled us to prove all the circumstances and rela-

tions of the parties existing at the time the notes

and the agreement (Defendant's Exhibit B) exe-

cuted simultaneously therewith were made.
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The only testimony the plaintiff gave which

can be deemed to have any relation to the question

objected to was his statement as follows, appearing

at page 121 of the Transcript

:

A. * * * I did not consent to the claim of

the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company be-

ing filed with the Board of Trade until after

we had concluded our agreements and Goldth-

waite had handed me the ten notes.

Q. Wasn't it a part of the understanding

that you would consent when the notes were

signed?

A. Yes, sir, that was the understanding. I

consented for myself.

Plaintiff's counsel are hardly in a position to

urge that this testimony is matter not proper for

the consideration of the court, inasmuch as they

have set out the same matter, tinged with their

theory as to its interprejtation, at pages 6 and 7

of their brief. If there was any error in the re-

ception of the testimony—we think it is clear there

was none—it would be cured by the admissions of

plaintiff's counsel, made in their brief, respecting

the facts.

The fourth assignment presents a more sub-

stantial question. Indeed, it appears to be the only

assignment in the whole record which presents any

real issue for the consideration of the court. The

interrogatory objected to called for and elicited

testimony as to what was the consideration for the

notes.
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Inasmuch as the uniform negotiable instruments

law is, and was at the time of the transactions here

involved, in effect in both Oregon and California,

there is no question of conflict of laws on that sub-

ject; but as to matters of practice, such as the

form of the pleadings and the reception of evi-

dence, the laws of Oregon govern, as a matter of

course.

Counsel for plaintiff are in grievous error in

saying to the Court that the only defense pleaded

is that the notes were given as collateral security

to the debt of the Modoc Lumber Company to the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company, and \Yere

discharged by the payment thereof. That is one

defense. Another defense is that if the notes really

were given to the plaintiff for his personal benefit,

as he alleges in his reply, they were void because

the consideration therefor was illegal, they having

admittedly been given in consideration of conces-

sions made by him for and on behalf of the cor-

poration of which he was president and a director.

A third defense is that by the terms of the writing,

Defendant's Exhibit B, as it must be constructed in

the light of the situation of the parties and the

subject matter, Mr. Goldthwaite has been exonerat-

ed from liability on his notes by the payment which

was made of $53,905.92 and interest on the debt of

the Modoc Lumber Company to the Macomber-Sav-

idge Lumber Company, assigned by the latter com-

pany to Sanborn, and by him to the Board of Trade,

and by the latter to the Menefee Investment Com-
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pany. We think that the plain meaning of the writ-

ing is, that all payments on that indebtedness were

to be credited against the notes, and it is not con-

troverted that the payment which was made in

July, 1925, was a payment pro tanto of that debt.

This defense was set up in the answer, and it was

proved by the introduction of the written agree-

ment of the parties, with the evidence of the cir-

cumstances necessary for the interpretation there-

of. As to this defense, it does not matter whether

the notes were given for the personal benefit of

the plaintiff or that of the corporation, or whether

they were collateral security or primary obliga-

tions—it was expressly agreed between the parties

that they were to be credited with all payments

made on the debt of the Modoc Lumber Company

to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company, and

it is conceded that payments have been made on

that debt to an amount sufficient to wipe out the

Goldthwaite notes.

The writing, Defendant's Exhibit B, copied at

page 8 of the plaintiff's brief, constitutes in large

part the proof of our first defense, which is that

the notes were collateral security only ; and it is the

main substance of our third defense, which is, that

no matter whether the notes were collateral secur-

ity or not, they were to be credited with all pay-

ments made on the debt of the Modoc Lumber Com-

pany to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company;

it being admitted that payments in excess of the

amount of the notes have been made.
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The contention of plaintiff is that the promissory-

notes and the writing, Defendant's Exhibit B, are

absolutely complete agreements, so perfect and

clear, so definite in respect to consideration and

every other element and circumstance, that the de-

fendant was not even entitled to show in respect

thereto what the code of Oregon in Section 717 ex-

pressly provides that every party to a litigation

may show respecting every agreement.

The defendant on the other hand contends that

the notes themselves tell nothing as to what the

actual consideration was, and that the writing,

Plaintiff's Exhibit B, is very far from being a com-

plete and formal document, embodying the full ex-

pression^ of the agreement of the parties, referring

as it does on its face to a conversation and an oral

agreement existing outside thereof, and to other

matters in respect to which it can not be inter-

preted without proof of the circumstances sur-

rounding its execution and explaining the relations

of the parties to the subject matter. The very first

thing referred to in defendant's Exhibit B is a

conversation and a personal agreement in connec-

tion with the claim of the Macomber-Savidge Lum-

ber Company against the Modoc Lumber Company.

Inasmuch as a conversation is mentioned, it appears

to refer to an oral agreement outside the writing,

Defendant's Exhibit B, on which it is founded, in

part at least. When inquiry was made, it imme-

diately developed that such was the fact, and the

brief of the plaintiff admits as much. Plaintiff
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himself testified, as we have quoted his testimony

above in our discussion of the first assip^nment of

error, that it was part of the understanding when

the notes were signed that he would consent to the

claim of the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company

being filed with the Board of Trade. Defendant's

testimony shows without dispute that the whole

consideration for the giving of the notes was the

agreement of Macomber on behalf of his Company

to file its claim in a reduced amount with the

Board of Trade, and to participate along with the

other creditors in the plan for refinancing. Plain-

tiff's attorneys calmly adopted all this matter as

part of the material facts of the case and set-out

on pages 6 to 8 of their brief. What we are tryino:

to get at is this—the writing, Defendants Exhibit

B, does not purport to be a complete embodyment

of the agreement of the parties. It refers to a con-

versation and to some agreement already existing.

It provides that Mr. Goldthwaite is to approve a

certain claim of the Macomber-Savidge Lumber

Company against the Modoc Lumber Company. To

be of any effect, such approval would have to be

an ofliicial act on behalf of his corporation. The

writing does not say what that claim was. Oral

proof was necessary to show that fact. The writing

does not say that the claim was a disputed one.

That is a material circumstance requiring parol

proof to show it. What consideration was being

given for the concession made by the Modoc Lum-

ber Company in api)roving the disputed items of
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the claim? The writing mentions none and parol

proof was necessary to show what such considera-

tion was. What has the San Francisco Board of

Trade to do with the claim, and why are any pay-

ments to be made to that institution? The writing

does not say. Oral evidence is necessary to show

what its connection with the transaction is to be,

and what the parties had agreed to in that respect.

What "personal notes" are referred to in the writ-

ing? It does not say. Parol evidence was neces-

sary to show. What was Macomber's relation to

the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company? The

writing does not say. Parol evidence was neces-

sary on that point and likewise as to Goldthwaite's

relations to the Modoc Lumber Company. On page

7 of plaintiff's brief his counsel say that "defendant

undertook negotiations with F. B. Macomber to

obtain his consent to the trustees^ filing a claim * * *

in the reduced amount of $53,000. Mr. Macomber,

on February 28, 1922, agreed * * * to consent to the

division and reduction of the claim and * * * to

the filing by the trustee of proof of said claim in

the sum of $53,000, if J. 0. Goldthwaite, defendant

in error, would approve the entire amount "allowed-

by his company to Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-

pany, and would personally give his individual ten

notes to F. B. Macomber as an individual in the

sum of $5000 each for obtaining the individual con-

sent of Mr. Macomber to the loss to his individual

interest, which would result because of the loss of

the immediate right to proceed against the debtor,
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because of the allowing the Menefee interests pri-

ority in security between the mortgages, and also

because it would effectuate the giving up by the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company of a right

to have the balance of its claim, to wit, about $18,-

000.00, secured, postponing it to a third and inferior

position and thus involving Macomber in an in-

dividual loss. This was agreed to by Mr. J. 0.

Goldthwaite, and the agreement so reached was

reduced to writing, a copy of which agreement is

as follows," and plaintiff's attorneys then proceded

to set out the writing, Defendant's Exhibit B, which

does not contain a single one of these terms which

plaintiff's counsel say were part thereof, except the

provision that defendant was to approve the amount

of the claim of the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-

pany. Of course, we are not admitting that plain-

tiff's counsel are correct in stating that the con-

sideration for the notes was the individual consent

of Macomber and the individual loss he suffered.

Nobody has so testified—not even plaintiff himself,

and the Court has found otherwise. But the point

is that it is evident on the face of the writing that

it does not state all of the terms of the agreement

of the parties, and in particular that it does not

state the consideration for the giving of the notes;

and plaintiff's counsel admit as much. This being

so, parol evidence to supplement the writing was

admissible.

In 22 C. J. at page 1283, the rule is stated as

follows:
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Where a written instrument, executed pur-

suant to a prior verbal agreement or negotia-

tion, does not express the entire agreement or

understanding of the parties, the parol evi-

dence rule does not apply to prevent the intro-

duction of extrinsic evidence with reference to

the matters not provided for in the writing.

This rule is supported by the citation of hun-

dreds of authorities, including decisions of this

court. See also Contract Company v. Bridge Com-
pany, 29 Ore. 553.

The question presented by the fourth assign-

ment of error is whether, under the law applicable

to negotiable instruments and the general rules of

evidence and practice in effect in the State of Ore-

gon, the lower court erred in permitting the de-

fendant to testify to what the consideration for the

notes was. The first ground on which it is con-

tended that the evidence was not admissible is that

the question of consideration was not put in issue

by the pleadings.

The amended complaint, in paragraph II of each

cause of action, alleges that on the first day of

March, 1922, defendant made his certain promis-

sory note in writing in words and figures as fol-

lows, and then sets forth a copy of the note, con-

taining therein the words "value received."

The answer of the defendant to this paragraph

of the amended complaint, as to each of the ten

separate causes of action, is as follows:
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Defendant admits that on or about the first

day of March, 1922, he made a promissory note

in form as alleged in paragraph II thereof; but

denies that same was made or delivered except

as hereinaiter affirmatively alleged; and denies

each and every allegation of said paragraph

except as hereinafter afiirmatively alleged.

Nor is the foregoing by any means the end of

the matter. In paragraph III of each separate cause

of action of the amended complaint it is alleged

that the plaintiff is now the lawful owner and hold-

er of the said promissory note. This allegation Is

denied in the answer thereto; which puts in issue

the ownership of the notes; and under that issue

the defendant is entitled, as the authorities abun-

dantly show, to introduce his proof that the con-

sideration for the notes did not proceed from the

plaintiff.

In his affirmative answer the defendant has set

the transaction out fully as to what the actual con-

sideration was. After alleging the matters of in-

ducement and setting forth fully the relations which

existed between the Modoc Lumber Company and

the Macomber - Savidge Lumber Company at the

time the notes were given, the answer alleges:

In order to keep the amount of the second

mortgage or such form of funded indebtedness

as might be agreed upon, down to the limit

fixed by the said lender, it was necessary that

the amount of the claim of the Macomber-

Savidge Lumber Company to be included there-

in should not exceed $^^^,000.00 or thereabouts.
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To obtain said concession, the Modoc Lumber
Company and this defendant on the one part

agreed with the Macomber-Savidge Lumber
Company and the plaintiff herein on the other

part, that the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-
pany, through its trustee, should present and
assign its claim to the Board of Trade of San
Francisco for inclusion in the second mortgage
or other form of funded indebtedness in the

amount of only $53,905.92, and that in con-

sideration thereof the Modoc Lumber Company
should approve the claim of the Macomber-
Savidge Lumber Company as stated by it, in

the amount of $68,164.83, and in addition there-

to, that the defendant should guarantee the

payment of part of the said claim, to wit, to

the amount of $50,000, by giving the promissory

notes described in the complaint and herein-

after mentioned. * * *

The said ten promissory notes described in

the amended complaint were each and all made,

given and delivered by the defendant, and
taken, accepted and received by the plaintiff,

for the use and benefit of and as agent for the

Macomber - Savidge Lumber Company, solely

on the consideration aforesaid and on the

agreement and understanding betv;een the par-

ties to said notes, had and entered into at the

same time the notes were given, that the de-

fendant should thereby become bound as surety

and guarantor for the Modoc Lumber Com-
pany up to the amount of $50,000.00 for the

pajmient of said indebtedness then existing and

owing from the last named company to the

Macomber - Savidge Lumber Company as here-
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inbefore set forth, and not otherwise.

The requirements of the law as to the framing

of an issue of want of consideration are simple. In

8 C. J., p. 916, subject, "Bills and Notes," Section

1204, under the sub-title, "Sufficiency of Plea of

Want of Consideration," it is said:

A general averment that defendant made

the contract without any consideration there-

for, or the use of equivalent language, is usu-

ally deemed sufficient.

Sustaining this statement, see:

Hunter v. McLaughlin, 43 Ind., 38, 45.

Grimes v. Ericson, 94 Minn., 463.

Coding v. The MacArthur Co., 181 111. App.

373.

The court will see that we have not only denied

the allegations of the amended complaint respect-

ing the making and consideration of the notes to

have been anything else than what we affirmatively

allege the facts to have been; but that we have

gone to the pains of setting up fully the exact

facts, showing what the consideration actually was,

and that it did not proceed from the plaintiff, but

from his corporation. We think the court will

agree with us that the pleadings were ample to

permit us to present the facts.

We turn now to the assertion of our opponents

that the answer to the amended complaint contains

no allegation that the consideration was illegal,

and to the contention, based thereon, that we could
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not urge, and the court could not consider, the

question of the illegality of the consideration to

sustain the notes, against the plaintiff's claim that

the notes were given for his own sole and personal

benefit and not for the benefit of his corporation.

It is true, that there is no allegation in the answer

that the consideration for the notes was illegal.

Such an allegation, if inserted, would have been a

mere conclusion of law. We did set forth in the

answer, quite explicitly, the facts as to what the

actual consideration was, namely, certain conces-

sions respecting the Macomber-Savidge Lumber

Company's claim as a creditor against the Modoc

Lumber Company, negotiated and granted on be-

half of the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company

by and through the plaintiff as its president. That

such a consideration as the basis for a private

benefit to the officer himself who negotiates and

makes the arrangement, is an illegal consideration,

follows as inevitably, as a conclusion of law from

the facts pleaded, as darkness follows the going

down of the sun. Plaintiff and his attorneys seem

to think that it was perfectly legitimate for the

chief and managing officer of a corporation to bar-

gain away its rights and take for himself in return

therefor security he might have got for the cor-

poration itself, and that he can stand up in a court

room and boldly say, "I did it, but you have not

alleged that it was illegal," and escape on that

footing with his ill-gotten booty.

Even if we had not thus explicitly pleaded the
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facts which show the consideration to be illegal, if

the plaintiff is, as he asserts, the beneficial owner

of the notes, the facts are so far admitted by the

plaintiff as to what the consideration was, that

we would be entitled to the advantage of the de-

fense of illegality of consideration.

Oscanyan v. Arms Co., 103 U. S., 261.

Chandler v. Lack, (Okla.), 170 Pac. 516, 14 A.

L. R. 461.

Ah Doon V. Smith, 25 Ore., 89.

The position taken by plaintiff in his brief as

to what was the actual consideration for the notes

sued on, makes the case simple. It amounts virtu-

ally to an admission that the consideration was

what defendant has said it was in the answer to

the amended complaint, namely, an agreement that

the plaintiff's company would join the rest of the

creditors, turn its claim over to the Board of Trade

and reduce the claim as thus filed to $53,905.92.

We think we have abundantly established that

so far as the pleadings were concerned defendant

was entitled to introduce evidence as to what was

the consideration for the notes and the written

agreement which accompanied them.

The next point alleged against our right to

introduce such proof is that we were barred by

the parol evidence rule from introducing evidence

respecting the consideration for the notes and the

written agreement. We have already shown that

when the writing appears on its face or is admitted
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to be incomplete and not to set forth all of the terms

of the agreement, the parol evidence rule does not

apply. We have also advanced the contention that

proof of the consideration was under the circum-

stances here presented one of the proper facts to

be shown under Sec. 717 Oregon Laws. One of our

defenses set up in the answer is that the notes were

collateral security. An inference that such is the

case is raised up by the fact that it appears on

the face of the contemporaneous writing that any

payments made on the debt of the Modoc Lumber

Company to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-

pany were to be credited on the notes. In 22 C. J.,

p. 1147, the principle is stated that "parol evidence

is admissible to aid an inference which may be

deduced from a written instrument." We hav'^

found also that the plaintiff admits in his brief that

the consideration for the notes and the written

agreement was something not stated in the writ-

ings, and relies on the parol evidence in the case

to establish the facts in respect thereto. Aside from

these matters, which it seems to us completely dis-

pose of the objection interposed against the intro-

duction of evidence to show what the consideration

was, it is well established that the true considera-

tion of a note may be shown by parol; and such

proof constitutes no breach of the parol evidence

rule.

People's Bank & Trust Co. v. Floyd, 200 Ala.

192, 75 So. 940.

First State Bank of Eckman v. Kelly, 30 N.D.
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84, 152 N.W. 125, Ann. Cas., 1917 D, 1044.

Herrman v. Combs, 119 Md., 41, 85 A., 1044.

Stalnaker v. Tolbert, 121 S. C, 437, 144 S. E.,

412.

Dixon V. Miller, 43 Nev., 280.

State Savings Bank of Logan v. Osborn, 188

Iowa, 166.

Defendant is not precluded by the recitation in

the notes that they were given for value received

from showing by parol that there was in fact no

consideration or no lawful or valid consideration

entitling the plaintiff to recover thereon in his own

interest. The presumption of a consideration raised

by Sec. 24 of the Negotiable Instruments Act Is

merely prima facie and may be rebutted.

Dougherty v. Salt, 227 N. Y. 200.

Shriver v. Danby, 12 Del. Ch. 84, 106 A. 122.

State Savings Bank of Logan v. Osborn, 188

Iowa, 166.

Kramer v. Kramer, 181 N.Y. 477, 74 N.E. 474.

In the Matter of Pinkerton, 49 Misc. 363, 99

N. Y. S. 492.

Holbert v. Weber, 36 N. D. 106, 161 N. W. 560.

First Nat'l Bank of Bangor v. Paff, 240 Pa.

St. 513, 87 A. 841.

Nicholson v. Neary, 77 Wash. 294, 134 P. 492.

Lombard v. Bryne, 194 Mass. 236, 80 N. E. 489.

Cawthorpe v. Clark, 173 Mich. 267, 138 N. W.

1075.

Best v. Rocky Mt. Nat. Bank, 37 Colo. 149, 85

P. 1124, 7 L. R. A. (N. S.) 1035.
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Citizen's Nat. Bank v. Bean, 26 N. M. 203, 190

P. 1018.

Ginn v. Dolan, 81 Ohio St. 121, 90 N. E. 141,

135 A. S. R. 761, 18 Ann. Cas. 204.

Hudson V. Moon, 42 Utah, 377, 130 P. 774.

Shriver v. Danby, 12 Del. Ch. 84, 106 A. 122.

8 C. J. 916, and cases cited.

Plaintiff's attorneys interpret the words "prima

facie" used in respect to the presumption of con-

sideration in the negotiable instruments act as mean-

ing conclusive and indisputable. The courts do not

regard it in any such light, as will appear from an

examination of the cases we have just cited. For

instance, in Dougherty v. Salt, 227 N. Y. 200, the

Court said respecting the expression "value receiv-

ed" used in the note:

"The formula of the printed blank becomes

in the light of conceded facts a mere erroneous

conclusion which can not overcome the incon-

sistent conclusion of the law."

In the case of Nicholson v. Neary, 77 Wash. 294,

the Court said, having this very point under con-

sideration :

"A presumption of fact is not evidence, but

a rule of law fixing the order of proof. When
proof is offered to rebut the presumption, the

burden shifts, and it is incumbent upon the

opposing party to sustain his case by competent

evidence."
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The plaintiff makes the point that no failure

of consideration is pleaded. It is pleaded, in the

answer, that the notes were given only as collateral

security, and that the principal debt has been paid.

In the case of La Grande Nat'l Bank v. Blum, 26

Ore., 49, in an opinion written by the same able

judge who tried this case below, it was held that

the maker of a note as against the payee, may show

by extrinsic evidence that the note was made and

delivered as security for the performance of a

contract by him, and that he has performed his

contract; and such evidence does not change or

add to the terms of the writing, but shows simply

a failure of consideration.

Encountering once again in plaintiff's brief the

contention that our answer is insufficient to admit

proof of the facts objected to, we are led to say

that we wish the plaintiff would tell the Court at

the oral argument just what are the material facts

forming part of our defense which w^e have failed

to plead, and also what material facts not pleaded

the low-er court has included in its findings. We
believe we have pleaded all the facts we have of-

fered evidence to prove. We certainly have pleaded

all the facts to the proof of which objection was

made, and all the facts found by the lower court.

We can not perceive the slightest footing for the

contention that the answer is insufficient to admit

the proof.

At the foot of page 39 of plaintiff's brief, his
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counsel naively say that "there was no ambiguity

in the ten notes introduced by the plaintiff herein,

and it was error to admit evidence of surrounding

circumstances." Was there any ambiguity in th^

contract, Defendant's Exhibit B, which admittedly

was a part of the same transaction? But entirely

aside from the matter of ambiguity, there is no

such rule as plaintiff's counsel here have put into

words. No case is cited in which any court has held

that proof of the surrounding circumstances is not

admissible for the construction of a writing. Abra-

ham V. 0. & C. R. R. Co., which plaintiff's counsel

cite, quotes with approval, on page 501, the langu-

age of Mr. Justice Clifford, in Moran v. Prather,

90 U. S. 501, as follows: "Ambiguous words or

phrases may be reasonably construed to effect the

intention of the parties, but the province of con-

struction, except when technical terms are employ-

ed, can never extend beyond the language em-

ployed, the subject-matter, and the surrounding

circumstances."

This plainly means that proof of the subject

matter and surrounding circumstances is receiv-

able in all cases. In Meyer v. Everett P. & P. Co.,

this Court held that letters written prior to the

contract were properly received in evidence to ex-

plain its meaning.

We think we have shown that the oral evidence

called for by the question and answer covered by

the fourth assignment of errors was admissible,

on each and all of the following grounds:
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1. The fact as to the consideration was part of

the subject matter and one of the existing circum-

stances provable under Section 717 Oregon Laws.

2. The written agreement, Defendant's Ex-

hibit B, is ambiguous on its face, and proof of tho

consideration, among other things, is necessary to

a correct interpretation thereof.

3. Said Exhibit B mentionl^s a conversation

and a prior agreement as the basis thereof, and

indicates on its face that it is not a complete em-

bodiment of the contract between the parties, which

circumstance renders parol proof admissible to

supply the missing parts.

4. The admissions made by the plaintiff in his

brief show that there were important terms, in-

cluding the consideration for the agreement, which

do not appear in the wi'iting and which rest in

parol.

5. The plaintiff himself has adopted parol evi-

dence as the basis for supplying these missing

terms of the agreement.

6. Defendant's Exhibit B contains provisions

which raise an inference that the notes were col-

lateral to the debt of the Modoc Lumber Company.

Parol evidence is permissible to aid that inference.

7. Where the consideration for a negotiable in-

strument is put in issue by the pleadings, parol

evidence is admissible to show the true considera-

tion.
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We turn now to the discussion of the conten-

tion that defendant was barred by Section 808 Ore-

gon Laws, quoted on page 40 of plaintiff's brief,

from showing by parol evidence that the notes sued

on were given as collateral security or a guaranty.

We have called Mr. Goldthwaite a limited guaran-

tor. This contract was made in California. We
have been a little puzzled to define Mr. Goldth-

waite's position thereunder. It does not appear

to matter whether he be called a guarantor or a

surety.

California Civil Code, Edition 1923, Title xiii,

Sec. 2787, defines a guaranty as follows:

A guaranty is a promise to answer for the

debt, default, or miscarriage of another per-

son.

In Montgomery vs. Sayre, 91 Cal., 206, it is held

:

The maker of a note given to secure the pay-

ment of the note of a corporation, endorsed

by a third person, and secured by mortgage

upon the property of the corporation, is, in

law, a surety, and if such endorser is released

from obligation to pay a deficiency judgment

rendered against him and the corporation joint-

ly, in a suit for foreclosure of the mortgage and

which became a lien upon the lands of the en-

dorser, the maker of the collateral note is ex-

onerated from liability.

Does the record show any error of the lower

court in receiving parol evidence to establish the

fact found by the court that the notes were exe-
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cuted as collateral security and a limited j^uaranty

of the indebtedness of the Modoc Lumber Com-

pany to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company?

We have shown that there are only three exceptions

in the record, the first, set forth in assignment

number I, being a question as to whether imme-

diately before the notes were signed there was any

argument between the plaintiff and the defendant

as to whether the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-

pany would put its claim into the hands of the

Board of Trade; on which objection the court re-

served its ruling, and the question was never an-

swered.

The second exception, if it be deemed that there

is one, is set forth in the second assignment. The

question objected to was whether at the time when

Goldthwaite agreed to approve the account of the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company, Macomber,

the plaintiff, made any question as to whether he

was representing his company or himself personal-

ly. Inasmuch as the plaintiff has himself testified

at page 114 that he made the settlement on behalf

of his company, error can hardly be alleged as to

the reception of Mr. Goldthwaite's testimony on

the same point.

The other exception is found in the fourth

assignment; the question objected to being a ques-

tion put to the defendant as to whether there was

any other consideration for the notes than that

stated in the answer. In deciding whether the

court erred in receiving this testimony, it must ho
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borne in mind that the fact that the notes were a

collateral guaranty was not the sole defense in the

case. There was, as we have pointed out in detail,

the defense of illegality of consideration, which

the lower court has ruled, as a matter of law, was

a good defense, if the notes were in fact given for

the personal benefit of the plaintiff, in consideration

of any action which he took on behalf of the Ma-

comber - Savidge Lumber Company, of which he

was president. There was also the defense that

the notes were discharged by the payments made

to the full amount of $53,905.92 on the debt of the

Modoc Lumber Company to the Macomber-Savidge

Lumber Company, by virtue of the terms of the

written agreement, Defendant's Exhibit B, as it

must be interpreted in the light of the relations of

the parties and the surrounding circumstances. The

evidence objected to under the fourth assignment

of error was admissible on these issues, notwith-

standing it might have a tendency to show that

the notes were given as collateral security. But wo

are ready to maintain that the evidence objected

to was admissible, as against any objection made

thereto, even if there had not been these other de-

fenses set up in the answer.

In 27 C. J. at page 381, discussing the statute

of frauds, the lav/ is stated as follows:

Since, however, this rule does not require

any other rules in respect to the competency

of parol evidence to be applied to contracts

within the statute than are applicable to writ-
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ten contracts in general, parol evidence is ad-

missible to show the situation and relation of

the i)arties and the surrounding circumstance3

at the time the contract was made.

The foregoing statement of the law is abundant-

ly supported by authorities.

This being so, proof of what the consideration

for the notes and contract was and who paid it

would be admissible, not for the purpose of show-

ing that the notes were not binding obligations,

but for the purpose of showing for whose benefit

they were given, and who owned them, which were

issues in the case, tendered not only by the de-

fendant in his answer, but by the plaintiff in his

complaint and in his reply. Surely the plaintiff

can not tender such issues in the pleadings and

then say that no evidence bearing thereon is re-

ceivable.

We maintain that on the basis of the facts plead-

ed in the answer, assuming now for the purpose of

the argument that those facts are established, the

position of Mr. Goldthwaite as maker of these

notes was that of a guarantor or surety for his

company on its debt to the Macomber-Savidge Lum-

ber Company, up to the amount of $50,000. Before

going further with the discussion of Section 808

Oregon Laws and the argument now made on the

authority of said section as to alleged error in the

introduction of evidence respecting the considera-

tion for the notes, we wish to establish our legal
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position as to defendant being a guarantor or

surety.

THE FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES WERE
SUCH AS TO CONSTITUTE GOLDTHWAITE
NOTHING MORE THAN A LIMITED GUA-
RANTOR OF THE DEBT OF HIS COMPANY.

The only debt existing at the time the notes

were signed, was the debt of the Modoc Lumber

Company to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-

pany. The Modoc Lumber Company was principal

debtor, and liable in the first instance to pay the

debt.

The Supreme Court of Oregon, in the case of

Hoffman vs. Habighorst, 49 Ore., 387, has quoted

and adopted the language of Mr. Chief Justice

Cooley in the case of Smith vs. Sheldon, 35 Mich.

42, as follows:

Now, a surety, as we understand it, is a
person who, being liable to pay a debt or per-

form an obligation, is entitled, if it is enforced
against him, to be indemnified by some other
person, who ought himself to have made pay-
ment or performed before the surety was com-
pelled to do so. It is immaterial in what form
the relation of principal and surety is establish-

ed, or whether the creditor is or is not con-

tracted with in the two capacities, as is often

the case when notes are given or bonds are

taken. The relation is fixed by the arrange-
ment and equities between the debtors or ob-

ligors, and may be known to the creditor, or

wholly unknown. If it is unknown to him, his

rights are in no manner affected by it; but, if

he knows that one party is surety merely, it
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is only just to require of him that in any sub-

sequent action he may take regarding the debt
he shall not lose sight of the surety's equities.

In the same case, at pages 381 and 382, th«

court said:

* * * It may be shown by parol that a prom-
issory note was in fact made to secure the debt
and liability of another, and thus all the mak-
ers be entitled to the rights of a surety as to

the payee of such note having knowledge of

the facts. If such a note is enforced against
the makers, they would clearly be entitled to

be indemnified by the principal debtor; and
this is given as one of the tests of suretyship.

The form of the obligation would not prevent
the introduction of such evidence.

In the same case, in 38 Ore. at page 268, the

court said:

But, within the meaning of the rule under
consideration, every one who incurs a liability

in person or estate, for the benefit of another,

without sharing in the consideration, stands in

the position of a surety, whatever may be the

form of his obligation. It is true that generally

the primary obligor or real debtor joins in the

contract with the sureties. This is not, how-
ever, believed to be necessary or essential. The
relation of suretyship,' say the editors of White
& Tudor's Leading Cases in Equity, 'grows out
of the assumption of a liability at the request
of another, and for his benefit. It may, con-

sequently, arise, although the name of the prin-

cipal does not appear in the instrument which
constitutes the evidence of the debt.

In Colebrooke on Collateral Security, the author

gives the following definition:

Sec. 2. Collateral security is a separate
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obligation, as the negotiable bill of exchange
or promissory note of a third person * * * de-

livered by a debtor to his creditor to secure the
payment of his own obligation represented by
an independent instrument. Such collateral

security stands by the side of the principal

promise as an additional cumulative means for
securing the payment of the debt. * * * 'Col-

lateral', in the commercial sense of the word,
is a security given in addition to the principal

obligation, and subsidiary thereto.

In Section 10, Colebrooke says:

Such delivery of negotiable instruments as

collateral security may by agreement between
the parties be made to a third person.

In Joyce on Defenses to Commercial Paper (1

Ed.) Sec. 213, the author says:

No exact line of demarkation between a
guarantor and a surety can be satisfactorily

made.

In Colebrooke on Collateral Security, Sec. 202,

the writer says:

The contract or undertaking of a surety is

a contract to be answerable for the payment
of some debt or the performance of some act
or duty in case of the failure of another per-

son who is himself primarily responsible for

the payment of such debt or the performance
of the act or duty. Such contracts may be ar-

ranged in three divisions:

1. Those in which there is an agreement
to constitute for a particular purpose the re-

lation of principal and surety, to which agree-
ment the creditor thereby secured is a party.

2. Those in which there is a similar agree-

ment between the principal and surety only,
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to which the creditor is a stranger; but in

which the creditor, having notice of such rela-

tions between the parties, will not be at liberty

to do anything to the prejudice of the rights

of the surety or to refuse (when his own just

claims are satisfied) to give effect to them.

3. Those in which, without any such con-

tract of suretyship, there is a primary and
secondary liability of two ])ersons for one and
the same debt, the debt being, as between the

two, that of one of those persons only, and not

equally of both, so that the other, if he should

be compelled to pay it, would be entitled to re-

imbursement from the person by whom (as be-

tween the two) it ought to have been paid.

The fact that one may benefit indirectly by a

transaction does not make him a principal. It

was so held in the case of Hughes v. Ladd, 42 Ore.,

123, which is also instructive on other points. The

principal debtor in that case had signed no note;

but it appeared that the money was borrowed and

used for its corporate purposes; and the individual

signers were therefore held to be sureties only.

The facts of the case, considered in the light of

the foregoing legal authorities, make it clear that

the position of the defendant was that of a surety

or guarantor for his company. We have called

him a guarantor because of the statutory definition

in the Civil Code of California quoted above. It is

undisputed that the Modoc Lumber Company, at

the time the notes were given, was indebted in a

large amount to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber

Company; that Goldthwaite was the owner of all

the capital stock of the Modoc Lumber Company,
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and its president and managing officer; that Ma-

comber was one of the principal stockholders, and

was the president and managing officer of the Ma-

comber-Savidge Lumber Company; and the lower

court has found that these parties were representing

their respective corporations in the negotiations

which were under way at the time the notes were

given, and prior thereto.

Now,with regard to Sec. 808 Oregon Laws, the

first remark we have to make is that it has noth-

ing to do with the case, so far as the validity and

obligation of the contract are concerned. This

being a contract made and to be performed in the

State of California, we take it to be well settled

law that we must look to the laws of that State

for our guidance as to everything touching its

validity.

Selover Bates & Co. v. Walsh, 226 U. S. 112,

33 Sup. Ct. 69.

In re Barnett, 12 F (2d) 76.

Scudder v. Union National Bank, 91 U. S. 406,

412.

Jenkins & Reynolds Co. v. Alpena Portland

Cement Co., 147 Fed. 641.

Callaway v. Prettyman, 218 Pa. 293, 67 A. 418.

Assuming that the contract, in respect to the

substantive law by which its validity and obligation

must be determined, is governed by the law of Cal-

ifornia, we will examine for a moment the pro-

visions of that law. The applicable part of Sec.
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1624 of the Civil Code of California, of which

plaintiff quotes only a portion on page 40 of his

brief, reads as follows:

"Sec. 1G24. The following contracts are in-

valid unless the same or some note or memo-
randum thereof is in writing and subscribed by
the party to be charged, or his agent. * *

2. A special promise to answer for the debt,

default, or miscarriage of another, except in

the cases provided for in Sec. 2794.

Sec. 2793 of the same Code reads as follows:

"Except as prescribed by the next section,

a guaranty must be in writing and signed by
the guarantor; but the writing need not ex-

press a consideration."

As a matter of course a contract of guaranty,

like any other contract, must have a consideration

to make it binding. Inasmuch as the law of Cali-

fornia not only omits from Sec. 1624 any require-

ment that the consideration must be stated in the

memorandum, but in Sec. 2793 it expressly pro-

vides that the writing need not express the con-

sideration, it remains that in every case where the

consideration is not expressed in the writing. It

must be proved by parol.

The next remark we have to make respecting

the invocation by the plaintiff of Section 808 Ore-

gon Laws as the basis of his claim that there was

error in the admission of the evidence covered by

the exception embodied in the fourth assignment

of error is, that no such objection was interposed

in the low^er court, and the point was not raised
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there. We refer a'ain to page 153 of the transcript.

It will be found that the only grounds stated for

the objection were, that no failure of consideration

was pleaded, that the fact attempted to be proved

had not been pleaded in the answer, and that the

evidence asked for varied the contract. Not a

word is to be found in the objections with respect

to the Oregon statute of frauds, or any other

statute of frauds. As a rule of substantive law,

the Oregon statute has no application, as \Ye have

shown; and it is well settled and elementary that

as a rule of evidence the statute is waived, unless

objection on the ground thereof is duly interposed

at the time the evidence is offered.

Nunez v. Morgan, 77 Cal. 427.

Oilman v. McDaniels, 177 Iowa 76.

Miller v. Harper, 63 Mo. A. 293.

Holt V. Howard, 77 Vt. 49.

Eaves v. Vial, 98 Va. 134.

Finally on this specific point of Sec. 808 Oregon

Laws, we call attention to the fact that the Supreme

Court of that state in Hoffman v. Habighorst, 38

Ore. 261, has negatived all the contentions plaintiff

is advancing in respect to the admission of parol

evidence to show that the maker of a promissory

note is in fact a surety. That case, like this one,

involved a promissory note to which the principal

debtor was not a party. The court said, at page

267:

The admission of parol evidence to show the

true relationship of the makers of a promis-
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sory note, and that the payee had notice there-

ot, does not alter or vary the terms ot the

original contract, or atiect its integrity, it is

merely proof of an independent or collateral

fact, which operates to relieve the surety from
liability when the creditor, with knowledge of

the fact, has changed the original or made a

new contract with the principal debtor, without

the knowledge of the surety, or released any
security he may hold for the payment of the

debt. '*The fact that one debtor is a surety

for the other is no part of the contract with

the creditor," says Mr. Chief Justice Gray,

"but is a collateral fact showing the relation

between the debtors; and, if it does not appear
on the face of the instrument, this fact, and
notice of it to the creditor, may be proved by
extrinsic evidence"; Guild v. Butler, 127 Mass.

386. * * *

Within these principles there seems no valid

reason wny it may noc be shown by parol tnat

a promissory note was in fact made to secure

the debt and liability ot another, and thus all

the makers be entitled to the rights of a surety

as to the payee of such note having knowledge
of the facts. If such a note is enforced against
the makers, they w^ould clearly be entitled to

be indemnified by the principal debtor; and this

is given as one of the tests of suretyship. The
form of the obligation v. ould not prevent the
introduction of such evidence, because, as said

by Mr. Justice Campbell, in Canadian Bank of
Commerce v. Coumbe, 47 Mich. 358 (11 N. W.
196), "it is always competent to show that any
obligation, whatever its form, was in fact made
for the debt or liability of another; and, where
this is the case, the contract is one of surety-
ship, and the surety, if he is held to pay it, may
sue for reimbursement. * * And when a
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creditor knows that his debtor is a surety he
is bound to take no steps which will change
the liability of the principal, without the sure-

ty's consent. * * * This doctrine is too elemen-

tary to require any discussion." Mr. Brandt
says: "The sole maker of a promissory note

is sometimes entitled to stand in the position

of a surety"; 1 Brandt, Sur. (2 ed.). Sec. 38.

Furthermore, in the case of First National Bank

vs. Hawkins, 73 Ore. 188, it was held that a prom-

issory note is a sufficient memorandum of a gua-

ranty to satisfy the statute of frauds, and that the

recitation therein of the words "value received"

is a sufficient expression of the consideration.

The rule thus announced in Oregon is not pecu-

liar to that state. It is the general rule that it may

be shown by parol that a promissory note absolute

in form was in fact given as security.

Sec. 16, Uniform Negotiable Instruments Law

(Cal. Civ. Code, 3097, adopted. Laws 1917,

Chap. 751).

Wigmore on Evidence (2 ed.). Sec. 2437 and

note.

O'Brien v. Paterson Brewing and Malting Co.,

69 N. J. Eq. 117.

Kelly V. Ferguson, 46 Howard Practice Reports

(N. Y.) 41L

Lafayette Nat. Bank of Buffalo v. Eberly, 199

N. Y. S. 787.

Silva V. Gordo (1924), 65 Cal. App. 486, 224 P.

757.
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Drovers' Cattle, Loan & Inv. Co. vs. McGrav/

(1921), 150 Minn., 50.

First Nat. Bank of Crary vs. Miller (1920), 46

N. D., 551.

Lopato V. Hayman, 43 R. I., 271.

Herron v. Brinton, 188 Iowa, 60.

Bell V. McDonald (1923), 308 111. 329.

Lamberson v. Love, 165 Mich. 460.

Dixon V. Miller, 43 Nev. 280.

Clark V. Ducheneau, 26 Utah, 97.

Howard v. Stratton, 64 Cal. 487.

Norton v. Tucson Cattle Loan Co. (Arizona,

1925), 236 P. 1110.

Bowker v. Johnson, 17 Mich. 42.

Schlamp v. Manewall, 196 Mo. App. 123, 190 S.

W. 658.

Vinson v. Wooten, 163 Ark. 170.

Kirchdorfer v. Watkins, (1923 Ky. App.) 2i8

S. W. 251.

Lyons v. Stills, 97 Tenn. 514.

Allen's Col. Agency v. Lee (1925) 73 Cal. App.

68, 238 Pac. 169.

Ledford v. Huggins, 89 Okla. 224.

We are unwilling to lengthen this brief by set-

ting out extracts from the decisions. Many of the

above cases are close parallels to the one at bar.

We call especial attention to Kelly v. Ferguson,

Lamberson v. Love, Norton v. Tucson Cattle Loan

Co., Clark v. Ducheneau, Vinson v. Wootan, Kirch-

dorfer v. Watkins, and Silva v. Gordo. In Kirch-

dorfer V. Watkins the court held that it was com-
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petent to show by parol that a note was in fact

executed as collateral security for another existing

debt; and that a statement in a note that it was

to be credited with one-third of the proceeds of

the sale of corporate stock is a sufficient reference

to another transaction to render competent parol

proof that the note was given as part of a trans-

action involving the purchase of the stock, and that

the maker was liable thereon only for the balance

due from him on the other transaction.

Silva V. Gordo, a recent California case, was an

action on a promissory note. The holding of the

court is stated in the syllabus as follows:

Parol evidence being admissible to show
the consideration or want of consideration for

a note sued on, the court erred in striking out
special defense that the note was given and
received only as security for faithful per-

formance of an agreement, which defendants
were ready, willing and able to carry out, ir-

respective of Civ. Code, Sec. 3097, authorizing
proof that delivery was conditional or for a
special purpose only.

The California decisions are reviewed therein.

It makes special reference to section 16 of the Uni-

form Negotiable Instruments Act, which we will

discuss later, and is in point on that part of the

discussion. So much of the opinion is in point that

we shall not copy extracts from it, but ask the court

to examine the same.

Section 16 of the Uniform Negotiable Instru-

ments Act (Cal. Civ. Code Sec. 3097, adopted Laws
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1917, Chap. 751) contains the following language:

As between immediate parties • • the de-

livery may be shown to have been conditional,

or for a special purpose only.

This section is said to be declaratory of the prior

law, Story v. Story (1914) 214 Fed. 973; S. Allen

Grocery Co. v. Buchanan Co. Bank (1916), 192 Mo.

App. 476, 182 S. W. 777.

In numerous cases interpreting this section the

courts have held that proof of such collateral facts

as were proved in the case at bar may be made by

parol evidence. We cite for instance:

Mason v. Cater, (la) 182 N. W. 179.

Devine v. Western Slope Fruit Grower's Assn.,

27 Colo. App. 368.

Security Savings Bank v. Hambright, 192 la.

1147.

City National Bank of Huron v. Dwyer (S. D.)

200 N. W. 109.

A large part of the cases cited in the foregoing

parts of this brief, holding parol evidence to be

admissible under such circumstances, were decided

by courts of states where the Uniform Negotiable

Instruments Act was in effect at the time.

There is another principle well recognized by

the courts, which is applicable here, and that is in

an action on a promissory note or any other con-

tract, it may be shown that the plaintiff is not the

beneficial owner thereof and that the beneficial

interest is vested in a third person; and a set-off
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or other defense against such beneficial owner may
be set up against the note.

Bowen v. Snell, 9 Ala. 481.

Hooper v. Armstrong, 69 Ala. 343.

Henry v. Scott, 3 Ind. 412.

Jump V. Leon, 192 Mass. 511, 78 N. E. 532, 116

Am. St. Rep. 265.

Engs V. Matson, 11 111. App. 644.

Challiss V. Wylie, 35 Kan. 506.

Masterson v. Goodlett, 46 Tex. 402.

Strong V. Gordon (Mo. 1920), 221 S. W. 770.

Kelley-Clark Co. v. Leslie (Cal. Civ. App. 1923),

215 P. 699.

Andrews v. Varrell, 46 N. H. 20.

Bennett v. Tillmon, 18 Mont. 28.

Best V. Rocky Mt. National Bank, 7 L. R. A.

(N. S.) 1035.

Summarizing our answer to the arguments of

plaintiff under point One of his brief, covering as-

signments numbered I to VI inclusive, to the effect

that the court erred in receiving parol evidence to

establish the fact of suretyship, because of Section

808 Oregon Laws, we have shown:

1. The evidence objected to was admissible on

other issues of the case.

2. The evidence was admissible under Section

717 Oregon Laws, entitling us to show the circum-

stances and relations of the parties.

3. Only the first, second and fourth assignments
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are based on any exceptions to admission of evidence

taken in the court below, and in none of then?*

was the statute of frauds the basis of the objection.

4. The action being purely personal, based on

a contract made and to be performed in California,

the law of that state determines its validity.

5. The law of California does not require the

consideration to be stated in the waiting, but per-

mits i)roof to be made independently thereof.

G. Plaintiff has waived any benefit of the Ore-

gon statute of frauds, if it be applicable as a rule

of procedure, by failing to object to the evidence

on the ground thereof.

7. Even if there had been such an objection

and an exception based thereon, it would be un-

availing, because by the law of Oregon, parol proof

is permitted to establish the fact that a promissory

note was given only as security, and that the maker

is a surety.

8. It is also settled law in that state that a

promissory note evidencing the obligation of the

surety is a sufficient memorandum under the statute

of frauds, and that the words "value received" are

a sufficient statement of the consideration.

9. This is the law generally; that is, it may be

shown everywhere that a promissory note was in

fact given as security.

10. The evidence was also receivable to show

who was the beneficial owner of the notes.
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POINT II OF PLAINTIFF'S BRIEF.

We read with astonishment the discussion un-

der point II, relating to the seventh assignment,

which alleges error of the Court in stating the

law of the case in the opinion. Same is not founded

on any exception. Instead of discussing that as-

signment, plaintiff's counsel discuss under the head-

ing referring thereto an alleged erroneous finding

of the Court with respect to the facts concerning

the consideration for the notes, which alleged find-

ing is not among the findings of fact made by the

Court, nor is any such language as is here alleged,

to be found in the opinion. Plaintiff sets up a list

of things on page 42 of his brief, said to have been

done by him and to be what the Court should have

found to constitute the consideration for the notes.

These things are put in a more or less distorted

form, and the one numbered V is merely ridiculous.

The consideration for the notes was, of course, as

the lower court has found, the agreement, made

and afterwards carried out by the Macomber-Sav-

idge Lumber Company, to turn over its claim in a

reduced amount to the Board of Trade, and to join

with the other creditors in the plan for refinanc-

ing. As to allowing Menefee's indebtedness to be

a preferred lien, there was no such indebtedness

at the time. Menefee was to be induced if pos-

sibl to loan $250,000 of new money. As to allowinf):

the other creditors to share in the lien of the second

mortgage, there was no second mortgage, and would

be none unless all the creditors participated, and it
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might just as well be said that the other creditors

were allowing the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-
pany to share therein. The balance of $17,000 omit-

ted from the mortgage consisted mostly of a claim

of $5000 for a commission which was not owing,

and for which the undisputed testimony shows there

was not the slightest basis (Transcript, p. 142), and

a claim of $12,000 for a certain alleged shortage

which did not exist (Transcript, p. 268). The samr^

arrangement regarding credit and the taking of a

second mortgage was made by all the rest of the

109 creditors whose aggregate claims amounted to

abount $110,000. The arrangement was made by

all parties because it was considered advantageous.

Macomber's interest in his company was a 23^/t in-

terest (Transcript, p. 128). Before he could get

anything out of it as a stockholder, the debts would

have to be paid, and the Company was insolvent.

The indebtedness held by his company represented

about 4070 of the total indebtedness of the Modoc

Lumber Company, and he owned less than one-

fourth of the stock in this company. On that basis,

Mr. Goldthwaite should have distributed his notes

for $500,000 around among the remaining creditors

and stockholders for their consent to the refinanc-

ing if they were to be treated on the same footing

as Mr. Macomber claims he was being treated. It

is to be observed that the things done and now

alleged as a consideration were things done by the

Macomber - Savidge Lumber Company. Plaintiff

could not individually postpone the due date of the
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Modoc Lumber Company's account or allow Mene-

fee's indebtedness to be a preferred lien, or allow

the other creditors to share in the lien of the second

mortgage, or divide the company's claim into two

parts. All these things, insofar as they were don?,

were done by the company—acting by him as its

managing agent, it is true—but nevertheless done

by the Company. And it was only as the Company
might suffer loss thereby, that Macomber, owner

of less than 25% of the stock, might indirectly suffer

a consequential loss. While the discussion found

under point II of plaintiff's brief can not be pos-

sibly, in the state of the record, be considered by

the Court for the purpose of showing any error

in the court belov/, the matter is valuable as con-

stituting an admission as to what the true consid-

eration for the notes was; and it comes very near

to admitting that the consideration was just what

is alleged in the answer. It would serve to cure

the alleged error in receiving testimony to show

such to be the case, if there had been any error

therein.

POINT III OF PLAINTIFF'S BRIEF.

Plaintiff announces as the subject of discussion

the question whether the testimony shows any evi-

dence of suretyship. As we have pointed out in

our preliminary discussion, none of the assign-

ments VII to X inclusive is founded on any excep-

tion taken in the court below, and there are no

exceptions in the record under which the question
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here to be debated is put in issue. The discussion is

therefore rather academic. The court may be bet-

ter satisfied to know, before dismissing these as-

signments because there are no exceptions to sup-

port them, that the allegations of error possess no

merit whatsoever when examined in the light of

the facts. There is not only evidence of suretyship

in the record, but such evidence is abundant. We
will be as brief as we can in summarizing it.

1. It is undisputed that the Modoc Lumber

Company was indebted to the Macomber-Savidge

Lumber Company in an amount approximately

equal to or exceeding the total of the notes at the

time they were given.

2. It is undisputed that Macomber was at th?

time the president of the creditor company, and

Goldthwaite was the president of the debtor com-

pany and its principal stockholder.

3. It is undisputed that the notes were given

in connection with the adjustment of the account

between the two companies. Such is not only ad-

mitted and testified to by both parties, but it ap-

pears on the face of the writing (Defendant's Ex-

hibit B) ; and the copy of said writing which de-

fendant received (Defendant's Exhibit F; Tran-

script p. 151) was written and signed by the plain-

tiff on the letterhead of the company.

4. The memorandum (Defendant's Exhibit R),

executed simultaneously with the notes and form-

ing a part of the one entire transaction, expressly
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provides that any and all payments made on the

aforesaid indebtedness of the Modoc Lumber Com-
pany to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company
are to apply against the notes. That circumstance

of itself, linked to the circumstance listed above

under 1, 2, and 3, is in our opinion sufficient to

justify the finding of the court that the Goldth-

waite notes stood as collateral security to the Mo-

doc Lumber Company debt. If one debt was not

collateral to the other, why should payments on

one be credited on the other?

5. At the time the notes were signed, Macom-

ber was acting on behalf of his company in the ad-

justment of its business affairs with the Modoc

Lumber Company. He so testified himself, as

shown at p. 114 of the Transcript: "At the same

time I came to some agreement concerning the

amount of that indebtedness with Mr. Goldthwaite

on behalf of my company." It is true, that he craw-

fished and squirmed and tried to say afterwards

that he did not act on behalf of his company in th?

adjustment, and that nobody did. In support of

this, he claimed to have done no business on its

behalf December 15, 1921, the date of the Critten-

den agreement, which false pretense was abundent-

ly disproved. For instance, on February 21, 1922,

he, as President, executed the Sanborn assignment

(Transcript, pp. 326, 333). On May 25, 1922, he,

as president, executed the assignment of his com-

pany's claim against the Modoc Lumber Company

to the Board of Trade (Defendant's Exhibit No. 1.
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Transcript, p. 283) as he admits on the witness

stand (Transcript, p. 125). He represented his

company in the meeting of creditors at the Hoard

of Trade the day after the notes were signed, or

the same day (Transcript, p. 121). He instructed

Mr. Sanborn, the trustee, as to the amount for

which he should file the claim with the Board of

Trade (Transcript, p. 122). He raised no question

at the time that he was representing his company

(Goldthwaite's testimony. Transcript, pp. 146, 149).

He admits writing letters on behalf of his company

after the date of the Crittenden agreement (De-

fendant's Exhibits C and D, Transcript, pp. 116,

117). As the representative of his company, he was

elected a member of the Creditors* Committee of

the Board of Trade on or about March 1, 1922

(Kent's testimony, p. 247) ; and later became chair-

man of the committee. He continued to handb

the business connected with the sale of the lumber

on hand in the yard all through the months of Jan-

uary, February, and March, 1922 (Kent's Testi-

mony, pp. 248, 249). He personally, with his own

hand, made the adjustment of the account with Mr.

Goldthwaite on March 1st, 1922, as shown on the

face of Defendant's Exhibit E (Transcript, pp.

146-148), striking out the disputed items, as shown

by Mr. Goldtwaite's testimony at pages 149 and 150.

thereby reducing the claim down to $53,905.92, and

he agreed then and there to present the claim to

the Board of Trade as thus cut down (p. 149). In-

deed Macomber says in his own testimony at page

123:
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I understand at the time that the notes were
signed that the claim of the Macomber-Savidge
Lumber Company against the Modoc Lumber
Company was to be filed with the Board of
Trade in the amount of $53,905.92, and that
was a part of the understanding that I came
to with Mr. Goldthwaite at the time the notes
were signed.

He went to the Board of Trade meeting one

hour later (p. 154) and had the Macomber-Savidge

Lumber Company, with himself as its represent-

ative, elected a member of the committee (Brain-

ard's testimony, p. 280). He admits at the foot of

page 121 that he went before the Board of Trade

meeting that day on behalf of the Macomber-Sav-

idge Lumber Company. How in the world could It

have been a part of the understanding that the

claim was to be filed with the Board of Trade

in the reduced amount of $53,905.92, the exact

amount for which he had adjusted it with his ov^^n

hand, unless he made that agreement on behalf of

his company with Mr. Goldthwaite? He admits at

page 121 that his company was engaged in the

liquidation of its affairs through Mr. Sanborn "and

the only part I took was that which was necessary

to complete unfinished business." The adjustment

and the obtaining of security for this disputed ac-

count were just as much unfinished business as any-

thing else. The pretense now made on his behalf

that he was only giving his personal consent that

his company might reduce the claim if it saw fit

and file it with the Board of Trade, and that he
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got $50,000 in notes for such personal consent, is

as barefaced a sham and subterfuge as any one

ever attempted to i)ut over on a court.

6. The consideration for the notes came from

the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company and was,

to wit, that the company would cut down the faco

of its claim below $54,000, and place it in the hands

of the Board of Trade and participate in the re-

financing plan. Plaintiff chose to leave the facts

as to what the consideration for the notes was

shrouded in mystery to the close of the trial. No-

where in his pleading or in his testimony was there

a hint respecting it, excepting as the facts sur-

rounding the transaction and the terms of the con-

temporaneous writing pointed strongly to what it

must have been. Even in the face of defendant's

testimony that the consideration was nothing else

than what the defendant had set forth in his an-

swer, the plaintiff elected to sit stubbornly mute in

the court room. When defendant testified that there

was no consideration except the one set forth in

his answer, plaintiff's attorney did not even cross-

examine him on the point. Defendant's testimony

as to what the consideration was stands uncontra-

dicted, and it is confirmed by every circumstance

of the case. Plaintiff's attorneys have now in their

brief abandoned the thin cover of the prima fa-cio

presumption of consideration and have undertaken

to state what the consideration was. It is elemen-

tary law that when the plaintiff once sets forth

what he claims the consideration to have been, room
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for any presumption for his benefit that it was

anything else is gone. He must then recover on the

ground that he has alleged, or not at all. When the

plaintiff, driven from cover, at last undertakes to

allege the actual consideration for the notes, he is

not able to point to anything except a consideration

wonderfully like the one defendant has set up in

his answer. These admissions point to just one

thing as the consideration, to wit, the concessions

made at the time the notes were executed concern-

ing the claim of the Macomber-Savidge Lumber

Company against the Modoc Lumber Company.

Plaintiff admits now at least that the consideration

was connected with said concessions. Mr. Goldtb-

waite has testified at page 153 that there was no

consideration for the notes excepting these conces-

sions by the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company.

This testimony stands uncontradicted. Plaintiff did

not take the stand and testify what the considera-

tion was or to deny the testimony of the defendant

that it was just what the defendant had set up in

his answer, and nothing else. Defendant also testi-

fied on this same point, (p. 153) and his testimony

likewise stands undisputed, that at the time the

the notes were given he did not personally owe Mr.

Macomber any money and that Macomber never

loaned any money to him.

7. The defendant has testified that the notes

were given as collateral security to the debt of the

Modoc Lumber Company to the Macomber-Savidge

Lumber Company. At page 152 appears his testi-
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mony that he protested to the i)laintiff at the time

the notes were given that the indebtedness was a

debt of the Modoc Lumber Comj)any to the Macom-

ber-Savidge Lumber Company, and that defendant's

notes ought therefore to run to the latter corpora-

tion. In response to which the plaintiff "outlined

to me again as he had, on a number of occasions

past the fact that he was having a great deal of

trouble with his other partners in the Macomber-

Savidge Lumber Company; that he had had trouble

with his first assignee, Crittenden, that he didn't

know how the new assignee, Sanborn, was going

to act, and that he desired if possible to have thes?

notes in his own name in case any trouble arose

in the future where he could have the whip hand,

or dominate the situation, within his own company.

He went into some extensive length impressing m?
with the situation."

Defendant further testified on cross-examina-

tion, in response to questions put by plaintiff's at-

torney (p. 211) that there was no discussion be-

tween plaintiff" and himself as to his giving plain-

tiff" individual compensation for the purpose of get-

ting his company into the San Francisco Board of

Trade; and that (p. 221) the transactions were

purely a business deal between the two companies

and had nothing personal in them; that (p. 224)

defendant did not expect to pay the notes himself,

but expected the company to pay them, and that

the notes were collateral; and that (p. 226)
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A. * * * As far as assuming any personal

liability in the matter, to Mr. Macomber's com-

pany, I had previously told him that I was un-

willing personally to assume anything more

than I believed the actual amount to be, and

that was something less than fifty thousand

dollars; and at the same time the subject of

the second mortgage was under consideration.

We were very desirous of putting it through,

planned on putting it through, and it was my
desire naturally to have my notes protected by

the second mortgage notes. In other words,

to have the second mortgage notes between me
and the payment. * * *

Q. It seems from what I understand of

what you say, you regarded these notes as a

company agreement with another company?

A. No, it was my agreement to protect the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company to the

amount of $50,000, providing that sum was not

paid in some other form through the Board

of Trade.

Q. Personally, then your signature as an

individual was all right, but the complaint you

make is that the notes should have run to the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company as payee,

instead of Mr. Macomber as an individual?

A. No question about that. I protested at

the time and told him so.
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Q. Why did you make the sum total of

your ten promissory notes $50,000, instead of

fifty-three thousand and some odd dollars?

A. I think I just explained that a moment

ago; that I was unwilling to give a personal

guaranty for any more than I believed the

company owed.

Not one of these statements of the defendant,

elicited either on direct or cross-examination, as to

what took place between himself and the plaintiff

respecting the notes, was contradicted in any par-

ticular by the plaintiff on the witness stand.

It is uncontradicted that the parties had previ-

ously met on February 28th and discussed the affairs

of their two companies, and tried to reach an ad-

justment. It seems probable that Macomber pre-

pared the memorandum (Defendant's Exhibit R)

on that day, as it bears that date. It is uncontra-

dicted that they had had, prior to the time the

notes were signed, a conversation in which Mac-

omber had asked Goldthwaite to go security for

his corporation's debt, and Goldthwaite had told

him that he was unwilling to become security for

more than he believed to be actually owing. It Is

uncontradicted that when Macomber laid the notes

before Goldthwaite for his signature, the latter

protested that they ought to run to the Macomber-

Savidge Lumber Company, and that Macomber'.^

answer was that he was having a great deal of

trouble with his other partners in the Macomber-
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Savidge Lumber Company, that he had trouble

with Crittenden, and he did not know how San-

born was going to act, and that he desired, if pos-

sible, to have these notes in his own name in case

any trouble arose in the future, so he could have

the whip hand, and dominate the situation v/ithin

his own company. That statement of Macomber's,

which he does not deny making, was not sufficient

to convert the notes from collateral security for

the debt of his corporation, as Goldthwaite under-

stood they were to be, into notes given for Ma^-

omber's personal benefit. When Goldthwaite said

that the notes ought to run to the corporation,

Macomber did not dispute that statement, nor say,

No, it must be understood between us definitely

now that these notes are not taken as collateral to

the debt due the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Com-

pany, and that they are given for my sole personal

benefit. He said nothing of that kind. His answer

conceded the fact that the notes were taken for

the benefit of his corporation, but he gave plausible

reasons why he wanted them in his own individual

name. By having the notes in his own name, he

would have the advantage of controlling any litiga-

tion to collect them, and presumably the money

would pass through his hands, if it ever became

necessary to collect these collateral notes.

Please remember that almost all the direct testi-

mony as to the notes having been given as collateral

security and as to what was said between the plain-

tiff and the defendant in respect to the defendant
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giving such security, was elicited by the plaintiff's

own attorney on cross-examination and is in th"

record without any objection, motion to strike or

exception thereto.

Plaintiff seeks to brush all this testimony aside

by the quotation on page 44 of his brief of a ques-

tion and answer in which defendant stated thyt

the notes were not discussed at all. What is plainly

meant is that the details of them, such as the Court

was asking about, were not discussed.

We come now to that part of plaintiff's brief

in which the argument is made that the subsequent

payment of the notes, amounting to $53,905.92,

which were given to the Board of Trade by the

Modoc Lumber Company to represent its debt t)

the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company, effected

no discharge of the Goldthwaite notes. That ques-

tion is not even remotely suggested by any exception

in the case. We assume that plaintiff is discussing it

under his tenth assignment. As a matter of course,

if the notes were given as collateral security to

the debt of the Modoc Lumber Company, they were

discharged when that principal debt was paid. The

only thing peculiar in the situation is that the col-

lateral notes were for a less amount than the prin-

cipal debt. There have been other such cases. Wo
call attention to the following:

Carson v. Reid, 137 Cal. 253.

Eddy V. Sturgeon, 15 Mo. 199.

IMark v. Schwartz, 14 Ore. 178.
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1 Brandt on Surety (3 Ed.) Sec. 103.

Fidelity & Casualty Co. v. Van Dyke, 99 Ga.

543.

Burbank v. Buehler, 108 La. 39.

All these cases hold that when collateral security

is given for a limited part of a principal debt, the

collateral obligation will be discharged when such

amount of the principal debt as the collateral se-

curity stands for has been paid, no matter whether

it has remained in the hands of the original creditor

or not.

The position of plaintiff's attorneys on this point,

as stated on page 50 of their brief, is that:

A consideration of the circumstances under

which the agreement was made and the matter

to which it relates, can lead to no other con-

clusion than that the parties had in mind only

money payments to be made directly to the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Co. or to its trustee,

Sanborn, because at the time it was made these

were the only persons or obligations in which

any direct payments could have been made.

As we read that sentence and many more of the

same tenor in this section of plaintiff's brief, we

are impelled to shout lustily that plaintiff is "vary-

ing the written contract" in a manner little short

of mayhem. Where do his counsel get leave to in-

sert the word "money" before the word "pay-

ments"? Where do they find Sanborn's name in

the writing? On what footing, in the language of
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the contract, do they justify their statement that

only payments "directly to the Macomber-Savidge

Lumber Company or to its trustee," were to be.

credited? The parties had in mind when the notes

were delivered ,that the claim of the Macomber-

Savidge Lumber Company was to be assigned to or

at least handled and collected on behalf of the Mac-

omber-Savidge Lumber Company by, the Board of

Trade of San Francisco. It is mentioned in the

writing. Why do plaintiff's counsel now cast it out

of the reckoning and say that only payments di-

rectly to the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company,

or its assignee, Sanborn, were to count, when tho

Board of Trade is mentioned in the writing and

Sanborn is not. When they bring Sanborn in, they

recognize that payments to an assignee of the claim

are just as effective as payments to the Macomber-

Savidge Lumber Company. Why then do they read

into the writing one assignee who is not mentioned

and leave out the other prospective assignee who

is mentioned? The plain sense of the writing,

which plaintiff's counsel have not been able to keep

from penetrating into their own minds when they

mention Sanborn, is that all payments on the claim

to a rightful holder thereof are to be credited

against Goldthwaite's notes. It is the "claim of the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company" that is men-

tioned, and all payments made on that claim to any

rightful holder and no matter to whom made, are

to be credited on the notes. Suppose Mr. Sanborn

had resigned the office of trustee and his title to
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the choses in action of the company had been

transferred to a new assignee—would plaintiff's

counsel question that payments to Sanborn's suc-

cessor would have entitled Goldthwaite to have

credit on the notes? We opine not.

Now suppose the Board of Trade with the con-

sent of the creditors, including the Macomber-Sav-

idge Lumber Company and Sanborn, its trustee,

had transferred the notes representing the credit-

or's claim to a new representative of the creditors

—some trust company for instance, as it might

well have done—and the payment had been made

to the new trustee instead of to the Board of

Trade—would plaintiff's attorneys deny Goldth-

waite the right to a credit for that payment? That

is getting pretty warm, and we suppose they would

squirm before they would answer that question.

It is obvious however, that they would not have

any footing to deny the credit. But that is prac-

tically what did happen, except that instead of

transferring the claim to a new trustee to collect

it for the creditor, the Board of Trade with the

sanction of the creditor, sold and assigned the

claim to a purchaser, who did afterwards collect

it in full. It is payment of the claim which entitles

Goldwaite to the credit, regardless of the question

of who got the payment, so long as it was made

to a rightful holder of the claim. We allege, in

paragraph VI of our answer, that the notes were

given on the understanding that "any and all pay-

ments made on any part of said indebtedness of
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the Modoc Lumber Company to the Macomber-Sav-

idge Lumber Company, whether on the i)art thereof

so turned over to or handled through the Hoard of

Trade of San Francisco, or the balance thereof not

so turned over or assigned, should be credited

against the said personal notes to be given by the

defendant herein as a guaranty, up to the amount

of defendant's said notes." This written agreement

constitutes the proof of that allegation, and is quite

sufficient therefor. It therefore follows that, in-

dependently of whether the notes were collateral

security for the debt or not, this agreement be-

tween the parties, duly set forth in the answer, in

conjunction with the fact, established and admitted,

that the identical debt referred to, " translated into

the Board of Trade notes," as plaintiff's counsel

aptly said in the court below, was paid off, con-

stitutes a complete defense to the notes.

After the arrangement was entered into for the

representation of the Macomber-Savidge Lumber

Company by the Board of Trade, its claim was as-

signed to G. W. Brainard, Secretary of the Board

of Trade (Defendant's Exhibit No. 1, p. 283). In

exchange for the mortgage notes of the Modoc

Lumber Company and the Williamson River Log-

ging Company, which the creditors were to get,

the Board of Trade was required to certify that

the debts had been satisfied. This was done by

an instrument which appears at page 289, marked

"Defendant's Exhibit M." The claim of the Mac-

omber-Savidge Lumber Company was included in
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this certificate of satisfaction. Mr. Brainard testi-

fied, as shown at page 295, that these notes were

accepted at that time by the Board of Trade or

by him as the representative of the creditors who
had placed their claims in his hands, in settlement

and discharge of the original claims. We think it

is plain on the face of this transaction that that

portion of the original debt of $53,905.92 covered

by the mortgage notes given to the Board of Trade

was completely wiped out and satisfied when the

notes were accepted to cover the same. The fore-

going is a question of fact, which is settled by the

documentary evidence in the case; it appearing

that one of the conditions of the arrangement was

that the notes were to be taken in absolute satis-

faction of the indebtedness. We do not say this

for the purpose of making the claim that the giving

of these notes amounted to a payment of more

than $50,000 on the indebtedness in question; be-

cause we think the parties contemplated, at the

time the notes were given, that such a change in

the form of the indebtedness would be or might be

made, and the notes were given as a collateral

guaranty with that in view. Our point is, that th--^

notes given to the Board of Trade were not given

as collateral to the indebtedness for the open ac-

count of the Modoc Lumber Company to the Mac-

omber-Savidge Lumber Company, but said notes

wiped out that much of the open account and con-

stituted the only form in which said indebtedness

up to the sum they covered, remained in existence.
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In other words, they were thenceforth a part of the

indebtedness—far the larger part thereof—to which

Goldthwaite's notes stood as a collateral guaranty.

WHEN THE SECOND MORTGAGE NOTES
HELD BY THE BOARD OF TRADE WERE
SOLD AND TRANSFERRED BY THE BOARD
OF TRADE TO THE L. B. MENEFEE INVEST-

MENT COMPANY, THIS CONSTITUTED AN
ABSOLUTE TRANSFER BY THE BOARD OF
TRADE OF THE CREDITORS' CLAIMS COVER-
ED THEREBY.

The above proposition, it seems to us, follows

as a matter of course from the fact that the claims

were absolutely released in exchange for the notes.

Even if this had not been so, the same result would

have followed from the principle that, where notes

have been given for a debt represented by an open

account, a transfer of the notes operates as a mat-

ter of law to transfer the debt itself to the trans-

feree. On this point, see Ellison v. Henion, 183 Cal.

171; 190 Pac. 793; 11 A. L. R., 444. In the course

of the opinion the court said:

But, on the other hand, the notes evidence
the debt, and if they are transferred the debt
is transferred with them, and the original

creditor can thereafter maintain no action upon
it. It no longer belongs to him. That the

original debt for which a note has been taken
passes with the transfer of the note was di-

rectly decided in Goldman v. Murrav, 164 Cal.

419, 129 Pac. 462. There the plaintiff brought
an action to recover from the defendant, as a

stockholder of a certain corporation, his pro-
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portion of a certain indebtedness of the cor-

poration. It appeared that the corporation
had been originally indebted for money ad-
vanced to it, and gave its note to its creditor
for the amount. The creditor then transferred
the note to the plaintiff. The trial court found
the note to be invalid as against the corpora-
tion, because of want of authority for its exe-

cution, but found that the original indebtedness
of the corporation had been assigned by the

original creditor to the plaintiff, and granted a
recovery upon it. On appeal, this finding of

an assignment was attacked as not supported
by the evidence. The only evidence on the point
was that the note had been transferred to the
plaintiff. It v/as held that this was enough;
that the transfer of the note was in fact a
transfer of the original debt as between the
original creditor and the plaintiff, although the

note vv^as void as to the corporation. If the

transfer of a void note be in effect an assign-

ment of the indebtedness which it was intended

to evidence, much more must the transfer of a
valid note be in effect an assignment of the in-

debtedness which it does in fact evidence. See
also 7 Cyc. 816; Harris v. Johnston, 3 Cranch,
317 ; 2 L. ed. 452 ; Looney v. District of Colum-
bia, 113 U. S. 258, 28 L. ed. 974, 5 Sup. Ct. Rep.

463; Davis v. Reilly (1898) 1 Q. B. 1, 66 L. J.

Q.B.N.S. 844, 77 L.T.N. S. 399, 46 Week, Rep.
96.

In the present case, there is no question

as to the fact of the transfer of the notes

taken for the indebtedness of the Woolen Com-
pany. They were, as we have said, indorsed

and delivered to Pike by the payee, the re-

presentative of the Woolen Company's credit-

ors, upon the payment to him of $5,000. The
indorsements were special ; that is, to the order

of Pike. There is no escape from the con-

clusion that by this transfer the creditors part-
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ed, not only with the notes, but with the debts

from which the notes were given. In other

words, when the plaintiffs brought this action,

they were not the owners of or interested in

the obligation w^hose guaranty they seek to

enforce in one count, and the stockholder's

liability pertaining to which they seek to en-

force in the other.

The chop logic by which plaintiff's counsel seek

to arrive at the conclusion that payments on the

debt were not payments on the debt requires no

answer.

Under point V, plaintiff makes the surprising

statement that there is no finding by the lower

court that sets forth that an amount equal to the

total of the notes given to the Board of Trade by

the Modoc Lumber Company has been paid.

In the 8th finding it is set forth that the claim

of the Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company in the

amount of $53,905.92 was assigned to the Board of

Trade, and that the total of creditors' claims so

assigned was $178,592.77.

In the ninth finding it is set out that notes

were made and a mortgage w-as given to secure this

debt. In the fourteenth finding it is definitely set

forth that this indebtedness was paid in full. Noth-

ing else can be said of the statement of plaintiff's

counsel than that it is simply contrary to the fact.

The same must be said of the next statement con-

tained in point V as to there being no allegation in

the answer that the consideration alleged in defend-
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ant's affirmative defense was the sole consideration.

Paragraph VI of the answer, shown on page 31 of

the transcript, sets forth what defendant alleges

were the consideration for the notes ; and paragraph

VII, shown on page 33, sets forth that the notes

were made * * * "solely on the consideration afore-

said."

From the outset of this case we have insisted,

and we still insist, that if the Court were to adopt

the theory of the plaintiff in all respects and were

to set aside the findings of fact made by the lower

court as to what was the consideration for the

notes, and were to find that the consideration was

just what plaintiff's counsel say in their brief was

the consideration, and that instead of giving his notes

as collateral security to the debt of his corporation,

Goldthwaite really gave notes for $50,000 to Mac-

omber in consideration that Macomber should mere-

ly give his individual consent that the Macomber-

Savidge Lumber Company might take the action

requested by Goldthwaite, we say most confidently,

that plaintiff nevertheless could not recover on the

notes in any court of justice, for the reason that

it would stand out on the face of the transaction

that the consideration was wholly illegal. All the

facts constituting this defense were pleaded in the

answer, as we have pointed out, and it is a defense

which does not need to be pleaded, when the facts

appear. The law is plain.

A BARGAIN BY AN OFFICER OF A COR-
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PORATION FOR A PERSONAL ADVANTAGE
IN RETURN FOR ENTERING INTO AN
AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CORPORA-
TION WITH A THIRD PERSON IS INVALID.

II Page on Contracts, Sec. 1025:

No action can be maintained on a contract

by which A agrees to deliver something of

value to B for B's personal benefit in order to

influence B in his management of X's affairs

as X's agent.

II Page on Contracts, Sec. 874:

A contract by which a corporation conveys
its property, and payment therefor is to be

made to the stockholders of the vendor cor-

poration, is illegal since it operates as a fraud
upon the creditors of the corporation who are

thus left without any fund from which their

debts are to be paid.

III Williston on Contracts, Sec. 1737:

A bargain by officer of a corporation for his

personal advantage in return for entering in-

to an agreement on behalf of the corporation
with a third person, is invalid.

II Elliott on Contracts, Sec. 748:

Agreements which tend to induce fraud or
breach of trust on the part of persons stand-
ing in a fiduciary or confidential relation are
void. Consequently, contracts the objects or
necessary tendency of which place a party who
owes a duty or obligations to third persons in

a position inconsistent with such duties, are
void, even though no breach of trust results.

Sec. 749. Inducing Breach of Trust—Of-
ficers of Corporations. Chief among contracts
of this character are those which tend to con-
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trol the discretion of officers of corporations.
Generally speaking, a contract between an of-

ficer or director of a corporation and another,
which places the officer or director in a position
where he is under obligations inconsistent with
the duty imposed upon him by reason of his

official connection with the corporation, is void-
able.

In Peckham v. Lane, 81 Kan., 849, a contract

whereby the president of a railroad corporation

was to receive a personal benefit for the location

of a station at a particular place, was held illegal

and void. We quote:

The invalidity of a contract entered into in

violation of this principle does not depend upon
whether the trustee has intended an actual
wrong or whether any injury has in fact result-

ed to the beneficiary. The purpose of the rule

of law, like that of statutes of a similar nature,
is "to spare weak human nature the strain of

temptation and to discourage actual fraud by
relieving the public from the task, always dif-

ficult, and often impossible, of proving it."
***

We need not determine whether the con-

tract here involved, if it had been made by
Peckham on behalf of the company, could be

enforced by him for its benefit, nor whether he

could enforce it on his own account if he could

show that he had contracted with the company
for the right to do so by a fair agreement, and
upon a sufficient consideration, since neither

of these conditions is shown by the evidence.

The contract on its face appears to be for his

personal benefit and to be void for that reason.

There is no occasion to presume that he was
to take the title in trust for the company. A
matter of that importance ought not to be left
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for presumption, since the i)lea(Ier necessarily

has knowledge of all the facts and can readily

set them out so explicitly as to leave no room
for doubt.

McGuffin V. Coyle and Guss, 16 Okla., 648:

We think that the true principle of law is

that a note made payable to an officer of a

railroad company in his personal capacity and
for his personal benefit, on condition that a

road is built on a certain line, to a certain point,

by a certain time, is void as against public

policy and that no recovery can be had there-

on.

In Williams v. Kendrick, 105 Va. 791, the plain-

tiff and defendant made an agreement with a third

person, who was agent for a seller of real prop-

erty, whereby an option was procured for the pur-

chase and sale of the property of the principal of

said agent. It was agreed between the plaintiff

and defendant, as partners, and the agent, that

the profits arising out of the sale of the property

so held under option should be divided one-half to

the partnership and one-half to such agent. The

property was sold and a profit realized. The agent

received his half of the profits and the defendant

received the partnership's half of the profits. The

plaintiff sought to compel a division of the profits

so obtained. It was held that the whole transaction

was so tainted with illegality that no recovery could

be allowed.

In Landes v. Hart, 131 N. Y. App. Div. 6, the

plaintiff sued on a contract to recover $500 which
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the defendant agreed to pay him in consideration

that he, as director of another corporation, should

secure the award of a contract to the defendant.

The trial court submitted the case to the jury on

the theory that if the plaintiff disclosed his bargain

with the defendants to his co-directors before the

contract was awarded to the defendants by the

directors, he could recover. It was held that this

instruction was error, the court saying:

An agreement which is designed or which
in its nature and effect tends to lead persons
who are charged with the performance of

trusts or duties for the benefit of others, to

violate or betray them, is contrary to public

policy and cannot be enforced.

In Fletcher on Corporations, we find the fol-

lowing statements of the law:

Section 2272:

1. Directors and other officers must exer-

cise the utmost good faith in all transactions

touching their duties to the corporation and
its properties. * * *

2. All their acts must be for the benefit of

the corporation, and not for their own benefit,

except as hereinafter stated (the exceptions

not applying to the present case.)

3. They are not permitted to profit as in-

dividuals by virtue of their position.

Section 2310:

Contracts as contrary to public policy. A
contract between an officer of a corporation

and a third person is contrary to public policy.



93

and therefore illegal and void, where it con-

templates a fraud upon the corporation, or

where, by giving the officer a secret profit or
personal advantage, or otherwise, it places his

l)rivate interests in conflict with his duty to

the corporation. Such a contract, therefore,

cannot be enforced by either party, and may
be rescinded by the corporation. In any event,

this is the rule where the contract is executory.
Thus, where a person contracted with a rail-

road company to construct its road for a cer-

tain per cent, of the cost of construction, and
thereafter on the same day contracted with five

of the seven directors of the road to pay them
two-thirds of such per cent, the two contracts
are to be treated as pari materia and as con-

stituting one contract which is void as against
public policy, and the contractor cannot sue

for failure to carry out the contract, under the

rule that where an illegal contract is executory
neither party can ask the aid of a court to en-

force it.

Among the cases cited in support of this doc-

trine is West V. Camden, 135 U. S. 507, in which

the defendant was sued for damaores for brppp^i of sn

agreement he had made with plaintiff that plaintiff

should be permanently employed by a certain cor-

poration of which defendant was an officer and

majority stockholder. The consideration for th?

agreement was the conveyance of certain property

to the corporation. Notwithstanding that there

was no direct private gain to the defendant in-

volved in the transaction, the Supreme Court held

the agreement to be void as contrary to public

policy, because it tended to put the defendant in a

position where he would not exercise on behalf of
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the corporation his unbiased personal judgment as

to its best interests. See the opinion of the court

at pages 520 and 521.

The statement of Mr. Fletcher as to the law on

this point is sustained by all the following cases

which he cites, and which we have examined and

found to be directly in point:

Linder v. Carpenter, 62 III, 309.

Bester v. Wathen, 60 III, 138.

Noel V. Drake, 28 Kan., 265, 42 Am. Rep., 162.

Guernsey v. Cook, 120 Mass., 501.

Wilbur V. Stoepel, 82 Mich., 344, 21 Am. St.

Rep., 568.

Lum V. McEwen, 56 Minn., 278.

Attaway v. Third Nat. Bank, 93 Mo., 485.

Koster v. Pain, 41 App. Div., 443, 58 N. Y. Supp.

865.

Donald v. Houghton, 70 N. C, 393.

Kelsey v. New England St. Ry. Co., 62 N. J.

Eq., 742.

In Guernsey v. Cook, it was held that a contract

by which a shareholder in a corporation, in con-

sideration of the purchase of a part of his stock

at a price named, agreed to secure to the pu>'-

chaser the office of treasurer of the corporation

with a fixed salary, and in case of his removal, to

repurchase the stock at par, is void as against pub-

lic policy, and is a fraud on the other members of

the corporation, in the absence of evidence that the

transaction was not for the private benefit of the
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shareholder or that it was consented to by the other

members of the corporation. The court said, at

page 502:

It was the purpose and effect of the con-

tract to influence the defendant in a decision

affecting the private rights of others by con-

siderations foreign to those rights. The promis-
see was placed under direct inducement to dis-

regard his duties to other members of the cor-

poration who had a right to demand his dis-

mterested action in the selection of suitable

officers. He was in a relation of trust and
confidence, which required him to look only to

the best interests of the whole, uninfluenced by
private gain. The contract operated as a fraud
upon his associates. In Fuller v. Dame, 18

Pick., 472, a contract was held to be contrary
to public policy and to open, upright, and fair

dealing, which tended injuriously to affect the

interests of the corporations of which the

promissee was a member. It was compared to

the case of a composition deed where all the

creditors release the common debtor upon the

payment of a certain percentage, and where
stipulation for a separate and distinct advan-
tage is held to be a fraud on other creditors,

and void. * * * The objection that the contract

is illegal * * * is allowed to prevail * * for

the sake of the public good, and because the

court will not lend its aid to enforce an illegal

contract.

In Kelsey v. New England St. Ry. Co. the court

said:

The members of the committee, being them-
selves directors of the company, as well as re-

presentatives of the board of directors, occupy
a fiduciary position in which they are practical-

ly to be regarded as trustees for the stockhold-
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ers as cestuis que trust (citing cases). Acting
in this capacity, they were not at liberty to

use their power of bargaining for the corpora-
tion so as to secure for themselves an exclusive
personal benefit. If they did so use their au-
thority, their transaction was voidable against
a person unknowingly participating in their

abuse of power. (Citing authorities).

In Lum V. McEwen, the latter was superintend-

ent and general manager of the business of a mill

company. He had received a promissory note for

$5000.00, signed by Lum, in consideration that Mc-

Ewen would use his influence and authority to

secure the removal by the company of its mill to

a certain place, and the extension of its logging

road to that place. The note had been taken in

the name of a third party, one Clark, and it con-

tained the precious words, "For value received."

These circumstances did not deter the court from

permitting the facts as to consideration and bene-

ficial ownership to be proved. McEwen did advise

the company to remove the mill and construct the

road, and it did so. It was shown that the receiv-

ing of the note had not influenced his action, nor

had his recommendation influenced the mill com-

pany in the matter. The Supreme Court of Minne-

sota nevertheless held that the note was void, say-

ing, at page 282:

That this contract was illegal and void on
grounds of public policy will not admit of a
moment's doubt. Loyalty to his trust is the

first duty which an agent owes to his principal.

Reliance upon an agent's integrity, fidelity,
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and capacity is the moving consideration in the

creation of all agencies; and the law condemns
as repugnant to public policy, everything which
tends to destroy that reliance. The agent can-

not put himself in such relations that his own
I)ers()nal interests become antagonistic to those

of his principal. He will not be allowed to serve

two masters without the intelligent consent of

both.

Actual injury is not the principle the law
proceeds on, in holding such transactions void.

Fidelity in the agent is what is aimed at, and,

as a means of securing it, the law will not per-

mit him to place himself in a position in which
he may be tempted by his own private interests

to disregard those of his principal. In the mat-
ter of determining the policy of removing
the mill and extending the road, McEwen, in

the discharge of his duties, whether merely that

of making recommendations, or of exercising

authority to act, owed to his principal the ex-

ercise of his best judgment and ability, unin-

fluenced by any antagonistic personal interests

of his own. His attempt to secure $5000 to

himself was calculated to bias his mind in favor

of the policy upon which the payment of the

money was conditioned, regardless of the in-

terests of the mill company. It is not material

that no actual injury to the company resulted,

or that the policy recommended may have been

for its best interest. Courts will not inquire

into these matters. It is enough to know that

the agent in fact placed himself in such rela-

tions that he might be tempted by his own in-

terests to disregard those of his principal.

The transaction was nothing more or less

than the acceptance by the agent of a bribe

to perform his duties in the manner desired

by the person who gave the bribe. Such a con-

tract is void.
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This doctrine rests on such plain principles
of law, as well as common business honesty,
that the citation of authorities is unnecessary.
The doctrine is perhaps as clearly and concisely
expressed as anywhere in Harrington v. Vic-
toria Graving Dock Co., 3 Q. B. Div. 549. The
fact that the validity of such transaction is at-

tempted to be sustained in courts of justice
does not speak well for the state of the public
conscience on the subject of loyalty to trusts
in business affairs.

In the case of Oscanyon v. Arms Co., 103 U. S.

261, the answer contained nothing but a general

denial. Nevertheless the court acted on the open-

ing statement of plaintiff's counsel, in which facts

were stated disclosing the illegality of the con-

sideration for the contract sued on. This action

of the court was alleged as error on the appeal. In

passing on the point, the Supreme Court said (p.

266):

The position of the plaintiff that the illegal-

ity of the contract in suit cannot be noticed,

because not affirmatively pleaded, does not
strike us as having much weight. We should
hardly deem it worth of serious consideration

had it not been earnestly pressed upon our at-

tention by learned counsel. The theory upon
which the action proceeds is that the plaintiff

has a contract, valid in law, for certain ser-

vices. Whatever shows the invalidity of the

contract, shows that in fact no such contract
as alleged ever existed. * * *

But if we are mistaken in this view of the

system of procedure adopted in New York, and
of the defences admissible according to it un-

der a general denial in an action upon a con-
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tract, our conclusion would not be changed In

the present case. Here the action is upon a

contract which, according to the view of the

judge who tried the case, was a corrupt one,

forbidden by morality and public policy. We
shall hereafter examine into the correctness of

this view. Assuming for the present that it

was a sound one, the objection to a recovery

could not be obviated or waived by any system
of pleading or even by the express stipulation

of the parties. It was one which the court

itself was bound to raise in the interest of the

due administration of justice. The court will

not listen to claims founded upon services ren-

dered in violation of common decency, public

morality, or the law. * * *

The defense is allowed, not for the sake of

the defendant, but of the law itself. The prin-

ciple is indispensable to the purity of its ad-

ministration. It will not enforce what it has
forbidden and denounced. The maxim, ex dolo

malo non oritur actio, is limited by no such
qualification. The proposition to the contrary

strikes us as hardly worthy of serious refuta-

tion. Whenever the illegality appears, whether
the evidence comes from one side or the other,

the disclosure is fatal to the case. No consent

of the defendant can neutralize its effect. A
stipulation in the most solemn form to waive
the objection would be tainted with the vice

of the original contract, and void for the same
reasons. Wherever the contamination reaches

it destroys. The principle to be extracted from
all the cases is, that the law will not lend its

support to a claim founded upon its violation.

Plaintiff, as we have remarked several times,

owned less than one-fourth of the stock of his

Company, and he suffered no injury by the grant-
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ing of the concessions made on its behalf, excepting

such as the other stockholders suffered, if it should

be granted that the arrangement worked an injury

rather than a benefit. He was the president and a

director of the company. He was engaged in at-

tending to the business connected with the liquida-

tion of his company up to and after the time these

notes were given. His attorneys make the startl-

ing suggestion that he could not bargain away

his corporation's rights, because he had no author-

ity to do so. If those rights were what he professed

to be bargaining away and he acted without au-

thority, that would leave the notes, on the footing

of plaintiff's own declaration as to lack of author-

ity, standing without any consideration whatever.

If the court should adopt the contention in the

plaintiff's brief, that the consideration was only

Macomber's personal consent that his company

should, through its trustee, grant the concessions

which were asked, plaintiff's position would not be

one whit better. It was as illegal for him to bar-

gain away his personal consent while he was an

officer and director and a member of a committee

of two handling the liquidation of the corporation

and advising the trustee in respect thereto, as to

bargain away the consent of his corporation itself.

His attorneys say he did bargain away his own

personal consent under just those circumstances.

In such case, the law is strict that not even the ap-

pearance of evil will be tolerated.

When it is conceded in the pleadings, and un-
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disputed as a fact, that Macomber, at the time he

took the notes, was president of his corj)oration

:

and when it is deliberately asserted on his behalf

by his own counsel to be a fact—which we will

concede to them, because they want it conceded

—

that he was a member of the committee of two

which had been appointed by all the stockholders

and officers to represent them in the liquidation of

the affairs of the corporation and to advise the

trustee in respect thereto; and when it is shown

that his claim that he had ceased to do business for

his corporation is false, and that on the contrary,

he was transacting for it all the business it was

doing; and when it appears unescapably that he

and no one else acted for his corporation in the

very transaction out of which the notes arose; and

when it appears that the only actual consideration

his counsel can even allege on his behalf, to sus-

tain the notes, and the one they do allege, is the

granting by him of the concessions which the Mac-

omber-Savidge Lumber Company made respecting

its creditor's claim against the Modoc Lumber

Company,—then what are the consequences? It

needs no argument to reach a conclusion on that

point. Plaintiff says the notes are his own, sole,

individual notes, in which his corporation has not

the slightest interest. If he recovers at all, it must

be on the theory he himself has adopted. If the

notes were given for his sole personal benefit, and

the consideration is what it is demonstrated and

admitted to be, the notes are illegal, and that is



102

the end of the matter. The lower court so found.

The fifth conclusion of law made and filed by

the court below reads as follaws:

If the said promissory notes sued on herein

were given by the defendant to the plaintiff

personally in consideration of any action which

the plaintiff took on behalf of the Macomber-

Savidge Lumber Company, of which he was

the president, said notes are void and un-

inforcible for illegality of consideration.

The transcript filed in this court includes only

the first first four conclusions of law. We have

moved to supply the deficiency.

CONCLUSION.

Several things must have become evident to

the Court by this time. Those are:

1. That this is one of the most baseless appeals

ever taken. Out of the thirteen assignments of

error only three are founded on any exceptions.

Of those three, the first objection was to a ques-

tion which was not answered; and all three ex-

ceptions are plainly without merit. The case turn-

ed entirely on questions of fact. The facts, and

the law as well, have been found in favor of the

defendant. There was abundant evidence to justi-

fy the findings and there are no exceptions thereto.

2, That the case of the plaintiff is not only

without merit, but is utterly dishonest in its fun«
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danientals. He knows as well as every one else

knows that his claim as now made by his counsel

that he, the holder of less than a quarter of the

stock of an insolvent corporation, was to have

.$50,000 for merely giving his individual consent

that his corporation might if it saw fit enter into

the same plan of refinancing which all of the

other creditors were joining in, is utterly prepos-

terous and false. It is to be observed moreover that

the very things plaintiff's counsel now set up as

the basis of the consideration for the notes are

things which the defendant has denied under oath

in his reply ever happened. The answer explicitly

sets up the facts as to the agreement that the claim

should be filed with the Board of Trade and re-

duced to $53,905.92, and the subsequent action by

which this arrangement was carried out. The re-

ply absolutely and flatly denies that any such

things ever happened. Now the plaintiff pretends

that his individual consent to the doing of those

things which he has denied under oath were ever

done or agreed to be done was the consideration

for the notes. He sets up now his consent to the

taking of the second mortgage as part of the con-

sideration. He had not only denied in his reply

that there was such an agreement, but he had de-

nied on the witness stand that it was even dis-

cussed prior to the giving of the notes. See foot

of page 123, for instance.

3. If the notes belong to the plaintiff individu

ally and the consideration was what he says it was,
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it is then inescapable that the notes were void for

illegality of consideration. It is uncontradicted

that Goldthwaite wanted to give the notes to the

Macomber-Savidge Lumber Company. Plaintiff nov/

asks the Court to find that he was utterly dishonest

and false to his trust as president and director and

one of the liquidating committee of his corporation,

and that when he was offered security for the debt

due the corporation, he refused it and insisted on

having instead a bribe for himself personally. Such

a case does not deserve a moment's favorable con-

sideration.

Respectfully submitted,

VEAZIE & VEAZIE,,

Attorneys for Defendant in Error.
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Messrs. TIlOMi'SON, CATIKAirr &
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:
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District Attorney, Federal Building, Hono-

lulu, Hawaii.

CHARLES H. HOGG, Assistant United States

District Attorney, Federal Building, Hono-
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In the Distiict Court of the United States for the

Territory of Hawaii.

No. 170.

DOLLAR STEAMSHIP LINE, a Corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

JEANETTE A. HYDE, United States Collector

of Customs, Port of Honolulu,

Defendant.

•rapo-number appearing at the foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Record.
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CLERK'S STATEMENT.

Time of Commencing Suit.

July 29, 1926: Complaint filed and summons is-

sued and delivered to the United States Marshal

for the District of Hawaii.

Names of Original Parties.

Dollar Steamship Line, a corporation, plaintiff.

Jeanette A. Hyde, United States Collector of

Customs, Port of Honolulu, Defendant.

Dates of Filing of Pleadings.

July 29, 1926: Plaintiff's bill of complaint.

October 21, 1926: Plaintiff's amended bill of

complaint.

December 13, 1926: Plaintiff's second amended

bill of complaint.

February 21, 1927 : Election of plaintiff to stand

on pleadings.

Service of Process.

July 29, 1926: Summons issued and delivered to

U. S. Marshal, District of Hawaii, and same date

was returned with the following return, to wit:

[2]

*'United States Marshal's Office,

City of Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii.

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that I received the

within writ on the 29th day of July, A. D. 1926,

and personally served the same on the 29th day of

July, A. D. 1926, upon Jeanette A. Hyde, United

States Collector of Customs, Port of Honolulu, by

delivering to, and leaving with Jeanette A. Hyde
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said (Icfoiidanl named tlicicin pcisonally, at lloiio-

liilii, 'l\ II., a ccililicd copy thereof, toj^ethcr witli

a (•(>])> (d' the eoiiiplaiiit ceitiHed to hv Wni. L.

Rosa, Clerk, attached thcicto.

USCAK P. (OX,
U. S. Marslial.

By (S<,-d.) (). F. Heine,

Office Deputy.

Honolulu, July 2f)th, A. D. 192()."

'Pi me When Proeeedin<2:s Wei'e Had.

Aua:ust 27, 192(): Proceedings at argument on

denniri'ei' to e()ni])laint.

December 10, 1926: Pioceedings at ai-gument on

motion to strike and denuirrer to amended com-

plaint. Decision sustaiiung same.

January 21, 1927: Proceedings at argument on

demun-er to second amended complaint. Decision

sustaining same.

February 21, 1927: Proceedings, decision on de-

murrer to second amended com{)laint and excep-

tions.

Dates of Filing Appeal Documents.

February 28, 1927: Petition for writ of error

and allowance, assignment of errors, bond filed.

Writ of erroi' and citation issued.

]\Iai(li 1, 1927: Praecipe for transcript of rec-

ord tiled. Proceedings had before the Honorable

J. T. DeHolt, Distriet Judge, i)rt«iding. [H]
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CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AS TO THE
ABOVE STATEMENT.

United States of America,

Territory of Hawaii,—ss.

I, Wm. L. Rosa, Clerk of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Territory of Hawaii, do hereby

certify the foregoing to be a full, true and correct

statement showing the time of commencement of

the above-entitled cause; the names of the original

parties thereto, the several dates when the respec-

tive pleadings were filed; an account of the service

of process, the time when proceedings were had

and the name of the judge presiding and the date

of filing appeal documents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set

my hand and affixed the seal of said District Court,

this 14th day of April, A. D. 1927.

[Seal] WM. L. ROSA,
Clerk, United States District Court, Territory of

Hawaii. [4]

[Endorsed]: Filed March 24, 1927, at 9 o'clock

and minutes A. M. [5]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ENLARGEMENT OF TIME TO AND INCLUD-
ING APRIL 24, 1927, FOR DOClvETING
CASE.

For good cause shown, the time within which to

docket this case and file the record thereof with the
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Clerk of the Unitrd States f'ii<uit Court of Ap-
peals foi- the Ninth Ciicnit is licicljy onlar^crl and

extended to and includinu- A|)ri| 21, lf)27.

Dated at llniK.lidu, 'I\ II., Maicli IM, 11)27.

J. T. I)('P>()LT,

Judg:e, United States District Court, Territory of

Hawaii. [<>]

[Endorsed]: Filed April II, lii27, at 10 o'clock

and niiiuites A. M. [7]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ENLATKIKMENT OF TTMF TO AND IXCLUD-
1X(J APRIL :U), 1!)27, FOR DOCKFTIXCJ
CASE.

For good cause shown, the time within which to

docket this case and file the record thereof with the

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit is herehy enlarged and

extended to and including April 30, 1927.

Dated at Honolulu, T. H., Ai)ril 14. 1927.

J. T. DeHOLT,
Judge, United States District Court, Territory of

Hawaii. [S]



6 Dollar Steamship Line

[Endorsed]: Filed July 29, 1926, at 2 o'clock

and 8 minutes P. M. [9]

In the United States District Court for the Terri-

tory of Hawaii,

DOLLAR STEAMSHIP LINE, a Corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

JEANETTE A. HYDE, United States Collector

of Customs, Port of Honolulu,

Defendant.

COMPLAINT.

Action to Recover Moneys Paid Under Protest.

Comes now the plaintiff above named and for

cause of action against the above-named defendant

alleges

:

I.

That at all times hereinafter mentioned plaintiff

has been and now is a corporation duly organized

and existing under and by virtue of the laws of

the State of California, and authorized to do and

doing business in the Territory of Hawaii and

wdthin the jurisdiction of this court.

II.

That at all times hereinafter mentioned the de-

fendant, Jeanette A. Hyde, has been and now is the

duly appointed, qualified and acting United States

Collector of Customs, Port of Honolulu, Territory

of Hawaii, a resident of said Honolulu and within

the jurisdiction of this court.
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III.

Tliat at all times hereinafter ineiitiuned the

])laiiititT lias l)eeii and now is the owner and opei-

ator of \arious steanishii)s, one of said steanisliips

being the SS. "President Lincoln" and [10] en-

gaged in the business of carrying mails, passen-

gers and goods, for liiic, l)etween various ports of

the United States, including the poA of Honolulu,

Territory of Hawaii, and i)oi"ts of foreign coun-

tries; that at the tiiue of the conmiissioii of the il-

legal act hereinafter complained of, there was sub-

sisting bet\ve(>n the })laintiff and the United States

of America and various individual shippers valid

and binding contract for the carriage, for hire, of

mails and various commodities, between the ports

of the United States of America and ports of for-

eign countries, and return.

IV.

That on or about the 17th day of November,

A. D. 1925, at Yokohama, Japan, one Seiichi

Yamate, an alien holding a permit to re-enter the

United States of America, said alien having been

a resident of and domiciled in the Territory of

Hawaii for a continuous period of eighteen yeai's,

said residence and domicile havng been unrelin-

quished and said alien being desirous of return-

ing thereto, became a passenger for hire aboard

the SS. "President Lincoln," said vessel being

bound for the port of San Francisco, Californa,

via the port of Honolulu, the destination of Seiichi

Y^imate being Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii.
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V.

That on the 26th day of November, A. D. 1925,

said vessel arrived at said port of Honolulu, and

said alien passenger was refused admission to said

port and to the United States of America for the

alleged reason that said alien was afflicted with a

loathsome and/or dangerous contagious disease.

[11]

YI.

That immediately upon the exclusion of said

alien as aforesaid, said defendant, Jeanette A.

Hyde, Collector of Customs, as aforesaid, purport-

ing to act under the provisions of Section 9 of the

"Immigration Act of 1917'' as amended by Sec-

tion 26 of the ''Immigration Act of 1924," and de-

spite the fact that said alien was returning to an

unrelinquished United States domicile in excess of

seven consecutive years, and despite the proviso

to said Section 9 of said "Immigration Act of

1917" as amended by Section 26 of the "Immigra-

tion Act of 1924" reading:

"That nothing contained in this section

shall be construed to subject transportation

companies to a fine for bringing to ports of

the United States aliens who are by any of the

provisos or exceptions to Section 3 of this Act

exempted from the excluding provisions of

said section,"

and the proviso to said Section 3 of the "Immigra-

tion Act of 1917" reading:

"That aliens returning after a temporary

absence to an unrelinquished United States

domicile of seven consecutive years may be ad-



vs. Jcfunirftr A. Iljjdc. 9

niitted in ilic discrclion of llic Secretary of

l.al)<»r, and iindci- sn<h conditions as he may

prescribe,"

imposed aj^ainst said defendant a fine of One Tlmn-

sand Dollars (>fl,00().()0) and in addition a sum

ecinal to that paid by said alien for liis transpor-

tation from the initial point of de])ai-1uic, indicated

in his ticket, to the ])ort of Ilonoluhi, to wit, Foi-ty

Dollars ($40.00), or a total of One Thousand Forty

])ollars ($1,040.00). [12]

VII.

That ui)on the imposition of said fine and for the

l)urpose of effecting collection of the same, said de-

fendant threatened to refuse clearance papers to

said SS. "President Lincoln" and thereupon to

effect the clearance of said vessel and to prevent

inconvenience to the passengers aboard said vessel,

and a breach of its mail and merchandise contracts,

plaintiff paid to said defendant as collector as

aforesaid, under duress and protest, said fine of

One Thousand Forty Dollars ($1,040.00) so illegally

imposed and collected as aforesaid; that although

demand has been made upon said defendant for the

return of said sum of One Thousand Forty Dol-

lars ($1,040.00), said defendant has wholly failed,

refused and neglected to repay the same or any

pai-t thereof to the plaintiff.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays judgment against

defendant in the sum of One Thousand Forty Dol-

lars ($1,040.00), together with interest at the legal

rate from the date of i)ayment, together with its

costs and disbui-sements herein expended.
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Dated: Honolulu, T. H., July 29, 1926.

DOLLAR STEAMSHIP LINE, a Corpora-

tion,

By (S.) STANLEY W. GOOD,
Its General Agent,

Plaintiff Above Named.

By THOMPSON, CATHCART & BEEBE,
2-13 Campbell Block, Honolulu,

Attorneys for Plaintiff Above Named.

(S.) E. H. BEEBE. [13]

Territory of Hawaii,

City and County of Honolulu,—ss.

Stanley W. Good, being first duly sworn on oath,

deposes and says:

That he is General Agent at Honolulu of the

Dollar Steamship Line, a corporation, and as such

General Agent is authorized to make this verifica-

tion for and on behalf of said Dollar Steamship

Line, a corporation; that he has read the foregoing

complaint, knows the contents thereof and that the

same is true to the best of his knowledge, infor-

mation and belief.

(S.) STANLEY W. GOOD,

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29th day

of July, 1926.

[Seal] (S.) RITCHIE G. ROSA,
Notary Public, First Judicial Circuit, Territory of

Hawaii. [14]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

SUMMONS.

Action l)i-oui;ht in Said District Coui't, and the

Complaint Filed in the Office of the Cleik of

Said District Court in Honolulu.

The President of the United States of America,

GREETING: To Jeanette A. Hyde, United

States Collector of Customs, Port of Honolulu,

Honolulu, T. IL, Defendant:

You are hereby directed to apjx'ar and answer

the complaint in an action entitled as above, brought

against you in the District Court of the United

States, in and for the Territory of Hawaii, within

twenty days after service.

And you ar(> herein- notified that unless you ap-

])ear and answer as above required, the said plain-

tiff will take judgment for any or (fiamar/fis de-

manded in the complaint, as arising upon contract,

<n- it will apply to the Coui't for any other relief

demanded in the complaint.

WITNESS the Honorable J. T. DeBOLT, Judge

of said District Court, this 29th day of July in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

twenty-six and of the independence of the United

States the one hundred and fifty-first.

[Seal] (S.) WM. T. ROSA,
Clerk.

By ,

Deputy Clerk. [15]
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United States Marshal's Office,

City of Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii.

I hereby certify that I received the within writ

on the 29th day of July, A. D. 1926, and personally

served the same on the 29th day of July, A. D. 1926,

upon Jeannette A. Hyde, United States Collector

of Customs, Port of Honolulu, by delivering to

and leaving with Jeannette A. Hyde, said defendant

named therein, personally, at Honolulu, T. H., a

certified copy thereof, together with a copy of the

complaint certified to by Wm. L. Rosa, Clerk, at-

tached thereto.

OSCAR P. COX,
U. S. Marshal.

By (S.) O. F. Heine,

Office Deputy.

Marshal's Civil Docket No. 1273. [16]

[Endorsed]: Filed August 17, 1926, at 1 o'clock

and 45 minutes P. M.

Copy of the within demurrer is hereby acknowl-

edged this 17th day of August, 1926.

(S.) THOMPSON, CATHCART & BEEBE,
E. H. S.,

Attorneys for Plaintiff. [17]
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[Ti11<' of ('(.iii-t and Cause.]

DP:MrKM?ET?.

Comes now Jeanctte A. Hyde, United States

Colleetor of Customs at the Port of Honolulu, th(*

defendant ahove named, and demurs to the eoni-

plaint herein upon Ihe r(»ll(>\ving grounds, to wit :

I.

That the eomplaint does not set out sufficient or

any facts to constitute a cause of action.

II.

That the eomplaint does not set out facts suffi-

cient to entitle the ])laintiff to the relief prayed for

or to any relief.

III.

That it affirmatively appears from the allegations

of the complaint that the plaintiff is not entitled to

the relief prayed for or to any relief.

WHEREFOHI^;, it is prayed that said complaint

be dismissed.

(S.) CHARLES E. CASSIDY,
CHARLES E. CASSIDEY,

Asst. United States Attorney, District of Hawaii,

Attorney for Defendant.

Dated: Honolulu, T. H., August IT, 1926. [18]

I, Charies E. Cassidy, Assistant L'nited States

Attorney for the District of Hawaii, attorney for

defendant, do hereby certify that the foregoing de-

murrer is not filed for the pui-pose of delay and to

my opinion is well taken in point of law.

(S.) CHARLES E. CASSIDY. [19]
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PROCEEDINGS—ARGUMENT ON DEMUR-
RER TO COMPLAINT— CAUSE SUB-
MITTED.

From the Minutes of the U. S. District Court,

Territory of Hawaii.

Friday, August 27, 1926.

(Title of Court and Cause.)

Personally appeared Mr. Eugene H. Beebe, coun-

sel for the plaintiff, and also came Mr. Charles E.

Cassidy, Assistant United States District Attorney,

counsel for the defendant, and this case was called

for argument. After due hearing the Court or-

dered that counsel submit briefs. Counsel for the

defense was given to and including the 10th of

September in which time to file his opening brief;

counsel for the plaintiff was given to the 17th day

of September to file his answering brief and counsel

for the defense was given three days thereafter in

which to file his answer. [20]

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 4, 1926, at 9 o'clock and

05 minutes A. M. [21]

RULING ON DEMURRER.

This cause comes before the Court on the com-

plaint and demurrer filed herein. The grounds of

demur, in effect, are that the complaint does not

state a cause of action.
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The complaint, in sul)stance, shows that on Xo-

vcmhcr 17, 1!)*J."), df Si'iiclii Vainatc, an alien, hold-

iiii;- a permit to re-enter the Tnited States, havinj^

resided in Hawaii 18 years, and his residence hein^

\nirelin(|nished, emharked at Yokohama, dai)an, as

a ])assen<i-ei- on the plaintiff's steamship, the "i*resi-

dent Lincoln," and on Xovem})er 26, l!)^'), arrixcd

at the port ol' Honolulu, his (U'stination, and was

refused pennission to ic-entci- lor the I'cason that

he was afflicted with a loathsome and danj^eroiis

disease; that iii)on the exclusion of Yainate, the de-

fendant, as Collector of Customs at the poll of

Honolulu, imposed against the plaintiff, the Steam-

ship Com])any, a fine of $100().CK) and the additional

sum of iflO.OO for the transportation of Yamate

from Honolulu to Yokohama ; that upon the imposi-

tion of the fine the plaintiff, to effect clearance of

the vessel in question, paid to the defendant as such

Collector, under protest, the sum of $1040.00, the

total amount of the fine and passage money, for

the recovery of which sum this action was insti-

tuted.

In my opinion, ui)on the facts as alleged in the

complaint, not only was the alien passenger,

Yamage, rightly excluded, hut the Collector of Cus-

toms had no alternative [22] other than to im-

pose and require the })aynient of the fine and pass-

age money assessed against the Steamship Com-

pany, the plaintiff herein.
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The demurrer, therefore, is sustained and the

complaint dismissed.

(S.) J. T. DeBOLT,
Judge.

Oct. 4, 1926. [23]

PROCEEDINGS—ARGUMENT ON MOTION
TO STRIKE AND DEMURRER—ORDER
SUSTAINING MOTION TO STRIKE AND
DEMURRER AND ORDER GRANTING
FILING OF AMENDED COMPLAINT.

From the Minutes of the U. S. District Court,

Territory of Hawaii.

Friday, December 10, 1926.

[Title of Court and Cause.]

On this day came Mr. Eugene H. Beebe, of the

firm of Thompson, Cathcart & Beebe, counsel for

the plaintiff, and also came Mr. C. H. Hogg, As-

sistant United States District Attorney, counsel

for the respondent, and this case was called for

hearing on a motion to strike and demurrer. Ar-

gument was had by respective counsel and at the

conclusion thereof the Court granted the motion to

strike and sustained the demurrer. Whereupon

Mr. Beebe moved for leave to amend the complaint

herein in so far as paragraph five was concerned.

Said motion w^as granted by the Court and Mr.

Beebe was given five days within which time to file

said amendment. The motion to strike was granted
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and file demurrer sustained for tlie reason that

the disease was not susceptihh' of deteetion at the

time of tlie oxainiiiati«»n at the port of cniharkatioii.

[24J

[Endorsed]: Filed Deceni])er 13, 1926, at 2

o'cloek and 35 niiiiutes A. M. [25]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

SECOND AJVIENDKI) (H)MPLAINT.

Conies now the plaintiff al)ove named and for

eause of action against the above-named defendant

alleges

:

I.

That at all times hereinafter mentioned plaintiff

has been and now is a corporation duly organized

and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the

State of California, and authorized to do and doing

business in the Territory of Hawaii and within the

jurisdiction of this Court.

II.

That at all times hereinafter mentioned the de-

fendant, Jeanette A. Hyde, has been and now is

the duly appointed, (jualirted and acting United

States Collector of Customs, Port of Honolulu, Ter-

ritory of Hawaii, a resident of Siiid Honolulu, and

within the jurisdiction of this Court.

III.

That at all times hereinafter mentioned the plain-

tiff has [26] been and now is the ownier and

operator of various steamships, one of said steam-
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ships being the S.S. ''President Lincoln" and en-

gaged in the business of carrying mails, passengers

and goods, for hire, between various ports of the

United States, including the port of Honolulu, Ter-

ritory of Hawaii, and ports of foreign countries;

that at the time of the commission of the illegal

act hereinafter complained of, there was subsisting

between the plaintiff and the United States of

America and various individual shippers valid and

binding contract for the carriage, for hire, of mails

and various commodities, between the ports of the

United States of America and ports of foreign

countries, and return.

IV.

That on or about the 17th day of November, A. D.

1925, at Yokohama, Japan, one Seiichi Yamate, an

alien holding a permit to re-enter the United States

of America, said alien being a resident of and hav-

ing been domiciled in the Territory of Hawaii for

a continuous period of eighteen years, said resi-

dence and domicile having been unrelinquished and

said alien being desirous of returning thereto after

a temporary absence abroad of approximately

three months, became a passenger for hire aboard

the S.S. "President Lincoln," said vessel being

bound for the port of San Francisco, California, via

the port of Honolulu, the destination of Seiichi

Yamate being Honolulu, Territor}^ of Hawaii.

V.

That prior to his embarkation upon said vessel

at the [27] port aforesaid, said Seiichi Yamate

was examined for contagious and/or loathsome and/
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(»r otlici- diseases by llie medical .iiillioritics (»(' the

Kini)ire of Japan, and was certified hy sneli aiitliori-

ties as hein^ free tliei(Trnin : that said Seiiehi

Yaniate, prioi* to the sailini;' ol' said vessel, was

apiin examined hy the Tnited States Puhlie Ilealtli

Service at Yokohama, Japan, for ('onta^ious and/

or h)athsonie and/or other diseases, and was per-

mitted by said Service to board said vessel as a per-

son free from disease; that prior to the sailinj^ of

said vessel from the poi't aforesaid, said alien was

a^ain examined 1>>' the surgeon of said vessel, said

surgeon heinii: a competent physician and suro;eon

(liil>' (|ualitied and licensed to })ractice as such in

tile Stat(^ of California and elsewhere, for con-

tauious and/or loathsome and/or other diseases,

and found to be without evidence thereof; that

upon four occasions subsequent to the sailin*:: of

said vessel at the ])oi-t of Honolulu, said Seiiehi

Yamate was examined by said surgeon for disease

as aforesaid, none of said examinations revealing

any symptoms of any c()ntagious,loathsome or other

disease; that said examinations were made by com-

jjetent medical authorities, were made for the pur-

pose of discovering whether or not said Seiiehi

Yamate was suffering from or afllicted wutli any

contagious and/or loathsome and/or other disease;

that if, at the time of said examinations said Seiiehi

Yamate was suffering from any such disease, the

same had not progressed to such a stage that it was

susceptible of discovery by competent medical ex-

amination. [28]
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VI.

That subsequent to the 26th day of November,

1925, said date being the date of arrival of said

vessel at said port of Honolulu, said alien was re-

fused admission to the United States of America

for the alleged reason that said alien was afflicted

with a loathsome and/or contagious disease, to wit,

leprosy.

VII.

That thereupon and notwithstanding the exami-

nations aforesaid, it appeared to the satisfaction

of the Secretary of Labor that said alien so brought

to the United States as aforesaid, was afflicted with

said disease at the time of foreign embarkation as

aforesaid, and thereupon said Secretary determined

that said disease might have been detected by means

of a competent medical examination at said port of

embarkation.

VIII.

That immediately upon such determination by

said Secretary as aforesaid, said defendant, Jean-

ette A. Hyde, Collector of Customs, as aforesaid,

purporting to act under the provisions of Section

9 of the "Immigration Act of 1917" as amended

by Section 26 of the "Immigration Act of 1924,"

and despite the fact that said alien was returning

from a temporary absence abroad to an unrelin-

quished United States domicile in excess of seven

consecutive years, and despite the proviso to said

Section 9 of said "Immigration Act of 1917 as

amended by Section 26 of the Immigration Act of

1924," reading:
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''Tliat nothing: fontainod in tliis soction shall

he construed to subject traiis{)()rtati()ii coni-

panies to a fine for l)riii^iiip^ to ports of the

United States aliens wlio are ))y any of the

provisos or excei)tions [2!>] to Section W (»r

this Act exempted from the excluding pio-

visions of said section,"

and the proviso to said Section 3 of the "Immigra-

tion Act of 1917," reading:

''That aliens returning after a temporary

absence to an unrelincpiished Unit^'d States

domicile of seven consecutive yeai's may be ad-

mitted in the discretion of the Secretary of

Labor, and under such conditions as he may
prescribe."

imposed against said defendant a fine of One

Thousand Dollai-s ($1{X)0.00) and in addition a

sum ('(jual to that paid by said alien I'or his trans-

portation from the initial point of departure, in-

dicated in his ticket, to the port of Honolulu, to

wit. Forty Dollars ($40.00) or a total of One Thou-

sand Forty Dollars ($1040.00).

IX.

That upon the imposition of said tine and for the

purpose of effecting collection of the same, said

defendant threatened to refuse clearance papers to

said S.S. "President Lincoln," and thereupon to

effect the clearance of said vessel and to prevent

inconvenience to the passengers aboard said vessel,

and a breach of its mail and merchandise contracts,

plaintiff paid to said defendant as Collector as

aforesaid, under duress and protest, said tine of
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One Thousand Forty Dollars ($1040.00) so illegally

imposed and collected as aforesaid; that although

demand has been made upon said defendant for

the return of said sum of One Thousand Forty Dol-

lars ($1040.00) said defendant has wholly failed,

refused and neglected to repay the same or any

part thereof to the plaintiff. [30]

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays judgment against

defendant in the sum of One Thousand Forty Dol-

lars ($1040.00), together with interest at the legal

rate from the date of payment together with its

costs and disbursements herein expended.

Dated at Honolulu, T. H., this 13th day of De-

cember, A. D. 1926.

DOLLAR STEAMSHIP LINE, a Corpora-

tion,

By (S.) S. W. OOOD,
Its General Agent,

Plaintiff Above Named.

THOMPSON, CATHCART & BEEBE,
2-13 Campbell Block, Honolulu, T. H.,

Attornej^s for Plaintiff.

Per (S.) E. H. BEEBE. [31]

Territory of Hawaii,

City ond County of Honolulu,—ss.

Stanley W. Good, being first duly sworn on oath,

deposes and says: That he is General Agent at

Honolulu of the Dollar Steamship Line, a corpora-

tion, and as such General Agent is authorized to

make this verification for and on behalf of said

Dollar Steamship Line, a corporation; that he has
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road tlie foropcoiiip: second amended complaint,

knows the contents t}iere(>i' and that the same is

true to the hest oi" liis knowledge, information and

belief.

(S.) S. W. (iOOI).

Sul)scrib(.'d and sworn to before me this \'M\\

<la\ of December, A. D. 192G.

[Seal] (S.) KITCHIE G. ROSA,
Notary Public, First Judicial Circuit, Territory

of Hawaii.

Due service by copy of the within second amended

complaint is hereby admitted.

(S.) CHARLES II. HOGG,
Attorney for Defendant.

Honolulu, Hawaii, December 13, 1926. [32]

[Endorsed]: Filed December 23, 1926, at 3 o'clock

and minutes P. M.

Copy of the within demurrer is hereby acknowl-

edged this 23d day of December, 1926.

(S.) THOMPSON, CATHCART & BEEBE,
E. H. B.,

Attorneys for Plaintiff. [33]

[Title of Court and Cruise.]

DEMURRER TO SE(^ONl) AMENDED COM-
PLAINT.

Comes now Jeannette A. Hyde, United States

Collector of Customs at the Port of Honolulu, the

defendant above named, and denmrs to the second
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amended complaint herein upon the following

grounds, to wit:

I.

That the said second amended complaint does not

state facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action.

II.

That said second amended complaint does not set

out any facts which entitle the plaintiff to recover

against the defendant.

III.

That the said second amended complaint does not

set out facts sufficient to entitle the plaintiff to the

relief prayed for in said second amended complaint

or to any relief whatever.

WHEREFORE, the defendant prays that the

said second amended complaint be dismissed.

Dated: Honolulu, Hawaii, December 23, 1926.

(S.) CHARLES H. HOGG.
CHARLES H. HOGG,

Asst, United States Attorney, District of Hawaii,

Attorney for Defendant, [34]

I, Charles H. Hogg, Assistant United States At-

torney for the District of Hawaii, attorney for de-

fendant, do hereby certify that the foregoing de"-

murrer is not filed for the purpose of delay and to

my opinion is well taken in point of law.

(Sgd.) C^HARLES H. HOGG. [35]
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PROrEEDTXOS—ARCiUMENT ON SECOND
AMENDED COMPLAINT—OK DEIv» SUS-
TAINING SAID DEMrKMvM:ix» TO SECOND
AMENDED ('()MIM.AINM\

From the Minutes of the* V. S. District Courl, Tcr-

i-itory of Hawaii.

holiday, Jaiiuai'v "Jl, 1927.

(Titk* of (\Mirt and (^luse.)

On thi.s day canit' Mr. E. II. Dcebc, of the firm of

Thompson, Cathcart & Beebe, counsel for plain-

tiff lierein, and also eame Mr. C. H. Hogg, Assistant

Tiiited States District Attorney, counsel for the re-

spondent, and this case was called for hearing on a

denmrrer to the second amended complaint. There-

upon and after due argument by respective counsel,

the demurrer was sustained by the Court. An ex-

ception was entered by Mr. Beebe, who also gave

notice of appeal. [36]

[Endorsed] : Filed January 22, 1927. at 11 o'clock

and 2-') minutes A. M. [:^7]

RULING ON DEMUHHEH TO SECOND
AMENDED COMPLAINT.

This cause again comes before the Court on the

second amended complaint and the denmrrer thereto

tiled herein. The grounds of denmr, in effect, are

that the complaint does not state a cause of action.

The complaint, in substance, shows that on No-
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vember 17, 1925, Seiichi Yamate, an alien, holding a

permit to re-enter the United States, having resided

in Hawaii 18 years and his residence being unrelin-

quished, embarked at Yokohama, Japan, as a pas-

senger on the plaintiff's steamship, the "President

Lincoln," and on November 26, 1925, about ten days

after embarkation, arrived at the Port of Honolulu,

his destination, and was refused permission to re-

enter for the reason that he was afflicted with a

loathsome and dangerous disease, to wit, leprosy;

that, nowithstanding the failure to discover that

Yamate was afflicted with leprosy upon a medical

examination of him made on behalf of the Steam-

ship Company before he embarked, '^it appeared to

the satisfaction of the Secretary of Labor that said

alien so brought to the United States as aforesaid,

was afflicted with said disease at the time of foreign

embarkation as aforesaid, and thereupon said Sec-

retary of Labor determined that said disease might

have been detected by means of a competent medi-

cal examination at said port of embarkation."

(Paragraph VII, second amended complaint.)

That upon the exclusion of Yamate, the defendant,

as Collector of Customs at the port of Honolulu, im-

posed against the plaintiff, the Steamship Com-

pany, a fine of $1000.00 and the [38] additional

sum of $10.00 for the transportation of Yamate from

Honolulu to Yokohama ; that upon the imposition of

the fine the plaintiff, to effect clearance of the vessel

in question, paid the defendant as such Collector,

under protest, the sum of $1,040.00, the total amount

of the fine and passage money, for the recovery of

which sum, this action was instituted.
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Undfi- the pi'ovisions of Section 26 of tlic Im-

iiiigration Act of 1924, Section 9 of tlic Tniini^^ration

Act of 1917 is ainoiidcd to read, so fai- as is matoi-ial

in this action, as follows:

''Sec. <). That it shall be unlawful for any

person, including any ti-ansportation company

other than I'ailway lines enterin^^ the United

States fi'om foi-eij^n contiguous tei-ritoi-y, or

the owner, niastei-, a^cnt, or consignee of any

vessel to hrinj^ to the United States either from

a foreign country or any insular possession of

the United States any alien atfiicted with idiocy,

insanity, imbecility, feeble-mindedness, epi-

lepsy, constitutional psychopathic inferiority,

chronic alcoholism, tuberculosis in any form, or

a loathsome or dangerous contagious disease,

and if it shall appear to the satisfaction of the

Secretary of Labor that any alien so brought

to the United States was afflicted with any of

the said diseases or disabilities at the time of

foreign embarkation, and that the existence

of such disease or disability might have been

detected by means of a competent medical ex-

amination at such time, such person or trans-

j)ortation company, or the master, agent, owner,

or consignee of any such vessel shall pay to the

collector of customs of the customs district in

which the port of arrival is located the sum of

[:>9] $1,000, and in addition a sum equal to

that paid by such alien for his transportation

from the initial point of departure, indicated

in his ticket to the poi-t of arrival for each and
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every violation of the provisions of this section,

such latter sum to be delivered by the collector

of customs to the alien on whose account as-

sessed. . . . Provided further, That noth-

ing contained in this section shall be construed

to subject transportation companies to a fine

for bringing to ports of the United States

aliens who are by any of the provisos or ex-

ceptions to section 3 of this act exempted from

the excluding provisions of said section."

It is contended on behalf of the Steamship Com-

pany that, according to the terms of the proviso

just quoted, the alien in question was and is ex-

empt. I cannot accept this view. Under the pro-

visions of the above-quoted section it is made un-

lawful to bring to the United States "any alien af-

flicted with ... a loathsome or dangerous con-

tagious disease." This language correctly describes

the alien in question. Moreover, the Secretary of

Labor, with regard to the alien in question, having

"determined that said disease might have been de-

tected by means of a competent medical examina-

tion at said port of embarkation," was and is final

and conclusive. The Court cannot go behind that

finding.

The demurrer, therefore, is sustained and the

complaint is dismissed.

(S.) J. T. DeBOLT,
Judge.

January 22, 1927. [40]
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PTx^OrEEOrNOS — DEnsiON SUSTAINING
DEMTRKMIK' TO SECOND AMENDED
(^OMPLAIXT A \ I) E X (' E I»T I O N S

TIIEK'ETO.

From tlic Minutes of the V. S. District Court, Terri-

toi-y of Hawaii.

Monday, Fehiiiaiy 21, 1927.

(Title of (\)urt and Cause.)

On this (lay cainc Eugene H. I >('('])(•, of tlic firm

of Thompson, Catlicart it I^eel)e, counsel for tlie

plaintiff, and also came Mr. C. H. Ilo^^^ff, Assistant

United States District Attorney, counsel for the re-

spondent, and this case was called for decision on

the demurrer to the second amended complaint.

The Court sustained the dennirrer to which decision

Mr. Deebe entered an excei)tion, said exception

being granted by the Court. [41]

[Endorsed]: Filed Febmary 21, 1927, at 10

o'clock and 40 nnmtes A. M. [42]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ELECTION OF FLAIN'llFF TO STAND ON
PLEADINGS.

Comes now the plaintiff in the above-entitled ac-

tion, by Thompson, Cathcart & Beebe, its attorneys,

and deciding not to amend its second amend com-

plaint in the above-entitled action, stands on the

pleadings.
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Dated, Honolulu, T. H., February 21, 1927.

DOLLAR STEAMSHIP LINE, a Corpora-

tion,

Plaintiff Above Named.

By THOMPSON, CATHCART & BEEBE,
(S.) F. E. THOMPSON,
(S.) E. H. BEEBE,

Its Attorneys. [43]

[Endorsed] : Filed February 21, 1927, at 2 o'clock

and 25 minutes A. M.

Copy of the within Decree received this 21 day of

February, 1927.

(S.) THOMPSON, CATHCART & BEEBE,
E. H. B.,

Attorneys for Plaintiff. [44]

In the United States District Court for the Terri-

tory of Hawaii.

Civil No. 170.

DOLLAR STEAMSHIP LINE,

Plaintiff,

vs.

JEANNETTE A. HYDE, United States Collector

of Customs, Port of Honolulu,

Defendant.

DECREE.

This cause having come on regularly before the

Honorable J. T. DeBolt, a Judge of this Court, to

be heard upon the second amended complaint and
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flic (Inmii'i'ci- lluTcIo til('(l hrfciii, and was argued

by counsel, and submitted to tlie Couit for its con-

sideration and decision; and the Court hein^ fully

advised in the pi'emises, sustained the defendant's

demurrer to the plaintiff's second amended com-

])laint, as shown hy the decision I'cndered and tiled

herein on this 2*J(1 day of danuai-y, 1927; and the

])laintiff lia\in,u, in wi-iting filed herein, elected not

to further amend its complaint herein or to i)Iead

furtluM", hut to stand on its second amended com-

l)laint as tiled herein, the Court finds tliat the sec-

ond amended com})laint (h)es not state a cause of

action ai^ainst the defendant: [4')]

NOW, THKK^KFOKMs ui)on motion of Charles

11. llo^o-. Assistant United States Attorney, attor-

ney for the defendant, it is herel)y OKDKHKI),

ADJUIKJED AND DECREED that the defend-

ant's demurrer to the phiintiff's second amended

com])laint tiled hei-ein he sustained, and tliat the

cause be and hereby is dismissed and that the de-

fen(bint recover from the plaintiff all costs of this

action wliich are hereby taxed in the sum of $15.00.

Dated: Honolulu, T. H., February 21, 1927.

(S.) J. T. DeHOLT,

Judge, United States District Court, Territory of

Hawaii.

Plaintiff excepts to the entry of the foregoing

Decree, which exception the Court hereby allows

this 21st day of February, 1927.

(S.) d. T. DeBOLT,

Judge, United States District Court, Territory of

Hawaii. [4(>]
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[Endorsed]: February 28/27, at 9 o'clock and

05 minutes A. M. [47]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

PETITION FOR WRIT OF ERROR AND
ALLOWANCE.

Comes now Dollar Steamship Line, a corporation,

plaintiff above named, by Thompson, Cathcart &
Beebe, its attorneys, and feeling itself aggi^ieved by

the decision and judgment sustaining the demurrer

to its second amended complaint herein and deny-

ing its claim, and complaining that there is manifest

error to the damage of the plaintiff in the same, as

will more in detail appear from the assignment of

errors which is filed with this petition prays that a

writ of error may issue in this behalf out of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit under and according to the laws of

the United States in that behalf made and pro-

vided, for the correction of the error so complained

of, and that a transcript of the record, proceedings

and papers in this cause, duly authenticated, may
be sent to said Circuit Court of Appeals, and also

[48] that an order be made fixing the amount

of the security which the petitioner shall give and

furnish upon the said writ of error, and that upon

the giving of such security all further proceedings

in this court be suspended and stayed until the de-

termination of said writ of error by said United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit
J
and your petitioner will ever pray.
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Dated, TToiiolulu, T. 11., Fcbni.ny 28, 11)27.

DOLLAR STKAMSHII> LINK, a ('..rpo-

I'atioii,

Plaintiff Above Nained.

By THOMPSON, (^\TIT(\\RT & HKEBE,
(S.) F. K. M^HOMPSON,
(S.) K. II. IJKKHK,

Its Attoi-noys.

Allowed, and the amount of the bond is hereby

fixed at Five Hundred Dollars (.$500.00).

(S.) J. T. DeBOLT,

Juduc of the Tnited States Distriet Court for the

Territory of Hawaii. [49]

[Endorsed]: Filed Feby. 28/27, at 9 o'clock and

05 minutes A. M. [50]

[Tit](^ of (\Mirt nmd Cause.]

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS.

Comes no\v the above-named plaintiff, Dollar

Steamship Line, a corporation, and says that in

the records and proceedings in the above-entitled

cause, there is manifest error in this, to wit:

I.

That the Court erred in sustmninu; the demurrer

of the defendant to the second amended complaint

of the plaintiff and in ordering judgment for the

defendant.

II.

That the Court erred in entenng judgment for

the defendant and against the plaintiff.
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III.

That the Court erred in holding and determin-

ing that the plaintiff, Dollar Steamship Line, was

subject to the fine or penalty provided for by sec-

tion 26 of the "Immigration Act of 1924," for

bringing to the United States an alien returning

after a temporary absence to an unrelinquished

United [51] States domicile of seven (7) con-

secutive years, (Seventh proviso. Sec. 3, Immigra-

tion Act 1917), though it appears to the Secretary

of Labor that such alien was suffering from a

dangerous and/or contagious disease at the time

of embarkation, and that the existence of such

disease may have been discovered by competent

medical examination at the point of foreign em-

barkation.

IV.

That the Court erred in holding that under the

facts set forth in plaintiff's second amended com-

plaint, it could not go behind the finding of the

Secretary of Labor that plaintiff was liable to fine.

V.

That the Court erred in holding and determining

that plaintiff take nothing by the cause of action

set forth in its second amended complaint herein.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays thai said judg-

ment be reversed.
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Dated, Iloiiolnlu, 'I\ II., Fchniary 28, 11)27.

JJOLLAH STEAMSiUl* LINE, :i Coipu-

latioii,

Plaintiff Above Named.

By THOMPSON, CATllCAirr & BKKHE,
(S.) F. E. THOMPSON,
(S.) E. H. HEEBE,

Its Attonieys. [52]

[Endorsed]: Filed Feby. 28/27, at 9 oVloek and

— Tninutes A. M. [53]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

WRIT OF ERROR.

United States of America,—ss.

President of the United States of America, to the

Honorable JOHN T. DeBOLT and the Hon-

orable WILLIAM T. RAWLINS, Judges of

the United States District Court for the Ter-

ritory of Hawaii, GREETING:
Because in the record and proceedings, as also

in the rendition of the judgment on the ])lea which

is in said District Court ))efore you in the case of

Dollar Steamship Line, a Corpornrtion, Plaintiff,

vs. Jeannette A. Hyde, United States Collector

of Customs, Port of Honolulu, Defendant, mani-

fest error has hapi)ened to the great damage of

said plaintiff as is said and ap])ears by the peti-

tion herein

;

We, being willing that error, if any hath been,

should be duly corrected, and full and speedy jus-
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tice done to the parties aforesaid in this behalf,

do command you, if judgTaent be therein given,

that then under your seal, distinctly and openly,

you send the record and proceedings aforesaid,

with all things concerning the same, to the Justices

of the United States Circuit [54] Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit, in the city of San

Francisco, in the State of California, together with

this writ, so as to ha^e the same at the said place

in said court thirty (30) days after this date, that

the record and proceedings aforesaid being in-

spected, the said Circuit Court of Appeals may
cause further to be done therein to correct those

errors what of right, and according to the laws and

customs of the United States, should be done.

WITNESS the Honorable WILLIAM HOW-
ARD TAFT, Chief Justice of the Supreme Court

of the United States this 28th day of February,

A. D. 1927.

ATTEST my hand and seal of i\iQ United States

District Court in and for the Territory of Hawaii,

in the Clerk's office, Honolulu, Territory of Ha-

waii, on the day and year last above written.

[Seal] WM. L. ROSA,
Clerk of the United States District Court for the

Territory of Hawaii.

Allowed this 28th day of February, A. D. 1927.

J. T. DeBOLT,
Judge of tlie United States District Court for the

Territory of Hawaii. [55]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

CITATION ON WHIT OF ERROR.
United States of America,—ss.

The President of the United States of America,

to JEANNETTE A. HYDE, United States

Collector of Customs ixt the Port of Honolulu,

and to the Honorable SANFORD BALLARD
DOLE WOOD, United States District Att(.r-

ney for the District of the Territory of Ha-

waii, Her Attoniey, GREETING:
You are hereby cited and admonished to be and

appear before the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, to be held at the

city of San Francisco, in the State of California,

within thirty (30) days from the date of this writ,

pursuant to a writ of error filed in the Clerk's

office of the United States District Court for the

Territory of Hawaii, wherein Dollar Steamship

Line, a coi7)oration, is plaintiff, and you are de-

fendant in error, to show^ cause, if any there be, why

the jud^nent in said writ of error mentioned

should not be [57] corrected and speedy justice

not be done to the parties in that behalf.

WITNESS the Honorable J. T. DeBOLT,
Judge of the United States District Court for the

Territory of Hawaii, this 28th day of Febi-uaiy,

A. D. 1927.

J. T. DeBOLT,
Judge of the United States District Court for the

Territory of Hawaii.
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Service on behalf of the defendamt herein is

hereby accepted.

SANFORD B. D. WOOD,
United States Attorney for the Territory of Ha-

waii,

Attorney for the Defendant. [58]

[Endorsed]: Filed Feby. 28, 1927, at 9 o'clock

and 50 minutes A. M. [59]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

BOND ON WRIT OF ERROR.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That Dollar Steamship Line, a corporation, as

principal, and United States Fidelity & Guaranty

Company, a corporation organized under the laws

of the Starte of Maryland, as surety, are held and

firmly bound unto Jeannette A. Hyde, United

States Collector of Customs for the port of Hono-

lulu, defendant above named, in the penal sum of

Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) for the payment

of which well aaid truly to be made we bind our-

selves and our respective successors, executors, ad-

ministrators and assigns by these presents.

The condition of this obligation is such that,

—

WHEREAS, on the 28 day of Febmary, 1927,

the above-bounden principal sued out a writ of

error to the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit, from that certain

judgment made and entered in the above-entitled

court and cause on the 21st day of Februiny, 1927,



}'s. Jra)ni(ff( A. // i/flc. 39

hy the TlniKnahlc .1. T. DcI^OLT, Judge of said

(M)iirt,— |(i()]

NOW, THKRKFORK, if said principal shall

])rosocuto said writ to clTcct, and answer all dani-

a^vs and costs if it t'jril to sustain said writ of

error, then this obligation to be void; otherwise

it shall remain in full force and efTect.

WITNESS the hands of the above bounden this

28th day of Febniary, 1927.

DOLLAK* STEAMSHIP LINE, a Corpo-

ration,

Principal.

By (S.) S. W. GOOD,
Its General Agent.

UNITED SI ATKS FIDELITY & GUxVR-

ANTY (^OMPANY,
By (S.) HERMAN LUIS,

Its Attoniey-in-fact,

Surety.

The foregoing bond is approved.

(S.) J. T. DeBOLT,
Judge of the Ignited States District Coui-t for the

Territory of Hawaii. [()!]

[Endorsed]: Filed ^^lardi 1, 1927, at 3 o'clock

and 15 minutes P. M.

Due service by copy of the within praecipe is

hereby admitted.

(S.) SANFORD B. 1). WOOD.
Attorney for Deft.

Honolulu, Hawaii, ^farch 1, 1927. [62]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

To William L. Rosar, Esquire, Clerk of the United

States District Court for the Territory of Ha-
waii :

Pursuant to the writ of error issued in the

above-entitled cause, you are hereby directed to

transmit to the United States Circuit Court of Ap-
pea:ls for the Ninth Circuit, the record, duly certi-

fied, in the above-entitled cause, including the docu-

ments hereinafter referred to:

1. Plaintiff's original complaint herein, dated

July 29, 1926.

2. Demurrer of the defendant, dated August

17, 1926, to said complaint.

3. Ruling of the Honorable J. T. DeBolt, dated

October 4, 1926, on demurrer.

4. Plaintiff's second amended complaint, dated

December 13, 1926.

5. Demurrer of defendant, dated December 23,

1926, to second amended complaint.

6. Ruling of the Honorable J. T. DeBolt, dated

January 22, 1927, on demurrer to second amended

complaint.

7. Election of plaintiff to stand on pleadings,

dated February 21, 1927. [63]

8. Judgment or decree dated February 21, 1927,

and exception,

9. Petition for writ of error and order allow-

ing the same, filed February 28, 1927.
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10. Assi^iinont ol* cn-nis, filed l^'chniary 28,

1927.

11. Writ (.r cii-oi-, tiled Fehniary 2H, 1927.

12. Citation uii writ of error, and acknowlfdj;-

mcnt of service, filed Fehrnarv 28, 1927.

i:J. Bond on wiit of erroi-, tiled February 28,

1927.

14. I'raecipe foi' transcript of record.

15. Clerk's minutes.

16. (VHificate.

Dated, Honolulu, T. IT., ^Ijnch 1, 1927.

DOLLAR STEAMSlilF LINE, a Corpo-

ration,

Plaintitf Above Named.

By THOMPSON, CATHCAllT & BEEBE,
(S.) F. E. THOMPSON,
(S.) E. H. BEEBE,

Its Attorneys. [64]

In the United States District Court for the Terri-

tory of Hawaii.

United States of America,

Territory of Hawaii,—ss.

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK U. S. DISTRICT
COURT TO TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

I, Wm. L. Rosa, Clerk of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Territory of Hawaii, do hereby

certify the fore^oinjz: pa^es, numbered from 1 to

65, inclusive, to be a true and complete transcri])t

of the record and proceedings had in said court
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in the above-entitled cause, as the same remains

of record and on file in my office, and I further

certify tha:t I am attaching hereto two original or-

ders enlarging time for docketing case, the original

writ of error and citation and tha^ the costs of the

foregoing transcript of record is $24.20, and that

said amount has been paid to me by the appellants.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto

set my hand and affixed the seal of said court this

14th day of April, A. D. 1927.

[Seal] WM. L. ROSA,
Clerk, United States District Court, Territory of

Hawaii. [65]

[Endorsed] : No. 5129. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Dollar

Steamship Line, a Corporation, Plaintiff in Error,

vs. Jeannette A. Hyde, United States Collector of

Customs, Port of Honolulu, Defendant in Error.

Transcript of Record. Upon Writ of Error to the

United States District Court of the Territory of

Hawaii.

Filed April 23, 1927.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.

By Paul P. O'Brien,

Deputy Clerk.



No. 5129
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(Etrnttt (Enurt nf Afippals
3Fnr tlir ?Ciulh (Cirntit

Dollar Steamstttp T.ine, a corporation,

Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

Jeaxkttk a. Hyde, T'nitod States Collector

of Custoius, Port of Honolulu,

Defendant in Error.

H-

BRIEF ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF IN ERROR.

Upon Writ of Error to the Ignited States District

Court of the I'crritori/ of lliuraii.

TIIOMPSOX, (WTIKWKT ^: HEF:HF:

P. E. Thouipson

E. H. r.cchc

M. H. Easton.

2-i:? raniphcll IJlock, F i L E
Honolulu, T. IL. SEP 17 I

Attorneus for Plaintiff inErr<n\
^ ' ' F. 6. MONC^
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Dollar Stea!msttip Line, a corporation,

Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

.Ikankttk a. IIvKi:, Uiiilcd Statos Collector

of Customs, Port of Iloiioluiu,

Defendant in Error.

BRIEF ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF IN ERROR.

STATEMENT OF FACTS.

Tn this action tbe Dollar Steamship Lino son.iiht rr-

covery of a fine of one thousand dollars ($1000.00) im-

posed ui)on it l)v the (U'fendant as Collector of Customs

at the port of Honolulu, the amount of the fine and a

forty dollar ($10.00) alien transportation charge hav-

ing been paid under protest and involuntarily.

To the second amended complaint (K. i)p. 17 22) a

general demurrer was interposed and sustained with

an exception reserved (R. p. 20). An election to stand

upon the pleadings was thereui)on made (R. p. 20) and

the court below entered judgment, dismissing the ac-

tion with costs (R. pp. :^o, :n).

The petition for writ of error and assignment of er-

rors was served, filed and allowed a writ of error

and citation thereunder issued ( R. p]i. .'V2-:i7).



The facts alleged in the complaint and admitted by

demurrer are briefly as follows

:

On November 26th, 1925, the plaintiff corporation's

steamer "President Lincoln" arrived at the port of

Honolulu enroute from Yokohama to San Francisco

with one Seiichi Yamate on board as a steerage pas-

senger for hire, he having embarked at Yokohama and

being bound for Honolulu. Yamate was an alien hold-

ing a permit to re-enter the United States. He had

been a resident of the Territory of Hawaii and domi-

ciled therein for eighteen years continuously, the resi-

dence and domicile having been unrelinquished, and

was returning after a temporary absence abroad of

approximately three months.

Upon arrival at the port of Honolulu the alien pas-

senger was landed but after examination refused ad-

mittance for the alleged reason that he was afflicted

with a loathsome and/or dangerous contagious disease.

The defendant, as Collector of Customs, purporting to

act under the provisions of Section 9 of the "Immigra-

tion Act of 1917" as amended by Section 26 of the

"Immigration Act of 1924" and despite the fact that

the alien was returning to an unrelinquished United

States domicile in excess of seven consecutive years'

duration and despite the proviso to Section 9 of said

Act, reading:

"That nothing contained in this section shall

be construed to subject transportation companies
to a fine for bringing to ports of the United States

aliens Avho are by any of the provisos or excep-

tions to Section o of this Act exempted from the

excluding provisions of said section,"

and the proviso to said Section 3, reading

:
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"That aliens rctmniiin alter a temporary al)

seiice to an nnicliniinishrd rnited States domi-

cile of seven consecutive years may Ix' admitted in

tlje dis<Tetion (tf tlie Scci-etary of Lahor. and un-

der smli conditions as he may prescribe,"

imposed against the t lansportation comi)any, phiin-

titV in error lierein, a tine of one thousand (h)llars

($10()().()()) and transportation costs amounting; to

forty doUars ($40.00) ; and refused to jjrant clearance

papers to the ^'President Lincoln" until payment there-

of had been made. The comi)laint allejjes that the fine

was illejrally imposed and collected and was paid under

duress. (K. pp. 17-21.)

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS.

T.

That the Court erred in sustaining the demurrer of

the defendant to the second amended complaint of the

plaint ifl* and in ordering judgment for the defendant.

II.

That the Court erred in entering judgment for the

defendant and against the plaintiff.

III.

That the Court erred in holding and determining

that the i)laintift', Dollar Steamship Line, was subject

to the tine or penalty provided for by Section 2(5 of the

"Immigration Act of 11)24", for bringing to the Ignited

States an alien returning after a temi)orary absence to

an unrelin(]uished I'nited States domicile of seven (7)

consecutive years (Seventh proviso. Sec. .*^, Immigra-

tion Act, 1917), though it appears to the Secretary of



Labor that sucli alien was suffering from a dangerous

and/or contagious disease at the time of embarkation,

and that the existence of such disease may have been

discovered by competent medical examination at the

point of foreign embarkation.

IV.

That the Court erred in holding that under the facts

set forth in plaintiff's second amended complaint, it

could not go behind the finding of the Secretary of

Labor that plaintiff was liable to fine.

V.

That the Court erred in holding and determining

that plaintiff take nothing by the cause of action set

forth in its second amended complaint herein. (R.

pp. 33-34.)

ARGUMENT.

The question involved, that is, whether a carrier is

liable to fine under the facts admitted and hereinafter

set forth, is of the utmost importance to all carriers by

water operating vessels between the United States and

foreign ports. It arises by virtue of these admitted

facts: The carrier in question returned from a tem-

porary absence abroad, to an unrelinquished United

States domicile of eighteen (18) consecutive years, an

alien, the Secretary of Labor, upon such return, deter-

mining that the alien was afflicted with a dangerous

contagious disease which should have been discovered

by competent medical examination at the point of for-

eign embarkation.



The fiiio in question was assessed by reason of tlie

provisions ol" Section 1) of tlie **Ininii«^ration Act of

1!)17", as amended i)y Section 2(1 of the "Inimij^ration

Act of l!)L'l", such section reading:::

"That it shall he unlawful for any person, in-

cluding any transportation company, other than
railway lines enterinj'- the Tnited States from
foreign contiji^uous territory, or tlie owner, master,

a«::ent, or consij^nee of any vessel to brinj; to the

United States either from a foreij^n country or

any insular i)ossession of the United States any
alien atllicted with idiocy, insanity, imbecility,

feeblemindedness, epileps}^ constitutional psycho-

])athic inferiority, chronic alcoholism, tuberculosis

in any form, or a loathsome or dangerous con-

ta<j:ious disease, and if it shall appear to the satis-

faction of the Secretary of Lalxu- than any alien so

brought to the United States was alllicted with any
of the said diseases or disabilities at the time of

foreifjn embarkation, and that the existence of

such disease or disability miijht have been detected
by means of a comi)etent medical examination at
such time, such person or transportation company,
or the master, airent, owner, or consijjnee of any
such vessel shall pay to the collector of customs of

the customs district in which the port of arrival is

located the sum of $1,000, and in addition a sum
ecpial to that paid by such alien for his transporta-
tion from the initial point of departure, indicated
in his ticket, to the i)ort of arrival for each and
every violation of the provisions of this section,

such latter sum to be delivered by the collector of

customs to the alien on whose account assessed.

It shall also be unlawful Utv any sucli person ti>

bi'iuii to any port of the United States any alien

attlicted with auy mental defect other than those
above specitically named, or ]>hysical defect of a
nature which may alVect his ability to earn a liv-

injr, as contemi)lated in section '^ of this act, and if

it shall appear to the satisfaction of the Secretary
of Labor that any alien so brought to the United
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States was so afflicted at the time of foreign em-
barkation, and that the existence of such mental
or physical defect might have been detected by
means of a competent medical examination at

such time, such person shall pay to the collector of

customs of the customs district in which the port

of arrival is located the sum of $250., and in addi-

tion a sum equal to that paid by such alien for his

transportation from the initial point of departure,

indicated in his ticket, to the port of arrival, for

each and every violation of this provision, such
latter sum to Ibe delivered by the collector of cus-

toms to the alien for Avhose account assessed. It

shall also be unlawful for any such person to bring
to any port of the United States any alien who is

excluded b,y the provisions of section 3 of this act

because unable to read, or who is excluded by the

terms of section 3 of this act as a native of that

portion of the Continent of Asia and the islands

adjacent thereto described in said section, and if

it shall ajjpear to the satisfaction of the Secre-

tary of Labor that these disabilities might have
been detected by the exercise of reasonable pre-

caution prior to the departure of such aliens from
a foreign port, such person shall pay to the col-

lector of customs of the customs district in which
the port of arrival is located the sum of $1,000,

and in addition a sum equal to that paid by such
alien for his transportation from the initial point

of departure, indicated in his ticket, to the port of

arrival, for each and every violation of this pro-

vision, such latter sum to be delivered by the col-

lector of customs to the alien on whose account
assessed.

" 'If a fine is imjiosed under this section for

the bringing of an alien to the United States,

and if such alien is accompanied by another
alien who is excluded from admission by the

last proviso of section 18 of this act, the per-

son liable for such fine shall pay to the col-

lector of customs, in addition to such fine but



as a part tlicn'of, a sum o(jual to tlial paid l»y

such a(('(Uiij)aiiyiii<i alien loi* liis Iraiisporla-

(ioii Iroin his initial point of departure indi-

cated in liis ticket to tli<* point of an-ival, sncli

sum to he delivered hy the collector of customs

to the accompanying^ alien when dej)orted.

And no vessel shall he i^ranted cleai-ance

])a|)ers pendin*; tlie (U'termination of the

(luestion of the liahility to the payment of

such tines, or while the lines remain uni)aid,

nor shall such tines he remitted or refunded:

Pi'ovided, that clearance^ may he jiranted prior

to the determination of such (piestions upon
the (U'posit of a sum sullicient to cover such

lines or of a bond with suthcient surety to se-

cure the payment thereof, api)roved hy the col-

lector of customs '
"

"PROVIDED FUKTllEK, THAT X()TIllX(^i

CONTAiyEl) IX THIS SECTION SHALL IJE

(X)XSTKrED TO SUIUKC^T TKAXSPORTA-
TlOX CO^MTAXIES TO A FIXE FOR IMHXO-
IXO TO PORTS OF THE UXITED STATES
ALIENS WHO APE PY AXY OF THE PRO-
VISOS OR EXC^EPTIOXS TO SECTIOX ;j OF
THIS ACT EXEMPTED FROM THE EXCLUD-
IX(; PROVISIOXS OF SAID SECTION."

(4:{ Stat. L. Kit), Fed. Stat. Ann. 1024 Supp.

p. 50, sec. 2().)

The proviso beinj? general, that is, a})plyin<»- to all

that precedes it rather than any particular clause (u*

portion thereof, it follows as a matter of common un-

derstandinti^ that certain diseased or defective aliens

may be brought to the United States without subject-

ing transportation companies to the tine j)rovided in

the body of the section. The class of persons that may
be brought the i)roviso settles by reference to ''dlirns

irlio arc hy (ini/ of thr provisos or cj'ccptions to ISrction



3 of this Act exempted from the excluding provisions

of said section.'^

Section 3 of the "Immigration Act of 1917", to whicli

section we are referred by Section 9 above mentioned,

excludes from admission to the United States idiots,

imbeciles, feeble-minded persons, professional beg-

gars, vagrants, j)ersons afflicted with a loathsome or

dangerous contagious disease, persons mentally or

physically defective when the defect maj^ impair the

ability to earn a living, those having committed a

felon}^, and persons who believe in or advocate the

overthrow by force or violence of the government of the

United States or any organized government, and many

other classes of the same general character. There are

many provisos to Section 3, some of them specifically

referring only to the paragraph or paragraphs preced-

ing them, while others, without question, are provisos

to the entire section. The seventh proviso to Section

3 reads as follows

:

"PKOVIDED FUETHER, THAT ALIENS
RETURNING AFTER A TEMPORARY AB-
SENCE TO AN UNRELINQUISHED UNITED
STATES DOMICILE OF SE\'EN CONSECU-
TIVE YEARS, MAY BE ADMITTED IN THE
DISCRETION OF THE SECRETARY OF LA-
BOR, AND UNDER SUCH CONDITIONS AS
HE MAY PRESCRIBE."

(39 Stat. L. 875, Fed. Stat. Ann.
1918 Supp. pg. 214.)

Aliens coming within the purview of this proviso are

not excluded and constitute a class exempted from the

excluding provisions.

"Exempt" is defined by Webster as "free or released



Iroiii some IiMl)ility In whicli others are subject; ex-

(•('i)t<Ml liniii iho oiKM'ation or l)iir(l('ii of some law; re-

leased; free, elear, privileji^ed, etc."

Aliens who are retiiriiinjij to ;ui niireliiujuished I 'nil

e<l States domicile of the |>roi)er duration of time are

"fi*ee or released from some liabilily to which others

are subject, excej)ted from the oj)era(ion or burden of

souu' law", and are therefore exempted from the ex-

chulinji ])rovisions. The alien in (|uestion was pos-

sessed of a return permit which, under the law—Sec-

tion 10 sudi vision F—as alle«»;ed by the comi)laint,

shows thai he was returniui:; from a temporary visit

abroad and the allegations of the comj)Iaint, as admit-

ted by denuirrer, clearly place him within the condi-

tions of the proviso.

There is no attemi)t in the lanji:ua2:e of the seventh

proviso to Section .*5 to distinguish in any way between

diseased, feeble-minded, illiterate or jdiysically de-

fective aliens, and the only condition imposed is that

such aliens must be returninjj to their former United

States domicile to i)resent their case for readmission

to the Secretary of Labor if the transportation com-

pany is to avoid payment of a fine.

It must be admitted that a blind person would be

excluded under the «i:eneral provisions of Section .'*», and

that under the provisions of Section 1) the physical de-

fect would be of a nature which would subject the trans-

jiorlalion company to a fine for attemptinj]: to i)rovide

means of entrance for such an alien to the Uniled

States,—but under the seventh proviso, if a blind alien

were transported by a carrier to a ])ort of the United

States on the ground that he was returning to an un-
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relinquislied domicile, there would certainly be no fine

imposed upon the carrier whether or not that alien was

able to establish, to the satisfaction of the Secretary

of Labor, that he was possessed of sufftcient means so

that his disability would not make him a charge upon

this country.

For the sake of bringing before the Court a specific

example, we mention the following case, which will no

doubt apply to hundreds in the territory and to hun-

dreds of thousands of others in the United States

:

Y. Ahin has lived in the territory for many years.

He is one of the so-called "Chinese monied princes".

He is now blind or practically so. Under the de-

fendant's theory, if followed to its logical conclusion,

should Ahin go to China for a temporary visit, he

would be precluded from returning to the United

States, his ailment being one which would prevent his

earning a living, and the transportation line that

brought him would be liable to fine. The conclusion

is, of course, ridiculous, for upon proof of his financial

condition, the Secretary would, no doubt, admit him

under the seventh proviso to Section 3 "as an alien re-

turning after a temporary absence to an unrelinquish-

ed United States domicile of seven consecutive j^ears."

And if Ahin, though blind, can return to his domicile

and without question be admitted by the Secretarj^ of

Labor in the exercise of the discretion granted him

under the Act, what provision is there which renders a

carrier liable if it return him sick rather than blind?

The closest scrutiny of the Act fails to reveal anj^ at-

tempt to discriminate in any manner whatsoever be-

tween the various degrees of sickness or disability, and
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we siilmiit lluit there was no intent on tlie pai-t of

( 'on«(i"ess to penalize carriers I'oi- ret iirniiiLr to tlieir

iinn»Iin(|uishe(l United State-s doniieile aliens, even

tlioni!:h ill.

Daily we witness tlie ininiij^ration authorities ])ei"-

niitting the landing n\' retiiriiinjj^ resident aliens sul-

reiinji: from trachoma, a dan'!:(»r()us contagious disease,

and their admission to Hawaii subsecpient to cure, and

we find the rules promul<j:ate(l l»y tlie Department of

Labor, authorizing such action (see Kule HI Rules of

July 1, 102:)).

When the Department has construed the law to i)er-

mit the i)romul<2:ation of such a rule, it can hardly be

said that the policy of the law is a.s:aiust the brinjj^ing

of cei-tain specitied aliens who are diseased to our

shores. And the Court may considei- the construction

placed on the law b}' the Department.

(Vol. II Ency. U. S. Sup. Ct. Rep. p. i:^8.)

The (piestion in this particular case does not have to

do with any one disease or disability, nor is it one of

admission or rejection, but is rather the construction

of the statute and that construction must proceed ir-

respective of the particular thinu beinir considered.

The Secretary of Labor is vested with untrammelled

discretion (that this is true, note the fact that the pro-

viso does not start with the usual '*if otherwise admis-

sible") which he may exercise in the case of certain

aliens who have been residents or dcuniciled in the

Ignited States for more than seven (7) years. The only

possible way in which that discretion may be exercised

is by having the alien returned to a United States port
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and there allowing Mm to present Ms case to the Sec-

retary. This principle has very recently been an-

nounced in the case of,

—

Compagnie Francaise De Navigation A Vaperu
V. Elting, Collector of Customs, Circuit Court
of Appeals, Second Circuit, May 9, 1927, No.
287 (Fed. Rep. Adv. Sheets, Vol. 19 (2d) No.

6 at page 773).

In this case the transportation company was fined

for bringing to the port of New York an alien of Itali-

an nationality who claimed to be returning from a tem-

porary visit abroad to an unrelinquished American

domicile. The fine was paid under protest and the

action brought to recover it. The regulations promul-

gated pursuant to the statute under consideration

provided that if the alien resided outside of the Unit-

ed States for more than six months he was presumed

to have relinquished his domicile but that that pre-

sumption might be rebutted by evidence to the con-

trary. In this case the alien failed to establish, to

the satisfaction of the appropriate officer, that he had

not abandoned his domicile, and was ordered deport-

ed and the steamship company fined. The contention

of the plaintiff was that under the Act the alien was

given the privilege of presenting evidence to overcome

the presumption and that the evidence could only be

presented to an immigration official after the alien

had arrived in this country, and hence, he Avas entitled

to come to a port of the United States for such purpose

and that the transportation company had the privi-

lege of bringing him without incurring any penalty,



13

irrospoctivc of whether or not tlio alien initrlit I:iter l)e

(h'poitcd. Tlic conrl said :

"Wo think this position is well taken. To hold
that the transportation conijjany acts at its ])eril

in lMin*i;in<:: an alien wlio ciainis to he exempt
Ironi the (jnota wonld be a practical denial to the
alien of the i)rivilei::e <d' ])resenlin<i; his evidence.

Xo company wonld brin*^ him on snch terms. To
liohl that the company mnst investijj:ate the merits
of the alien's claim, and is j)rivile<^ed to bring
only snch aliens as it thinks onj^ht to be admitted,
is to nuike it, rather than the immi<i:ration otti-

cials, pass upon the alien's claim, which is not
the i)rivilege granted the alien by the i-egnlation.

"Diligent incpiiry wonld liave disclosed merely
the facts which the alien submitted at his hear-

ing, and the suHiciency of tliose facts liad to be
passed upon by the immigration ollicials at such
hearing before the alien's admissibility could be
ascertained

"It can scarcely be sui)posed that Congress in-

tended to ])enalize a vessel owner for transport-

ing an alien i)rivileged to come for sucli i>nrpose.

The puri)ose is not to be imputed, in the absence
of ])lain language, to penalize an act innocent of

intentional wrong."

Fed. Kep. Advance Sheets, Vol. 1!>, iM.,

No. 6, at page 774.

The judgment of the lower court in af!irming the

assessment of the tine was reversed and the cause

remanded with directions to enter judgment for the

plaintiff.

The cited case is the instant case. Here we have

Congress saying in plain English to carriers, "If you

bring to our shores certain defective aliens you shall

pay a penalty of Ouo Thousand Dollars, but no pen-
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alty shall be paid if these defectives come within a

certain category."

Congress then says: "Within this category, are

certain aliens who have been domiciled here for a

continuous period of seven years and are returning.

Bring them, that the Secretary may admit or reject

them in his discretion."

To hold that the above is not what Congress says is

to subvert the English language and to nullify both

provisos, for no carrier would return such aliens if

admission Avere a condition precedent to non-liability.

CONCLUSION.

There is no question in this case of the good faith

of the carrier. The admitted allegations of the com-

plaint (R. par. V. pp. 18-19) show that the utmost

care was employed on its behalf by different examin-

ing physicians to assure the particular alien's free-

dom from disease at the time of foreign embarkation

and during the period of travel. We believe this was

in excess of the requirements of the statute but it

amply demonstrates the innocence of intentional

wrong.

The statute under which the fine in question was

assessed is highly penal in its nature. Its obvious and

natural meaning is as above outlined, and this mean-

ing, we feel, should be confirmed by this Court.

It is, therefore, respectful!}' contended that the de-

murrer to the second amended complaint should have
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been overruled ari<l sncli oiiN r slioiihl Im* entered liere-

iii.

Dated al Iloiioliilti, T. II., this 7 ^ ^ day of

September, A. I). HIL7.

IlespectfuUy submitted,

THOMPSON, (\\TII(\\UT .V: HEEHE,

V. K. Thompson,
E. H. lieebe,

M. H. Kaston,

Attorneys for PIdint iff in Error.
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STATE>[ENT OF THE CASE

Tliis is an a})i)oal from the (Weree of the District

Court of Hawaii sustaininj^: the denuirrer to appel-

lant's seeond amended eom})laint. The apj)ellant

elected in o})en court not to further amend its com-

plaint, and later filed a written election not to amend

its second amended complaint and to stand on the

plead in u:s. (R. pp. 30, 31).

The second amended comi)laint alleges that on or

about the 17th day of November, 1925, at Yokohama,

Japan, one Seiichi Yamate, an alien holding a permit

to re-enter the United States, beiug a resident of and



having been domiciled in the Territory of Hawaii for

a continuous period of eighteen years, and said resi-

dence and domicile having been unrelinquished, and

said alien being desirous of returning thereto after a

temporar}^ absence abroad of approximately three

months, became a passenger for hire aboard the S. S.

"President Lincoln," said vessel being bound for the

port of San Francisco, California, via the port of

Honolulu, and owned and operated by appellant.

That on the 26th day of September, 1925, said vessel

arrived at the port of Honolulu, the destination of

said alien, and he was refused admission to the United

States for the reason that he was afflicted with a

loathsome and/or contagious disease, to wit, leprosy;

that "it appeared to the satisfaction of the Secretary

of Labor that said alien, so brought to the United

States as aforesaid, was afflicted with said disease at

the time of foreign embarkation as aforesaid, and

thereupon said secretary determined that said disease

might have been detected by means of a competent

medical examination at said port of embarkation."

(Paragraph VII, second amended complaint) (R. p.

20).

That upon such determination by said Secretary as

aforesaid, the defendant, as Collector of Customs at

the port of Honolulu, imposed against the plaintiff a

fine of $1,000.00 and the additional sum of $40.00 for

the transportation of said alien from Yokohama, the

initial point of departure to the port of Honolulu;

that upon the imposition of the fine the plaintiff, to

effect clearance of the vessel in question, paid to said
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(IcfciidMiit as Collector as aforesaid under diiicss and

jiidtest, said line (d* ^1,041), i'm tlie recovn-y of wliieh

sum this action was instituted. The .ni'ounds (d" de-

inmici' aic that the complaint does not state a cause

(d' action.

AKGUMKNT

ALL ALIENS AFFLICTED WITH A LOATHSOME OR DANGEROUS
CONTAGIOUS DISEASE ARE MANDATORILY AND UNCON
DITIONALLY EXCLUDED FROM ADMISSION TO THE UNITED
STATES.

Section ;') <d' th«' Innnii^ratiou Act of 1917 provides:

"That the fnljowini; classes of aliens shall be
excluded from admission into the United States:

all * * * persons afflicted with tuberculosis

in any form or with a loathsome oi* dangerous
eontagious disease * * * ."

II

THE PROHIBITION AGAINST THE ADMISSION OF ALIENS APPLIES
TO ALL ALIENS IRRESPECTIVE OF PREVIOUS RESIDENCE OE
DOAUCILE IN THE UNITED STATES.

The statute law of the United States, prior to the

Aet of 1903, relating to the ex(dusion of aliens, out-

side of eontract laborers, was directed solely against

alien innnigrants and not against alien residents re-

turning after a temporary absence.

Moffitt V. United States, (C. C. A. 9) 128 Fed.

o75

;

Lapina v. Williams, 232 U. S., 78, 86.

The act of V.H).] brought together in one Act the

scattered legislatit)n theretofore enacted in regard to
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the immigration of aliens into the United States and

deliberate!}^ eliminated the word "immigrant" and

other equivalent qualifying phrases, and made the

prohibition against the admission of aliens to apply

to all aliens whose history, conditions and characteris-

tics brought them within the descriptive clauses, ir-

respective of any qualification arising out of a previ-

ous residence or domicile within this country.

Lapina v. Williams, 232 U. S. 78, 91

;

Hee Fuk Yuen (C. C. A. 9) 273 Fed. 10, 13.

The Act of 1924 defines the term "Alien" as fol-

lows:

"Sec. 28, as used in this Act

—

(b) The term 'alien' includes any individual

not a native-born or naturalized citizen of the

United States, but this definition shall not be
held to include Indians of the United States not
taxed, nor citizens of the islands under the juris-

diction of the United States."

It is said in Lapina v. Williams, supra, on page 92,

that "none of the excluded classes (with the possible

exception of contract laborers, whose exclusion de-

pends upon somewhat different considerations) would

be any less undesirable if previously domiciled in the

United States." On page 91 of the same case the

Court said:

"Upon a review of the whole matter, we are
satisfied that Congress, in the Act of 1903, suffi-

ciently expressed, and the Act of 1907 reiterated

the i)urpose of applying its prohiliition against
the admission of aliens, * * * to all aliens

whose history, condition or characteristics brought
them within the descriptive clauses, irrespective



of any (jiialification arisiii<!: out of a provioiis

residence or doinieile in tins eounti'v."

In the case of Lriris r. Frirk, 2'X\ U. S., 291 at 296,

297, the Conrt, after a})i)i(>vin.i;- tlie decision in Lapiua

V. Willidms, sn])ra, hehl that tlie faet that an alien

had heeii dnniieiled for six years ov more in this

eonntry, he remaining;" still an alien, did not elian^o

liis statns so as to exenii)t him from the oi)eration of

tile Immigration Aet; and that if he departed from

the eonntry, even for a hrief space of time, and on

reentei'ini;' hronuht into the eonntry a woman for the

pnrpose of })rostitntion or other immoral i)urposcs,

he snhjected himself to the operation of the clanses

of the Act that relate to the exclnsion and deportation

of ali(Mis, the same as if he had had no previons resi-

(h'lice or domicile in this country.

The construction adopted in Jjopina r. Williams,

supra, and Lewis v. Frick, supra, is applicable in the

instant case. If Seiichi Yamate had returned to the

United States free from the disease of leprosy, he

mi.nht have reasonably expected to be readmitted, but

returning aftlicted with lei)rosy, which brought him

within an excluded class, he could not expect to be

permitted to reenter.

Hrr Fuk Yuen, supra, states the rule, that the fact

that an alien acquires a lawful domicile in the United

States does not give him a status which entitles him

as a matter of right to return after a temporary

absence from the couutrv.
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A PERMIT TO REENTER THE UNITED STATES AUTHORIZED BY
THE ACT OF 1924, CONFERS NO RIGHTS OF REENTRY.

Section 10 of the Act of 1924 authorizing the issu-

ance of the permit, in subdivision (f) thereof, limits

the effect thereof as follows:

*'A permit issued under this section shall have
no effect under the immigration laws, except to

show that the alien to whom it is issued is return-

ing from a temporary visit abroad; but nothing
in this Section shall be construed as making such
permit the exclusive means of establishing that

the alien is so returning."

IV

CONGRESS, LEGISLATING UPON MATTERS WITHIN ITS CONTROL,

MAY IMPOSE OBLIGATIONS AND SANCTION THEIR ENFORCE-
MENT BY MONEY PEI^ALTIES AND GIVE TO EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS POWER TO ENFORCE SUCH PENALTIES.

The above rule has been so completely affirmatively

settled as to require only reference to some of the

decided cases.

Oceanic Steam Navigation Co. v. Stranahan,

214 U. S. 320, 338-342;

C. B. & Q. By. V. United States, 220 U. S.,

559, 578;

Selective Draft Cases, 245 U. S., 366, 389;

United States v. New York S. S. Co., 269 U. S.

304, 313;

McDowell V. Heiner, 9 F2, 120.



DECISIONS OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS. ACTING WITHIN POWERS
EXPRESSLY CONFERRED BY CONGRESS, AND DUE PROCESS

OF LAW, AND ARE CONCLUSIVE AGAINST ANY INQUIRY BY

THE COURTS.

In Foufi (JmnHi Ihtji r. Xdf/h , 17 F2, 2)51, tliis court

said: '** * * the statute law and the plain hold-

ing: of all the (h'eisioiis * say that the findings

of the ininiigration officers on questions of fact affect-

inu; the v'v^ht of an alien to enter tliis country ai*e con-

clusive a.i^ainst any iiKjuii-y l)y tlie courts, and * *

that tiiere is no la<k of due j)roeess of law."

\au\ Jew V. United States, (C. C. A. 9) 196

Fed. TI^G, 740;

Lewis V. Frick, 23.^ U. S. 21:).

In construing Section 9 of the Aet of 1903, identical

in all i)arts material with Section 26 of the Act of

1924, in imposing a penalty upon a transportation

company for bringing excluded aliens into this coun-

try, the court in Oceanic Nar if/at ion Company v.

Sfranalian. su]>ra, at i)age 342, says:

*'In view of the absolute }>ower of Congress
over the right to bring aliens into the United
States we think it may not be doubted that the

act would be beyond all question constitutional if

it forl)ade the introduction of aliens afflicted with
contagious diseases, and, as a condition to the

right to bring in aliens, imposed upon every ves-

sel bringing them in, as a condition of the right

to do so, a iKMialty for every alien brought to the

United States afflicted with the prohibited dis-

ease, wholly without reference to when and where
the disease originatt'd. It must then follow that

the provision contained in the statute is of coui*se
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valid, since it only subjects the vessel to the
exaction when, as the result of the medical ex-
amination for which the statute provides, it ap-
pears that the alien immigrant afflicted with the
prohibited malady is in such a stage of the dis-

ease that it must in the opinion of the medical
officer have existed and been susceptible of dis-

covery at the point of embarkation."

United States v. New York S. S. Co., supra.

Section 9 of the Immigration Act of 1917 as

amended by Section 26 of the Act of 1924, reads as

follows

:

''That it shall be unlawful for any person, in-

cluding any transportation company other than
railway lines entering the United States from
foreign contiguous territory, or the owner, master,
agent, or consignee of any vessel to bring to the
United States either from a foreign country or
any insular possession of the United States any
alien afflicted with idiocy, insanity, imbecility,

feeble-mindedness, epileiDsj'-, constitutional i^sycho-
pathic inferiority, chronic alcoholism, tuberculosis
in any form, or a loathsome or dangerous con-
tagious disease, and if it shall ajDpear to the satis-

faction of the Secretary of Labor that any alien
so brought to the United States was afflicted with
am^ of the said diseases or disabilities at the time
of foreign embarkation, and that the existence of
such disease or disability might have been de-
tected by means of competent medical examina-
tion at such time, such person or transportation
company, or the master, agent, owner, or con-
signee of any such vessel shall pay to the collec-

tor of customs of the customs district in which
the port of arrival is located the sum of $1,000,

and in addition a sum equal to that paid by such
alien for his transportation from the initial point
of departure, indicated in his ticket, to the port
of arrival for each and ever}^ violation of the



])r()visi()iis of tliis section, such latter sum to be
(Iclivci-ed hy tlie collector of customs to the alien

on wiiose account assessed."

VI

THE SEVENTH PROVISO TO SECTION 3 OF THE ACT OF 1917 DOES
NOT EXEMPT FROM THE EXCLUDING PROVISIONS OF THAT
SECTION RETURNING ALIENS WHOSE HISTORY, CONDITION
OR CHARACTERISTICS BRING THEM WITHIN THOSE PRO-

VISIONS EXCLUDING ALIENS FROM THIS COUNTRY.

Section If) of the Act of 1917 provides that proper

immi<;ration officials shall board all incomiui;- vessels

and there insjx'ct all aliens brought in or order a

tem})orary removal of such aliens for an examination

foi- the i)urp()se of determining;' the aliens' eligibility

to entei' the United States. Such a temporary re-

moval shall not be considercil a landing;'. Section 16

provides that a mental and i)hysical examination of

all arrivini;- aliens shall be made by medical officers

of the United States Public Health Service, who shall

certify for the information of the inunigration officers

and the boards of special inquir}' any and all physical

and mental defects or diseases observed by said

medical officers in any such aliens. This section fur-

ther provides for an inspection, other than the

physical and mental examination, by inmiigrant in-

spectors, of aliens, including those seeking admission

or readmission to or the privilege of passing through

or residing in the United States and every alien who
may not appear to the examining immigrant inspector

at the port of arrival to be clearly and beyond a

doubt entitled to land shall be detained for examina-

tion in relation thereto by a board of special inquiry.

In event of rejection by the board, in all cases where
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an appeal to the Secretary of Labor is permitted, the

alien shall be so informed and shall have the right

to be represented by counsel or other advisor on

such appeal. Section 17 provides that in every case

where an alien is excluded by the board of special

inquiry the decision shall be final unless reversed on

appeal to the Secretary of Labor: "Provided, that

the decision of a board of special inquiry shall be

based upon the certificate of the examining medical

officer and, except as provided in Section Twenty-one

hereof, shall be final as to the rejection of aliens af-

fected with tuberculosis in any form or with a loath-

some or dangerous contagious disease * * * ."

Section 21 provides that any alien liable to be excluded

* * * because of physical disability other than

tuberculosis or a loathsome or dangerous contagious

disease may, if otherwise admissible, nevertheless be

admitted in the discretion of the Secretary of Labor

upon giving a suitable and proper bond holding the

United States, states and territories, etc., harmless

against such alien becoming a jDublic charge. Section

18 provides that no alien certified, as provided in

Section 16, to be suffering from tuberculosis or from

a loathsome or dangerous contagious disease, other

than one of quarantinable nature, shall be permitted

to land for medical treatment thereof in any hospital

in the United States, unless the Secretary of Labor is

satisfied that to refuse treatment would be inhumane

or cause unusual hardship or suffering, in which case

the alien shall be treated in the hospital under the

supervision of the immigration officials at the expense

of the vessel transporting him.
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The j)urp(>S(' of tlic cji.-K-tiMOit of tlinsc j)rnvisioiis

('X<'lu(liii;j: aliens anii<'t(Ml witli a loatlisoiiic <n- daiiixcr-

ous (Mintauioiis disease, and providing; lor tlie inijM)si-

ti(tn ol' a penally on vessels l>rin;;in«4- to this country

aliens so atllieted was and is t<» nuard a;{;ainst the

dangers arisinj^ from the wron^rui taking; nu hoard

of aliens so afllieted, not only to other passengers

of the vessel, hut ultimately U) the ])eople of the

United States, a danger aiising from the j)ossil)le ad-

mission of aliens who might have eontraeted the dis-

ease during the voyage, and yet he entitled to admis-

sion because apparently not altlicted with the pro-

hihited disease, owing to the fact that time had not

ela])sed I'oi- the manifestation of its presence.

From those i>ro\isions and the decisions it is

plainly evident that the intention and purpose of

Congress in so enacting was to positively and jjcr-

manently exclude all aliens so afflicted.

The immigration statutes are replete with excep-

tions and provisos permitting members of many ex-

cluded classes to land under conditions stated or at

the discretion of the Secretary (d* Labor, but nowhere

is there a proviso or exception favoring the admission

of one afflicted with a loathsome or dangerous con-

tagious disease, nor is there discretionary power given

the Secretary of Labor to permit the landing of an

alien so afflicted save for medical treatment and then

only when refusal would be inhumany or cause un-

usual hardshij) or suffering.

It is the contention (d' ai)i)ellant that the proviso

at the end of Section 9 of the Act of 11)17 (Section 26
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of the Act of 1924) and the Seventh Proviso of Sec-

tion 3 of the Act of 1917 entitle the alien to land and

relieve the transportation comi:>any from the penalty

imposed.

The Seventh Proviso to Section 3 is as follows:

"That aliens returning from a temporary ab-

sence to an unrelinquished United States domicile
of seven consecutive years ma}^ be admitted in

the discretion of the Secretary of Labor, and
under such conditions as he may prescribe."

Section 3 positively, mandatoril}^ and uncondition-

ally excludes aliens afflicted with a loathsome or dan-

gerous contagious disease, and while the immigration

laws in many cases loosen the bonds of exclusion and

grant wide discretionary powers to the Secretary of

Labor to admit members of excluded classes in cases

where he may deem it wise and humane to do so

and under such conditions as he may determine. But

nowhere is there an exception or a proviso favoring

an alien afflicted as is the alien in this case. In those

cases wherein an exception is permitted, and discre-

tion is given the Secretary of Labor relative to ad-

mitting aliens of excluded classes, those afflicted with

a loathsome or dangerous contagious disease are uni-

formly excepted from those favored by such excep-

tions. The Seventh Proviso does not entitle an alien

returning to an unrelinquished domicile as a matter

of right to enter the United States. His entry de-

pends wholly upon the discretion of the Secretar}^ of

Labor. An entry under that proviso can be only a

conditional one and under such conditions as the

Secretary may prescribe. The rule relative to return-
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iiij^ aliens stated in Lnjinut r. Willidnis, supra, and in

LchIs r. Frick. supra, tliat Congress intended tlio

prohibition against the admission of aliens lo a])p]y

to all aliens whose history, condition or (diaraeteristies

brought thf'Ui williiii the descriptive clauses irresi)ec-

tive «d' any (|iiaiilica1 ion arisin*; (»ut (»!' a j)i'e\i()iis i-esi-

dence or domicile in tiiis country, is ch-arly api)lical)le.

Had the alien in tliis case retui'ued to this country

well, mentally and pliysirally, and not tainted or

alllicted with a disease or condition mandatorily ex-

cluding; him, and with nothini;- against him hut his

alienage, lie mi^ht have reasonably exi)ected the Sec-

retary of Labor to admit him. But as he returned

afflicted witii a disease positively and unconditionally

excludinii: any alien from admission as did the alien

in the case of Ij( iris v. Frick, supra, the mere fact

that he had, before going away, acquired a residence

or domicile in this country lie could not have antici-

})ated admission.

VTI

A TRANSPORTATION COMPANY BRINGING IN AN ALIEN OF AN
EXCLUDED CLASS IS SUBJECT TO THE PENALTY PROVIDED
IRRESPECTIVE OF THE ALIEN HAVING PREVIOUSLY ACQUIRED
A DOMICILE WITHIN THIS COUNTRY.

Section [) of the Immigration Act of 1917 as

amended by Section 26 of the Act of 1924 provides:

''Sec. 9. That it shall be unlawful for any
l)erson, including a transi)ortation comi)any, * *

or the ownier, master, agent or consignee of any
vessel to bring to the United States from a
foreign country * * * jmy jiii(>ii afflicted with
* * * tul)erculosis in any form, or a loath-

some or dangerous contagious disease, and if it
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shall appear to the satisfaction of the Secretary
of Labor that any alien so brought to the United
States was afflicted with any of the said diseases

or disabilities at the time of foreign embarkation,
and that the existence of such disease or disability

might have been detected by means of com^Detent
medical examination at such time, such person or

transportation company, or the master, agent,

owner, or consignee of any such vessel, shall pay
to the collector of customs of the customs district

in which the port of arrival is located the sum
of $1,000, and in addition a sum equal to that
paid by such alien for his transportation from
the initial point of departure, indicated in his

ticket, to the port of arrival for each and every
violation of the provisions of this section, such
latter sum to be delivered by the collector of
customs to the alien on whose account assessed."

This section conclusively determines the liability

of the appellant unless relief is had through the

proviso added to the end of that section, which is as

follows

:

"Provided further, that nothing contained in

this Section shall be construed to subject trans-

portation companies to a fine for bringing to ports
of the United States aliens who are by any of

the provisos or exceptions to Section Three hereof
exempted from the excluding provisions of said

section."

The appellant seems to contend that this proviso re-

lieves him from the penalty provided in that section

and this contention seems to be predicated upon the

further contention that the Seventh Proviso to Sec-

tion 3 relieves the returning alien from the exclusion

provisions of that section.

Section 3 positively, mandatorily and uncondition-
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ally oxcliidcs aliens aftli<'t('(l witli a loathsonio or dan-

^('i-(Uis (M)ntaj!:ious disease and exci'v ivt'ei-ciice t<» the

j)r(»visi<>n is (Mniviiiciiij; that tlieic lias l)eeii ii<» inten-

tion on tlir pait of Con^^ress to j)ennit such aliens to

land within the United States. The jiroviso can

limit the seetioii <»nly to the extent that its ])Iain word-

inj^ determines. It says aliens returning to an nn-

relinciuished domicile may he admitted in the discre-

tion of the Secretary of Lahor and nndcr siu-h con-

ditions as he may i)rescril)e. There is no positive

statement in the })roviso that snch returning alien

shall he permitted to land, while Section 3 stiites

positively that he is unconditionally excluded.

Had it been the intention of Congress to give re-

turning aliens an unconditional riglit to land, Congress

might have so enacted.

The court said, in Oceanic Navigatiou Co. v. Sfrana-

liau, supra, page 'XV.\, that resort may ])e had to Senate

rei)orts to dispel ambiguity, if it be conceded. Hut

ambiguity is not conceded. Senate Rej)ort No. W'yl,

(J4th Congress, 1st Session, accomi)anying II. K. 1():>84,

which later In'came the Inmiigration Act of 1917,

says

:

"The proviso conferring discretion ui)on the

Secretary of Labor to readmit aliens who had
gone abi-oad temporarily after declaring their in-

tention to become citizens had been extended to

include aliens not declarants who, after residing
for several consecutive years go abroad tem})or-

arily, the purpose undoubtedly being the same
the Senate had in view when it incorimrated in

H. R. 60G0 a similar provision (see Senate Re-
port )^)"i5, (jlkl Cong. 2nd Session) which was
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dropped in conference to wit, as a 'humane' pro-

vision to permit the readmission to the United
States (under projDer safeguards) of aliens who
have lived here for a long time and whose exclu-

sion after a temporary absence would result in a
peculiar or unusual hardship."

That portion of Senate Report No. 355 above re-

ferred to is as follows:

"As the term 'alien' has been defined in Section

1 of the Act (Act of 1917) and construed with
reference to the Acts of 1903 by the Supreme
Court (Lapina v. Williams, 232 U. S., 78), it

seems only humane to invest the Secretary of
Labor with authority to joermit the readmission
to the United States of aliens who have lived

here for a long time and whose exclusion after a
temporary absence would result in peculiar or
unusual hardship. '

'

It is very evident from these reports that Congress

understood that the excluding provisions of Section 3

included all aliens, those seeking readmission as well

as those seeking admission. Had the understanding

been different there was no need for the proviso. And
the reports show that the intention in investing the

Secretary of Labor with discretionary authority con-

tained in the proviso was to enable him to "permit

the readmission to the United States of aliens who

have lived here for a long time and whose exclusion

after a temporary absence would result in a peculiar

or unusual hardship," and reference was made to the

construction by the court in Lapina v, Williams,

supra.

Senate Report No. 352, sui^ra, in reference to Sec-

tion 9 of the Act of 1917, stated:
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'*This Section 1) of the cxistiiii,^ law witli tlio

ainoiint of tlic line tlicri'iii prc'ScrilMd cliaii^^cd

from $\i)i) to $'J(M) and witlj the addition (A' pro-

visos for the ini])osition of a $25 Hnr for the

briiij^inu: of a dcrcctivc alien to United States

ports, and a tine of .$100 for hrin^in^^ aliens not

able to j)ass the illiteracy test, or who cannot be-

come elii::ible to be naturalized, the method of

reL;ulation ai)i)roved by the Supreme Court in

Oceanic Nariijation Co. r. Vnitvd States, 214

U. S., 1^20, beinu' availed of throughout the sec-

tion. The palpable object of these provisions is

to prevent liardships and other evils which arise

from transpoi'tation comi)anies sellinii- tickets to

aliens who cannot enter the United States. In

addition to the forej::oinj^, which were in H. R.
()()()() when ]>assed, the House ronnnittee has

added })rovisions which shall compel trans])orta-

tion companies which brin.u: to the United States

aliens who are of certain inadmissible classes to

refund to such aliens the cost of their passage
(see H. Rept. No. 95, 64th (^)n^., 1st Sess. pp.
()-7 and has included in the i^round of the second
$200 tine for the brini;inu: of Hindus."

The same Senate Rejiort relative to the proviso

added to Section 9, we tind:

"And at the (\)nunittee's su,u:,u:estion there was
also added on tlu* Hoor of the House. Vol. 5;^

Uon^. Record, i)a^(' 5957 (sh(>uld be payc 5025) a

proviso, the i)urpose of which is to make certain

that the penalties prescribed by the section will not

operate to })revent steamship companies from
selling tickets to aliens entitled to enter under the

exemptions specified in Section )5."

Immediately after the introduction of the amend-

ment, Mr. Burnett, Chairman of the House Committee

on Inunigration, binng asked if he desired recognition

on the amendment replied

:
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'

' I do not care to discuss it. I think its purpose
is obvious. Some members of the committee ex-

pressed a doubt as to whether aliens who are
fleeing from religious persecution would be per-

mitted by the steamship companies to take pas-

sage on their vessels, even if they were admissible
to this country. The committee were of the

opinion that if they were admissible aliens there

could not be any such thing as a penalty on the

steamship company, but in order to leave no doubt
about that matter the gentleman from New York
(Mr. Siegel) offered an amendment, which the

committee accepted, and this is that amendment.
It is offered in order that there may be no doubt
about it." (Vol. 53, Cong. Record page 5025).

It is clearly apparent that it was intended to absolve

the transportation companies from liability for bring-

ing in an alien only when the alien was entitled to

admission into the country. There is nothing to

intimate that there was any intention to absolve them

when the alien was not admissible. It is clear that

the intention of the statute was to make mandatory

the duty of the transportation companies bringing

aliens to this country to see to it that the aliens

brought in by them were not afflicted with a loath-

some or dangerous contagious disease. Congress has

power to prohibit the bringing of aliens to this

country and to impose any conditions to their admis-

sion, and vessels engaged in bringing aliens to this

country must be held to undertake to do so on the

conditions thus created, and to see that aliens carried

by them to the United States are not members of any

of the excluded classes. To allow aliens afflicted with

the prohibited diseases to be returned to this country

would defeat the purpose of the Act.
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In Ociduic Nan'f/nfion ('<>. r. Strmiahau, su])ra, ])p.

I5lili-!JIU, the coni't (iii<»1(m1 I'l-oiii I'cpdrt ot" the Senate

Coniniittee on Innni.ii:rati()n, (relative A«'t of VM)'.\) as

follows:

"Notwitlistandini;- the explicit proliihition of

tlie j)resent law, it has heen found inii>ossil»le to

prevent the steanislii]) companies from hrin^in^

diseased aliens to our i)orts. Once on this side,

every ar.i::ument and influence that can he used is

resorted to, either to effect the landing; of such

aliens or their treatment in the hospital as a ])re-

liminarv to such landini;. Ex])ei't medical testi-

mony is secured to attack the diai;nosis of tlie

examining: surgeon and even to question the eon-

tauious nature of the disease, l^itiable stoi'ies are

told of the sei)aration ol* parents from young chil-

dren to induce officers to relax in the discharge of

their jdain duty. Great charitahle organizations

intervene, and even j)olitical influence is invoked
for the same purpose, the steamship com])anies
themselves, (Mther covertly or openly, displaying

a spirit of resistence to the law. If all of these

obstacles to the execution of the law fail of their

purpose, and the alien afflicted with tuberculosis,

favus, Ol- trachoma is sent back, still by the will-

ful or indifferent defiance of this siinitary law
the design sought by its i)assage is defeated, for

hundreds may possibly have l)een indeed, almost
certainly have been—exposed to the disease in

the steerage on the way over, may have been af-

fected by it and landed In^fore it has reached a

stage of development sutlrtciently advanced to be
detected by the medical inspector.

"Section 10 of the measure under consideration
(which in the final enactment became }iaragra]>h

9 of the law) therefore imposes a penalty of -flOO,

to be imposed by the Secretary of the Treasury
(now Secretary of Commerce and Labor), for each
case brought to an American port, provided in his

judgment the disease might have been detected by
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means of medical examination at the port of em-
barkation. This sufficiently guards the trans-

portation lines from an unjust and hasty im-
position of the penalty, insures a careful observ-

ance of the law, and leaves in their own hands the

power to escape even a risk of the fine being
imposed, since they can refuse to take on board
even the most doubtful case until certified by a
competent medical authority to be entirely

cured."

57th Con. 1st sess. S. Rept. No. 2119, p. viii;

57th Con. 2d. sess. S. Doc. No. 62."

It may be noted that the penalt}" to be imposed by

the Secretary upon transportation companies for

bringing to an American port an alien afflicted with

a loathsome or contagious disease was by the Act of

1917 (Sec. 9) increased from $100 to $200; and by the

Act of 1924 (Sec. 26) increased from $200 to $1,000.

The purpose of the mandatory provisions of our im-

migration statutes excluding aliens afflicted with loath-

some or dangerous contagious diseases is to keep such

aliens away from this country. And it is immaterial

whether such an alien has previously acquired a resi-

dence or domicile in this country. The purpose of the

provisions subjecting transportation comi^anies to a

penalty for wrongfully bringing to this country aliens

so afflicted is to protect not only the passengers travel-

ling with them, but ultimately to protect the people

and citizens of the United States from the dangers

arising from coming in contact with the alien so

afflicted and also from the dangers arising from com-

ing in contact with those who had been forced to

associate with such afflicted alien aboard the vessel.
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Tlicsc (laiij^rrs arc just as pronouncod aiul serious

if the alien so afHieted is eoniinj,^ for readiuission to

an uiiri'lin(|uislie(l residence or domicile as il' he eonies

seekini; admission. An alien who has a(Mjuire(l a resi-

dence or domicile in this country is just as niudi an

alien as il' he had not made such acciuisition. II' an

alien who has heeii in the United States and accjuired

a domicile noes away I'lnm the country and I'cturns

seeking; readmission, he has no more rii;ht of re-entry

than an alien who has never been in the country.

And if such returning;- alien is afflicted with a loath-

some or dani;-erous contaj^ious disease or otherwise

is a niemher of an excluded class, he is as positively

exchuh'd from readmission as he would ])e excluded

fi'om admission had he never before been in the

country.

The alien returning- to tliis country from a visit

al)road may be admitted only in the discretion of the

Secretary of Labor and it is repu^niant to coniinon

sense to presume that a Secretary of Labor of the

United States would permit an alien atllicted with

such a loathsome and dangerous disease as k'prosy

to enter tlie United States, or would condone or hesi-

tate to im})ose a penalty on a transj)ortation com-

l)any that would permit one so afflicted to mingle with

other i)assengers on a voyage to this country. The

mere fact that such an alien has acquired a domicile

or residence in this country, but has not become a

citizen, and had no right of return, and can reenter

only at the discretion of the Secretary of Labor and

on such conditions as he might prescribe, certainly

would not secure the vessel and its officers from the
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imposition of the penalty provided by law for such a

flagrant violation of the well understood and uni-

versally recognized laws and rules of health and

sanitation.

The hj^pothetical problem of Y. Ahin, mentioned at

length on page 10 of appellant's brief, while in no

way material here, is fully answered in Section 21 of

the Act of 1917.

The case of Compagnie Francaise de Navigation A
Vaperu v. Elting, Collector of Customs, (C. C. A. 2)

10 F2, 773, likewise is not material to the considera-

tion of any question arising in the present case. In

that case the only objection to the alien was his

alienage. He did not return to this country afflicted

with a loathsome or dangerous contagious disease, nor

did he, while so afflicted, wrongfully mingle and come

in contact with fellow-passengers on the voyage to

this country, exposing them to possible contagion

without their knowledge or consent. In that case the

court said

:

"The plaintiff could not have known at the

port of embarkation that the alien was inadmis-
sible for that fact could be established only after

a hearing by the immigration officials. * * *

It can scarcely be supj)osed that Congress in-

tended to penalize a vessel owner for transporting

an alien privileged to come for such purpose."

It is well settled that the statutes should have sen-

sible construction and one that will effectuate the

legislative intention, and avoid if j^ossible unjust and

absurd conclusions.

Lau Ow Bew v. United States, 144 U. S. 47, 59;
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United States v. Mis. (inc l.iiiu 17(1 U. S. 459,

4(>7;

United States v. (Ntiiir. ol" Iiniiiii^ratioii, ((.'. ('.

A. 1) 285 lA'd. 295, 299.

It is sui)initte(l liiat tiie only sensible const ruction

to he .i;iven the statute ai>i)lieahh' in tliis case ox-

chidini;- aliens allhcted with a loatlisonie or dani^erous

eontaj^ious disease and penali/iuL; a transportation

c()nii)any for hrini;*in.<;- su(di an alien to an Anicriean

port, is to exclude the alien and impose the penalty

on the transportation company when the alien seeks

readmission as well as when the alien merely seeks

admission. This is the only eonstrnetion that will

effeetuate the legislative intention and avoid unjust

and absurd eonelusions.

CONCLUSION

It is respectfully contended that aliens returning to

an unrelinquished domicile oi* seven consecutive years

do not constitute a class exempted from the exchiding

provisions of Section )>, and that the discretionary

powcM* gi\'en the Secretary of Labor by the Seventh

Proviso authorizes the use of his discretion in ad-

mitting an alien returning to such a domicile only

when such alien does not come within one of the

classes expressly and mandatorily excluded by the

provisions of that section; and that in this case tlie

alien belongs to a chiss expressly and mandatorily

excluded, and while many exceptions and exemptions

are (Muimerated in the statute, none appear in favor

of authorizing the admission of an alien afflicted with

a loathsome or dangerous contagious disease; and that



24

whenever aliens so afflicted are mentioned or referred

to in the statutes it is plainly evident that no intention

was entertained for their admission. It is therefore

respectfully submitted that the ruling of the District

Court should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

Sanford B. D. Wood,
United States Attorney,

District of Hawaii,

Charles H. Hogg,

Asst. United States Attorney,

Geo. J. Hatfield,

United States Attorney for the

Noy^tliern District of California.
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2 Charles Romeo et al. vs.

United States District Court, Western District of

Washington, Northern Division.

November, 1924, Term.

No. 9435.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

FRANK GATT, JOHN OATT, CHARLES RO-
MEO, JAMES ROSSI, ROMEO TRONCA,
AUGUST BIANCHI, LEO MORELLI,
ARINELLO PEPE, ANTONIO GARAGE,
and LOUIE CICCI,

Defendants.

INDICTMENT.

Vio. Sec. 37 Penal Code, Conspiracy to Violate Act

of Oct. 28, 1919.

United States of America,

Western District of Washington,

Northern Division,—ss.

The grand jurors of the United States of America

being duly selected, impaneled, sworn, and charged

to inquire within and for the Northern Division of

the Western District of Washington, upon their

oaths present: [2]

COUNT I.

That FRANK GATT, JOHN GATT, CHARLES
ROMEO, JAMES ROSSI, ROMEO TRONCA,
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AUGUST HIAXrill, LKO MOin^M.I, AIMN-
KI.LO I'EPK, ANTONIO (JAlx»A('K, and LOUIS
UK XT, and eacli of tluin, on or al)()ut tJir in Ww,

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred and

fwniti/- icithin the Northern Division of the West-

i'vw District (»f Washinj^ton, and within the juris-

diction ol' this court, then and tlicrc l)einp, did

then and tlicic knowingly, willfully, uidawfully,

and feloniously conihine, conspire, confederate, and

aj;ree tojj^ether, and one with the other, and top^ether

with divers other persons to the pjrand juiors un-

known, to conunit certain offenses against the

United States, that is to say, to vioLate the provi-

sions of the Act of Congress passed October 28,

191J), and known as the National Prohibition Act, it

being then and tliei-e the plan, i)urpose, and object

of said conspiracy and the object of said persons so

conspiring together as aforesaid, and hereinafter

referred to as the conspirators, to knowingly, will-

fully, and uidawfully possess and sell, in said divi-

sion and district, certain intoxicating liciuors, to

wit, whiskey, distilled spirits, and divers other

liquors containing more than one-half of one per

centum of alcohol l)y volume, and tit for use for

beverage ])urposes, a more ])articular description

of tile amount and kind whereof being to the grand

jurors unknown, such possession being intended by

them, the said conspirators, for the purpose of

violating the National Prohibition Act by selling,

bartering, exchanging, giving away, furnishing, and

otherwise disposing of said intoxicating liquors in

[;>] violation of the National Prohibition Act,
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such possession and sale of said intoxicating liquors

by them, the said conspirators, as aforesaid, being

unlawful and prohibited by the said Act of Con-

gress. That it was then and there further the plan,

purpose, and olijiect of said conspiracy, and the

object of said conspirators so conspiring together

as aforesaid, to knowingly, willfully, and unlawfully

conduct and maintain a common nuisance at cer-

tain premises within the city of Seattle, in the

Northern Division of the Western District of Wash-
ington, and within the jurisdiction of this court, to

wit, 404 Fifth Avenue South, Seattle, Washington,

by keeping, selling, and bartering therein certain

intoxicating liquors, to wit, whiskey, distilled spirits,

and divers other liquors containing more than one-

half of one per centum of alcohol by volume, and fit

for use for beverage purposes, a more particular

description of the amount and kind whereof being

to the grand jurors unknow^n, said maintaining of

such nuisance by the said conspirators as afore-

said being unlawful and prohibited by the National

Prohibition Act.

' That said conspiracy was and is a continuing con-

spiracy, continuing from, to wit, the first day of

March, 1923, to the time of the presentment of this

indictment. [4]

OVERT ACTS.
1. And the grand jurors aforesaid, upon their

oaths aforesaid, do further present, that after the

formation of said conspiracy and in pursuance

thereof, and in order to effect the object of said

conspiracy, the said conspirator, LEO MORELLI,
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OH the 2lith (lay nf Marrli, Y.YIW, at said 404 Fiftli

AvcMiU' South, Sent lie, \Vasliiiiu:t()ii, in said division

and district, then and tlici-c Ix-in;^, did then and

tluTt' knowingly, willlully, and unlawtully possess

and stdl certain intoxicating liijuoi-, to wit, two (2)

ounces ol' distiHed spirits, all of said li«|Uor then

and tiicrc containinu' inoic than (tnc-half of one per

centum oi" alcohol hy \dlunic and tlicn and tlicic tit

t'oi" use tor hcvei'aiije ])urposes, sucii j)ossession l)y

the said conspirator as aforesaid beinj^ tlien and

there i'oi' the pui-])ose of violating; the National

Prohibition Act l)y selling, i)arterin<^, exchan.u:in^,

givinu' away, furnishing-, and otherwise tlisposin^-

of said intoxicating licpior, and sucli possession

and sale of said intoxicating li(iuoi- being then and

there unlawlul and ])rohil)ited 1)\' the National I^ro-

hil)ition Act. [5]

2. And the ^rand juroi-s aforesaid, upon their

oaths aforesaid, do further present, that after the

formation of said cons})iracy and in pursuance

thereof, and in oihUm* to effect the (»l)ject of said

conspiracN', the said ct)ns|)irators JAMKS KOSISl,

ROMEO TKONCA, LOUIE CICCl and JOHN
GATT, and each of them, on the 2oth (hiy of No-

vember, 1<)2"., at said 404 Fifth Avenue South,

Seattle, Washington, in said division and district,

then and there being, did then and there knowingly,

willfully, and uidawfully possess and sell certain

intoxicating liipioi', to wit, eleven (11) ounces of

whiskey, all of siiid licpior then and there contain-

ing more than one-half of one per centum of al-

cohol by volume and then and there tit for use for
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beverage purposes, such possession by the said con-

spirator as aforesaid being then and there for the

purpose of violating the National Prohibition Act

by selling, bartering, exchanging, giving away, fur-

nishing, and otherwise disposing of said intoxicat-

ing liquor, and such possession and sale of said in-

toxicating liquor being then and there unlawful and

prohibited by the National Prohibition Act. [6]

3. And the grand jurors aforesaid, upon their

oaths aforesaid, do further present, that after the

formation of said conspiracy and in pursuance

thereof, and in order to effect the object of said

conspiracy, the said conspirators JAMES ROSSI
and LOUIE CICCI and each of them, on the 11th

day of December, 1923, at said 404 Fifth Avenue

South, Seattle, Washington, in said division and

district, then and there being, did then and there

knowingly, willfully, and unlawfully possess and

sell certain intoxicating liquor, to wit, four (4)

ounces of whiskey, all of said liquor then and there

containing more than one-half of one per centum of

alcohol by volume and then and there fit for use

for beverage purposes, such possession by the said

conspirator as aforesaid being then and there for

the purpose of violating the National Prohibition

Act by selling, bartering, exchanging, giving away,

furnishing, and otherwise disposing of said intoxi-

cating liquor, and such possession and sale of said

intoxicating liquor being then and there unlawful

and prohibited by the National Prohibition Act.

[7]
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4. And till' urniid Juiois atoi-csaid, upon tlicii'

oaths aforesaid, do I'lirtlHi- present, that after the

foiiiiatioii (d' said conspii'acy and in pursuance

thereof, and in ordci- to clTeet the ol)ject of said

conspiracy, the said conspirator LOUIE CICCI, on

the 24th day of December, 19215, at said 404 Fiftli

Avenue South, Seatth', Wasliin^ton, in said divi-

sion and district, tlicn and tliere ))ein<,^ did then

and there knowiniily, willfully, and uidawfully

possess and sell certain intoxicating liquor, to wit,

thirty-two {'.VI) ounces of distilled spii'its, all of

said liiiuoi- then and tlici-c c(intainin<; more than

one-hair of one ])ei- centum of alcohol by volume

and then and tliere Wx for use for beverage pur-

})oses, such possession by the said conspirator as

aforesaid being then and there for the purpose of

violating the National Prohibition Act by selling,

bartering, exchanging, giving away, furnishing, and

otherwise disposing of said intoxicating liquor, and

such possession and sale of said intoxicating liquor

being then and there unlawful and prohibited by the

National Prohibition Act. [8]

0. And the grand jurors aforesaid, upon their

oaths aforesaid, do further present, that after the

formation of said conspiracy and in pursuance

thereof, and in order to effect the object of said

conspiracy, the said eonspiratorj? JAMES ROSSI
and LOUIE CICCI, and each of them, on the 8th

day of January, 1924, at said 4()4 Fifth Avenue

South, Seattle, Washington, in said division and

district, then and there being, did then and there

knowingly, willfully, and unlawfully possess and
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sell certain intoxicating liquor, to wit, twelve (12)

ounces of distilled spirits, all of said liquor then

and there containing more than one-half of one

per centum of alcohol by volimie and then and there

fit for use for beverage purposes, such possession

by the said conspirator as aforesaid being then and

there for the purpose of violating the National

Prohibition Act by selling, bartering, exchanging,

giving away, furnishing, and otherwise disposing

of said intoxicating liquor, and such possession and

sale of said intoxicating liquor being then and there

unlawful and prohibited by the National Prohibi-

tion Act. [9]

6. And the grand jurors aforesaid, upon their

oaths aforesaid, do further present, that after the

formation of said conspiracy and in pursuance

thereof, and in order to effect the object of said

conspiracy, the said conspirators JAMES ROSSI
and LOUIE CICCI, and each of them, on the 24th

day of January, 1924, at said 404 Fifth Avenue

South, Seattle, Washington, in said division and

district, then and there being, did then and there

knowingly, willfully, and unlawfully possess and

sell certain intoxicating liquor, to wit, four (4)

ounces of distilled spirits, all of said liquor then and

there containing more than one-half of one per

centum of alcohol by volume and then and there fit

for use for beverage purposes, such possession by

the said conspirator as aforesaid being then and

there for the purpose of violating the National

Prohibition Act by selling, bartering, exchanging,

giving away, furnishing, and otherwise disposing
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<>!' said iiitnxicaliiin li<|U(>r, and such possession and

sale of said intoxicating li(|Uor hcinjr then and there

unlawful and |)i()hihited hy llic National Prohibi-

tion Acl.
I
10]

7. And tlie i^i-and Jurors aforesiiid, \i]n)\i their

nalhs aforesaid, (h) fui-ther i)resent, that after the

formation <d" said c(Uisi)iracy and in })ursuance

thereof, and in oi-(h*r to elTect the ol).ject of said

conspiracy, the said conspirattu-s AlUiTST I>I-

ANCIII, LOUIE CIUCl, and CIIAKLKS KOMKO,
and eaidi of them, mi the 2!)th (hiy of May, 1024,

at said -104 Kiftli Avenue South, Seatth-, Wash-

ington, in said division and district, then and there

])eing, did then and tlu-re knowingly, willfully, and

unlawfully possess and sell certain intoxicating

li(|Uoi', to wit, twelve (12) ounces of distilled spirits,

all of said li(|Uor then and thei-e containing more

than one-half of oni' per centum of alcohol by

volume and then and there tit for use for beverage

])ur})oses, such })ossession 1»>' the said conspirator

as aforesiiid being then and there foi- the i)urpose of

violating the National rroliibition Act by selling,

bartering, exchanging, giving away, furnishing, and

otherwise disposing of said intoxiciating liipior, and

such possession and sale of said intoxicating li(iuor

l)eing then and there unlawful and i)rohibited by the

National 1 Prohibition Act. [11]

8. And the grand jurois aforesirid, uj)on their

oaths aforesaid, do further present, that after the

formation »>f said conspiracy and in |)ursuance

thereof, and in order to effect the (»l)Jeet of siiid

conspiracy, the said conspinrtors LOTIK CICCI
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and ROMEO TRONCA, and each of them, on the

22d day of September, 1924, at said 404 Fifth Ave-

nue South, Seattle, Washington, in said division

and district, then and there being, did then and

there knowingly, willfully, and unlawfully possess

aiid sell certain intoxicating liquor, to wit, four

(4) ounces of distilled spirits, all of said liquor

then and there containing more than one-half of

one per centum of alcohol by volume and then and

there tit for use for beverage purposes, such pos-

session by the said conspirator as aforesaid being

then and there for the purpose of violating the Na-

tional Prohibition Act by selling, bartering, ex-

changing, giving away, furnishing, and otherwise

disposing of said intoxicating liquor, and such pos-

session and sale of said intoxicating liquor being

then and there unlawful aiid prohibited by the Na-

tional Prohibition Act. [12]

9. And the grand jurors aforesaid, upon their

oaths aforesaid, do further present, that after the

formation of said conspiracy and in pursuance

thereof, mid in order to effect the object of said

conspiracy, the said conspirators ARINELLO
PEPE, FRANK GATT, and CHARLES ROIMEO,

and each of them, on the 28th day of February,

1925, at said 404 Fifth Avenue South, Seattle,

Washington, in said division and district, then and

there being, did then and there knowingly, will-

fully, send unlawfully possess and sell certain in-

toxicating liquor, to wit, sixteen (16) ounces of

distilled spirits, all of said liquor then and there

containing more than one-half of one per centum
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of alcoliol l)y volume and then and there fit for

use for hevera.^c puiposes, siicli possession hy the

said eonspii-ator as aforesaid bein^ then ;rnd tlierc

for tile pui'pose of violatinj^ the National Prohi-

bition Act by selling, baiteiinu", exehan^in^", ^iv-

in.ii" away, furnishing', and ollieiwisc dis})()sin^ of

said intoxieatinu' li(|Uor, and su«li |)ossession jnid

sale of said intoxicating licjuor bein^- then and

there uidawful and ])r(thibited by the National

JM-ohibition Act. [liJ]

10. And the ^i-and Jurors aforesaid, ui)on their

oaths aforesaid, do further present, that after the

i'oi'ination of said eonsj)iraey and in pursuance

thereof, and in oidei- to effect the object of said

conspiracy, the said conspiratoi-s ARINELLO
PKI^K, FRANK (lATT, and ('HARLP:s RO-
MEO, and each of them, on the 28th day of Feb-

•rmrry, 1925, at Room 17, 4()4yo Fifth Avenue

South, Seattle, Washinii'ton, in said division and

disti'ict, then and there bein«;-, did then and there

Uno\vingl\. willfully, and unlawfully })ossess cer-

tain intoxicating liquor, to wit, twenty-five (25)

gallons of distilled spirits, and seventy-two (72)

one-fifth gallons of whiskey, all of said liquor then

and there contirining more than one-half of one

per centum of alcohol by volume, and then and

there fit for use for beverage pur})oses, such pos-

session by the said conspiratoi- as aforesaid being

then and there for the purpose of violating the Na-
tional Prohibition Act by selling, barterinu', ex-

clumging, giving away, furnishing, and othciwise

disposing of said intoxicating liquor, and such pos-

session of said intoxicating liquor being then and
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there unlawful and prohibited by the National Pro-

hibition Act. [14]

11. And the grand jurors aforesaid, upon their

oaths aforesaid, do further present, that after the

formation of said consjoiracy and in pursuance

thereof, and in order to effect the object of said

conspiracy, the said conspirators, FRANK GATT,
JOHN GATT, CHARLES ROMEO, JxVlMES

R088I, ROMEO TRONCA, AUGUST BIAN-
(mi, LEO MORELLI, ARINELLO PEPE, AN-
TONIO GARAGE, and LOUIE CICCI, and each

of them, from the 1st day of March, 1923, to the

28th day of February, 1925, at 104 Fifth Avenue

South, Seattle, Washington, in said division and

district, then and there being, did then and there and

therein laiowingly, willfully, and unlawfully con-

duct and maintain a common nuisance by then and

there manufacturing, keeping, selling, and bartering

intoxicating liquors, to wit, whiskej^ distilled spirits

and other intoxicating liquors containing more

than one-half of one per centum of alcohol by \ol-

ume and fit for use for beverage purposes, said

maintaining of such nuisance by the said conspira-

tors as aforesaid being then and there unlawful

and prohibited by the National Prohibition Act;

Contrary to the form of the statute in such case

made and provided, and against the peace and dig-

nity of the United States of America.

THOS. P. REVELLE,
United States Attoriuy.

J. W. HOAR,
Assistant United States Attorney.
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[Eiulorscd] : IM-csentcd lo the Court l)y the

Furciiian ol' the (irand Jiiiy in open court, in tlio

jn-cscMci' (»!' the (iraiul 'luiy, and filrd in the i . S.

District Couil March 2(), 1925. Kd. M. Lakin,

Clerk. Uy S. E. Leitch, Deputy, flf)]

['Yl\ le •»! V (Mi \[ ;i iid ( ',-iiis('.]

ARHAKINMKNT AXD PLKA.

Now on this 2()th day of Aju-il, 1})25, all defend-

ants come into open court foi- anaic^nnient acconi-

])anied 1)\ their .-rttorneys .John F. Dore, A. F.

Kirhy, and II. S. Frye, and say that their tnie

names are Frank (iatt, .John (Jatt, Charles Homeo,

August Bianchi, Leo Moi-elli, Arinello Pepe and

Romeo 'Pronca. The readini;- of the indictment is

waived and eirch del'endant now enters his i)k'a of

not ji'uilty.

Journal No. i:',, paiie 2S5. [16]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

RE-TRIAL.

Now on this 2})th day of Decemhei*, 192'), this

cause is called for re-trial, ])Uisuant to assi^ment.

John F. Dore and F. C. Reauan aiul 11. S. Frye

are present as counsel f(U' defendants, jnid C. T.

McKinney and Thomas \\ Revelle ai-e present for

])laintiff. Both sidi's are ready. Defeiulant An-
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gust Bianchi not being present in court is called

three times in the corridor of the court and not

responding, on motion of the U. S. Attorney, his

bail is forfeited 7iisi, and bench-warrant is directed

to issue. The regulai* panel of jurors having been

exhausted additional jurors are drawn and the

jurors having been admonished, recess is taken un-

til 1 :30 P. M. Counsel for August Bianchi ad-

vises the Court that he is present in court and ask

for an order setting aside bail forfeiture which is

denied at this time, but bench-warrant is recalled.

At 1 :30 the trial is resumed and the jury is impan-

eled and sworn as follows: W. E. Nims, John F.

Schnaufer, U. L. Collins, John Hickey, Geo. N.

Price, Frank A. Small, Samuel H. McElfatrick,

Harvey N. Rothweiler, W. L. Wheeler, Joe Gard-

ner, W. H. Motley, and Rollin Sanford.

It is ordered by the Court that the jury be kept

together during the trial and the Mai'shal is di-

rected to make arrangements for their accommo-

dation. On motion of defendant, all witnesses on

behalf of the Government are sworn, and excluded

from the courtroom, except while testifying. The

XJ. S. Attorney being permitted to retain Wm. Mc

Whitney for purposes of consultation. The wit-

nesses now sworn are: Earl Corwin, A. A. Scha-

fer, L. O. Shirley, Thos. P. Ra-gsdale, R. C. Jack-

son, John W. Hannum, Claude McCrory, E. F.

Carrothers, R. C. Jackson, H. G. Backstrom, Rich-

ard A. Lambert, Earl Corwin, W. M. Whitney.



rnihd States of Anicrica. 15

Govcniincnt Kxliihits Numluivd 2(1, :38, 39, 40, M.

42, A'.\, 47 and 4S ai-c introduced as evidence.

Whei'eiijx))) cnuit stands adjourned.

Journal N<.. 11 at |)a^-e liJO. [17]

[Title of ('<»urt and Cause.]

TRIAL KKSl MKJ).

Now on this 'M)\\\ day of Docenihei-, 11)25, tri.-rl

in tliis cause is resumed pursuant to adjournment,

duiy and all parties aic i)resent. (lovermnent

witnesses are sworn and examined as follows:

Win. M. Whitney, resumes testimony. ('. W. Kline

and Thomas 1*. Rap:s(lale. Pe])e, iccalled. ({ov-

ernment exhihits now jidmitted in evidence are as

follows and as ])ei- list in files. Numhers 1 to 25

inclusive, except 1() and 17 which are not offered;

27 to M inclusive; 44 to 4(), inclusive; 49 to 7)'). in-

clusive; No. ^ii denied and withdi-awn hy aiient

AVhitney. The Government rests. II. S. Frye,

attorney foi- Romeo Tronca, makes opening state-

ment to the jury. (Vninsel foi* all othei- defend-

ants waives opening statement. Defendants' wit-

nesses are sworn mid examined as follows: Romeo
Tronca, II. S. p:iliott, Wm. M. Whitney, W. R.

Grisson, G. W. Johns, Howard 1). llorton, Robert

B. llesketh, Martin J. (Mary, E. B. Benn, Charles

Romeo, Reilly juror) Frank Gatt, (\ J. Fiancis.

Albert Funis, John Gatt, A. Pei-fetti, Vvixuk Stac-

tai, and Mrs. Frank (latt. Defendants' exhibits

jrdmitted in evidence are as follows: "A—4" to
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*'A-7," inclusive, as shown by list in files. "x\-l"

to "A-3," inclusive, as identified on former trial,

not offered. Defendants rest. Witnesses in re-

buttal are sworn and examined as follows: A.

Pepe, recalled, Earl Corwin, recalled, Wm. M.

Whitney, recalled and Earl Corwin, recalled.

Both sides rest. Ten minute recess is declared.

Cause is argued to the jury and the jury after be-

ing instructed by the Court and exceptions to in-

structions having been taken by the defendants

the jury retires at 6 P. M. to deliberate of a ver-

dict. It is agreed that a sealed verdict may be re-

turned into court to-morrow morning if agreed

upon ])y the jury before midnight, otherwise the

jury to be put to bed at midnight until six o'clock

to-morrow morning when they will resume their

deliberations after having had breakfast.

Journal No. 14, at page 130. [18]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

TRIAL RESUMED—VERDICT RETURNED.

Now on this 31st day of December, 1925, all })ar-

ties except John Gatt being present in court, and

his counsel consenting to the receipt of the verdict

in his absence, the jury now returns to the Court

a sealed verdict finding all the above-named de-

fendants guilty as charged in the iiidictincnt.

Verdict is received and reads as follows: "We, the

jury in the above-entitled cause, find the defend-

ant Charles Romeo is guilty as charged in the in-
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(lictiiit'iit licrciii : Jiiul rurtluT find the (IcfViidant

Auj^ust Hianclii is i^nillv as cliar^icd in the indict-

ment In rein; and liii-thci- tind the dctVndant John

(latt is unilly as cliarucd in the indictniciit herein;

and luithci- lind the ddcndant Fi-ank (iatt is

.unilty as chai-^cd in llic indictment heroin; and

I'nrther tind the (hdendant Komeo Tronca is ^niilty

as charji^ed in tlie indictment herein, J^ollin San-

ford, Foreman." X'erdiet is ackn(>wled^ed and

jnry is excused I'rom the case.

On motion of the V. S. Attorney, the l)ail of

Frank (iatt is increased to ^i^OOO.OO and the l)ail

each (d' the otiier (h'fendants to .f2,r)00.0() j)ending

sentence, and defendants given until 5 P. M. to-day

to tih' same. Sentence is contimied to Jamiai-y 11,

IDlMi.

Journal No. 14, at paire \?A. [19]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

VERDICT.

We, the jui-\ in the al)ove-i'ntitled eause, find the

defendant Cliarles Romeo is guilty as charged in

tile indictment herein; and further tind the defend-

ant August Bianchi is guilty as (diarged in the in-

dictment herein; and further tind the defendant

John Catt is guilty as charged in the indictment

herein; and further tind the defendant Fraidv (Jatt

is guilty as (diai'e'ed in the indictment herein: and
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further find the defendant Romeo Tronca is guilty

as charged in the indictment herein.

ROLLIN SANFORD,
Foreman.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 31, 1925. [20]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL.

Come now the defendants in the above-entitled

cause, and each of them, and move for a new trial

of said cause, upon the following grounds, to wit

:

1. Errors of law occurring at the trial and duly

and regularly excepted to by said defendants.

2. That the verdict is contrary to law and the

evidence.

JOHN F. DORE,
HERMON S. FRYE,
Attorneys for Defendants.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 21, 1927. [21]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

HEARING ON MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL-
SENTENCE PASSED.

Now on this 11th day of January, 1926, this cause

comes on for hearing on motion for a new trial

which is argued and said motion is denied with an

exception noted. Sentences are passed at this time.

Journal No. 14, at page 149. [22]
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[Title of Cloiiit and Cause]

SENTEN('E ((MIARLES KM)MEO).

roiiu's now on this lltli day of January, 1920, tho

said defendant Charles Romeo into open court for

senteneo and ixiui; informed hy the Court of the

eharjj^es herein a,u:ainst him and of his eonvietion

of record heicin, he is asked whether he has any

lep:al <ause to show why sentence should not be

passed .ind ,iii(l,t»-ment had ap:ainst him and he noth-

ing says save as he before hath said. Where-

fore, by reason of the law and the premises, it is

considered ordered and adjudged by the Court that

the defendant is guilty of violating Section 37,

Penal Code, conspiracy to violate the National Pro-

hibition Act, and thai lie l)e |)unished by being im-

prisoned in the United States Penitentiary at Mc-

Neil Island, Pierce County, Washington, or in such

othei- j)lace as may be hereafter provided for the

im})risonment of offenders against the laws of the

United States, for the term of 18 months at hard

labor and to pay a tine of .$o(X1.00 dollars and costs

of prosecution. And the said defendant is hereby

ordered into the custody of the United States Mar-

shal to carry this sentence into execution.

Judgment and Decree No. 4, page 83. [23]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

SENTENCE (FRANK GATT).

Comes now on this 11th day of January, 1926,

the said defendant Frank Gatt into open court for

sentence and being informed by the Court of the

charges herein against him and of his conviction

of record herein, he is asked whether he has any

legal cause to show why sentence should not be

passed and judgment had against him, and he

nothing says save as he before hath said. Where-

fore by reason of the law and the premises, it is

considered ordered and adjudged by the Court that

the defendant is guilty of violating Section 37,

Penal Code, conspiracy to violate the National Pro-

hibition Act, and that he be punished by being im-

prisoned in the United States Penitentiary at Mc-

Neil Island, Pierce County, Washington, or in such

other place as may be hereafter provided for the

imprisonment of offenders against the laws of the

United States for the term of 2 years at hard labor

and to pay a fine of $2,500.00 dollars and the costs

of prosecution. And the said defendant Frank

Gatt is hereby ordered into the custody of the

United States Marshal to cany this sentence into

execution.

Judgment and Decree No. 4, page 84. [24]
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I

'I'illc of roiii'l .-Hid ( 'aiisc]

SKNTKXCK (JOHN (I ATT).

Conies now on lliis lllli i\i\\ ol January, U)2<>,

the said dct'cndanl Jolm (latl into open court for

sentiMK'c, and Ikmiil;,- inroi-nicd hv the Coui-I of tlic

ihar^es liercin against him and of his conviction of

record heicin, he is asked whetlier he has any le^al

cause to show why sentence shouhl not he passed

and judgment had aj!:ainst iiini, and lie nothing

says save as he l)efore hath said. Wlierefore, l)y

j'eason oi llic law and tlie pi'eniises, it is considered

orch'red and adjudu'cd hy the Court that the de-

fendant is uuilty of viohitinp: Section o7. Penal Code

of the United States, conspiracy to viohite the Na-

tional Prohibition Act, and that he be punished

by beinu inipi-isoned in the United States Peniten-

tiary at McNeil Island, Pierce County, Washini::-

ton, or in such other place as may be hereafter

provided for the impi-isonment of oifenders against

the laws of the United States for the period of 21

months at hai-d labor and to i)ny a tine of $2,000.00

and costs of prosecution. And the said defendant

is hereby ordered into the custody of the United

States Marshal to cany this sentence into execu-

tion.

Judgment and Decree No. 1, page 84. [25]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

SENTENCE (AUGUST BIANCHI).

Comes now on this 11th day of January, 1926, the

said August Bianehi into open court for sentence,

and being informed by the Court of the charges

herein against him and of his conviction of record

herein, he is asked whether he has any legal cause

to show why sentence should not be passed and

judgment had against him and he nothing says

save as he before hath said. Wherefore, by reason

of the law and the premises, it is considered or-

dered and adjudged by the Court that the defendant

is guilty of violating Section 37, Penal Code, con-

spiracy to violate the National Prohibition Act, and

that he be punished by being imprisoned in the

King County Jail, or in such other place as may
be hereafter provided for the imprisonment of of-

fenders against the laws of the United States, for

the term of six months and to pay a fine of $250.00

and the costs of prosecution. And the defendant

is hereby remanded into the custody of the United

States Marshal to carry this sentence into execu-

tion.

Judgment and Decree No. 4, page 84. [26]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

SENTENCE (ROMEO TRONCA).

Comes now on this 11th day of January, 1926, the

said defendant Romeo Tronca into open court for
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sentence and !)einp^ informed l>y the Court of the

charges liei'ein a.u:ainst him and of his conviction

of I'ccoi-d herein, he is asked wliether he has any

le<;al cause to show why sentence should not be

passed and jud<rnient had ap:ainst him and he noth-

ing; says save as lie before hath said. Wherefore,

by I'cason of the law and the premises, it is consid-

ered (ti-dered and ;i(l.ju(l^M'(l by the Court tliat the

defendant is ,L,niilty of violating Section 37, Penal

Code, conspiracy to violate the National Pi-ohibi-

tion Act, and that he be j)unished by beinji^ impris-

oned in the King- County Jail, or in such other

prison as may be hereafter provided for the cou-

tinement of persons convicted of offenses against

the laws of the United States for the period of six

months and to pay a fine of .t25().CK) dollai's and the

costs of prosecution. And the defendant is hereby-

remanded into the custody of the United States

Marshal to carry this sentence into execution.

Judtrmc^nt and Decree No. 4, page 8o. [27]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

PETITION FOR WRIT OF ERROR.

To tlie Above-entitled Court, and to the Honorable

JEREMIAH NETERER, Judge Thereof:

Conu* now the above-named defendants, Frank
Oatt, John (Jatt, Charles Romeo, Romeo Tronca

and August Pianchi, and l)y their attorney and
counsel respectfully show that on the 31st day of

December, 1925, a jury impaneled in the above-
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entitled court and cause returned a verdict tinding

the defendants above named guilty of the charge

set forth in the indictment in said cause, which in-

dictment was theretofore filed in the above-entitled

court and cause, and thereafter, and within the

time limited by law, under the rules and order of

this court, said defendants moved for a new trial,

which said motion was by the Court overruled and

an exception thereto allowed; and thereafter and

on the 11th day of January, 1926, said defendants

were, by order and judgment of the court above

entitled, in said cause, sentenced as follows: Frank

Gatt, 2 years McNeil's Island and fine $2,500.00;

John Gatt, 21 months McNeil's Island and fine

$2,000.00; Charles Romeo, 18 months McNeil's

Island and fine $500.00; Romeo Tronca, 6 months

King (^ounty Jail and fine $250.00; August Bianchi,

6 months King County Jail and fine $2,500.00 [28]

And, your petitioners herein, feeling themselves

aggrieved by said verdict and the judgment and

sentence of the Court herein as aforesaid, and by

the orders and rulings of said Court, and proceed-

ings in said cause, now herewith petition this court

for an order allowing them to prosecute a writ of

error from said judgment and sentence to the Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals of the United States for the

Ninth Circuit, under the laws of the United States,

and in accordance with the procedure of said court

made and provided, to the end that the said pro-

ceedings as herein recited, and as more fully set

forth in the assignments of error presented hcicwiili,

may be reviewed and the manifest error appearing
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upon ihr face of llic ivcmd nl" said proccodini^'s and

upon llu' trial of said ransc may Ik- by said Circuit

('(.uiM of Appeals (•..n-crlcd, and llial I'oi- said i)ur-

posc a writ <d' crro!- and cilation thereon slmuld

issue as ))y law and rulin«r of the Court provided;

and wlieret'ore, premises considered, your petition-

ers ])ray tliat a writ ol* ernu* issue to the end tliat

said proreedinus of the District (Nmrt of the United

States f*or the Western District (d' Washin^^ton may

lu' reviewed and coricelcMK llie said eri<.rs in said

record heinu" herewith assiii^ned and presented here-

witli, an<l tliat pendinu- the tinal (h'terniination of

said writ of ovv^v hy said Ai)i)ellate Court, an order

may he entered lierein that all further ])roceedings

l)e susi>ended and stayed, and that iKMidiniz; such

final determination said defendants he admitted to

hail.

JOHN F. DOHE,
IlKHMON S. FRYE,
Attorneys for Defendants.

[Endorsed]: Filed Mar. 21. V.)'!!. [29]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ASSIGNMENTS OF EHHOH.

Come now tin- ahove-named defendants, Frank

Catt. dohn Catt, Charles Romeo, Romeo Tronca

and Aujiust Hianchi, and in connection with their

petition for writ of error in this cause, submitted

and filed herewith, assiiin the following errors which

said defendants aver and say occurred in the pro-
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ceedings and at the trial in the above-entitled cause

and in the above-entitled court, and upon which

they rely to reverse, set aside and correct the judg-

ment and sentence entered herein, and say that

there is manifest error appearing upon the face of

the record and in the proceedings, in this:

I.

The Court erred in admitting the testimony of

W. M. Whitney, a federal prohibition agent, over

the objection of the defendants, to which rulmg, of

the Court an exception was allowed, wherein the said

Whitney testified in substance that the envelope,

to-wit, Government 's Exhibit 46, found in the pocket

of the defendant Frank Gatt at the time of his

arrest, bearing certain street niunbers, said street

numbers being described by the said Whitney as

bootlegging joints. [30]

II.

The Court erred in admitting the testimony of

the said Whitney as to a conversation he had with

James Rossi, which was a mere recital by Rossi,

who was acting as informer for Whitney, of what

the defendants on trial were doing.

III.

The Court erred in refusing to tell the jury what

such testimony was not permissible, and erred fur-

ther in saying to the jury that such testimony could

be considered against all of the parties if a con-

spiracy was established and it was made in further-

ance of the conspiracy, on the ground that it was

apparent and evidence that it was not made in fur-
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tlicr.-uicc of ;iii>tliiiiu and lli.it tlic Court ])y such an

instruction was conij)cllinu tlic Jury to pass upon

a matter of law wliicli Itcloimcd exclusively to the

Coui't.

IV.

The Court cried in refusing to ^ive an instruc-

tion that such testinumy could not he considered

against any (d' tlie defendants on trial.

V.

The Court erred in |)ern>itting the said Whitney

to testify that Ivossi told him whenever he came to

arrest F'rank (Jatt to he careful to search his pock-

ets for a pack of papers tliat would show that the

said (latt had been collectini>- protection money for

the ])olice and for the sheriff of King County from

bootlegging joints; and in ])ermitting the said Whit-

ney to testify that Rossi was collecting for Gatt,

who would i)ass the money on to the police and

sheritf, the money being collected from bootlegging

establishments other than the Monte Carlo; and in

permitting the said Whitney to testify that as high

as .i^r2,()(K1 a month was collected; and further, that

the testimony given on cross-examination over ob-

jection, relating to the same matter, was reversible

error. [31]

VI.

The Court erred in giving the instruction wherein

conspiracy is defined as "a combination of two or

more persons by concerted action to accomplish an

agreement or unlawful purpose; the act itself is

the essence of the charge."
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VII.

The Court erred in giving the instruction as fol-

lows:

''Is any credence to be placed in the testi-

mony of Pepe, or the statements made by Rossi

to Whitney, as disclosed by Mr. Whitney.

Pepe says that a conspiracy was formed.

Whitney said what Rossi told him with rela-

tion to the activities of the defendant Frank

Gatt. From the statements of both of these

parties they were parties to the conspiracy.

Pepe said what Gatt did, that he acted under

the direction and supervision of Gatt; that the

holding of the bill of sale which was executed

in January, 1925, was without his knowledge

—

he knew nothing about it—it was given to him

by Frank Gatt and that Gatt told him what

his name was to be henceforth; and you heard

his testimony with relation to statements made

to him by Frank Gatt with relation to the con-

duct of the parties. Now you are instructed

that Pepe's testimony, likewise the statement

of Mr. Rossi under the law are denominated

accomplices, and the testimony of an accom-

plice is from a polluted source. Now the tes-

timony of an accomplice should be received

with care and caution and subjected to careful

scrutiny in the light of all of the other evidence

in the case; and the jury ought not to convict

upon the testimony of an accomplice alone un-

less after a careful examination of such testi-



Vnitffi Sfntrs of Awrn'rn. 29

monv the Jiiiors mic satisliod beyond a roason-

i\h\v (Iniiht <tf its trutli .-md that they can safely

rely upon it."

\ 111.

The Court I'l-red in instriictin;^ tlu' .jury as fol-

lows :

'*l)i(l the cxhiitits that were taken fi'oin the

person of Mi-, h'l-ank (iatt. did they show any

(mh Tolxtrat i(»n of the witness Mepe's testimony,

as disclosed upon the witness stand, oi* the tes-

timony of Ml-. Whitney as given here."

IX.

The Court erred in giving that part of his in-

struction beginning witli the woi-ds, **I think I want

to say something else," and ending with the words

"Judicial notice." [:V2]

X.

The Court erred in passini^- ujxm the exception,

wherein he tttld the Jury tiiat tluy could consider

Rossi's statement as disclosed hy Mr. Whitney with

all tile othei- statements in the cjnse.

XJ.

Thereafter, and within the time limited by law

and the ordei- and rules of this Court, said defend-

ants moved lor a new ti-ial, which said motion was

overruled by the Court, and an exce])tion allowed,

which ruling of the (\)urt the defendants now tts-

sign as error.

XII.

And the Court thereafter entered Judgment and

sentence against said defendants, uj)on the verdict

of guilty rendered U]ion said indictment, to which
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ruling and judgment and sentence the defendants

excepted, and now the defendants assign as error

that the Court so entered judgment amd sentence

upon the verdict.

And as to each and every of said assignments of

error, as aforesaid, the defendants say that at the

time of making of the order or ruling of the Court

complained of, the defendants duly excepted and

were allowed an exception w^herever the same ap-

pears in the record to the ruling and order of the

Court.

JOHN F. DORE,
HERMON S. FRYE,

Attorneys for Defendants.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 21, 1927. [33]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER ALLOWING WRIT OF ERROR AND
FIXING AMOUNT OF BOND.

A writ of error is granted on this 11th day of Jan-

uary, 1926, and it is further ordered that, pending

the review herein said defendants be admitted to

bail, and that the amount of supersedeas bond to be

filed by said defendants be Frank Gatt, $5,000.00;

John Gatt, $5,000.00; Charles Romeo, $3,000.00;

August Bianchi, $1,500.00, and Romeo Tronca, $1,-

500.00.

And it is further ordered that, upon the said

defendants filing their bonds in the aforesaid sum,

to be approved by the Clerk of this court, they shall
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!)(' released fioiii custody pending- the determination

of tho writ of eii'or heicin assipnod.

Done in open court, tliis 11th day (d' January,

192().

JKRFAIIAII XKTKRKH,
.Jud^o.

[Endorsed]: Filed Mai-. 'Jl. UV21. \:]\]

[Title of rouvi and Cause.]

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO AND IN-

CLUDING AI»RIL 10, 192(). TO FIFE BILL
OF EXCEPTIONS.

For j.^ood cause shown, IT IS HEREBY OR-
DERED that the time for filin«;- the bill of excep-

tions in the above-entitled cause in the above-en-

titled coui-t be and the same hereby is extended to

and including the 10th day of April, 1926.

Done in open court this 22 day of March, 1926.

JEREMIAH NP:TERER,
Judge.

General Order Book No. 12, at i)age 172. [35]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS.

BE IT REMEMBERED that on the 29th day of

December, 1925, at the hour of ten o'clock in the

forenoon, the above-entitled cause came on regu-
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larly for trisrl in the above-entitled court, before

the Honorable Jeremiah Neterer, Judge thereof,

the plaintiff appearing by T. P. Revelle, Unite"<3.

States Attorney for said District, and C. T. Mc-

Kinney, Assistant United States Attorney, and the

defendants Charles Romeo, August Bianchi, John

Gatt and Frank Gatt being present in person and

by their counsel, John F. Dore, and the defendant

Romeo Tronca being present in person and by his

counsel, Hermon S. Frye.

A jury having been regularly and duty impan-

elled and sworn to try the cause, and the Assistant

United States Attorney having made a statement to

the jury, the following evidence was thereupon of-

fered :

TESTIMONY OF ADAM A. SHAFER, FOR
THE GOVERNMENT.

ADAM A. SHAFER, a witness produced on be-

half of the United States, being duly sworn, testi-

fied as follows: [36]

Direct Examination.

That on March 25, 1923, I went to the Monte

Cai'lo Pool-room and bought two drinks over the

bar from the defendant Bianchi. He rang the

money up in the cash-register. The same thing

occurred on the 26th.

That on March 28th, we went in there at the

noon hour and bought two drinks from Bianchi.

We asked the man in there for a bottle, he said, "I

will get you a bottle," and he went out through the
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(Testimony «»r Ad.-im A. SliatVi-.)

})ack \v;n' inio tlic alley; we stood al the end of the

bar waitiiiu I'or him to come l)a('k ; in the mean-

time two police officers came in and were taikin^i to

Frank (iatt,—wei-e standinir in the middle of tlie

fio(H- in ffont <d" the hai*; this man came in the

front dooiwith the hottle, and i^'iaid< (iatt ^r;rl)l)e<l

him hy the aim, tnnied him around and said some-

thing to him, and the man kept goin^- thi'ou^li the

]i!ace, tlii-ouuh the j)0()l-liall out into the alley; we

followed him tliiid<in<;- we would identify him later,

and he Jumjx'd into a Chinese laundry hack in

there; we waited foi* about half an hour, he did not

come back; we icixtrted it to Mi". Whitney, and

that afternoon they p:ot thiily gallons of licjuor

there. Moorinu, who is now dead was there at the

time. Flank (Jatt came in just a few minutes be-

fore this man went out after the bottle and he was

walkinu up ;nul down in front of the bar. Then*

was nobody else in there at that time; there wei'c

quite a number of men in back in the pool-room;

there is a pool-room in the back and some card-

tables on the side there.

1 saw Bianchi and Homeo, and Frank and John

Cijrtt; I think this Tronca was there, too.

In March, 192:>, Homeo was a bottleman. [:)7J
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TESTIMONY OF ARINELLO PEPE, FOR
THE GOVERNMENT.

ARINELLO PEPE, a witness produced on be-

half of the Government, being duly sworn, testified

as follows:

Direct Examination.

I worked at the Monte Carlo, which is a pool-

room, restaurant and barber-shop. I worked for

Frank and John Gatt at the Monte Carlo. There

is a bar there. I started to work in July, 1924,

and worked there from July 24, 1924, to August

20, 1925. My first occupation was a bottleman. I

carried a bottle in my pocket. When the barrtender

called for the bottle I would hand it to him across

the bar, and when he got through with it he handed

it ba:ck to me. I got this bottle in room 17 in the

Paul House just above the Monte Carlo. There

was on an average ten or twent}^ gallons of whiskey

in room 17 in the Paul House right along. I

worked from three o'clock in the afternoon to one

in the morning. Bianchi paid me my salary. Bi-

anchi got the money from John Gatt. When the

bartender quit I became bartender. I worked as

a bottleman about five or six months and was bar-

tender sc little over a month,—about a month. I

sold lots of intoxicating liquor at the Monte Carlo

and rang the money up in the cash-register. I took

the money out of the register and I put it in the

sack and leave $25.00 in the register all the time.

I put the balance right in the safe. The safe was
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(Testimony of Arincllo Pcpc.)

open when I stai'ted to work .nid I woiild close it

when T went <mt. When I Icinc at niiilit I would

])Ut the money in the safe and close tlie safe. I

don't know who opejied it in tlie morning; Hiaiichi

or .John (fatt oi* Tronea tojj:ethei-. It was open all

day. I nevei' had the coiiihinat ion to the sate. 1

got the key to room 17 Irom tin bartender. Frank

(ijrtt liired me to woi'k there; the wa^cs were $110

a month. [;}8] I asked Fraid< (latt once for more

money. He said he was not making- money enough

to pay more. I asked him for more money when I

became bartender. He said he can't afford to pay

any more. Fiaidv (ijrtt asked me to become bar-

tender when I was in the Monte Carlo. I once

told Frank Gatt that I was going to quit, I didn't

have enough money, I wanted to quit, he said,—

I

ask him for job at the mine, to stay there; 1

never was quitting any more; go on the donkey-

engine; he said irs soon as the mine opens he gives

me job at the mine running the donkey-engine; I

didn't (juit the Monte Carlo only for that proposi-

tion.

On February 28, 1925, Frank (latt was in the

place. I was in the Monte Carlo the night the Fed-

eral otticei-s raided it. 1 had a bottle in my pocket

if someone wanted a drink. 1 didn't sell thjrt

night; just asked me to get the bottle, I did and
handed it to him and to give it to him right on the

table. That was February 2Sth. Frank Gatt was
there. He said, "Get the bottle"; I do, he was the

boss. I got the bottle from room 17 and handed
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it to him when he was right in the office. It was
Scotch whiskey. He gave it to somebody in the

office. I had a pint of whiskey in my pocket the

night I was arrested. I got out on bond Monday.

Frank Gatt and his wife and kids was there. Also

Bianchi, Tronca and Charley Romeo were there.

I am not an American citizen.

-*I went to Frank Gatt's house with August Bi-

anchi. I was right in front of the Monte Carlo

and telephone for me to August Bianchi, [39]

and he tell me that, and we went to August Bianchi

up to his house in an automobile.

Frank Gatt ga^^e me a bill of sale to the Monte

Carlo, that morning.

The next morning I met him with Charley Ro-

meo. They gave me Government's Exhibit 26, and

said my name was to be Tony Saracca. Bianchi

was the morning bartender. On February 28th,

Frmik Gatt took the money out of the cash-register.

I got the bill of sale on March 3d. I never heard

the name of Tony Saracca until that date (March

3d).

I worked at the Monte Carlo from July, 1924,

down to 1925, at $110 per month. I became bar-

tender in January, 1925. I was getting $110 at the

time and Bianchi paid me at the end of the month.

Any time I need a little money I draw and the

rest at the end of the month,—he gave me the rest.

After I became bartender I take the pay myself,

not all though, I take what I need from the regis-

ter ; make out a little slip and put it in the register.
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Dui-iiiU' WVl^) I take ihc iii«>iic>' in\s«'ir nixl put a

slip in the I'cuistcr. Auuust liiaiidii |»a\ my wa^cs

and ^ot ri-<»iii .lolmuy (latt. I sec liini ^ct it ri-<»iii

Johnny (latt niyscli'. .loliiniy (iatt .i^inc it to iiif

a couple of tijncs, Joininy (latt and Fi-aiik ( iatt. hotli

of tlu'ni. 'V\\v haitcndcr ahead of nic ^ave nie a

key to ]-ooni IT. I ^ot it from him the fii'st day I

\v('?it to work in the Monte Cai-lo, July, 1924. The

key 1 had to I'oom 17 was tlie only key to I'oom 17

that I knew anytliinu' about. 1 had that key since

the tirst of the new year, 192'); 1 liad it all the time

myself, beejiuse 1 was bartender alone all the time.

I <lidn't collect any money at all fi'om the boot-

black stand, the barber-sho]) or the restaurant.

Johnny (Ijrtt sold that barber-shop for thive or four

hundred dollars, I don't know how nuich; 1 think

three hundi-ed dollars. [40]

Them two fellows that are inside now bought the

barber-sho}). dohmiy (latt gjH'e them tlie receipt.

I never pay any rent to the Rainier Lii^ht & Power

Com])any; was Mr. Auuiist Hianchi pay: dohmiy

Gatt uave me the money.

The tirst time 1 started i)ayin}4- the rent was the

first time after I was out of* the Innni juration Sta"-

tion, the od of Mai'di. In .lanuai-y, 1925, I was

come to the Rainier Power Company and ])ay the

rent : dohnny (Jatt ,uave that money to me and uo

ahead inul })ay the i-ent, and I did. and I never see

anyb(xly.

1 was telling you, on the od of March when 1 was
go out of the Immigration Station, tirst time I pay
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rent was me and August Bianchi together, Johnny

Gatt gave us the money. I was up at Gatt's house,

on Bea"con Hill. We rode up there in a ear we got

in front of the Monte Carlo.

Johnny Gatt wrote that and I signed it at Johnny

Gatt's request, at the same time August Bianchi tell

me, he said Johnny Gatt wanted me to sign that.

My name was supposed to be Tony Saracca at that

time but it was Arinello Pepe.

Johnny Gatt got $1,000 from the Chinaman. I

didn't get any money. I just look at it on the table.

I am now working at water main and sewer ditch,

pick and shovel. Before I go to Monte Carlo I

worked as a laborer or anything.

TESTIMONY OF JOHN W. HANNUM, FOR
THE GOVERNMENT.

JOHN W. HANNUM, a witness produced on be-

half of the Government, being duly sworn, testified

as follows:

Direct Examination. [41]

I am a minister. I have visited the Monte Carlo

on May 13, 1924, and bought a drink there from ar

man named James Rossi. I went there again on

May 13th. The same thing happened. We went

back through the glass door in front there, and was

quite a group of men in there, some of them playing

l)Ool on tables in the back part of the pool-room,

and a group of men standing around; as we went

up to the bar,—were two other men with me, Mr.
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liacUstroni and Mi. Wnlkci-, .-md Mi-. Strange,

—

llic four of us ^ot iH'.-if up to llic l):ri- and Sti-an^e

asked for a shot ol' luooiishinc, an(i the man behind

the l)ai- whisth'd and another man stej)ped out of"

the huncii, the man who was hack towai'ds the out-

si(h', and eame loiward and puHed a hottU' out and

haniU'd it across the counter to this man, and he

poured out four little p^hisses of whiskey. The man

hack of the bar took the money and put it in his

])ocket. The man did the same thin^ the first time.

Mr. Strange j)aid for it hotli times.

McCHORY'S TESTIMONY.

On December 11, 192:5, I l)ou^ht drinks iiom

Rossi and Cicci. In .January and Fel)ruary I l)ui-

chased drinks from Rossi. In Marcli 1 did the

same, and likewise in Min*. Agent Carnithei-s and

myself went to the Monte Carlo, we each purchased

two drinks of moonshine whiskey from Jim Rossi;

Cicci was actinu* as bottleman ; ])assed the bottle

over the bar, as he always does on each occasion

:

we each g;ive him, Rossi, titty cents for the two

drinks; I asked for a half ])int of moonshine whis-

ke\ ; Rossi directed Cicci to uo back and get a half

pint, which he did, and he went back and passed

the bottle over to Rossi and he in turn handed the

bottle to me, and I gave him ^\.i){) for it. That

is the bottle we bought from James Rossi on Janu-

aiy 8th and which we thereafter delivered to Bill

Whitney. Rossi rang the money up in the cash-

register. [42]
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In June at different times I bought drinks from

Rossi, Cicci and Bianchi. I was in there for lunch

on this date, sitting at the lunch-counter looking

through the mirror back there to see what was

going on at the bar behind me. Several men came

in and purchased drinks over the bar from Rossi

and Cicci acted as bottleman. The mirror was back

of the lunch-counter. The lunch-counter would be

on the south side of the building, straight across

from the bar and I could see through the mirror

what was going on behind me.

I went to Monte Carlo on February 14th with a

man by the name of Diller and I purchased two

drinks of moonshine whiskey from Jim Rossi and

Cicci ; I gave him fifty cents for the two drinks, and

the money was rang up on the cash-register. On
February 20th I went in alone and purchased a

drink from Rossi, for which I paid twenty-five

cents. He rang the money up in the cash-register.

I went to Monte Carlo on March 8th, about ten

o'clock in the morning and I purchased one drink

of moonshine from Bianchi and gave him twenty-

five cents, and the money was rang up on the cash-

register.

Agent Carruthers and myself went to the Monte

Carlo on May 5th, went to the bar and ordered

drinks from Jim Rossi, Cicci was acting as bottle-

man; we each purchased two drinks of moonshine

whiskey, and we each gave him fifth cents for the

two drinks; the money was rang up in the cash-

register.
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Fi-.-uik (i.iti was standing a1 the ai'Wrv dooi- al tlio

time. 'I'lic l).ii- would he like this and the ofTico

\V(nd(l !)(' oil llic west cud cd' llic bar,—west end of

the l)ai-. 'I'licic was a door leading- [4I>] from

the ollicc hcliind the l).ii'. 'I'licic wa> aimtlicr door

that led out iutn lh<' main ))art n\' the roniii I'l'om

tlu' otlicc. Frank (Jatt was standing- in the door

hack of tlic l)ar. lie was h)okinn out at the l)ar, at.

the crowd whoever was thei'e.

On May Stii, in company with A<;-ent ( aiiuthers,

we went to the Monte Carlo and we each ])urchase(l

two drinks <d' moonshine whiskey, i^ave him tifty

cents each for tlie drinks, tlie money was i-ang; up

ill the cash-reg^ister.

On May 2(>th, about ten o'clock in the evening.

Agent Corwin and myself went to the Monte Carlo,

James Kossi was behind the bar, and I ordered two

drinks of moonshine whiskey and the bottle was

passed over the bar l)y (icci, and James Rossi

served the drinks; Corwin ordered two more diinks,

and went thi-ough the same way. and I ordered a

half pint from Rossi; lie sent Cicci to the back end of

the place to get the half pint, he brought it back

and Cicci passed the bottle over to Rossi, and Rossi

in turn gave me the bottle and 1 gave him the $1.00

for the bottle, and he rang it up on the cash-register.

This is the half pint I bought on the 2()th from

Jim Rossi and which 1 thereafter delivered to Bill

Whitney.

Frank (latt was present, standing in the office

door when I biuight it.
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About eight o'clock in the morning of May 29th,

1924, Agent Lambert and I went to Monte Carlo,

Bianchi was behind the bar, and we each ordered

two drinks of moonshine whiskey; we each gave

him fifty cents for the two drinks and he rang it

up on the cash-register ; I ordered half a pint from

Bianchi, and he sent Cicci, the bottleman, to get

the half pint, and he handed it to me and I gave

him $1.00 and he rang it up on the cash-register.

[44]

On June 13th, I went there alone and purchased

two drinks of moonshine from Jim Rossi and Cicci,

and gave him fifty cents for the drinks, and he rang

that up on the cash-register.

On June 14th I went alone and purchased two

drinks from Bianchi, gave him fifty cents for the

drinks and he rang that up on the cash-register.

As I remember Cicci was present with Bianchi.

On July 11th, I went there again in the morning

and purchased two drinks from Bianchi, and gave

him fifty cents for the drinks and he rang them up

on the cash-register.

As I remember it the bottleman there was Tronca.

I paid Bianchi for the drinks.

On August 29tli, I went there alone and I pur-

chased two drinks from the old bottleman named

Cicci; he was behind the bar at this time; I gave

him fifty cents for the two drinks and he rang the

money up on the cash-register.

In July 11, 1924, I bought drinks, the bottleman
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was Tronc.i. In August I l)()U^lit drinks fi-oni

Cicci, and also in September and October.

Cross-examination.

On Sei)tember 22d I saw Romeo and Tronca theie

al)oiit two o'clock in the afternoon. Romeo Tronca

was bottleman.

Tronca was also theic on September 25tb, also

October 27 and 29. I ncvei- bon^ht of Troncjr.

TESTIMONY OF KRVEX II. ('ARRrTHKRS,
FOR TIIF (iOVKRXMFNT.

ERVEN H. OARRTTIIERS, a witness produced

on behalf of the (lovei-nment, l)ein^- duly sworn,

testified as follows: [45]

Direct Examination.

1 am a Federal Prohibition A^^ent. I was with

McCrory at the times described by him. when he

jnirchased the liquoi- from Rossi, Cicci and Bi-

anchi.

A,t;ent McCrory and 1 went in the place and
flames Rossi was behind th(> bar, and Lewis Cicci

was out in front of the bar, Lewis Cicci was the

bottleman, and McCrory and 1 stepped up to the

bar and spoke to Rossi, and asked him for a drink

of Scotch whiskey; Rossi spoke to Cicci and asked

for the Scotch whiskey bottle. Cicci removed the

bottle from his hip pocket and handed it over the

bar to Rossi and Rossi served the drinks; we pur-

chcTsed two drinks apiece, and then he handed the

bottle back to Cicci, and he handed the bottle back
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to Cicci, and he put the bottle in his pocket. Mc-

Crory and I each paid Rossi $1.00 or Mty cents

apiece for the drinks, and he rang the money up

on the cash-register.

On January 8th, 1925, McCrory and I entered

the place, and Rossi was behind the bar and Cicci

was in front of the bar ; we each asked for a drink,

and Rossi asked Cicci for the moonshine bottle this

time, and he removed the bottle from his hip pocket

handed it over the bar the Rossi, and Rossi served

each of us two drinks; we each paid fifty cents for

the drinks, and Rossi rang the money up on the

cash-register. McCrory asked Rossi if he would

sell him half a pint ; at this time Rossi asked Cicci

to go get a half pint, as Cicci went out the back

door of the place he returned in a short time with

a half pint of moonshine whiskey, going to the end

of the bar and Rossi came and got the half pint

and came and put it on the center of the bar, and

handed it over the bar to McCrory; AlcCrory paid

him $1.25 for the half pint and he rang it up on the

cash-register.

On May 5th I went again. Rossi was behind the

bar, Cicci [46] was in front of the bar; we each

purchased two drinks of moonshine going through

the same maneuvers as before; Cicci had the bottle

in his pocket, and during this transaction Frank

Gatt was standing in the office door, like this would

be the bar, and the office would be at the other end,

and Frank Gatt was standing facing the barr, so that

he was looking at us when the transaction took
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l>la(H'; till' money was ruii«r up on the cash-rcp^istcr.

S('|)t('nii)cr 22(1 was tlic next time I was in tlicic.

C'irci was Ix'liind ihc hai', irnd Ronico Ti-onca was

bottlcnian. He had tlic bottle in his ])oeket, and

we stei»i)('d up to the l)ar and Lew Cicci was behind

the l)ai', and each asked \\)V a driid< ol" moonshine,

and the licpior was serxcd, as on ronnei- occasions,

aiul the money was run^- \\\) on the cash-i-ej^ister.

On Septemhei- 2Hth 1 went there a^ain. (Meei

was behind the bar, and Chailes Homeo was sitting"

on a stool over near the lunch-counter, and he did

not have the bottle, but I see him nod his head to

some othei- ])eople that came into the bar and ask

for drinks, lie w;rs sittin<i- at a stool at the lunch-

countei- like the l)ai" would be on this side of the

room, and the lunch-eounter was on the other side

of the room, and he was sittinu- at the lunch-counter

facinu' the bar.

Cross-examination.

1 was there on the forenoon of the 22d of Sep-

tember. Komeo Tronca was acting- as bottlemaii

at thirt time. I am certain he was there.
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TESTIMONY OF R. C. JACKSON, FOR THE
GOVERNMENT.

R. C. JACKSON, a witness produced on behalf

of the Government, [47] being duly sworn, testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination.

On June 11, 1924, together with Agent Corwin,

I bought a drink from Jim Rossi. He was the bar-

tender at the Monte Carlo.

TESTIMONY OF H. G. BACKSTROM, FOR
THE GOVERNMENT.

H. G. BACKSTROM, a witness produced on be-

half of the Government, being duly sworn, testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination.

On May 13, 1924, I bought a- drink at the Monte

Carlo from James Rossi. The money paid for the

drink was rung up on the cash-register.

TESTIMONY OF R. A. LAMBERT, FOR THE
GOVERNMENT.

R. A. LAMBERT, a witness produced on behalf

of the Government, being duly sworn, testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination.

On May 29, 1924, Bianchi was behind the bar

and Cicci was in front of the bar at the Monte
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Carlo. A^cnt McCioiv and I bought drinks from

Cicci and Bianclii. McCrory handed him $1.00 and

lie raiii? that up on the (•ash-]'e^:ist('r, and we h'ft tlic

plaee.

TESTIMONY OF EARL ('ORWIN, FOR THE
GOVERNMENT.

EARL CORWIN, a witness prochiced on lu'half

of the Government, l)ein^- duly sworn, testified as

follows:

Direct Examination.

I was a prohibition a^cnt on January 14, 1924,

f bought licjuor fiom .Jim Rossi at the Monte Carlo.

In March I did likewise. Cieei and Rossi aided in

the sale. Several times in April I ])urchased drinks

from Rossi and Cieei, and also in May. In June,

1924, [48] 1 boug-ht of Rossi. On Febnuny 28,

192'), I sensed a federal seareh-warr<nit on the

Monte Carlo. Frank (Jatt and a number of other

l)eople were in the office, sitting* at a table, upon

which was a bottle of whiskey and whiskey g^lasses.

I searched Pepe the btn'tender and took from him

a key to room 17 of the St. Paul Hotel. There was

a cache in this room that contained vai'ious kinds

of intoxicatinjjj liquor. Frank Gatt had the combi-

nation to the safe. He took the money from the

cash-register and })ut it in the sirfe. Frank Gatt

protested against the bar and fixtures being de-

stroyed. Tronca was not there that night, neither

was John Gatt.
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The first time I visited these premises was Janu-

ary 14, 1924, I believe. I went there with Agent

McCrory on that date and purchased two drinks

of moonshine from the bartender, Jimmy Rossi,

and a man by the name of Cicci acted as bottleman

at that time. I bought two drinks of moonshine

for each of us paying twenty-five cents a drink.

The money was rung up in the cash-register.

I went there again on February 11, 1924, and

bought three drinks from the bartender, James

Rossi, and paid twenty-five cents apiece for a drink.

Cicci was the bottleman and handed the bottle

over the bar to Rossi, Rossi served the drinks, I

paid Rossi the money. It wa-s rung up on the cash-

register.

I was back there again on March 7th, and I ])ur-

chased two drinks of moonshine whiskey from

Rossi, Cicci was bottleman ; I remained in the place

about fifteen or twenty minutes, had some conver-

sation with Rossi, about the election that was com-

ing up; I asked him what all he had, and he said,

*'We haven't got anything here but moonshine to-

night, but if the election goes right we trill other

things to drink after the election" intended to put

[49] to put in gin and bonded whiskey, boui'bon

and Scotch.

On March 27th I was in and bought three drinks

of moonshine whiskey from Rossi, ctnd paid him
twenty-five cents a drink ; Cicci was acting as bottle-

man at that time. There were customers standing

outside buying drinks over the bar, buying first oft*



United States of Amen'en. 40

(Tcstiinoii.N of Karl ( 'oi-w in.)

of Kossi and Cicci. 'Vhc tiioiicy was iiiii<:: up in the

cash-rcLiistci'.

I went there in tlic cNcninu- ol* April the Sth and

.James Hossi was Ix-hind tlic har; I pni'chirsed one

drink of honrhon whiskey Iroin Kossi and Cicci.

On April l^()th I was thei-e a^^ain and Ixmulit

thi-ee di-inks of Scotch from Kossi, Cicci was actinu"

as botth-man, h;rd tlie l)otth's in liis pocket, and

handed them o\-er the hai-; I paid Hossi tifty cell's

a diink foi' the Scotch, and at that time Frank (Jatt

was standing- in the office doov hxikinu" out aloim-

the h'Uiitli of the bar.

On May od, T went a^iriu and ])urchased two

drinks of Scotch from Rossi and Cicci and (Jatt

was also ])res('nt on that occasion. He was stand-

iui;- behind the har near the otlice (h)or.

On Ma>- ()t]i I i)ou,ij:ht thi-ee driid\S of Scotch i«i

thei'e from Hossi and Cicci; Frank (Jatt w;rs stand-

ing outside of the bar with foui- Italians, they were

being served by Rossi and Cicci; were a numher

of other people standing- at the bar, and (latt ra])])e(l

on the bar with some money;—wanted Rossi to come

and wjrit on him; Rossi called out so!nethinii- to him;

1 didn't unch'rstand what, and (iatt came behintl

the bar and Cicci handed tlie bottle over the bar

to (iatt, and (Jatt served the driid^s to the four

Italians and to(tk one himself fittm every round of

drinks seived, and (Jalt took the money foi- it and

ranu; it up on the cash-re»::istei-.

On May 2(), 1924, 1 went l)ack there witii A^ent

McCrory and bouiiht two drinks of moonshine wliis-
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key and half pint of moonshine [50] whiskey

from Rossi, Frank Gatt was present at that time

standing behind the bar.

On June 11, 1924, I went back again with Agent

Johnson. Purchased two drinks of Scotch whiskey

from Rossi.

February 28th, I believe, I was in possession of

a federal search-warrant and accompanied by

Agents Johnson, Linville, Kline, Mooring (now

dead), and Indian Agent Shirley. We went in the

place in the front door, and served the search-war-

rant on Arinello Pepe who was behind the bar,

searched him and from his person took a pint bottle

of whiskey, and later on I searched him and found

a key in his hat.

In the office at the west end of the bar I found

Frank Gatt and a number of other people, among

them Frank Gatt's wife and two children, on a

tray on the table in that room were five whiskey

serving glasses and each glass contained a small

quantity of whiskey, and from the person of one

of the men in the room I took a quart bottle of

whiskey.

Frank Gatt and his wife, two children, Detective

Samuelson and Detective Cleary, of the Seattle

Police Department and the agents that accompanied

me on the rarid were present.

After I had arrested the defendants behind the

bar and in the office, I left one of the agents in

charge, and went up to room 17 of the St. Paul

Hotel where Agent Whitney was, and where he had
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fuiind .1 (juaiitity ^)\' intoxicating- licpior, and he re-

turned to the oHice of the Monte Carlo, jnid searched

a |)o]-ti(Mi of the (hd'endants; I searched Arinello

Pepe, the l)artender, and from his cap I took a key

that fitted the lock to room 17 of the St. Paul Hotel,

that is a iiotel diicctly aixtve tlic Monte Carlo.

Fi'om the person of Frank Gatt I saw Mi-. Whitney

t;rke a numher of cards and nieiiiorandum of va-

rious sorts. [51]

This is Kxhihit No. 33, the key that I took fiom

the cap of Arinello Pe])e, the lock to room 17 of

the St. Paul Hotel which was unlocked hy that key

to the lock of the mechanism of the cache,—that is

the lock to the room,—the door to the room, and the

lockin*:; mechanism of the cache wheivby a secret

eontrivanee was operated hy clothes hooks in the

room.

The closet in the northeast eorner of this room

has been built over,—;r door built ovei- it which

could not be seen, slid in the wall])a])er, and was

built out from the door with a curtain han^nn^- over

it. By operating- a clothes hook over the door it

actuated this mechanism and allowed this secret

door to open, pving access to this clothes closet.

This clothes closet was fitted up as a cache and

contained a larp^e quantity of intoxicating liquor,

—

brandy, Scotch, gin, vermouth, absinthe, moon.^hine

whiskey, colored and not : several kinds of liqui>r.

There was something in the neighborhood of

thii*ty gallons of moonshine whiskey aiid seven or
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eight cases of assorted liquors, that is, imported

liquors, in the room.

After seizing these intoxicating liquors I returned

to the Monte Carlo,—made a complete search of

the room, and I found a bottle containing moon-

shine whiskey cached around in the storeroom and

under the bar; under the back bar found various

items and papers some of which were in a brief

case, the property of Frank Gatt.

This brief case w^as setting in a bottle rack be-

hind and under the back bar.

The entire premises are described as follows:

The premises known as 404 Fifth Avenue South

is a storeroom faces west on Fifth Avenue South;

upon going into the door,—just before going into

the door the barber-shop is on your left-hand side;

going inside the door is the office with a door lead-

ing [52] into the office from the outside of the

bar; directly in the rear of the office is the bar

about 30 or 35 feet long, full back bar behind it.

At the east end of the bar is a stove, a large ice-

box and in the rear of that a large room fitted up

with billiard and pool tables, and I believe a few

card-tables as well; there' were several smaller

rooms; it was in the back room that he had his

storeroom and lavatory.

The bar was one of the old-fashioned bars; full

mahogany bar; the back bar had a large mirror

in it the full length of it, and underneath the bot-

tom part of the bar was fitted up with compart-

ments to hold bottles, and in one of the compart-
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incuts was where I round the ln-icf <'as('; and also

in llic back haf s('\tii or ci^lil lioldci's in all ol'

which \vc found \aiious papci-s and documents.

'Hie hiief case contained the articles of incoijx)-

]'ati(»n and slock-hook, I lielic\-e, of the Outlook

Mininsj,- (d!iii>any, of which h'lank (Jatt was listed

as one ol' the dircctoi-s; also contained the names

of otiier directors and stockholders of the company

and otlrtcei's of tlie company.

The names of defendants James Rossi, Homeo

Tionca, and 1 helicve, Au^nst Hianchi, Matt Star-

wicli,— Frank and John (iatt, appeared in the

hook. Also Charles Romeo and two or three other

names 1 do not recall.

Gatt stated that he was in the mining business,

that was his sole l)nsiness, and he used the Monte

Carlo ;is liis ot!ice.

There was a safe in the place but it was not open

on the ninht we raided it. I asked the defendants

that were present if any of them had the combina-

tion of the safe; all oF them denied having it, and

1 told them collectively I woidd have to opeii the

safe myself if it was not ojx'ned, and Frank (Iatt

stated, *'Tt is a [53] shame to spoil a good safe

like that. I will open it for you, 1 have the com-

bination"; and he opened the safi*; we made a

search of the safe and found a small (piantity of

money in it.

When Frank (Jatt was leaving tlu' i)lace he took

the money from the cash-register and placed it in

the safe.
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As we were demolisliing the bar Frank Gatt ob-

jected at least half a dozen times, saying, "That

is a shame to spoil that bar, perfectly good bar;

that we had done enough damage that night; no

use of going any further, everything was closed,

that we had the place; to let it go that way."

He said it was a shame to break that up, he could

use it again, if it was not destroyed, in some other

place.

I had a conversation with all the defendants that

night. I questioned them all and took their per-

sonal history; asked them about their interest in

the place. I first questioned Arinello Pepe and

he stated to me at that time he was employed there

by a man, whom he did not know; had been work-

ing there for four or five months; and I questioned

Charles Romeo and he stated he had been an owner

of the place, but had sold out some three or four

months prior to the time of the raid. As I recall

Bianchi denied having anything to do with it at

all. John Gatt was not there at the time of the

raid; Frank Gatt denied he had anything to do

with it for over a year past. I talked that night

to Frank Gatt, August Bianchi, Charles Romeo,

Arinello Pepe and Lew Morelli.
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TESTIMONY OF W. M. WHITNEY, FOR THE
(iOVEKNMENT.

W. M. WHITNEY, a witness produced on be-

half of the Govenuiient, being duly sworn, testified

as follows: [54]

Direct Examination.

1 am the k*<i;al adviser of the Prohibition De-

partment. Ill November, 192:?, I bought lic^uor of

Rossi and Cicci.

I was thei'e in Mareli, T believe, 1923, was the

first,— I may have been in there in 1922; I have

been in and out of those premises ever since I have

been connected with the office.

On November 25, 1923, in the evening about nine

o'clock on Sunday evening, as I recall, I was in the

lower end of town making some investigations, and

I notici'd a iiuiiiber of men going into the Monte

Carlo so 1 followed, and walked in,—walked light

in with them as if I was a member of the party;

they walked up to the bar; there are swinging

doors as you enter these premises, then immedi-

ately to the left there was an office, and then just

to the east of this office there was a long bar on the

light-hand side as you enter, and to the south thei*e

was a restaurant and lunch-counter, in the rear of

that a number of ])Ool-tables and card-tables; wjis

oh, about fifteen men standing at the bar drinking

when I went in. Jim Rossi was behind the bar,

a man by the name of Cicci was in front of the

bar. These men would order di-inks and the bar-
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tender, I heard him ask him if he wanted the

white or the red, and whichever it was, white or

red, Cicci would take a bottle out of his hip pocket,

pass it over the bar and bartender Rossi would

pour the drinks. When they came down to where

I was standing he asked me what I wanted, I just

laid a half-dollar on the bar,—was acting as if I

was a member of this party, and I said, "I would

have some of the red"; Cicci passed the red bot-

tle over the bar and Rossi poured me out a glass

of whiskey; I paid Rossi fifty cents, the bottle was

passed back to Cicci by Rossi, and the fifty cents

was rung up on the cash-register. After I had

that drink I asked Rossi if I could get half a pint

of that, [55] '^That is pretty good stuff, I would

like to get a half-pint of that whiskey'; rather a

stillness fell for a moment, and John Gatt,—some-

thing was said by Rossi, and John Gatt was stand-

ing in the doorway of this office ; as I recall it there

was a curtain that partially shut off the doorway

from behind the bar into the office, and there was

a door that entered the office there in front of the

bar; as you entered the office there in front of the

bar; as you entered into the main part of the bar-

room there was also an entryway that went from

behind the bar into this office, and there was a cur-

tain, as I recall it, partially pulled back, and John

Gatt was standing there, and Gatt and another

man that was standing in front of the bar engaged

me in conversation, wanted to know who I was,

and wanted to know what I was, and who I knew
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around there; and 1 said, "Yes, I knew a number

of uicii around the courthouse," I ini'Utioiicd

two or tlirce I knew, and John (Jatt then said,

—nodded liis head and said, "All ri^ht"; Houieo

Tranea was in thei-e, althoup^h he didn't seem

to take any |)art in anything- that oecui-i-ed in

the i-oom at the time. After Gatt told,—John

(latt told Rossi it was all ri^dit, Rossi then

said to Cicei,—nodded his head and said, "All

ri^ht," and Cieei left the room and was gone a

couple of minutes, went out the back and came

back, and while he was o^one I ordered another

drink and also bous2:ht a drink for a man that was

standing: at the bai* next to me, and it was served

in the same way, except that Rossi had a bottle

thei-e uudi iiicatli tlu' l»ar. and })oui-ed these drinks

out, and I paid him $1.00 for the two drinks, and

the money was run^ up in the cash-registei-; then

in a short time Cicei came })ack, passed the half-

pint bottle over the bar and Rossi then passed it

to me and I paid him $;^.00 for that half pint of

whiskey; the [5(i] })ottle is on the table that I

purchased: I retained that bottle.

1 it'tained it in my locker that I have in the Pro-

hibition Oflice for a few days, and turned it over

to Agent K]in(\

1 was in these premises at the time of the raid,

February 2Stli, 11>*J"), 1 was there also in December,

I believe, either the day before or the day after

Christmas, in 1924, when there was a raid at that

plaee; I didn't go with the officers at first, but
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came down before they left, at which time they had

Lew Cicci under arrest. On February 28, was the

next time I was there, 1925, along in the after-

noon between 5:30 and 6:00 o'clock in the evening;

I had a search-warrant for 404% Fifth Avenue

South, which is immediately over the Monte

Carlo; I went upstairs, and in going around to

the various rooms I came to room 17, which had a

Yale lock on it; I could smell from the hallway

the odor that I am familiar with of whiskey, and

the proprietor of this place had no key with which

he could unlock this door. After I had been there

ten minutes probably someone sent for me down-

stairs, and I went downstairs, and downstairs in

the Monte Carlo I went in the front way, and I

saw in the office standing around a large round

table in this office the following persons: Council-

man Hesketh, Detective Martin Cleary, and an-

other one by the name of Samuelson or Simond-

son, Frank Gatt, Mrs. Gatt, I believe she was sit-

ting down with the two children, and another man
whose name I have forgotten, but whose name I

have in my notes some place. There was also

standing behind the bar Arinello Pepe, who was

on the stand earlier; there were quite a number of

people in the place, some of them standing, some

sitting at the lunch-counter, on the lunch-counter

stools. I came back, I saw this tray on the counter

with the glasses on that have been produced in

evidence, with a little liquor in each of the glasses;

also this bottle that was on the tray with probably
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an ounce, or [57 J hall-ounce or three-quarters

of li(jUor in it; also saw the bottle that was taken

from Pepe that was introduced in the last trial;

this bottle has not been in the possession of any

prohibition officer since it has been introduced at

tile last trial: it is empty. Pepe stated he had

that bottle oi" wliiskey on his person. I immedi-

ately went in and spoke to Gatt, and spoke to Hes-

keth. 1 asked Hesketh in the presence of Gatt

what he was doing down there, he said, **I came

down here to have a talk with Frank Gatt about re-

newinc^ his pool-room and card-room licenses; just

downi here investigating," and Gatt stated that that

w^as so, also stated that that was what Hesketh was

there foi-. 1 then searched the person of Frank

Gatt,—or just about that time Corwin brought

Pepe inside of the door and searched his person,

and I saw Corwin take from the person of Pepe,

from his cap this key, which Corwin inunediately

turned over to me; he stated, I believe, that might

unlock room 17; anyway he turned it to me and

I stuck it in my pocket for a minute; I then

searched the person of Frank Gatt, that is where

1 took from one of his ])ockets—vest pockets the

folded memorandum which is there on the desk; I

don't know what the number of the exhibit is.

Exhibit 52 is the car that I took from in back of

the bar, a little later on in one of the drawers in

the back bar; that is the car upon which is marked

Govennnent's Exliibit 52. The other three cards

of the Monte Carlo with the names on them, and
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it was attached to Government's Exhibit 52 and

upon each of which there is a memorandum or

writing in purple ink, which I know is written by

Gatt because he said so. I took from Gatt's per-

son this check-book.

I had told Frank Gatt when I first tvlien in he

was under arrest. This exhibit 44 I took from the

person of Frank Gatt; had it in his pocket. This

was on the night of February 28, 1925.

Government's Exhibit 46 I took from his vest

pocket, folded up in the way it naturally folds up.

[58]

Mr. Whitney identified Government's Exhibit

46, as a paper which he took out of Frank Gatt's

vest pocket, folded up naturally, and testified that

he was familiar with the premises and buildings

mentioned on the exhibit as they were on Febru-

ary 28th, 1925.

Q. Now, Mr. Whitney, are you familiar with

those premises described in that exhibit?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know what kind of premises those

buildings were*?

Objected to by the defendants on the ground that

it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial. Ob-

jection overruled and an exception allowed.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What kind were they?

Same objection by the defendants, on the same

grounds.
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The Silvci- Dollar is a soft-drink Joint at 2171/^

SetMjiul Avenue South; 1 Ki 'IMiird Avenue South is

a sol't-drink har and bootlegging joint. KM^/o

Foui'tli AveiHie South was a soi't-drink l)ar and

hootleg^inu, joint.

Ml*. DOlxK.—We ask an exeeption to all this

testimony.

The (X)UKT.—Yes, note an exeeption.

Tliat tlu' Sihcr Dollai- is a soft-drink joint at

2171/2--tl Avenue, South.

That llt)-.'5d Ave. South is a soft-drink l)ai-, aiid

buotlei^gino^ joint.

That l()4yo-4th Ave. South was a soft-drink l.ar

and l)ootleii:<z:ino- joint.

2ir)-2(l Ave. South at that time was a hootle^-

trino- jt>int and had a l)ar and soft-drink j)lace simi-

lai- to the Silver Dollai- near it.

The South Pole was at the northwest cornei" of

Dearborn and (Jth Ave. South, a soft-drink bar

and bootle^ginii joint.

21D/2-2d Ave. South was a bootleff^inc: joint

downstairs similarly fitted uj) as the Silvei' Dollar.

U)') Washinjrton Street was a bootlegging joint

and soft-drink bar.

2171/2 Washini»ton Street was uj) to a few days

before the raid on the Monte Carlo a bootlegginLr

and soft-driidv joint.

104 Wasliington Street was a sort of soft-drink

and bootlegging joint.

101 Oeeidental u]) to a few days lu'fore the i-aid

on the ^lonte Carlo was a bootlegging joint and a
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soft-drink place in the basement under Joe Diz-

ards.

On the reverse side of exhibit 46

—

2l5-2d Ave. South was a bootlegging joint at

that time. [59]

Mr. Whitney further testified that exhibit 50 was

taken from the wall back of the bar on the day of

the raid, February 28th, 1925.

That exliibit 47 was taken out of one of the

drawers of the back bar of the Monte Carlo on Feb-

ruary 28, 1925.

That exhibit 48 was taken by the witness from

the same drawer on the same date.

That exhibit 50, 47 and 48 were introduced in

evidence.

That exhibit 49 w^as taken by the witness off the

wall of the Monte Carlo back of the bar on the day

of the raid February 28, 1925, and the same was ad-

mitted in evidence.

That Government's Exhibit 54 was taken by the

witness from a drawer on the back bar immedi-

ately back of the slot machine which was on the bar

the day of the raid, February 28, 1925 ; the slot ma-

chine was one of the new models that were being

placed at that time. The exhibit was admitted in

evidence.

That Government's Exhibit 55 was found by the

w^itness in one of the drawers in the back bar of

the Monte Carlo on February 28, 1925, and was ad-

mitted in evidence.
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Government's Exhil)it 51 was found by the wit-

ness in the same place on the same date, and was

admitted in evidenee.

(Jovei-nment 's Kxhihit 5:5 was taken I'rc^m the same

])laee by the witness at the same time, and the de-

fendant Frank Gatt admitted that the writing on

the exhiltit in j)iir])h' ink was in his handwriting,

and tlie exhil)it was admitted in e\ idence.

Exhibits 38, 39, 40, 41, and 42, and 4:5, were ad-

mitted in evidence over the objection of defendants

on the ground that tliey had no bearing on the case,

exception allowed. [60]

Mr. Whitney further testitied that on the niglit

of Fei)ruaiy 28, 1925, he assisted in searching the

pei-sons of Pe])e and Frank Gatt ; that one Hes-

keth and two ])]ain clothes men were present; that

he saw Agent Corwin take a key from the pereon

of Pe})e with wliidi he went upstairs and opened

u]) the Vale lock on room IT; that said room was

not occupied; that it smelled strongly of whiskey;

that he found a large secret cache in one conier

in which there was found a large quantity of as-

sorted liquoi-s, of about 30 gallons of moonshine. 5

cases of bonded whiskey among the brands of

which were Teacher's and Black and White; that

after finding the liquors he came down again to the

Monte Carlo, assisted in the search, found the ar-

ticles heretofore identified and engaged Frank

Gatt in conversation; that there was a locked safe

in the offtce; that defendants Romeo and Pepe

claimed not to have the combination but Frank Gatt
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at this time stated he had sold the Monte Carlo to

Charles Romeo and Romeo Tranca on January 19,

1924, and had executed a bill of sale to the same;

that he and his brother John Gatt had owned the

Monte Carlo for a period of about five years pre-

viously.

Mr. Whitney further testified that he questioned

the defendant Gatt quite closely regarding the

ownership and operation of the Monte Carlo be-

cause a short time previously he had talked a num-

ber of times with one of the employees of Frank

Gatt, a defendant named James Rossi; that the

witness talked to Rossi in December, 1924, and in

January, 1925, and February, 1925, and talked to

him personally on a number of other occasions dur-

ing those months over the telephone; that Rossi

stated that he was at all those times before the raid

on the Monte Carlo and was still in the employ of

and working with Frank Gatt; that he went to

work first for Frank and John Gatt several months

prior to November, 1923, as a bartender [61] in

the Monte Carlo at one hundred ten dollar^ per

month; that he worked one of the shifts of eight

hours at the Monte Carlo from the time of his em-

ployment until in the early summer of 1924, after

which time he became an outside man in the sell-

ing and handling of whiskey and in helping to op-

erate some stills for the Gatts and the Monte Carlo

outfit and also became a collector for the Gatts

which Rossi stated to the witness was his business

at the time of these conversations. Rossi further
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tuld witness lliat while lie was bartender John and

Frank (Jatt weic ihe (wners ol" the Monte Carlo and

the princijial (»nes connected with the Monte Cai'lo

outiit;that in the Monte Carlo outfit were Lonis

Cicei, Frank (Jatt, Jolni (Jatt, Charles Honieo, Ho-

meo Tranea and August Hianchia: that until the

snnnner of 1924, he sold whiskey over the hai; that

they always had a bottlenian oi- man in front of

the bar whose business it was to carry the bottle;

that Frank Gatt carried on his whiskey business

out of the Monte Carlo and saw those he supplied

with nioonsliine in tlic office of tlie Monte Carh);

that when he, K'ossi, went to work he would find

a certain amount of the nionex' left in the cash-

register: that he rang up the money in the cash-

register for the sales of whiskey and that Frank Gatt

at least once a day came and counted up the money

and would take the money and that scmietimes

John (liatt would come and count u]) and take the

money; that he would get his wages as long as

he was at the Monte Carlo from either P'rank or

John Gatt and that lie lias seen August Bianchia

also get his money t'l'om John or Frank (Jatt.

Rossi stated to witness that someone came into the

Monte Carlo two or three days after Rossi had

sold Mr. Whitney whiskey in November, 1925, and

told Frank Gatt that it was Whitney to whom he

had sold whiskey a short time before, and that Gatt

got scared and told Rossi to lay otT a few days on

the selling; that the Gatts became worried in Jan-

uary, 1924, over [62] the rumor that :Mr. Whit-
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ney was attempting to apprehend the Monte Carlo

and on January 19, 1924, Frank Gatt made a bill

of sale to Charles Eomeo and Romeo Tranca; that

the bill of sale stated that the price was six thou-

sand dollars; that this was a fake bill of sale; that

neither Tronca nor Romeo paid Frank Gatt any-

thing, that they simply allowed Gatt to transfer the

property to them and that at all times up into Feb-

ruary, 1925, Frank Gatt and John Gatt were the

owners of the Monte Carlo and neither Rossi,

Tronca or Romeo had anything to do with the

Monte Carlo as owners and that Frank Gatt con-

tinued to take the money every day after he exe-

cuted the bill of sale just like he did before. That

one of the reasons that Tronca and Romeo in Feb-

ruary, 1924, executed a bill of sale of one-third in-

terest in the Monte Carlo to Rossi was that Rossi

applied for and got from the City Council of Seattle

a card-room and pool-table license because only

citizens could get licenses and neither Tronca nor

Romeo were citizens; that Rossi did not put up any

money for this alleged interest, and that in fact

he, Rossi, had not any interest; that this arrange-

ment was gone through at the request of Frank

and John Gatt. That he, Rossi, executed a bill

of sale for his interest over to Tronca and Romeo;

that neither Tronca nor Romeo paid him anything

for this. That Charles Romeo was the right-hand

man of Frank Gatt, and they worked together in

the whiskey business out of the Monte Carlo; that

later Romeo Tronca made a bill of sale to Charles
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Romeo; tliat Troiica, so far as Ihc Monte Carlo

is concerned, merely lidd title to cover up for

Frank Gatt; that latei- Uumeo Tronca made a bill

of sale to a fictitious person under the name of

Tony Saraci and when I^ossi talked to witness in

February, 1925, they had not yet found anyone

who would answer as Tony Saraci ; that Rossi, Ro-

meo, and Tronca had often talked the matter over

with Frank (Jatt as to [()^i] the coverinj^ up of

the ownership; that these fake bills of sale; that

he knew Gatt paid Komeo and Tronca money but

he did not know exactly how much they were get-

tin<]^ but he did know August Bianchia was getting

one hundred ten dollars pci* month; that room 17

at the Saint Paul Rooms, 404V2 Fifth Avenue

South, just over the Monte Carlo was used as a

chach and had been used for a long time and even

before he, Rossi, went to work at the Monte Carlo

and that it was still being used in February, 1925,

and that Rossi explained to the witness just where

the secret cache was in room 17, and how to open

it and get into it; that if they raided the Monte

Carlo and searched the bartender they would find

the key on his person which would open it and get

into it ; that they sometimes carried 20 to 25 gal-

lons of whiskey and several cases of bonded stuff

in this cache. That Rossi told the witness in Feb-

ruaiy, 192'), that he would uotit'y tlie witness when

the cache was tilled up and said that they were

about to put a large (piantity of liquor in the cache

and he, Rossi, would ]ihone witness when it was
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full and that Rossi did a few days later phone him

that the liquor was in the cache and he would find

the key to the cache and said that Gatt often came

in the evening to the office in the Monte Carlo and

concluded his deals for liquor in the office. The

defendant Rossi also stated to the w^itness that if

they arrested and searched Frank Gatt they would

find in his pocket papers and documents showing

the places that the Gatts were doing business with

the amount they paid; that defendant Rossi fur-

ther stated to witness that while he w^as working as

bartender August Bianchia w^as working as morn-

ing bartender, working until about four o'clock in

the afternoon at which time Rossi went on shift;

that Bianchia had a bottleman as well as he, Rossi.

Rossi further stated to the witness that Frank

Gatt was working in the Monte Carlo as a bar-

tender up until the early part of 1923, after which

time he [64] did not work very much.

At this time, 5:05 P. M. aii adjournment was

taken until 9 :30 A. M., December 30, 1925.

Direct Examination of Mr. WHITNEY Resumed.

Mr. Whitney resumed the narrative of his con-

versation with Rossi and stated that Rossi had told

him he was just a day or two before the raid on

the Monte Carlo that he was still in the employ of

Frank Gatt getting one hundred ten dollars ])er

month and had informed witness that room 17 of

the Saint Paul Rooms, 4041/4 Fifth Avenue South

was being fitted up and well stocked with liquors

and that the witness would find the cache full as he
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Ii.id t<tl(l wilncss a lew days before lie would let

him know when it was stocked; thai this cache w;rs

merely a woi'kinu cache i'oi- the Monte Carlo and

a tew of the smallei- estahiisinnents f'oi- wliich the

!Moiit(' Carlo linnished whiskey around tliere and

that the cache would he full hy the time we could

make the raid.

Kossi turtiiei- stirted to the witness that in De-

cember, 1924, and damiaiy, 1925, that either Frank

(futt or John (hitt would come each moi'nin.u- and

uet the money

—

Mr. J)()HK.—We ask the jury he instrueted that

this testimony only uoes as a^jrinst the del'endant

Rossi, it eaimot be taken to establish an\' fact

auainst any othei- defendant.

Mr. MeKlNNEY.—This is a conversation I un-

derstand prior to the termination of the conspiracy.

Q. {By the COCHT.) When was this consi)iracy i

A. It was in the Fall of 1924 or early part of

Jamiary, 1925.

The C^OUKT.—Very well, i^-o ahead.

Mr. DOHE.— I renew the request. Is the re-

<iuest for such an instruction denied at this time .^

The (X^rUT.—At this time.

Mr. DORK.—Note an excej)tion. [()5]

The COCKT.— 1 will state that unless the con-

spiracy is established between these j)arties, of

which Rossi is a part, then the statement made by

Rossi could not be construed apiinst any (d' the

other defendants except himself, nor can the state-

ment itself be construed, as establishing conspiracy
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as against the other parties, but only bind Mr.

Rossi, and if a statement was made in furtherance

of the conspiracy, and the conspiracy is established,

then it may be construed as against a:ll the parties.

WITNESS.—(Continued.) Mr. Rossi also stated

that in 1925, a few days before the raid he was

working under the direction of the Gatts and Frank

Gatt in particular send was collecting from other

bootlegging establishments which Frank Gatt and

John Gatt operated out of the Monte Carlo and

was furnishing liquor and collecting thousands of

dollars a month, as high as twelve thousand dollars

a month, and turned it over to Frank Gatt as pro-

tection and graft money from these institutions and

brought it up to the office and turned it over to

Frank Gatt in the office of the Monte Carlo.

Mr. DORE.—I move that testimony be stricken

and the jury instructed to disregard it as incompe-

tent, irrelevant and immaterial.

The COURT.—With relation to the collection of

the graft money, that may be stricken. Proceed.

Mr. DORE.—Note an exception.

The COURT.—Note it.

The witness resuming stated that in 1925 and be-

fore the raid in 1925, Rossi explained that he and

the Gartts and (^harles Romeo had talked it over

several times to know what to do because they had

executed a bill of sale to a fellow named Tony Sa-

raci; that there was no Tony Saraci and that they

got that name in the bill of sale and that they were

in a hell of a fix, to use Rossi's expression, and



I'nitcd States of Aniirica. 71

(Testimony <.!' W. M. Wliidicy.)

didn't know how to ^ct title out of that name

lu'cansc cveiybody was al'iaid to come np and siirn

a f)a])('r that his name was 'l'(»ny Sai'aei and that

that was the situation the last time witness talked

witli liossi.

On the niuht ol' the I'aid I had a conversation

with l^'raidv (latt. Knowing- these things thjrt i

have stated 1 (juestioned [()(>] (latt re^ardin^- his

ownei'ship, and lie stated to me that lie had sold this

to Charley Romeo and Uomeo Tronea on December

Jf)th, 1924, and that he was not the owner. I then

said, "Well, did you own it all tiie time i'oi- several

years past U]) to the time you claim y(»u sold it

out r' "Yes," he said. 1 said, "J)id you own this

place in March,—this Monte Carlo in March, 1924,

or 192)}," he said he did; and I asked him if he re-

ceived all the proofs, took in all the money and was

responsible foi- the bills ;nid paid the bills, and ^ot

the money that was in the cash-register up to the

time he sold it, which was in January, 1924, he said

that he did. I asked him if Lew Cieei was working

for him in December, lf>24, before he sold out, and

he said yes, Cicci was working foi- him, one of his

employees, had worked on the Hooi-, as he ex])ivssed

it. Then I asked him if lie liad em])loyed,—if Jim
Kossi had worked for him u]) to the time that he

sold the place out, and Gatt stated that Hossi was
one of his employees, was a bartender there behind

the bai', and iiad worked for him during these

times. I asked him if the iiKuning man Bianchi

had been an employee of his, and he said, "Yes,"
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that he employed all the men that worked in the

Monte Carlo, he owned it and had rented the bar-

ber-shop and the lunch-counter up to that time that

he had sold the place,—claimed to have sold the

place. Then I had some conversation with him

when we were doing the searching.

I said, "Gatt, we would take that bar apart,"

and he said,
'

' I wish you wouldn 't do that ; what is

the use of doing that; I am a good fellow, and you

are a good fellow, no use of doing that"; I said,

*'What interest have you got in this; if you don't

own the bar what do you care whether I take that

bar apart, or whether I don't?" He said, ''It cost

me a lot of money to get another bar. [67] It is

a good bar, I wish you would not do that
;
you ha^^e

got the stuff what is the use of doing anything fur-

ther." And during the process of taking that apart

he asked me two or three times, spoke to me two

or three times about it; and I suggested I guess I

would have to look behind the mirror, he said,

"Don't do that." No one else there raised any

objection, neither Pepe nor Chan^ley Romeo nor

anyone else made any remonstrance at all; each

of them said it was not theirs' they didn't care what

we did.

Gatt opened the cash-register, pulled the drawer

out underneath the cash-register and took ix pouch

or sack, and counted the money carefully and

stacked it up and counted it and })ut some of this

money, I don't know whether he put it all in one
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of the sacks, I saw him take it, iiiaUc a iiiciiiniaii-

(luni inul pill ill llic salV and lock tlic sale.

lie put it ill tlic small office safe.

Exhibit '.V2 is one «»f the six <^alloiis of iiHMmsliine

ill uajloii jiius that was taken rroiii the cache in

room 17 ill the St. Paul Rooms, on February 28,

1J)2().

K.xhibit 20 is a bottle of whiskey I saw Mr. Kline

liave that was taken at the Monte C.-rrlo when Cicci

was arrested on Dec J(i, ]92'-).

Exhibit 8 is one of the ten (|uaits in bottles like

this that were found in the cache in room 17 on the

28th day of Febiuary. 192').

Exhibit 1, nine (piarts of l)randy in i-ooni 17 on

the 2Sth day of Feb., 1925.

lv\hil)it 5, there were twenty-one quarts of Black

and White in two cases taken from room 17 on the

28th (d" Feb., 192(i.

Exhibit 19 is a (piart id' white moonshine that was

poured from one of the three five-gallon ke^s that

was in the case in room 17 (»n the 2Sth of F'ebruary,

1925.

Fxhil)it i) is one of the eight or nine quarts, I

have forp)tten which without referring t<» my notes,

of .John Dewar's Special lifjuor [(j8] found in

the cache in room 17 on this February 28th, 1925,

the night of the raid.

Exhibit 17 is one of the twenty-one quarts of Per-

fection Scotcli whiskey found in room 17 in tiie

carcbe.
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Exhibit 2 is one of two quarts of John Dewar's

found in the cache in room 17.

Exhibit 9 is, I believe, one of the two bottles of

creme de menthe that was found in the cache; this

is a cordial liquor; it contains more than one-

half of one per cent and tit for beverage purposes.

Exhibit 6 is one of a half case of gin that was

found in room 17 on Februery 28th, 1925.

Exhibit 18 is one of twelve 23ints of colored moon-

shine found in room 17, February 28th, 1925.

Exhibit 13 is one of eighteen pints of white dis-

tilled spirits or moonshine found in room 17, in the

cache, on February 28th, 1925.

Exhibit 14 is one of eighteen half pints of colored

moonshine found in the cache to room 17 on Febru-

ary 28th, 1925 ; that is one of them.

Exhibit 30, is the same as above.

Exhibit 21 is one of the full pints of white moon-

shine taken from same room and ca'che.

Exhibit 24 is one of the half pints of white moon-

shine taken from room 17 on February 28, 1925.

Exhibit 12, taken from cache in room 17, half

pint of white moonshine.

Exhibit 22 one of the pints of white moonshine;

same answer applies as to Exhibit No. 21. [69]

Exhibit No. 4 is a bottle of Black and White that

I sar\v standing by or on the tray in the office when

I first went into the Monte Carlo, when Mr. Hes-

keth and the others were there.

Exhibit No. 15 is a bottle that was standing by

the tray on the counter on the evening of the 28th
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of Ffbniary, n)2r), at the Moiitc Carlo when Mi.

(Nirwin called iiic down: at that time it was full oi'

whiskey, and was not l)roken, and I s;n\ it and iden-

tiHed it at the last trial, when it was admitted in

evidence.

Exhibit No. 25 is a hottlc that was turned to me

by Ajjents McCr(H'\' and Laniix'it on or ai)ont May
2f)th, 1924, and held in ine for a short time and

then turned ovei- to Agent Kline, the custodian.

K.\hil)it No. 2'.] is the same as jrbove. it was about

May 2(ith that I received it, 1924, and I had it a

siiort time, and turned it to Mj". Kline.

Exhibit No. 27 is the bottle I purchased on the

25th of November, 1923, for $3.()(): 1 kei)t it in

my locker until in the suimner of 1924, 1 believe,

and 1 turned it o\'ei' to Mi'. Kline with some of the

others.

p]xhibit No. 29 is a bottle that was brought to me
by McCrory and Carruthers about J;nuiary 8th;

they mai-ked it in my j)resence, and I ke])t it for

some time and turned it to Agent Kline.

Exhibit No. 11 is the liquor that was poured out

of the glasses—remaining in the glasses at the time

of the raid at the Monte Carlo.

These exhibits here they were brought up: Mr.

Kline was down at the time of the rjrid himself and

helped gather them, and I helped him gather them,

and he took charge of them, brought them up to

the vault,—bring them tii-st to the Prohibition Office

and there we marked them; 1 marked most of the

labels myself,—Mr. Corwin and I in Mr. Kline's
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presence, and lie took charge of [70] them, and

kept them in the vault until the last trial, until they

were introduced in evidence, they have been in the

possession of the prohibition office; since then they

have been in the possession of these court officers.

(Trs. 101, line 4 to Trs. 107, line 4.)

Rec'd copy, Oct. 8, 1926.

JOHN F. DORE,
Atty. for Defts. [71]

Cross-examination.

I had a conversation with Rossi in September,

1924. This conversation took place at Sixth or

Seventh Avenue and Jackson Street. He went out

driving with me in my automobile. He was not

under arrest, he was simply riding with me in my
automobile. I met him by prearrangement, for the

purpose of having a conversation with him. I

talked with him in December over the telephone.

He told me then over the telephone that he collected

police graft and sheriff's graft. He told me that

Frank Gatt was the king of the grafters and was

getting rich; that he didn't like it and that lots of

the Italians didn't like it, and for that reason he told

me the story. He told me he was telling me the

story because he wanted to help me catch Frank

Gatt. He told me he was collecting for Gatt about

$12,000 a month. He said Gatt was paying him

$110 a month for this collection. He arranged to

call me up on the telephone and tell me what was

going on. He called me before this raid.
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'W W RA(}ST)ALK, a witness pioduccd on hclurlf

of the (}(»\('rnnu'iit, l)(Mn<i' duly swoin, testified as

follows:

1 bought tw(» driid<s ol' ino(»iishiiie from Jiiiiniie

Rossi at the Monte Carlo, on May 12, H)24, and the

same amount fi-om Rossi on May 14, 1924.

Governnient *s Exhibit 4() i'eeei\-ed in e\idi'nee.

Goveinnient's Exhibits 1 to :}5 admitted in evi-

dence.

(lo\'ernnient I'ests. [72]

TESTIMONY OF KM)MK() TROXCA, FOR THE
DEFENDANTS.

ROMEO TRON(^\, one of the defendams. beinu*

duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direet Examination.

I accjuired an interest in the Monte Carlo on

dmuuny 19, 1924, from Frank Oatt. I ])aid 5f53,000

for a half interest in the place. Romeo was my
])artner. We couldn't i^et a license, so Rossi tjave

is $2,(X)0 for a third interest, saying he could get a

license, but lie couldn't <2:et a license. Then I sold

tlu' place for $1,500 and lost $500 on the deal. That

was Aj)ii] r)ili. I lu'ver was in the business with

Fnmk (Jatt or .)t)hn (Jatt, or anybody else. 1 left

Seattle »July 10th in the morning, to go to Sj)irit

Lake, whei'c I have an interest in a mine, dulv
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11th, when the agents say I was at the Monte Carlo,

I was at Spirit Lake, with Mr. Horton and Mr.

Jahn. I was there u; until after the 15th of July.

On the morning of September 22, 1924, I left Spirit

Lake and got back to Seattle on the night of Sep-

tember 23d, after dark.

Cross-examination.

Q. Isn't it a fact that this partnership among

you men existed for the purpose of distilling moon-

shine ?

Defendants objected on the ground that it is in-

competent, irrelevant and immaterial. Objection

overruled and an exception noted.

Q. And you had your headquarters at the Monte

Carlo?

Same objection, same grounds.

A. Not me.

TESTIMONY OF W. K. GRISSON, FOR DE-
FENDANTS. [73]

W. K. GRISSON, a witness produced on behalf

of the defendants, being duly sworn, testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination.

I was with Romeo Tronca, at Spirit Lake, Sep-

tember 22, 1924.
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TESTIMONY OF ('. W. .lAIlN, FOR DEFEND-
ANTS.

ft

('. \V. .lAIlN, a witness produced on behalf of

the det'eiuhints, heinu (hily swoiii. testified as fol-

lows :

Direct PLxjnniiiatioii.

I was with l\oineo Ttoiica, at Spiiit Lake, .July

11, 1924. 1 was with hiiu from July 8th. 1 was

with him on the morniun' of Septenihei- 22d, at

Spirit Lake, until the ni^ht of the 2:'>d of Septem-

ber, when we arrived in Seattle.

TESTBIONY OF HOWARD HORTON, FOR
DEPENDANTS.

IIOWAKM) IIORTON, a witness produced on be-

half of the defendants, being- duly swoni, testified

as follows:

Direct Examination.

I was with Romeo Troncjr, at Spirit Lake, July

11, 1924, and also on Se])teml)er 22, 1924.

TESTIMONY OF \V. M. WHITNEY, FOR DE-
FENDANTS (RECALLED — CROSS-EX-
AMINATION).

W. M. WHITNEY, a witness recalled by the de-

fendants, testified as follows:

Cross-examination.

As I explained this morning, I had talked with

James Rossi and he had told me about this situa-
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tion, and he suggested himself that I,—any charge

I filed I include his name in it, and this was filed

with his knowledge, he was to be charged, so that

Gatt would not suspect he had talked to me. [74]

TESTIMONY OF CHARLES ROMEO, FOR DE-
FENDANTS.

CHARLES ROMEO, one of the defendants, be-

ing duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

Admitted that he had owned the Monte Carlo at

one time, but not with Frank or with John Gatt.

Denied he had ever sold any liquor there or knew

that any was kept there, or that he had ever en-

gaged in any of the acts or things charged in the

indictment.

TESTIMONY OF FRANK GATT, FOR DE-
FENDANTS.

FRANK GATT, one of the defendants, being

duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

I owned the Monte Carlo until Janu.ny, 1924,

when I sold it to Rossi and Tronca. I have had

no interest in it since. At the time I owned it I

was the sole owner. Pepe never was at my house

and never had the conversation he testified to. No
liquor was ever sold at the Monte Carlo or kept

there with my knowledge.
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Cross-examination.

(^. \'<>ii woe cniivictt'd—yoii .-nid Cicci were con-

\iit((l (»t the |)oss(*ssi()n of intoxicating" li(|Uor «»iit

of that place in WYl'M

Dcrcndants ol)je('t o\\ the ii,ronn(l lliat i1 is incom-

petent, irrelevant and immaterial. Objection sus-

tained and the ,jni>' instiucted to disrcuai-d it,

TKSTiMONV OF MRS. FHAMv UATT, FOR
DKFKNDANTS.

Mrs. FlxANK (JATT, a witness ])i()(luced on l)e-

half of the defendants, bein^- duly sworn, testified

as follows:

J)irect Kxaniin;rtion. [75

J

(By xMr. DOKE.)
(}. What is your name.' A. Mrs. Frank Gatt.

C^. What relation are yon to the defendant,

Frank Oatt ^ A. His wife.

Q. I will ask you, Mrs. Gatt, where you live;

where the family home is i

Mr. McKINXEY.—We object to any testimony

from this woman on the ground that she is the wife

of the defendant.

The (X)UKT.—If an objection is made on that

ground the objection is sustained.

Mr. DORE.—Xote an exception. Does your

Honor hold she won't be allowed to testify at all?

^h-. M.KINNEY.—Not on behalf of her hus-

band.
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The COURT.—You say you offer her in behalf

of the other defendants?

Mr. DORE.—I am offering her as a witness.

The COURT.—She can testify in behalf of any

of the other defendants; if you offer her as a wit-

ness for any of the other defendants, except her

husband, she will be permitted to testify; but she

cannot testify in behalf of her husband over the ob-

jection of the Government.

Mr. DORE.—Note an exception; that is all, Mrs.

Gatt. [76]

Defendants rest.

During the opening argument by C. T. McKin-

ney, Assistant United States Attorney, the follow-

ing occurred:

Mr. McKINNEY.— * * * "I will say to

this jury if you want to rid this city of one of its

most corrupt influences, and you find that the evi-

dence so warrants in this case, you will have done

the city one of the best services iij years."

Mr. DORE.—I ask the jury be instinicted to dis-

regard that as improper argument.

The COURT.—The jury will disregard the con-

clusion.

During the closing argument by T. P. Revelle,

United States Attorney, the following occurred:

Mr. REVELLE.—"When you find a crowd of

men like these men in your city, some of them not

naturalized, according to the testimony, when you

find them together,

—
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Mr. D()1\*E.—I objoot to that as improper argu-

ment, and ask tlic Jury tf) be instructed to disre-

gard it.

The (^OURT.—Tlie Juiy will (•ojiciude upon the

evidence, not conjecture. [77]

Mr. REVELLE.— * * ''These defendants

are charged with conspiracy, tliey have taken the

stand in their own behalf, three of them, and we

tried to examine them on certain things connected

with that place; we tried to show you that this

])lace was raided and Frank Gatt came and pk'aded

guilty, and the Court would not let us do it,

—

Mr. DORE.—I object to that as improper argu-

ment, and ask the juiy be instructed to disregard

it; absolutely improper.

The (^OURT.—You will conclude upon the evi-

dence.

Mr. DORE.—T am asking for a definite instruc-

tion on that remark.

The COURT.—And the remark is withdrawn by

counsel and the jury will disregard it.

Mr. REVELLE.— * * * ''We tried to

bring out all the other facts so that you might have

the whole story; Mr. Dore objected I suppose feel-

ing he was protecting the rights of his clients,

—

Mr. DORE.—I object to that as improper argu-

ment to the jury, and ask they be instructed to dis-

regard that stxitement.

The COURT.—The jury will disregard that

statement.

Mr. REVELLE.—Let us see if I will have to

take this back,

—
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Mr. DORE.—I object to that remark of counsel

and ask the jury be instructed to disregard the re-

mark.

The COURT.—Yes, proceed.

Mr. REVELLE.—Gentlemen, it is getting so I

am afraid I will not be able to talk at all. Each

one took the stand and they were supposed to tell

you the whole truth,

—

Mr. DORE.—I obect to that as an improper re-

mark, and ask the jury to disregard it.

The COURT.—Overruled. [78]

INSTRUCTIONS OF COURT TO THE JURY.

The COURT.—Gentlemen of the Jury: The in-

dictment is in one count; it charges the defendants

with conspiracy entered into on or about the 1st

day of March, 1923, and continuing to the time of

the filing of the indictment, which was on the 26th

day of March, 1925, to violate the National Prohi-

bition Act; that is to knowingly possess and sell

intoxicating liquor containing the prohibited alco-

holic content, as provided by the Volstead Act, at

404 Fifth Avenue South in the city of Seattle.

And likewise to maintain a common nuisance at

that place by keeping for sale in that place the

property which I have mentioned to you, intoxi-

cating liquors. The liquors that they conspired to

possess and sell it is charged were whiskey, dis-

tilled spirits and other liquors, and then charges

the commission of certain overt acts by the defend-

ants to carry forward the conspiracy. All the acts

are set out in the indictment, what they are and

when they are done and by whom. The indictment
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will 1)(' scut 1() the jiirv-i"(K»m ; it is not cvideiu'c, it

is nu'i'cly the paper cliar^c; the only t'uiictioii of"

the indictinciit is to hi'iiii;- the (icrciidants before

the (oiiit to answer the rliar^e, and while it is sent

«»ut Tor your int'oi-niation as to what tlie charge is,

it is not evidence, and not to l)e considered by you

as c\ idence.

You are insti'uctcd that it is against the law for

persons to conspire oi- agree together to violate a

law of the Tnited States, and then for one of the

])arties to do some act to cariy forward that con-

spiracy. A cons])iracy may be defined as a com-

bination oi' two or more persons })y concerted iv-

tion to accomi)lish an agreement or unlawful pur-

pose; the act [79] itself is the essence of the

charge; and while the combination of two oi- moi-e

persons must be shown, this need not be done by

testimony showing that two oi* more ])ersons met

together and entered into a foi-mal arrangement,

either oral or in writing, for the unlawful purpose,

ov by stating the general extent and detail of the

j)lan, or means by which it is to be made effective;

it is sufficient if two or more ]ie]"sons in any man-

ner posit i\-ely or tacitly come to a mutual undei'-

standing to accomi)lish an unlawful puipose.

Where an unlawful (tbject is sought to be effected

and two or moi'c persons actuated by a common
purpose to accomplish that object work together

in any way in furtherance of the unlawfiU scheme,

designedly, every one of such persons becomes a

party to the conspiracy, although the part he is

to take may be a subordinate one; uor is it mate-
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rial how the profits or the money is to be divided

that is to be made out of the conspiracy, if any, or

whether any profits are to be made; a conspiracy

might be formed to violate a law of the United

States without any profit whatever. One person

may make all the profits, so far as that is con-

cerned, and the others would be just as liable to

the charge if they actually knowingly entered into

an unlawful enterprise; and anyone who after a

conspiracy is formed, and who knows of its exist-

ence consciously joins therein becomes as much a

party thereto from that time as though he had

originally conspired. And, furthermore, where

several parties have conspired together for the

same illegal purpose, any act done by one of the

parties in pursuance of the original concerned plan

with reference to the common object, and in fur-

therance thereof, is, in the contemplation of law,

the act of the parties, and proof of such acts

against one of the [80] parties who engage in

the same conspiracy.

In this case one of the defendants, Zrinello Pepe,

pleaded guilty. You are not concerned with his

guilt in this case except as it may bear upon the

relation with either one of the other defendants.

Merely because he pleaded guilty would not carry

any presumption to your minds that the other de-

fendants, or any of them, are guilty because they

are charged in the same indictment; and the de-

fendants are entitled to have theii' I'elation to the

charge determined upon the evidence which is pre-

sented against each of them in this case.
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When a conspiracy is estal)lished then any state-

ment made by one of the defendants to the conspir-

acy durinii: the j)endency of the unlawful enter-

prise, in furtherance of the conspiiacy, is not only

evidence au:ainst himself, but is evidence against

the othei- defendants, but when the combination is

proved they are as much responsi/>j7/7// for such

declaration and the acts and objects to which they

relate as if made or committed by themselves. A
statement by one party, however, may not be con-

sidered as proof in establishing conspiracy, unless

the statement was made in the presence of such

other parties to the conspiracy, nor considered

against a party to the conspii-acy out of whose

presence it was made. Such a statement would

only be a statement against the party himself, but

aftei' the conspiiacy is established as having been

fonned, to your satisfaction beyond a reasonable

dou])t. then a statement made during the pendency

of the conspiracy, and in furtherance thereof, may
be considered against every other person who con-

sciously joins the conspiracy. If you are con-

vinced by the evidence in this case beyond a 7'ea-

sonable doubt that any or all of the defendants did

enter the conspiiacy [SI] as charged in this in-

dictment, or thereafter the conspiracy was formed

othei^ of the defendants joined knowingly and con-

sciously, as herein stated, tluMi a statement made
by one of the defendants to the conspiracy after

the conspiracy is established by a degree of proof

which T have indicated to your minds made by

either of the defendants in furtherance thereof,
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then it could be considered as against all of the

parties to the same conspiracy as it existed at the

time that the statement was made. A mere recita-

tion of the acts done by one defendant with rela-

tion to the other acts, and which statement was not

made in furtherance of the conspiracy, could only

be considered as evidence against the party mak-

ing it.

Each of the defendants in this case, except Pepe,

who has pleaded guilty, has entered a plea of not

guilty; that means they deny the charges; they are

presumed innocent until they are proven guilty be-

yond every reasonable doubt. And this presump-

tion continues with them throughout the trial and

until you are convinced by the evidence that they

are guilty by that degree of proof. In determin-

ing whether they are guilty of the conspiracy as

charged, you will take into consideration all the

evidence that has been presented, duly weigh it,

duly consider it, analyze it and determine whether

it establishes the guilt of the crime charged; and

if you believe from the testimony that a conspir-

acy was formed by one or more of the defendants,

or by one of the defendants, and the others dis-

closed by the evidence, and that consummation of

the overt acts was done by one of the conspirators

charged during the pendency of the unlawful en-

terprise, in furtherance thereof, then you will find

such defendant whom you find to have conspired

or after the formation of such conspiracy know-

ingly joined, guilty as charged. If you have a rea-

sonable doubt as to any one of the defendants you
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will trtnrii a vei'did of not i^uilty against such de-

IVndaiit.

KvidciK'o is of two kinds, direct or positive, and

cii-cufnstaJilial. Direct and })ositive testimony is

j)roduced l)y a witness testilyiii^ directly ol" his

own knowledj;-e of the [S2] facts to be proven;

and cii-cnnistantial evidence is pro(d' of facts and

cii-cnnistances in a case from wliich a Juror may in-

fer otiiei- and connected facts which usually and rea-

sonably follow, according to the common expen-

ence of mankind. Circumstantial evidence is legal

and com])etent in a ci'iminal case when it is of

such a chaiactci- as to exclude every reasonable

hy))othesis other than the defendants are guilty,

and when it is of that character it is entitled to the

same weiuht as direct evidence. Circumstantial

evidence in any case should be considered by you

in connection with the other evidence before you, but

the circumstances must be consistent with each

other, consistent with the guilt of the parties

charged, inconsistent with their iimocence, and in-

consistent with every other I'easonable hy])othesis

except that of guilt.

You are instnicted, however, that the mere pres-

enct' of any one of the defendants at the pi-eniises

known as 404 Fifth Avenue South, the })lace named
in tlic indictment, in Seattle, would not of itself

make tluMu uuilty of conspiracy, nor would the fact

that title to the ])ropei-ty was standing in any par-

ticular party's name, make the party guilty of coii-

spiracy. nor would the fact that a person sold in-

toxicating liquor, or had the possession of intoxi-
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eating liquor, that fact alone would not establish

conspiracy; that would be a violation of the Na-

tional Prohibition Act, but it would not of itself

establish conspiracy; but while the act of posses-

sion and sale would be a violation of law, it would

not of itself, as stated, be conspiracy; and if you

find possession was had and sale was made by one

of the parties, the act of possession and sale should

be considered by you with other acts disclosed by

the evidence tending to show an understanding, a

co-operation or an arrangement, if any, to carry

forward the unlawful enterprise as charged in the

indictment, of possessing or selling distilled spirits

or having distilled spirits at the place named in

the indictment for the purpose [83] of sale.

The gist of this action, as I have stated, is con-

spiracy to sell liquor as set out in the indictment,

at 404 Fifth Avenue South, Seattle. Much has

been said during the trial of this ease as to owner-

ship of the liquor and the bar in the soft-drink

place, and other paraphernalia used in this bar.

The ownership of the property is not decisive of

this issue. Some of the defendants, or all, may be

guilty of the conspiracy charged and not have any

property interest in any of the fixtures, or in the

leasehold. The ownership of property, the status

of the title, is an element to be taken into consider-

ation as to whether the conspiracy was formed, if

a conspiracy was fonned, and who participated

therein.

Much likewise has been said with relation to the

witness Pepe, who pleaded guilty, and testified to
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the fact tliat he was ciiiploNcd in this phicc by \hv

detVndaiit Frank (Jatt as a hottlenian, and then as

a Ijartcndcr; tliat he niach' sales of intoxieating li-

(juor as bartendei". As a l)()ttleiiian he would eai'n'

the hofth' to the one actinu as bartender to make

sales,—deliver the bottle nntil tlie ciistoiner was

served, and then take it l)aek and put it in his

pocket until auain demanded; and testified t<» you

where the li(pioi' was stored; tliat he eai-i'ied the

only key to the room; also testified that Oatt de-

livered to him a certain bill of sale who he said

told Pepe that his name was now Tony Seraeca

;

that Gatt told him that that was now his luune,

and stated that he at no time had any interest in

the property, never had any money to buy the

same, and never did buy it.

Criticism has also been made in the argument

w ith relation to the testimony of Whitney in relat-

ing before you [84] conversi\tions had with the

defendant Rossi. You are instructed that where

a party pleads guilty or admits the acts charged,

you will take into consideration his testimony with

relation to all the defendants to him, and eveiy

fact and element which has been disclosed here,

—

every circumstance which shows interest in the

conduct and verity of his story. One of the things

for you to detennine is, did the defendant Frank

Gatt,—and I am referring to him because his name
was more frequently mentioned in argimient and

likewise at the trial,—use these other defendants

as agencies through which the sale of intoxicating

liquor could be directed? Was the transfer of the
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title to the several owners in good faith? If the

transfer was in good faith did Frank Gatt and

some of the other defendants, and persons dis-

closed by the evidence, form a conspiracy during

the time that Frank Gatt owned the property con-

fessedly, and did the conspiracy continue through-

out until the time of the raid disclosed by the testi-

mony, in February, 1925 In determining whether

he did, or not, you will take into consideration his

business, his relation to this place, his activities

about the place, the relation he bore to the other

parties who were in the place, and all and every

element which you feel bears upon the fact as to

whether he did have anything to do with it,

whether he was the active agent. If you believe

beyond a reasonable doubt that he was, and that

he is the man who was operating behind these other

defendants, or some of them, or with other parties

disclosed by the evidence, then he would be guilty

whether the title to the property stood in his name,

or not.

Is any credence to be placed in the testimony of

Pepe, or the statements made by Rossi to WTiitney,

as disclosed by Mr. Whitney. Pepe says that a

conspiracy was formed. Whitney said what Rossi

told him with relation to the activities of the de-

fendant Frank Gatt. From the statements of both

of these parties they were parties to the conspiracy.

Pepe said what Gatt did, that he acted under the

direction and supervision of Gatt; that the hold-

ing of the bill of sale which was executed in Jan-

uary, 1925, was without his knowledge, [85] he
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knew nothing al)out it,—it was given to him by

Frank (iatt and that Gatt told liini what his name

was to be henceforth; and you heard his testimony

with relation to statements made to him by Frank

(Jatt with relation to the conduct of the parties.

Now, you are instructed that Pepe's testimony,

likewise the statement of Mr. Rossi under the law

are denominated accomplices, and the testimony

of an accom])lic(' is from a polluted source. Now,

the testimony of an accomplice should l)c received

with care and caution and subjected to careful scru-

tiny in the lijj:ht of all of the other evidence in the

case; and the jury ouj?ht not to convict upon the

testimony of an accomplice alone unless after a

careful examination of such testimony the jurors

are satisfied beyond a reasonable doubt of its truth

and that they can safely rely upon it.

In this case there is other testimony tending to

show acts of certain of the ])arties covering the

times charged in the indictment, and these acts of

the several defendants should be considered in the

light of all the testimony presented, and the testi-

mony of the accomplice given the weight you feel

it is entitled to in the light of all the other evidence

and testimony which has ])een produced before

you; and if yon find fi-oni the evidence in this case

that any witness has wilfully testified falsely con-

cerning any material fact in the case you will have

the right to disregard the testimony of such wit-

n(»ss entirely, except in so far as it may be corrob-

orated by other ci-edible evidence or circumstances

detailed and developed upon the trial of the case.
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The defendant Bianchi did not take the stand

and testify, that was his right, and because he did

not take the stand and testify you should not in-

fer from that fact that he is guilty of the crime

charged, but should find from the evidence that has

been presented here whether he is guilty, not from

the fact he did not take the stand. [86]

The defendant Tronca has presented testimony

tending to show that he was out of the city of

Seattle, during a part of July,—I think the fore-

part of July,—July 10th or along there; you will

remember the testimon}^, and was likewise out a

short period of time prior to and including the 22d

day of September; those are the dates upon which

testimony has been presented he was present at this

place at 404 Fifth Avenue South, in question.

Now, of course, he could not be at both places at

once. He testified he returned to the city of Seattle

on the 22d of September about 7:15 or just after

twilight; and you heard the testimony of the wit-

nesses on the part of the Government at the time,

—

giving the time when they said they were in there

and saw him there. You will determine, there-

fore, from the evidence what the fact is, if he was

out of the city, then the witnesses on the part of

the Government are mistaken as to the time when

he was there, and there is no other testimon}^ with

relation to the particular time. They have fixed

the time specifically, so you will have to determine

whether he was in the city, or out of the city on

that date. If you find from the evidence that it is

material that would be material only as a circum-
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stance to show whctlicr lie was in the coiispii'acy.

If you holieve from all the cvidoncc picsented that

he had joined the conspiracy at tiiat time, you arc

instructed that liis pi'esencc or al)sence on the 22d

day of September, or in July, would not he mate-

rial, it' y(>u find a conspiracy was formed, and one

of the acts charged in the indictment was done by

one of the pai'lies defendant in furtherance of the

conspiracy. If lie has shown,— if the testimony

that he was out of the city raises in your mind a

reaso]ud)le doubt as to whether he was a member
of the cons])iracy, if you find that a c(^ns])ii'ac\' was

formed, then the doubt should be resolved in his

favor. [87]

Somethinj2: was said in argument with relation to

certain expressions given current l)y the Chief Jus-

tice of the Supreme Court of the United States of

a convention of Circuit Judges, of which he was the

chairman, of a suggestion to the Department of

^Justice that in conspii'acv cases, or in National

i^rohibition cases, tiiat they thought it advisable

that conspiracy charges be not lodged against vio-

lators of the law unless the offense rises to the dig-

nity contemplated within the conspiracy statute.

Now, that suggestion was merely advisory ; it is not

the law. The Congi*ess fixes the law. The con-

spiracy statute was not amended by the Congress,

and the National Prohibition Act comes within the

purview and meaning of the ciuispiracy law as much
as any other law, and the l)ei)artnient of Justice,

—

when I refer to the Department of Justice I refer

to the Attorney General of the United States Dis-
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trict attorneys in the several districts,—they are the

persons to present the matters to the grand jury,

and when a grand jury feels that testimony is

presented that rises to the dignit}^ of a charge under

the conspiracy statute, then courts and juries,

—

when I say "courts" I mean nisi prius court,—may
not wave aside laws and say that they should not

be enforced. When a conspiracy charge is made

and indictment returned by the grand jury then

this court and jury,—and the jury is a part of the

court,—must give the charge serious consideration,

aside from the suggestion of the convention of

Judges, and we caimot be controlled by that. We
are simply controlled by the law. And so in this

case, the charges here is that a conspiracy was en-

tered into to sell, possess and to maintain a nuisance

contrary to this law. Now, when there is testimony

that a nuisance is in contemplation, that is one of

the elements for your consideration, whether that

was comprehended within the conspiracy, if a con-

spiracy is established. [88]

You, Gentlemen of the Jury, are the sole judges

of the facts, and you must determine what the facts

are from the evidence which has been presented.

You are likewise the sole judges of the credibility

of the witnesses who have testified before you. If

I have referred to any fact in the case, or given you
any impression or opinion as to what I believe the

facts are in this case I want you to disregard it,

because that is your fmiction, and not mine. If I

have conveyed any such impression to you it has

simply been done for the pui-pose of explaining the
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law that has ap])li('ation to thr facts. Now in de-

tci'iniiiiTiu: flic \v('ii,^ht (»)• the credit you dcsii-c to

attach to the testimony of a witness you will take

into consideration the reas(>nal)h'ness of the story,

the oj)i)oi'1 unity of the witness for knowinj^^ the

thin.us ahout wliich they \\i\\v testified, the interest

o/ lack of interest in the result of this ti-ial, and

from all ol' tiie cii-cumstances and the testimony de-

termine in this case where the truth lies.

The (iovei-nment has ))i-esented prohihition agents,

whose duty it is \o ferret out places in which they

believe the law is heinu violated, and tlieii- duty

then is to present it to the Court; they are ])aid a

compensation,—re.nular compensation, not predi-

cated upon convictions; they ^et })aid whether there

is any conviction (tr not; hut their duty is to stati*

to the Court just what they found, tell you what

they saw and heai'd; that is what they do. Did

their story sound reasonahle / Are the facts which

they relate here corroborated by athuitted facts or

other circumstances here such as to carry convic-

tion to your minds that they have told you the truth;

if it is not then you nuist lay it aside, merely be-

cause they are agents for the Ciovernment you nuist

weijj^h their evidence by the same rule as you would

the testimony of any other witness. Did they ap-

})ear in their testimony as though they were falsely

testifying for the purpose of fastening a crime upon
innocent men, because if they swore falselv they

knew these defendants were iiniocent,—if they

knowingly swore falsely. Now then, is there any

indication that they wilfully i)er.jured themselves or



98 Charles Romeo et al. vs.

were honestly mistaken with relation to any fact

disclosed. Now the defendants of course are inter-

ested, because if they are contacted they must be

punished. [89] Now, does their story,—^the story

of the defendants sound reasonable. Did they in

this case present such a relation of conditions and

circumstances before you, irrespective of the truth,

for the purpose of raising a reasonable doubt in

your minds in this case? Did their testimony ring

true? What was the defendant Gatt doing in this

place after he says he transferred it to Pepe ? Was
his explanation convincing, sufficient to raise a rea-

sonable doubt? What was he doing in this room

with the other witnesses who testified to-day, and

who the witnesses on the part of the Government

swore they saw at the table seated around, persons

whom they named, and glasses and a bottle of whis-

key? What was he doing there, and how did he

come there; what was the purpose? It is admitted,

I believe, at least by one of the witnesses for the Gov-

ernment, that they believed they had these glasses

there, but did not see any bottle, except one of the

witnesses said he did see a bottle but it was wrapped

up in tissue paper, and he was asked to sign or

initial the bottle by one of the agents, and he de-

clined to do it; you heard him say that, and he

asked the witness to sign his name in a book, which

the witness did, Mr. Corwin. Now, how do these

stories and this testimony impress you? Was the

relation of Frank Gatt with the other defendants

in this place by reason of the friendship and inti-

macy which has been disclosed here, and all of the
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ostahlisliod faffs as you believe tlierii to be, estab-

lislied or conceded, corroborative of Pepe's tosti-

inoiiy i Did Pepe impiess you as a man wbo told

tbe trutb; was lie fair and frank; did be impress

you as a man who had invested that amount of

money in this place, oi- who had receixcd tbe

amount of money that some documents sliow he

«li(l receive, and be stated tliat be sij:,ned those pa-

l»eis at tbe re(|uest of some of tbe other defendants,

I believe Mr. (Jatt, but you will take bis testimony.

Did it imi)ress you be was telling tbe truth, if it did

then ji^ive it tbe consideration it is entitled to. If

bis testimony is strengthened by tbe other estab-

lished facts and circumstances, i;ive it considera-

tion. Did the exhibits that were taken fi-om the

person of Mr. Frank [JK)] (Jatt, did they show

any corroboration of tbe witness Pepe's testimony

as disclosed upon tbe witness-stand, or tbe testi-

mony of Mr. Whitney as o:iven beic. Try this case

fairly; i^ive tbe defendants a square deal; they are

entitled to it; the (lovernment is entitled to a square

deal; the Government does not want fin's m^n con-

victed unless you are convinced beyond a reason-

able doubt that they are guilty, and if you are con-

vinced beyond a reasonable doubt that they are

guilty then it will be your duty to return a verdict

of guilty against such defendants as you believe to

be guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. This is a

Government of law and not of men; tbe law is made
by tbe Congress; neither you nor I have anything

to do with the policy of the law; we are simply

here, you to find the fact and 1 as Presiding Judge
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to tell you what the law is, and then if the parties

are found guilty to fix the penalty between the maxi-

mum and the minimum; with the penalty you have

nothing to do. If courts do not function properly,

and you do not find the facts as shown beyond a

reasonable doubt, or apply the law as the Congress

provides, you encourage law violators, and it would

only be a short time until a condition of anarchy

would obtain in this country, and property, life

and liberty would ultimately be destroyed. Try

this case fairly without any prejudice, and give the

defendants a square deal, as I stated a moment ago,

and the Government a square deal; if you have a

reasonable doubt resolve it in favor of the defend-

ants.

A reasonable doubt is just such a doubt as the

term implies, a doubt for which you can give a

reason; it must not arise from a merciful indisposi-

tion or a kindly or s}Tnpathetic feeling, or a desire

to avoid performing a possible disagreeable duty.

It must be a substantial doubt such as an honest,

sensible, fair-minded person with reason might en-

tertain consistently with a conscientious desire to

ascertain the truth and to perform a duty. A juror

is satisfied beyond a reasonable doubt if from a

fair and candid consideration of the entire evidence

he has an abiding conviction of the truth of the

charge. It is such a doubt as a man of ordinary

prudence, sensibility and decision in determining an

issue of [91] like concern to himself as that be-

fore the jury to the defendant would make him

pause or hesitate in arriving at his conclusion, a
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(loul)l which is cicitcd hy ihc w.-mt of cvidonfc, or

may he hy the ex idcnct* itself: a Juior is satisHed

hcyotid a rcasonaidc doiiht when he is (MHiviiiccd t()

a iiKnal ccrtaiiity of the nuilt (d* Ihc pai1y charged.

\'(ni will lake into coiisich'rat ion all the cxhihits

which liaxc hccn presented. 1 will not seTid the

li(|ii(ii- out, hecaiise there is no dispute al)out that; T

will send out all the othei- exhibits. You will take

all of the exhibits into consideration together witli

all the other testimony which has been presented.

I will ask the attorneys to check up on the exliihits

\vhi(di have been offei(Hl and admitted by the Court

so that there nia> he no (|Uestion as to theii* identity.

1 think I want to say something else, I mentioned

that uj)on the trial of the other case. Reference

Avas made to it in argument likewise upon both sides

in the testimony. This bill of sale that was marked

executed on January Stli, U)25, signed by Charles

Romeo to Tony Saracca, bears on the back an en-

dorsement "Filed for record at the reciuest of

Thei-esa DeCaro, V^M) Rainiei- Avenue," number

something there, that is blurred. In view of the

testimony here Theresa DeCaro could give the Court

and jury some information as to who requested the

tiling of this. IVpe said he knew nothing about it

until afterwards. I cdll attention to this at the

other trial, and you are not concerned with the other

trial, so both sides knew and at that time some sug-

gestion was made, that one of the defendants did

not know about this endorsement upon the bill of

sale; 1 asked the Clerk after the case was closed to

hand me the record and no subpoena had been is-
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sued for this party. Now, this party could have

given us some information, and given you some

information as to who had recorded this. If it was
Pepe and she had it recorded on his behalf, she

could have told that and that would have settled

the proposition. Irrespective of Pepe's testimony

her connection with that likewise could have car-

ried convincing proof. Now, it is a rule of law

[92] that when any person knows anything of a

fact with relation to an issue before the Court, and

such party is not produced by the party who should

produce the witness, then the Court and the jury

may assume that the witness who was not called, if

he could be called, would testify more strongly

against the party whose duty it was to call him.

Now in this case it is not for me to say upon whom
the duty rested in this case, and I simply mention

that to you as a rule of law, in view of the endorse-

ment upon this exhibit, which is before you, and

the fact that no subpoena has been issued of which

the Court takes judicial notice.

It will require your entire number to agree upon

a verdict, and when you have agreed you will cause

it to be signed by your foreman, whom you will

elect immediately upon retiring to the jury-room.

The verdict is in the usual form, before the word

"guilty" is a blank, you will write in there "is" or

"not" with relation to each defendant just as you

may conclude upon, and then cause it to be signed

by your foreman, whom you will elect immediately

upon retiring to the jury-room. And in this con-

nection I want to say, that since you have been kept
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toii^othcr since the l)('uiiiiii!ii; of tliis tiial I carried

it over \<\ tliis tiiiic so thai y<Mi may he i,nvcji this

without ai»y more inconvenience to you than neces-

sary, and il" you a,u:ree u])on a veidict ))ef'ore niid-

niirlit it is aizreed hy the (h'fendants and the Oov-

ennnent that a sealed verdict may he hroujijht in;

that is, wlien you have conchi(h'd upon your verdict

liave it sic:ned hy youi' foreman, and tlie foreman

then will fohi it uj) and |)Ut it in an envelope and

seal it UJ), and you may all come here at ten o'clock

to-niori-ow niorninu. If you don't aijree hy twelve

o'clock 1 will ha\-e the marshal or the hailitTs put

you to bed, and you can sleep until morning, if you

so desire, and you will uct your slee]) until,— 1 ^et

up at six o'clock, you ou^ht to i;et up at six o'clock,

go out and get your hreakfast and bring you back

to the jury-room. [9:]]

Are thei'c any exceptions?

Mr. DOHP].—Note an exception to the last in-

struction which contained a reference to the DeCaro

woman, on the ground it is irregulai- in law, and

inapj)ropriate to this case.

Also want an exce})tion noted to the instruction

in which y(»u said if the jury believed the testimony

of Rossi as related hy Whitney beyond a reasonable

doubt they could base a verdict of guilty u})on it.

The (^OUHT.—No, J didn't say that. 1 don't

think you can convict in this case upon Rossi's

statement alone; 1 would not submit a case upon

Rossi's statement alone, but you can consider his

statement as disclosed hv Mi'. Whitnev with all the
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other statements in the case; you cannot convict

upon Rossi's statement alone.

Mr. DORE.—Note an exception.

The COURT.—I will withdraw the last instruc-

tion I gave you with relation to the endorsement

upon the bill of sale since exception was taken, you

will disregard what I said about it. [94]

And now, in furtherance of justice, and that right

may be done, the said defendants tender and present

to the court the foregoing as their bill of exceptions

in the above-entitled cause, and pray that the same

may be settled and allowed and signed and sealed

by the Court and made a part of the record in said

cause.

Attorney for Defendants Charles Romeo, August

Bianchi, John Gatt and Frank Gatt.

HERMAN S. FRYE,
Attorney for Defendant Romeo Tronca.

[Endorsed] : Lodged Apr. 14, 1926. [95]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER SETTLING BILL OF EXCEPTIONS.

The defendants in the above-entitled cause having

tendered and presented the foregoing as their bill

of exceptions in said cause to the action of the

Court, and in furtherance of justice and that right

may be done him, and having prayed that the same

may be settled and allowed, authenticated, signed

and sealed by the Court and made a part of the
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record herein; and the ('on it having considered said

liill ol" exceptions and all objections and proposed

ainendnients made tlieicto hy the (ifovei-nnient, and

l)ein<i- now Inlly advised, does now in fuitlierance

of jnstice and that li^ht may be done the defend-

ants, sign, seal, settle and allow said bill of excep-

tions as the bill ol exceptions in this cause, and does

order that the same l)e made a part of the record

herein.

The Court further certifies that each and all of

the exceptions taken by the defendants, as shown

in said bill of exceptions, were at tlie time the same

W(T(^ taken allowed by the Court.

The Coui't further certifies that said bill of ex-

ceptions contains all the material matters and evi-

dence material to each and eveiy assignment of

erior made by the defendants and tendered and filed

in court in this cause with said ])ill of exceptions.

[96]

The Court further certifies that said bill of excep-

tions was file.v and ])resented to the Court within the

time provided by law, as extended by the orders of

the Court heretofore made herein.

Done and ordered in o])en court, counsel for the

Govenunent and defendant being now present, this

11 day of March, 1921.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed Mar. 11, 1927. [97]



106 Charles Romeo et al. vs. ^

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO AND IN-

CLUDING MAY 1, 1926, TO FILE RECORD.

For good cause shown, IT IS HEREBY OR-
DERED that the time for filing the record in the

above-entitled cause in the office of the Clerk of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, be and the same hereby is extended

to and including the 1st day of May, 1926.

Done in open court, this 22 day of March, 1926.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
Judge.

General Order Book No. 12, at page 172. [98]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO AND IN-

CLUDING AUGUST 1, 1926, TO FILE
RECORD.

For good cause shown, IT IS HEREBY OR-
DERED that the time for filing the record of the

above-entitled cause in the office of the Clerk of the

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit be

and the same hereby is extended to and including

the 1st day of August, 1926.

Done this 12 day of July, 1926.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
Judge.

O. K.—C. T. McKINNEY,
Asst. U. S. Atty.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 12, 1926. [99]
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[Title of ('(tinl and Cause.
|

<>lx'J)KK' i:\TENI)IN(i TIMK TO AM) IX-

CLl'J)IN(J l)E('EMP>KIx* 10, H>2(;, TO FILE
RF:(^Oin).

Vov o(mm1 cause shown, IT IS HEREBY OK-
DFIREI) that tlie time for filing the record in the

above-entitled eause in the offiee of the Clerk of the

United States Circuit Couit of Appeals foi- the

Ninth Circuit, he and the same hereby is extended

to and in( ludinu- tlie 10th day of December, 1926.

Done in open court, this 1 day of Nov., 1926.

JEKM^MIAH N?]TEHEH,
Judge.

O. K.—C. T. McKINNEY,
Asst. U. S. Atty.

[Endorsed]: Fik'd Nov. 1, 1926. [100]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO AM) IN-

CLUDINCJ APRIL 1, 1927, TO FILE
RE(X)RI).

For oood cause shown, IT IS HEREBY OR-
DP]RED that the time for filing the record in the

above-entitled cause in the office of the Clerk of the

United States Circuit Coui-t of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, l)e and the same hereby is extended

to and including the 1st day of April, 1927.
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Done in open court this 21 day of March, 1927.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
Judge.

O. K.—C. T. McKINNEY,
Asst. U. S. Atty.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 21, 1927. [101]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

To the Clerk of the Above-entitled Court:

You will please make a transcript of record on

appeal to the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit, in the above-entitled

cause, and include therein the following:

Indictment.

Plea.

Record of trial and empanelling jury.

Verdict.

Motion for new trial.

Judgment and sentence.

Petition for writ of error.

Assignment of error.

Order allowing writ of error and fixing amount of

bond.

All orders; extending time for filing bill of excep-

tions.

All orders extending time for filing record.

Bill of exceptions and amendments.
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Wi'it (tl' ci'i-oi'.

Citation.

T)<'f('!i(l;uits' praccijx'.

JOHN K. DOKE,
F. G. REAGAN,
HEKWIAN S. FRYE,
Attorneys t'oi- Dcfeiulaiits.

[KndorsodJ: Filed Mar. L>1, 1})27. [102]

[Title of Coiiit and Cause.]

(M^:RTTFTrATE OF CLERK U. S. DISTRICT
COURT TO TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

United States of Anieriea,

Western Distiict of Wasliiniiton,—ss.

I. Ed. M. Lakin, C^lerk of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Western District of Washing-

ton, do liereln certify this typewritten transcript

of record, consisting of pages numbered from 1 to

102, inclusive, to l)e a full, true, correct and com-

plete copy of so nuich of the record, papei's and

other pi'oceedings in the foregoing entitled cause as

is recpiired by })i-aecipe of comisel Hied and shown

herein, as the same remain of record and on tile in

the otHce of the Clerk of said District Court, and

that the same constitute the record on return to

writ of error herein, from the judgment of said

United States District Coui-t foi- the Western Dis-

trict of Washington to the United States Circuit

Court of A])peals for the Ninth Circuit.

I further certify that the costs incurred in mv
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office for making record, certificate or return to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit in the above-entitled cause amount-

ing to $40.10 have been paid to me by attorneys for

the plaintiffs in error.

I further certify that I hereto attach and here-

with transmit the original writ of error and citation

issued in this cause.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set

my hand and affixed the seal of said District Court,

at Seattle, in said District, this 24th day of March,

1927.

[Seal] ED. M. LAKIN,
Clerk United States District (-ourt. Western Dis-

trict of Washington.

By S. E. Leitch,

Deputy. [103]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

WRIT OF ERROR.

United States of America,—ss.

The President of the United States of America, to

the Honorable Judges of the District Court of

the United States for the Western District of

Washington, Northern Division, GREETING:
Because in the record and proceedings, as also in

the rendition of the judgment, of a plea which is in

the said District Court before the Honorable Jere-

miah Neterer, one of you, between Frank Gatt, John
Gatt, Romeo Tronca, Charles Romeo and August
Bianchi, the plaintiffs in error, and the United
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States of America, the (Icfendant in error, a mani-

fest erroi- happened to the prejudice and great

(huiiauc ot the said plaintifTs in error, as by their

complain! and petition luTein appears, and we being

willing; tliat that eiT(»i-, if an\ hath Ix-en, should be

duly corrected and lull and speedy justice done to

the j)arty aforesaid in tliis behalf, do couunand you,

if judgment l)e tliei'ein ^iven, that then, ini(h'i- your

seal, distinctly and openly, you send the record and

proceediiiiis with all thinixs concerninj^ the same, to

the United States Circuit ('ourt of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, at the city of San Francisco, State

of California, tojijethei- with this wiit, so that you

have the same at the said city of San Francisco

within thirty days from the date hereof, in the said

Circuit Court of Appeals to be then and there lield,

that [104] the record and pi-oceedings aforesaid

being then and thei-e inspected, the said Circuit

Court of Ap])eals may cause further to be done

therein to correct that error, what of right and ac-

cording to the laws and customs of the United

States of America should be done in the premises.

WITNESS the Hcmorable WILLIAM IIOW-

AHl) TAFT, Chief Justice of the United States,

this V2\\\ day of January, 1926, and of the Inde-

pendence ot" tlie United States one hundred and fif-

tieth.

[Seal] Ki). M. LA KIN,

Clerk of the District Court of the United States for

the Western District of Washington, Northern

Division,

Bv -.
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Acceptance of service of within writ acknowl-

edged this 12 Jan., 1926.

C. T. McKINNEY,
Attorney Ptff.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 12, 1926. [105]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

CITATION ON WRIT OF ERROR.

United States of America,—ss.

The President of the United States of America, to

the United States of America, and to THOMAS
P. REVELLE, United States Attorney for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision, GREETING:
You are hereby cited and admonished to be and

appear before the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, at San Francisco, in

the State of California, within thirty days from the

date hereof, pursuant to a writ of error filed in the

Clerk's office of the District Court of the United

States for the Western District of Washington,

Northern Division, wherein the said Frank Gatt,

John Gatt, Charles Romeo, Romeo Tronca and

August Bianchi are plaintiffs in error, and the

United States of America is defendant in error, to

show cause, if any there be, why judgment in the

said writ of error mentioned should not be corrected

and speedy justice done to the parties in tbat be-

half.



United Slates of America. llii

AVITNKSS the Ilonornblc JEREMIAH NE-
TEK*KK*, JikIkc* of tlic District Court of Ww Vniivd

States foi- tlic Western J)istriet of Wasliiii^toii,

Northern Division, this 12th day of January, 192().

JEHEiMIAH NETKREK,
United States District Judge.

[Seal) Attest: ED. M. LAKIN,
Clerk of the District C^ourt of the United States

foi' the Western District of Washington, North-

ern Division. [UKi]

Acceptance of service of within citation acknowl-

edged this 12 Jan., 1926.

C. T. McKINNEY,
Attoniey Ptff.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 12, 1926. [107]

[Endorsed] : No. 5131. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Charles

Komeo, August Bianchi, John Gatt, Frank Gatt,

and Komeo Ti'onca, Plaintiffs in Error, vs. United

States of America, Defendant in Error. Tran-

script of Record. Upon AVrit of Error to the

United States District Court of the Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern Division.

Filed April 25, 1927.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.

By Paul P. O'Brien,

Deputy Clerk.
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Charles Romeo, August Bianchi,
John Gatt, and Romeo Tronca,

Plaintiffs-in-Error,
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—

United States of America,

Defe)idant-in-Error.

No. 5131

On Writ of Error to the United States District
Court of the Western District of

Washington, Northern Division

BRIEF OF PLAINTIFFSIN-ERROR

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
The plaintiffs-in-error, Frank Gatt, John Gatt,

Charles Romeo, Romeo Tronca, and August Bianchi,

were convicted of conspiracy to violate the National

Prohibition Act. The indictment charged:

"That it v^as then and there further the plan,

purpose, and object of said conspiracy, and the

object of said conspirators so conspiring together

as aforesaid, to knowingly, wilfully, and unlaw-
fully conduct and maintain a common nuisance

at certain premises within the city of Seattle,

in the Northern Division of the Western District



of Washington, and within the jurisdiction of this

court, to-wit, 404 Fifth Avenue South, Seattle,

Washington, by keeping, selling and bartering

therein certain intoxicating liquors, to-wit,

whiskey, distilled spirits, and divers other liquors,

etc." (R. 4)

There were eleven overt acts laid, ten having to do
with charging the possession and sale of intoxicating

liquors at 404 Fifth Avenue South, Seattle, Wash-
ington, and the maintenance of a nuisance. Overt Act
10 charged that they possessed intoxicating liquor at

Room 17, 4041/2 Fifth Avenue South.

The testimony of the prohibition agents was that

at various dates over a considerable space of time they

visited the place at 404 Fifth Avenue South, known
as the Monte Carlo Cafe. On February 28th, the day
the arrest was made, a cache of liquor was found in

Room 17, 404Vo Fifth Avenue South. The testimony

was that the defendants rented this room.

There was sufficient conflict in the testimony to

take the case to the jury. The plaintiffs-in-error ask

for a reversal upon errors of law occurring at the

trial.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

I.

The court erred in declaring Mrs. Frank Gatt, the

wife of one of the defendants, an incompetent witness,

and in refusing to allow her to testify.

II.

The court erred in admitting the testimony of the



witness Whitney as to the conversation he had with
Rossi, who was not on trial and not present in court,

and which was told to Whitney at the time Rossi was
informing against his associates.

III.

The court erred in telling the jury that the state-

ment made by Rossi to Whitney, outside of court,

should be weighed the same as if it had been given

in court by Rossi himself. And the court erred in this

same regard in telling the jury to consider in any
manner the testimony of Rossi (R. 28-29).

IV.

The court erred in allowing the witness Whitney to

tell the jury what the notations on Exhibit 46 meant,
and in admitting Exhibit 46 in evidence (R. 28-29).

V.

The court erred in not granting a new trial because

of the prejudicial argument of the Government's at-

torneys (R. 28-29).



ARGUMENT
Assignment of Error I.

Mrs. Frank Gatt was produced as a witness on be-

half of the defendants (R. 81), when the following

occurred

:

Direct Examination:

"Q. What is your name?

A. Mrs. Frank Gatt.

Q. What relation are you to the defendant

Frank Gatt?

A. His wife.

Q. I will ask you, Mrs. Gatt, where you live;

where the family home is?

Mr. McKinney: We object to any testimony

from this woman on the ground that she is the

wife of the defendant.

The Court: If an objection is made on that

ground the objection is sustained.

Mr. Dore: Note an exception. Does Your

Honor hold she won't be allowed to testify at all?

Mr. McKinney : Not on behalf of her husband.

The Court : You say you offer her in behalf of

the other defendants?

Mr. Dore: I am offering her as a witness.

The Court : She can testify in behalf of any of

the other defendants; if you offer her as a wit-

ness for any of the other defendants, except her

husband, she will be permitted to testify; but she

cannot testify in behalf of her husband over the

objection of the Government.

Mr. Dore: Note an exception."



The court held that Mrs. Gatt, because she was

the wife of the defendant Frank Gatt was an in-

com])etent witness in behalf of her husband.

In the case of Randleman v. United States, 18 Fed.

(2d) 27, decided by this court, the wife of a defendant

is held to be a competent wit?iess and the denial to the

defendant of the right to avail himself of her testi-

mony is sufficient grounds for reversal. The sole

question for decision in that case was the refusal to

allow the wife to testify in a Federal court in the State

of Washington. This court held that she was a compe-

tent witness and that the case should be reversed on

that ground alone. That case is decisive on the first

assignment of error and must cause a reversal.

Assignment of Error II.

Under this Assignment a number of assignments

of error can be disposed of.

James Rossi was not apprehended and was not on

trial. On page 76 of the Record appears the follow-

ing:

"I had a coiwersation with Rossi in September,

1924. This conversation took place at Sixth or

Seventh Avenue and Jackson Street. He went out

driving with me in my automobile. He was not

under arrest, he was simply riding with me in my
automobile. I met him by prearrangement, for the

purpose of having a conversation with him. I

talked with him in December over the telephone.

He told me then over the telephone that he col-

lected police graft and sheriff's graft. He told me

that Frank Gatt was the king of the grafters and

was getting rich; that he didn't like it and that



8

lots of the Italians didn't like it, and for that

reason he told me the story. He told me he was
telling me the story because he wanted to help

me catch Frank Gatt. He told me he was collect-

ing for Gatt about $12,000 a month. He said

Gatt was paying him $110 a month for this col-

lection. He arranged to call me up on the tele-

phone and tell me what was going on. He called

me before this raid."

This was cross examination, but is set out here so

as to make clear the fact that the direct testimony

of William M. Whitney which was being objected to

as to his relations with Rossi was incompetent and

inadmissible.

'The witness Whitney further testified that

he questioned the defendant Gatt quite closely

regarding the ownership and operation of the

Monte Carlo because a short time previously he

had talked a number of times with one of the

employees of Frank Gatt, a defendant named

James Rossi; that the witness talked to Rossi

in December, 1924, and in January, 1925, and

February, 1925, and talked to him personally

on a number of other occasions during those

months over the telephone; that Rossi stated that

he was at all those times before the raid on the

Monte Carlo and was still in the employ of and

working with Frank Gatt; that he went to work

first for Frank and John Gatt several months

prior to November, 1923, as a bartender in the

Monte Carlo at one hundred ten dollars per

month ; that he worked one of the shifts of eight
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hours at the Monte Carlo from the time of his em-

ployment until in the early summer of 1924, after

which time he became an outside man in the sell-

ing and handling of whiskey and in helping to

operate some stills for the Gatts and the Monte

Carlo outfit and also became a collector for the

Gatts, which Rossi stated to the witness was his

business at the time of these conversations. Rossi

further told witness that while he was bartender

John and Frank Gatt were the owners of the

Monte Carlo and the principal ones connected

with the Monte Carlo outfit; that in the Monte

Carlo outfit were Louis Cicci, Frank Gatt, John

Gatt, Charles Romeo, Romeo Tranca and August

Bianchia; that until the summer of 1924, he sold

whiskey over the bar ; that they always had a bot-

tleman or man in front of the bar whose business

it was to carry the bottle; that Frank Gatt car-

ried on his whiskey business out of the Monte

Carlo and saw those he supplied with moonshine

in the office of the Monte Carlo; that when he,

Rossi, went to work he would find a certain

amount of the money left in the cash-register;

that he rang up the money in the cash-register

for the sales of whiskey and that Frank Gatt at

least once a day came and counted up the money

and would take the money and that sometimes

John Gatt would come and count up and take the

money; that he would get his wages as long as

he was at the Monte Carlo from either Frank or

John Gatt and that he has seen August Bianchia

also get his money from John or Frank Gatt.
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Rossi stated to witness that some one came into

the Monte Carlo two or three days after Rossi

had sold Mr. Whitney whiskey in November,

1925, and told Frank Gatt that it was Whitney

to whom he had sold whiskey a short time before,

and that Gatt got scared and told Rossi to lay

off a few days on the selling; that the Gatts be-

came worried in January, 1924, over the rumor

that Mr. Whitney was attempting to apprehend

the Monte Carlo and on January 19, 1924, Frank

Gatt made a bill of sale to Charles Romeo and

Romeo Tronca; that the bill of sale stated that

the price was six thousand dollars ; that this was

a fake bill of sale; that neither Tronca nor

Romeo paid Frank Gatt anything, that they

simply allowed Gatt to transfer the property to

them and that at all times up into February,

1925, Frank Gatt and John Gatt were the own-

ers of the Monte Carlo and neither Rossi, Tronca

or Romeo had anything to do with the Monte

Carlo as owners and that Frank Gatt continued

to take the money every day after he executed

the bill of sale just like he did before. That one

of the reasons that Tronca and Romeo in Febru-

ary, 1924, executed a bill of sale of one-third in-

terest in the Monte Carlo to Rossi was that Rossi

applied for and got from the city council of

Seattle a card-room and pool-table license because

only citizens could get licenses and neither

Tronca nor Romeo were citizens; that Rossi did

not put up any money for this alleged interest;

that this arrangement was gone through at the
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request of Frank and John Gatt. That he, Rossi,

executed a bill of sale for his interest over to

Tronca and Romeo; that neither Tronca nor

Romeo i)aid him anything for this. That Charles

Romeo was the right-hand man of Frank Gatt,

and they worked together in the whiskey business

out of the Monte Carlo; that later Romeo Tronca

made a bill of sale to Charles Romeo; that Tronca,

so far as the Monte Carlo is concerned, merely

held title to cover up for Frank Gatt; that later

Romeo Tronca made a bill of sale to a fictitious

person under the name of Tony Saraci and when

Rossi talked to witness in February, 1925, they

had not yet found anyone who would answer as

Tony Saraci; that Rossi, Romeo, and Tronca had

often talked the matter over with Frank Gatt as

to the covering up of the ownership; that

these fake bills of sale; that he knew Gatt paid

Romeo and Tronca money but he did not know

exactly how much they were getting but he did

know August Bianchia was getting one hundred

ten dollars per month; that room 17 at the Saint

Paul Rooms, 404 ^ o Fifth Avenue South, just over

the Monte Carlo was used as a chach and had been

used for a long time and even before he, Rossi,

went to work at the Monte Carlo and that it was

still being used in February, 1925, and that Rossi

explained to the witness just where the secret

cache was in room 17, and how to open it and

get into it; that if they raided the Monte Carlo

and searched the bartender they would find the

key on his person which would o|)en it and get
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into it; that they sometimes carried 20 to 25 gal-

lons of whiskey and several cases of bonded stuff

in this cache. That Rossi told the witness in Feb-

rimryj 1925, that he would notify the witness

when the cache was filled up and said that they

were about to put a large quxmtity of liquor in

the cache and he, Rossi, would phone witness

when it was full and that Rossi did a few days

later 'phone him that the liquor was in the cache

and he would find the key to the cache and said

that Gatt often came in the evening to the office

in the Monte Carlo and concluded his deals for

liquor in the office. The defendant Rossi also

stated to the witness that if they arrested and

searched Frank Gatt, they would find in his

pocket papers and documents showing the places

that the Gatts were doing business with the

amount they paid; that defendant Rossi further

stated to witness that while he was working as

bartender August Bianchia was working as morn-

ing bartender, working until about four o'clock

in the afternoon, at which time Rossi went on

shift; that Bianchia had a bottleman as well as

he, Rossi. Rossi further stated to the witness that

Frank Gatt was working in the Monte Carlo as a

bartender up until the early part of 1923, after

which time he did not work very much.

"The witness Whitney further stated that Rossi

had told him he was just a day or two before the

raid on the Monte Carlo and that he was still in

the employ of Frank Gatt, getting one hundred

and ten dollars per month and had informed the
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witness that Room 17 of the St. Paul Rooms, 4041/2

Fifth Avenue South was being fitted up and well

stocked with liquors and that the witness would

find the cache full as he had told witness a few

days before he would let him know when it was
stocked; that this cache was merely a working

cache for the Monte Carlo and a few of the smaller

establishments for which the Monte Carlo furn-

ished whiskey around there and that the cache

would be full by the time we could make the raid."

(R. 64-69)

At this point the court was asked to instruct the

jury that this testimony only goes as against the de-

fendant Rossi and cannot be taken to establish any

fact as against any other defendant. The court re-

fused the request. And on page 70 of the Record

the following occurred

:

"Mr. Rossi also stated that in 1925, a few days

before the raid, he was working under the direc-

tion of the Gatts and Frank Gatt in particular

and was collecting from other bootlegging estab-

lishments which Frank Gatt and John Gatt oper-

ated out of the Monte Carlo and was furnishing

liquor and collecting thousands of dollars a month,

as high as twelve thousand dollars a month, and

turned it over to Frank Gatt as protection and

graft money from these institutions and brought

it up to the office and turned it over to Frank

Gatt in the office of the Monte Carlo.

Mr. Dore: I move that testimony be stricken

and the jury instructed to disregard it as in-

competent, irrelevant and immaterial.
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The Court : With relation to the collection of

the graft money, that may be stricken.

Mr. Dore: Note an exception."

It is apparent from the cross examination of the

witness Whitney, and apparent from the testimony

itself on direct examination, that Rossi at the time

he had the conversation with Whitney had turned

traitor to his associates. Nothing that he told Whitney

by the widest scope of imagination could be considered

as a statement made in furtherance of the conspiracy.

As Whitney says himself, he was riding around in

Whitney's automobile and laying plans to aid Whitney

in the apprehension of his colleagues. The purpose of

Rossi's testimony was to furnish Whitney with means

to apprehend and convict his associates. Rossi wasn't

on trial, the testimony was not admissible against him

because he was not being tried ; it was not admissible

against any of the other defendants because none of

them were present at the time the conversation took

place, and furthermore it was not admissible under

the rule of statements made during the life of the

conspiracy in furtherance thereof.

But when the court came to his instruction, to which

exception was taken (R. 28) he says:

"Is any credence to be placed in the testimony

of Pepe, or the statements made by Rossi to

Whitney, as disclosed by Mr. Whitney. Pepe says

that a conspiracy was formed. Whitney said what

Rossi told him with relation to the activities of

the defendant Frank Gatt. From the statements

of both of these parties they were parties to the

conspiracy. Pepe said what Gatt did, that he
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acted under the direction and supervision of

Gatt; that the holding of the bill of sale which

was executed in January, 1925, was without his

knowledge—he knew nothing about it— it was

given to him by Frank Gatt and that Gatt told

him what his name was to be henceforth; and

you heard his testimony with relation to state-

ments made to him by Frank Gatt with relation

to the conduct of the parties. Now you are in-

structed that Pej^e's testimony, likewise the state-

ment of Mr. Rossi under the law are denominated

accomplices, and the testimony of an accomplice

is from a polluted source. Now the testimony of

an accomplice should be received with care and

caution and subjected to careful scrutiny in the

light of all of the other evidence in the case ; and

the jury ought not to convict upon the testimony

of an accomplice alone unless after a careful

examination of such testimony the jurors are sat-

isfied beyond a reasonable doubt of its truth

and that they can safely rely upon it." (R. 92-3)

The jury were told in this instruction that Whit-

ney's recital of his conversation with Rossi was the

same as if Rossi were present in court and giving the

testimony. And to emphasize to the jury that Whit-

ney's statement as to what Rossi said should be

treated the same as if they had heard it from the

lips of Rossi himself, the court told the jury that Rossi

was an accomjilice. The court tells the jury that Pepe,

one of the indicted i")ersons, who under oath gave testi-

mony against the defendants, was of the same class of

witness as Rossi and that Rossi's testimony should
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be weighed just the same as that of Pepe, aiid that

they were both accomplices, and that the jury had the

right—after applying the cautionary instruction as

to the valuation to be given to the testimony of an

accomplice—to place the same reliance upon the state-

ments made by Rossi to Whitney as upon the sworn

statements of Pepe on the witness stand. To say that

Whitney's recital of what Rossi told him makes the

statements as related by him the same as if they came

from Rossi's lips upon the witness stand, the same as

if Rossi were subjected to cross-examination, is a

legal absurdity. The instruction was erroneous and

prejudicial.

The instruction was erroneous on another ground,

and that was because the testimony of Rossi was not

admissible or competent against any of the defend-

ants and could not be weighed for any purpose

against them. But when you take this instruction and

consider that it is erroneous because it gave to the

statements of the absent Rossi the same standing as

if he were a witness in court, coupled with the fact

that it was purely inadmissible, must cause a re-

versal of this judgment.

In Gatt's pocket w^as found a piece of paper which

was marked Exhibit 46 (R. 60). Over objection the

following testimony was givei:

''Government's Exhibit 46 I took from his vest

pocket, folded up in the way it naturally folds

up.

Mr. Whitney identified Government's Exhibit

46, as a paper which he took out of Frank Gatt's

vest pocket, folded up naturally, and testified that
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he was familiar with the premises and buildings

mentioned on the exhibit as they were on Febru-

ary 28th, 1925.

Q. Now, Mr. Whitney, are you familiar with

those premises described in that exhibit?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know what kind of premises those

buildings were?

Objected to by the defendants on the ground

that it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection overruled and an exception allowed.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What kind were they?

Same objection by the defendants, on the same

grounds.

The Silver Dollar is a soft-drink joint at

217 ll> Second Avenue South; 116 Third Avenue

South is a soft-drink bar and bootlegging joint.

104Vl> Fourth Avenue South was a soft-drink bar

and bootlegging joint.

Mr. Dore: We ask an exception to all this

testimony.

The Court: Yes, note an exception.

That the Silver Dollar is a soft-drink joint at

217 1 o Second Avenue South.

That 116 Third Avenue South is a soft-drink

bar, and bootlegging joint.

That 10411. Fourth Avenue South was a soft-

drink bar and bootlegging joint.

215 Second Avenue South at that time was a

bootlegging joint and had a bar and soft drink

place similar to the Silver Dollar near it.



18

The South Pole was at the northwest corner

of Dearborn and 6th Avenue South, a soft-drink

bar and bootlegging joint.

21114 Second Avenue South was a bootlegging

joint downstairs similarly fitted up as the Silver

Dollar.

105 Washington Street was a bootlegging joint

and soft-drink bar.

2171/0 Washington Street was up to a few days

before the raid on the Monte Carlo a bootlegging

and soft-drink joint.

104 Washington Street was a sort of a soft-

drink and bootlegging joint.

101 Occidental up to a few days before the raid

on the Monte Carlo was a bootlegging joint and

a soft-drink place in the basement under Joe

Dizard's.

On the reverse side of Exhibit 46:

215 Second Avenue South was a bootlegging

joint at that time." (R. 60-62)

This testimony was incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial. It was offered for the purpose of show-

ing that these were places from which Frank Gatt

was collecting protection money for the sheriff and

chief of police. It could have no other purpose in the

case and could influence the jury in no other manner.

It was introduced solely for this purpose. The defend-

ants were charged with conspiracy. The situs of this

conspiracy was laid at 404 Fifth Avenue South, and

the only testimony relating to any other place was
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that on the floor above 404, in Room 17, there was a

licjuor cache, the liquor being taken from the cache

to 404 Fifth Avenue South and there disposed of.

Testimony such as this had no relevancy to the issue

at all.

On page 81 of the Record appears the following

cross e.xamination of the defendant Frank Gatt:

**Q. You were convicted—you and Cicci were

convicted of the possession of intoxicating liquor

out of that place in 1923?

Defendants object on the ground that it is in-

competent, irrelevant and immaterial. Objection

sustained and the jury instructed to disregard it."

The Government sought to prove that Gatt and an-

other indicted with him was convicted in 1923 of the

])ossession of intoxicating liquor at the place laid in

this indictment. Objection to this was sustained.

On page 83 of the Record, counsel made the follow-

ing improper argument:
u* * * T^hese defendants are charged with

consi)iracy, they have taken the stand in their own

behalf, three of them, and we tried to examine

them on certain things connected with that place;

we tried to show you that this place was raided

and Frank Gatt came and pleaded guilty, and the

court would not let us do it

—

"* * * We tried to bring out all the other

facts so that you might have the whole story;

Mr. Dore objected I suppose feeling he was

protecting the rights of his clients
—

"

Despite all that the court could do—and it is our
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contention that he did not do sufficient—time and

time again the district attorney kept repeating to the

jury his attempt to get into the case testimony that

the court had excluded, and kept insinuating that if

he only had been permitted to get it in, the jury

would have learned something to their benefit. The

prejudicial conduct of the district attorney is shown

again on page 82 of the Record, where he says

:

*'When you find a crowd of men like these in

your city, some of them not naturalized, accord-

ing to the testimony, when you find them to-

gether,
"

There was no testimony in the record that the de-

fendants were not naturalized. The jury saw them in

court. They were all Italians, as their names indi-

cated, and the jury was told that they were not nat-

uralized. And a similar argument made by the same

district attorney was held grounds for reversal by

this court, in the case of Fontanello v. United States,

No. 5045, 19 Fed. (2d) 921, decided by this court on

June 13, 1927.

And equally improper, though less prejudicial, were

the remarks of the assistant United States attorney,

as appears on page 82 of the Record, as follows:

"I will say to this jury if you want to rid this

city of one of its most corrupt influences, and

you find that the evidence so warrants in this

case, you will have done the city one of the best

services in years."

This statement, when coupled with the remarks of

his chief, show that the argument was so grossly
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prejudicial of itself as to requii*e a reversal of this

jud^mient.

We respectfully contend that the judj^ment should

l)e reversed.

John F. Dore,

F. C. Reagan,

H. S. Frye,

Attorneys for Plaintiffs-iii-Error.
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The evidence during the trial showed that the Gatt

brothers, together with Charles Romeo and Romeo
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Tronca, had owned and conducted the Monte Carlo

Cafe in the City of Seattle, Washington, from which

place they sold and distributed various kinds of intoxi-

cating liquor, both in retail and wholesale lots; that

room No. 17, of 404 Vi- Fifth Avenue South, was the

place of concealment of the intoxicating liquor which

was distributed; that 404 y^ Fifth Avenue South was a

hotel, and room No. 17 had been constructed as a cache

for the liquor and at the time of the raid a large

amount of whiskey was found in said room (Tr. 63)

;

that one of the defendants in the case testified on be-

half of the Government and detailed the various activi-

ties of the various defendants during the time of the

conspiracy mentioned in the indictment (Tr. 34) ; that

all of the defendants were on trial with the exception

of defendant Rossi ; that all of the defendants on trial

were convicted.

ARGUMENT

I.

The first error assigned by plaintiff in error is the

refusal of the Court to permit Mrs. Frank Gatt to

testify on behalf of the defendants and cite as authority

the case of RendleTnan vs. United States, 18 Fed. 2nd,

page 27, to support their contention. There is a dis-
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tinctive difference between the facts in this case and

the facts in the Rendlemeii case. In the Remllemen

case the witness was placed u; on the stand to testify

on behalf of her husband, which evidence was refused

by the Court, and thereafter counsel made an offer of

proof as to what she would testify to. He was not i)er-

mitted to make his offer of proof and exception was

taken thereto. In this case counsel placed the witness

upon the stand and after it was ascertained that she

was the wife of one of the defendants, an objection

being made by the Government, she was not permitted

to testify. The Court made inquiry as to whom she

was to testify for and counsel refused to state whether

it was on behalf of the other defendants, or on behalf

of her husband (Tr. 82). No offer of proof was made

as to what she would testify to. Therefore, it cannot

be said now that the defendants were prejudiced by the

fact that she was not permitted to testify. The Court

cannot possibly say now that any prejudicial error was

committed because there is no showing that what she

would have testified to would have been competent,

relevant or material. The Court must have something

upon which to predicate error, and in the absence of an

offer of proof the Court cannot now say that the de-

fendants' rights were prejudiced inasmuch as counsel

refused to state on whose behalf she was to testify.
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(Sec. 1246 C. S. ; Rendlemen vs. United States, 18 Fed.

2nd, page 27; Olmstead vs. United States, 19 Fed. 2nd,

page 550-552 ; Sarkisian vs. United States, 3 Fed. 2nd,

page 599).

11.

Under assignment No. II, counsel has raised

numerous questions of error, the first of which can be

discussed under sub-heading ''A."

A. There was no error in the admission of testi-

mony fouiid on page seven (7) of the plaintiff-in-

error's brief, and found also on page seventy-six (76)

of the transcript, inasmuch as the testimony there

elicited was brought out on cross-examination by coun-

sel for the defense and no exception was taken thereto.

Consequently, counsel cannot be heard to complain now

that it was prejudicial. The testimony found on pages

eight (8), nine (9), ten (10), eleven (11) and

twelve (12) and a portion of the testimony on page

thirteen (13) of appellants' brief, will be found on

pages sixty-four (64), sixty-five (65), sixty-six (66),

sixty-seven (67), sixty eight (68) and a portion of

page sixty-nine (69) of the transcript. There ivas vo

objection made to said testimony nor exception taken,

and no assignment of error was predicated thereon.
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Sarkisian vs. United States, 3 Fed. 2nd, 599. The

only Hssignment of error covering any testimony of the

witness Whitney is found on page twenty-six (26) of

the transcript, at paragraph II, from which assignment

one is unable to state which portion of Whitney's testi-

mony counsel objects to. The only exception taken was

on page sixty-nine (69), after which the Court in-

structed the jury as follows:

'THE COURT: I will state that unless the con-

spiracy is established between these parties, of which

Rossi is a part, then the statement made by Rossi could

not be construed against any of the other defendants

except himself, nor can the statement itself be con-

strued as establishing consi;iracy as against the other

parties, but only binds Mr. Rossi, and if a statement

was made in furtherance of the conspiracy, and the

conspiracy is established, then it may be construed as

against all parties."

Olmstead vs. United States, 19 Fed. 2nd, 550

at 552.

Allen vs. United States, 4 Fed. 688.

WITNESS: (Continued). iMr. Rossi also stated

that in 1925, a few days before the raid, he was work-

ing under the direction of the Gatts and Frank Gatt

in particular, and was collecting from other bootleg-
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ging establishments which Frank Gatt and John Gatt

operated out of the Monte Carlo and was furnishing

liquor and collecting thousands of dollars a month, as

high as twelve thousand dollars a month, and turned

it over to Frank Gatt as protection and graft money

from these institutions and brought it up to the ofRce

and turned it over to Frank Gatt in the office of the

Monte Carlo.

MR. DORE : I move that testimony be stricken and

the jury instructed to disregard it as incompetent,

irrelevant and immaterial.

THE COURT: With relation to the collection of

the graft money, that may be stricken. Proceed."

Counsel states, on page thirteen (13) of his brief,

that the Court refused to instruct the jury, which state-

ment is erroneous in view of the foregoing instructions

heretofore set forth.

The next conversation objected to is found on page

seventy (70) of the transcript, starting with the word

''witness," four lines from the top of the page. That

testimony was stricken by the Court at the time. ( Tr.

70). Counsel's brief does not clearly set forth the

exact happenings as they took place, as the Court will
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find from its entire inspection of Mr. Whitney's tes-

timony, bep:inning on page fifty-five (55) of the tran-

script and continuing through to page seventy-six

(76). Most of the conversation related by Rossi to

Whitney was detailed on the day of December 29, 1925.

(Tr. 68), and it was not until the following day that

any exception was taken to any of the testimony of Mr.

Whitney. (Tr. 69). It would be necessary for the

Court to take note of these facts in order to clearly

understand counsel's brief.

B. Under "B" counsel has objected to the instruc-

tion of the Court as to the testimony given by Mr.

Whitney of his conversation with the defendant Rossi

(Tr. 28). This conversation was had without objec-

tion by counsel for the defense. It was competent as

being statements of one of the co-conspirators made in

furtherance of the conspiracy, and was a part of the

res gestae, and were made prior to the termination of

the conspiracy and before any arrests were made, and

while Rossi was a member of the conspiracy. (Tr. 64

and 68). (See Fur Co. vs. United States, 7 L. Ed., at

])ages 450, 453), wherein the Court said:

"The opinion of the court in the present case is not

less correct whether Davis was considered by the jury

as having acted in conjunction with Wallace or strictly
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as his agent, for we hold the law to be that where two
or more persons are associated together for the same
illegal purpose, any act or declaration of one of the

parties in reference to the common object and forming
a part of the res gestae may he given in evidence

against the others, and this, we understand, upon a fair

interpretation of the opinion before us to be the prin-

ciple which was communicated to the jury."

United States vs. Olmstead, 19 Fed. 2nd, page

550.

However, any view that the Court may take of the

matter, the defendant could not possibly be prejudiced

by reason of the fact that the Court instructed the jury

that all such testimony came from a polluted source.

The witness Whitney had testified to his conversations

with Rossi, and they were competent to show that

Rossi was a member of the conspiracy. The jury could

not possibly have been confused by reason of the fact

that the Court instructed the jury that such testimony

was to be carefully scrutinized.

C. The next assignment of errors covers the ad-

mission of the Exhibit No. 46. (Tr. 60). The defend-

ants were charged with a conspiracy to sell intoxicat-

ing liquor and it was competent to show that they were

connected with various other bootlegging places be-
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sides the Monte Carlo as there was no specific charge

in the indictment that they found the evidence in the

Monte Carlo cache. From examination of Exhibit No.

46, the Court can see the nature of the same which

shows •> ery plainly on its face that certain amounts of

money were being collected from those places, and it

also >hows that a number of the places had been

scratched off, and Mr. Whitney testified that those

olaces had only recently been raided and closed down,

and the defendant Rossi had stated that Gatt would

have such a list on his person, which would show the

places he was doing business with. There was plainly

no error in the admission of such testimony in the face

of Mr. V hitney's explanation of them, found on page

sixty (60), sixty-one (61) and sixty-eight (68) of the

transcript.

D. There was no error upon the grounds predicated

by the defendants on page nineteen (19) of their brief

for the reason that it was perfectly permissable to

show that the defendants had been convicted of the pos-

session of intoxicating liquor in 1923. {U. S. vs. Mer-

rill 6 Fed. 2nd, 120, 9th C. C. A.) Consequently, the

remarks made by counsel foi- the Government could

have in no wise prejudiced the defendants in any way.
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The other remarks, found on page twenty (20) of the

plaintiff in error's brief were not prejudicial inasmuch

as the Court instructed the jury to disregard any such

remarks. (Tr. 82 and 83). Counsel has not seen fit

to set out the fact that the Court instructed the jury to

disregard such remarks. In the Fontanello case {Fo7i-

tanello vs. United States, No. 5045, 19 Fed. 2nd, 921),

the Court had not so instructed the jury and there was

a great deal more said which would tend to inflame the

jury than in the present case. The last matter men-

tioned on page twenty (20) and stated by the Assistant

United States Attorney, was clearly proper and within

the confines of an argument upon the facts, because the

jury was asked to so consider it by the language,

«* * * ^^^ yQ^ Hj^^ ^]^g evidence so warrants in this

case * * *."

It is respectfully urged that there was no error com-

mitted in this case.

THOS. P. REVELLE,
United States Attorney.

PAUL D. COLES,

Assistant United States Attorneys.

Attorneys for Defendant-in-Error.
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:

Come now the plaintiffs in error and respectfully

petition the court to grant a rehearing in this case,

and in support of their petition represent as follows:

I

In the opinion filed herein on the 23rd day of Janu-

ary, 1928, the court while holding that the action of

the trial judge in refusing to allow the wife of Frank

Gatt, one of the defendants, to testify was erroneous,

announced as law that the error was not available to

the plaintiffs in error because there was no offer of

testimony made. On this point the opinion reads:

"The enquiry as to the place of residence of the



witness suggested no answer material to the is-

sues, and even if the court's ruling was assigned

as error, there could have been no error unless

the attention of the court had been directed to

the nature and relevancy of the evidence ought

to be added."

This is not the law. There is a wide distinction

between the competency of a witness to testify and

the competency of evidence.

State V. Von Klein (Ore.), 142 Pac. Rep.

549;

Hoag V. WHght (N. Y.), 66 N. E. Rep. 579.

If an objection is sustained to the evidence of a wit-

ness, the ruling cannot be reviewed unless the record

discloses an offer to prove by the witness facts rele-

vant to the issues.

Sarkisian v. United States, 3 Fed. (2d.) 599.

If, however, the trial court refused to permit a

witness to testify at all because in his judgment he is

incompetent as a witness, the error will be reviewed,

although no offer of testimony is made.

9 Ency. of Evidence, 164;

38 Cyc, 1331;

Martz Ex. v. Martz (Va.), 25 Gratt. 361;

Mutual Ins. Co. v. Oliver (Va.), 28 S. E.

Rep. 594;

Metz V. Snodgrass, 9 W. Va. 190;

Sutherland v. Haivkins, 56 Ind. 323

;

State V. Thomas (Ind.), 13 N. E. Rep. 35;

Foree v. Smith (Ky.), 1 Dana 151.

"Where the question is not the competency of

the testimony expected to be elicited, but the com-



potency of the witness to testify at all, the party

offering the witness is not required to state what

he expects to prove by the witness."

9 Ency. of Evidence, 164, mpra.

"Ordinarily, when a (juestion is asked and the

witness is not permitted to answer it, the record

must show what the party expected or proposed

to prove by the witness, in order to have the

action of the trial court reviewed by the appellate

tribunal [citing cases]. Where, however, it is

not a question of the relevancy or materiality of

the testimony, but a question of the competency

of the witness, and whether he shall be permitted

to testify at all, though his testimony be ever so

relevant and material, it was held in Martz. Ex.

V. Martz Heirs, 25 Gratt. 307, that it is not neces-

sary to state in the bill of exception what the

testimony of the witness would be in order to

have the action of the court in excluding him re-

viewed by the appellate tribunal. The fact that

he was excluded by the court, upon an objection

being made to his testimony by the adverse party,

implies that it would be unfavorable to such

party."

Mutual Ins. Co. v. Oliver, supra.

"But it is argued that the exception is not well

taken, inasmuch as it does not state what was

offered to be proved by the witness. It is not a

case as to the relevancy of testimony, as in Carp-

enter V. Utz, 4 Gratt. 270, cited by appellee coun-

sel. If it were, it would have been necessary for

the exceptor to have shown its relevancy by set-



ting out what could be proved by the witness.

But it is a question whether the witness shall be

heard at all, though his testimony be ever so

relevant and important. It is not necessary to

state what his testimony would be in order to

present to the appellate tribunal the question as

to the legality and propriety of the decision of the

lower court; and the adverse party objecting to

his giving testimony at all, implies that his testi-

mony would be unfavorable to him."

Martz Ex. v. Martz, supra.

''When a party complains, in this court, of the

exclusion of offered evidence by a lower court,

we have often held, that such party must show,

by a bill of exception properly in the record, what

the evidence was which had been excluded. * * *

But, in our opinion, there is a wide and marked

difference between the questions decided in those

cases and the question presented by the record

of this case. * * * The matter complained of by

the appellants, in this court, was not the exclusion

of any particular evidence, but the absolute re-

fusal of the court below to allow a certain wit-

ness to testify at all, in the case. Where offered

evidence is excluded, it must be made a part of

the record before this court can pass upon the

question whether the court below has or has not

erred in its exclusion. But where, as in this case,

the matter complained of is the action of the

court, in refusing to allow a witness to testify at

all, the grounds of objection to the witness must

be shown by a bill of exceptions, and this is all



that need be shown in order to present the matter

for our consideration."

Snfherlaiul v. Haivki)is, supra.

The ground of objection to Mrs. Gatt's testimony

was that she was the wife of one of the defendants on

trial; the objection and the ruling of the trial court

sustaining it is properly preserved in the bill of excep-

tions ; the objection was urged by the Government and

this warrants the implication that the testimony ex-

cluded was important, relevant and favorable to the

defendants.

The case of Rendleman v. United States, 18 Fed.

(2d.) 27, is controlling and calls for a reversal of this

case. It is worthy of mention that the record in the

Rendleman case shows that the same questions were

asked the witness as in this case, to-wit, her name

and address, and that no offer of proof was made or

permitted.

That no special assignment of error was made is

answered by this and other court's holdings in numer-

ous recent decisions, that in criminal cases manifest

prejudicial error will be reversed and corrected, even

though not preserved by exceptions or assignments of

error.

Bilvoa V. United States, 287 Fed. 125;

Wiborg v. United States, 163 U. S. 632;

Davis' V. United States, 9 Fed. (2d) 826;

Schirartz v. United States, 10 Fed. (2d) 900;

Shields v. United States, 17 Fed. (2d) 66;

Van Gorder v. United States, 21 Fed. (2d)

939;

Lamento v. United States, 4 Fed. (2d) 901;

McNutt V. United States, 267 Fed. 670.
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II

A majority of the court, in the concurring opinion,

holds that the testimony of Agent Whitney concerning

reports to him by Rossi, a defendant, not on trial,

were inadmissible and so prejudicial as to call for a

reversal had timely objection been made. Such ob-

jection was made, not once, but repeatedly, and these

objections were followed, first, by a request that the

trial court instruct the jury to disregard such testi-

mony, and, secondly, by a motion to strike the same

from the case. The plaintiffs in error, in their efforts

to exclude this improper and highly prejudicial evi-

dence, seem to have exhausted every reasonable effort,

and the blame for the unfair trial which resulted

should be placed upon the trial judge where it prop-

erly belongs. In criminal cases, the correct rule to

be applied is clearly stated in Sutherland v. United

States, 19 Fed. (2d) 202, 216:

"Though the record does not show that any ob-

jection was taken in relation to some of the mat-

ters mentioned, yet in pursuing the broad in-

quiry, whether a fair trial was had, we feel at

liberty to examine the record as a whole without

regard to objections."

In the present case, the record as a whole discloses

that the plaintiffs in error did not have a fair trial,

that is, a trial conducted in all material things in sub-

stantial conformity to law, and that they repeatedly

tried to protect their rights in the premises. A refer-

ence to the record substantiates this claim:

"Agent Whitney : Rossi further stated to the

witness that in December, 1924, and January,
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1925, that either Frank Gatt or John Gatt would

come each morning and get the money.

Mr. Dore (for Defendants) : We ask the jury

be instructed that this testimony only goes as

against the defendant Rossi, it cannot be taken

to establish any fact against any other defendant.

Mr. McKinney (for the Government) : This

is a convei-sation I understand prior to the de-

termination of the conspiracy.

Q. (By The Court): When was the con-

spiracy?

A. (Whitney) : It was in the fall of 1924 or

early part of January, 1925.

The Court: Very well, go ahead.

Mr. Dore: I renew the request. Is the request

for such an instruction denied at this time?

The Court : At this time.

Mr. Dore: Note an exception.

Witness (continued) : Mr. Rossi also stated

that in 1925, a few days before the raid he was

working under the direction of the Gatts, and

Frank Gatt in particular, and was collecting from

other bootlegging establishments which Frank

Gatt and John Gatt operated out of the Monte

Carlo and was furnishing liquor and collecting

thousands of dollars a month, and turned it over

to Frank Gatt as protection and graft money

from these institutions and brought it up to the

office and turned it over to Frank Gatt in the

office of the Monte Carlo.

Mr. Dore : I move that the testimony be strick-
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en and the jury instructed to disregard it as in-

competent, irrelevant and immaterial.

The Court: With relation to the collection of

the graft money, that may be stricken.

Mr. Dore: Note an exception.

The Court: Note it." (Trans. 69, 70)

In the light of the record, it is not fair to say that this

"testimony was admitted without objection," and we
feel that the court on maturer consideration will agree

with us that the plaintiffs in error, through their at-

torney, did everything that was humanly possible to

keep this prejudicial testimony away from the jury.

*'A fair trial consists not alone in an observ-

ance of the naked forms of law, but in a recogni-

tion and just application of its principles."

State V. Pryor, 67 Wash. 219.

In the celebrated case of Bram v. United States^

168 U. S. 540, the defendant objected twice before

the witness was permitted to answer, but failed to

renew his objection after the answer had been given,

and in answer to the contention that the objection

had been waived the Supreme Court said

:

'To say that under these circumstances the

objection which was twice presented and regular-

ly allowed should have been renewed at the term-

ination of the testimony of the witness, would

be pushing to an unreasonable length the salu-

tary rule which requires that exceptions be taken

at the trial to rulings which are considered erron-

eous, and the legality of which are thereafter to

be questioned on error. There can be no doubt

that the manner in which the exception was al-
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lowed and noted fully called attention to the fact

that the admission of the conversation was ob-

jected to because it was not voluntary, and the

overruling of this objection is the matter now

assigned as error here."

In the present case the objection urged called the

attention of the trial court to the fact that the testi-

mony of Whitney concerning admissions and state-

ments of Rossi was inadmissible against his co-defend-

ants, and this was emphasized by the motion to strike

this testimony after it had been given. Consequently,

the error is reviewable in this court. Nor can any

just fault be found with the form of the objection,

for it is well settled law that where testimony is in-

admissible, and could not under any state of facts be

rendered admissible, a general objection is sufficient

to present for review the question of the admission of

such evidence.

Sajford v. United States, 233 Fed. 499.

Ill

In his closing argument to the jury the attorney for

the Government went beyond the limits of proper

argument and deliberately went outside of the record

for the obvious purpose of arousing prejudice against

the defendants in the minds of the jury. This was

reversible error.

FontaneUo v. U. S., 19 Fed. (2d) 921.

In that case the misconduct was mild and innocuous

compared with the misconduct in the present case, yet,

in reversing, this court said

:

"It is beyond question that the statements of
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the district attorney were unjustifiable and cen-

surable. As an officer of the court he signally

failed in his duty to act in the interest of justice."

The same situation is presented by the record in

this case, as follows:

"Mr. Revelle (District Attorney) : When you

find a crowd of men like these men in your city,

some of them not naturalized, according to the

testimony, when you find them together,

—

Mr. Dore (for Defendants) : I object to that

as improper argument, and ask the jury to be in-

structed to disregard it.

The Court: The jury will conclude upon the

evidence, not conjecture.

Mr. Revelle: These defendants are charged

with conspiracy, they have taken the stand in

their own behalf, three of them, and we tried to

examine them on certain things connected with

that place; we tried to show you that this place

was raided and Frank Gatt came and pleaded

guilty, and the court would not let us do it

—

Mr. Dore: I object to that as improper argu-

ment, and ask the jury be instructed to disregard

it.

The Court: You will conclude upon the evi-

dence." (Trans. 82, 83)

This was gross misconduct and prejudicial to the

defendants, and it was the duty of the court, when

challenged, to direct the jury, in unequivocal Imigwxge,

to disregard it. It was objectionable for two rea-

sons. In the opening part of the argument quoted

the district attorney urged a conviction because the
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defendants were foreigners, an argument which this

court denounced in the Fimtanello case. And in the

closing part he urged upon the attention of the jury

matters which were not in evidence, matters which

had been rejected when offered.

**It is not within the legitimate province of

counsel to state facts pertinent to the issue that

are not in evidence; nor can he assume in argu-

ment that such facts are in the case when they

are not, and counsel cannot be permitted to make

a statement of facts which under the rules of evi-

dence would not be received, if offered, the natur-

al tendency of such facts being to influence the

findings of the jury."

Loivden v. U. S., 149 Fed. 673.

Standing alone, the remarks of the district attorney

warrant a reversal of this case, but taken in connec-

tion with the improper rejection of the testimony of

Mrs. Gatt and the admission of the highly prejudicial

hearsay testimony of Agent Whitney, it is clear that

the plaintiffs in error were not accorded a fair trial

and their conviction was illegally secured.

We respectfully submit that a rehearing and re-

consideration of this case should be granted and upon

such rehearing the judgment of the trial court re-

versed.

John F. Dore,

F. C. Reagan,

H. S. Frye,

Attorneys for Plaintiffs in Error.

The foregoing petition for rehearing is, in my opin-
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ion, meritorious and well founded in law and is not

interposed for the purpose of delay.

John F. Dore,

Attorney for Plaintiffs in Error,

Seattle, Washington.
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7. Petition for appeal.

8. Order allowing appeal and fixing bonds.

9. Assignment of errors.

10. Order regarding Immigration Record.

11. Clerk's certificate.

12. Citation on appeal.

EMERY F. MITCHELL,
Attorney for Petitioner and Appellant.

[Endorsed] : Receipt of a copy of the within

praecipe is hereby admitted this 10th day of April,

1927.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
United States Attorney.

Filed Apr. 14, 1927. [1*]

In the Southern Division of the United States

District Court for the Northern District of

California, Second Division.

19,212.

In the Matter of LOW FOOK YUNG, alias LAU
SHEE, or LAW SHEE, alias AH YOUNG,
alias NGONG FON, or LOW SHEE. No.

12020/6392.

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS.

To the Honorable United States District Judge

Now Presiding in the United States District

Court in and for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, Second Division:

*Page-numbcr appearing at the foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Eecord.
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It is iTspccI liilly shown l)y tlic petition <>j' the

UiKh'i'si^ncd that l.ow Fook Yuii^, alids I.aii Shee,

or Law Shcc, (ili<is Ah Voiintr. ali'is Xp)ii^: Fon, or

Low Shcc, licrcinattci' in ihis jx'litioii i-ciVncd to

as the " Ditaiiu'd," is uiihiwfiiily imprisoned, de-

tained, confined and icst rained of her lihei'ty by

John J). Na^U*, Conunissioner of hnrni^i-ation Tor

the Port of San Francisco, at tlie Immigration

Station at An^cl Lshmd, County of Marin, State

and Northern District of California, Southern Divi-

sion thereof, and that tlie said imprisonment, con-

finement and resti'aint is idet^al, and that the ille-

jiality tlieieof consists in this, to wit, tlial it ds

claimed by the said (\)mmissi()ner that the said

Detained is an alien Chinese pei'son who is subject

to be i-etuiiu'd to the country whence she came

under section 19 of the Innnij:;ration Act of Feb-

ruary 5, 1917, beinji: subject to deportation under

the provisions of a law of the Cnited States, to wit,

the Chinese Exchision Law, in that she has been

found in the Cnited States in viohition of Rule 9,

Chinese rules, and of the Sui)reme Court decisions

upon which said rule is based, liavin^ secured ad-

mission by fraud, not having: been, at the time of

entry, the wife of a member of the exempt classes,

and the said alien has been foinul in the United

States in violation of the Innnijiration Act of

F\>bi-uary 5, 1917, in that she entered the Cnited

States for an [2] inunoral purpose.

It is further claimed by the said Conunissioner

that the said Detained was arrested on executive

warrant of arrest issued ))y the Secretary of Labor
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to answer the said charges, and that after a hearing

thereon, which the said Commissioner claims was

made and had in full and complete accordance with

the provisions of the acts aforesaid, the detained

was found to have secured admission by fraud, not

having been, at the time of entry, the wife of a

member of the exempt classes, and that she entered

the United States for an immoral purpose and was

ordered deported from and out of the United States

for said reasons, and that therefore he, the said

Commissioner, intends to deport the said detained

away from and out of the United States to the

Republic of China, and unless this Court intervenes

as hereinafter in this petition prayed for, said

detained will be deported from and out of the

United States.

But, on the contrary, your petitioner alleges upon

his information and belief that the action of the

said secretary in issuing said warrant, and in the

hearing conducted upon and under said warrant,

and in his issuing said order of deportation against

the said detained, abused the discretion vested in

him, and has made a misconstruction of the statute

of the prejudice of the said detained in each of the

following particulars hereinafter set forth:

Your petitioner alleges that the said detained

arrived in the United States as an incoming pas-

senger on the steamship "President Jackson" at

the port of Seattle on the 29th day of September,

1923, and that said detained was thereafter ad-

mitted into the United States as the wife of Jew

Shepp, an American citizen. That ever since said
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time the said dctaiiicd lias been at libei-ty in tlie

rnited States [:}] and has never since departed

therefrom.

Your petitioner fiirtlier alleges u|)()ii his infor-

mation and belief that there was no h'<::al or any

evidence whatever to support said warrant of de-

j)ortation presented to said Conunissioner of Immi-

gration or to said Secretaiy of Labor that the said

detained secured admission to the United States

by fraud or that the said detained entered the

United States for an innnoral purpose, or that she

ever was at any time guilty of a single act of im-

morality.

^'our jx'titioncr further alleges u})()n his infor-

mation and belief that the so-called evidence pre-

sented and introduced against the detained, and

upon which the pretended warrant was based, to

wit, the letter of K. ]*. Boidiam was presented and

introduced notwithstanding the fact that said de-

tained objected to the admission of said evidence,

and requested that it be stricken out and destroyed,

but that nevertheless it was introduced as afore-

said. That said detained further requested said

Commissioner to produce the said K. P. Bonham
for the ])Ui'pose of cross-examination, but that said

Commissioner wholly failed so to do.

Your petition further alleges upon his informa-

tion and belief that the so-called evidence presented

and introduced against the detained and ui)on which

tile pretended waiTant of deportation was based,

consists of lieai*say statements and private reports

and other evidence of incompetent, innnaterial and
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irrelevant character not permitted to be admitted

in the courts of justice in the United States, State

and Federal.

Your petitioner further alleges upon his informa-

tion and belief that the said detained was and is

ordered deported without due or any process of law

or proof of any kind or character proving or tend-

ing to prove the alleged charge made against her,

and that said detained was not afforded a fair hear-

ing to which she was and is entitled. [4]

That the said detained is in the custody of the

said Commissioner and for said reason is unable

to verify this petition upon her own behalf and

therefore your petitioner does verify this petition

upon her own behalf and therefore your petitioner

does verify this petition upon behalf of the detained

and in her name.

That your petitioner further alleges that the said

detained was at all times during her residence in

the United States a woman of respectability and

good character, and that she has at no time followed

any immoral occupation or engaged in any immoral

or debasing pursuits.

That your petitioner has not in his possession

the record of testimony submitted upon the exam-

ination of the case of said detained under direction

of the said Commissioner of Immigration, nor any

copy of the reports rendered thereon, nor copies

of the proceedings had before the Secretary of

Labor at Washing-ton, and a copy of said proceed-

ings being in the possession of the said Commis-

sioner of Immigration, your i)etitioner does there-
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foro sti|)ulaf(' that wlicii a copy of the said proceod-

int^s is bi-oii^ht hcf'oic this court and })rodnc('d by

the lininii^i-atioii authoiit ics in accordance with

their custom and j)ractic(' in cases of this character,

that yoiii- ix'titionei- will then and there aj^ree and

ask that the said iinmi^-ration record so presented

l)c (Iccnicd and considered j)art and paicel of this

petition with the same force and effect as if fih»d

herewitli.

W1IERP]F0RE, your petitioner prays that a

writ of habeas eorjius issue herein as prayed for

directed to the Conunissionei- of Immigration, and

directing- him to hold the body of the said detained

witliin the jurisdiction of this court and present

the body of the said detained before this court at

[5] a time and place to l)e specified in said order,

tot>ethei- witli the time and cause of her detention,

so that the same may be inquired into, all to the

end that the said detained may be permitted to re-

main in the United States, having a lawful right

to said privilege, and that she may thereafter go

hence.

HENRY F. MITCHELL,
Attorney for Petitioner.

State of California,

City and County of vSan Francisco,—ss.

William She{), being duly sworn, deposes and

says: That he is the jx^titioner named in the fore-

going petition and he has read said ])etition and

knows the contents thereof; that the same is true

of his own knowledge except as to the mattei-s
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therein stated upon information and belief, and

as to those matters he believes it to be true.

WILLIAM SHEP.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day

of February, 1927.

[Seal] CHARLES D. O'CONNOR,
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

[Endorsed] : Receipt of a copy of the within

petition is hereby admitted this 5th day of Febru-

ary, 1927.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
U. S. Attorney.

Filed Feb. 4, 1927. [6]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE.

Upon reading and filing the verified petition of

Low Fook Yung, alias Lau Shee, or Law Shee, alias

Ah Young, alias Ngong Fon, or Low Shee, for a

writ of habeas corpus, and

Good cause appearing therefor, IT IS HEREBY
ORDERED that John D. Nagle, as Commissioner

of Immigration at the port of San Francisco at

Angel Island, be and appear before the above-

entitled court, Department No. thereof, on

the 28th day of February, 1927, at the hour of ten

o'clock A. M. of said day, to show cause, if any
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lie has, why a writ of liahcas coi-jjiis shouhl not

issue ill this matter and tlie petition irranted as

|)ia\'e(l; and

11^ IS Kl'irrilKl^ OUDEHKI) that said Low

Fook ^'un^•, (fJias Laii Shee, or I .aw Shee, (ilids

Ah \'iiiiu, (ilids N^oii^ Foil, or Low Shoe, be not

removed ri(»ni tlie jurisdiction of this court until

further order of this court; and
11' IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of

this Older be served on said John I). Naglt' or such

other persons as may have the said Low Fook Yunp^,

alias Lau Shee, or I^aw Shee, alias Ah Youn^, alias

Ngong Foil, or Low Shee, in custody as an officer

of said John D. Nagle.

IT IS FURTHER 0RDP:RED that the said de-

tained be admitted to bail upon furnishing a bond

in the penal sum of [7] thi'ee thousand dollai*s,

conditioned according to law to be approved by me.

Dated: February 5, 1927.

ST. SURE,
U. S. District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Receipt of a copy of the within

order to show cause is hereby admitted this 5th

day of February, 1927.

GEO. J. HxVTFIELD,
U. S. Attorney.

Filed Feb. 5, 1927. [8]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

DEMURRER TO PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS.

Comes now the respondent, John D. Nagle, Com-
missioner of Immigration at the Port of San Fran-

cisco, in the Southern Division of the Northern

District of California, and demurs to the petition

for a writ of habeas corpus in the above-entitled

cause and for grounds of demurrer alleges:

I.

That the said petition does not state facts suffi-

cient to entitle petitioner to the issuance of a writ

of habeas corpus, or for any relief thereon.

II.

That said petition is insufficient in that the state-

ments therein relative to the record of the testimony

taken on the hearing of the said applicant are con-

clusions of law and not statements of the ultimate

facts.

WHEREFORE, respondent prays that the writ

of habeas corpus be denied.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
United States Attorney,

By R. M. LYMAN, Jr.,

Asst. United States Attorney,

Attorneys for Respondent.

[Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 2, 1927. [9]
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At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

Tnitcd States Disti-ict Court I'oi- the Northern

Distriet of Calil'onii.i, held at tlie courtroom

thereof, in tJK' City and County of San Fran-

ciseo, on Satui'day, tlu' 2d day of Ai)ril, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hiuidred

atid twenty-seven. I'rcscnt: The Honorable

(lEORCJE M. BOUKQUIN, District Jud^e for

tlie District of Montaiui, desijj^uited to liold and

holding this coui-t.

No. 19,212.

In the Matter oi* LOW FOOK YUNG, on Habeas

Corpus.

MINUTES OF COURT — APRIL 2, 1927 —
ORDER SUBMITTING CAUSE.

This matter came on regularly for hearing- on

order to show cause as to the issuance of a writ of

habeas corpus herein. R. M. Lyman, Jr., Esq.,

Asst. U. S. Atty., was 2)resent for and on behalf

of respondent, and fiU'd demurrer to petition, and

all parties consenting thereto, it is ordered that the

Inunigration Records be filed as respondent's ex-

hibits and that same be considered as part of origi-

nal petition. Attorney for petitioner was present.

After hearing said attorneys, the Court ordered

that said matter be, and the same is hereby, sub-

mitted. Odered that said petitioner have until

Apr. 5, 1927, within which time to file brief. [!()]
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At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Friday, the 8th day of April, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-seven. Present: The Honorable

GEORGE M. BOURQUIN, District Judge for

the District of Montana, Designated to Hold

and Holding This Court.

No. 19,212.

In the Matter of LOW FOOK YUNG, etc., on

Habeas Corpus.

MINUTES OP COURT— APRIL 8, 1927—
ORDER DISMISSING PETITION FOR
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS.

Ordered that the petition for writ of habeas cor-

pus herein be and the same is hereby dismissed.

[11]

OPINION.
Dismissed.

208 U. S. 11; 17 Fed. (2) 153; Quon Quon

Case, U. S. Sup. Ct., Feb. 21, 1927.

April 8, 1927.

BOURQUIN, J. [12]
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fTitlc of Court a!i(l rausc]

NOTK^K OF APPEAL.

To the (^erk of the Al)()V('-entitlod C'ourt and to

the Honorable GEOR(JP] J. HATFIELD,
United States Attorney for the Northern Dis-

trict of California:

You and eaeh of you will please take notice that

J.au Shee, the detained herein, does hereby appeal

to the Circuit C'ourt of Ap|)eals of the United States

for the Ninth Circuit thereof, from the order made

and entered on the 8th day of April, 1927, denying

the petition for a writ of habeas corpus therein.

Dated: San Francisco, April 12, 1927.

EIVrERY F. MITCHELL,
Attorney for Petitioner and Appellant.

[Endorsed] : Receipt of a copy of the within

notice of appeal is hereby admitted this 12 day of

April, 1927.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
United States Attorney.

Filed Apr. 14, 1927. [13]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

J^ETITION FOR APPEAL.

Comes now Lau Shee, the petitioner, appellant

herein, and says:

That on the 8th day of April, 1927, the above-
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entitled court made and entered its order denying

the petition for a vulH of habeas corpus, as prayed

for and filed herein, in which said order in the

above-entitled cause certain errors were made to

the prejudice of the appellant herein, all of which

will more fully appear from the assignment of error

on file herewith.

WHEREFORE, this appellant prays that an

appeal may be granted in her behalf to the Circuit

Court of Appeals of the United States for the

Ninth Circuit thereof, and further, that a tran-

script of the record, proceedings and papers in the

above-entitled cause, as shown by the praecipe, duly

authenticated, may be sent and transmitted to the

said United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit thereof.

Dated: San Francisco, April 12, 1927.

EMERY F. MITCHELL,
Attorney for Petitioner and Appellant Herein.

[Endorsed] : Receipt of a copy of the within

petition for appeal is hereby admitted this 12th

day of April, 1927.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
United States Attorney.

Filed Apr. 14, 1927. [14]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS.

Comes now Lau Shee, the appellant herein, by her

attorney, Emery F. Mitchell, Esq., in connection
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\\\{\\ her petition for an appeal lieiciii, and assigns

file f'olI(>wini!: crrois whicli she avei's occurred upon

tile lieaiiiii!,- of tile al)Ove-eiit it led cause, and ujxMi

which she will re/^ly upon aj)peal to the ("ireuit

(^01111 of Appeals for the Ninth (ii-cuit, to wit:

I.

That the Court ei'icd in sustainin«i; the deniuri-er

and in denyiui;- the petition foi- a writ ol" haheas

corpus herein.

IT.

That the Court erred in holdini;- that it had not

jurisdiction to issue a writ of habeas corpus as

prayed for in the petition herein.

III.

That the Court erred in not holding- that the al-

legations contained in the petition herein foi- a writ

of habeas corpus w^re sufficient in law to justify the

granting and issuing of a writ of habeas corpus as

prayed for in said petition.

WHEREFORE the api)ellant prays that the

judgment and oi-der of the United States Dis-

trict Court in and for the Xortliern District of

California, made and entered herein in the office

of tlie Clerk of the said Couii: on the 8th day of

[15] Aj)ril, 19*27, sustaining the denuirrer and dis-

charging the order to show cause, and dismissing

the petition for a writ of habeas corpus, be reversed,

and that this cause be remanded to the lower court

with instructions to discharge the said Lau Shee

from custodv or urant lier a new trial before the
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lower court by directing the issuance of the writ

of habeas corpus, as prayed for in said petition.

Dated: San Francisco, April 12, 1927.

EMERY F. MITCHELL,
Attorney for Petitioner and Appellant.

[Endorsed] : Receipt of a copy of the within

assignment of errors is hereby admitted this 12th

day of April, 1927.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
United States Attorney.

Filed Apr. 14, 1927. [16]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER ALLOWING PETITION FOR AP-
PEAL.

On this, the 12th day of April, 1927, comes Lau

Shee, petitioner by her attorney, Emery F. Mitchell,

Esq., and having previously filed herein, did present

to this Court her petition praying for the allowance

of an appeal to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, intended to be urged

and prosecuted by her and praying also that a tran-

script of the record and proceedings and papers

upon which the judgment herein was rendered, duly

authenticated, may be sent to the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and

that such other and further proceedings may be had

in the premises as may seem proper.
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OX CONSIDKRATION W IIKRKOF, the (Oint

lu'irl)y allows tlic apjx'al herein prayed for and

orders execution and remand stayed pending the

hearinj^ oT the said <a>(' in ihe United States Circuit

Court of Api)eals lor the Ninth Cii-cuit.

IT IS FUKTIIKH ()KM)KRKJ) that pendint,- the

hearing of said case in the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit that the de-

tained, Lau Shee, will not be removed from the

jurisdiction i)rovided in her behalf is furnished a

good and sut!icient l)ond in amount of $500, to secure

her maintenance by the United States supplied and

sureties to be approved in accordance with the stat-

utes in [17] said cases made and provided, and

the rules of this Court, stipulation for cost bond in

the sum of Three Hundred ($300) Dollars.

Dated: San Francisco, April 12, 1927.

BOUHQUIN,
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed]: Receipt of a copy of the within or-

der allowing petition for appeal is hereby admitted

this 12th day of April, 1927.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
United States Attornev.

Filed Api-. 14, 1927. [IS]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER FOR TRANSMISSION OF ORIGINAL
EXHIBITS.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the original

Immigration Records of the evidence upon the hear-

ing of the demurrer in the above-entitled matter

may be transferred by the Clerk of this court and

filed in the office of the Clerk of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

said transfer to be made at the time the record of

appeal is certified to by this court.

Dated: San Francisco, April 12, 1927.

BOURQUIN,
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Receipt of a copy of the within

order is hereby admitted this 12th day of April,

1927.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
United States Attorney.

Filed Apr. 14, 1927. [19]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK U. S. DISTRICT
COURT TO TRANSCRIPT ON APPEAL.

I, Walter B. Mating, Clerk of the United States

District Court, for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, do hereby certify that the foregoing 19

pages, numbered from 1 to 19, inclusive, contain a

full, tine and correct transcript of the records and
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])i()('('('(lini,^s ill till' matter ol" Low Kouk ^'ullJ^, (ilitis,

etc., on llal)eas Corpus, No. U),212, as the same now

remain on Hie and of I'ccord in this office.

I further cei-tii'y that the cost for |»r('|)arin^ and

certifying the foregoing transcript on appeal is

the sum of seven dollai's and ninety cents (}}>7.90),

and that the same has l)een paid to me hy the at-

torney for the appellant herein.

Ainiexed hereto is the oi'iginal citation.

IN WITNESS WIIKKKOF, 1 have hereunto set

my hand and affixed the seal of said District Court,

this 28th day of April, A. D. 1927.

[Seal] WALTER B. MALINO,
Clerk.

By C. M. Taylor,

Deputy Clerk. [20]

CITATION.

L^nited States of America,—ss.

The President of the United States, to the Com-
missioner of Immigration of the Port of San
Francisco, Hon. JOHN D. NAGLK, and to the

United States Attorney for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, Hon. OEOKOE J. HAT-
FIELD, (JHEETING:

You are hereby cited and admonished to he and

appear at a United States Circuit Court of Aj)i)eals

for the Ninth Circuit, to he holden at the City of

San Francisco, in the State of California, within

Ihirty days from the date hereof, ])ursuant to an
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order allowing an appeal, of record in the Clerk's

office of the United States District Court for the

Northern District of California, wherein Lau Shee,

also known as Low Fook Yung, also known as

Ngong Fon and also known as Low Shee, is appel-

lant, and you are appellee, to show cause, if any

there be, why the decree rendered against the said

appellant, as in the said order allowing appeal men-

tioned, should not be corrected, and why speedy

justice should not be done to the parties in that

behalf.

BOUEQUIN,
United States Judge. [21]

United States of America,—ss.

On this 12 day of April, in the year of our Lord

one thousand nine hundred and twenty-seven, per-

sonally appeared before me, Emery F. Mitchell, the

subscriber, and makes oath that he delivered a true

copy of the within citation to the United States

Attorney.

Subscribed and sworn to before me at San Fran-

cisco, this 12th day of April, A. D. 1927.

Receipt of a copy of the within citation is hereby

admitted this 12th day of April 1927.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
United States Attorney.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 11, 1927.
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[Endorsod]: No. C)VS.\. United" States Circuit

Court of Ap])eals foi- tlie Xiutli Cii'cuit. Lau Slice,

also Known as Low h'ook ^'un.^, also Known as

N.i!:ong Fon, and also Known as Low Slice, A|)}»cl-

lant, \s. .lolin 1). Naulc, as ( "(miinissioncr of Innni-

j:;ration ol" the Port of San Francisco, Appellee.

'rianscii|)1 ol" K'ecord. Fpon Appeal from the South-

ern Division of the United States District Court

foi* the Noitliein District of California, Second

Division.

Filed April 28, 1927.

F. J). MONCKTOX,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

By Paul P. O'Brien,

Deputy Clerk.
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Francisco, California,

Appellee.

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from an order and judgment of the

United States District Court for the Northern District

of California, sustaining the demurrer which was inter-

posed by the Government to the petition of Lau Shee for

discharge on a writ of habeas corpus.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Lau Shee, an alien of the Chinese race, arrived at the

Port of Seattle September i, 1923. She sought admis-

sion to the United States as the wife of an American

citizen. The alien was detained at Seattle pending an

investigation and hearing, and upon a satisfactory tcrmi-



nation of such investigation and hearing the alien was

landed on September 29, 1923, as the wife of an Ameri-

can citizen, Jew Shep.

A year later, by virtue of a warrant of arrest dated

October 7, 1924, Lau Shee was charged with being in

the United States in violation of section 19 of the Immi-

gration Act of February 5, 1917. More particularly,

the warrant of arrest sets forth four offenses: (i) that

she secured admission to the United States by fraud; (2)

that she entered by means of false and misleading state-

ments; (3) that she had been found practicing prostitu-

tion since her entry; and (4) that she entered for an

immoral purpose.

After the warrant of arrest was issued in the year

1924 nothing further was done toward granting the alien

a hearing until the month of October, 1926. This hear-

ing in the year 1926 was afforded at the instance and

request of the alien.

The Immigration Department attempted to sustain

the four charges set forth in the warrant of arrest by

introducing into evidence:

1. A statement taken from the alien on October 7,

1924;
2. A letter signed by R. P. Bonham, District Direc-

tor of Immigration at Portland, Ore., to the

Commissioner of Immigration at San Francisco;

3. The Chinese files showing the entries into the

United States and the departures from the United

States of the alien, her husband and their child.

The Board of Review found, after an examination of

this evidence, that Lau Shee had been in the United

States too long to deport her on the charge that she

entered the United States by means of false and mis-

leading statements.
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The Board of Review further found that there was

no evidence in the record supporting tlie charge that the

alien li.id heen tOunii practicing jtrostitution since her

entry into the United States.

A warrant of deportation, however, was issued upon

the grounds that I.au Shee entered the United States for

an immoral purpose and that she secured admission by

fraud, not having been, at the time of her entry, the

wife of a member of the exempt classes.

It is the Government's contention that the fraudulent

entrv is proved by the fact that Lau Shee had entered

the United States in 1917 as the wife of Yee Leung, an

American citizen.

While the Board of Review states in its opinion that

Lau Shee testified in Seattle that she had never been in

the United States before, we have been unable to find a

statement in the record to this effect. So far as the

record shows the alien was not cjuestioned as to whether

or not she had ever been in the United States before.

It is true that she did not volunteer any information

upon the matter, and affirmatively represented that Jew

Shep was her first husband. This, however, was em-

braced in the charge of entry by means of false and

misleading statements, which has been dismissed.

ARGUMENT WITH POINTS AND
AUTHORITIKS

I. The findings herein m.xde by the Bo.xrd of Re-

view .AS THE lUSIS FOR THE WARRANT OF DEPORTA-

TION ARE CONTRARY TO LAW.

^^'c are aware of the rule that where there is any

evidence to sustain the finding of the departmental board,



such finding is final, and not open to review by any

court. It is our contention, however, that there is no

evidence in support of such findings. Directing our

attention first to the charge that Lau Shee entered the

United. States for an immoral purpose: the evidence in

the various files (particularly Lau Shee's Seattle file

405/1-6) establishes that these parties went through a

marriage ceremony in China in accordance with Chinese

customs; that Lau Shee believed herself free to marry

at the time in question; that they lived in China as man
and wife for approximately ten months; that a son, Jew

Jin Ah, was born, the lawful issue of said marriage in

China; that they came to the United States and entered

the United States as man and wife; that they have lived

together in the United States as man and wife since 1923.

In the case of Ex parte Morel, 292 Fed. 423, 427, the

court said:

"Sexual intercourse of the parties must be the

motive and purpose of the importation, and where
parties enter the United States upon the belief that

they had a lawful right to sustain the relation of

husband and wife they may not be regarded as

within the provisions denounced by the Immigra-
tion Act . . . with relation to importation for

immoral purposes, where there can be no question

with relation to the good faith of the parties.

. . . The primary purpose of the act is to be

protected against men and women who are weak,

vicious and bad. The question under this act is not

^whether Morel and the u-onian were legally mar-

ried, but the purpose of bringing the cotnmon-law

wife from Fancouver to Seattle."

Not only by their testimony but by their actions these

parties proved that they believed they had a lawful right

to sustain the relation of husband and wife.



The fact that llic inarria^'c in C liiiia between these

parties was not performed in accordance with British

law shouM not affect its legality.

In the note to the case of Greenwood v. rri(k. 2^3

Fed. 629, 632, it is said:

"It seems well established that the presumption of

the legality of a marriai^e and the legitimacy of

children merges and destroys the presumption that

a former spouse had continued alive; and that the

seconci marriage was not ceremonial would not seem
to affect the reason of the rule. {J'^reeland v. JWee-
huul. 78 N. J. Eq. 256 and 34 L. R. A. [N. S.]

940.)"

It should be remembered that in our case neither the

marriage between Lau Shee and jew Shep nor the mar-

riage between Lau Shee and her former husband was

any more than a marriage by Chinese custom. The

validity of the marriage in China of Lau Shee and Jew

Shep is to be determined by the law of China.

Caiue V. Jo/inson, 13 Fed. (2nd) 432;
Ex parte SiizanrKi, 295 Fed. 713.

Upon the question of whether or not a legal marriage

existed, Lau Shee and her husband, Jew Shep, were ex-

amined. In addition, an attorney-at-law of this state,

who knew the parties in China, testified that in his opin-

ion the marriage ought to be recognized in the United

States, and that a man and woman married in accord-

ance with Chinese customs would be considered married

in the State of California.

(See Seattle file 4(15 1-6 on the admission of Lau Shee

at Seattle.)

Furthermore, the fact that the Board of Review found

that the charge of practicing prostitution was not sus-



tained by any evidence, necessarily carries with it the

concession that the conduct of the parties does not con-

stitute the offense of "entering for an immoral purpose."

The Immigration Department, after a hearing, ad-

mitted Lau Shee as the wife of Jew Shep, and it is sub-

mitted that there is absolutely no evidence to show that

the alien was not entitled to believe herself the lawful

wife of Jew Shep.

Coming next to the finding by the Board of Review

that the alien fraudulently entered the United States in

that she was not the wife of Jew Shep at the time of

entry: the obvious answer to such a contention is that a

hearing and investigation was held at the time of Lau

Shee's entry at Seattle. The immigration authorities

were not bound to accept any of the statements made by

the detained or her witnesses. There was ample time

while the alien was held in custody to complete any in-

vestigation that they cared to make. The legal presump-

tion, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary,

must be that the immigration authorities properly per-

formed the duties required of them in holding the hear-

ing to determine Lau Shee's right to enter the United

States as the wife of an American citizen. A full op-

portunity for inspection was afforded the Government.

Lau Shee, during this inspection, made no attempt to

conceal her identity, all of her names being given and

the same family history related as previously testified to

on her admission into the United States at the port of

San Francisco (S. F. File 16210/210, September 13,

1917). This is admitted by the Government in the let-

ter of District Director Bonham.

Having once determined that a marriage in fact was

celebrated between Lau Shee and Jew Shep, the Gov-



ernmcnt should have been bound bv iliat determination.

riu" Hoard of Review seems to attach some signifi-

cance to the fact that Lau Shee, on her first arrival in

the United States, entered at the port of San Francisco,

while on the occasion of her arrival in 1923 she entered

at the port of Seattle. This fact, however, is entitleci to

no weight, for the reason that the alien and her husband

repeatedly gave their ultimate destination as San Fran-

cisco. This is proven by their testimony in Seattle at

the time of entry and also by the affidavit filed with the

consular office in Hongkong prior to the departure for

the United States.

We have already directed the court's attention to the

testimony establishing the fact that a marriage was en-

tered into in China between Lau Shee and Jew Shep.

The validity of this marriage is to be determined by the

laws of China. (See Caine v. Johnson, supra, and Ex

parte Suzanna, supra.)

Section 63 of the Civil Code of the State of California

provides that all marriages contracted without this state

which would be valid by the laws of the country in

which the same were contracted are valid in this state.

The Government seeks to attack the legal effect or

validity of this marriage upon the ground that Lau Shee

had previouslv been admitted to the United States as the

wife of an American citi/en, Vee Leung. It is our con-

tention that once having established the fact of marriage

between Lau Shee and Jew Shep, the burden was upon

the Government to prove not only that a prior marriage

had been contracted by Lau Shee. but that such prior

marriage was still undissolved.

The law of California also includes the proposition

that the state will recognize as valid all divorces granted
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without the state which would be valid by the laws of

the country in which the same are granted. The comity

existing between countries necessitates that this be true.

No proof whatever was furnished by the Government
to show that Lau Shee's prior marriage had not been dis-

solved either by a divorce from Lee Leung or by his

death.

i6 California Jurisprudence (page 935) states the rule

of law here involved as follows:

"The burden lies upon the one who attacks the
validity of a marriage upon the ground that it was
contracted while a prior marriage was in force, to

show not only that the prior marriage was con-
tracted, but that it had not at the time of the second
marriage been dissolved by death of a party or by a

judicial decree. (Citing cases.)"

The Supreme Court of California said, in the case of

McKibbin v. McKibbin, 139 Cal. 448:

"Every intendment of the law leans to matri-

mony. When a marriage has been shown in evi-

dence, whether regular or irregular, and whatever
the form of proof, the law raises a strong presump-
tion of its legality—not only casting the burden of

proof on the party objecting, but requiring him
throughout, in every particular, to make plain,

against the constant pressure of the presumption, the

truth of law and the fact that it is illegal and void."

Furthermore, the Government, once having admitted

the fact of marriage, the Department of Labor should

not be permitted to attack its validity. The validity of

the marriage between Lau Shee and Jew Shep is a legal

question and one that should be determined in a court

of law. As pointed out, at best the Government only

relies upon suspicion in attacking the marriage validity.

Under such circumstances, where a child and family



rights are concerned, it would seem that an American

citizen would Ik- entitled to have the legality of his mar-

riage passed upon by a court rather than U) have such

rights determined by an administrative official unskilled

in the law.

For the sake of the argument, assume that the Gov-

ernment is correct in its contention that the marriage be-

tween Lau Shee and Jew Shep is void by reas(jn of Lau

Shee's previous marriage with Yee Leung. Yee Leung

is an American citizen, and if Lau Shee is still his wife,

then it must follow that she is entitled to remain in the

United States under her previous status.

There can be no immorality in Lau Shee's previous

conduct with Jew Shep, for the reason that Lau Shee

lived with Jew Shep as his wife and bore a child to him

under the bona fide belief that she was legally his wife.

Her intent at the time of entry was to live with the man

whom she believed to be her husband. Consequently

there could be no intent to enter the United States for

an immoral purpose.

Finally, upon this point, it should be observed that

there is no distinction between an entry by false and mis-

leading statements and a fraudulent entry. A fraudulent

entr\' is embraced within an entry by false and mislead-

ing statements as a matter of law. Consequently, when

the Board of Review found that too long a time had

elapsed to deport the alien for an entry by means of

false and misleading statements, it also should have

found that the same reasoning applied to a fraudulent

entry.
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2. The hearing afforded the alien Lau Shee was
manifestly unfair.

(i) Certain confidential reports were placed before

W. W. Husband, Second Assistant Secretary of Labor,

concerning Lau Shee and her husband, Jew Shep. These

confidential reports were not made a part of the record

herein, and consequently the alien and her attorney were

denied the opportunity of examining the same and were

unable to prepare any defense to refute the charges con-

tained in the confidential reports. See letter April 17,

1926, from J. F. Dunton, Immigration Inspector at

Seattle, to R. P. Bonham, District Director of Immigra-

tion at Portland, which reads as follows:

*'I am returning herewith the copies of five docu-

ments which you sent me under personal cover with
your letter of February 8, 1926, No. 5030/103, and
which related to the Jew Shep matter. The copy

of your confidential report to Mr. Husband is also

enclosed. The other records forwarded with your

letter of January 17, 1926, are being returned

through official channels."

(This letter is to be found in the Seattle file of Lau

Shee, No. 405/1-6.)

In the case of Chew Hoy Quong v. White, Immigra-

tion Commissioner, 249 Fed. 869, at 870, the Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, speaking

through Circuit Judge Gilbert, said:

"However far the hearing on the application of

an alien for admission into the United States may
depart from what in judicial proceedings is deemed

necessary to constitute due process of hiw, there

clearly is no warrant for basing decision, in whole

or in part, on confidential communications the

source, motive or contents of which are nci disclosed
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to the applicant or her counsel, and where no oppor-
tunity is aCfonleil theni to cross-examine, or to offer
testimony in rebuttal thereof, or even to know that
such communication has been received."

See, also:

Leicis V. Jo/inson. i6 l'\'d. (2nd) 180.

As already pointed out, the matter contained in the

confidential reports was placed before \V. \V. Husband,

Second Assistant Secretary of Labor, and it is W. W.
Husband, Second Assistant Secretary of Labor, who
sii^ncd the opinion of the Board of Review which or-

dered Lau Shee deported to China, as well as the war-

rant of deportation. Such practice is manifestly unfair.

(2) The hearing was also manifestly unfair for the

reason that the letter of District Director Bonham to the

Commissioner of Immigration at San Francisco, and

dated October 4, 1924, was introduced into evidence and

made a part of the record over the alien's objection. We
think that the Government will admit that the charges

herein, as set forth in tiie warrant of arrest, were based

on this letter. At least District Director Bonham, in a

letter dated February 2, 1926, to the Commissioner of

Immigration at San Francisco, states that he was respon-

sible for the investigation and arrest of Lau Shee. In

this letter of October 4, 1924, Bonham comes to the con-

clusion that the Lau Shee who entered at the port of

Seattle in iqiT, was the same Lau Shee who entered at

the port of San Francisco in 1917; that she entered by

means of false and misleading statements; that Lau Shee

was not legally married; that she was brought to the

Cnited States for an immoral purpose; that he was ;«•-

lidhly informed that she was a prostitute subsequent to

her entry into the United States in 191 7.
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Although Mr. Bonham states that he was reliably in-

formed that Lau Shee was a prostitute, an examination

of the record will show that no testimony, documentary

or otherwise, was introduced to substantiate this state-

ment. In fact, Mr. Bonham failed to appear in person

to testify in the matter at all. Under these circumstances

this court can best judge whether or not Mr. Bonham
had any information upon a charge that he makes so

freely.

Counsel for the alien waived the right of cross-exam-

ination of this witness for the reason that the inspector

conducting the hearing wanted to continue this case until

such time as it would be convenient for Mr. Bonham to

appear. This case has been pending two years in order

to give Mr. Bonham an opportunity to develop his case

and appear as a witness. The case was not summarily

set down for hearing. The record will show that Mr.

Bonham had sufficient notice of the time of the hearing

to enable him to be present. It was unjust to the alien

to insist that the complete hearing at the time set be con-

ditioned on a waiver of the right of cross-examination

of this witness.

It will be observed that only conclusions are stated in

the letter. None of the ultimate facts or their source

are stated. The alien was thus deprived of all oppor-

tunity to offer any testimony in rebuttal. The conclu-

sion charging this alien with prostitution was enough to

render the hearing manifestly unfair. A charge of pros-

titution is a serious matter at any time, but experience

has proven that in immigration cases it is even more

serious, and is tantamount to an order of deportation

from the United States. The charge herein was made

in 1924, the hearing on the charge was held in 1926, but



even with m'o years to investigate and prepare this case

the Government could produce no evidence whatever of

this alien having practiced prostitution. L'nder such cir-

cumstances the fair thing to have done would have been

to dismiss the prostitution charge. However, this was

not done.

(3) One of the material points in the case was

whether or not the alien was free to enter into the mar-

riage contract at the time she became the wife of Jew

Shep in China. In this regard the alien testified that

Vee Leung had deserted her about two years after she

was landed in the United States, and had told her at that

time that she was free to marry any one she wished; that

she did not get a formal divorce in the United States

because she was not married in accordance with the laws

of this country. (See statement Lau Shee dated October

7, 1924, page 3.) It will be observed that there is no

testimony in the record that Yee Leung did not obtain

a divorce in the L'nited States or in China.

Lau Shee, in the hearing afforded her under the war-

rant of arrest, requested that the immigration file of Yee

Leung be made a part of the record herein. This record

shows that on August 7, 1926, Yee Leung stated in his

application for a form 430 to return to China that his

second wife, Lau Shee, had left him three years before

he departed for China in 1922. There then appear upon

this request certain notati(Mis written in the handwriting

of Immigration Inspector A. Kuchein. as follows:

*'See statement made 3-16-22, when applying for

a return certificate applicant was evasive in his

answer regarding the whereabouts of his second

wife and contradicted himself several times regard-

ing the time she w as last seen by him."



This statement, made on March i6, 1922, by Yee
Leung concerning Lau Shee, would have been material

in corroborating Lau Shee's testimony that she was free

to marry at the time she married Jew Shep. However,

we have searched the record in vain for any such state-

ment. Such statement is as elusive as is the testimony of

Mr. Bonham in substantiation of his prostitution charge.

Inasmuch as the alien subsequently requested the com-

plete file of Yee Leung with particular reference to his

arrivals and departures in and from the United States

and his examinations upon application for return certifi-

cates taken before the immigration officials since 1917,

she was entitled to have this evidence before the Board

of Review and before this court. It was manifestly un-

fair to deprive the alien of the benefit of this testimony.

(4) Finally, we contend that it was manifestly un-

fair to postpone the hearing herein for a period of two

years and burden the alien's case with the insinuations

and charges against her husband, Jew Shep. If this

court will examine the immigration file of Jew Shep,

who is admittedly an American citizen, it will be found

that his file reeks with anonymous letters, newspaper

clippings and letters between various offices of the Im-

migration Department. In one of these letters Mr. Bon-

ham refers to Jew Shep as an "arch scoundrel."

Ail these papers were clearly inadmissible so far as

the case of Lau Shee was concerned, and their introduc-

tion into the record in this case was most unfair.

It is evident from even a cursory examination of this

case that the purpose of instigating the proceedings here-

in against Lau Shee was not because of any immorality

on her part, but in the hope that Jew Shep could be

charged with some oflfense. Lau Shee's case was post-
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poncd two years in anticipation that some tangible evi-

dence could be produced against lur husband.

The record shows that the Government expected to

obtain some information iFi the hearing afforded Lau
Shee to use against Shep.

A motive for this persecution of Shep is found in a

telegram dated October 13, 1926, from William H.
\N ylc to the Honorable Carl Robe White, which reads

in part as follows:

"This arrest (Lau Shee) following mv refusal to

wire your department (Labor) iFiformation given
by me to you about conditions (immigration) Fresno
was false."

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, we respectfully contend that there is no

legal testimony in this record which is sufficient as a

matter of law to sustain the warrant of deportation of

the alien Lau Shee. When the circumstances surround-

ing the charge herein and the manner of conducting the

hearing are considered the result is manifestly unfair.

In the case of £.v parte Rodriqucz, 15 Fed. (2nd) 878,

it is said that a warrant of deportation is the exercise of

executive authority, involving grave and momentous con-

sequences, and to support the warrant there should be a

definite and clear finding which would support the act.

Consider the consequences in the instant case: it in-

volves the right of Jew Shep. admittedly an American

citizen, to have the company of his wife; it involves

the right of Jew Jin Ah, a boy only four years of age,

to have the care and attention of his mother, and, finally,

the deportation of Lau Shee at the present time prevents

her from ever returning to the I'niied States, for the
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reason that the Chinese wife of an American citizen is

no longer entitled to enter this country.

Wherefore, we respectfully request that the decision

of the District Court for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia be reversed, with instructions to issue the writ of

habeas corpus as prayed for.

Respectfully submitted,

Emery F. Mitchell,

Attorney for Appellant.
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This is an appeal from the order of the District Court

of the Northern District of California made April 7,

1927, denying a petition for a writ of habeas corpus.

The petition for the writ sets forth that one Low



Fook Yung is detained by the Commissioner of Immi-

gration for the Port of San Francisco upon a warrant

in deportation proceedings, it being contended that the

deportation proceedings theretofore had were invalid

in that there was not legal evidence tending to support

the warrant of deportation. Further contentions are:

that a letter of one Bonham having been introduced

in evidence, he was not produced for cross examina-

tion; that hearsay evidence was received, and that ap-

pellant was deported "without due process of law."

It is further set forth in the petition that it is stipu-

lated that the copy of the proceedings before the Sec-

retary of Labor brought into court and produced ac-

cording to custom may be considered a part of the peti-

tion with the same effect as if filed therewith. At the

hearing on the demurrer to the petition, the said rec-

ords were produced, and filed as exhibits and have been

brought to this court by appellant. These records are

the following: Exhibit "A": the record of the deporta-

tion proceedings against appellant; Exhibit "B": the

record of proceedings before the immigration bureau

had on the application of appellant at San Francisco for

entry in May, 1917 \ Exhibit "C": the record upon the

application of one Jew S/iep for certificate made at

Fresno in 1922, and other proceedings, including pro-

ceedings had on his return in 1923; Exhibit "D": the

record of the proceedings before the Immigration De-

partment at Seattle on the application for entry of ap-

pellant at that Port in September, 1923; Exhibit "E":

the record of proceedings had in regard to several de-
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parturcs and entries into the United States of one Yee

LeiitiiT, the husband of appellant; Kxhibit "F": the

record of the proceedings before the immigration au-

thorities in regard to the departures and returns to the

United States at various times by Jew Sliep; Exhibit

''G": the record of the proceedings on application for

entry of one Jeu Jin .lli, as the infant son of appellant

made at Seattle in 1923.

From these exhibits it is seen that one Yee Leung of

the Chinese race was born at San Francisco in February,

1879, and was thus an American citizen; that he visited

China in April, 1906, returning in September, 1907.

(Ex. "E" 52) On the first trip to China, Lee Leung

married one Ng Shee June 25, 1906. (Ex. "B" 29)

There was one son born—Yee Ting, May 19, 1907. This

wife died February 22, 1916. (Ex. "C" 28, 20) Yee

Leung thereupon married appellant Lau Shee at Hong-

kong on September 5, 1916. (Ex. "C" 28) This mar-

riage had the necessary formality. (Ex. "C" 14) Fol-

lowing this marriage Yee Leung and appellant came to

the United States, arriving at San Francisco May 26,

1917. (Ex. "C 5) She was denied entry by the local

autiiorities but an appeal to the Secretary was sustained,

which resulted in her admission (Ex. "B" 69, 74) Ap-

pellant deserted Yee Leung about 1919, a couple of

years after her entry. (Ex. "E'' 52) Later in 1922 Yee

Leung obtained necessary papers for another visit to

CKina, returning in April, 1923. (Ex. ''E" >1)

In August, 1923, one ^^'illiam Jeyrf Shep made affi-

davit before the American Consulate at Victoria, Hong-



kong, setting forth that he was a citizen of the United

States; and that he had departed from San Francisco

October 18, 1922, "for the purpose of attending to com-

mercial matters and become married." On or about

September 1, 1923, the said Shep, accompanied by ap-

pellant as Low Shee, and a minor son arrived at Seattle

and applied for entry. Thereupon an inquiry was had

before a Board of Special Inquiry at Seattle on Sep-

tember 7, 1922, wherein Low Shee was examined and

testified among other things that she was born in Sar

Gow Village, Sun Duk District; that she had lived in

Sar Gow up to the time of her marriage; that she went

up to Canton City and lived there three months before

marriage. (Ex. "D" 19) Witness thereupon identifies

material photographs. She said she was married to the

said Shep at Hongkong, November 19, 1922, "according

to the new way." (Ex. "D" 18) She thereupon iden-

tified a photograph of the said William Jew Shep,

asked whom the photograph represents said "my hus-

band." Asked "is this man your first husband?," ans-

wered "yes." (Ex. "D" 18) Further asked, "Were

you ever married by any other custom than the new

Chinese custom? A. No." Asked again about the

ceremony she said, "My husband was living in the Sam

Sui Bow, a place across from Hongkong where I was

living. I took a boat and went across to Hongkong.

My husband drove an automobile to the landing to meet

me, then I went in the automobile to his house. There

was no minister, just Chinese there. There was no par-

ticular ceremony, just the Chinese and the man who

arranged the marriage affair." (Ex. "D" 17)
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The said Shcp testifying as to tlic same incident said:

"Q. By what custom arc vou married to Lf)\v

Shee?
A. Half the oKl C'liinese way and half the new

way.

He said that there was no ceremoney of worshiping

tile ancestors at any time. Asked if lie had a Chinese

red marriage paper, said, "Yes, but not a regular red

marriage paper, just a small piece, that is because I

was married a second time." (Kx. "D" 11) Testifying

further,

"Q. You got married in British territory, didn't

you?
A. Yes.

Q. \A'hy didn't you get married according to some
custom that was recognized by British authorities?

A. The British really have no law that re(]uires

Chinese under their custom and besides it takes a lot

of money to get a license from the British Govern-
ment, so 1 didn't do it.

Q. Do you mean to say the British Government
recognizes this marriage between Chinese without
any law at all, not even a Chinese ceremony?

A. I don't know about that. A lot of Chinese get

married under British custom.

Q. Why didn't you find out something? You ap-

pear to be a pretty intelligent man. making $10,000
a year?

A. Yes. I am an American citizen. I trv to get

this Mr. King to make out our marriage license and
on account of Mr. W'ylie coming back to this coun-
try and I help him to arrange his things, I didn't

have time to."

Asked why he didn't go to the American Consul's

office at Hongkong and ask for information, he said at



the time of his marriage he didn't know how to get to

the Consul's. (Ex. "D" 7) Asked further,

"Did you or your wife ever participate in any
Chinese ceremony any place?

A. According to the Chinese the second marriage
they don't go much by Chinese custom.

Q. They just go along and pick a woman any-
where in an automobile, take them home for a cup
of tea, and that is all there is to it?

A. Not exactly that, but we have a small Chi-
nese red paper and there is a man who arranged our
marriage affair." (Ex. "D" 7)

It will thus be noted that at the Seattle hearing in

1923 appellant stated that Shep then with her was her

first husband and she inferentially stated that she had

never been in the United States before when she deposed

that, she had from Ji.er birth always lived in her native

village up to three months before her marriage with

Shep at Hongkong in November, 1922. (Ex. "D" 19)

The result of this inquiry was that the Immigration au-

thorities at Seattle, believing the statements of appel-

lant, admitted her as the wife of Shep.

Later, it having come to the attention of the immigra-

tion authorities that appellant was the same person as

the Lau Shee Vvho had formerly been admitted at San

Francisco as the wife of Yee Leung, the instant depor-

tation proceedings were commenced.

In these proceedings Lau Shee gave a statement (Ex.

"A" 37) and testified that she was born in Sar Gow
Village, Sun Duk E5istrict, China. She thereupon

identified as her photograph the photograph attached

to the affidavit executed by Yee Leung in 1917, and



idcntilicd tlic photograph as Ycc Leung, whom she

called Yce Ah Hoy, whom she called her former hus-

hand. She admitted she landed with him at San hVan-

cisco in 1917. She said that she lived with him be-

tween one and a half and two years after landing, "then

lost sight of him completely, after which she returned

to China." Asked if she was in I-'resno in 1921, she

at first denied it, then said she remembered submitting

a form to the Fresno Office four years ago; asked of her

husband Vee Leung, said she saw him a little over two

years or a year ago in a Japanese Hotel in San Fran-

cisco. Altering the statement said she last saw him a

year or two after her admission to the United States.

She further said,

"Q. How do you explain your allei^ed marriage
to Jue Shep when you have a husband Yee Leung?

A. Because Yee Leung didn't want me any more.

Q. He just picked up and left vou, did he?

A. Yes.

Q. The last information vou had, was he living

in the I'nited States or China?
A. I last heard that he had returned to China.

(Ex. "A" 36)

Asked furtiier,

"Q. Were you the lawful wife of Yee Leung
when he brought vou to the Ignited States?

A. Yes.

Q. Are vou still the lawful wife of Yee Leung?
A. No, because the marriage relations were sev-

ered because we were married in China and he de-

serted me while we were in the United States, there-

fore I do not consider mvsclf as his wife.

Q. Is that the onlv reason you have for not con-

sidcrinir vourself as his wife?
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A. Yes. Because when he left me he told me that

I was entirely out of his control and I was free to

marry any one I wished.

Q. Why did you testify on your return to Seattle

in September, 1923, with Jew Shep that you had
never been married before?

A. I didn't malve any mention of it because he
had given me up.

Q. You were asked by the Immigration Officers,

as the records show, if you were ever married before

and you answered 'no.' Is that a falsehood?

A. I told an untruth.

* * * *

Q. Did you ever secure a divorce from Yee
Leung?

A. No, because we were not married by a con-

sular officer, and there was no divorce to be had.

Q. Why didn't you get a divorce from him in the

United States?

A. Because v/e v/ere not married according to the

laws of this country." (Ex. "A" 35)

She admitted that prior to her departure from China

in 1922, while Jew Shep acted as an interpreter at

the Fresno Office, she knew him. That he didn't know

she was a married woman until he interpreted for her

at the Fresno Office; that he knew it long before he

and applicant went to China. (Ex. "A" 34) She stated

that she had married Yee Leung some place in Hong-

kong. (Ex. ''A" 33)

"Q. You claimed that you had never been mar-
ried before, you don't assert that to be a fact do you?

A. I did not relate on any matters before 1 re-

turned to China.

Q. You were asked whether you had ever been

married before?

A. Yes.

i



Q. What did \()u tell them at Seattle?

A. 1 said I had not been married before."

Asked why she went to Seattle instead of San Fran-

cisco, she said that on account of the infant she saved

ten days at sea. She admitted that Shep when interpret-

ing knew that applicant was Lee Vcung's wife. (Ex.

"A" 32) At the hearing before the Board of Special

Inquiry in the Deportation proceedings this statement

was put ill evidence. The following is a transcript of

a part of the proceedings in the final hearing, showing

the status of the case:

"BY EXAMINING INSPECTOR TO AT-
TORNEY E. F. MITCHELL:

Q. Will you represent the Chinese alien, Lau
Shee before this Service? A. Yes.

Q. And have you entered an appearance in writ-

ing? A. Yes.

NOTE: The following letter dated Nov. 4, 1926,

addressed to the Commissioner of Immigration, San
Francisco, Calif., from Attorney Herbert F. Cham-
berlain: T hereby consent to the substitution of

Emery F. Mitchell in my place and stead as attor-

ney for LAU shep: in the matters now pending

before the Department.'

Q. Are you willing and ready to proceed with

the hearing? A. Yes.

BY EXAMINING INSPECTOR TO ALIEN
AND ATTORNEY:
Q. Do you fully understand the nature of these

proceedings? (Attorney) Yes. (Alien) I do not

understand.

T0ATT0RNP:Y MITCHELL:
Q. Do you wish the interpreter to explain more

fully the nature of the charges contained in the war-
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rant of arrest to the alien? A. No, I do not think

it is necessary.

TO THE ALIEN BY EXAMINING IN-
SPECTOR THRU THE CHINESE INTER-
PRETER:

Q. Are you the same Lau Shee who made a

sworn statement before an inspector of this Service

in San Francisco, October 7th, 1924? A. Yes.

TO THE ATTORNEY:
Q. Do you wish the statement read to the alien

by the interpreter? A. No, I waive the reading of

the statement, and object to its introduction into the

record as its part of the case upon the grounds that

at the time, that she was not represented by counsel,

nor advised of her right to be so represented.

BY EXAMINING INSPECTOR TO THE
ATTORNEY:
You are advised that the statement referred to is

introduced in and made a part of the record, and any
reason or objection you have to its introduction into

the record, should be discussed in your brief in the

case. There is also incorporated in and made a part

of the record, report of R. P. Bonham, District Di-
rector of Immigration, Portland, Oregon, dated Oc-
tober 6th, 1924.

BY ATTORNEY MITCHELL:
For the purpose of protection of the record, I ob-

ject to the introduction of this letter into the evi-

dence upon the grounds that we have not been af-

forded the right to cross-examination of Inspector

Bonham and hereby demand that he be produced if

this letter is made a part of the record over our ob-

jections.

BY EXAMINING INSPECTOR BORDEN:
Under the Immigration Regulations, your objec-

tions will be made a part of the record, but the rea-

sons therefore must be stated in your brief. At this

time I wish to introduce as exhibits in this case, Se-
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attic flic Xo. 405/1-5 covering tlic adniission of Jew
Shcp at that port on the IVcsidcnt Jackson, Sept. 1,

1923; Seattle Hie No. 4-5/1-6 covering admission of

Low Shee, admitted Sept. 29, 1923 and Seattle file

No. 4U5'l-7 covering admission of Jew Jim Ah at

Seattle, Sept. 29, 1923; San Francisco file No.
16210 2-10, covering aiimission of Lau Shee at San
Francisco, Sept. 13, 1917, ex S.S. Korea Maru; San
Francisco file No. 12017/24300 covering entries and
departures of Jew Shep.

TO THE ATTORNEY:
Q. Do vou wish to introduce any evidence on any

testimonv in the case? A. If Inspector Bonham's
letter is considered a part of the record, naturally

we want the benefit of cross-examination of this wit-

ness as to matters purported and set forth in his let-

ter of October 6th, 1924. We also ask that the com-
plete file of Vee Leung be made and considered a

part of the record herein. Lee Young being the al-

leged former Husband of Lau Shee; particular

reference is made to the arrivals and departures of

this alien into the United States, and his examina-
tion upon application for return certificates taken

before the immigration of^cials since 1917. In view
of the fact that the letter of October 6th, 1924, of

Inspector Bonham is based upon heresay testimony

and information which is not a part of the record,

we waive our right to cross examine said inspector

as to subject matters contained therein.

Q. Have you anything further to present? A.

Nothing other than our brief in the matter. Of
course there is no evidence of any prostitution or

immoral acts contained in the record, and we ask a

week to submit briefs in the matter. I wish to have
the record covering Yee Leung at the San Francisco

office for purpose of examination before writing the

brief herein, and would like a week after the receipt

of this record to submit our briefs.

It is understood that the case stands submitted."

(Ex. ''A''40)
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Having heard the case, the view of the Board of In-

quiry w^as stated in the following summary:

"12020/6392
November 30, 1926.

SUMMARY: The alien, LAU SHEE, age 11

years, female, native and citizen of China, of the

Chinese race, last entered the United States, Sep-

tember 19, 1923, at Seattle, Washington, on the SS
PRESIDENT JACKSON as the alleged wife of

one WILLIAM JEW SHEP, a P. L. native.

On November Sth, last, the alien was granted a

hearing on warrant of arrest 55387/352 in which it

is charged that she has been found in the United
States in violation of Rule 9, Chinese Rules and of

the Supreme Court decision on which such rule is

based; having secured admission by fraud, not hav-

ing been at the time of her entry, the wife of a mem-
ber of the exempt classes; that she entered the

United States for an immoral purpose; that she has

been found practicing prostitution after entry and
that she entered by means of false and misleading
statements.

There is no evidence in the record to sustain the

charge that she practiced prostitution after her entry

and the time has expired on the charge covered by
the code word 'falsetto.'

This alien, LAU SHEE first came to the United
States, May 26, 1917, and was admitted as the wife
of YEE LEUNG, a P. L. Native (see file 12017/
29978). The record shows that they separated about
two years after entry and that LAU SHEE went to

work at a restaurant in Fresno, California, partly

owned by William Jew Shep. Later she and JEW
SHEP went to China presumably on different dates

and on November 19, 1922, she claims to have mar-
ried JEW SHEP in China according to Chinese
custom. The record shows that LAU SHEE has

never been divorced from YEE LEUNG and there-

fore could not have been the lawful wife of JEW
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SHKP when thcv arrived at Seattle on the SS
PRKSIDKNT JACKSON, September 9, 1923.

RECOMMKNDATION:
In mv opinion the record clearly siiows that LAU

SHKK is in the United States in violation of Rule

9, Chinese Rules and the Supreme Court decision on

which such rule is based, having gained admission

by fraud, not havini; been at the time of her entry

the wife of a member of the exempt classes; and that

she entered the L'nited States for an immoral pur-

pose, and it is recommended that she be deported."

(Ex. "A" 38)

Following the order of the Board of Special In(]uiry

an appeal was taken to the Secretary of Labor and the

matter coming before the Board of Review, it gave the

following opinion, which was approved by the Sec-

retary:

"55,387/352 San Francisco January 6, 1927

In re: LAU SHEE or LAW SHEE, alias AH
YOl'NG, alias NGONG FON, Aged about 27,

Native and citizen of China, Chinese race, entered

as the wife of a native at Seattle, Washington, ex

ss 'President Jackson,' September 1, 1923.

This case comes before the Board of Review in

warrant proceedings, it being charged that Lau
Shee has been found^ within the United States in

violation of Rule 9, Chinese Rules, and of the Su-

preme Court decision on which such Rule is based,

having secured admission by fraud, not having been

at the time of her entry the wife of a member of the

exempt classes; that she entered the l'nited States

for an immoral purpose; that she has been found
practicing prostitution after her entry; and that she

entered bv means of false and misleading statements

thereby entering without inspection.

No local counsel. Attorney Emery F. Mitchell

represents the defendant at San Francisco. Mr. WW-
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Ham H. Wylie, of San Diego, formerly represented

her.

Lau Shee has now been in the United States too

long to deport her on the charge that she entered by
means of false and misleading statem.ents thereby
entering without inspection. There is no evidence in

the record supporting the charge that she has been
found practicing prostitution after her entry. The
fact is, however, and she admits it, that she was ad-

mitted to the United States in 1917 as the wife of one
YEE LEUNG, an alleged citizen of this country. She
claims to have lived with him for about two years,

and says that he left her. After working in this

country for a time, she returned to China. She claims

to have regarded herself as separated from her

former husband and free to marry. She returned

to the United States in 1923 as the wife of one Wil-
liam Jew Shep, alias Jew Shu Mon, who is con-

ceded to be a citizen of the United States. The later

admission was through the port of Seattle, whereas
she was previously landed at San Francisco. At
Seattle she testified that she had never been in the

United States before, and was admitted without her

identity as the vvoman who had been admitted at San
Francisco as the wife of Yee Leung being known.
There is no reason for supposing that Yee Leung is

dead, and no such claim is made. Furthermore, Lau
Shee makes no claim that she was divorced in accord

with American law while in this country, nor is any
claim made that a formal divorce was obtained in

China.
The charge that she entered the United States for

an immoral purpose is, therefore, sustained as is

also the charge that she has been found within the

United States in violation of Rule 9, Chinese Rules,

under the Supreme Court decision on which such

Rule is based, having secured admission by fraud,

not having been at the time of her entry, the wife

of a member of the exempt classes.

It is recommended that Lau Shee, alias Ah Young,
alias Ngong Fon, be deported to China at the ex-
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pcnsc o\ tlic steamship company responsible for

brini;ing her to this country in 192.^.

\V. N. Smf.LSKR,

Chairman, Secy. & Comr.
VVCW/ws
So Ordered

:

W. W. HlSH.WD,
Second Assistant Secretary."

Tlic grounds stated in the liarnint of deportation

which followed such decision were not so broad as the

grounds stated in the original icarrant of arrest. In the

warrant of deportation dated January 20, 1927, it is

recited as grounds for deportation the following: (Ex.

"A" 44)

"Whereas, from proofs submitted to me, after

due hearing before Immigrant Inspector T. E. Bor-

den, held at San I-Vancisco, California,

I have become satisfied that the alien

LOW FOOX YOXG alias LAU SHEE or LAW
SHEE alias AH YOLNG alias NGOXG FOX or

LOW SHEE
who landed at the port of Seattle, Wash., ex SS
'President Jackson,' on the 1st day of September,
192-\ is subject to be returned to the country whence
she came under section 19 of the immigration act of

February 5, 1917, being subject to deportation under
the provisions of a law of the United States, to wit,

The Chinese-exclusion Law, in that she has been
found within the United States in violation of rule

9, Chinese rules, and of the Supreme Court decision

on which such rule is based, having secured admis-
sion by fraud, not having been at the time of entry,

the wife of a member of the exempt classes, and
\\'nERF,\s, from proofs submitted to me, after

due hearing before Immigrant Inspector T. E. Bor-
den, held at San Francisco, California, I have be-
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come satisfied that the said alien has been found in

the United States in violation of the immigration
act of February 5, 1917, in that:

She entered the United States for an immoral pur-
pose."

The assignments of error (R''7 ) are three in

number and amount to no more than that the court

erred: in sustaining the demurrer to the petition; in not

holding that the petition was sufficient, and in hold-

ing that it had no jurisdiction to issue the writ. It may

be said that it made no holding of such want of jurisdic-

tion.

In the brief of counsel four points are made in the

argument:

( 1
) That findings by the board of review as the basis

for the warrant of deportation are contrary to law;

and herein it is urged that a marriage was shown be-

tween appellant and Jew Shep ; that it was not shown

to be invalid; that the immigration authorities at Se-

attle having found such marriage as a fact, the govern-

ment is now bound;

(2) The hearing was unfair and herein certain speci-

fications of such unfairness are discussed;

(a) That a confidential report was placed before

the Secretary of Labor and not made a part of the

record, being a certain letter from one Dunton to

one Bonham;

(b) That there was introduced in evidence the

letter or report of Bonham to the Commissioner of

Immigration at San Francisco regarding the case;
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(c) That a certain statement referred to in cer-

tain notations made on the Immigration Record of

Yee Leung was not produced;

(d) That it was unfair to postpone the hearing

of the charge for two years.

We shall show that,

(a) There was ample evidence which could have

been accepted bv the Board of Inquiry showing that

the allei^a-d marriage of appellant to Jew Shcp would

have been bigamous and thus wholly invalid;

(b) The hearing was not unfair in the respects

urged, and that as to contentions (2 a), (2 c), and (2d)

hereinabove there is no warrant therefor in the petition

for writ of habeas corpus; such grounds were not then

urged.
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ARGUMENT

I

The Secretary of Labor was authorized to find from evidence
that appellant entered the United States for an immoral purpose
—to maintain a relationship with one Shep which would have
been concubinage.

From the references to the statement of appellant and
to the immigration records put in evidence, it is seen

that appellant in 1916 entered into a valid marriage at

the British Colony of Hongkong w^ith one Yee Leung,

held to be an American citizen; that she came to the

United States w^ith Yee Leung, arriving at the Port of

San Francisco early in 1917; that she vs^as not admitted

as such wife of an American citizen until after proceed-

ings taken before a Board of Special Inquiry, which
were finally passed upon by the Secretary of Commerce
and Labor; that a couple of years thereafter she parted

from Yee Leung. She says he deserted her (Ex. "A"
36). He states that she deserted him (Ex. "E" 52). The
Board could have taken either view but, in any event,

they simply separated without more. (Ex. "A" 36, 35.)

In 1921 or 1922 she became acquainted with Jew Shep,

also claimed to be an American citizen, and within a

short time it came to his knowledge that she was the

wife of Yee Leung. (Ex. "A" 34.) The two parties

departed for China separately. In November, 1922, at

the same British Colony of Hongkong, they assumed

some pretended relationship of marriage. From the

accounts hereinabove given, it is likely that there was
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little, if any ceremony; that there was little more than

the assumption of such relationship. Whether upon the

theory of a common law marriage the transaction would

have heen sufficient to constitute a marriage between the

parties, if free to marry, need not be considered. For

whatever the foreign marriage may have been, it is clear

that on account of the previous marriage of the woman

the marriage would have been bigamous; that it would

thus not be recognized in this country, and the immigra-

tion authorities were not bound to believe that it was

assumed in good faith. The Board similarly could have

concluded from the evidence that the relationship fol-

lowing to be assumed in this country would have been

the ordinary relationship of concubinage.

That Yee Leung was then living is amply established

from the recital of his immigration record. (Exhibit

"E" 53, 52.) Thus he is shown to have applied for a

certificate under Form 430 as a prelude to a visit to

China at a later date, his photograph being attached

attested by his signature so as to show conclusive proof

of identity, and that at a still later date he returned from

China. (Ex. ''E" 52.)

There is no pretense on the part of Law Shce that

she was ever divorced. She expressly denied that she

was divorced (Ex. "A'' 35), and if she was deserted as

she pretends (Ex. "A" 36), she alone could have ob-

tained the divorce. She makes no reference to any

divorce having been obtained by her husband, although

she was being questioned as to reasons as to why she

could have pretended the second marriage was valid,

the first having been entered into. The entire lack of
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such divorce may have been inferred from her examin-

ation when she gave her statement October 7, 1924. (Ex.

"A" 36, 35.) "Bilokumsky v. Tod, 263 U.S. 149, 154
Upon such a state of the record the several prmcipies

of the law which would support the ruling of the immi-

gration authorities are really beyond dispute.

(a) Thus it is settled, in fact it is conceded, that the

decision of the immigration authorities upon such ques-

tions of fact, there being evidence to support it, are not

to be reviewed upon habeas corpus proceedings. We
need no more than cite in passing a couple of authorities

to such effect.

In the case of

Lee Loy vs. Nagle, 15 F. (2d) 50

the court said:

"To justify a review by the court, there must be
something more than 'the basis of a dispute.' Tulsidas
vs. Insular Collector of Customs, 269 U. S. 258, 43
S. Ct. 586, 67 L. Ed. 969. After taking the evidence
all together, the department found the right to enter
not sustained; if there is any evidence, the court
cannot interfere, Jeung Bock Hong vs. White, 256
F. 23, 189 C. C. A. 161. Nor can the court go into
the insufficiency of the probative facts. White vs.

Young Yan (C. C. A.) 278 F. 619. Nor is the de-
partment required ' ... to point out in detail every
discrepancy in the testimony and every defect in the
proof that might give rise to a doubt.' Dea Hong vs.

Nagle (C. C. A.), 300 F. 727, at page 729."

In the case of

Chin Yow vs. United States, 208 U. S. 8, 13,

which was that of an applicant for admission who
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claimed to have been born in the Ignited States, the

Supreme Court said:

"But unless and until it is proved to the satisfac-

tion of the jud<;e that a hearing properly so called

was denied, the merits of the case are not open, and,

we may add, the denial of a hearing cannot be estab-

lished by pr()\ in<': that the decision was wrong."

(b) That for a man to bring a woman or for a woman

to come to the United States to assume a relationship

which would be not marriage but concubinage is such

immoral conduct as to authorize the deportation under

the immigration act of the guilty party. This applica-

tion of the provisions of the statute is equally well estab-

lished.

Thus in the case of

U. S. ex rel Femina vs. Curran, 12 Fed. (2d)

639, 640.

it was said

:

"Result is that, if this realtor did bring into this

country Mrs. Faccio for the purpose of retaining her
as, or making her, his mistress, is subject to deporta-
tion."

In

UniteJ States vs. Bitty, 208 U. S. 293, 52 L. Ed.

543, 547,

it is said

"Guided by these considerations and rules, we
must hold that Congress intended by the words 'or

for any other immoral purpose,' to include the case
of any(^ne who imported into the United States an
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alien woman that she might live with him as his con-

cubine. The statute in question, it must be remem-
bered, was intended to keep out of this country immi-
grants whose permanent residence here would not

be desirable or for the common good, arid we cannot
suppose either that Congress intended to exempt from
the operation of the statute the importation of an
alien woman brought here only that she might live

in a state of concubinage with the man importing her,

or that it did not regard such an importation as being
for an immoral purpose."

And in the recent case before this court

Kostenowczyk vs. Nagle^ No. 4975 (decided April

18, 1927)

upon the authority of the two cases cited the court

applied the same principle. In the latter case the court

said of Kostenowczyk:

"Petitioner well knew that his marriage was in

force and that it w^as a complete obstacle to marriage

with another woman."

In that case there was a contention that there was a

common law marriage in Siberia previous to the coming

to the United States. The contention was held not w^ell

founded among other reasons for the reason given that

it would be bigamous.

So in the instant case, the appellant Lau Shee well

knew that she had been previously married to another and

without waiting for such marriage to be dissolved either

by death or divorce, or in any other manner, recklessly

and wilfully assumed the irregular relationship with the

party Shep; she certainly knew that the marriage would
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be bigamous and in all civilized countries invalid. She

was an adult in licr full senses and could not have be-

lieved the contrary. If she were to protest her good faith

the inimigratioin authorities would not be bound un-

der the facts to believe such protestation; it must be

taken as a fact tliat the marriage was not in good faith.

The reasons given by her tliat ^'cc Leung had left her,

telling her in effect that she could do as she pleased,

could not be taken as other than trivial.

I'hat she was then the wife of another would prevent

her marriage to Shep regardless of what might have

been the law in Hongkong. This fact will serve to

differentiate the two cases cited by counsel on the point;

the cases of Kane vs. Johnson, 13 Fed. (2d) 432, and ^.v

parte Siizanna, 295 Fed. 713. These cases were cited

upon the proposition that a marriage valid in the coun-

try where executed would be deemed to be valid here.

But it will be noted that the statement of the principle

contains (p. 717) the well established e.xception that

it is

"onlv provided that it is not celebrated between
two persons who are not too nearly related to each

other or between two persons, one of ichom had a

wife or husband still living. See cases cited above.''

Were it otherwise courts in civilized countries would

be compelled at times to recognize plural marriages.

The authorities are all to the contrary.

Moreover, although the second alleged marriage took

place out of this State, there was later, as the parties

intended, cohabitation within this State, and under
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Section 1106 of the Penal Code of California it is pro-

vided,

"Sec. 1106. Evidence on a trial for bigamy. Upon
a trial for bigamy, it is not necessary to prove either

of the marriages by the register, certificate, or other
record evidence thereof, but the same may be proved
by such evidence as is admissible to prove a mar-
riage in other cases; and when the second marriage
took place out of this state, proof of that fact, ac-

companied with proof of cohabitation thereafter in

this state, is sufficient to sustain the charge/^ (Italics

added.)

Accordingly, the first marriage being undissolved and

the proof clear that the parties cohabitated in this state,

to assume that they really married at Hongkong would

be to assume that they committed a grave felony. Upon

such principle the Department may well have inferred

that there was no pretense of a marriage in Hongkong

but that there was a mere assumption of an irregular

relationship.

(d) Authorities are cited in support of the conten-

tion that from the presumption of the legality of a mar-

riage, there is to be inferred the dissolution of a prev-

ious marriage either by death or divorce, and that the

burden is on one who attacks the subsequent marriage

to show that the first remained undissolved, but it is

very clear that such presumption cannot avail appellant

here for the reason as we have pointed out, the govern-

ment expressly excluded the case of the death of Yee

Leung. Thus he is shown to be living by his execu-

tion of an application to depart from the United States

made on July 30, 1926, accompanied by his photo-
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graph anii attested by his signature. (Kx. "E" 53.)

That he was alive later than the alleged marriage of

appellant to Shep in Hongkong is shown by various

recitals of Exhibit '*lv." 'I'hat the marriage was not

dissolved by judicial decree is shown from the state-

ment of petitioner given on October 7, 1924, {K\. "A"

?>7, ct seq.) especially the excerpts hereinabove re-

ferred to.

There wouKl be no room for tiie invocation of the

presumption referred to for the reason that appellant

appeared and testified on the subject, expressly denied

that she obtained a divorce and, asked for her reasons

for assuming that she was free to marry in spite of her

former marriage, did not claim the death of Yee Leung

or that she believed that he was dead; she did not claim

any divorce, but on the contrary, gave as such reason

that he "picked up and left her'' and merely told her

she could do as she pleased. The bigamous character

of any pretended marriage to Shep is thus conclusively

proven. ^7 fortiori the immigration authorities could

have inferred it as a fact from the proofs before them.

Nor is it pertinent that the woman might have ob-

tained a divorce and then married Shep and that her re-

lationship then would have been regular and her visit to

the United States not subject to any imputation of im-

morality. It is suflicient to say that she did not do so,

but, on the contrary. Haunted the laws of the United

States. In any other such situation it might be won-

dered whv the parties involved did not procure a di-

vorce rather than commit some grave crime, but it is

not held that the potentiality of divorce would be at
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all considered as a defense or excuse. Appellant from

her foreign or Chinese nationality would not be weighed

in a different scale from that of an ordinary white

woman, a citizen of the United States, who in defiance

of a former marriage without a pretense of divorce as-

sumes an irregular relationship.

The case of Ex parte Morel, 292 Fed. 423, is cited

but that case is easily distinguishable from the instant

case. There two citizens of France, perfectly free to

marry and contemplating marriage, being in the State

of California entered into what would have been a

common law marriage but for the enactment of a recent

California Statute. It is shown that the acts would

have constituted a marriage in France, the law of which

they were familiar. It indeed would have been a mar-

riage in any common law jurisdiction in most States of

the Union. Later they made a trip to Canada and re-

turned. Still later, doubting the validity of the first

marriage, they separated, whereupon the deportation

proceeding against the man was instituted. The Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals of the Second Circuit (270 Fed.

577) seems to have sustained the deportation. But in

the case cited, the District Court at Seattle, finding that

the alleged marriage was in good faith, finding further

that during the sojourn in Canada there was in fact a

common law marriage relationship assumed, held that

there was not an importation for an immoral purpose,

the court emphasizing the purpose of good faith in that

the parties competent to marry believed themselves mar-

ried. Here, as we have seen, the parties were not com-

petent to marry, could not in good faith have believed
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themselves married, but, as in any other similar case,

they were simply Haunting the law.

II.

The hearing was not unfair for any of the particulars re-

ferred to.

(a) Complaint is viade of the receipt in evidence of

t/w initidl report of Inspector Bonhniu, constituting

page 3 of Exhibit "A," and complaint is further made

that he was not produced for cross-examination.

It may be noted that this report, as far as anv refer-

ence was made to alleged prostitution, could not be

prejudicial for the reason that there was found there

was no prostitution; as to the remainder of the report,

it was substantially to the effect that from an examina-

tion of immigration records the identity of Lau Shee

as the same person who married Yee Leung was stated.

But since this is freely admitted, and completely shown

by the records subsequently put in evidence, the matter

could have been of no importance. As far as any cross-

examination of Bonham is concerned, that was ex-

pressly waived, as will be seen from the excerpt from

page 40 of Exhibit "A" hereinabove set forth.

But there could not be any objection taken to the

character of this evidence, since it is well established

that a hearing does not cease to be fair merely because

rules of evidence or procedure applicable in judicial

proceedings have not been strictly followed by the ad-
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ministrative officers or because some evidence has been

improperly received or rejected.

U. S. vs. Tod, 263 U. S. 149.

Tang Tun vs. Edsell, 223 U. S. 673, 681.

In the case of United States vs. Curran, 12 F. (2nd),

636, supra, it was said:

"It is now long established, in proceedings in im-
migration cases, that neither the hearsay rule nor
the best evidence rule, nor, indeed, any of the com-
mon-law rules of evidence, need be observed. A
board of special inquiry, which determines these

cases, may consider heresay evidence and adminis-

trative findings, although based upon evidence which
would not be competent in a court of law, which
evidence may not be attacked upon habeas corpus.

United States ex rel. Diamond vs. Uhl (C. C. A.)

266 F. 34; Morrell vs. Baker (C. C. A.) 270 F. 577.

The weight to be given to such documents as were
admitted, relating to the genuineness of the alien's

visas, was for the board's determination."

That the immigration records put in evidence were

properly so received and have probative value is, of

course well established.

Chang Sim vs. White, 111 Fed. 765;

In re Jem Yuen, 188 Fed. 350;

White vs. Chan Wy Sheung, 270 Fed. 764;

Chin Shee vs. White, 111 Fed. 801;

Soo Hoo Hung et al. vs. Nagle, 3 F. (2d) 267.

In the case last noted it was said:

"Appellants say that the files in the case of Soo
Hoo Jin, an alleged son of Soo Hoo Hing, who was
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dcportcil, thou^li considered in the decision of the

applications under consideration, were never brouglit

to the attention of the applicants. The record re-

futes the contention by showing that the entire rec-

ord was ^iven to the attorney for these applicants,

and that he later returned certain exhibits, which in-

cluded the files and the exhibit, which it is now said

were not brought to the attention of the applicants."

And such records were so considered here.

(b) 1 he hearing was not unfair for anything indi-

cated in the letter of Button to Bonham, dated April

17, 1926.

This letter from one official to another is found in

the Seattle file of Lau Shee. It is merely an incidental

reference to some confidential report to an official of

the Immigration Bureau at Washington, the contents of

the report or that it cut any figure in the instant case is

not otherwise indicated. The Exhibit "A" contains the

entire proceedings had in regard to the present warrant

of deportation. Certain collections of papers constitut-

ing individual immigration records were put in evi-

dence in connection therewith, the Lau Shee Seattle file

Number 405 1-6 included. But since that file or any

of the other files does not contain the alleged confi-

dential report, nor was it shown to have been received

by the Immigration Department, or in the Department's

proceedings it seems to us to be entirely without the

case. As far as it appears, it was originally made in

some collateral proceeding and would have no more

relevancy than anv other record of the voluminous rec-

ords of the Department of Labor.

Moreover, this particular specification was not made
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in the petition for writ of habeas corpus as a ground

thereof, and for that reason alone would not be con-

sidered.

Dea Hong vs. Nagle, 300 F. 727;

Ex parte Yoshimasa Nomura, 297 F. 191.

(c) There is no unfairness shoicn in respect to an

alleged statement of Inspector Kuchein found in the

Immigration file of Yee Leung referring to a statement

made 3-16-22 in applying for a return certificate said to

be evasive.

It appears that appellant now claims that such state-

ment should have been placed before the Immigration

Bureau in the instant case. It is sufficient to say that

the record does not at any place show any request by

appellant for the production or introduction in evidence

of the statement, nor that the matter would be import-

ant or relevant in the present inquiry. Had it been ex-

cluded it would be a mere case of a rejection of evi-

dence and would not upon the authorities hereinabove

cited have rendered the hearing unfair.

Moreover, as indicated in the preceding paragraph,

this contention was not made in the petition for writ

of habeas corpus and cannot now be considered.

Dea Hong vs. Nagle, supra 300 F. 727;

Ex parte Yoshimasa Nomura, 297 F. 191.

(d) 7/ is finally contended that the hearing is unfair

for the delay of tivo years between the issuance of the

warrant of arrest and the final hearing.

It does not appear that any such delay prejudiced
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appellant. She was at large on bail, going her way, and,

no doubt, was entirely willing to have the proceedings

drawn out knowing that delay would make for her

rather than against her in assembling evidence. It is

not shown that any particular demand for hearing was

made until just before one was accorded, or that the

delay was not according to her desires. See

Scif vs. \airle. 14 F. (2d) 416.

STATUTE INVOLVED.

The deportation of the appellant from the United

States has full statutory basis. Thus it is provided in

Section 3 of the Immigration Act of February 5, 1917,

39 Stat. 875, U. S. Compiled Statutes, Section 4289,'4b,

as follows:

"The following classes of aliens shall be excluded

from admission into the I'nitcd States; * * *

persons coming into the United States for the pur-

pose of prostitution or for any other immoral pur-

pose * * *."

And Section 4 of the same Act provides:

"The importation into the I'nited States of any
alien for the purpose of prostitution or for any other
immoral purpose is hereby forbidden * * *."

(Italics added.)

And Section 19 of the same Act provides for the de-

portation within five years after entry of any alien who
at the time of entry was a member of one or more of

the classes excluded by law or an alien who shall have

entered or who shall be found in the United States in
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violation of this Act or in violation of any other law of

the United States.

The appellant would also be deportable under the

provisions of that Act as being in the United States in

violation of the Chinese Exclusion Acts. She is shown

to be an alien of Chinese birth and not admissible under

any of the exceptions, especially she is shown not to

have been admissible under Rule 9 as she claims, as

being the wife of an American citizen, her proof in that

behalf being fraudulent.

It will be noted that the exclusion in the case of ap-

pellant is not necessarily to be based upon the theory of

prostitution which will be defined as indiscriminate

commerce for hire but rather that she enters for some

other immoral purpose, such as the purpose here shown,

that of concubinage or to maintain an irregular mar-

riage relation, there being no possible pretense of

marriage.
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CONCLUSION

In conclusion \vc show that the deportation proceed-

ing now umlcr review is the ordinary case where the

department fairly considered the case, accorded appel-

lant all tlie rights to which she was entitled, allowed her

to present any material evidence which she offered. She

was represented by counsel and it conclusively appeared

from her own statement that she had been previously

married. She made no pretense that the previous mar-

riage was dissolved by death or divorce; it was shown

in fact that the first husband is still living and that

she was not divorced, whence there arises the conclu-

sive presumption that she entered the United States

to assume an irregular relationship with one Shep,

which would have constituted concubinage, and which

thus would have been an immoral act, and she was

properly deported.

The order of the District Court should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

Geo. J. Hatfield,

United States Attorney.

T. J. Sheridax,

Asst. United States Attorney.

Attorneys for Appellee.
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under the laws of the State of Maryland, and hav-

ing its principal place of business in Baltimore in

that State, plaintiff in this suit, and complains of

the defendants, A, T. Hammons, the duly appointed,

qualified and acting Superintendent of Banks of

the State of Arizona; J. S. Dodson, the duly ap-

pointed, qualified and acting Special Deputy Su-

perintendent of Banks of the State of Arizona;

George J. Schaefer, the duly elected, qualified and

acting Treasurer and Ex-officio Tax Collector of Na-

vajo County, State of Arizona, and Navajo County, a

quasi public corporation organized and existing

under and by virtue of the laws of Arizona, with

power to sue and be sued and with its seat of

government at the town of Holbrook, Arizona,

each of whom is a citizen of the State of Arizona,

residing within the boundaries of said State and

an inhabitant of the District of Arizona aforesaid

and says:

1. That the matter in controversy herein exceeds,

exclusive of interest and costs, the sum or value of

three thousand dollars.

2. That on the 20th day of January, 1913, the

plaintiff herein, being duly authorized to transact

the business of suret^^ship in the State of Arizona,

made, executed and deliA^ered to defendant, Navajo

County, a depository bond in the sum of five thou-

sand dollars for the Bank of Winslow, of Winslow,

Arizona, a banking corporation under the laws of

the State of Arizona, as principal, to secure de-

posits of said County in the said Bank, said bond

being in due form as required by law and at all

times material hereto in full force and effect as
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such depositon*, a copy of the said bond beine at-

tached hrreto and made a part hereof as thoiigrh

written herein, and marked Exliibit "A": that on

the lUth day of Au^ist, 1916, the plaintiff herein,

l)einp: duly authorized to transact the business of

suretyship in the State of Arizona, made, executed

and delivered to defendant, Navajo County, a de-

pository bond in the sum of ten thousand dollare

for the Bank of Winslow, Arizona, a bankinsr cor-

j>oration under the laws of the State of Arizona,

as principal, to secure deposits of said County in

the said Bank, said bond l)ein^ in due form as

required by law and at all times material hereto in

full force and effect as such depository bond, a copy

of the said bond bein^ attached hereto and made a

part hereof as though written herein and marked

Exhibit "B"; that on the 6th day of January,

192U, the plaintiff herein l>ein£r duly authorized to

transact the business of suretyship in the State of

Arizona, made, executed, and delivered to the

County of Xavajo, State of Arizona, a depositor}'

bond in the sum of ten thousand d«»llai-s for the

Bank of Winslow. of Winslow, Arizona, a banking

cor|)oration under the laws of the State of Arizona

as principal, to secure deposits of said County in

the said Bank, said bond being in due fomi as re-

quired by law and at all times material hereto

in full force and eflfect as such depositor}- bond, a

copy of the said bond being attached hereto and

made a part hereof as though written herein, and

marked Exhibit **C"; that on the 13th day of June,

1921. the plaintiff herein being duly authorized to

transact the business of suretyship in the State of
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Arizona, made, executed, and delivered to defend-

ant, Navajo County, a depository bond in the sum

of fifteen thousand dollars for the Bank of Winslow,

of Winslow, Arizona, a banking corporation under

the laws of the State of Arizona, as principal, to

secure deposits of said County in the said Bank,

said bond being in due form as required by law

and at all times material hereto in full force and

effect as such depository bond, a copy of the said

bond being attached hereto and made a part hereof,

as though written herein, and marked Exhibit '^D."

3. That on the 4th day of October, 1924, the said

Bank of Winslow, of Winslow, Arizona, closed its

doors and suspended payments of deposits, and be-

came, was and is now, insolvent, and pursuant to

the laws of Arizona, the defendant, A. T. Hammons,

Superintendent of Banks, took over said Bank and

appointed the defendant, J. S. Dodson, Special

Deputy Superintendent of Banks, as his agent, to

take charge of the said Bank for purposes of liqui-

dation, and the said defendant, J. S. Dodson, is

now and ever since that date, has been, such agent

in charge of the said Bank.

4. That on the date of the suspension of pay-

ments by the said Bank, as alleged in the precedini,^

paragraph, there was on deposit funds of the de-

fendant, Navajo County, in the said Bank in the

aggregate sum of fifty-two thousand one hundred

sixty-four and 20-100 ($52,164.20) dollars, which

was covered by the four bonds of the plaintiff as

above described, and by thirty-five town of Wins-

low Improvement Bonds and worth the sum of
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twelve thousand live liuiidicd niiiclcni and (Jl-lOO

($12,519.()1) dollais, and l)y Navajo County regis-

tered school warrants in the sum (d" one thousand

nine hundred titty-six 79-l()() ($1,95().79) doUars,

and l)y Navajo County i-e^istered County wai-rants

in the sum of two th(>usand ei;;ht inindred thirty-

nine and -Jt-lOO (^2,8:i<).24) (h)llars, as (h-sciihed

and set I'oi'th in a I'cceipt in possession of tiie <h'-

fendant, Dodson, as the aucnt (d" tlie State Sujx'r-

intendent (d' Hanks in (diarge of the said Hank

aforesaid, and hy additional Navajo County i-eijis-

tered warrants in the sum of two thousand tive

hundred eighty-three and 37-100 ($2,5S3.:J7) dol-

lars, as deserihed and set forth in a lettei- signed

hy the (\)unty Ti-easurei- in the form of a receipt

dated October 18, 1923; that the said security a.u-

ji:regates the sum of fifty-nine thousand ei^ht hun-

dred ninety-nine and 01-100 ($39,899.01) dollars

which represents the indemnity held hy defendaid,

Navajo County, as against a loss occasioned or which

nnuht be occasioned by the failure or default of

the Hank.

5. That it a])])ears from tlie icport ^^\' the de-

fendant, Dodson, actinu: as the agent of the 8tate

^superintendent of Hanks, tiled by him in the Su-

perior Coui't for Navajo County at the County Court

House in the Town of Holbi-ook, Arizona, that at

the date the said Hank of Winslow suspended pay-

ments, the Hank was the holder and owner for

Value of certain warrants of defendant. County of

Navajo, as follows, to wit

:
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AT WINSLOW
School Warrants held as cash items $ 594.15

County and School Warrants transmitted

to the County Treasurer for collection

after having been paid by the Bank,

the following; but not paid at date of

closing of Bank:

August 22, 1924, County Treasurer 288.93

September 30, 1924, County Superinten-

dent of Schools 212.65

October 1st, 1924, County Superintendent

of Schools 10.72

October 2, 1924, County Treasurer 3,497.12

AT HOLBROOK BRANCH OF
BANK OF WINSLOW

County Warrants held as cash items $ 24.50

County and school District Warrants paid

by the Warrants paid by the Bank and

transmitted to the County Treasurer

for collection but not paid at date of

closing of Bank:

October 31, 1923, County School Superin-

tendent 7.56

July 23, 1924, County Treasurer 98.83

July 24, 1924, County Treasurer 4.00

September 23, 1924, County Treasurer 82.45

September 25, 1924, County Treasurer . . . 14.00

September 30, 1924, (^ounty School Supt.. . 74.45

October 3, 1924, County Treasurer 103.50

$5,012.86
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Tli.'it in addition to the loic^oin^-, it appears from

said rcpoit that the Hank <d' Winslow was the

owner and lidldn- and in posscssicMi (d", <>n the date

tliat it suspended pa> nients, ]'e<!:istered warrants

issued l)y defenchant, Navajo County, in tlie ai^irre-

^ate sum of twenty-three thousand six liundjcd

iunety-(.ne and (i()-ll)() ( .^2:5,69 !.()()) dolhirs, in tlie

usual I'oiin as i'e(|uire(l hy the laws of the State

of Arizona, in payment of tlie Accounts of the said

County for salaries, ex})enses and for the puichase

of sup])lies and for other lawful County ])Ui'])oses,

which had heen purchased or jjaid by the Bank

of Winslow prior to the date of its suspension of

payments, and each of said warrants had heen

duly registered by the defendant, George J. Schaefer

as County Treasurer and Kx-OflTcio Tax Collector

of the County of Navajo, or his ])redecessor or

predecessoi-s in office, and l)ear interest from the

date of registration at the rate of six ])er cent per

annum as by the hwvs of Arizona provided; that

the unregistered warrants set forth above and

described as either in the possession of the Bank
01' in transit or in the liands of the defendant,

Schaeffer, for collection, were not registered and do

not bear interest ; that all of the said warrants

whethei' rci^istered or unreu:istered, were in form

demand notes of the defendant, Navajo County,

and constituted ])romises to pay on j)resentation by

the payee or on his order to the said defendant,

George J. Schaefer, as such County Treasurei- and

Ex-Ofticio Collectoi- of Na\ajo County, and as

such were properly subjects of offset as against
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the debt of the said Bank of Winslow to the County

of Navajo, on account of said deposits of the said

County in the said Bank.

6. That on or about the 20th day of November,

1924, the plaintiff made due demand upon the de-

fendant, J. S. Dodson, as the agent of tHe State

Superintendent of Banks, in charge of the Bank
of Winslow, to allow and make the said offset, and

tendered to defendant, Navajo County, and to de-

fendant, George J. Schaefer, Treasurer and Ex-

Officio Collector, the balance due after allowing all

credits and offsets as in the following table set

forth:

Total amount of County funds

on deposit $52,164.20

CREDITS AND OFFSETS:
Improvement Bonds of Town

of Winslow pledged to

County $12,519.21

County Warrants pledged as

security to County 7,379.40

County Warrants unregis-

tered owned and held by

the Bank in manner above 5,012.86

County Warrants regis-

tered, held and owned by

Bank 16,312.20 41,223.67

Balance due from plaintiff 10,940.53

Total loss $52,164.20
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wliicli said Iciidci- was ictiisrd, and cvci' since said

date has heen retused, and lias Itccn withdrawn for

Teasons licrcinai'ter stated, and phiintiff now offers

and liefeljy tenders to the County oi" Navajo what-

ever amount is Justly due it, al'tei- the allowance of

all cicdits and olTsets herein j»ra>cd I'oi-.

7. That since the said Hank of Winslow closed

its tloors and the (hd'endant Dodsoii took jjossession

of its assets, as hereinhel'ore alleged, the said I)od-

son made demand upon the defendant Schaefer for

the T'eturn of l)onds of tlie Town of Winslow, ap-

|)roximately of the pai- value of seven thousand

dollars ($7,0()().U()) held l)y said Schaefer as a part

of the ])led.c:e to secure County (le])()sits in said

Bank, as alle.^cd and set fortli in paragraphs four

and six herein, and the said Schaefer, without right

or authority, and in violation of the rights of the

})laintitt* in said pledge, and especially in violation

of its I'ights to have said honds, or the proceeds

thei-eof, applied in deduction of the debt to the

County of Navajo re])resented hy the County de-

posits in the Hank (d' Winslow, as hereinbefore al-

leged, before the plaintiff could be called upt)n tu

pay for any alleged default on the j)art of its

princii)al, the said Hank of Winslow returned to

the said Dodson, as S])ecial Deputy Su])erintendent

of Banks in charge of said insolveiu Hank of Wins-

low, the bonds so demanded, and, as i)laintiff is in-

formed and believes, and therefore states the fact

to he, that said Dodson is holding the same as assets

of the trust estate, free from the pledge to the

County of Navajo, and intends to convert the same
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to the use and benefit of the creditors of said trust

estate.

8. That said action on the part of said defend-

ant Schaefer operated to release the plaintiff from

any liability to the County of Navajo, to the extent

of the value of said bonds, principal and interest,

and to reduce the alleged indebtedness of plaintiff

to the County of Navajo in that amount, and that

in all equity and justice, the defendants Hammons
and Dodson should be required and ordered to

return said bonds to the defendant Schaefer, to be

by him reduced to money and applied in an orderly

manner, to the reduction of the debt of defendant

Hammons, as Superintendent of Banks, and defend-

ant Dodson, as Special Deputy Superintendent in

charge of said Bank of Winslow, to the County of

Navajo.

9. That since the filing of the Bill in this case,

and after the transaction described in the two

preceding paragraphs, the defendant Schaefer, act-

ing as County Treasurer of Navajo County, and

upon the instructions of the Board of Supervisors

of Said County, and in accordance with the laws of

the State of Arizona, in such cases made and pro-

vided, has sold the remaining improvements bonds

of the Town of Wiaislow, and turned them into

money, and applied the proceeds to the reduction

of the debt due to the County of Navajo by the

defendant Hammons as Superintendent of Banks,

and the defendant Dodson as Special Deputy Super-

intendent of Banks in charge of said Bank of

Winslow, and as offset against the said debt the
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('(»uiit\' Wanaiils listed in pni'.-iui-apli six liciM'iii-

hclcirc set rmlli as "('(Minly W'aii'aiits pledged as

security to County" in the sum of $7,^^79.40, with

interest aniouutiuii; to ."r.'")77.H), a total credit from

both sources of .ti:J,.'):)1.7(), therel)y i-educini^ said

debt to .t:n,7r)2.44 ; tliat due to tlu' action of the said

County Treasurei', the (h'fendant Schaefor, as in

tlie two preceding paragraphs alh'^cd, the phiintiff

has been released I'ldin any liai)ility for tlie (h'fault

of its princi])al, to the extent of the bonds, princii)al

and interest, returned to the defendant Dodson,

said princi])al and interest amounting as plaintiff is

informed and believes, to a sum in excess of

jfJ7,S<)0.()(): that as a result of said transaction, the

total demand u])ou })laintiff is not in excess of $30,-

000.00.

10. That of the re2:istered warrants described in

paragraph tive herein, it now ap])ears that the of-

ticei's of the Baid< of Winslow ])led,ue(l to the Treas-

urer of the County of Ai)ache, State of Arizona, to

secure deposits of that County in said Bank of

Winslow, on or about the 28th da>- of »September,

1924, Navajo County registered warrants in the

total amount of $8,110.38, as described and set foi-th

in tile list attached hereto and made a part hereof,

as though written herein, and marked "Exhiliit

E"; that said ])ledge was without authority of law,

and in violation of plaintiff's rights to claim an

offs(>t in that amount, and void because it destroys

the right of the County of Xava.jo to claim an offset

in that amount against the indebtedness of the

Bank of Winslow to it, on account of said deposit.
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as the officers of that County are required to do

under paragraph 2436 of the Revised Statutes of

the State of Arizona, 1913, Civil Code; that the

title to said warrants, free from any pledge to the

Treasurer of said County of Apache, is in the de-

fendant Hammons, as Superintendent of Banks,

acting by and through the defendant Dodson, as

Special Deputy Superintendent of Banks, in charge

of the Bank of Winslow, and should be returned

to defendant Dodson by the Treasurer of Apache

County, to be dealt with in this case as the Court

may determine.

11. That upon the answer of the defendant Dod-

son on file herein, it appears that on or about the

first day of February, 1925, he had in his official

possession registered warrants of the County of

Navajo in the aggregate sum of $10,922.44, upon

which there was due and payable, interest in the

sum of $291.00, an aggregate amount of $11,213.44,

and the total offsets which should be claimed by the

said County of Navajo against the debt due it

by virtue of Navajo County Warrants in the pos-

session of said defendant Dodson, as such Special

Deputy Superintendent of Banks, in charge of the

Bank of Winslow, or the defendant Hammons, as

Superintendent of Banks, or which should be in

the possession of them, or one of them, are as fol-

lows:
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In possession of Six'cial l)('j)Uly Siijx'iin-

tnidont of Hanks .^IK-'lil.U

In possession of 'I'l'casurcr of A])a<'lH'

County (witliout (M»ini)Utat ion <»!' in-

terest) 8,110.38

In transit as per parai;i'a})h .') hereof

(witliout interest) r),{)12.sn

Total .t24,33().()8

and as tlie net claim, with all credits and offsets

which have been, or shonld have been realized upon

is now reduced to approximately $30,000.00, the

foregoing offsets, with interest in addition, would

reduce the amount to not in excess of $5,000.00 as

the sum due the County of Navajo from the plain-

tiff, as a result of the default of its principal, the

Bank of Winslow.

V2. That notwithstandin<; the demand of the

plaintiff, as in the preceding paragraph recited,

and notwithstanding that the defendant, George J.

Schaefer, Treasurer and Ex-Officio Tax Collector of

tile County of Navajo is, as plaintiff is informed

and l)elieves, and therefore states the fact to be,

ready and willing that the said credits and offsets

should be allowed substantially as hereinbefore

claimed by the plaintiff', the defendant, J. S. Dod-

son, Special Deputy Superintendent of Banks, and

in charge of the liquidation of the said Bank of

Winslow as aforesaid, acting as agent of the de-

fendant, A. T. Hanmions, Superintendent of Banks,

as aforesaid, and pursuant to his instructions, has

failed and refused, and does now fail and refuse
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to make the said offset and to allow the same to

defendant, Navajo County, and to permit the plain-

tiff* herein to pay the loss after the said credits and

offsets have been allowed in the sum set forth in

the preceding paragraph, whereby the balance of

five thousand dollars (|5,000.00) representing the

loss of the plaintiff herein, could be paid and plain-

tiff discharged from its charges and obligations

thereunder, and the defendant, A. T. Hammons,

Superintendent of Banks of the State of Arizona,

by virtue of said refusal threatens to prevent the

plaintiff herein from obtaining the benefit and ad-

vantage of the said offsets and just credits and to

destroy same, to the irreparable damage of plain-

tiff herein.

13. That the defendant, J. S. Dodson, Special

Deputy Superintendent of Banks threatens to sell

assign and transfer the said registered and un-

registered warrants of Navajo County to third

persons who would thereby become owners and

holders of the said registered and unregistered

warrants for value without notice of the claim of

the plaintiff for the offsets and credits herein set

forth and the plaintiff would thereby be deprived

of any remedy at law and would suff'er irreparable

loss.

14. That the defendant, the said J. S. Dodson,

as such Special Deputy Superintendent of Banks,

threatens to demand payment of defendant, Navajo

County, and of the defendant, George J. Schaefer as

County Treasurer and Ex-Officio Tax Collector of

the Comity of Navajo, of all said registered and
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iinrci^istcrcMl warrants or a inatcrial pait thereof,

and the (h't'endant, (ieoii^c J. Schaefei', as sueh

('(tuiity 'rreasiii-cr and Kx-()t!icio Tax Collector

would l>e i-('(|uir('d to i)ay from the funds of said

County availal)le for thai purpose, llie said repjis-

tercd and iinrejj:istei'('d wairanis wherehy the plain-

tiff hcicin wnuld l)e deprived of any I'emedy at law

in tlie event of a suit at law brought by the said

George J. Schaefer as said County Treasurer and

Ex-Offieio Tax Collector of Navajo County or by

the defendant Navajo County to recover upon the

said bonds of the plaintiff as hereinbefore de-

scribed and set forth, and the i)laintiff thereby

suffer irreparable loss.

15. That by the refusal of the said J. S. Dodson,

Special Deputy Superintendent of Banks, and the

defendant A. T. Hannnons, Superintendent of

Banks of the State of Arizona, to allow the said off-

sets, and because of the insolvency of the principal,

the said Bank of Winslow, plaintiff herein has no

adetpuite remedy at law and would be remediless

unless in a court of equity where matters of this

kind are pro})erly recognizable and relievable;

and plaintiff charges that the »said A. T. Hannnons,

the Superintendent of Banks of the State of Ari-

zona, and the said J. S. Dodson, Special Deputy

Superintendent of Baidvs, ought, therefore, to be

restrained by the order and injunction of this Hon-

orable Court from selling, assigning or othei-wise

disposing of the said registered and unregistered

warrants or presenting them to the County of

Navajo or to the defendant George J. Schaefer,
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County Treasurer and Ex-Officio Tax Collector of

the said County for payment, or from in any man-

ner disturbing or altering the status quo of the

condition of the said warrants, both registered and

unregistered, or the improvement bonds of the

Town of Winslow, until the further order of this

Court, or pending the determination of the issues

herein presented, and that the said defendant,

George J. Schaefer, as such Treasurer and Ex-

Officio Tax Collector of Navajo County ought to be

restrained by the order and injunction of this Hon-

orable Court from paying the said registered or

unregistered warrants pending the determination

of the issues herein presented.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays that the defend-

ants may answer the premises, and

1. That the defendant A. T. Hammons, Super-

intendent of Banks of the State of Arizona, and

the defendant J. S. Dodson, Special Deputy Super-

intendent of Banks, and the defendant George J.

Schaefer, County Treasurer and Ex-Officio Tax

Collector of the County of Navajo, and Navajo

County shall immediate list the credits and offsets

as they existed on the 4th day of October, 1924,

between the said County and the said Bank of

Winslow.

2. That the amount of County Funds on deposit

set out, to-wit: $52,164.20, may be satisfied and dis-

charged to the extent of the aggregate sum repre-

sented by Navajo warrants, both registered and un-

registered, owned on said date by the Bank of Wins-

low, and the value of the Improvement Bonds of
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ihf 'l\»Nvii ol Winsluw, tu-wit: $12,519.21, and

that the i)laiiitiff herein he decreed to owe and he

directed to pa\ Ihc halance due the defendant

Navajo County, and that phiintil'f l)e there})y

wholly relieved of all its hahility under and l)y

virtue of its Depository Bond as in this I^ill set

forth i)hiintift" heing ready and willing, and herehy

offering to i)ay to the said County the said amount.

3. That an order to show cause do issue herein,

directed to the Treasurer of Apache County, State

of Arizona, directing him at a time and place to be

tixed l)y this Honorable Court, or the Judge thereof,

to appear l)eioiv this Court and show cause why

he should not forthwith return the warrants listed

herein in the list marked "Exhibit E" to the de-

fendant llanunons, Superintendent of Banks, and

the defendant Dodson, as Special Deputy Sup-

erintendent of Banks, to be disposed of as may
be ordered or directed by the Court.

4. That the injunction heretofore entered herein

against the defendants, and each of them, be con-

tinued until the entry of the final decree herein,

and for such other and further relief in the prem-

ises as to the Court may seem just and equitable,

and for its costs in this behalf expended.

Answer under oath is hereby waived.

(Signed) FKANK E. CURLEY,
(Signed) SAMUEL L. PATTEE,

Solicitoi-s for Plaintiff,

Tucson, Arizona.

(Signed) FRANCIS C. WILSON,
Of Counsel for Plaintiff,

Santa Fe, New Mexico.
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United States of America,

District of Arizona,—ss.

Samuel L. Pattee, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says that he is one of the solicitors for the

plaintiff herein; that the plaintiff is a foreign cor-

poration and has no officers within the State of

Arizona authorized to make this verification for it;

wherefore he makes this verification for and on be-

half of the said i)laintiff and as his solicitor; that

he has read the foregoing amended Bill in Equity,

and knows the contents thereof, and that the mat-

ters and things therein stated are true, to the

best of his knowledge and belief.

(Signed) SAMUEL L. PATTEE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 13th day

of June, 1925.

(Seal) (Signed) MAUDE I. BOWEN,
Notary Public, Pima County, Arizona.

My commission will exi)ire June 1st, 1929.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT "A."

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY.

BALTIMORE.

BOND.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That we, THE BANK OF WINSLOW, of Wins-

low, Arizona, as principal, and the MARYLAND
CASUALTY COMPANY, of Baltimore, a cor-

poration organized under the laws of the State of

Maryland, with its principal place of business at
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Baltiiiinic, Marvhiiid, duly (jiialilicd to ht'coiiu' .surety

upon bonds in the State of Arizona, as surety, are

lield and liimly Ixtuiid unto the County of Navajo, in

the \h'\\a\ sum <.r iMve Tliousaiid ($'),()(){).()()) I)()j-

lars, l.iw I'ul juoncy of the Tiiited States of Anieriea,

lor the i»ayiiH'nt n\' which, well ;ni<l tr-uly to l)e

made, we hind ourselves, our successors, and as-

sij^ns, jointly and sevei'all\', tinnly hy these ])res-

ents.

Dated this twentieth day of January, A. D., 1923.

TllK CONDITION of this obligation is such,

that whereas the above named principal, TllK
DANK Ol"' WINSLOW, of Winslow, Arizona, was,

on the twentieth dav of Jainiar\-, A. 1). 1913, an-

pointed and designated by the County Treasurer

of the County of Navajo, State of Arizona, with the

consent of the J-Joai'd of Su))ervisors of Navajo

County, Arizona, tu l)e a depository of public

moneys for the said County of Navajo, pursuant

to till' i-onditious of Chapter Fifty-six (5(j) of the

laws of Arizona for 19U5, and amendments thereto.

NOW, TllEKEFOHE, if the said TllK BANK
OF WINSLOW, of Winslow, Arizona, shall well,

truly and faithfully perform and dis(diarge all

duties and responsibilities now reipiired or that

may hereafter be required of it under any law of

the State of Arizona and will promptly pay out to

the parties entitled thereto all public moneys of the

Comity of Navajo in its hands or that may come
into its hands, ui)on lawful demand therefor, and
will whenever reijuired thereto by law or lawful

demand, pay over to the County Treasurer of the
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County of Navajo public moneys with interest

thereon at the rate of two per cent (2%) per an-

num, computed on daily balances, then this obli-

gation shall be void and of no effect, otherwise to be

and remain in full force and A^irtue.

THE BANK OF WINSLOW,
By WM. H. BAGG, Vice-President.

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY,
By C. A. HANDS, Agent.

(Corporate Seal)

Attest: GEO. H. KEYES, Jr.,

Cashier.

(Corporate Seal)

Attest: H. B. WILKINSON,
Attorney-in-fact.

Approved: August 7, 1923.

C. E. OWENS,
Chairman Board of Supervisors.

JOSEPH PETERSON,
Member of Board.

W. J. CROZER,
Member of Board of Sup.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT "B."

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY.

BALTIMORE.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That we, THE BANK OF WINSLOW, of Win-

slow, Arizona, as Principal, and the MARYLAND
CASUALTY COMPANY, of Baltimore, a corpor-

ation organized under the laws of the State of
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^rarylaiid, witli its i)iinci|»al place of business at

Baltiiiioi-c, Marslaiid, and duly (lualiticd to heroine

surety ujx)!! bonds in the State of Ai'izfnia, as

Burety, are held and lirndy hound unto the Coiuity

of Xavajo, in the penal sum ol Ten 'lliousand

Dollars (,i^lO,UO().00) huvful money of the United

States of Ameriea, for the payment of which, well

and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, oui- suc-

cessors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by

these presents.

Dated this tenth day of August, A. D. 1926.

THK (CONDITION of this obligation is sueh,

that whereas the above named principal, THE
DANK OF WINSLOW, of Winslow, Arizona,

was on the tenth day of August, A. D. 1916, ap-

pointed and designated by the County Treasurer of

the County of Xavajo, State of Arizona, to l)e a

depository of public money for the said County of

Navajo, pursuant to the provisions of the laws of

the State of Arizona in such cases made and pro-

vided :

NOW THKRP:F0RE, if the said THE BANK
OP WINSLOW, of Winslow, Arizona, shall well,

truly and faithfully perform and discharge all

duties and responsibilities now recpiired or that

may hereafter be required of it under any law of

the State of Arizona and will promptly pay out to

the parties entitled thereto all public moneys of the

County of Navajo in its hands or that may come
into its hands, upon lawful demand therefor, and
will, whenever required thereto by law or lawful

demand, pay over to the County Treasurer of the
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County of Navajo public moneys with interest

thereon at the rate of two per cent (2%) per an-

num, computed on daily balances, then this obliga-

tion shall be void, and of no effect, otherwise to be

and remain in full force and virtue.

THE BANK OF WINSLOW,
By WM. H. BAGG, Vice-President.

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY,
By L. E. WHITE, Attorney-in-fact.

Attest: GEO. H. KEYES, Jr.,

Secretary.

Countersigned

:

(Corporate Seal) JOHN M. LONGAN,
Attorney-in-fact.

Approved

:

C. E. OWENS,
Chairman Board of Supervisors,

Navajo County, Arizona.

JOSEPH PETERSON,
Member of Board.

W. J. CROZIER,
Member of Board of Sup.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT ''C."

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY.

BALTIMORE.

BOND.
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we, THE BANK OF WINSLOW, of Wins-

low, Arizona, as principal, and the MARYLAND
CASUALTY COMPANY, of Baltimore, a cor-
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])()rnti(>n <)i'fr«*nHZ('(] imdcr the laws of the State of

Maryland, with ils ))iiii('ij)al place of business at

Haltinioic, Mainland, and duly (jualified to become

sui'cty iijKin bonds in the State of Arizona, as

surety, arc held and tiiinly l)()un(l unto the County

of Navajo, State of Arizona, in the penal sum of

Ten 11i()usaiid Dollars, (^10,000.00) lawful money

of the I'nited States of America, for the pa>Tnent

of wliicli, well and truly to be made, we bind our-

selves, our successors and assigns, jointly and sev-

erally, tirmly by these presents.

Dated this eighth day of January, A. U. 1920.

THE CONDITION of this oldigation is such, that

whereas the above named principal, THE BANK
OF WINSLOW, of Winslow, Arizona, was on the

eighth day of January, 1920, appointed and desig-

nated by the County Treasurer of the County of

Navajo, State of Arizona, with the consent of the

Board of Supervisors of Navajo County, Arizona,

to be a depository of public money for the said

County of Navajo, Arizona, pursuant to the pro-

visions of the laws of the State of Arizona in such

cases made and provided:

NOW, TIIEHEFOKK, if the said THE BANK
OF WINSLOW, of Winslow, Arizona, shall well,

truly and faithfully perform and discharge all

duties and responsibilities now required, or that

may hereafter be recjuired of it under any law of

the State of Arizona, and will promptly pay out to

the parties entitled thereto, all public moneys of

the County of Navajo in its hands or that may come

into its hands, upon lawful demand thereafter, and
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will, whenever required thereto by law or lawful

demand, pay over to the County Treasurer of the

County of Navajo, public moneys with interest

thereon at the rate of two per cent (2%) per an-

num, computed on daily balances, then this obliga-

tion shall be void and of no effect, otherwise to be

and remain in full force and virtue.

THE BANK OF WINSLOW,
By WM. H. BAGG, President.

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY,
By M. H. FOSTER,

Attorney-in-fact.

Attest: GEO. H. KEYES, Jr.,

Secretary.

Countersigned

:

(Corporate Seal) By JOHN M. LONGAN,
Attorney-in-fact.

Approved: August 7, 1923.

C. E. OWENS,
Chairman Board of Supervisors,

Navajo County, Arizona.

JOSEPH PETERSON,
Member of Board.

W. J. CROZIER,
Member of Board of Sup.
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PLAINTIFF'S KX 11 1 HIT 'M)."

MAHYI.AXI) CASITAI/I'V COMPANY.

BALTIMORE.

BOND.
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we, TIIF BANK OF WINSLOW, of Wins-

low, Arizona, as priucipal, and the MARYLAND
CASUALTY COMPANY, of Baltimore, a corpora-

ti(»n organized Tnider the laws of the State of Mary-

land, with its principal phiee of business at Balti-

more, Mai-yland, and (hily (pialified to become

surety ui)()n bonds in the State of Arizona, as

surety, are held aJid firmly bound unto the County

of Navajo, State of Arizona, in the penal sum of

Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) lawful

money of the United States of America, for the

payment of which, well and truly to be made, we

bind ourselves, our successors and assigns, jointly

and severally, finnly by these presents.

Dated this thirteenth day of June, A. D. 1921.

THE CONDITION of this obligation is such,

that whereas the above named principal, THP]

BANK OF WINSLOW, of Winslow, Arizona,

was on the sixth day of June, 1921, appointed and

designated by the County Treasurer of the County

of Navajo, State of Arizona, with the consent of

the Board of Supervisors, of Navajo County, Ari-

zona, to be a depository of public money for the

said County of Navajo, Arizona, pursuant to the

provision of the laws of the State of Arizona in

such cases made and provided:
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NOW, THEREFORE, if the said THE BANK
OF WINSLOW, of Winslow, Arizona, shall well,

truly and faithfully perform and discharge all

duties and responsibilities now required, or that

may hereafter be required of it under any law of

the State of Arizona, and will promptly pay out to

the parties entitled thereto, all public moneys of

the County of Navajo in its hands or that may come

into its hands, upon lawful demand therefor, and

will, whenever required thereto by law or lawful

demand, pay over to the County Treasurer of the

County of Navajo, public moneys with interest

thereon at the rate of two per cent (2%) per an-

num, computed on daily balances, then this obliga-

tion shall be void and of no effect, otherwise to be

and remain in full force and virtue.

THE BANK OF WINSLOW,
By WM. H. BAGO,

President.

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY,
By CHARLES MACBETH,

Attorney-in-fact.

Countersigned by:

(Corporate Seal) JOHN M. LONGAN,
Attorney-in-fact.

Approved: August 7, 1923,

C. E. OWENS,
Chairman Board of Supervisors,

Navajo County, Arizona.

JOSEPH PETERSON,
Member of Board.

W. J. CROZER,
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Monilior f>f Bonid of Sup.

Ap])r<)V('(] : July (>, 19121.

C. E. OWENS,
Chairman Board (f Supervisors.

Navajo County, Arizona.

Filed dune 20, 1921. M. K. Tanner, Clerk

Board of Supervisors, Navajo County, Arizona.
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This is a copy of the Navajo County reg-

istered warrants held by Apache County as security

for deposits with the St. John's branch of the Bank
of Winslow.

GEORGE JARVIS,
County Treasurer.

O. K.—E. M. W.

(Title of Court and Cause.)

MOTION TO DISMISS FIRST AMENDED
BILL OF COMPLAINT.

Come now the defendants, A. T. Hammons,

Superintendent of Banks of the State of Arizona,

J. S. Dodson, Special Deputy Superintendent of

Banks of the State of Arizona, and move this Court

that this action be dismissed for want of equity

herein and particularly upon the following grounds

to-wit

:

1. That the bill filed herein by the plaintiff

does not state any facts sufficient to constitute a

cause of action against the said defendants or for

the relief demanded therein.

2. That this Court has no jurisdiction of the

matters set out in the said bill in that all of the

said matters are involved in a proceeding entitled

^'In the Matter of the Liquidation of the Bank of

Winslow, Winslow, Arizona, having branch offices

at Holbrook, Arizona, and St. Johns, Arizona,

File No. 1865 in the Superior Court of the State
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of ATi/niia. in and tor tlic Connly of Navajo, tlic

said Su])«'ii(»r Court of llic Slate of Ai'izona, in and

for the County of Xava.j(» hcini; a ('ouit of coinpe-

ti'iil jurisdiction over the said defendant as Ej-

O/ficio ri'ceiver (»f tlie Hank (d" Winslow and iii-

soh'ent banking- eorjxuat ion jtuisuant to the laws

of tlu' State of Ai'izona and that said (hd'endants

are acting- un(h'r tlie ordeis of said Su|)eri(»r ("ourt

of Navajo County, Arizoiui, and the property and

matters refei-red to in said Amended Hill of Com-

])Iaint are a part of the corpus of the Estate of The

J^ank of Winsh)w, undei- su])ervisi()n of last-named

Couit.

W1IKK»KF()K*K, tlie said defendants will ever

])ray.

SAPP and

MeLAUOHLIN,
Solieitors for the Defendants A. T. liannnons, Su-

|)erintendent of Banks of the State of Ari-

zona and J. S. Dodson, Special Deputy Su-

perintendent of Hanks of the State of Ari-

zona.

O. K.— E. M. W.

(Title of Court and Cause.)

ANSWEK TO FIRST AMENDED HiEE OF
COMFEAINT.

Come now A. T. llammons, Sii})erintendent of

Banks of the State of Arizona, and J. S. Dodson,

Special Deputy Superintendent of Banks of Ari-
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zona, two of the above-named defendants and for

answer herein allege and show to the Court with-

out waiving the Motion to Dismiss filed herein

:

I.

That the said answering defendants expressly

now and at all times hereinafter save and reserve

unto themselves any and all manner of profits and

advantages of exception which may have been had

or taken or which may be had or taken to the many
errors, uncertainties, imperfections and insuffi-

ciencies in the Plaintiff's First Amended Bill of

Complaint filed herein and particularly reserve all

manner of benefits and advantages of exception

as to this Court, not having jurisdiction of sub-

ject manner of this action and of these defendants

in the capacity in which sued.

II.

These answering defendants expressly allege

herein that this Court has no jurisdiction of the

matters set out in the said bill in that all of the

matters therein set out and alleged are involved in

a certain proceeding entitled "IN THE MATTER
OF THE LIQUIDATION OF THE BANK OF
WINSLOW, Winslow, Arizona, having branch of-

fices at Holbrook, Arizona and St. Johns, Arizona."

File No. 1865 in the Superior Court of the State

of Arizona in and for the County of Navajo, said

court being a court of competent jurisdiction and

the defendant A. T. Hammons, Superintendent of

Banks of the State of Arizona, herein having by

operation of law, and proper proceedings in said
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court piiisuaiit 1<> statute, Ix'cii a{)poiiit('<l as re-

(•oi\('r of tlic IJaiik nl' W'iiislow, an insolvent hank-

'ui'fX corporation of the State of Arizona, and being

tlierel)y tlie Keeeivei- of said Hank of Winslow,

under and j)ursnant to the laws of the State of

Arizona, and nndei- the juiisdiction and control of

the said Superior Court (d' Navajo County, Ari-

zona, as a receiver of the said IJank and that the

])ro|)erty and thiui^s referred to in this action are

a part id' the corpus of the estate of said Bank of

AViuslow aforesaid and as such aie now in cn.stodid

J('(/is in the said i"ecei\'ershij) proceedings.

III.

That the answering defendants adnnt the allega-

tions of Paragraph No. J of the Fii*st Amended Bill

of Coinj)laint tiled herein hy the plaintiff ami also

admit the allegations of Paragrai)h No. II of the

said First Amended Bill of Complaint filed herein

hy the Plaintiff, and also admit the allegations in

l^aragraph No. Ill (d' the said first amended bill

of comj)laint Hied herein l)y the i)laintiif.

IV.

That the answering defendants admit the allega-

tions of Paragraph No. IV, of the First Amended
Bill of Com})laint tiled herein by the plaintiff in

so far as the same sets out that there was on de-

posit in the Baidv of Winsh)w fimds of the County

of Navajo County in the sum of Fifty-two Thou-

sand One Hundred Sixty-four and 21-100 ($52,-

164.121) Dollars l)ut the defendants on information

and belief deny all other allegations of the said

Paragraph No. IV.
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V.

The answering defendants deny the allegations of

the Paragraph No. V of the said First Amended
Bill of Complaint filed herein by the plaintiff and

expressly allege that the only registered warrants

and only warrants of Navajo County held by the

Bank of Winslow on October 4th, 1924, are as set

out in the defendants' Exhibit "A" hereto annexed

and forming a part of this answer excepting such

warrants as are set out in said First Amended Bill

of Complaint as having been pledged with the

County Treasurer of Apache County, Arizona, and

the answering defendants further and expressly deny

that the said warrants were in form demand notes

of the defendant Navajo County and that they con-

stituted promises to pay on presentation by the

payee or on his order to the said defendant Geo. J.

Schaefer and expressly deny that they were proper

subject of offset as against the debt of Bank of

Winslow to the County of Navajo on account of

said deposits of said County in the said Bank and

the answering defendants further expressly allege

that the said warrants were each of them expressly

drawn against the particular funds of Navajo

County which are designated on Exhibit and which

were generally known as follows : SALARY FUND,
GENERAL FUND, ROAD FUND, EXPENSE
FUND, INDIGENT FUND, SCHOOL GEN-
ERAL FUND AND MANUAL TRAINING
FUND, and these answering defendants expi-essly

allege that none of such funds, as such, were on de-
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posit with tile IJaiik of Wiiislow on October 4th,

1924, or at any oihcr time material to tliis action

and do further expressly alleu:<' tlial the said war-

rants vvitli tlie exceptions of warrants Nos. 2(M),

2U5, 2()4, 172, 191, ISli, 15<), 1S4, 191, 17:i, 1S7,

1S(), 2()S, 211, 209, KSU, 179, ISo, 170, l.")2. 150,

157, 210, ari' not made in favor of the Hank of

Winslow as i)ayee and that therefore and thereby

the said warrants except as to those made pay-

al)le to the Bank of Winslow, aic not receivabfe

in payment of all debts to Navajo Comity, Ari-

zona, as un<l('r the provisions of the laws of Ari-

zona such were receivable in payment of debts and

taxes due the County only from the person named

therein as ])ayee.

VI.

That the answering defendants deny that the

l)laintift' made due demand on the defendant d, S.

Dodson as agent of the Superintendent of Banks

in charge of the Hank of Winshtw. to allow the

said offset and on information and belief deny

that any tender was made by the said plaintiff to

the said Geo. J. Sehaefer and further deny all

the allegations of the Paragra])h No. () of said

First Amended Hill of Complaint of plaintiff except

in so far as the same is admitted by other allega-

tions of this answer.

VII.

These defendants expressly allege that all the

County Warrants and Iin])rovenient Bonds which

were pledged to secure deposits of Navajo County,

Arizona, if any, were so pledged expressly and
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only for the purpose of securing the said Xavajo

County for the excess of such deposit if any over

and above the amount secured by the bond of Mary-

land Casualty with the express understanding that

such pledge should remain in force and effect only

so long as such deposit was in such excess and

solely and only for such excess and that it was

expressly understood by The Bank of Winslow and

said Navajo County that when no such excess de-

posit existed then and in that event all such

pledged property was to be returned to the Bank
of Winslow and was to be free of any such pledge

or obligation and that on the 4th day of October,

1924, there was only the sum of Twelve Thousand

One Hundred Sixty-four and 20-100 ($12,164.20)

Dollars on deposit in excess of the bond issued

by Maryland Casualty Company and said sum be-

ing secured by such warrants and bonds and that

therefore defendant Sehaefer properly returned to

defendant Dodson the bonds referred to in Para-

graph Seven of First Amended Bill of Complaint,

as there was left on hand in the possession of de-

fendant Sehaefer more than enough to cover the

said excess deposit and these defendants expressly

deny that any action on the part of defendant

Sehaefer operated to relieve the plaintiff' from any

liability whatsoever.

Yin.
That these defendants are entitled to the return

from defendants George J. Sehaefer, Treasurer and

Ex-Officio Tax Collector of Navajo County, of all

warrants and bonds held by him in excess of Twelve
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'lliousand One lluiidri'd Sixty-four and 20-100

(.$1LM()4.2(0 Dollars and that all such warrants

and bonds in excess of said sum are not >o ph-ducd

and ai-e |n-o|)ei ly a |)ait (»f the rorjms of the Estate

of Tile Dank (d' W'inslow, an insolvent hankini^

coipoiat ion. free and ch'ar (d" all i)le(lu,(' oi' lien

of ])led,u"e whatsoexcr and that if said defendant

Schaider has sold and disposed of such Wari'ants

and Donds in excess of said smn of Twelve Thou-

sand One Hundred Sixty-four and 20-100 ($12,-

1()4.20), Dollars he should he reipiired to aecoiint

to these answerinu defendants for such excess, but

that these defendants leave plaintiff to strict pi'oof

of all su(di allegations as these defendants are with-

out knowledge or information therein.

IX.

These defendants adnnt that certain warrants

were ])led,2:ed with the County Treasurer of Apache

County, substantially as alleged in First Amended

JJill of Complaint, hut as to other allegations of

Paragraph Numbered Ten of said First Amended

Bill of Com])laint these defendants leave the ]dain-

ti ff to strict i)roof thereof and to the determina-

tion of this coui't.

X.

That except as hereinbefore expressly admitted,

(jualitied or explaiiu'd these defendants deny all

the allegations of First Amended I'ill of ( 'om-

jdaint.

WHEREFORE, the answering defendants pray

this Court

:
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1st: That the plaintiff take nothing by reason

of this action and that the defendants have and

recover of the plaintiff their costs and disburse-

ments by reason of this action.

2nd: That defendant George J. Schaefer be re-

quired by and order of this Court to surrender

to defendant A. T. Hammons, Superintendent of

Banks of the State of Arizona, and J. S. Dodson,

Special Deputy Superintendent of Banks of Ari-

zona, all pledged bonds and warrants in the excess

of the sum of Twelve Thousand One Hundred

Sixty-four and 20-100 ($12,164.20) Dollars, now

held by him from the Bank of Winslow.

3rd: That these defendants have all equitable

relief in the premises.

SAPP & McLaughlin,
Solicitors of the Defendants A. T. Hammons, Super-

intendent of Banks of the State of Arizona, and

J. S. Dodvson, Special Deputy Superintendent

of Banks of Arizona.

O. K.—E. M. W.
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Interest accrual at the Rate of $1,83 per day from

February 23d, 1925.

O. K.—E. M. W.

Regular October, 1924, Term—Phoenix.

In the United States District Court in and for the

District of Arizona.

(Minute Entry of Thursday, February 26, 1925.)

HONORABLE F. C. JACOBS,
United States District Judge, Presiding.

(E.-93—Prescott.)

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY, a Cor-

poration,

vs.

A. T. HAMMONS et al..

Complainant,

Defendants.

PROCEEDINGS OF HEARING ON APPLI-
CATION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNC-
TION, ETC.

Samuel L. Pattee, Esquire, appears on behalf

of the plaintiff, and Messrs. Sidney Sapp and D.

E. McLaughlin, appear for the defendants, A. T.

Hammons and J. S. Dodson, and P. A. Sawyer,

Esquire, appears for the defendant Navajo County.

On motion of counsel for the plaintiff it is OR-
DERED that Francis C. Wilson, Esq., be entered

as associate counsel for the plaintiff.
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DefVndaiits' iiiotion to distniss the hill <»f vi)U\-

])laiiit luTcin is licaid and ar^iu'd by ri'Spt'ctive

counsel, \vli('i'('up(»n, it is

OI\*I)Kl\Kl) that said motion to disnnss Im* and

the sainc is herein- (h'liicd on all urounds. Excep-

tion is cntcicd to said luliiiu hy defendants.

Tile a})plication for i)relinnnai-\ oi- inteilocutory

injnnction is now heard and ainuecl by respective

counsel, whereupon, it is

()l\*l)l^^liiKJ) that said applicati(>n be and tlie same

is hereby granted. The defendants except to said

ruling of the Court.

It is now stipidated by and ])etween the respective

counsel in o])en court that the present bond is suffi-

cient until the final deteraiination of the matter,

and the]'eu])on, it is

OK'DKKEI) that further hearinu" or trial of this

matter be and the same is hereby set for the 18tli

day of .March, 1925.

(). K.— K. M. W.

Regular Octol)er, 1924, Term—At Phoenix.

(Minute Entry of Friday, March i:3th, 192.').)

IIOXOK\\P>LE F. (\ JACOBS,

United States District Judu(\ Presiding.

(Court and (^uise.) E.-93—(Presectt.)

It is ordered that the order heretofore entered

on February 26, 1925, setting this case for hearing

on Marcli IS, 1925, be and the same is vacated and

set aside.

0. K.—E. M. W.
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Regular October, 1924, Term—At Phoenix.

(Minute Entry of Saturday, March 21, 1925.)

HONORABLE F. C. JACOBS,

United States District Judge, Presiding.

The plaintiff's motion to require the defendants

to produce certain papers, documents and books for

inspection, comes on regularly for hearing, Samuel

L. Pattee, Esq., appears as solicitor for the plain-

tiff, and D. E. McLaughlin, Esq., appears as solici-

tor for the defendants. The motion is duly heard

and by the Court granted, counsel to prepare and

present necessary order for signature of the Judge.

0. K.—E. M. W.

Regular March, 1925, Term—At Prescott.

(Minute Entry of Monday, July 6, 1925.)

HONORABLE F. C. JACOBS,

United States District Judge, Presiding-.

Defendants' Motion to Dismiss First Amended
Bill of Complaint comes on for hearing this date.

No one appears for either party. Whereupon, said

matter is submitted to the Court, and the Court

having fully considered the same,

DOES NOW ORDER that said Motion be,

and the same is hereby denied. Exception to said

ruling of the Court is saved to Defendants.

0. K.—E. M. W.
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Ke^nilar Octnbcr, 192;'), Tciiii—At I'liocnix.

(Minute Entry of Saturday, Dec 5, 1925.)

ITONOK^AHLK F. (
". JA('()P>S,

United States District .Jiul^e, I 'residing.

(Court and Cause.) (E.-93—Preseott.)

W. K. l\yan, FCsci-, appeal's specially for the de-

fendants. Fi-ancis Wilson, Esq., appears for the

})laintiff.

IT IS ()IU)EHED that this case he set for trial

January Hth, 1926, at 10 o'clock A. M.

IT IS Kl'inTIKK OKDFREI) that this case be

transferred to the Phoenix Division for trial.

(). K.— K. M. W.

Keffular October, 192.'), Term—At Phoenix.

(Minute Entry of Wednesday, dan. 6, 1926.)

HONORABLE F. C. JACOBS,

Tnited States District Judge, Presiding.

(Court and Cause.) (E.-93—Preseott.)

This cause comes on regularly for trial at this

time and place. Samuel L. Pattee, Es(iuire, and

F. E. Wilson, Esquire, appear for the plaintiff,

D. E. McLaughlin, Esquire, a})pears for the de-

fendants Ilannnons and Dodson. W. E. Ryan,

Esquire, is present for the defendant Navajo

County. Isaac Barth, Esquire, ai)pears for Apache

County, Intervenor. Henderson Stockton, Esquire,

appears for Benjamin Brown, Jr., National Surety

Company, and Fidelity and Deposit Cimipany, In-

terveuors, and tiles Motion to intervene, and said
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Motion is set for hearing at 11 o'clock A. M. this

date.

On motion of Samuel L. Pattee, for the plaintiff,

the Order to Show Cause is ORDERED discharged,

said defendants Apache County and George Jarvis,

County Treasurer, having filed complaint in inter-

vention herein.

By consent of all counsel trial of this matter is

continued to Thursday, January 7th, 1926, at 10

o'clock A. M., that stipulation as to certain matters

may be agreed upon between counsel.

Subsequently, the application of Benjamin

Brown, Jr., National Surety Company, and Fidelity

and Deposit Company for permission to intervene

comes on for hearing, Henderson Stockton, Esquire,

appearing for the said intervenors.

Arguments of respective counsel are heard on

said application to intervene and the objection of

Navajo County, defendant to said application;

whereupon, the Court being advised in the premises

overrules said objection and enters the following

Order granting said motion to intervene. Defend-

ants except to said ruling.

(Here appears signed Order permitting Ben-

jamin Brown, Jr., et al., to Intervene and

plead.)

O. K.—E. M. W.
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lu-mil.ii- October, 1925, 'I'ciiii—At IMh.ciiix.

(Minute Kiiliy «.f 'riiui->(la\, Jan. 7, 192(1.)

hon'ohabll: k. c. ja(()P>s,

United States Disti'iet Jiidtic, Presidinir.

(Court and Cause.) (E.-93— I'reseott.)

This cause conies on reuularly foi' trial this day,

]>ursuanl to recess. The rollo\vin<;- counsel are

present: Francis E. Wilson, P^scpiire, and Sanniel L.

Pattce, Esquii-e, foi- llie i)]aintitT; I). V.. McLau<i;h-

lin, Ks(|uire, loi- the dctVndanls A. T. Ilaninions,

and d. S. Dodson : W. 1"]. Ryan, Es([uii*e, foi* the de-

fendant Navajo County; Isaac Hartli, Escpiire, for

the Intervenors Apache County and Geoi-o-c Jarvis;

Henderson Stockton, Esipiire, for the Tntei-venors

Benjamin Brown, Jr., National Surety Company,

and Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland.

All i)arties announcing- ready for trial the follow-

ing- proceedings are had

:

I). A. Little is duly sworn as Court reporter.

Plaintiif reads Bill of Com])laint and makes state-

uKMit of its ease.

1). K. McLaughlin, Ks(|uii-e, reads Answer (d' the

defendants A. T. Ilanuiions and J. S. Dodson. W.
E. Kyan, Escjuii-e, reads the Answer of the defend-

ants Navajo County and George J. Sehaefer. L^aae

Earth makes statement of the case of the Inter-

venors Apache County and George Jarvis.

Henderson Stockton, Esquiie, reads Answer and
makes statement for the Intervenors Benjamin
Brown, .Ir., National Surety Coni])any, and the

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland.
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The defendants Navajo County and George J.

Schaefer move for the dismissal of the complaint

of the Intervenors Benjamin Brown, Jr., National

Surety Company, and the Fidelity and Deposit

Company of Maryland, whereupon,

IT IS ORDERED that said motion to dismiss is

denied, and said defendants except to the ruling of

the Court.

The defendants A. T. Hammons and J. S. Dod-

son join in the said motion to dismiss and except to

the ruling denying the said motion.

PLAINTIFF'S CASE.

S. B. Smith is duly sworn and examined for the

plaintiff.

Plaintiff's Exhibits 1 to 153 inclusive, are marked
for identification.

George J. Schaefer is duly sworn and examined

for the plaintiff.

Defendant's Exhibit "A" is marked for identifi-

cation.

Plaintiff's Exhibits 154 to 163 are marked for

identification.

Plaintiff' 's Exhibits Nos. 1 to 162, inclusive, are

admitted in evidence and filed.

Defendant's Exhibits '^B" and ''C" are admitted

and filed.

Time for adjournment having arrived, further

trial is ORDERED recessed to 10 o'clock A. M.,

Friday, January 8th, 1926.

O. K.—E. M. W.
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Regular October, VSlo, Term—At IMiociiix.

(Minute Entry nf Friday, January S, 192().)

H0N01.'Ai;iJ-: l'\ C. .JACOBS,

United States Distiid dud^e, l^residinp:.

Respecti\(' counsel and ail pai'ties present pur-

suant to recess of yesterda\ , and proceedings of

trial are now resumed.

PLAIXTIP^F'S CASE, Continued:

Examination of (Jeorge J. Schaefer is now re-

sumed,

l^laintiff's Exhibit No. 163 is now admitted in

evidence and tiled. A. T. Planunons, Defendant

herein, is sworn and examined.

S. B. Smith is now recalled and examination is

now had as to Apache County. Plaintiff's Exhibit

No. 164 is admitted and filed.

Thereui)on. tlie PLAINTIFF RESTS.
Defendants' original Motions to Dismiss ease as

to ex])ense account warrants is now ORDERED
DENIED. Exce])tions entered for defendants.

Motion of the Intei'venor Benjamin Brown, Jr.,

the National Surety Com})any, and the Fidelity

and Deposit Company of Maryland, for Judgment
in the case, is ORDERED DENIED. Exceptions

entered for said InttMvenors.

Motions of Intervenors Apache County to dismiss

the complaint and for vacation of the restraining

order is now ORDERED DENIED; exceptions en-

tered for said Intervenor.
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Motion of Navajo County to dismiss is OR-
DERED DENIED; exception entered for said Na-

vajo County.

DEFENDANT'S CASE.
Miss Roberta Tandy is duly sworn and examined

for the defendants.

J. S. Dodson, defendant, is duly sworn and ex-

amined.

Charles F. Care is duly sworn and examined.

Whereupon, the hour of adjournment having ar-

rived, further proceedings are Ordered continued

to Saturday, January 9th, 1926, at 10 o'clock A. M.

O. K.—E. M. W.

Regular October, 1925, Term—At Phoenix.

(Minute Entry of Saturday, Jan. 9th, 1926.)

HONORABLE F. C. JACOBS,

United States District Judge, Presiding.

All parties are present and by respective counsel,

whereupon, proceedings of trial are resumed, and

further arguments of respective counsel are had

before the Court upon the matters so presented.

Thereupon, further proceedings herein are con-

tinued to Monday, January 11th, 1926, at 10 o'clock

A. M., of said day.

O. K.—E. M. W.
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l\i'giilar Octolx'i', l}i2.'), TLini—At l*li(.(iiix.

(Miiintc Kiiti-yof .MoikI.in , ,I.-iiiu.-iiy II, \\Y1(\.)

HONOHAiU.K l\ C. .lACOr.S,

United States Disliict Jud^e, i'residing.

(Couil and Cause.) ( E.-9:J— Preseott.)

All partio are [)resi'nt and hy respeetive counsel,

whereupon, further jiroeeedin^s of trial are resumed

pursuant to recess heretofore taken, and f'ui-ther

arguments of <M>nnsel on the niattei's hefoic the

Court are now Iieai'd.

The defendants now call A. (
'. Xoi'ton, who is

duly sworn and examined.

The defendant Navajo County rests.

Defendant's Kxhihit "K," which is suhseipu-ntly

corrected to "D," is admitted in evidence and tiled.

A. T. llanunons, defendant, heretofore sworn and

examined, is recalled f«n- further exaniiiuition.

Thereupon, the defendant A. T. Ilaniinons and J. S,

Dodson HEST.
The IMaintitT recalls Ceorire J. Schaefer for fur-

ther exannnation.

The hour of adjournment Inning anived, it is

OKM)p]RED that further proceedings be continued

to 9:45 A. M., Tuesday, January VI, 192(3.

O. K.—E. M. W.
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Regular October, 1925, Term—At Phoenix.

(Minute Entry of Tuesday, January 12, 1926.)

HONORABLE F. C. JACOBS,

United States District Judge, Presiding.

(Court and Cause.) (E.-93—Prescott.)

All parties are present and by respective counsel,

whereupon, further proceedings of trial are had

pursuant to recess heretofore taken. Further argu-

ments are had before the Court.

The Intervenor Apache County offers Exhibits

Nos. I to 157, inclusive, which are admitted and

filed.

IT IS ORDERED that Attorney Isaac Barth is

permitted to withdraw said original exhibits upon

the giving of proper receipt therefor, and to pre-

pare and file instead certified copies thereof.

Thereupon, ALL PARTIES REST.
Arguments of Counsel for A. T. Hammons and

Navajo County are now made to the Court, and the

Court ORDERS that the matters stand submitted

without further arguments.

ORDER allow five days and five days for filing of

briefs.

O. K.—E. M. W.
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Regular October, 1925, Term—At Phoenix.

(Minute Entry of Friday, February 12, 1926.)

HONORABLE F. C. JACOBS,

United States District Judge, Presiding.

(Court and Cause.) (E.-93—Prescott.)

ORDER FOR DECREE.
The Court renders a decree in favor of complain-

ant allowing a set-off of the amount of General

School Warrants $6,313.38; Salary Fund Warrants

$2,311.04; Road Fund Warrants in the sum of

$792.95; making a total of $9,417.37, together with

interest from the date of the closing of the Bank
of Winslow; that the improvement bonds of the

Town of Winslow in the sum of $7,000.00 par value

be returned by the defendant Hammons to the

County Treasurer of Navajo County; that the

amount thereof be set-off in favor of the plaintiff;

making a total set-off of $16,417.37.

A decree in favor of Apache County and against

the complainant as to the Navajo County warrants

pledged to Apache County prior to the 4th day of

October, 1924.

A decree in favor of intervening petitioner

George Jarvis, Treasurer and Ex-offlcio Tax Col-

lector of Apache County, and the intervening peti-

tioners Benjamin Brown, Jr., the National Surety
Company, and Fidelity and Deposit Company of

Maryland, for the relief prayed for in their re-

spective intervening petitions to the extent that the

said George Jarvis, Treasurer of Apache County,
shall retain possession of the registered warrants
pledged to it ; to apply the same in the manner pro-
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vided and permitted by the nature and character of

the pledge and by the law of Arizona.

That the restraining order heretofore entered

be dissolved.

Dated this 12th day of February, 1926.

Thereupon, IT IS ORDERED BY THE COURT
that exceptions to the findings of the Court be

entered on behalf of all the parties to the action.

O. K.—E. M. W.

Regular October, 1925, Term—At Phoenix.

(Minute Entry of Tuesday, Feb. 23, 1926.)

HONORABLE F. C. JACOBS,

United States District Judge, Presiding.

(Court and Cause.) (E.-93—Prescott.)

On motion of D. E. McLaughlin, Esquire, appear-

ing on behalf of defendants, it is

ORDERED that time of all defendants is hereby

extended Twenty (20) days in addition to the time

allowed by law within which to prepare, settle and

file Bills of Exceptions herein.

O. K.—E. M. W.

Regular October, 1925, Term—At Phoenix.

(Minute Entry of Saturday, March 13, 1926.)

HONORABLE F. C. JACOBS,

United States District Judge, Presiding.

(Court and Clause.) (E.-93—Prescott.)

On motion of W. E. Ryan, Esquire, IT IS OR-
DERED that defendants, time herein to prepare,
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settle and file Bill of Exceptions is hereby extended

to and including the 29th day of March, 1926.

O. K.—E. M. W.

Regular October, 1925, Term—At Phoenix.

(Minute Entry of Saturday, March 27, 1926.)

HONORABLE F. C. JACOBS,

United States District Judge, Presiding.

(Court and Cause.) (E.-93—Prescott.)

Will. E. Ryan, Esquire, appears for the defendant

Navajo County, and on motion of said counsel,

IT IS ORDERED that time of the defendant is

extended ten (10) days from and after the 29th day

of March, 1926, within which to prepare, serve,

settle and file Bill of Exceptions herein.

0. K.—E. M. W.

The United States District Court for the District of

Arizona.

United States of America,

District of Arizona,—ss.

I, C. R. McFall, Clerk of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the District of Arizona, do hereby

certify that the above and foregoing is a true, per-

fect, and complete copy of Minute Entries in case

No. 93-Equity (Prescott), Maryland Casualty

Company, Plaintiff, vs. A. T. Hammons, et al.. De-

fendants, for dates as follows: February 26, March
13, 21, July 6, December 5, 1925, January 6, 7, 8, 9,

11, 12, February 12, 23, March 13, and 27th, 1926,

as the same appears from the original record re-

maining in my office.
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WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Court

this 10th day of April, 1926.

[Seal] C. R. McFALL,
Clerk.

By M. R. Malcolm,

Deputy.

0. K.—E. M. W.

STATEMENT OF EVIDENCE UNDER
EQUITY RULE No. 75.

BE IT REMEMBERED that the trial of the

above-entitled cause came on regularly to be heard

before the Honorable F. C Jacobs, Judge of the

District Court of the United States in and for the

District of Arizona, sitting without a jury, at the

court rooms of said court in the Federal Building,

City of Phoenix, State and District of Arizona, on

this 7th day of January, 1926, at 10:00 o'clock A. M.

Francis C. Wilson, Esq., and Messrs. Curley &
Pattee appearing as counsel for the plaintiff;

Messrs. Sapp & McLaughlin appearing as counsel

for the defendants, A. T. Hammons and J. S. Dod-

son; W. E. Ryan, Esq., John W. Murphy, Esq., At-

torney General of the State of Arizona, and P. A.

Sawyer, Esq., County Attorney of Navajo County,

State of Arizona, appearing as counsel for the de-

fendants, George J. Schaefer, and Navajo County,

Isaac Barth, Esq., and Maurice Barth, Esq., County

Attorney of Apache County, State of Arizona, ap-

pearing as coimsel for Intervenors George Jarvis

and Apache County ; Messrs. Stockton & Perry and

Thomas A. Flynu, Esq., api^earing as counsel for
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Intervenors Benjamin Brown, Jr., National Surety

Company and Fidelity & Deposit Company of Mary-

land.

BE IT REMEMBERED ALSO that the plead-

ings of the parties plaintiff and original defend-

ants were then read to the Court, and thai; a stipu-

lation entitled in the cause, but not signed, was

read to the Court and stipulated as true by the

plaintiff and the original defendants, in words and

figures as follows, to wit:

The parties in interest, through their respective

attorneys and subject to such objections as may be

urged as to the relevancy, materiality and compe-

tency of any of the facts hereinafter and subject

to such motions to strike as might be made to in-

clude any of the facets referred to in connection

with facts shown by evidence, agreed as follows:

That the first paragraph of the amended bill is

true; that the allegations of paragraph II, of the

amended bill is true; that the allegations of para-

graph III, of the amended bill are true a-s of the

date when the complaint was filed; agree that at

the date of the suspension of the Bank of Winslow

there was on deposit to the credit of Navajo County

the sum of fifty-one thousand two hundred nine and

75-100 dollars ($51,209.75), of which fifteen thou-

sand ($15,000.00) dollars was inactive funds which

had been in the bank from prior to January 1, 1923,

and the balance was active funds of said county;

that the remaining allegations of paragraph IV
are subject to proof except as to items of figures

and amounts hereinafter specified; that the allega-
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tions of paragraph V are correct in figures as to

amount of warrants hereinafter stated; that it is

admitted that at the time of the suspension of The
Bank of Winslow the Superintendent of Banks
came into possession of registered warrants of

Navajo County to the amount of ten thousand nine

hundred twenty-two and 44-100 ($10,922.44) dol-

lars; that at said date there was in the possession

of the County Treasurer of Apache County the

sum of eight thousand one hundred ten and 38-100

($8,110.38) dollars of registered warrants of

Navajo County, and that on said date there was in

the possession of George Schaefer, County Treas-

urer of Navajo County, seven thousand three hun-

dred seventy-nine and 40-100 ($7,379.40) dollars

registered warrants of Navajo County. These

amounts represent the aggregate of all of the war-

rants of Navajo County in dispute in this case.

The parties ai'e left to prove as to the manner in

which said warrants got into the hands of the re-

spective counties or the respective county treasurers

and the purpose for which and the conditions upon

which they are held.

That at the date the Bank of Winslow closed its

doors defendant George Schaefer was in possession

of twelve thousand five hundred nineteen and 60-100

($12,519.60) dollars of improvement bonds of the

Twon of Winslow; that on October 23, 1924, seven

thousand dollars ($7,000.00) of those })onds were re-

turned to the Assistant Bank Examiner Dodson

and five thousand five Imndred nineteen and 60-100

($5,519.60) doHars were sold by defendant Schae-

I
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fer; thart defendant Schaefer also liquidated the

registered warrants referred to as placed in his

hands by The Bank of Winslow, the above seven

thousand three hundred seventy-nine and 40-100

($7,379.40) dollars of said warrants and the pro-

ceeds of such sale and liquidation was applied

on the total deposit of the county w^ith the Bank

of Winslow of above fifty-one thousand two hun-

dred nine and 75-100 ($51,209.75) dollars as to be

a credit thereon. It is not intended by the parties

hereto to stipulate as to any fact bearing upon the

terms, conditions or purposes of aiiy arrangement

under which the above warrants and improvement

bonds came into the possession of the Treasurer

of Navajo Count, leaving all such matters subject

to such proofs and objections thereto as may be

offered on the trial.

Mr. WILSON.—Mr. Ryan ca-lls my attention to

the fact that we apparently stipulated—I do not re-

member just how that came up—but that these wai"-

rants, all of them came into the possession of the

Bank of Winslow prior to its closing in the ordi-

nary and usual course of business which is pursuant

to the law^ of Arizona with reference to the handling

of warrants.
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TESTIMONY OF S. B. SMITH, FOR PLAIN-
TIFF.

S. B. SMITH, who was called as a witness on

behalf of the plaintiff, and being first duly sworn,

testified as follows

:

Direct Examination by Mr. WILSON.

I am Deputy Bank Examiner and have charge

of the records of the Bank of Winslow at this time.

I succeeded Mr. Dodson, former deputy in charge

of the Bank of Winslow; he turned over the docu-

ments and papers of the bank when he went out. I

produce the warrants which came into my hands

at that time.

(Witness produces documents which are marked

for identification, in numerical order, "Plaintiff's

Exhibit I," etc.)

TESTIMONY OF GEORGE J. SCHAEFER,
FOR PLAINTIFF.

Thereupon, Mr. GEORGE J. SCHAEFER was

called as a witness for the plaintiff, and being first

duly sworn, testified ars follows

:

I am Treasurer of Navajo County: went into

office the 1st of January, 1923, and have continued

as such officer ever since. As such Treasurer I had

in my possession records of that county with refer-

ence to the deposits of the county in the Bank of

Winslow, and other records in connection with that

transaction. I produce receipts mid other docu-



vs. Maryland Casualty Compa/ny. 11

(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

ments in connection with those deposits with that

bank before it closed October 4, 1924. Letter dated

March 17, 1924, from the Bank of Winslow, signed

B. B. Neel, is a letter transmitting $2,839.24 of

county of Navajo warrants received by me for the

bank. (Letter marked for identification as Plain-

tiff's Exhibit.)

Mr. WIL80N.—Perhaps I could go on with

something else just temporaiily.

Q. Mr. Schaefer, I hand you list of warrants pur-

porting to be the warrants issued by Navajo County

and registered between October 4, 1923, to October

4, 1924, as unpadd October 4, 1924, and will ask you

if those lists were made in your office and if they

correctly state the condition of your registration

book on the subject for the period covered by them?

A. They were made in my office and I believe

them to be correct.

Mr. WILSON.—If it pleases your Honor, I will

ask the Clerk to mark for identification the four

lists that have been identified by the witness as

correct copies of his records.

The CLERK.—159.

(The other exhibits heretofore offered vy plain-

tiff were marked from 1 to 158 inclusive.)

Mr. ISAAC BARTH.—If the Court please, I

would like to ask counsel if the warrants held by

Apache County are included in that list?

Mr. WILSON.—No. Some are. I will get those

out later. About six, I think.
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(Thereupon, the four exhibits last offered were

marked Plaintife's Exhibits 159, 160, 161 and 162.)

Mr. WILSON.—Q. Mr. Schaefer, I hand you

letter dated March 20, 1924, on the Bsmk of Win-
slow to you as County Treasurer, signed by the

vice-president, and ask you if that was received by

you ?

A. It was.

Mr. WILSON.—Mark for identification this

letter.

The CLERK.—No. 163.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. Mr. Schaefer, I hand you

Plaintiff's Exhibit 162, warrants issued by Navajo

County, Arizona, on the road fund registered Oc-

tober 4, 1923, to October 24, 1924.

The COURT.—Bonds, you say?

Mr. WILSON.—Registered warrants.

The COURT.—Warrants.
Mr. WILSON.—Yes, sir,—and will ask you oi on

October 4, 1924, you had sufficient money in that

fund to pay those warrants?

Mr. RYAN.—Wait sc minute. There is no alle-

gation in the complaint to the contrary but what

all of these— . That is already admitted that they

were all registered warrants. As a matter of la^v,

they are registered warrants until they arc called

by notice, which gives every registered warrant

holder in the order of registration a right to pay-

ment. It is immaterial under the state of the ad-

missions and the pleadings in this case whether he

has o^her funds or any funds at all to pay these
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road warrants. They were registered warrants.

They are in this ease but registered wai-rants, regis-

tered, with all that the law implies and limits as

to the payment of those classes of warrants.

(Arguments by Mr. WILSON and Mr. RYAN.)
The COURT.—The objection is overruled. Do

you want an exception?

Mr. McLAUGrHLIN.—Note an exception by

Hammons and Dodson.

Mr. RYAN.—I should like to present some au-

thorities in support of that.

The COURT.—I don't think I would care to

listen to any.

Mr. RYAN.—I take an exception for the reason

that—assigning the reason that it is a line of evi-

dence that is not within the pleadings and contrary

to the stipulated facts aoid the character of these

warrants.

The COURT.—You already have that in your

objection for the record.

Mr. RYAN.—What?
The COURT.—I say, you have stated the grounds

of your objection already in record. Proceed, Mr.

Wilson.

A. I did. It is in the road fund.

Mr. McLaughlin.—if your Honor please, we

urge also that the best evidence as to the funds

available by the county at that time would be the

books of the county themselves and the official rec-

ords should be produced.

Mr. WILSON.—In answer to that, if your Honor
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please, I asked the Treasurer if he knew whether

he had, as treasurer, sufficient money to pay these

warrants.

The COURT.—He may answer yes or no whether

he knows.

A. Yes.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. Mr. Schaefer, you did have on

that date sufficient money to meet those warrants,

and, if the bank had been open, you could hscve

drawn on the bank for the amount of that total,

$1,861.60?

A. That is, on the road fund?

Q. On the road fund.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I now hand you Plaintiff's Exhibit for identi-

fication marked 160 and will ask you if on the 4th

day of October, 1924, you had sufficient funds in

the salary fund to take up all of the warrants listed

upon that list?

Mr. RYAN.—Same objection, if your Honor

please, as to the books being the best evidence and

irreWanit, incompetent and inunaterial for the rea-

son urged.

The COURT.—Objection is overruled.

Mr. RYAN.—Note an exception.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Exception on behalf of

Hammons and Dodson.

A. I did.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. If the Bank of Winslow, ou

the 4th day of October, 1924, had been open and

transacting business, could you have drawn upon
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that bank a check in payment oT those wai'rants

in the sum of $4,469.58?

A. I could.

Mr. WILSON.—He said yes, sir. Q. Mr. Schae-

fer, I hand you Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 161, marked

for identification and will ask you if you had on

hand on October 4, 1924, sufficient funds to pay

all of the outstanding school warrants at that date

registered and these included in this list?

A. Yes, I did.

Mr. WILSON.—I now offer in evidence

—

Mr. RYAN.—May it be understood your Honor,

that the same objection goes to these as before, so

that I won't have to object.

The COURT.—Yes, and the same ruling.

Mr. RYAN.—Save an exception,

Mr. McLaughlin.—Of all the defendants.

Mr. WILSOTN.—I now offer in evidence school

warrants introduced as Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 to 24.

The COURT.—Inclusive?

Mr. WILSON.—Inclusive. This is the road

fund warrants marked Plaintiff's 25 to 44 inclu-

sive and expense warrants marked 43; Plaintiff's

Exhibits 43 to 95 inclusive.

The CLERK.—45 to 95.

Mr. WILSON.—45 to 95. Pardon me. Plain-

tiff's Exhibits from 96 to 153.

The COURT.—What is that?

Mr. WILSON.—Inclusive.

The COURT.—Expense wan^rants ?
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Mr. WILSON.—The 45 to 95 were expense war-

rants. 96 to 153 were salary wari'ants.

The COURT.—On the road.

Mr. WILSON.—Yes, sir.

The COURT.—That is the road?

Mr. WILSON.—And the road w^arrants were

from 25 to 44 inchisive. School warrants were

from 1 to 24 inclusive.

The COURT.—What are the others?

Mr. AVILSON.—Expense wai-rants were from

45 to 95 inclusive and the salary warrants were

from 96 to 153 inclusive.

The COURT.—Any objections?

Mr. RYAN.—Is he offering them now in evi-

dence ?

INIr. WILSON.—I am offering them now in evi-

dence.

Mr. RYAN.—I would like to have the privilege

of looking at them, so that I can make my objection.

The COURT.—Didn't you folks see those war-

rants during the recess?

Mr. RYAN.—W> did not.

Mr. WILSON.

—

The have been in your posses-

sion all of the time, Mr. Ryan.

Mr. RYAN.—WjTi'rants? Not these.

Mr. WILSON.—Your witness—your client.

Mr. ISAAC BARTIL—They were being marked

by the Clerk.

Mr. RYAN.—I mean the list you are offering in

evidence.
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Mr. WILSON.—I am not offering the list yet,

just these warrants.

(Exhibits handed to counsel for defendants.)

The COURT.—What is the total amount of all

those bonds? Can you telH

Mr. WILSON.—Total of those pledged to the

county ?

The COURT.—Well, those that the witness has

testified he had funds to pay at that time.

Mr. WILSON.—There are twenty—possibly

twenty-three thousand—just about twenty-three

thousand dollars of warrants.

Mr. ISAAC BARTH.—The witness indicates

that that is not correct.

Mr. WILSON.—Well, that does not include the

bonds—I guess I misunderstood your Honor.

Those that he said he had money to pay thaf 3^ou

want ?

The COURT.—Yes, sir.

Mr. WILSON.— $17,203.75 not including inter-

est.

The COURT.—Well, is there any objection to

the introduction of those warrants?

Mr. RYAN.—Same objection that goes to the

line of proof. It opens up a different question

—

any question connected with the ability to pay those

warrants.

The COURT.—Your objection is overruled.

Mr. McLAUGrHLIN.—Which objection is joined

in by all the defendants and exception noted on

behalf of all of them.
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Mr. RYAN.—Exception requested, your Honor.

Mr. WILSON".—I now offer in evidence plain-

tiff's—the last number on that was Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit marked for identification 154. I would like

to read it to your Honor.

Mr. McLaughlin.—May we see that before

it is read, Mr. Wilson, so we can interpose an ob-

jection, if necessary?

(Exhibit handed to counsel for defendants.)

Mr. RYAN.—The objection to this receipt is that

under date of April 23d, it appears to be something-

signed by Mr. George J. Schaefer that he received

from the Arizona State Bank of Winslow, thirty-

five improvement bonds of the Town of Winslow

and there is no showing that The Bank of Winslow

that is now defunct had any connection or interest

in those bonds or with that deposit.

Mr. WILSON.—I will now show that connection.

I did not suppose that counsel would question the

fact that the Bank of Arizona was merged with the

Winslow State Bank before this transaction—before

it closed and all these assets and everything else

went into The Bank of Winslow. If they are going

to ask me to prove it, I will go ahead and prove it.

That will just take a few questions, if your Honor

please, to try to get that in.

Q. Mr. Schaefer, I hand you Plaintiff's Exhibit

No. 154 marked for identification—I will withdraw

that offer at this time, Mr. Reporter—and will ask

you how that came into your possession?
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A. Came to me from, the Arizona State Bank on

receipt of that many bonds as noted there.

Q. And what happened thereafter with the de-

posit of that bank as shown by your books'?

Mr. RYAN.—The books are the best evidence,

your Honor, as to that.

Mr. WILSON.—Well, take out your books.

Mr. RYAN.—I move to have the answer stricken

out.

The COURT.—There is no answer to the question.

Mr. RYAN.—What?
The COURT.—He has not answered the question.

Mr. RYAN.—I thought he had answered it.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. I will ask you to state from

your book that you have just taken from your files

what your books show in that connection ?

A. In regard to the title of the bank ?

Q. Did you carry an account with the Bank of

Arizona? A. Arizona State Bank.

Q. Arizona State Bank at the time that this re-

ceipt was given, April 23, 1923 % A. I did.

Q. Will you state what the amount was as shown

by your books? A. At that time?

Q. Yes. A. My ledger don't go back that far.

Q. Will you state what occurred to that account

as shown by your books?

A. That account was transferred to the Bank of

Winslow after the merger.

The COURT.—I can't hear you.

Mr. RYAN.—Wait a minute.
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A. The account was transferred to The Bank of

Winslow after the merger in May, 1924.

Mr. WILSON.—That is shown by your ledger

account of Arizona State Bank I A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the balance as shown by your books

at the time of the transfer to The Bank of Winslow ?

A. $17,927.19.

Q. What date was that?

A. September 1.

Q. What year? A. 1924.

Q. Did you continue to hold these bonds after

that date as security for

—

Mr. RYAN.—Well-
Mr. WILSON.—Well, never mind.

Q. You continued to hold these bonds after that,

Mr. Schaefer ? A.I did.

Q. Did the Bank of Winslow ever raise any ob-

jection to your holding them during the time that

it was open? A. None.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Now, if your Honor

please, we object to that and move to strike the an-

swer on the gromid that there is no showing in the

evidence as yet that the Bank of Winslow had any

right to object to something that somebody else had

put up to secure somebody else's liability.

The COURT.

—

The were transferred from the

—

Mr. McLaughlin.—There is no showing that

that these bonds were ever transferred to the Bank

of Winslow or that the Bank of Winslow got them.

The COURT.—He just testified that the whole
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account of the bonds were transferred in the mer-

ger.

Mr. McLaughlin.—I believe, your Honor,

that the witness inadvertently, perhaps, used the

word "merger" but there is no evidence that these

bonds were ever merged. What he testified to was

that the account was afterwards transferred to the

Bank of Winslow. That is what he said. Now,

the account being transferred, does not necessarily

transfer these bonds.

Mr. WILSON.—If the Court please, they were

negotiable bonds, as shown by the character of

them, and he held them and continued to hold them.

Of course, we can prove the merger, if the Court

please, by simply putting Mr. Hammons on the

witness stand, if counsel wants to take the Court's

time and our time to prove that merger.

The COURT.—It is just a question of orderly

proof. The objection is overruled.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Note an exception. We
are perfectly willing for counsel to prove anything

that he deems necessary and we are not waiving

anything in that line.

A. Plaintiff's Exhibit 154, marked for identifi-

cation, came to me from the Arizona State Bank
on receipt of that many bonds as noted there.

Mr. WILSON.—I will now offer in evidence

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 154.

Mr. RYAN.—No further objections to it except

those already noted.

Mr. WILSON.—No further objections?
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The COURT.—No further objection.

Mr. WILSON,—I now offer in evidence Plain-

tiff's Exhibit No. 155 as Plaintiff's Exhibit No.

155.

Mr. RYAN.—As far as I understand, there is

no showing that any of the warrants involved in

this case are the warrants involved—described in

this so-called receipt and the further objection that

any receipt given by Mr. Schaefer creating a

—

accepting securities of any kind as a guarantee is

without authority of law, which can only come from

the Board of Supervisors and also that it shows

other securities which were given at the same time.

Mr. WILSON.—If the Court please, this is

crossed off, the other securities he refers to.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. RYAN.—Exception.
Mr. McLaughlin.—I would like the record to

show that the objection was concurred in by the

other defendants Hammons and Dodson and an ex-

ception taken in their behalf.

Mr. WILSON.—I now offer in evidence Plain-

tiff' 's Exhibit No. 156, being the receipt by the

County Treasurer of certain warrants.

Mr. RYAN.—Same objection.

Mr. McLaughlin.—By all the defendants.

Mr. RYAN.—Same objections, with enumerating

them.

Mr. AVILSON.—That is another receipt of the

same character.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.
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Mr. McLaughlin.—Exception by all defend-

ants.

Mr. WILSON.—I now offer in evidence Plain-

tiff's Exhibit No. 157, being the letter from George

J. Schaefer to Charles F. Oare, Cashier of the

Arizona State Bank, acknowledging receipt of |2,-

583.37 in registered county warrants. I think be-

fore I offer that, I will go a little further.

Q. I hand you, Mr. Schaefer—I withdraw that

offer—a letter dated October 18, 1923, and will ask

you whether you held those warrants as security

for the Arizona State Bank fmids transferred to the

Bank of Winslow, as you have already testified, at

the time that the Bank of Winslow closed its doors

on October 4, 1924 <?

A. I did.

Mr. RYAN.—Same objection.

Mr. WILSON.—I now off'er in evidence Plain-

tiff' 's Exhibit No. 157, being the letter referred to

by the witness.

Mr. RYAN.—That is the same objection that

these securities were put up to the Arizona State

Bank, no showing that there was any connection be-

tween the two.

The COURT.—Objection overruled.

Mr. McLaughlin.—objection was concurred

in by all defendants and we note an exception.

Mr. WILSON.—I now offer in evidence Plain-

tiff's Exhibit No. 158, being a letter dated March
17, 1924, signed by V. B. Neil (?), Vice-President

of the Bank of Winslow, addressed to Mr. Schaefer
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as Treasurer, in which he acknowledges receipt of

registered warrants as per list enclosed aggregat-

ing $2,839.24 as in aggregate of county funds de-

posited in the Bank of Winslow. I might state

that the offer of this letter is limited to the proof

that the Bank of Winslow did not limit the pledge

of this collateral, as alleged by the other side, and

deposited them as collateral for the entire funds

of the county in that bank.

Mr. RYAN.—Same objection that I interposed.

The COURT.—What is the letter ? Read it.

Mr. WILSON.—The letter says: "Mr. George

Schaefer, Treasurer, Holbrook, Arizona. We are

enclosing herewith registered warrants as per list

enclosed aggregating $2,839.24. These, you will

kindly hold as a guarantee of county funds de-

posited in the Bank of Winslow and return to us

Panama Canal Bond for $1,000.00. Also kindly

sign the enclosed receipt and hold the copy for your

records."

The COURT.—I see. The Panama Canal bond

was supposed to have been delivered on the other.

Mr. WILSON.—Yes, sir, and was returned as

shown by the letter already in evidence.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. RYAN.—Note an exception for the

—

Mr. McLaughlin.— —for all defendants.

Mr. WILSON.—I now offer in evidence Plain-

tiff' 's Exhibit 160 being a list of warrants issued by

Navajo County on the salary fund to which the wit-

ness has already testified as Plaintiff's Exhibit 160.
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Mr. RYAN.—Same objection as to that entire line

of proof, that it is incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial.

The COURT.—What are those?

Mr. WILSON.—Those are the warrants to which

the witness testified that it represents a correct list

of those in his office and that he had funds on hand

to pay for and would draw upon the bank for the

payment.

The COURT.—Objection is overruled.

Mr. WILSON.—I offer in evidence Plaintiff's

Exhibit 161, being warrants issued by the County

Superintendent of Schools on the school fund of

Navajo County, Arizona, as previously identified by

the witness.

Mr. RYAN.—Same objection that I am making to

this same line of proof.

The COURT.—Objection is overruled.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Note an exception for all

of the original defendants in the case.

Mr. WILSON.—I now offer in evidence Plain-

tiff 's Exhibit No. 162, being a list of warrants issued

by Navajo County on the road fund heretofore

identified by the witness.

Mr. RYAN.—Same objection that I am making

to this class of testimony.

The COURT.—Same ruling. It is overruled.

Mr. RYAN.—Note an exception for all of the de-

fendants.

Mr. WILSON.—I now offer in evidence Plain-

tiff's Exhibits No. 159, which I offer as subject to
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the general rule of the general laws of Arizona on

the subject of set-off, it not being covered by the

character of proof which I have adduced in con-

nection with the three preceding exhibits.

The COURT.—What is it?

Mr. WILSON.—That is warrants on the expense

fund amounting to |6,636.12.

The COURT.—Same objection, I presume"?

Mr. RYAN.—Incompetent, irrelevant and imma^

terial, subject to the same objection as I am inter-

posing to this line of proof.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McLaughlin.— And, if your Honor

pleases, we further object that these are not the

original records and not the best evidence—these

lists.

Mr. WILSON.—He has identified them as correct

copies of his records. Counsel agreed with me
yesterday that they would go in if that proof was

made.

Mr. RYAN.—Just a minute, if your Honor please.

I made some agreements yesterday and orally in the

proof—orally in the trial of this case outside of this

written stipulation that is already in, I tried to hold

counsel to it to put in certain things. He has, aside

from what is already in the record as valid and bind-

ing admissions, he has departed from them. He has

opened up a new channel.

Mr. WILSON.—To the extent of asking that

these warrants be marked exhibits.

Mr. RYAN.—Now, as far as I am concerned, I
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do not feel that I am morally bound by any verbal

stipulation not already in the record nor beyond

what has been read into the record and consented

to by me. I don't believe I am.

The COURT.—I don't know anything about your

stipulation of your agreement. What is the objec-

tion; that it is not the best evidence?

Mr. WILSON.—That is the objection and the wit-

ness has testified that this is the correct copy of his

records. I will put the records all in and then he

can check them, if it would please counsel any. I

don't see the extent, though. It seems to me that

the record is sufficient.

The COURT.—Do you know whether or not it is

correct or not ?

Mr. RYAN.—If your Honor please, I have tried

to get this County Treasurer, who, as an officer of

Navajo County, is one of my clients from last Sep-

tember to give me information to prepare for this

case and I find him more willing on the witness

stand to give everything to the plaintiff in the case

and not one single thing to the Receiver, the Bank
Examiner or to the Attorney General or myself in

regard to it.

The COURT.—That is not the question I asked

you.

Mr. RYAN.—I don't know anything to be exact,

your Honor. I don't know, and I have not been

able to find out from this Treasurer from way along

last September.
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(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

The COURT.—Didn't I understand a moment ago

from counsel that you had an oral understanding

yesterday as to the

—

Mr. WILSON.—Yes, sir, that was counsel's state-

ment. Now, he says

—

Mr. RYAN.—^As to certain features of it.

Mr. WILSON.—Now, he says, because I asked to

have these warrants marked as Exhibits and intro-

duced them as such that I have breached some agree-

ment with him. I don't remember that I made any

agreement that I would not do that but the agree-

ment was and he has already verified that fact that

these lists would be taken as correct statements of

the contents of Mr. Schaefer 's books and would be

put in as such so as to prevent me having to spend

two days checking every one of these warrants

—

checking them off and introducing them.

The COURT.—Q. Have you checked that from

your books, Mr. Schaefer?

A. Yes, about a year ago, though.

Mr. WILSON—I checked them very carefully, if

the Court please. I myself went over and examined

these records.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Note an exception on be-

half of all defendants.

The COURT.—That is 159?

Mr. WILSON.—Yes, sir, that is 159.

Mr. RYAN.—An exception.

Mr. WILSON.—That is all, if the Court please,

as far as this witness is concerned.
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(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

Cross-examination by Mr. ISAAC BARTH,
Attorney for Greorge Jarvis and County of Apache,

Intervenors.

Q. Mr. Schaefer, you testified that you had money

on hand to pay these warrants—you had funds on

hand to pay these warrants?

A. These particular amounts.

Q. That is, not these particular warrants, but this

amount? A. Yes. That is about all there was.

Q. By that, you mean that if these had been pre-

sented, you would have had money to have paid

these off— if somebody else had presented that

amount of warrants?

A. No, I had an agreement with the bank that I

would take these warrants that they held immedi-

ately after the Board meeting on the 6th of October,

after I made my report to the Board of Supervisors.

Q. That is, you agreed with them that you would

take these ?

A. Purchase all of the registered warrants they

held in certain accounts.

Q. That you would take the bank's warrants?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Regardless of the fact that other warrants

were registered ahead of those warrants?

A. There was none.

Q. There was none others registered ahead?

A. That is all on these particular funds. The

expense fund, of course, that is another fund. I did

not have any money in the expense fund at all.



96 A. T. Hammons and J. S. Dodson

(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

Q. Did you have just the money in the general

fund to pay them with? A. No.

Q. It had been distributed to the respective funds

on which these warrants were drawn?

A. That is, as far as the account is concerned.

Q. As far as what?

A. The account is concerned.

Q. It had not been authorized by the Board

—

* * * *

Mr. BARTH.—I was under the impression and I

was somewhat perturbed by a remark as to the stipu-

lation relative to my procedure, but I am glad at

least that the Court is with me. What did I ask the

last?

The REPORTER.— (Reading:) "It had not been

authorized by the Board—

"

Mr. BARTH.—Q. —that is, there had been no

apportionment of these respective funds of the

money that you held?

A. There had been at that time, the last of Sep-

tember.

Q. Was there enough money in the salary fund in

your possession at that time to pay all outstanding

registered warrants? A. No.

Q. Was there sufficient money in the road fund at

that time to pay all outstanding warrants ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was there enough money in the school fund of

the respective school districts to pay outstanding

school warrants? A. Yes.
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Q. All of them? What was true of the other

funds? A. They were short.

Q. All of the others'? Then, there was only

money enough to pay the money in what funds?

A. There was enough to pay all road warrants,

all school warrants and part of the salary—most all

of the salary warrants but not quite all—$5,000.00

worth of them.

The COURT.—Q. How about the expense?

A. That fund had never had any money in it.

Q. How many funds have you outside of the

school funds?

A. Just the general accounts? Not district ac-

counts ?

Q. Outside of the district accounts is what I mean.

A. I have school, road, salary and expense funds

is about all. Those are the big funds that amount

to anything.

Q. You had money enough only to pay the—that

is, the—will you read it, so that I won't misquote?

A. I told the Bank of Winslow I would take all

of the road warrants.

Q. No, not what you told the bank but what you

had.

A. I had sufficient money to buy all road war-

rants, all school warrants and $5,000.00 of salary

warrants and no money for expense warrants.

Q. That is all, that is, you mean by that that you

had enough money in those funds to pay all out-

standing warrants against those particular funds?

A. That is it.
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(Testimony of Greorge J. Schaefer.)

Mr. RYAN.—Q. And, did you tell him thaf?

A. At that time.

Q. Well, what time ?

A. Somewhere about the first of October.

The COURT.—Q. Is that $5,000.00 of salary war-

rants ?

A. Yes, sir.

* * * *

Cross-examination by Mr. RYAN.

Q. Mr. Schaefer, between the 1st and the 4th of

October, 1924, you registered some $5,000.00 worth

of warrants for the Bank of Winslow, did you not?

A. Yes, sir. I don't know now. I registered

some, but I don't know how many.

Q. Isn't it a fact, to your knowledge, that you

registered all of the warrants described in the com-

plaint as being warrants in transit except one of

about seven hundred and some odd that was being

—

A. I don't know about the transit warrants.

Q. You registered some $5,000.00 between the 1st

and the 4th, didn't you?

A. If you would let me see that, I can give a

better idea between that and the books, that is, to

—

Q. Wait a minute. You don't remember inde-

pendently? Don't you know that there was many
thousand dollars of warrants registered and out-

standing other than those held by the Bank of

Winslow on the 14th day of October, 19—

.

A. Yes, sir.
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Mr. WILSON.—If the Court please, I object

to this line of testimony, because there is no question

in the record on that point, we having stipulated

that these are all registered warrants and it is im-

material when they were registered. They were all

registered warrants and we have stipulated that fact

and any testimony on that point before this court

is wasting the court's time and our time and I

object to it as immaterial.

Mr. RYAN.—That these are all registered war-

rants, yes?

Mr. WILSON.—Yes.
Mr. RYAN.—But I have made a defense in my

pleadings to the effect that there were other

large—a large number of other outstanding reg-

istered warrants on these same funds on the 4th of

October.

Q. Now, that is correct, is it not"? A. Yes, sir.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled. He
may answer.

Mr. RYAN.—Q. And it is a fact that a large

number of these same warrants were still outstand-

ing about the 1st of July, 1925?

A. Which ones?

Q. Well, of the same registered warrants that

were registered and outstanding on October 4, 1924 ?

A. Yes.

Mr. WILSON.—Objected to as immaterial, if

the Court please. I can't see the materiality.

Mr. RYAN.—Now, the date-

Mr. WILSON.—Just a minute, please, Mr. Ryan.
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The date is material if it was October 4, 1924.

What happened later than that is immaterial. He
did not pay these warrans. They must have been

outstanding, because he was enjoined from paying

them.

The COURT.—I did not hear the date embodied

in your question.

Mr. WILSON.—July 1, 1925.

The COURT.—How is that material—1925—what
was outstanding in 1925*?

Mr. RYAN.—They are asking that their particu-

lar registered warrants should be paid. He is say-

ing that he had funds to pay some. That is his

idea.

The COURT.—You have alrealy proved by him

that there were others outstanding'?

Mr. RYAN.—Yes.

The COURT.—What difference does it make

whether they were outstanding a year later or not?

Mr. RYAN.—Possibly it does not.

Mr. McLaughlin.—If your Honor please, for

the purpose of cross-examination, I think it is ma-

terial to show that these warrants were not taken up

at the time that this man said that they had the

funds for that purpose and to the contrary nearly

a year later these warrants were still outstanding

as registered warrants and unpaid—not called.

The COURT.—This testimony does not go to

school or road warrants? You are not questioning

him in reference to the school warrants or the road

warrants, are you?
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(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

Mr. RYAN.—I am questioning him generally as

to the outstanding warrants of Navajo County

registered at that time.

The COURT.—You are confusing me with your

question. Designate what warrants you refer to.

You see, this witness has testified that there were

funds to take care of all of the road and school

warrants outstanding at that time.

(Witness continued as follows:) On October 4,

1924, I had funds sufficient to take care of all of the

road and school warrants of Navajo County then out-

standing—all of the registered warrants. I have

the warrant register covering that full period from

the year October 1, 1923, to October, 1924. I do

not think there were other school warrants out-

standing besides those held by the Holbrook Bank

—

outstanding registered school warrants.

Q. The books will show that, won't they?

A. Sure they will show.

Q. Whaf?
A. They will show. Yes, there was.

Q. What? A. There was.

Q. And, on October 3, 1924, you registered school

warrants, did you not, for the Bank of Winslow^?

A. I did.

Q. Yes, sir. Now, if you had sufficient money in

your hands to pay all of the school warrants, why
did you register some more on that day?

A. Because I was buying up the oldest ones that

were out and re-registering them.
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(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

Q. Buying up the oldest ones that were out and

re-registering ?

A. If you want me to tell you how it happened, I

will.

Q. I would like to know how you handled that

situation.

A. I had an agreement with the Bank of Winslow

on all of the collateral that whenever they were in

—

I wanted to get rid of collateral I would take it back

whenever I could. I told them I would take these

certain warrants and, in buying the warrants, I

bought the oldest, because all of the old ones were

in the hands of the Bank of Winslow and its

branches at Holbrook and I bought those and regis-

tered—kept on registering. I never stopped but I

had money collected during the month of September

that enabled me to buy better than $12,000.00 worth

of school warrants. I kept on registering but

bought the old ones with the monies that the account

was replenished with.

Q. Just what was your system of re-registering ?

A. I guess I was wrong. I kept on registering.

I bought the old registered warrants.

The COURT.—Q. You were not re-registering

warrants that you had purchased"?

A. No, that was a mistake of mine.

Mr. KYAN.—Q. Have you any of the warrants

in your files here of the class that you say that you

re-registered—purchased the old ones and re-regis-

tered the new ones—have you?

A. I haven't any warrants.
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Q. How? A. I haven't any warrants.

Q. You did not bring any with you ?

A. Those warrants are not in my possession. I

turned those over to the Board of Supervisors every

month.

Q. Now, isn't it a fact that the Bank of Winslow,

through your co-operation with the officers, that you

would take a bunch of miscellaneous warrants and

you would make from school funds entirely new

warrants? A. I don't quite understand.

Q. Didn't you make a new warrant for a bunch

of miscellaneous little warrants % A. Never.

Q. Never at all?

A. No. I wish I could. I would like that

arrangement.

Q. Can you find in that bunch of warrants the

warrant that goes with that particular deposit?

A. That is not a warrant. That is a voucher.

Q. Well, a voucher.

A. I would not know anything about it.

Q. A voucher at the Bank of Winslow?

A. I don't know who it is to. It is from the Bank
of Winslow to the County Superintendent of Schools

for payment.

Q. Now as a matter of fact, on the strength of

that, there was a new warrant issued? A. Yes.

Q. Paid her a new warrant? A. By her.

Q. By her? A. Yes.

Q. And that is one of the registered warrants?

A. I don't know.

Q. It was not issued on the claim?
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(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

A. It all depends what district it was on.

Q. Didn't that take up a number of smaller war-

rants? A. That is not a warrant.

Mr. RYAN.—Q. You were asked by the plaintiff's

attorney to produce the receipts of papers—books

that you had pertaining to this Bank of Winslow
account, were you not ?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, you did produce for him this paper which

you have in your hand, did you not, and gave it to

him to-day in court ?

A. Well, I am not sure whether that was in it but

I think it was. Everything I had.

Q. Everything you had. Now, that is a com-

munication that you received pertaining to some of

these warrants'? A. Yes.

Q. Of date October 10, 1923? A. It is.

Q. And some of the warrants pertain to one of

the lists of warrants that the plaintiff is presenting

and you testified about, is it not?

The COURT.—Speak up loud.

A. That was held at the time of closing.

Mr. RYAN.—I will offer this. Mark for identifi-

cation.

The COURT.—Defendant's exhibit— What is

it?

The CLERK—B.
The COURT.—For identification.

Mr. RYAN.—It should be C, I think.

The CLERK.—No.
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Mr. RYAN.—We had a letter and a copy of a

letter and this is the original.

The CLERK.—That was one item. Defendant's

Exhibit "A." Defendant's Exhibit '^B," this is.

Mr. RYAN.—Q. This yellow paper attached, is

that your copy of the—not communication—isn't

that a copy of your letter in answer to the letter of

October 10, 1923?

A. Let me read it. Yes, it is.

Mr. RYAN.—I will now offer this.

The CLERK.—Do you want that as B and C is

what I am trying to find out.

The COURT.—Submit it to counsel.

The CLERK.— Are these for identification, B
and C, so as to keep the record straight?

The COURT.—Two of them, B and C.

Mr. RYAN.—Just having that marked for

identification so that I could submit them to

argument.

Mr. WILSON.—That is all right. Go ahead.

Mr. RYAN.—No objections'?

Mr. WILSON.—No objections.

The COURT.—They may be admitted in evidence.

Mr. RYAN.—May I read it into the record at

this time, if your Honor please"? "Arizona State

Bank, Winslow, Arizona, October 10, 1923, George

J. Schaever, County Treasurer, Holbrook, Arizona.

Dear George. As per our agreement a few days

ago, I am enclosing herewith registered warrants

to the amount of $2,583.37 to be held by you as

security on an additional deposit of county funds.



106 A. T. Hamnions and J. S. Dodson

(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

Hoping you will find the same correct, I am, very

respectfully, Charles, F. Oare, Cashier." And your

reply to that: "Charles F. Oare, Cashier, Arizona

State Bank, Winslow, Arizona. Dear Charlie:

This is to acknowledge receipt of $2,583.37 in regis-

tered County warrants mailed to this office as secur-

ity on County deposits in your bank. Hoping I may
see my way clear to sweeten my deposit in the next

few days, I am, yours truly, George J. Schaefer."

Now, what, Mr. Schaefer, was the conversation of a

few days before that you referred to with respect to

making additional deposits ?

A. As far as I remember, I had went up there

—

happened to be in Winslow and I trold him he was

short of collateral and to please mail me what regis-

tered warrants he had.

Q. Isn't it a fact that this extra security was to

secure the additional deposits which he was making ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Why does he so say then and you acknowledge

it?

A. I didn't acknowledge that. Not in that

mamier.
* * * *

Q. They amounted to about $14,000.00 of value,

did they not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, those were Town of Winslow improve-

ment bonds. Those are the same bonds that appear

in one of these—this other exhibit listing?

A. I feel sure that that is what they were. Right

previous to that they had some surety which was
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cancelled and replaced and I am not sure about the

list.

Q. Now, on October 9, 1923, what was your de-

posit with the Arizona State Bank'?
* * * *

A. (Witness refers to records.) The report sheet

of my record has been transferred for that month.

It is not in this ledger. It is at home.

Mr. RYAN.—Q. So you haven't any record here

of that amount?

A. I would say approximately $17,000.00, because

I know the account that I was running.

Q. Now, on October 10, 1923, was there any de-

positary bond given by the Arizona State Bank of

Winslow to the County of Navajo that you know of?

A. Not given of that date. I had one previous to

that date.

Q. For how much? A. $10,000.00.

Q. That was to the Arizona State Bank?

A. That was.

Q. Now, can you turn to your books—What day

do you say that the Arizona State Bank account was

transferred on your books to the Bank of Winslow ?

A. It was transferred from the old name on Sep-

tember 1, that is, on my records, and some time

during August, on the bankrupts.

Q. Of what year? A. 1924.

Q. August, 1924. Can you show what the amount

of your deposit with the Arizona State Bank was at

that same date, August, 1924?

Mr. WILSON.—That is in the record, Mr. Ryan.



108 A. T. Hamnions and J. S. Dodson

(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

Mr. RYAN.—What?
A. $17,927.19. That balance was like that for

about three months.

Q. The Arizona State Bank, seventeen thousand?

A. Yes.

Q. Could that amount

—

Mr. WILSON.—It is already in, Mr. Ryan.

Mr. RYAN.— Q. Now, Mr. Schaefer, will you

turn to your account with the Bank of Winslow,

this insolvent bank of which Mr. Hammons is

Superintendent of Banks in charge, and show what

the amount of your deposit in that bank was at that

time?

A. $51,209.75. That is both active and inactive.

Q. That was at the time on the same date that you

transferred the account of the Arizona State Bank?

A. No. I thought you meant deposits.

Q. No, I meant at this date in August when you

transferred.

A. On what date? September 1, transferred?

I have the Holbrook branch $8,642.25 and then the

Winslow branch $14,876.09 and $15,000.00 in C. D.'s

at Holbrook.

Q. $15,000.00 in C. D.'s at Holbrook. I think you

testified that this same $14,000.00 approximately, of

Winslow— Town of Winslow improvement bonds

and some of these same registered warrants that

were turned over by the Arizona State Bank are

still in existence, that is, you still have or still had?

A. No, I liquidated all of those.

Q. You liquidated all of these ? A. Yes.
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Q. When?
A. After the closing of the bank. That is part

of the $7,300.00.

Q. That is part of the $7,300.00 that you liqui-

dated? A. Yes.

Q. Now, at the time that you held these regis-

tered warrants of the Arizona State Bank and

these $14,000.00 of improvement bonds of the Town

of Winslow to secure the old account of sixteen

or seventeen thousand dollai's j^ou had depositary

bonds of the Maryland Casualty Company to an

amount of $40,000.00, did you?

A. That is, in another bank at that time.

Q. What?
A. I am speaking about the defunct bank now,

the Bank of Winslow.

Mr. WILSOX.—On what date?

Mr. RYAN—On the same date that he says

that he transferred

—

A. Yes, I had the $40,000.00 that were set forth

there.

Q. What?
A. With the town improvement bonds, the $40,-

000.00 and the warrants.

Q. You had $40,000.00 of depositary bonds?

A. Yes.

Q. In favor of the County of Navajo?

A. Yes.

Q. To secure its deposit with the different

branches of the Bank of Winslow, did you not,

at that time?
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A. Yes.

Q. And that situation has continued with respect

to that—those depositary bonds and the improve-

ments bonds down to the time this bank closed

in October, 1924? A. I did.

Q. No new arrangement made about if?

A. None.

Cross-examination by Mr. RYAN.

I had County funds of Navajo County on the

4th of October, 1924, in two Winslow banks, one

Holbrook bank and six New York banks. The

funds to pay school warrants, salary warrants

and road warrants were in no particular bank,

I would draw on most any of them. The account

was general. I had the money somewhere in my
custody, provided the banlvs paid the checks, with

which to pay certain warrants. It is my custom

to draw a check on a certain bank for the amount

of the warrant or warrants that I take up.

Q. And the checks necessary to have taken up
these school warrants and road warrants and ex-

pense warrants and salary warrants that is in con-

troversy here, you know you had funds some-

where but you don't know in what particular

bank you had it, do you?

A. I know where I would have drawn the check

—on what bank.

Q. You know where you would have drawn it?

A. If I had—those bonds—warrants from the

Bank of Winslow, I would have drew on the Bank
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of Winslow at the same time and and automatically

decreasing the deposit along with the collateral.

Q. But you did not draw the check?

A. No, I did not.

Q. The warrants were not presented to you so

that you would draw a check from the 1st to the

4th of October, were they? A. No.

Q. And other warrants that were presented, you

registered? A. I did.

Q. And isn't it a fact and don't your books so

show that the authority of the Board of Super-

visors to check up these registered warrants was

given later in October along about the 31st of

October or the 1st of November?
A. Well, I don't know about the 1st.

The COURT.—1924?
Mr. RYAN.—Of '24. The week or ten days and

thirty days after the failure. Well, the Board
of Supervisors did set in October with respect

to using—transferring funds to take up the ex-

pense warrants, did they not? Look on your
register there at the expense and salary warrants?

(Witness refers to his books.)

Mr. RYAN.—I withdraw the question, then, for
further

—

Q. Now, Mr. Schaefer, will you point out to

the Court any record that you have showing that
you had available in the Bank of Winslow on
the 3d day of October enough to pay any par-
ticular school warrants?
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Mr. WILSON.—Objected to as reiteration, be-

cause the witness has testified time and again that

he did have the money there and that he would

have paid the warrants.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled, and

lie may point it out.

Mr. WILSON.—Exception.

Mr. RYAN.—Assuming that he was testifying

from what was in his books.

A. All right, you want me to show you?

Q. I want you to point out the items and show

where you had any—in the general school fund,

for instance—take the general school warrant fund.

A. All right, sir, I had available in the general

fund outside of the districts at that time a credit

of $10,079.20.

Q. That was to the general school fund. How
much of that $10,000.00 was in the Bank of Wins-

low? Is there anything on the books to show
it?

A. No, the records don't read that way. It is

a general account.

The COURT.—Q. You mean a general deposit?

.
A. To make it plain, I would have drawn on

the Bank of Winslow for every warrant I would
have purchased at that time.

Mr. RYAN.—Q. You would have drawn then,

under your practice, whether the fund in the Bank
of Winslow was there available for the purpose
of paying school warrants or not, wouldn't vou?
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Mr. WILSON.—If the Court please, I am going

to object to this line of testimony, because counsel

knows that these accounts are general; that they

are not divided in the banks ; that all of the funds

are merged into one fund as far as the bank

account is concerned under a general deposit.

The COURT.—Under a general deposit?

Mr. WILSON.—And that is the way the statute

contemplates it and counsel knows it.

The COURT.—The only thing that the Court is

concerned in was the amount of deposits in the

Bank of Winslow at that time.

Mr. RYAN.—I am trying to urge to the Court

that it is immaterial how much money there might

have been in the Bank of Winslow to the credit

of Navajo County. That credit is not subject

to pa3aTient of any school warrant, or any expense

warrant or any salary warrant and it would be

improper for the Treasurer to draw an.v one of

those classes of warrants against that fund there

unless his account as he keeps it with those separate

funds shows that there is available distinct funds

in the general fund.

The COURT.—Do you contend that he should

have had a deposit in the Bank of Winslow of

certain moneys to the credit of the school fund,

certain moneys to the credit of the road fund

—

Mr. RYAN.—Not necessarily but on his own
books somewhere. It would be improper for him
to draw funds against the Bank of Winslow un-

less he had school funds—showed by his books to
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be a credit of that deposit there and it is imma-

terial where else it was. He could take it from

somewhere else and put it there if he wanted to

draw the the checks, if he had it available some-

where else.

Mr. PATTEE.—If he had a hundred thousand

dollars in three different banks, he could draw

on any one of them for any fund.

The COURT.—If he had school money avail-

able at the same time?

Mr. PATTEE.—/ don't make any difference.

(Argument continued.)

The COURT.—The objection is on the ground

it was immaterial, is it not?

Mr. WILSON—Yes, sir.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

(Last question read by the Reporter.)

A. No.

(After objections to question of cross-examina-

tion were overruled, the witness proceeded as fol-

lows:)

Mr. RYAN.—Q. Now, retrace your steps, Mr.

Schaefer. You said that you had somewhere in

some bank $10,000.00 available for payment of

school funds ?

A. I did.

Q. School warrants? A. I did.

Q. Have you anything in your books to show
that a single dollar of that $10,000.00 was on de-

posit—actually on deposit in the Bank of Wins-
low?
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A. None other than it was in one of the banks

some place.

Q. Now, I will ask you if you did, in the course

of your transactions with the Bank of Winslow,

so keep your books that the amount received and

paid out on account of separate funds—each spe-

cific appropriations were exhibited in separate and

distinct accounts'?

A. I don't get the question at all.

Q. What?
A. I don't get that question. No.

(Last question read by the Reporter and an-

swered ''No.")

Mr. PATTEE.—I don't know what that ques-

tion means.

Mr. RYAN.—Q. You did not?

The COURT.—Well, the witness seems to un-

derstand it.

Mr. PATTEE.—Well, possible he does, but in

view of the statute which he puts everything in

the one fund and that fund is divided between

a dozen different banks

—

The COURT.—It seems to me that what you
are trying to get at is this

—

Mr. PATTEE.—What difference does it make
whether he draws it on that one bank or

—

The COURT.—School money is raised by tax-

ation, isn't it, and when money is paid to the

County Treasurer, it is apportioned to the school

fund, isn't it?
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Mr. PATTEE.—Yes, but it all goes into the

common fund in the bank, under the statute.

The COURT.—Yes, but the apportionment is

the thing; the fact that the money is received

and the fact that it was apportioned to any par-

ticular fund and that the money has not been paid

out. It is still available. It doesn't make any

diiference whether it is deposited, I take it

—

Mr. RYAN.—If your Honor please, in answer

to general questions of counsel on the direct ex-

amination of the witness, he made certain state-

ments that there was certain funds available. He
has stated or supposed to state facts from the

condition of his books—that he knows that this,

that—this fund and that fund and the other. He
says so from memory but, in answer to my ques-

tion, which is based upon the language of the

statutory duties of that treasurer, he has answered

that he don't know and he did not keep the

books so he could tell whether there was funds

available for one particular fund or for another.

Mr. WILSOX—I don't recall any such testi-

mony.

A. No.

Mr. BARTH.—May I be permitted to ask him

a question? Will counsel permit me to ask a ques-

tion?

Q. Do you have your books showing the balance

on the road fund on the 3d day of October, 1924?

A. I do.

Q. Will you read it, please?
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A. $3,374.93.

Q. Do you know how many—the approximate

amount of outstanding road warrants there was

at that time?

A. Not over $2,200.00.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. What was the balance in

your salary fund?

A. $5,354.41.

Mr. BAETH.—Q. What was the outstanding

amount—approximately outstanding against the

salary fund?

A. It was better than six thousand dollars.

Q. What was the balance in the expense fund

or the deficit?

A. That was quite large. $47,000.00 to the bad.

Q. To the bad?

The COURT.—How can you get at that school

fund?

Mr. BARTH.—I didn't quite g^i your Honor's

question.

The COURT.—The school fund. You touched

all except the school fund.

Mr. BARTH.—There was a deficit of $47,000.00.

A. In the expense fund.

Q. What was there in the general school fund?

A. $10,079.20.

Q. What sort of warrants are drawn against

the general school fund?

A. Just those of the County Superintendent's

office expenses, I think, but this $10,000.00 you



118 A. T. Hammons and J. S. Dodson

(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

understand, is apportioned out of this into the

districts by the School Superintendent.

Q. And you don't apportion that part of it?

A. No, only on her order.

(Further cross-examination of the witness is

continued by Mr. Isaac Barth.)

The witness stated: There are special school

funds of 25 common school districts and three

high school districts, and each district has a sep-

arate account.

Q. Will you kindly give us the aggregate amount

of the money due to the credit of these school

funds ?

The COURT.—How long will that take you?

A. Aggregate? He wants an approximate

amount.

Mr. BARTH.—Well, of course, a few himdred

dollars

—

Mr. WILSON.—I object to the materiality.

The COURT.—Do you want to follow these war-

rants down and find out the funds they were

checked against?

Mr. BARTH.—No, sir, but I do want to do this:

I want to know if the aggregate of the school

fund, the expense fund, the road fund and the

salary fund—how it corresponds with the bank

balance and the outstanding

—

A. Why don't you hire an accountant?

Mr. WILSON.—All that we have attempted to

prove and we have proven it is that the bank had
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enough money to take care of all of these war-

rants.

Mr. BARTH.—Yes, but if there was money in

the bank

—

(The witness continues:) I have a sinking

fund. They are on all the county bond issues of

which there are approximately 12.

Q. Will you give us the amount—the aggregate

amount that should be in the twelve sinking funds ?

Mr. PATTEE.—I think I will object to that

as immaterial and not proper cross-examination.

The COURT.—I don't know how that is ma-

terial.

Mr. BARTH.—It is material, if your Honor
please, in this effect. Assuming that he had $20,-

000.00 in the bank and if he should have $30,000.00

to the credit of the sinking fund, then he didn't

have money enough with which he could legally

pay those amounts.

Mr. PATTEE.—May I suggest to Mr. Barth

that we have stipulated that $15,000.00 was in the

inactive fund. The rest was in the active fund

subject to check.

(Argument continued.)

The COURT.—Objection is sustained.

(Further argument.)

The COURT.—I can't see that is right. The
objection is sustained.

Mr. McLaughlin.—We win note an excep-

tion on behalf of the defendants.



120 A. T. Hammons and J. S. Dodson

(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

Cross-examination Continued by Mr. RYAN.
Q. Mr. Schaefer, will you turn to your account

on your books with the Bank of Winslow?

(Witness produces book.)

Q. Just read off the state of the balance of that

account with the Bank of Winslow from the 1st

of July up to the time the bank closed.

A. 1st of July, $14,876.09.

Q. 1st of July, 1924?

A. 1924. Pardon me. That was $21,428.69, 1st

of July. 1st of August, $14,876.09. 1st of Sep-

tember, the same.

The COURT.—What item is this?

Mr. RYAN.—The item of the actual balance of

deposits in the Bank of Winslow beginning July

1, 1924—the state of account as shown by his

books.

A. And October 1, $26,662.85.

Q. What deposits, if any, were made between the

1st of September and the 4th of October?

A. There was a transfer of the Arizona State ac-

count of $17,927.19 and a deposit of $55.23 during

September and another one of $47.95 in October.

The COURT.—Q. There was on deposit at the

time the bank closed its doors

—

A. $26,662.85.

Mr. RYAN.—Q. Now, you referred to the school

fund yesterday—general school fund yesterday, Mr.

Schaefer. Turn to that item again please. You
said that on the 1st of—on the 30th of September
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there was a balance of $10,079.22. Now, it is a fact,

is it not, that that general school fund—that is a

bookkeeping item, is it not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Showing receipts—general aggregate. It is

a fact that that fund is actually distributed to how

many districts'? A. Twenty-five.

Q. And you distributed that on the order

—

A. They would not necessarily go to twenty-five.

It might go to two—which ever ones have that

money coming. That is up to the superintendent

of schools.

Q. So that, as a matter of fact, there is, except as

a matter of bookkeeping, there is practically no

general school fund in the county"?

A. No, because it is apportioned away from there

into others.

Q. So that that is a matter showing the aggregate

receipts prior to apportionment?

A. That is the original source, though.

(Witness continues:) My expense account showed

an overdraftof some forty odd thousand dollars dur-

ing this same period. We used the monies of the

redemption fund to let the expense account get into

that shape. That was at another period that I told

you I stated to the Board of Supervisors the 1st

of July or about that time that we used some

$32,000.00 of redemption fund to carry these other

—

Q. Well, how much of the redemption fund had

you used as of October 1?
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Mr. WILSON.—If the Court please, I am going

to now object to this line of questioning, on the

ground that it is all immaterial as to what hap-

pened to the expense fund—^how they were taking

care of it.

The COURT.—I think the expense fund is out

of this case.

Mr. WILSON.—In that connection, I might

state, your Honor, that we practically admit no

offset in regards to that, because there was no

money in the fund. It was in the red.

Mr. RYAN.—May I suggest something to your

Honor? Now, it appears that all of the money of

this county, so far as any bank was concerned, was

put there in one account. It was all treated on the

books as a general pocketbook.

The COURT.—Yes, that appears very clearly in

the evidence.

Mr. RYAN.—Now, there is some evidence to

show not that it was done but that it was intended

to be done at some time to pay certain school war-

rants.

The COURT.—Q. Where do they get the money

for the road fund?

Mr. WILSON.—Special levy for that.

A. Special levy.

The COURT.—Q. Any transfer from the sink-

ing fund to the road fund to cover these warrants?

A. All of these funds—the monies in the general

fund—school fund and the road fund was trans-

ferred from what they call a state and county col-
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lection fund. They are all collected by the state

and county taxes and the apportionment made from

there, as directed, by the Board of Supervisors,

according to the levy of the budget.

Q. But the question is, did you take from the

sinking fund any cash and transfer it to the road

fund for the purpose of taking up these warrants'?

A. Only to the expense fund.

Q. Never to the road fund or the school fund*?

A. Never.

The COURT.—Is that what you are after?

Mr. RYAN.—Well, that is— Q. But so far as

any account that you had at any bank, if you drew

a check on that bank for expense account, if there

was money there, it was paid wasn't it?

A. I did not draw on any bank for expense ac-

counts. The boards designates the accounts. I

would have a pocket full of money or two pocket

fulls and I might draw from one or the other. It

is all one thing. Yes, the Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors draws warrants on the various funds

according to the county appropriations, and these

warrants finally come to me; and my mode of pay-

ing is to draw check on some deposit in some bank,

or out of my cash drawer, if it is all cash. The

amount I carried in my vault varied a whole lot.

During the months of October and November,

April and May, I carry two or three thousand in

cash. If I drew a check on the expense to take

up an expense warrant and drew it to the Bank
of Winslow, they paid that check out of any funds
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to the credit of, to my credit. And if I drew a

warrant on the road fund, and I drew that on the

Bank of Winslow or any other bank that showed

a balance in my general deposit, that check was

paid. And the same was true with all other checks

that I drew to take up any school fund warrants

and salary fund warrants.

Q. And the result of it all was that when you fin-

ally figured up you had overdrawn your expense ac-

count some forty thousand dollars and you were

how much shy on your redemption fund?

Mr. WILSON.—Objected to as calling for a con-

clusion.

The COURT.—Objection is sustained.

Mr. RYAN.—Very well. An exception, if your

Honor please.

(The witness continues:) I had collections that

went to the credit of the general school fund that

you have been talking about from collection of

taxes about the 1st of Sept. and the 1st of Oct.

—

during September and all of the months. I have

a record to show what became of the proceeds of

that collection. It went to the various districts

—

that is, the money went to some one bank. I don't

know which one. Any of them. It did not make

any difference.

Q. What other banks besides the Bank of Wins-

low, and its branches were you doing business with

during the month of September?

Mr. WILSON.—If the Court pleases, I am going
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to object to that line, because it is immaterial and

it has already been covered by this witness.

The COURT.—I think it is immaterial. You
seem to take the position that you must follow

this identical money as distinguished from other

general deposits. I don't get the idea.

Mr. RYAN.—If your Honor pleases, the idea of

that is simply following the law of the State of

Arizona, as I understand it. Your Honor and I

may differ about that but every dollar that is raised

for county purposes is raised with respect to a

budget. It is appropriated to certain purposes.

That is tax money. It must not be used for any

other purpose.

The COURT.—Well, we will assume that they

raised money for the schools and for roads and

for expenses for various other funds and it is all

placed in these funds and carried on the books in

separate funds but all of the funds are deposited in

the bank

—

Mr. RYAN.—In some bank.

The COURT.— —without any designation as to

which fund. The bank has no knowledge of which

fund it is but they have a large fund of money
there. Now, his books will show that there is so

much money to the credit of a certain fund. What
difference does it make whether it is me bank or

two banks or four banks'?

Mr. RYAN.—I will suggest this to your Honor
in support of my question. Would your Honor
believe that the Bank of Winslow itself on the 3rd
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of October could have taken such warrants as it

had in its vaults and looked on its ledger and

charged those warrants to that account without the

authority to so do issuing from the county treas-

urer ?

Mr. WILSON.—If the Court pleases, that is not

our contention and counsel

—

Mr. RYAN.—It is my contention that you could

not do it.

Mr. WILSON.—Whe^i the bank closed, then the

rights of the parties under the law became estab-

lished and from the date the bank closed we are

asserting and submitting to your Honor that a

certain status existed, and it is upon that status

that our rights depend.

Mr. RYAN.—If Mr. Wilson would let me get

through.

Mr. WILSON.—I am trying to indicate, Mr.

Ryan, that this

—

Mr. RYAN.—I am outlining the position that I

am taking with respect to this line of proof. Now,

if the Bank of Winslow could not, as an insolvent

bank at any time have taken a bunch of warrants

—

this particular bunch of warrants that were in their

possession at various times and various amounts

and looked at the account of George J. Schaefer,

Treasurer of Navajo County, and say with respect

to those warrants when he sent down a check there

for $10,000.00 they did not want to pay—"Why,
Mr. Schaefer, we can't do that. We are going to

charge your account off with these registered war-



vs. Maryland Casualty Company. 127

rants that we hold against Navajo County." Now,

unless they could do that, the surety is in no

better position than the principal would be with re-

spect to set off. That is my position and that is

why I am trying to show—that is why I am try-

ing to show that there was no—there was not suf-

ficient funds to take care of anywhere—to take

care of the outstanding obligations. The paid war-

rants, to be sure. They have paid school warrants

but they borrowed on other funds to do it to leave

anything in that bank. I may be wrong, but that

is my position, your Honor.

Mr. BARTH.—May it please the Court, insofar

as Apache County is concerned, we think that this

evidence is material and we would like to see it go

on the record, because the Court has evidently con-

sidered it material that at the time the bank closed

the Treasurer of Navajo County had money enough

on hand to pay the outstanding warrants if they

had been presented.

(Argument continued.)

The COURT.—Now, what is the question before

the Court?

(Question read by the reporter.)

The COURT.—What is the objection?

Mr. WILSON.—I objected on the ground that it

is immaterial.

The COURT.—Objection is sustained.

Mr. BARTH.—As I was going to say, my argu-

ment was not directed to that phase of it.

The COURT.—The objection is sustained. Pro-

ceed.
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Mr. RYAN.—Take an exception on behalf of all

the original defendants, if the Court please.

Mr. BARTH.—May I ask him one question and

then be through?

Mr. McLaughlin.—Certainly.

Mr. BARTH.—Q. What do your books show as

to the amount of dollars—aggregate amount of

dollars that there should have been to the credit of

the bonds sinking fund?

Mr. WILSON.—I object to that as immaterial,

if the Court pleases.

The COURT.—The objection is sustained.

Mr. BARTH.—Note our exception.

Mr. RYAN.—Note an exception on the part of

all of the original defendants in the case.

Cross-examination.

(By Mr. McLAUGHLIN.)
(Witness continues:) I am acquainted with Mr.

Kenneth Myers, who was at one time manager of

the Bank of Winslow at Holbrook, and Mr. Myers

inquired of me, before the Bank of Winslow closed,

as to what time the warrants held by the Bank of

Winslow were to be paid. That was some time dur-

ing the three or four months he was there, and was

at my office in Holbrook. I think it was during

July, 1924. This memorandum is in the hand-

writing of Kenneth Myers. I don't know that the

memorandum was made at that time. I think we

talked over the phone regarding this. What I

remember telling him was just like this reads, that
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all school warrants should be paid in November;

that all salary warrants paid about January 1. I

did not anticipate the good luck that I had at that

time when I spoke. I was ready before that. The

yellow road fund; that is the color of the warrant.

He put the color of that. Paid about January 1.

Should be paid, and the pink expense funds, ap-

proximately May, 1925.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Q. And that is the last

conversation you had with Mr. Myers, with refer-

ence to that?

A. I don't think so. There might have been

more.

Mr. WILSON.—If the Court please, I am going

to move to strike that last line of testimony, now
that it has come out.

The COURT.—On what ground?

Mr. WILSON.—^As immaterial, as well as being

irrelevant.

The COURT.—Motion is granted and the evi-

dence is stricken and an exception.

Mr. McLaughlin.—We win note an exception,

your Honor. What was the ground of the counsel's

motion %

The COURT.—Immaterial.
Mr. McLaughlin.—We would state for the

purpose of the record our position in this matter.

It is proper cross-examination for the purpose of

showing that the funds were not available for the

payment of these warrants at the time testified to

in direct examination.
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The COURT.—He has not testified that they

were available.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Yes, sir, and this is cross-

examination, your Honor. This is cross-examina-

tion which shows that he made statements contra-

dicting that and the very purpose of cross-exami-

nation is to contradict what was brought out in

direct examination.

(Argument continued.)

The COURT.—Well, the ruling may stand.

Mr. McLaughlin.—is our exception noted?

Exception on behalf of all the defendants.

(Witness continues:) School warrants 151, 7 and

8, dated in September and October, 1922, included

in Plaintiff's Exhibit 155, were liquidated after the

failure by giving credit upon the ])ank account to

the Bank of Winslow.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Q. Now, this School Dis-

trict No; 1 warrant is in the sum of $1,015.06, war-

rant No. 151? A. Yes.

Q. What school district was that drawn upon?

A. No. 1 of Winslow.

Q. For what purpose was it drawn—in payment

of what?

A. I don't know offhand. I would have to see

the vouchers.

Q. Well, as a matter of fact, was it not drawn in

payment of many—of warrants that were consoli-

dated to arrive at this sum? In other words, no

school teacher would receive that much money as a

salary warrant for one month?
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A. I don't believe so.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Q. in order to arrive at

that figure, it would be necessary to consolidate sev-

eral warrants'?

A. Yes.

Q. And that is evidently

—

A. Unless it was for supplies or coal shipment or

anything else for the

—

Q. It was your practice to consolidate several

warrants into one warrant 1

A. No, I never issued them.

Q. You never issued them?

A. No, they were issued by the County Superin-

tendent of Schools.

Q. Do you know whether or not it was the prac-

tice of the County Superintendent of Schools to

consolidate them*? A. It was.

Q. After they were brought to you for regis-

tration, was the form of the warrant at any time

changed as to payee % A. Never.

Q. After they were registered by you, were they

ever returned to the County Superintendent of

Schools and by her changed? A. Never.

Q. As to the payee or the amount and then re-

registered by you?

A. No. I have no knowledge of it, if it hap-

pened.

Q. Now, when you spoke yesterday of re-regis-

tering these warrants Mr. Schaefer, what did you

refer to?
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(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

The COURT.—He changed his testimony on that.

Mr. McLaughlin.—I didn't mean to—
The COURT.—The record does not show that he

re-registered any warrants.

Mr. PATTEE.—He used the term as applied to

the registration of new warrants.

The COURT.—New warrants was his testimony.

Mr. McLaughlin.—That is all for us.

The COURT.—Any further cross-examination ?

Mr. EARTH.—Q. You testified yesterday, I be-

lieve, that there was money available for the pay-

ment of these outstanding county warrants on the

day the Bank of Winslow failed?

A. Certain warrants.

Q. Was that money—was the amount of that

money—withdraw that and I will frame it differ-

ently. Could you have paid it out of the money in

your hands to the credit of those particular districts

or funds? A. To the credit of the different

—

Q. Sir?

A. I don't quite get the—to the credit of the

particular districts—out of my hands to their credit

—it would be to their debit.

Q. Well, at the time that you say this money

was available, as I understand it, you had a certain

amount of money in the bank, if these warrants had

been presented to you for payment. Did you mean

by that statement that you could have taken thfs

money that you had in this fund and paid the war-

rants? A. Yes.
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Q. Did you mean also that all of those funds that

you mentioned, not counting the exceptions that

you made, had that much to their credit at the time^

A. I did.

The COURT.—That is what he testified to yes-

terday and he testified from the books to that effect,

Mr. Barth.

Mr. BARTH.—That is all.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. Now, Mr. Schaefer, will you

state—when you answered a question about the

merging of these claims in one warrant, I under-

stood you to say that they merged warrants and is-

sued one. Did I misunderstand you or did you

mean

—

A. I meant to say they merged vouchers into one.

Q. Vouchers and claims? A. Yes.

Q. I wanted to get that clarified. Mr. Schaefer,

were warrants drawn for manual training school

expenses chargeable against the general school

fund?

Mr. RYAN.—I object to that as a question of law.

Mr. WILSON.—No, I am asking him if he

charged them against the general school fund.

Mr. RYAN.—I object as immaterial what he did.

It is a question of law as to where those should be

charged.

Mr. WILSON.—He is supposed to know the law,

if the Court please. He is an official administering

the law.

The COURT.—Well, he may answer how they

were charged. Objection overruled.
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Mr. RYAN.—Take an exception.

A. They were charged against not the general

fund but they had two manual training accounts,

one on what we consider School District 1 and 3 and

they were charged against their common school ac-

counts ?

Mr. WILSON.—Q. Were there any other manual

training school funds?

A. No, just two.

Q. And all warrants that were drawn for that

purpose were drawn and paid out of the account

which you kept and not general school fund"?

A. That is under a district heading, yes.

Q. And, at the time the bank closed, you had

sufficient money in those funds to take up any out-

standing manual training school warrants?

A. I did.

The COURT.—Some of these warrants were

manual training school?

Mr. WILSON.—Yes, sir, there was three of them

—two or three. I think and I just wanted to make

sure that they were included, that is all. Now, I

want to introduce, if the Court please. Plaintiff's

Exhibit 163, which I overlooked yesterday, for

identification. It is a letter from Neel, vice-presi-

dent of the Bank of Winslow, acknowledging re-

ceipt of Mr. Schaefer's receipt for the registered

warrants in the amount of $2,839.24.

Mr. RYAN.—I will object to it, for the reason

that it fails to identify any of the warrants there
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referred to in the aggregate nor of the warrants

involved in this case.

The COURT.—What is it?

Mr. EYAN.—It says, "This will acknowledge re-

ceipt of your letter of the 26th enclosing a receipt

for registered warrants in the amount of $2,839.2$,

which were being held by you as a guaranty of

county deposits. Receipt of the Panama Canal

bond for $1,000.00 which has been held by you is

also acknowledged."

Mr. WILSON.—This is a completed transaction.

The other two have already been introduced.

The COURT.—Objection is overruled.

Mr. RYAN.—Take an exception.

The COURT.—Read the letter.

Mr. WILSON.—''Mr. George J. Schaefer, County

Treasurer, Holbrook, Arizona. Dear Mr. Schaefer

:

This will acknowledge receipt of your letter of the

26th enclosing a receipt for registered warrants in

the amount of $283^.24 which were being held by you

as a guaranty of county deposits. Receipt of the

Panama Canal bond for $1,000.00 which has been

held by you is also acknowledged. Yours very

truly.
'

'

The COURT.—What is the date of that?

Mr. WILSON.—The date is March 29, 1924, writ-

ten on the letterhead of the Bank of Winslow,

Winslow^, Arizona.

The CLERK.—163, Plaintiff's.

Mr. WILSON.—That is all.

Mr. RYAN.—Are you through with the witness?
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Mr. WILSON.—Yes, sir.

Mr. RYAN.—I wish to move to strike out all

of the testimony of Mr. Schaefer in any way bear-

ing upon the question of funds being available for

the payment of the school warrants, road warrants

and salary warrants as identified in the exhibits,

for the reason that there is no showing that there

was any money in the Bank of Winslow or any

of its branches available at the time of the failure

for the payment of any one of those warrants, the

account being a general account. There has been

no identification of the money in the bank or the

account in that bank as having been deposited from

receipts received by collections of taxes and other

revenues to the school fund, the road fund, the

salary fund or any other of the funds represented

by the warrants which he claimed that he would

have paid or could have paid but did not pay and

for the further reason that it does not appear that

any—at any time—it does appear that there were

other warrants issued in consecutive order against

these funds registered to other parties and that

there has been no such call for the payment of

warrants as would permit the following of the law

that registered warrants be paid when funds are

available in the order in which they were presented

and registered to be called for payment in that

order and no other.

The COURT.—The motion is denied.

Mr. RYAN.—Take an exception for all of the

original defendants.
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TESTIMONY OF A. T. HAMMONS, FOR
PLAINTIFF.

A. T. HAMMONS, being called as a witness on

behalf of the plaintiff and first duly sworn, testi-

fied as follows;

Direct Examination.

(By Mr. WILSON.)
Q. Mr. Hammons, give your name and occupa-

tion.

A. A. T. Hammons, State Superintendent of

Banks.

Q. Were you such State Superintendent of Banks

in May, 1924? A. I was.

Q. At that time under the laws of the State of

Arizona, were all mergers, increases in capital stock

and consolidations in state banks under your super-

vision? A. They were.

Q. At that time, in May, 1924, did the Merchants

and Stock Growers Bank of Holbrook and the Ari-

zona State Bank of Winslow merge and consolidate

with the Bank of Winslow and did the Bank of

Winslow increase its capital stock to $150,000.00?

Mr. McLaughlin.—Now, if your Honor

please, we object to that on the ground that it is

not within the pleadings in this case; that it is in-

competent and irrelevant as to any issue involved

in this action. There is no pleading on the part

of the plaintiff alleging any such consolidation in
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any manner and as far as the pleadings and the

proof go it has no bearing.

Mr. PATTEE.—If the Court please, the plead-

ings plead ultimate facts. It pleads the state of

the accounts—how they came to be that way.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Note our exception on be-

half of all defendants.

A. Now, I would like to have that question

stated to me.

The COURT.—There are two questions—possible

three involved in that question that is propounded.

(Question read.)

A. The Merchants and Stock Growers Bank of

Holbrook and the Arizona State Bank of Winslow

did not merge.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. They assigned and conveyed

to the Bank of Winslow all of their assets, did they

not?

A. No.

Q. Subject to certain guaranties on the part of

the Arizona State Bank and the Merchants and

Stock Growers Bank and their stockholders?

A. They only assigned certain assets and assumed

certain liabilities.

Q. As a matter of fact, Mr. Hammons, 3'ou have

in your possession, as the custodian of such records,

an assigumeut of the Merchants and Stock Growers

Bank hy the President and attested by the Secre-

tary assigning, transferring and conveying the
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assets of that bank to the Bank of Winslow, haven't

you?

A. Certain assets, yes. Not all of them. Not all

of the assets.

Q. Have you that assignment ?

A. I have it in my office somewhere.

Mr. WILSON.—I will ask the witness to produce

it this afternoon at 2:00 o'clock.

Mr. McLaughlin.—If the counsel please, I

believe that he said that that assignment is in our

office at Holbrook.

Mr. WILSON.—It was made in triplicate.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Well, Mr. Hammons' copy

is in our office, I think.

The COURT.—The main thing you want to prove

is when was that assignment of these particular

accounts and warrants and bonds transferred to the

Bank of Winslow. If it is a fact, can you stipu-

late it?

Mr. WILSON.—It is a fact, of course. I am
willing to agree to it rather than take up the time

of producing those records.

The COURT.—Do you know it to be a fact?

Mr. SAPP.—Mr. Hammons has answered it cor-

rectly.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Mr. Hammons' testimony

is correct as to what he has stated.

The COURT.—You have seen the assignment,

haven't you?

Mr. McLaughlin.—Yes, I have seen the as-

signment.
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(Testimony of A. T. Hammons.)

The COURT.—You have examined it and you

know whether these accounts and these bonds and

thses warrants passed to the Bank of Winslow.

Mr. McLaughlin.—No, they are not covered

in that assignment, your Honor.

Mr. WILSON.—By exception, they are.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Well, the assignment, if

you have a copy of it, speaks for itself.

Mr. WILSON.—Isn't that true, Mr. McLaughlin,

there are some exceptions f The rest of it all goes

over ?

A. If you would let me answer

—

Mr. McLaughlin.—Mr. Hammons can state

the details on that.

A. I will state this, your Honor, that there was

certain assets in both of those banks that the Su-

perintendent of Banks would not allow to go into

the—intermingle with the assets of the Bank of

Winslow, because, to my mind, they were worthless.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. That would not include war-

rants ?

A. No, it would not.

Q. It would not include town improvement

bonds? A. No.

Q. And they went over, if there were any, to the

Bank of Winslow? A. Yes.

Mr. WILSON.—That is all.

The COURT.—Q. What was your answer?

A. They did.

(Testimony was thereupon introduced having

reference to warrants of Apache County, which are
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not involved in this matter, so far as the appellants

are concerned; and upon the conclusion of the

testimony of plaintiff, the following proceedings

were had:)

Mr. McLaughlin.—Is that the plaintiff's en-

tire case?

Mr. WILSON.—That is the plaintiff's entire

case.

Mr. McLaughlin.—At this time, your Honor,

the defendants Hammons and Dodson would move

the Court for a dismissal of the action, having

particular reference to the items referred to as the

expense account warrants, on the ground and for

the reason that these warrants—as to these war-

rants there is no evidence which discloses any right

of offset. Now, in argument on that, I would call

the Court's attention to the fact that the evidence

of the plaintiff clearly discloses that there was no

funds available for the payment of these warrajits

and for that reason we believe that the case as to

the expense account warrants should be dismissed,

wdth the exception of that part of the pleading

which asks for the return of warrants from Apache

County.

The COURT.—You all agree to that, do you not?

Mr. WILSON.—I think the objection is well

taken, if your Honor please.

(After argument of counsel with reference to

Apache County warrants, not concerned in this ap-

peal by these appellants, the following proceedings

were had :)
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Mr. McLaughlin.—If your Honor will pardon

me, the disposition of the original motion which I

made, that motion was granted, as I understand 1

Mr. STOCKTON.—What was that motion?

Mr. McLAUGrHLIN.—My motion was with refer-

ence to the expense account warrants; that the ac-

tion be dismissed exclusive of the Apache County

warrants.

The COURT.—No, that motion is not granted.

Mr. McLaughlin.—That was the motion

which Mr. Wilson agreed, as far as his client is

concerned, that it was correct.

Mr. WILSON.—Now, if the Court please, I

would like to correct counsel. I said that we would

admit it to the extent that we were not interested

in claiming an offset for a fund which did not show

any money against it in the Bank of Winslow on

October 4, 1924, so that that would be settled, but

that is far as we go.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Except as to the Apache

County Warrants—you said that the

—

Mr. PATTEE.—There would not be any warrant

for entering a judgment of any kind but that ad-

mission was made for the purpose of relieving the

counsel and the court from the necessity of hearing

any evidence.

Mr. WILSON.—That is the point.

(Argument between counsel.)

Mr. McLaughlin.—The defendants Hammons
and Dodson at this time move the Court, and I be-

lieve this motion is concurred in hv the other de-
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fendants, Mr. Wilson, that the action be dismissed

as to the items of warrants which are shown by

the evidence to have been school warrants, on the

ground and for the reason that it appears from the

evidence and from the law that school bonds are

held by the county as a trustee; that they are not

subject to any offset in favor of the county, it fur-

ther appearing that the warrants are not issued by

the county but are issued by the County Superin-

tendent of schools on particular funds ; that for this

reason there could be no offset of any such funds

allowed in this action, this motion to dismiss as to

the school funds, of course, not applying to the

school fund warrants of Navajo County, which are

on deposit with the County Treasurer of Apache

County.

The COURT.—Merely to the warrants?

Mr. McLaughlin.—To all the warrants, yes.

The COURT.—Well, that is a question that I am
not advised on as to whether or not it is subject

to offset. Is there any statute?

Mr. PATTEE.—These motions are wholly un-

necessary except as they may serve to call the

court's attention to the attitude of counsel. They

are matters of argument when the case is closed.

(Argument continued.)

(After motions made by Mr. Stockton and Mr.

Barth, with which these appellants are not con-

cerned, the following proceedings were had)

:

Mr. McLaughlin.—Now, if your Honor please,

completing our motions on behalf of the defendants,
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we move the court that the action be dismissed as

to all of the funds and as to all of the warrants

referred to in evidence and in the pleadings and as

to all of the issues in the case raised by the plaintiff:

except the issue of the illegal deposit of county

warrants with the Treasurer of Apache Comity, on

the ground and for the reason that the evidence as

adduced here fails to disclose any right of offset, on

the ground that there is no showing that at the

time that the Bank of Winslow closed there existed

any such relation of debtor or creditor as would

justify the allowance of any offset. In other words,

our objection is further that there is no showing

that there was any funds of Apache County on

deposit in this bank—no funds of Navajo County

on deposit in this bank which had been appropriated

for the purpose of paying any of these warrants

and on the further ground that there is nothing

in evidence to show that there was any cash what-

ever in the hands of the Bank of Winslow for the

purpose of paying these warrants.

The COURT.—That motion is denied.

Mr. RYAN.—Just one additional, so we will have

all of these funds covered more specifically. I

move that the action be dismissed—plaintiff's action

be dismissed by reason of all the legal ob-

jections which are raised as legal defenses in

the answer of the defendant county and also

for the reason that there is under the laws of

the State of Arizona no distinction between ex-

pense fund warrants and salary fund warrants;

that under the law salary fund is an expense, so
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made by statute a part of the expense fund and it

appearing distinctly in this case that there was no

expense fund and that the expense fund was over-

drawn to the extent of over $40,000.00 on the 4th

day of October, 1924. It shows that there was no

fund properly available by the Treasurer to pay

any of the so-called salary warrants that have

been introduced here in evidence; for the further

reason that the complaint fails to allege any dere-

liction of duty on the part of the Treasurer in

calling in warrants according to the statute and in

the order in which they were registered, it appear-

ing that there was a large number of registered

warrants on all of these funds and particularly

the salary fund other than those in controversy in

this suit entitled to priority in payment from any

funds whenever available and the compelling of

an offset at this time in favor of the plaintiff

would be to destroy a right of other creditors of

the County of Navajo to priority of payment as

funds come in—became available and were set aside

by the Treasurer and a call made for the payment
of those warrants—no proof of any such call—no

proof of any order of the Board of Supervisors

setting aside any funds to take up registered war-

rants and this court would undertake to direct a

set-off in a case where the set-off under the laws

of the state had not matured, according to the law

applicable to the maturity date and the time for

payment of registered warrants and the manner
and order of payment. That applies not only to

the road warrants. It applies to all the registered
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warrants and particularly to the salary warrants
on the grounds stated.

The COURT.—Motion denied.

Mr. RYAN.—Exception.

Mr. McLaughlin.—I would like to take an
exception to all those recent adverse rulings and I
would like at this time to have an exception noted,
your Honor, and we would like to have one more
motion, and at this time we would like to state for
the record that our previous motions have all been
made without a waiver of the questions of jurisdic-
tion which have heretofore been raised and passed
upon by this court and at this time we move the
court to dismiss the case on the ground and for the
reason that it appears from the evidence as adduced
here that the corjms of this estate is involved in
the action entitled in the matter of the liquidation
of the Bank of Winslow, Winslow, Arizona, having
branch offices at Holbrook, Arizona, and St. Johns,
Arizona, file No. 1865 in the Superior Court of the
State of Arizona in and for the County of Navajo,
the said court being a court of record, having prior
to the commencement of this action acquired juris-
diction of the corpus of the estate and being the
only court which at this time has any jurisdiction
thereof. This objection is made pursuant to the
objection raised heretofore in a motion to dismiss
and also in our answer.

The COURT.—Motion is denied. Are there any
other motions?

Mr. McLaughlin.—Note an exception.
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TESTIMONY OF MISS EOBERTA TANDY,
FOR DEFENDANTS.

Miss ROBERTA TANDY, being called as a wit-

ness on behalf of the defendants and first duly

sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. McLAUGHLIN.

My name is Miss Roberta Tandy. I reside at

Holbrook, Arizona, and I am the deputy clerk of

the Superior Court of Navajo County. I have held

that position since the first of December, 1924. In

the files of the Superior Court, Navajo County,

Arizona, there is a matter or proceeding or an

action entitled "In the Matter of the Liquidation of

the Bank of Winslow, Winslow, Arizona, having

branch offices at Holbrook, Arizona, and St. Johns,

Arizona." I have the files of that action.

Q. Will you ascertain from the files the date

that that action was filed?

Mr. PATTEE.—If the Court please, I will object

to any further testimony along the line of the

pendency of any such proceeding, on the ground

that the purpose of it can only be in support of

the assertion that this court is without jurisdiction

and for reasons that have already been discussed,

and discussed very fully. There is no doubt in

the world that the court has jurisdiction of the

subject matter and, hence, this testimony is both

incompetent and immaterial.

The COURT.—You know it is a fact, however,

that this action was pending?
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(Testimony of Miss Roberta Tandy.)

Mr. PATTEE.—Oh, I haven't any doubt that the

statutes compel a proceeding in an action.

The COURT.—Yes, a proceeding.

Mr. PATTEE.—A proceeding but that it does

not effect the jurisdiction of this court either over

the person of the Superintendent of Banks or the

subject matter of this particular suit.

The COURT.—That is a question that has been

argued to this Court before. The objection will be

overruled and the evidence may be admitted. It

is a question of argument.

Mr. PATTEE.—Note our exception and we will

reserve the same objection to all testimony along

this line and an exception to the ruling of the court.

(The last question was read by the reporter and

the witness answered: "October 14, 1924.")

(The witness continues:) That action is still

pending before that court and has not been disposed

of. There is no order in the files of that court em-

powering or authorizing the Maryland Casualty

Co., to bring this action. I am the clerk that has

active charge of the filing of documents, and have

made an examination of the docket in the case,

and I know there is no such order. I believe there

is no claim filed by the Maryland Casualty Co. in

that matter, and I have the complete files of that

matter here with me, and there is no such claim in

these files.

(There was no cross-examination of this witness.)
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TESTIMONY OF J. S. DODSON, FOR DE-
FENDANTS.

J. S. DODSON, being called as a witness on

behalf of the defendants and being first duly sworn,

testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. RYAN.

I was the Assistant Superintendent of Banks

who took charge—took possession of the Bank of

Winslow and its branches for the Superintendent

of Banks, when they closed. I have in my posses-

sion a memorandum from which I can refresh my
memory as to the amount of cash money that was in

the Bank on the 4th day of October, 1924.

The COURT.—This applies to the 4th day of

October %

Mr. RYAN.—At the time it failed, your Honor.

Mr. WILSON.—If the Court pleases, I am going

to object to that as immaterial. It makes no

difference how much the cash the bank had. The
testimony has been that the county had so much
on deposit. We claim an offset. We claim an

offset against the deposit, not against the cash in

the bank when it closed, the deposit constituting a

contract between the county and the bank and the

warrants constituting another contract between the

bank and the county. It is not a question of how
mucfi cash was in that bank. We are not trying

to follow a trust fund or embrace the cash that was
in the bank with the trust. It is a deposit proposi-

tion and we object to this testimony as absolutely
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(Testimony of J. S. Dodson.)

immaterial. It has nothing to do with our claim

of offset.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. WILSON.—Exception.
Mr. RYAN.—You may answer, Mr. Dodson.

A. Will you read the question again please?

The COURT.—This relates to cash?

Mr. RYAN.—On hand in the banks—this insol-

vent bank with its two or three branches.

Mr. WILSON.—Now, if the Court please, I am
going to make the further objection that no proper

foundation has been laid for this question and it is,

therefore, incompetent and irrelevant.

The COURT.—In what way no foundation was

laid?

Mr. WILSON.—No foundation, because the books

of the bank are the best evidence of what cash it

had or other cash assets at the time that it closed.

This witness is asked to testify concerning some-

thing which is a written record, which is the best

evidence of the fact that he is asked to testify con-

cerning.

Mr. RYAN.—The witness, your honor, has said

that he was the one that took possession and I

am practically asking him how much tangible cash

he found in the Bank of Winslow and its various

branches. That is a matter of knowledge just as

—

The COURT.—Are you asking for all cash in the

bank?

Mr. RYAN.—That he found in the bank.

The COURT.—Or cash to the credit—
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Mr. RYAN.—I am asking for the actual cash

that he found in that bank at the time—and its

various branches on the 4th of October when he took

possession of it.

The COURT.—That is a different question, it

seems to me.

Mr. RYAN.—What?
Mr. WILSON.—I renew my objection that it is

immaterial, if your Honor please. I can't see the

materiality of it or the relevancy of it in any way.

(Argument continued. )

The COURT.—You are objecting on the ground

that it is immaterial*?

Mr. WILSON.—Yes, sir.

The COURT.—The objection is sustained.

Mr. RYAN.—Take an exception, your Honor.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Exception on the part of

all defendants.

Mr. BARTH.—Exception on the part of inter-

venor Apache County.

Mr. RYAN.—In connection w^ith that, if your

Honor please, may I make another or further otfer

that it is my intention or purpose to attempt to

prove that at the time ij[ie bank closed its doors

there was not to exceed $32,000.00 of tangible cash

in all of the branches of that bank and I want to

prove it by this witness either by the books or some

other way. Will I be permitted to do so?

The COURT.—Well, you can offer to prove it.

If an objection is made the chances are I will

sustain the objection on the ground that it is im-

material.
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Mr. RYAN.—Q. Well, then, I will ask that after

that—I will ask if the statement which I have

made is substantially correct as to the amount of

cash you found in the branches—the aggregate

amount ?

A. It is.

Mr. WILSON.—I will object to the question as

immaterial.

The COURT.—The objection is sustained.

Mr. RYAN.—Save an exception to the ruling on

that.

The COURT.—I don't think it makes any dif-

ference if there was ten cents in that bank at the

time it closed its doors.

(Argument between Court and counsel.)

Mr. RYAN.—Now, the stipulation, may it please

your Honor, is that there was on deposit to the

credit of Navajo County so many dollars. That

simply means that that fifty-one thousand some odd

dollars was a credit to Navajo—the amount of

the debt of the bank to Navajo $51,209.75, regard-

less of the point which I am now trying to show,

that if on that date a demand had been made even

to transfer that credit to some solvent or some

other bank, I want to show and prove by this wit-

ness that at the date the bank closed its doors that

if a demand had been made on that bank for $51,-

209.75 that bank could not have paid it.

The COURT.—I believe it is immaterial and I

have so held.

Mr. McLaughlin.—An exception is noted on

behalf of all defendants.
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Direct Examination of Mr. Dodson by Mr. MC-

LAUGHLIN.

After the Bank of Winslow was taken over by

the Superintendent of Banks, Mr. Hammons, I re-

mained in active charge of the Bank for some time

—approximately nine months, and during that time

I filed certain papers and documents in the Su-

perior Court of Navajo County, Arizona, together

v^ith my attorneys. My actions in that matter were

all under the direction of Mr. Hammons who had

taken charge of the bank, and I acted pursuant to

appointment received from Mr. Hammons, which

appointment was duly filed with the Superior Court

of Navajo County, Arizona, and I gave a bond,

and at the time this suit was brought I was Special

Deputy Superintendent of Banks in charge under

Mr. Hammons, and had the ssets of the Bank of

Winslow in my possession as such special deputy.

I filed in the Superior Court of Navajo County,

Arizona, an inventory of those as required by law.

I have in my hand at this time a copy of that

inventory. Among the assets of the Bank of Wins-
low reported in the inventory there are $7,000.00 of

Winslow Improvement Bonds. These are the

Winslow improvement bonds which were received

from Mr. Schaefer. Among the assets I also ascer-

tained there were several Navajo County warrants;

some of them were payable to the Bank of Winslow
direct and some of which were payable to various

other parties.
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Direct Examination by Mr. RYAN.

(Witness continues:) After I took possession, I

made an effort to collect or have paid the war-

rants held by me as assistant superintendent of

banks. Shortly after I took charge of the bank

—

The Bank owed something like one hundred sixty

thousand, a hundred thousand or one hundred six-

teen thousand to the First of Albuquerque, which

I paid. There was approximately $43,000.00 still

due in bills payable to the First of Los Angeles,

and, if I remember correctly, I took the matter

up of these bonds and county warrants and was try-

ing to raise the money on them and get the money
from the county in order to liquidate the outstand-

ing bills payable with the First National of Los

Angeles,

Mr. WILSON.—Just a minute. I move to strike

the question and answer as being immaterial and

not tending to prove any issue in this case.

The COURT.—What is the purpose of it?

Mr. RYAN.—If your Honor pleases, there is

some testimony that the County Treasurer would

have taken some funds to pay certain of these war-

rants.

Mr. WILSON.—Before the bank closed.

Mr. RYAN.—Before the bank closed but, when
they are presented in due course of business by the

successor of the business, who by law acquired and
has title to all of those assets, they were not paid

and still, according to the records, appear to have

not been paid on February 25, at the commencement
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of this suit as bearing upon the question of whether

Mr. Schaefer's ideas of what he could pay were war-

rants by the circumstances.

Mr. WILSON.—Apart from the immateriality

of the statement of the counsel, the fact was that

the Treasurer was enjoined by this court from pay-

ing these warrants as an independent

—

Mr. RYAN.—Not at that time.

The COURT.—Q. To whom did you present

them to?

A. I could not say that I really presented them

in person to anyone but I took the matter up with

the County Treasurer's office and I was informed

that there was no money to pay them.

Mr. WILSON.—Objected to, if the Court please,

because it was apparent that the money was in the

Bank of Winslow and the County Trea-surer had

a right to refuse to pay them under the circum-

stances. He was strictly within his right and

probably within his lawful duty. I reiterate my
objection.

Mr. RYAN.—The fact is that there is no proof

that there was any money in the Bank of Winslow
to pay these particular warrants. The testimony

is that the Treasurer had some money somewhere

with which to pay.

The COURT.—He thought he had $51,000.00 in

the Bank of Winslow.

Mr. RYAN.—That is the testimony.

The COURT.—He should have had it there too.
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Mr. RYAN.—I agree with you there but it ap-

pears that he did not have money except

—

The COURT.—The objection to this question

will be sustained.

Mr. RYAN.—Take an exception, your Honor. I

think that is all.

Mr. McLaughlin.—At this time, we offer to

prove by the witness on the stand tha^ immediately

subsequent to the closing of the Bank of Winslow

on the 4th day of October, 1924, and prior to the

issuance of a restraining order in this proceed-

ing the witness on the stand, as Special Deputy

Superintendent of Banks, asked the County Treas-

urer to cash these warrants.

The COURT.—You just interrogated the witness.

I think that when the witness says that he—that

your offer includes more than you can elicit from

him. You had better ask the question for the rec-

ord.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Q. Did you at any time,

Mr. Dodson, subsequent to the taking over of the

bank and prior to the issuance of a restraining

order in this case ask Mr. Schaefer to cash these

warrants ?

A. I discussed the matter with him quite fre-

quently up until the

—

Mr. WILSON.—I repeat my objection, if tlie

Court please.

The COURT.—The objection is sustained.

'^\v. RYAN.—Take an exception.
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Mr. McLaughlin.—An exception. Q. When
did you have a conversation with Mr. Schaefer

with reference to cashing these warrants?

Mr. WILSON.—I repeat my objection to thart

question.

The COURT.—Same ruling. Sustained.

Mr. McLALTGHLIN.—Therefore, your Honor,

we continue with our offer of proof. At this time,

we offer to prove by the witness on the stand that

shortly subsequent to taking over the Bank of

Winslow by the Superintendent of Banks pursuant

to statutes and under the supervision and control

of the Superior Court of Navajo County, Arizona,

the witness on the stand, a-s Special Deputy Super-

intendent of Banks, asked the County Treasurer

to cash these warrants but was informed by the

County Treasurer thai: as to these warrants there

were no funds available, the warrants referred to

being the registered warrants referred to hereto-

fore frequently in this litigation.

Mr. WILSON.—If the Court pleases, I object

to that as immaterial, and for the further reason

that it now appears that: the witness will testify

to no such facts.

Mr. McLaughlin.—I think that last state-

ment is uncalled for, your Honor. There is no

showing what the witness will testify to. He has

not been allowed to testify.

Mr. WILSON.—Questions were asked him and

he did not testify to any such fact.
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The COURT.—Your question limits the time
until after the 4th of October?

Mr. McLaughlin.—After the 4th of October.

The COURT.—Objection sustained.

Mr. RYAN.—Take an exception.

Mr. McLAUOHLIN.—Except on our behalf.

The COURT.—You say you had some additional

evidence to offer?

Mr. McLaughlin.—If your Honor please, the

defendants have some. Mr. Ryan has some to offer.

Mr. RYAN.—I have some documentary evidence

here. I would like to have the Clerk mark this as

an exhibit for identification, if you will.

The COURT.—Mark it the appropriate number

of defendants—appropriate letter, I believe it is.

The CLERK.—I think it will be "E." As one

exhibit or are there two parts?

Mr. RYAN.—There are two sheets but it is all

one current subject.

The COURT.—Mark it one exhibit.

The CLERK.—Defendant's Exhibit ''E."

Mr. RYAN.—I am offering this Defendants' Ex-

hibit "E" for identification, which purports and

is a published record of the proceedings of the

Board of Super\dsors of Navajo County and shows

what purports to be adopted budge—finally

adopted budget and estimated expenditure made

by that county made pursumit I claim the hnv to

be and published after adoption, as the law re-

quired it to be published. I offer this last paper

—

official publication exhibiting for itself.
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The COURT.—You offer it in evidence?

Mr. RYAN.—Yes.
Mr. WILSON.—Objected to as immaterial, if

the Court pleases. We don't think this has any-

thing to do with the issues in this case. The budget

prepared by the Board of Supervisors does not in-

dicate, nor does it prove, what was collected and

on hand in the different funds on October 4, 1924,

and our claims originate upon that dscte and be-

cause of the condition of the bank at that date and

the condition of the Treasurer's office on that date

as regards moneys in these different funds, I can't

see the materiality of it for that reason and we

object to it on that score.

(Argument.)

. The COURT.—Objection is overruled. It may
be admitted.

Mr. WILSON.—Exception.

The CLERK.—Correct that last offer to show it

''D" instead of "E."

TESTIMONY OF A. T. HAMMONS, FOR DE-
FENDANTS.

A. T. HAMMONS, having been heretofore duly

sworn, was called as a witness on behalf of the

defendants and first duly sworn and testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination by Mr. McLAUGHLIN.

I testified last week that I took charge of the

Bank of Winslow as Superintendent of Banks of
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the State of Arizona on October 4, 1924, and snbse-

quent thereto filed in the Superior Court of Navajo

County the inventory return required by statute.

At the time that this suit was commenced, I was

acting under the orders of the Superior Court of

Navajo County. I am still actiug in the same

capacity with reference to the liquidation of the

Bank of Winslow.

(Thereupon defendants rested.)

TESTIMONY OF GEORGE J. SCHAEFER,
FOR PLAINTIFF (RECALLED).

GEORGE J. SCHAEFER, having been hereto-

fore duly sworn, was recalled for further examina-

tion on behalf of the plaintiff and testified as fol-

lows:

Direct Examination by Mr. WILSON.

Q. Mr. Schaefer, when you were on the witness-

stand the other day, you testified, if I remember

rightly, that the salary fund had nearly enough

to take up all of the warrants then outstanding on

October 4, 1924, but perhaps not quite enough. Do

you desire to correct that testimony? A. I do.

Q. Will you state the facts as to that?

A. The only correction I hinc*

—

Mr. RYAN.—Just a moment. I object to the

statement of this witness as to what those funds

—

what appeared by those funds. There is better

evidence as to the condition of those funds than

the memory of this witness.
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Mr. WILSON.—If the Court please, the witness

can certainly testify as to his own knowledge as to

whether he had money enough on October 4, 1924,

to meet all of the sa-lary warrants outstanding. He
must know what was the condition of his office at

that time.

The COURT.—Doesn't he get that information

from books, Mr. Wilson.

Mr. WILSON.—Yes, sir, but he must have first-

hand knowledge of it as County Treasurer. It is

his duty to know it.

Mr. Mclaughlin.—I believe, your Honor,

that the records themselves would be the best evi-

dence as to the state of the County Treasurer.

Mr. WILSON.—I am willing to put them in if

your Honor insists but I think the—just get your

records.

Mr. RYAN.—And the further objection to it, if

your Honor plearse, is that it is immaterial what

may appear to be a salary fund, because, under the

present theory the law of the State of Arizona,

there is no distinction between a salary fund and

the expense fund and it appesrrs from the testimony

already in and from the books that the expense

fund, which includes and covers salaries, expenses

of offices and other things, was forth thousand odd

dollars in the red on the 4th day of October, 1924,

and no matter if he

—

Mr. WILSON.—Thaf is a question of law which

your Honor is called upon to decide not at this time.

Mr. RYAN.—It is a question of law.
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The COURT.—That objection will be overruled.
Mr. McLaughlin.—Note an exception on be-

half of Hammons and Dodson.

Mr. RYAN.—An exception.

Mr. STOCKTON.—Does your Honor have in

mind that the statute says that the salary claims

are included within the expense fund?
Mr. WILSON.—It is a question of apportion-

ment.

The COURT.—You may cross-examine as to that

and if he testifies, you may call

—

Mr. STOCKTON.—I reserve the right to my
cross-examination, hoping we were going to get

through without putting in any evidence.

(Witness produces books.)

Mr. WILSON.—Q'. Now, Mr. Schaefer, you have

the books of your office?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Will you tuiii to your salary account. Will

you state what your balance was on October 4,

1924?

:\lr. STOCKTON.—If your Honor please, on

behalf of the interveners, we object to a statement

of the witness from his books with reference to a

siTlary account, for the reason that the law does not

provide that any designation or distribution shall

be made in the form of salaries or moneys for

salaries—accounts in general and I wish to call

your Honor's attention to two i)aragriTphs of our

code in that connection. (Reading.)

(Argiiment.)
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The COURT.—Objection is overruled.

Mr. STOCKTON.—An exception, please.

Mr. RYAN.—An exception on the part of all the

original defendants.

Mr. BARTH.—Exception on the part of inter-

venor Apache County.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. Will you state what was on

that salary account on October 4, 1924, from your

books ?

Mr. STOCKTON.—We object to that on the fur-

ther ground that it is calling for a conclusion of

the witness as to that darte. If he gives the specified

dates of transfers to that fund and from what it

was transferred, we would have no objection.

The COURT.—You will have an opportunity to

ascertain that on cross-examination. The objection

is overruled.

Mr. STOCKTON.—An exception, please.

Mr. RYAN.—An exception.

A. $5,345.41.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. Now, Mr. Schaefer, have you

examined your registration record for warrants and

can you state from that examination whether on

that date you had enough money to take up your

salary warrants then outstanding?

Mr. RYAN.—I object to that. He is referring

to a record which will be the best evidence of the

existence of registered warrants.

The COURT.—Isn't there evidence in the case

as to the amount of those warrants ?
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Mr. STOCKTON.—No. That is the objection I
was going- to make, tha:t is, that the amount of the

outstanding warrants is an immaterial issue.

The COURT.—Salary warrants?

Mr. STOCKTON.—Yes. From which the Court
will then determine. That is not in the record.

We object to the question because it calls for a

conclusion of the witness. We harve no objection

to his telling how many outstanding warrants there

were.

(Argument.)

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McLaughlin.—Exception.
Mr. WILSON.—Q. Will you state whether, Mr.

Schaefer, from your registration book you can com-

pute the number of outstanding warrants, not in-

cluding those pledged to you by the Bank of Wins-

low on October 4, 1924? Can that be done from

your record?

Mr. STOCKTON.—We object to that question

upon the grounds that it is immarterial whether he

can compute them or not by excluding those

pledged to him as Treasurer of Navajo County.

The question, if it is material at all, must relate

to all outstanding salary warramts.

The COURT.—He may compute those outside

of those that were pledged and you can cross-exam-

ine him. Objection is overruled.

Mr. WILSON.—Q. Will you do that?

A. Here is the point—the reason for my correc-

tion, if I may explain it. I stated that there wirs

I
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over $6,000.00 in salary warrants outstanding but

in that I included fourteen hundred seventy some

odd dollars of back salary warrants that were issued

two or three years prior to my time and were in

litigation in court at the time and my understand-

ing at the time was tEat they were to be charged

to the salary fund and I found later that there was

to be a back salary fund and they were to be

charged to that and I included those in these war-

rants and I wanted to correct it. My report shows

that I charged to the general fund before those

particulai' warrants for the back salary funds.

Mr. WILSON.—That is the situation. I am
not very certain, under the circumstances, how I

ought to proceed; I will put the registration book

in and ask him the question and then it is a matter

of computation for anybody. Of course, I will put

in his computation.

The COURT.—You needn't introduce the book.

You may read from it any entries.

Mr. WILSON.—It will take a long time to put

them all in. There are a great many small items.

The COURT.—Oh, I see.

Mr. STOCKTON.—So far as we are concerned,

we have no objection to the witness stating how

many outstanding wan-rants unpaid there were on

that date. We don't care about him taking up each

individual one of them. Our objection was as to

his conclusion as to what was in the fund.

A. Mr. Ryan can help me on that. I run a tape

for Mr. Ryan last Tuesday of outstanding warrants
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other than those that the Bank of Winslow held

and, if he can furnish such a tape, I can

—

Mr. RYAN.—If you run such a tape for me, I

don't remember it.

Mr. McLaughlin.—I believe I have that. I

son not sure that I have.

Mr. RYAN.—Q. Now, isn't it a fact—excuse me
—isn't it a fact that that tape that you made in

my office wa's amounts of warrants which were

registered prior to October 4, 1924, and still out-

standing as to date July 1, 1925?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that tape and no computation that you

have made would be a basis of showing how many

actual registered waiTants on the salary fund were

outstanding on October 4, 1924?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You haven't computed it, have you?

A. I can tell from that tape within a veiy little

amount, I imagine.

Q. Could you tell from the tape?

A. From that tape that we run off the other day.

Q. Well, that tape and that computation included

those that remained outstanding in July, 1925, and

still unpaid?

A. Yes, sir, because I did not take up any after

that, because of the shortage of money due to bank

fjxilure. They stayed outstanding until we floated

a bond issue.

]\Ir. RYAN.—If your Honor ])k\ise, it may take

some time but it is nuiteria-l in this case. It is a
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material feature in this case as to the total number

of outstanding- warrants of Navajo County at the

time this bank failed. If there is any book here,

I would like to be permitted to insist upon strict

proof according to the records which the law re-

quires the County Treasurer to make and keep of

registered warrants. It requires him to keep a

warrant register in w^hich the dates, numbers and

amounts are registered in the order of presentation.

The COUET.—Q. Do you have that record, Mr.

Schaefer ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you produce it, can you not?

Mr. WILSON.—It is right here.

A. Yes, sir.

The COURT.—Q. How long will it take you?

A. To list them and all?

Mr. STOCKTON.—Read them into the record.

A. It will take quite a while.

Mr. WILSON.—You will make a record two

days long.

The COURT.—Can't you gentlemen examine

that and stipulate as to that?

Mr. RYAN.—We have tried to examine it at

one time, if your Honor please, and the items are

marked up and when you get down to, as we some-

times say, brass tacks, the books don't show and

the witness don't know at the particular time

when these w^arrants were paid or registered.

Mr. WILSON.—If the Court please, I take ob-

jection or exception to that remark. The point
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is there is outstanding certain warrants of the

Bank of Winslow and they have been offered in

evidence. There are certain warrants in the

hands of the treasurer of Apache County and they

are here, although the list has been admitted all

of the way through as being a true list without

the original warrants.

Mr. BARTH.—I object-

Mr. WILSON.—Just a minute.

Mr. BARTH.—If the Court please, to being ad-

mitted

—

The COURT.—I can't hear you both at once.

Let him finish and then I will hear you.

Mr. WILSON.—What I mean is that they have

attached to their own pleading a copy of all of

those warrants. Therefore, they can't deny that

they have them. Now, the point is that outside

of those held by the Bank of Winslow or pledged

to Navajo or Apache County, there seems to have

been very few warrants, and so far as the witness

is concerned, I assume he would have very little

trouble in digging those others out. All of the

rest of them are in here and he could take out all

of those that are not in evidence or in the record

now in a very short while, if it is required. My
own view of that was that it was not going to be

required, because we had practically gone over

this record in the afternoon the day that we come

on in beautiful Phoenix. It was admitted that

there w^re no doubt about certain figures and as

regards the salary figure, that was slightly erron-
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eous. His testimony is correct as regards that

particular item except that he said $6,000.00 in-

stead of $5,000.00 and he wanted to correct it and

I am putting him here for that purpose.

Mr. RYAN.—If your Honor please, might I

suggest, before any computation be made that we

be permitted to examine the witness as to what

his so-called warrant book from which that com-

putation is to be made does and does not show as

a matter of definite record?

The COURT.—Yes, you may examine it in his

presence.

Mr. RYAN.—I mean, for the record, before we

go into having some computation made by the wit-

ness from the book.

The COURT.—Yes, you may do that. I want

to suggest to you that you had better finish this

matter before to-morrow night, because if you

don't, you won't have any Court here to take care

of it.

The COURT.—Q. Mr. Schaefer, turn to your

salary register. Do you keep that registry-book

with respect to separate funds'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, from what date of start to what date

of finish does this book that you call the warrant

register cover? A. July 1923.

Q. This particular salary fund, confine it to

that one.

A. September, 1925.

Q. Commencing at the beginning of the entries



170 A. T. Hammons and J. S. Dodson

(Testimony of George J. Scbaefer.)

on this book, there were some registered—there

were some registry warrants—some warrants out-

standing that were carried along from 1923—

I

think you said that to-day? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In your explanation. Now, turn to the

time that you paid those warrants and read into

the record what entries you have made with re-

spect to that payment. A. What?

Q. You say that you have refreshed your mem-
ory and changed your testimony since you were

on the stand first?

A. Yes, but I don't get your question, Mr.

Ryan. If I have to have an attorney in here to

protect me in your questions, I am going to get

one. I don't like to be boobed on the stand like

this.

Q. You say you made a mistake in your figures

the other day because of the fact that there was

some 1923 warrants that had been carried along,

and in your testimony the other day you did not

know what disposition and you found that they

had been paid?

The COURT.—Warrants that were in litiga-

tion.

A. There were older warrants in litigation.

They were considered back salary warrants and

I had never seen them but I knew there were

some salary warrants that were in the court.

Q. Where do those warrants appear upon that

record ?

A. I don't know. It is far before my time.
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Mr. WILSON.—He has already testified it was.

before his time and that book starts on July, 1923.

Q. Now, back at the first warrant that appears

registered in this book, that is your time, is it not,

this book? A. Yes, right there.

Q. What is that item? A. Warrant No. 2317.

Q. How much?

A. Treasurer's No. 1 for $75.05.

Q. Does it show when that was paid?

A. Yes, sir, paid May 10, 1924.

Q. Now, the next five warrants, does this show

when they were paid? A. Same date.

Q. This other item here is simply marked paid.

Read that item across—I mean here—see.

The COURT.—These are all salary warrants?

A. Yes, sir. It reads Warrant No. 3212, Regis-

ter No. 9, in the amount of $75.00.

Mr. RYAN.—Q. That is marked paid. Is there

anything in the books to indicate when it was

paid?

A. Only by my cash book is the only way I can

prove that.

Q. Now, there is two other items on that same

page 32 are the only indication with respect to

warrants that they are paid; is that not true?

Mr. WILSON.—If the Court please, I can't see

the materiality of this line of questioning. Those

warrants that he says he is pointing out now are

not involved in this case. They are paid and, re-

gardless of whatever records he made of that fact,

they are not involved in this case.



172 A. T. Hammons and J. S. Dodson

(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

The COURT.—Q. When does the record show

they were paid?

A. There is a few just plainly marked paid

here.

Mr. RYAN.—May I show this book to your

Honor ?

A. And no date. The date is not in there. We
work by the cash-book.

The COURT.—Q. You can't tell by this book?

A. No, sir.

Mr. RYAN.—They are marked paid. There is

no record.

Mr. WILSON.—It is marked paid. What is

the materiality of it, may I ask, if the Court

please? He is making a large point out of the

fact when there is no date in there when he has

records in his office which would prove the date.

That is not material if it is paid and it appears

in his record they are paid and that is the ulti-

mate fact.

Mr. RYAN.—Q. Now, I call your attention to

Warrants No. 2330, 2319, 2318, 2310, 2336, 2308,

2324, 2326, and ask you whether or not from the

book before you those warrants do not still appear

to be outstanding?

A. They were with the Bank of Winslow when

they quit.

Q. How do you know they were with the Bank

of Winslow?

A. I know those particular warrants that you
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have had listed here were in among those war-

rants.

Q. There is no evidence on the book to show

where they are located, is there?

A. No—yes, it does—Merchants and Stock

Growers Bank. That is the Holbrook branch of

the Bank of Winslow.

Q. What is the situation with reference to the

next page? There are a lot of warrants marked

paid on page 33 and no date of payment appears,

is there not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the same appears on page 34—there are

several warrants there that—Union Bank & Trust

Co.—do you know when you paid those warrants?

A. Not from this record I do not.

Q. Now, on page 35 there is no date at all as to

the time you paid any warrants? A. No, sir.

Q. And the first fourteen warrants appear un-

paid, do they not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Page 36, there is no entry of warrants paid,

with no date as to when they were paid?

A. No, sir.

Q. Then, as a matter of fact, you cannot com-

pute from that book the amount of warrants out-,

standing and unpaid against the salary fund in-

dependent of your memory, now. I am asking

you from the book itself?

A. I am trying to figure out whether I can or

not. Not accurately, I can't.

Q. Not accurately? A. Not from this alone.

The COURT.—Q. But you can from that—
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(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

A. I use a cash-book in connection with this.

Q. Is that here? A. No, sir.

Mr. EYAN.—I move to strike from the record

all testimony of this witness relative to the war-

rants outstanding on the date October 4, 1924.

The COURT.—You can't say definitely what

was outstanding?

A. I can from these lists that were put in evi-

dence. I have testified to those lists previous to

this time.

Mr. WILSON.—If the Court please, I might

state that the list which was compiled as a true

copy of his records was introduced and offered

without any objection and it is in evidence now.

Those were three records, dividing the various

ones 1, 2, 3, 4 and they are already in the record

as regards those which are outstanding or were out-

standing on October 4, registered from October 4,

1923 to October 4, 1924, and that record of those

outstanding is what he testified to and that has

been the basis of the subsequent

—

Mr. STOCKTON.—May I ask a question, Mr.

Wilson?

Mr. WILSON.—Yes.
Mr. STOCKTON.—Q. The list that you referred

to do not pretend to show the outstanding war-

rants but only those that were outstanding and in-

volved in this litigation?

Mr. WILSON.—To-day?
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Mr. STOCKTON.—The list that you referred

to do not pretend to show a list of all the out-

standing warrants?

Mr. WILSON.—No.
Mr. STOCKTON.—Only a list of those that are

involved in this litigation?

Mr. WILSON.—These lists contain all, whether

or not held by the Bank of Winslow, if I am cor-

rect—I think I am correct in that.

Mr. RYAN.—Yes, but with due respect, it says

lists of warrants unpaid May 25, 1925. No evi-

dence as to what was—that, that is

—

Mr. WILSON.—Warrants issued by Navajo

County, Arizona, on expense fund registered Oc-

tober 4, 1923, to October 4, 1924, unpaid on May
25, 1925. We do not go back to October 4, 1924,

and these show the list that were unpaid at any

subsequent date. It may have been any other date

but it only shows those that were registered prior

to October 4, and which were then outstanding.

That is all.

(Argument continued.)

Mr. STOCKTON.—I should like to ask the wit-

ness just one question, if I may, which I think

would elicit the whole situation.

A. Mr. Schaefer, Plaintiff's Exhibit 162 in evi-

dence, which I hold in my hands, says, under a

column designated "Held by," a lot of initials, I

will ask you if every single one of them does not

refer to the Bank of Winslow or some of its

branches ?
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(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

A. Except the first item. That is an original

—

Arizona State. With the exception of the first

one, which is the Arizona State, which later be-

come a part of the Bank of Winslow.

Q. Then all of the warrants shown by Plain-

tiff ^s Exhibit 2 are warrants which on October 4,

1924, was held by the Bank of Winslow?

A. Yes.

Q. And there is not shown on Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 162 in evidence warrants theretofore issued

and registered and outstanding held by any other

party, is there? A. No.

Q. There were other warrants? A. Yes.

Mr. STOCKTON.—Now, if the Court please,

that is typical, as I understand the

—

A. I don't know. I think I checked that the

other day. I don't know whether I found any

other or not.

(Argument by counsel.)

Mr. WILSON.—May I expedite this a little bit,

if the Court please? We will agree that Mr.

Schaefer and counsel may take this registration

book and check it off and see how many warrants

there were outside of those that are in the record

in this warrant book. I doubt if they find any

except in the salary fund.

The COURT.—And the total amount of them,

is that what you want?

Mr. WILSON.—The total amount.
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Cross-examination by Mr. McLAUGHLIN.

We occasionally omit one of the registered war-

rants on the warrant register. We register a war-

rant and fail to record it. There are some regis-

tered warrants, to my knowledge, that are not en-

tered in this warrant register. I know of about

six that I saw on my desk the other day. There

are two entered in the wrong name and four

omitted. They are all registered but not entered

—I can vouch for the verity of the warrant regis-

ter by my own check. If I took this blue-print

of mine and those two, my cash proves the date of

payments. I do not have the cash record with

me. And I don't want to be understood at this

time as stating that the warrant register is abso-

lutely correct.

Mr. McLaughlin.—Then, if your Honor

please, we believe that subject to the objection

that it is incompetent. It is unreliable. It is not

a correct set of books and we move to strike all

of the evidence of this witness bearing upon this

set of books, which are admittedly unreliable.

The COURT.—Q. Have you seen the warrants

that are omitted^

A. Yes, sir.

Q. All of them?

A. I think so. I made a more correct and an

absolute accurate list, I think, in July, which in-

cluded all of these.

Q. Where is iti
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(Testimony of George J. Schaefer.)

A. Right on that desk over there.

The COURT.—I am not going to waste my time

sitting here listening to this. If you can get to-

gether and look those records over and stipulate

and agree to anything, very well, why, come in and

thresh it out.

(Argument between Court and counsel.)

The COURT.—It is a question of whether or

not it was appropriated to the salary account

properly. It don't make any difference to me
whether the money was in the Bank or not but

whether or not this particular fund has been prop-

erly handled.

Mr. STOCKTON.—We want to find out, as far

as we are concerned, by what process the fund

—

The COURT.—As far as set-off is concerned, it

is the depositary money in the bank that could

be set off as against the warrants.

Mr. BARTH.—Why, I think not. I think that

in addition to that

—

The COURT.—I think you will find that the

judgment of this Court will go to that extent.

Mr. BARTH.—Regardless of whether he had

any money there?

The COURT.—Regardless of whether the money
was there in the ])ank or not. If he deposited the

money in the bank, even at that time when the

bank failed and it was not a day there.

Mr. BARTH.—Then, the Court would rule that

it was available if he had deposited it? Now this

is our view

—
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The COURT.—It is available for set-off.

(Argument of counsel.)

Mr. WILSON.—Now, if your Honor please, with

that statement, we will specifically state for the

record that so far as we are concerned we are

content with the proof, because it shows that these

warrants are already in evidence and it shows

from his books funds that could be offset against

those warrants. Now, that is all there is.

Mr. STOCKTON.—You are withdrawing the

witness, then, are you?

Mr. WILSON.—We don't care one way or the

other. I wanted to give the witness a chance to

correct himself.

THEREUPON, at the hour of 4:55 P. M., the

court took recess, and at the hour of 9:45 A. M.,

January 12, 1926, counsel being present, the fol-

lowing proceedings were had:

The COURT.—Gentlemen, in the Bank of Wins-

low, the question of the right of set-off, it won't

take you long to submit that and without any

lengthy arguments? I think I am interested in

knowing what the duties of the receiver are in

adjusting the affairs of the county and bank

—

County of Navajo—if it is his duty to offset against

the deposits of warrants held by the bank.

Mr. WILSON.—We are prepared to argue and

I think I can submit it in twenty minutes.

Mr. STOCKTON.—I should like to say this, if

your Honor please, as far as we are concerned,

an examination of these records, going over it
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with Mr. Schaefer, discloses to our satisfaction that

while there is an apparent overdraft from the

general expense account, it is one that was in-

herited by him—one that has been reduced by him

during his administration and, in the expense ac-

count as it would effect any moneys in the hands

of Navajo County, he has received more money

property distributed to the expense account than

he has paid out of the expense account, so that

we do not care to further pursue the cross-exami-

nation indicated last evening.

The COURT.—How about the other defendants?

Mr. STOCKTON.—An examination of this

record shows that he receipts for more money.

The COURT.—How about the other defend-

ants? Do they care to go into that? We will take

up these arguments now.

(Arguments.)

The COURT.—Now, Mr. Wilson, the question of

the right of receiver, what are the receiver's duties

in adjusting the affairs?

(There was then some discussion and argument

by Court and counsel, as to the rights of the inter-

veners, with which the appellants herein are not

concerned.) Thereupon all parties rested.

It is further stipulated and agreed at the time

of the trial of the case and thereafter, which stipu-

lation does not appear in the transcript of evi-

dence, that the actual amount of school warrants

as shown by the evidence was Six Thousand, Three

Hundred Thirteen and 38-100 ($6,313.38) Dollars,

notwithstanding any discrepancy between these fig-
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ures and those shown by a computation of the list

of school warrants and the warrants produced by

the Superintendent of Banks at the time of trial.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 1.

SCHOOL WARRANTS.

GENERAL FUND.
Warrant No. 61.

Holbrook, Arizona, September 6, 1924.

THE TREASURER OF NAVAJO COUNTY:
Pay to the order of Bank of Winslow, $366.66,

THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-SIX and 66-100

DOLLARS, and charge to School District No. 1,

on account of teaching in said School District.

This warrant shall draw interest at the Rate of

.... % from the date this warrant is marked NO
FUNDS BY THE COUNTY TREASURER.

Signed, KATE V. KINNEY,
County School Superintendent.

NOTE:—Interest on this Warrant shall stop

when the County Treasurer has given notice that

there are funds to the credit of this School District

for payment of this Warrant.

School Warrant Navajo County, Arizona.
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PLAINTIFF \S EXHIBIT No. 25.

The Board of Supervisors, Navajo County.

No. 1396.

Holbrook, Arizona, August 30, 1924.

THE TREASURER OF NAVAJO COUNTY.
Will pay to the order of L. B. Owens, $75.00,

Seventy-five and no-100 Dollars, in payment of

Claim No. 1396, for last half August, and charge to

Road Fund.

Signed, C. E. OWENS,
Chairman, Board of Supervisors.

Signed, WALLACE ELLSWORTH,
Clerk, Board of Supervisors.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 96.

ROAD FUND WARRANTS.
No. 2614.

SALARY WARRANT.
Office of

Board of Supervisors, Navajo County, Ariz.

Holbrook, Arizona, September 30, 1924.

TREASURER OF NAVAJO COUNTY:
Pay to the Order of J. E. Crosby, Sixty-two and

50-100 Dollars, $62.50, in payment of Salary De-

mand No. 7, audited and allowed by the Board of

Supervisors, September 3, 1924.

Signed, C. E. OWENS,
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors.

Signed, WALLACE ELLSWORTH,
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.

Reg. Date October 4, 1924.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 154.

Marked for Identification only. Case No. E.-93,

Prescott. Admitted and filed Jan. 7, 1926.

GEORGE J. SCHAEFER,
Treasurer.

Office of

TREASURER OF NAVAJO COUNTY

EX-OFFICIO TAX COLLECTOR, HOLBROOK,
ARIZONA.

Holbrook, Arizona, April 23, 1923.

Receipt for bonds : Received of the Arizona State

Bank of Winslow, Arizona, Thirty-five (35) Im-

provement bonds of the Town of Winslow, following

numbers and amounts.

Bond Number 2 $ 500.00

Bond Number 3 500.00

Bond Number 4 500.00

Bond Number 5 168.84

Bond Number 6 500.00

Bond Number 7 500.00

Bond Number 8 500.00

Bond Number 9 500.00

Bond Number 10 168.85

Bond Number 11 500.00

Bond Number 12 500.00

Bond Number 13 500.00

Bond Number 14 500.00

Bond Number 15 168.84
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Bond Number 16 500.00

Bond Number 17 500.00

Bond Number 18 500.00

Bond Number 19 500.00

Bond Number 20 168.85

Bond Number 21 500.00

Bond Number 22 500.00

Bond Number 23 500.00

Bond Number 24 500.00

Bond Number 25 168.81

Bond Number 26 500.00

Bond Number 27 500.00

Bond Number 27 500.00

Bond Number 28 500. 00

Bond Number 29 500.00

Bond Number 30 1^8.85

Bond Number 31 500.00

Bond Number 32 500.00

Bond Number 35 168.84

Bond Number 40 168.85

Bond Number 45 168.84

Bond Number 50 168.85

$14,188.45

To be held security on County Deposits.

GEORGE J. SCHAEFER,
Treasurer.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 155.

Marked for Identification only. Case No. E.-93.

Admitted and filed Jan. 7, 1926.

Winslow, Arizona, August 3, 1923.

Received of The Bank of Winslow, Winslow,

Arizona, the following Registered School Warrants,

to be held as guarantee for Navajo County funds

deposited in The Bank of Winslow

:

School District No. 1, Wrt. No. 151 $1,015.06

School District No. 1, Wrt. No. 157. .... . 281.23

School District No. 1, Wrt. No. 158 660.50

$1,956.79

GEORGE J. SCHAEFER,
Navajo County Treasurer.

Returned 3-28-24.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 156.

Marked for Identification only. Case No. E.-93,

Prescott. Admitted and filed Jan. 7, 1926.

INDIGENT WARRANTS

:

Date Amount
8- 8-23 $ 8.00

8- 8-23 15.00

8- 8-23 10.00

9- 5-23 15.00

7- 5-23 8.00

7- 5-23 15.00

No. Register No,

0123 25

0126 23

0132 25

0140 36

105 4

108 5
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WARRANTS:
No. Register No. Date Amount
884 179 3- 3-24 75.00

867 180 3- 3-24 25.00

880 182 3- 3-24 3.00

832 183 2- 4 24 5.00

1131 145 3- 3-24 35.00

1112 149 3- 3-24 105.00

1129 150 3- 3-24 16.00

864 198 3- 3-24 14.10

856 199 3- 3-24 341.42

1132 170 3- 3-24 21.00

1148 171 3- 3-24 91.00

469 21 7- 5-23 26.30

488 8- 6-23 52.00

624 156 10-16-23 150.00

614 155 10-16-23 29.38

615 154 10-16-23 14.92

553 153 9- 5-23 47.31

583 152 10-16-23 23.75

731 48 8-- 8-23 10.55

747 51 8- 8-23 8.05

505 74 8- 8-23 7.62

490 75 8- 6-23 10.00

547 104 9- 5-23 18.20

564 106 9-- 5-23 9.30

788 78 9-- 5-23 1.20

823 124 10-16-23 8.00
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS SALARY WAR-
RANTS :

No. Register No. Date Amount

2316 71 7-31-23 41.67

2329 21 7-31-23 112.50

2357 70 8 14-23 41.67

2369 33 8-14-23 112.50

SCHOOL WARRANTS

:

7 71 7-18-23 103.15

25 79 8- 9-23 874.35

77 125 9-13-23 3.00

41 86 8-29-23 19.00

51 101 9- 8-23 1.80

79 124 9-13-23 8.00

26 80 8- 9-23 1.75

42 87 8-29-23 .75

78 126 9-13-23 300.00

$2,839.24

Receipt is hereby acknowledged of the above

registered warrants which are to be held by the

Navajo County Treasurer as a guarantee of funds

deposited in The Bank of Winslow.

GEORGE J. SCHAEFER,
Navajo County Treasurer.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 157.

Marked for Identification only. Case No. E.-93,

Frescott. Admitted and filed Jan. 7, 1926.

GEORGE J. SCHAEFER,
Treasurer.

Office of

TREASURER OF NAVAJO COUNTY
EX-OFFICIO TAX COLLECTOR, HOLBROOK,

ARIZONA.
October 18, 1923.

Mr. Chas. F. Oare, Cashier.

Arizona State Bank,

Winslow, Arizona.

Dear Charlie:

This is to acknowledge receipt of Twenty-five

hundred eighty-three dollars and thirty seven cents,

($2,580.37) in registered County Warrants mailed

to this office as security on County Deposits in your

bank.

Hoping I may find my way clear to sweeten my
deposit in the next few days, I am.

Yours truly,

GEORGE J. SCHAEFER.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 158.

Marked for Identification only. Case No. E-93,

Prescott. Admitted and filed Jan. 7, 1926.

THE BANK OF WINSLOW.
Established July, 1910

Winslow, Arizona,

March

Seventeenth,

1924.

Mr. Geo. Schaefer, Treasurer,

Holbrook, Arizona.

Dear George:

We are enclosing herewith registered warrants

as per list enclosed, aggregating $2,839.24. These

you will kindly hold as a guarantee of County funds

deposited in The Bank of Winslow and return to us

the Panama Canal Bond for $1,000.00. Also kindly

sign the enclosed receipt and hold the copy for your

records.

Yours very truly,

B. B. NEEL,
Vice-President.

EBN-AJ
Canal Bond No. 41243.

PLAINTIFF EXHIBIT No. 160.

Marked for Identification Only. Case No. E-93,

Prescott. Admitted and Filed January 7, 1926.

WARRANTS ISSUED BY NAVAJO COUNTY
ON SALARY FUND.

Registered October 4, 1923 to October 4, 1924.
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Regular October, 1925, Term—At Phoenix.

(Minute Entry of February 12, 1926.)

Hon. F. C. JACOBS.

United States District Judge, Presiding.

(Court and Cause.) No. E.—Prescott.

ORDER FOR DECREE.

The Court renders a decree in favor of com-

plainant allowing a set-off of the amount of General

School Warrants $6,313.38. Salary Fund Warrants

$2,311.04; Road Fund Warrants in the sum of $792.-

95; making a total of $9,417.37, together with in-

terest from the date of the closing of the Bank
of Winslow; that the improvement bonds of the

Town of Winslow in the sum of $7,000.00 par value

be returned by the defendant Hammons to the

County Treasurer of Navajo County; that the

amount thereof be set off in favor of the plaintitf

;

making a total set-off of $16,417.37;

A decree in favor of Apache County and against

the complainant as to the Navajo County warrants

pledged to Apache County prior to the 4th day of

October, 1924.

A decree in favor of intervening petitioner

George Jarvis, Treasurer and Ex-officio Tax Col-

lector of Apache County, and the intervening peti-

tioners Benjamin Brown, Jr., the National Surety

Company and Fidelity and Deposit Company of

Maryland for the relief prayed for in their re-

spective intervening petitions to the extent that the

said George Jarvis, Treasurer of Apache County,
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shall retain possession of the registered warrants

pledged to it ; to apply the same in the manner pro-

vided and permitted by the nature and character

of the pledge and by the law of Arizona;

That the restraining order heretofore entered be

dissolved.

Dated this 12th day of February, 1926.

Thereupon, it is ordered by the Court that ex-

ceptions to the findings of the Court be entered on

behalf of all the parties to the action.

0. K.—E. M. W.

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Arizona.

No. 93—EQUITY.

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY, a Corpo-

ration,

Complainant,

vs.

A. T. HAMMONS, Superintendent of Banks of the

State of Arizona; J. S. DODSON, Special

Deputy Superintendent of Banks of Arizona

;

GEORGE J. SHAEFFER, Treasurer and

Ex-officio Tax Collector of Navajo County,

a Corporation,

Defendants,

GEORGE JARVIS, Treasurer and Ex-officio Tax
Collector in and for the County of Apache,

State of Arizona; BENJAMIN BROWN,
Jr.; THE NATIONAL SURETY COM-
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PANY, a Corporation; and FIDELITY &
DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, a

Corporation,

Intervenors.

DECREE.

This cause came on to be heard at this term of

the above-named court, and was submitted to the

court upon the pleadings and upon the evidence in-

troduced by the respective parties, and the argu-

ment of counsel for the several parties thereto had,

and now the Court having duly considered the evi-

dence and arguments, and being fully advised in

the premises, it is ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED AS FOLLOWS

:

1. That the amount of the indebtedness of the

Bank of Winslow to the defendant Navajo County,

after applying all payments and liquidations prop-

erly applicable to this indebtedness, is the sum
of Thirty-seven Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty-

two and 44/100 Dollars ($37,752.44).

2. That the complainant, Maryland Casualty

Company, as surety upon the bond given by said

Bank of Winslow, is entitled to have set off against

the said indebtedness of the Bank of Winslow to

Navajo County, to wit:

General School and District School war-

rants and Manual Training School war-

rants, $6313.38

Salary Fund warrants aggregating, 2311.04

Road Fund warrant aggregating, 792.95

Making a total of $9417.37



vs. Maryland Casualty Company. 217

with all interest accruing thereon to the 4th day

of October 1924, and that the said defendant A. T.

Hammons, as State Superintendent of Banks, and

successor of the Bank of Winslow and in possession

of its assets, do return said warrants to the defend-

ant George J. Schaeffer, County Treasurer and Ex-

officio Tax Collector of Navajo County, who shall

accept the said warrants and credit the amount

thereof, plus the interest as aforesaid, upon the in-

debtedness, to wit : the said sum of $37,752.44, from

the said Bank of Winslow to Navajo County.

3. That the balance of the indebtedness from said

Bank of Winslow to said County of Navajo equals

the sum of $37,752.44, less the principal of the

said Navajo warrants, with interest thereon to the

4th day of October, 1924.

4. That the said defendant A. T. Hammons, Su-

perintendent of Banks of the State of Arizona, shall

return and deliver to the said defendant George

J. Schaeffer, County Treasurer and Ex-officio Tax

Collector of the County of Navajo, and Navajo

County, the improvement bonds of the Town of

Winslow in the par value of the sum of $7000, to-

gether with all unpaid interest coupons thereon and

all interest, if any, accrued thereon since the de-

livery of the said bonds by the defendant Schaeffer

to the said defendant Hammons, or the defendant

Dodson, and upon the payment of the balance due

after the offset of $9417.37, and interest has been

made as hereinbefore provided, to the defendant

Navajo County, by the complainant, the said de-

fendant Schaeifer County Treasurer aforesaid, shall
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return and deliver the said bonds to the complain-

ant.

5. That the complainant herein shall pay to the

defendant George J. Schaffer, Comity Treasurer and

Ex-officio Tax Collector of Navajo County, the bal-

ance due after such offset has been made as here-

inbefore provided, and upon payment of such bal-

ance shall receive from said defendant George J.

Schaeffer County Treasurer and Ex-officio Tax Col-

lector of Navajo County, the said Town of Winslow

Improvement Bonds in the par value of seven thou-

sand Dollars ($7000), together with all unpaid in-

terest coupons thereon, and any interest that may
have been collected thereon since the turning over

of said bonds by the defendant Schaeffer to the

defendant Hammons or the defendant Dodson, and

thereafter the complainant shall be fully discharged

of any liability to the said County of Navajo under

or by virtue of its bonds set forth in the first

amended bill of complaint herein.

6. That the complainant Maryland Casualty

Company, a corporation, is entitled to be subrogated

to the rights of said County of Navajo, and the

defendant George J. Schaeffer, Treasurer and Ex-

officio Tax Collector of said County of Navajo as

a gneral creditor of said Bank of Winslow to the

extent of the amount so paid by it to the said

defendant Schaeffer as aforesaid, and all dividends

and payments made and to be made by the defend-

ant A. T. Hammons as Superintendent of Banks of

the State of Arizona, or the defendant Dodson, as

Deputy Superintendent of Banks of the State of

Arizona, or his successor in such position, out of
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the assets and property of said Bank of Winslow

to the same extent as other general creditors of said

Bank of Winslow, and that upon payment by the

complainant to the defendant Schaeffer of the

amount herein decreed to be paid by it to the said

defendant George J. Schaeffer, County Treasurer

and Ex-officio Tax Collector of the County of Na-

vajo, aforesaid, the said last mentioned amount is

hereby declared, adjudged and decreed to be a just

and valid claim of the complainant against the said

Bank of Winslow, and for the purpose of carrying

into effect the subrogation hereby decreed, the said

complainant is hereby adjudged and decreed to be

a general creditor of said Bank of Winslow to the

extent of the amount last above mentioned, and

entitled to all the rights, dividends and payments

heretofore made or to be made to other general

creditors of said Bank of Winslow, and that such

claim have the status of and be in all respects

established as a duly allowed claim against said

Bank of Winslow in the sum last aforesaid, and

that the defendant A. T. Hammons, as Superinten-

dent of Banks of the State of Arizona in charge

of the liquidation of said Bank of Winslow, be,

and is hereby directed to pay or cause to be paid

to the complainant Maryland Casualty Company,
the same dividends as have been paid or may here-

after be paid to the general creditors of said Bank
of Winslow whose claims have been duly approved

and allowed so as to place the said complainant

Maryland Casualty Company upon the same foot-

ing and in the same position as other general credi-

tors of said Bank of Winslow.
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7. That the pledge of Navajo County warrants

to Apache County, State of Arizona, and the

Treasurer of said County, be and the same is

hereby adjudged to be a valid and lawful pledge

and that as against the intervenors George Jarvis,

Treasurer and Ex-officio Tax Collector of Apache

County, State of Arizona, Apache County, Benja-

min Brown, Jr., the National Surety Company, a

corporation, and the Fidelity and Deposit Com-

pany of Maryland, a corporation, the bill of com-

plaint and the first amended bill of complaint be,

and the same are hereby dismissed, and that the

restraining order heretofore issued, so far as the

same relates to the warrants so pledged by the

said Bank of Winslow to and with the Treasurer

of said Apache County, be and the same is hereby

dissolved and discharged and said George Jarvis,

Treasurer and Ex-officio Tax Collector of Apache

County, State of Arizona, is hereby directed to

present said Navajo County Warrants to George

J. Schaeffer, Treasurer and ex-officio Tax Collec-

tor of Navajo County, Arizona, and upon pay-

ment of said warrants, said George Jarvis, Treas-

urer and Ex-officio Tax Collector of Apache County,

Arizona, is hereby directed to apply the amount so

received upon the reduction of the indebtedness of

The Bank of Winslow to Apache County, arising

out of public moneys of Apache County in the

hands of the said The Bank of Winslow October

4th, 1924.

8. That the complainant do have and recover

of and from the defendants A. T. Hammons, Su-
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perintendent of Banks of the State of Arizona, J.

S. Dodson, as Special Deputy Superintendent of

Banks of the State of Arizona, George J. Schaef-

fer. Treasurer and Ex-officio Tax Collector of

Navajo County, and Navajo County, a corpora-

tion, its costs herein incurred and taxed at the

sum of $182.00, with all rights given by the laws

of the State of Arizona for the collection thereof.

9. That intervenors George Jarvis, Treasurer

and Ex-officio Tax Collector of Apache County,

State of Arizona, Benj. Brown, Jr., National

Surety Company and Fidelity & Deposit Com-

pany of Maryland do have and recover of and

from complainant Maryland Casualty Company,

severally and respectively, costs in this suit taxed

respectively as follows

:

George Jarvis, Treasurer and Ex-officio Tax

Collector of Apache County, Arizona ... $7 . 00

Benj. Brown, Jr., National Surety Company
and Fidelity & Deposit Company of

Maryland $7 .00

That intervenors do have execution therefor.

Done in open court this 19th day of April, 1926.

F. C. JACOBS,
United States District Judge for the District of

Arizona.

O. K.—M. R. M.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 19, 1926.
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PETITION FOR ALLOWANCE OF AN AP-
PEAL TO CIRCUIT COURT OF AP-
PEALS AND ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR.

Each of the above-named defendants, A. T. Ham-
mons, Superintendent of Banks of the State of

Arizona and J. S. Dodson, Special Deputy Super-

intendent of Banks of Arizona, believing them-

selves aggrieved by the final decree in the above-

entitled cause, hereby appeal from said decree to

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, and pray that a transcript of

such part of the record as the parties to this cause

shall by praecipe duly indicate, together with the

exhibits and evidence herein stated in simple and

condensed narrative form, so far as it relates to

any of the claims on which error is predicated on

any matter indicated by the defendants and also

the decree herein rendered, all duly authenticated,

may be sent to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and that such other

and further proceedings may be had which may

be proper in the premises; and that a transcript

of the record of this court, and of such part or

abstract of the proofs as the rules of said court of

appeals may require, and such assignments of

error, briefs, and arguments may be caused to be

printed and submitted to said court by the appel-

lants as required by the Act of Congress of date

February 13, 1911, as under Rule 23 of said Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals, is permitted and under
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rules of court thereto applicable; hereby appeal-

ing from such portions of said decree and judg-

ment as grants to the above-named plaintiff relief

as against these appealing defendants and not

hereby intending to appeal for any relief in said

judgment and decree granted to the interveners in

said cause.

And the defendants, A. T. Hammons, Superin-

tendent of Banks of the State of Arizona, J. S.

Dodson, Special Deputy Superintendent of Banks

of Arizona, hereby assign the errors asserted and

intended to be urged as follows:

DEFENDANT'S ASSIGNMENTS OF EBEOR.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. I.

The Court erred in overruling the motion of

these defendants that the complaint and action be

dismissed upon the grounds in that motion stated

as follows:

''That this Court has no jurisdiction of the

matters set out in said bill in that all of the

said matters are involved in a proceeding en-

titled: "In the matter of the liquidation of the

Bank of Winslow, Winslow, Arizona, having

branch offices at Holbrook, Arizona, and St.

Johns, Arizona, File No. 1865 in the Superior

Court of the State of Arizona, in and for the

County of Navajo, being a court of compe-

tent jurisdiction over the said defendant as

ex-officio receiver of the Bank of Winslow, an

insolvent banking corporation, pursuant to

the laws of the State of Arizona, and the said



224 A. T. Hammons and J. S. Dodson

defendants are acting under the orders of said

Superior Court of Navajo County, Arizona,

and the property and matters referred in said

Amended Bill of Complaint are a part of the

corpus of the Estate of the Bank of Winslow,

under supervision of the last-named court";

it appearing from the allegations of Paragraph 3

of the Bill of Complaint that on October 4th, 1924,

prior to the filing of any Bill in this case that the

defendants in their official capacity took over the

Bank of Winslow, then insolvent, and took charge

thereof and its property and assets for the pur-

pose of liquidation, under the laws of the State

of Arizona, and that defendants had reported to

the Superior Court in said matter as shown by

Paragraph 5 of the Bill of Complaint; and these

defendants acting in their official capacities had

prior to the filing of the Bill of Complaint, in the

process of a liquidation of the affairs of the Bank

of Winslow, had adjusted with the County of

Navajo, and its treasurer, certain portions of the

indebtedness of that bank to said county, which

settlement included a payment of certain county

warrants, and a surrender of $7,000.00 of Town of

Winslow Improvement Bonds, by the County and

its Treasurer to these defendants, all as appears in

Paragraph 7 of the First Amended Bill; and it

also appearing from the face of the whole of the

original Bill; and the First Amended Bill, that,

all of the particular assets of the Bank of Wins-

low as to which the plaintiff therein demanded re-

lief as against these defendants were assets in the
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possession of these defendants were assets in-

volved in a liquidation of the affairs of the Bank

of Winslow by these defendants, commenced as

above and continued up to filing of Bill in this

cause, and thus as and from the face of the Bill,

it appears that the entire subject matter of said

Bill, the assets as to v^hich relief is sought, and as

to the plaintiff and these defendants, are subject

matters, assets and parties, which were each and

all within the jurisdiction of the aforesaid state

court at the time the bill was filed, and for reason

thereof, defendants' motion to dismiss this case

should have been granted by the District Court.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. II.

Under the provisions of Section 44, Chapter 31

of Session Laws of Arizona, of 1922, the assets

and property of an insolvent bank when taken in

charge by the Superintendent of Banks, become

assets and property as to which the Superinten-

dent of Banks is forthwith vested at law and in

equity with the sole, exclusive and unconditional

ownership and title, subject only to such equities

in favor of third persons which have arisen or

been obtained prior to the taking charge thereof

by the Superintendent of Banks. And under the

specific provisions of Section 46 of above Chap-

ter 31, which reads as follows:

"When the affairs of any bank have come

into the hands of the Superintendent of

Banks for liquidation the relations between

the Superior Court and the Superintendent of
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Banks shall be the same as the relations of the

Superior Court and the laws now existing,

and the Superior Court shall have the same

authority and jurisdiction over the Superin-

tendent of Banks in such matters as it would

over receivers appointed by the court, unless

in this act other provided."

the Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and

for Navajo County on the 4th day of October,

1924, was vested by law with full, and exclusive

jurisdiction as to all matters pertaining to the

liquidation of the affairs of the insolvent Bank
of Winslow, and under the facts as alleged in the

Bill of Complaint herein (particularly as stated

in Assignment of Error No. 1, for brevity not re-

peated), the facts as to such jurisdiction so exclu-

sively vested in the State Court, the District Court

erred in entertaining the plaintiff's Bill, and erred

in refusing to dismiss same for want of jurisdic-

tion upon the motions of defendants that the same

be dismissed for lack of jurisdiction.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. III.

Without regard to the questions of jurisdiction

as presented in Assignment of Error Nos 1 and

II, the Court erred for the reason that plaintiff

wholly failed to allege, and wholly failed to show

by its proofs, that it had at any time presented its

alleged claim by filing same with the defendant

Superintendent of Banks, as required by Section

48 of Chapter 31, Session Laws of Arizona, 1922,

a provision and requirement in the state law
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which makes such a presentation and rejection by

the Superintendent of Banks, a condition prece-

dent to the right of any claimant to resort to any

court at all, for relief as against the rejection by

the Superintendent of Banks of a just claim, over-

ruling the first reason of defendants as stated in

defendants' Motion to Dismiss, that the bill failed

to state a cause for equitable relief to plaintiff,

and entering a decree regardless of said motion

and reason.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. IV.

The Legislature of the State of Arizona, in par-

agraph 2-162, Revised Statutes of Arizona, 1913

Civil ( 'Ode, when it specially provided as follows

:

"All warrants issued by the board of super-

visors of any county shall be receivable in

payment of all debts to such county, and all

taxes assessed against property in such

county. Upon the tender of any such war-

rant in payment of any such debt or tax, the

county treasurer shall, if the warrant be less

than the amount of such debt or tax, and be

accompanied by a sufficient sum of money to

make up the full amount of such debt or tax,

credit the amount of such warrant upon such

debt or tax; if the amount of such warrant be

greater than the amount of such debt or tax,

he shall mark such debt or tax paid, and en-

dorse the amount thereof upon the back of

such warrant as a partial payment thereof,

provided that only the person named as paj^ee
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in any such warrant shall be entitled to use

the same in payment of such debt or tax."

therein and thereby covered the entire subject as

to matters of set-off in favor of holders of war-

rants, and under the rule of "Expressio uniiis est

exdusio alterhis" as it should have been applied

to the facts and matters of this cause, the District

Court erred in decreeing the plaintiff was entitled

to any set-off on account of any of the warrants

in suit, there being an entire absence of evidence

showing any right to such set-off under above stat-

ute.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. V.

Under the effect of the provisions of Para-

graphs 2419 and 2420 of Revised Statutes of Ari-

zona, 1913 Civil Code, which read as follows:

"The board of supervisors, shall, by resolu-

tion, create a fund to be known as the expense

fund, and shall, by order to be entered in the

minutes of the board, order, whenever and as

often as necessary, the transfer of a sufficient

amount of money into said expense fund from

the general fund of such county to pay the

expenses of maintaining the government of

such county until additional revenues of such

county may be collected with which to defray

such expenses. Before making such orders

the board shall make an estimate of the

amount required, and for what purpose, and

also the amount of money avaihible, or that

may be available for the purpose of such
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fund, from taxes or otherwise, and when such

estimate is made, shall enter the whole of such

itemized estimate in the minutes of the board.

It is hereby made the duty of the coimty

treasurer of such county to make such trans-

fer when so ordered by such board, and to

honor and pay from such expense fund orders

drawn thereon by the board of supervisors of

such counties for the maintenance of the

county government, such orders to be drawn

and signed in the same manner as county war-

rants have been heretofore, and the board of

supervisors shall in no case issue an order on

such fund until there is sufficient money

therein to pay and redeem the same. Orders

shall be issued on said expense fund in the or-

der of their allowance by said board
;
provided,

however, that if at any time in the opinion of

the board of supervisors there shall be more

money in said expense fund than is necessary

to pay the expenses of maintaining the gov-

ernment of such county, the board of super-

visors thereof shall make an order directing

the treasurer to transfer such excess to the

general fund of the county, and the treasurer

shall make such transfer so ordered, and the

money so re-transferred shall be available for

the redemption of outstanding warrants

against the county, as now provided by law."

"The expense of maintaining the govern-

ment of any county consists of official salaries,

fees and mileage, fees and mileage of jurors
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and witnesses, county printing and advertis-

ing, books and stationery, feeding county pris-

oners, the care of the indigent sick, water,

wood, lights and like supplies for county insti-

tutions, insurance and necessary repairs of

county buildings. But nothing herein con-

tained shall authorize the payment of any

money from such expense fund for the repair or

building of any road or bridge
;
provided, fur-

ther, that boards of supervisors may, in their

discretion, create a salary fund for the purpose

of paying therefrom, when due, salaries of offi-

cials and employees, and fees and mileage of

jurors and after the transfer of funds to the ex-

pense fund, are hereby authorized to transfer

from said expense fund to said salarj^ fund, in

manner provided for transfer of funds from the

general fund to the expense fund, an amount

sufficient to pay such salaries of officials and

employees, and fees and mileage of jurors,

and to authorize and order payments from such

salary fund in like manner as on the expense

fund, and may, in like manner, create and

make payments from such other county funds

as they may deem necessary for the proper

transaction of business of the countj^"

Any amount standing to the credit of a so-called

"SALARY FUND," is an amount specially set

aside by order of the Board of Supervisors for

the sole purpose of providing cash funds for actual

payments of warrants as same are drawn upon

that special fund and presented to the Treasurer
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for payment therefrom, and until an order has

been made by that Board for a re-transfer of ac-

tual balances in the salary fund to the general

fund for the purpose of paying registered war-

rants, the County Treasurer is without authority

to pay registered warrants from salary funds, and

there being an entire absence of allegation in the

Bill, and an entire absence of evidence at the hear-

ing that any such retraswferring order was ever

made, the whole record of the case is without any

evidence to support the decree of the District

Court, that any of the registered warrants, by the

decree adjudged as due and available as a set-off,

were in fact so available, and in the absence of

such evidence, the Court was in error in adjudging

that registered warrants to the amount of $9,417.-

37, were items to be properly allowed as a set-off

in favor of plaintiff.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. VI.

The District Court was in error when it decreed

that plaintiff was entitled to have set-off in its

favor. General School, District School and manual

training school warrants to the amount of |6,313.38,

for the reasons that the record shows that no part

of any public funds collected for any of above

school purposes were included in any deposit made

by the County Treasurer of Navajo County in

the insolvent Bank of Winslow, and under the

statute and constitutional laws of the State of

Arizona, public revenues collected for school pur-

poses are funds distinct from any revenues col-
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lected for county purposes, and under those laws

the County Treasurer is prohibited from using

money collected for school purposes, for county

purposes, or vice versa, and the decree of the Dis-

trict Court in its effect would require the County

Treasurer of Navajo County to do an unlawful act,

by compelling him to divert public money raised

for one public purpose to another purpose, and

that decree so far as it relates to above described

*'SCHOOL FUNDS" is not only contrary to the

evidence of the case, but is also contrary to the

law of the case to be applied to the facts of that

record as shown by the undisputed evidence.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. VII.

That the testimony of witness George Schaefer,

that the general county school fund had a credit

to the amount of $10,079.00, which is the only evi-

dence in the whole record upon which to base a

conclusion that there were school funds sufficient

to pay the $6,313.36 of school warrants by the Dis-

trict Court in its decree allowed as a set-off in

favor of Plaintiff, and is wholly insufficient evi-

dence to support the decree in that regard, for the

reason that under the statute laws of the State of

Arizona, the County Treasurer is without author-

ity to pay any warrant drawn upon funds pro-

vided for any school district, mitil the County

School Superintendent has made an order of dis-

tribution under which general collections of funds

for school purposes, are distributed to the credit

of particular school districts, and then and then

only, the County Treasurer becomes authorized to
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pay warrants drawn for the purposes of each such

district, and to the extent of funds so distributed to

each district. There being no evidence in the

whole record that the $10,079.00 amount of general

school funds had been ordered distributed to the

districts, and there being no evidence that any dis-

trict had funds to its credit sufficient to have paid

such of the warrants drawn for its purposes as are

included in the $6,313.38 of school warrants by the

District Court allowed as a set-off, the decree in

that respect is wholly erroneous, for the reason

that it is not supported by the evidence, and is

contrary to the law of the State of Arizona as that

law should have been considered by the District

Court and applied to the record of the case.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. VIII.

That the District Court erred in permitting evi-

dence to be introduced as to the existence of funds

in the county treasury for payment of any of the

registered warrants referred to in the decree, and
overruling the objections to such a line of evidence,

in which objection it was urged that such evidence

was outside the issues as framed by the pleadings,

that it was alleged and admitted that all warrants

in question were "registered warrants," and as

such were not subject to payment until called by
notice, and then payable only in the order of dates

of registration, according to the statutes of Arizona,

paragraphs 2440, 2568, 2569 and 2571 of Revised
Statutes of Arizona, 1913 Civil Code, Paragraphs
2440 and 2571 reading as follows:
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"Warrants drawn by order of the supervis-

ors on the county treasurer for the current ex-

penses during each year must specify the lia-

bility for which they are drawn, and when

they accrued, and must be paid in the order of

presentation to the treasurer. If the fund is

insufficient to pay any warrant, it must be reg-

istered, and thereafter paid in the order of its

registration." (Par. 2440.)

"Warrants drawn on the treasury and prop-

erly attested are entitled to preference as to

payment out of moneys in the treasury prop-

erly applicable to such warrants according to

the priority of time in which they were pre-

sented. The time of presenting such war-

rants must be noted by the treasurer, and upon

receipt of moneys into the treasury not other-

wise appropriated, he must set apart the same

or so much thereof as is necessary for the

payment of such warrants."

And there being no allegation in the Bill, to

the effect that the County Treasurer of Navajo

County had been derelict in duty, in failing to give

a call for payment of registered warrants, under

the requirements of above referred to provisions,

the objections of defendants against the introduc-

tion of any evidence tending to show such a derelic-

tion should have been sustained.

ASSIGNMENT OF EKROR No. IX.

That the District Court erred in overruling the

motions of defendants that the testimony of County
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Treasurer Schaefer be stricken for the reasons

urged in support of such motion, that there was no

evidence showing any money in the Bank of Wins-

low available at any time for the payment of any

of school warrants, or the road warrants, or the

salary warrants, as to which plaintiff claimed a set-

off; that the testimony of said Schaefer did show

the existence of other registered warrants, about

$47,000.00 of so-called "expense fund warrants," a

large amount of other so-called "salary warrants,"

and other school warrants, all issued and held by

other parties than parties to this suit, and there

being no evidence as to any call for payment, and

no evidence of the existence of funds sufficient to

pay all outstanding registered warrants, and no

evidence establishing, under the statutes referred

to and recited in Assignment of Error No. VIII,

that the warrants held by the Bank of Winslow

were entitled to priority of payment to the extent

of any funds on hand, and which were reasons

sufficient to require the District Court to sustain

said motion to strike the testimony referred to

therein, and with the motion sustained and granted

as it should have been, there was no testimony

whatever in the whole record, to support the decree

of the court which allowed any set-off of any regis-

tered warrant at all in favor of plaintiff, and said

decree was in consequence not supported by proper

evidence, nor by sufficient evidence, and was ren-

dered through error prejudicial to these defend-

ants.
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ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. X.

The entire record fails to disclose such a state of

facts, as under the statutes of Arizona, which re-

late to and control the payment of registered war-

rants, would have permitted the Bank of Winslow

to have applied any of the warrants held by it, in

a reduction of the amount of county funds de-

posited with it, at the time the Superintendent of

Banks took charge of the property and assets of

said Bank of Winslow, and the District Court erred

in entering its decree which permitted the applica-

tion of $9,414.37 of registered warrants in favor of

plaintiff, which as to the bank itself would not

have been so applied. And the decree in that re-

gard is not supported by the evidence, and is con-

trary to law and equity.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. XI.

For the reason that the District Court erred in

overruling motions made in behalf of these defend-

ants at the conclusion of the hearing, in which mo-

tions these defendants urged reasons for such an

order of dismissal as appear in the preceding as-

signments of error, and which for reasons of brevity

are not here again repeated, and were and are

reasons fully supporting those motions for dis-

missal, and are again urged as reasons why the

Bill should have been dismissed, and that the denial

of such motions was error prejudicial to these de-

fendants.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR No. XII.

That the statutes of the State of Arizona which
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require the executing by a bank of a depository

bond to secure deposits of county funds therein,

are to the intended purpose and effect of prevent-

ing any question of any relation of creditor and

debtor arising with respect to such deposits, and,

to prevent in the event of an insolvency of a de-

positary bank, any question of priority of prefer-

ence arising as between the county as to its deposits,

and other general creditors, also depositors therein;

that the District Court, in its decree erred in fail-

ing to apply the state laws to the above purpose

and intended effect, and by directing a set-off to

the amount of registered warrants held by the

bank, in partial discharge of plaintiff liability as

a surety, in fact and in effect created a preference

in favor of plaintiff, and the decree in that regard

is contrary to law and equity.

WHEREFORE, the defendants, A. T. Ham-
mons, Superintendent of Banks of the State of

Arizona; J. S. Dodson, Special Deputy Superin-

tendent of Banks of Arizona, pray that the said

final decree of the District Court of the United

States for the District of Arizona, sustaining the

plaintiff's bill may be reversed to the full extent,

and to that extent only which said decree grants

relief by set-off and otherwise as against these

appealing defendants in favor of plaintiff, and that

said court may be ordered to enter a decree in

accordance with the prayers in said answer dis-

missing said bill or in such other form as to said

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

shall deem Just.
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Dated this 25th day of June, A. D. 1926.

SIDNEY SAPP,
Holbrook, Arizona.

D. E. Mclaughlin,
Holbrook, Arizona.

JOHN W. MURPHY,
Attorney General.

WILL E. RYAN,
Special Counsel,

Phoenix, Arizona.

Solicitors for Defendants and Appellents.

Business Address: Phoenix, Arizona.

O. K.—E. M. W.

ORDER.

In the above-entitled cause and matter, the fore-

going and annexed petition for appeal having been

duly presented,

IT IS ORDERED : That the prayer of said pe-

tition, and said appeal is granted and allowed upon

the giving of a bond in the sum of Eight Thousand

($8,000.00) Dollars, conditioned as required by law,

and that upon the filing and approval of said bond,

that citation on said appeal be duly issued directed

to the appellee, and that other proceedings for per-

fecting said appeal may be had under the rules and

practice of the Court.

Dated, June 26th, A. D. 1926.

F. C. JACOBS,
Judge.

O. K.—M.
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Schedule No. 19.

TEN PER CENT LIMIT CHECK ACTUAL
LEVIES.

(Applies to General and Road Fund Only.)
Est. Exp. to be

Actual Levies Eaised by Direct
For Past Taxation for

Fiscal Year Present Fiscal Yr.

General Fund $48,110.00 $53,360.00

Road Fund 20,700.00 18,250.00

Total $68,810.00 $71,610.00

Add 10 per cent allowed by

law 6,881.00

Amount allowed by law. . . .$75,691.00 $71,610.00

All taxpayers of Navajo County, Arizona, are

hereby notified that the Board of Supervisors

will meet at its office in Holbrook, Arizona, on the

18th day of August, 1924, at 10 o'clock A. M. for

the purpose of making tax levies in accordance

with the foregoing estimate as amended and finally

adopted as hereafter provided.

All taxpayers of Navajo County, Arizona, are

hereby further notified that said Board of Super-

visors will hold a public hearing at its office in

Holbrook, Arizona, on the 11th day of August,

1924, at 10 o'(*lock A. M., when and where any

taxpayer of Navajo County will be heard in favor

or against any of the proposed tax levies, after

which hearing the foregoing estimates as modified

will be adopted by the said Board of Supervisors
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as a basis of taxation for fiscal year ending June

30, 1925.

C. E. OWENS,
Chairman Board of Supervisors.

WALLACE ELLSWOETH,
Clerk Board of Supervisors.

O. K.—M. R. M.

CITATION ON APPEAL.

United States of America.

The President of the United States to Maryland

Casualty Company, a Corporation, Plaintiff

and Appellee, GREETING:
You are hereby cited and admonished to be

and appear in the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit in the City of

San Francisco, State of California, on the 11th

day of August, A. D. 1926, pursuant to an appeal

duly obtained from a decree of the District Court

of the United States for the District of Arizona,

in cause No. 93-E, (Prescott), wherein A. T. Ham-
mons. Superintendent of Banks of the State of

Arizona, and J. S. Dodson, Special Deputy Super-

intendent of Banks of Arizona, are appellants,

and you are appellee, to show cause, if any there

be, why the said decree entered against the said

appellants should not be corrected and why speedy

justice should not be done to the parties in that

behalf.

WITNESS: The Honorable FRED C. JACOBS,
Judge of the District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona, this 13th day of
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July, in the year of our Lord one thousand nine

hundred and twenty-six.

F. C. JACOBS,
United States District Judge for the District of

Arizona.

Received this writ on the 15th day of July, 192G,

at Tucson, Dist. of Ariz., and on the 15th day of

July, 1926, at 11:50 A. M., I served the same by

handing a true copy thereof with the endorse-

ment thereon to the said Samuel L. Pattee, per-

sonally at Tucson, Arizona.

G. A. MAUK,
U. S. Mai-shal for the Dist. of Arizona.

By Tom WiUs,

Deputy U. S. Marshal.

0. K.—M.

BOND.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,
that we, A. T. Hammons, Superintendent of Banks

of the State of Arizona, and J. S. Dodson, as

Special Superintendent of Banks of Arizona, as

principals, and the United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Co. as surety, which surety is a corpo-

ration organized under the laws of the State of

Maryland, and by its laws, and laws of the State

of Arizona, is duly authorized and qualified to

become surety upon appeal and other bonds in

the State of Arizona, and upon this bond, and each

held and firmly bound unto the INfaryland Casu-

alty Company, a corporation, in the sum of Eight

Thousand Dellars ($8,000.00) lawful money of the
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United States, to be paid to the said Maryland

Casualty Company, its successors or assigns, to

which payment well and truly to be made, we

and each of us bind ourselves jointly and sever-

ally, and each of our successors and assigns firmly

by these presents.

Sealed with our seals, executed and dated the

1st day of July, A. D. 1926.

WHEREAS, the above-named Maryland Casu-

alty Company as plaintiff in a certain cause in

equity, in which the above-named principals of

this bond, and others, were defendants, and being

a cause No. E.-93, Prescott, in the District Court

of the United States for the District of Arizona,

on the 19th day of April, A. D. 1926, did obtain

the final decree of said court, therein granting

the said Maryland Casualty Company, a certain re-

lief as against the principals of this bond. And
said principals have appealed from said decree

to the Circuit Court of Appeals of the United

States, sitting at San Francisco, California, from

all portions thereof granting the plaintiff any re-

lief as against these principals, and for an order

of said Court of Appeals, that the District Court

be ordered to dismiss the bill of Maryland Casu-

alty Company, in accordance with the prayer of

the answer of these principals and defendants,

interposed in the above cause. And said prin-

cipals in this bond desire to supersede the effect

of the decree of the District Court, so appealed

from, pending a determination thereof.
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NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this ob-

ligation is such that if the above principals in

this bond, shall and do, as the appellants in their

above-mentioned appeal, prosecute said appeal to

effect, and answer to all damages and costs if they

fail in said appeal, and pay to the Maryland

Casualty Company all such costs as have accrued

to it, and which may hereafter accrue to it, as

well as all damages it may suffer on account of

such appeal, upon such failure, then this obliga-

tion shall be void, otherwise to remain in full

force and effect.

A. T. HAMMONS,
Superintendent of Banks of the State of Arizona.

J. S. DODSON,
By D. E. McLaughlin,

One of His Attorneys of Record,

Principals.

[Corporate Seal of United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Co.]

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND
GUARANTY CO.

By LLOYD C. HENNING,
Attorney-in-fact.

Approved this 13th day of July, 1926.

F. C. JACOBS,
Judge.

O. K.—E. M. W.
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ORDER ENLARGING TIME TO FILE RECORD
ON APPEAL IN THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF APPEALS.

In the above-entitled cause, the abstract of the

evidence re-engrossed to include, appellee's amend-

ments thereto having been filed and approved, and

good cause appearing to the Court for this order,

it is now
ORDERED that the time for the filing of the

record on appeal herein in the Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit and the return

day on the citation on appeal herein is extended

to and including the first day of November, 1926.

Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, in Chambers, this

16th day of September, 1926.

F. G JACOBS,
United States District Judge.

O. K.—E. M. W.

ORDER EXTENDING TIME THIRTY DAYS
FOR PREPARING AND FILING RECORD.
In the above-entitled cause it appearing to the

Court that reasons exist due to unavoidable delay

in the printing of the transcript of record, it is

necessary that the defendants have an extension

of time within which to prepare their appeal,—
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the time

for preparing and filing the transcript of record
in the above-entitled cause be, and is hereby ex-
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tended thirty days from and after the first day

of November, 1926.

F. C. JACOBS,
Judge.

0. K.—E. M. W.

(Court and Cause.) No. E.-93—Prct.

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO AND IN-

CLUDING DECEMBER 20, 1926, FOR PRE-
PARING AND FILING ABSTRACT OF
RECORD.

In the above-entitled cause, it appearing to the

Court that the attorneys for the plaintiff have

stipulated that the defendants may have until and

including the 20th day of December, 1926, within

which to print and file the abstract of record,

—

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the time

for preparing and filing the abstract of record in

said cause is extended to and including the 20th

day of December, 1926.

Done this, the 1st day of December, 1926.

F. C. JACOBS,
Judge.

O. K.—M. R. M.

January 13, 1927,

(Court and Cause.) No. E.-93—Prct.

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO AND INCLUD-
ING FEBRUARY 1, 1927, FOR PREPAR-
ING AND FILING RECORD.

In the above-entitled cause it appearing to the
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Court that reasons exist due to unavoidable delay

in the printing of the transcript of record, it is

necessary that the defendants have an extension

of time within v^hich to prepare their appeal,

—

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the time

for preparing and filing the transcript of record

in the above-entitled cause be, and is hereby ex-

tended, up to and including the 1st day of Feb-

ruary, 1927.

F. C. JACOBS,
Judge.

O. K.—M. R. M.

(Court and Cause.) No. E.-93—Prct.

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO MAKE RE-
TURN OF CITATION FOR APPEAL.

In the above-entitled cause, it appearing to the

Court that printed copies of proposed abstract of

record for appeal are one file with the Clerk of court

for certification, and that more time will be required

for so doing, and that therein a necessity has arisen

for extending the time within which to make re-'

turn upon the citation on appeal, and file abstract

of record in Court of Appeals, on motion of the

solicitors for defendants and appellants,

—

IT IS ORDERED: That the time for making

return upon citation for appeal," and filing record

on appeal to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Judicial Circuit, be and



264 A. T. Hammans and J. S, Dodson

is hereby extended for a period of thirty (30)

days from date hereof.

Done this 31st day of January, A. D. 1927.

F. C. JACOBkS,

Judge of District Court.

O. K.—M. R. M.

(Court and Cause.) No. E.-93—Prct.

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO FILE
RECORD ON APPEAL IN THE CIRCUIT
COURT OF APPEALS.

In the above-entitled cause it appearing to the

Court that reasons exist due to unavoidable delay

in the printing of the transcript of record, it is

necessary that the defendants have an extension

of time within which to prepare their appeal,

—

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the time

for preparing and filing with the Clerk of the

Circuit Court of Appeals at San Francisco, Cali-

fornia, the transcript of recoi'd in the above-en-

titled cause be, and is hereby, extended thirty days

from and after this day.

Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this 2d day of March,

1927.

F. C. JACOBS,
District Judge.

O. K.—M. R. M.
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO FILE
RECORD OF APPEAL AND RETURN OF
CITATION ON APPEAL IN CIRCUIT
COURT OF APPEALS.

In the above-entitled cause and matter, it ap-

pearing that unavoidable delay has arisen in con-

nection with the certifying and making of the

necessary return upon the citation upon appeal,

due to mistakes made by the printer in prepar-

ing a printed abstract of record for such certifi-

cation, and that further time will be necessary to

complete the certification and return to the cita-

tion to the Circuit Court of Appeals, therefore

upon application of the solicitors for the defend-

ants,

—

IT IS ORDERED: That the time within a

return may be made to the citation on appeal,

and a certified copy of the record of said appeal

may be returned to the Circuit Court of Appeals,

be and is extended 30 days from and after March
31st, A. D. 1927.

Dated March 31st, 1927.

F. C. JACOBS,
District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 31, 1927.

O. K.—M. R. M.
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK U. S. DISTRICT
COURT TO TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

United States of America,

District of Arizona,—^ss.

I, C. R. McFall, Clerk of the District Court of

the United States for the District of Arizona, do

hereby certify that I am the custodian of the

records, papers and files of the said United States

District Court for the District of Arizona, includ-

ing the records, papers and files in the case of

Maryland Casualty Company, a Corporation, Plain-

tiff, versus A. T. Hammons, etc., et al.. Defendants,

said case being numbered 93 on the Equity Docket

of the Prescott Division of this court.

I further certify that pages 5 to 308, inclusive,

of the foregoing abstract of record constitutes a

full, true and correct copy of the original records,

papers and files in said case remaining on file and

of record in my office, except the endorsements

on said originals, including my filing endorsement,

which said endorsements have been omitted from

this certified transcript of the record by direc-

tion of the solicitors for the defendants (appel-

lants). I further certify that no x^raecipe was filed

by counsel for either party.

And I further certify that there is also annexed

to this transcript the original Citation on Appeal

issued in said cause.
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And I further certify that the cost of compar-

ing said abstract of record, amounting to Forty-

eight and 20-100 Dollars has been paid to me by

the above-named defendants (appellants).

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said court

this 28th day of April, 1927.

[Seal] C. R. McFALL,
Clerk, United States District Court in and for the

District of Arizona.

By M. R. Malcolm,

Deputy Clerk.

[Endorsed] : No. 5136. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. A. T.

Hammons, Superintendent of Banks of the State

of Arizona, and J. S. Dodson, Special Deputy

Superintendent of Banks for the State of Ari-

zona, Appellants, vs. Maryland Casualty Company,

a Corporation, Appellee. Transcript of Record.

Upon Appeal from the United States District Court

for the District of Arizona.

Filed May 2, 1927.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.

By Paul P. O'Brien,

Deputy Clerk.
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Statement of Facts

The Maryland Casualty Company, a corporation

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Maryland,

brought suit in June, 1925, against A. T. Hammons, Sup-

erintendent of Banks, J. S. Dodson, Special Deputy Sup-

erintendent of Banks in charge of the Bank of Winslow,

an insolvent banking corporation, and George J. Schaef-

fer. Treasurer of Navajo County, and Navajo County, a

public corporation by virtue of the laws of the State of

Arizona.



It appears from the complaint (Tr. 2-17) that plain-

tiff corporation was surety upon four bonds, securing the

County of Navajo against loss on funds of the County,

deposited in the Bank of Winslow, of Winslow, Arizona.

The bonds are attached to the complaint as Exhibits A,

B, C and D, and in the aggregate amount to $40,000.

The Bank of Winslow, the principal in the said bonds,

became insolvent and closed its doors on the fourth day of

October, 1924. At that time there were funds of the

County of Navajo on deposit in the bank in the aggregate

sum of $52,164.20. This deposit was covered by the four

bonds of the plaintiff as above described, and by thirty-

five Town of Winslow Improvement Bonds, worthj the

sum of $12,519.61, and Navajo County registered war-

rants in the aggregate sum of $7,379.30, which indemnity

equaled the total amount of $59,899.01. The defendant

Dodson was placed in charge of the insolvent institution

by the defendant A. T. Hammons, Superintendent of

Banks, under the laws of Arizona. At the date when the

Bank closed it was the owner of registered warrants

issued by Navajo County in the sum of $23,691.60.

It appears from the complaint (Tr. p. 9) that after

the Bank of Winslow closed and the defendant Dodson

took possession of its assets, he made demand upon the

defendant Schaeffer for the return of bonds of the own

of Winslow of the par value of $7,000, which were then

held by the said Schaeffer as a part of the pledge above

enumerated to secure the County deposit in said Bank,

and the said Schaeffer, without any authority and in \io-

lation of the rights of the plaintiff in the said pledge, re-

turned the said bonds to said Dodson, who then pretended

to hold the said bonds free from the pledge to the County

of Navajo, and, as is alleged in the complaint, then threat-

ened and intended to use this pledge for the benefit of the



general creditors of tlie trust estate. The balance of tlie

Town of Winslow Improvement Bonds amounting to

about $5,500, had been reduced to cash and the proceeds

applied to the reduction of the debt due Navajo County,

by the defendant Schaeffer, County Treasurer. It also

appeared that Schaeffer had proceeded in the same man-

ner to reduce the County Warrants pledged as security

to the County, to cash, and had applied them or the pro-

ceeds thereof in reduction of the debt, so that at the time

of the filing of the suit, the total debt had been reduced

to $37,752.44.

As regards the title to the registered warrants which

the Bank owned at the time it closed its doors, it appeared

that the Bank of Winslow had pledged, prior to its in-

solvency, to the Treasurer of Apache County to secure

deposits of that County in the Bank, registered warrants

of Navajo County in the total sum of $8,110.38; and it

was claimed by the plaintiff that this pledge was in vio-

lation of the laws of the State of Arizona, and that the

County of Apache should return the said warrants to the

Bank of Winslow, or Dodson as deputy of the Superin-

tendent of Banks, in charge thereof.

The plaintiff sets out the disposition of the total

number of registered warrants owned by the Bank prior

to its insolvency (Tr. p. 13). From this statement it ap-

pears that there were in the possession of the Special

Deputy Superintendent of Banks Dodson, registered war-

rants of Navajo County in the sum of $11,213.44, regis-

tered warrants of said County pledged by the Bank of

Winslow to Apache County, in the aggregate sum of

$8,110.38, and warrants in transit in the aggregate sum of

$5,012.86.

The complainant in the lower court then proceeds to

state its cause of action, and the complaint recites that



due demand was made of Dodson, in charge of the Bank
of Winslow, to allow offsets in the sum total of the regis-

tered warrants in his possession, and that he failed and

refused to do so, and in fact threatened to sell and trans-

fer the said warrants and to thereby destroy the offset;

that said Dodson also refused to turn over the bonds of

the Improvement District of the Town of Winslow of

which he had obtained possession by virtue of his demand

upon Schaeffer as above recited, and that he threatened to

sell the same and thereby deprive the complainant of this

credit, which it could obtain, if the bonds were in the pos-

sessioni of Schaeffer, by subrogation after it had paid

whatever sum was due the County after the offsets had

been determined and allowed.

The prayer was for decree against Hammons, Dod-

son, Schaeffer, and the County, for the allowance of the

offsets and credits as disclosed by the complaint.

The defendant Hammons, Superintendent of Banks,

and the defendant Dodson, Special Deputy in charge of

the Bank of Winslow, filed a motion to dismiss the com-

plaint, on the ground that the Federal Court had no

jurisdiction of the matters set out in the bill, for the rea-

son that the matters therein set forth were subject to the

jurisdiction of the Superior Court of the State of Ari-

zona in and for the County of Navajo, under the laws of

the State of Arizona (Tr. pp. 38, 39).

Thereafter Hammons and Dodson filed their an-

swers, consisting generally of a justification of the refus-

al! of Dodson to allow the offsets claimed by the com-

plainant, and of his action in requiring Schaeffer, after

the Bank had closed, to return the bonds pledged to him

as Treasurer of Navajo County to secure the funds of

that County in the Bank of Winslow. Schaeffer and Nava-



jo County also filed motions and answers which are not

in the record here.

On application for a preliminary injunction, the

Court heard the motion to dismiss the bill of complaint

and overruled it and granted a temporary injunction to

the complainant.

Thereafter the proceedings went to trial upon the

issues and the case was tried on the 7th day of January,

1926, at Phoenix, before Federal Judge Jacobs.

At that time a stipulation was entered into between

the parties, whereby it was admitted that the allegations

of paragraphs 2 and 3 of the bill of complaint were true,

and that at the date of the suspension of the>, Bank of

Winslow there was on deposit to the credit of Navajo

County in that bank the sum of $51,209.75, of which $15,-

000 was inactive funds and the rest of the deposit consti-

tuted active funds of said County; that paragraph 5 of

the bill of complaint was correct, and that at the time of

the suspension of the Bank of Winslow the defendant

Hammons, as Superintendent of Banks and by virtue of

his office in possession of the Bank and its securities,

came into possession of registered warrants of Navajo

County in the amount of $10,922.44, and that on the date

of the failure of the Bank there was in the possession of

the defendant Schaeffer as County Treasurer of Navajo

County $7,379.40 of registered warrants of Navajo Coun-

ty, pledged as security for the County funds on deposit

in the said Bank; that at the date the Bank of Winslow

closed its doors to-wit, October 4, 1924, the defendant

Schaeffer, County Treasurer, was in possession of im-

provement bonds of the Town of Winslow in the aggre-

.

gate amount of $12,519.60, and that on October 23, 1924,

he returned $7,000 of these bnods to the defendant Dod-

son, then in charge of said Bank of Winslow, at the re-



quest of said Dodson, and that said Schaeffer converted

the rest of said bonds into cash, and also liquidated the

registered warrants pledged as aforesaid, and applied the

proceeds of the said bonds and said registered warrants

in reduction of the debt of the Bank to the County (Tr.

pp. 73-75).

The County Treasurer, defendant Schaeffer, was

placed on the witness stand by complainant and the regis-

tered county warrants were identified by him as they

were produced by the defendant Hammons, Superintend-

ent of Banks. The list of the warrants so identified, and

a sample of each warrant, is shown in the record, on pages

181 to 213, inclusive.

In view of the stipulation it was not necessary to

prove the facts as to the bonds of the Improvement Dis-

trict, and the State Superintendent of Banks admitted

that he had possession of the bonds returned by Schaeffer

to Dodson as above stated (Tr. pp. 140, 153).

Upon the proof presented in the lower court a decree

was entered allowing to the complainant offsets on ac-

count of registered warrants, owned and possessed by

the Bank when it closed, in the following sums

:

General School District Warrants, and

Manual Training School Warrants.„,$6,313.38

Salary Fund Warrants, aggregating... 2,311.04

Road Fund Warrants, aggregating. 792.95

Making a total of ...$9,417.37

Interest was allowed on the foregoing from their

respective dates to the 4th day of October, l924, the date

when the Bank closed. After allowing the offset, the

Court in effect held that the amount due from the Bank

of Winslow to the County of Navajo would equal tlie net



sum remaining, when such deduction was made from $37,-

752.44, which last named sum was what remained of the

original indebtedness of the Bank to Navajo County after

the County Treasurer had liquidated the Improvement

Bonds remaining in his possession and the registered

School Warrants pledged as security. The Court did not

attempt to determine the net amount, but the balance can

be ascertained by reckoning the interest on each warrant

to October 4, 1924, and adding this interest so obtained to

the principal of each warrant, then getting the aggregate

of all the warrants, and deducting that aggregate from

$37,752.44, the interest, of course, being computed from

the date of registration of each warrant.

The court then held that Schaeffer could not legally

return the Town Improvement Bonds to Hammons or his

representative Dodson, after the Bank had closed, and

held further that upon the payment of the balance due

after the offset had been deducted as above stated, the

complainant would be subrogated to the right of the

County to those bonds, and that Hammons should return

them to the County, which in turn should turn them over

to the plaintiff upon the discharge of the balance due.

It was further adjudged that the complainant, upon

the payment of the amount due, should be decreed to be

a general creditor of the Bank of Winslow, and should

be entitled to all the rights, dividends and payments

which had then been made or should be made in the future

to other general creditors of the Bank of Winslow, and

that the defendant Hammons, as Superintendent of

Banks, in charge of the liquidation of said Bank of Wins-

low, should pay such dividends to the complainant.

The Court also held that the Navajo County War-

rants pledged to Apache County, was a lawful pledge and
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could not be claimed as an offset by the complainant (Tr.

pp. 216-222).

From this decree the defendants Hammons and Dod-

son took an appeal under the Act of Congress dated Feb-

ruary 13, 1911, and under Rule 23 of the Circuit Court

of Appeals of the Ninth Circuit, assigning errors as ap-

pearing on pages 223 and; 239 of the Transcript. The

decree was entered April 19, 1926, and the appeal and

assignment of errors, and the order allowing appeal, were

filed and entered on June 26, 1926.

The assignments of error one, two and three are to

the effect that the Court had no jurisdiction of the mat-

ters submitted by the bill of complaint, because the mat-

ter of the liquidation of the Bank was in the Superior

Court of the State of Arizona in and for the County of

Navajo, on the date when the case was filed in the Fed-

eral Court.

Assignments Nos. 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9, are all addressed

to the allowance of the offset of the registered war-

rants.

Included in the Transcript (pp. 239 to 256) are ex-

tracts from a newspaper of August 1, 1924, the relevancy

of which is not apparent. These pages are not exhibits

and certainly could not be injected into the record as

proof of anything. We do not understand upon what

theory they appear in the record as a part of it.

The return day of the citation on appeal is the 11th

day of August, 1926 (Tr. p. 257). There was no extension

of time granted within this return day, the first order

attempting to enlarge the time appearing to have been

entered on the 16th day of September, 1926 (Tr. p. 261).

This order enlarged tlie time, or attempted to do so, to

the 1st day of November. 1926, and the next one enlarged

it thirty days from the 1st day of November, 1926, but



bears no date (Tr. pp. 261-2) so that it cannot be told

whether it was in time or not. The next order was en-

tered on the 1st day of December, 1926, which would not

have been within the time, because thirty days from

November 1st would have expired at midnight November
30th, 1926. The next extension time was granted Decem-

ber 1st, 1926, until, and including the 20th day of Decem-

ber, 1926, and the next order was apparently entered

January 13, 1927, long after the date in the preceding

order had expired, and extended the time to February

1st, 1927. The succeeding orders do not seem to have

been in time, and we especially refer to the order appear-

ing at the bottom of page 263 and top of page 264, which

gave thirty days from the 31st day of January, the next

order having been entered the 2nd day of March, 1927,

and giving thirty days from and after said date. The

next order was entered March 31st, 1927, and gave thirty

days from that date, but as a matter of fact the record

was not filed until May 2nd, 1927, which fell outside of

the time within which the record could have been filed.

It should be pointed out that no praecipe was filed

for the appellants in this cause (Tr. 266), and it is ap-

parent that the first bill of complaint and the answers of

the defendants Schaeffer and the County of Navajo have

been omitted from the record. The answer of said de-

fendants to the amended bill was twenty-one pages long

and was signed by the County Attorney, the Attorney

General and W. E. Ryan, special counsel. In view of

failure of appellants to file a praecipe this omission be-

comes material as will hereafter be shown.
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POINT I

THE APPEAL SHOULD BE DISMISSED

It is the general rule in the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals that all parties having interest in the

cause and affected by the decree should join in the appeal.

Kidder v. Fidelity Ins. Trust & S. D. Co. 44 C. C. A. 593,

105 Fed. 821 ; Loveless v. Ransom, 46 C. C. A. 515, 107

Fed. 627 and cases cited; Simpson v. Greeley, 20 Wall.

158, 22 L. ed. 339 ; Sipperley v. Smith, 155 U. S. 86, 39

L. ed. 79, 15 Sup. Ct. Rep. 15 ; Davis v. Mercantile Trust

Co. 152 U. S. 593, 38 L. ed. 564, 14 Sup. Ct. Rep. 693

;

Wilson V. Kiesel, 164 U. S. 252, 41 L. ed. 423, 17 Sup. Ct.

Rep. 124; St. Louis United Elevator Co. v. Nichols, 34

C. C. A. 90, 91 Fed. 833 ; Dodson v. Fletcher, 24 C. C. A.

69, 49 U. S. App. 61, 78 Fed. 214; Hedges v. Seibert Cylin-

der Oil Cup Co. 1 C. C. A. 594, 3 U. S. App. 25, 50 Fed.

643; Aiken v. Smith, 4 C. C. A. 654, 2 U. S. App. 618, 54

Fed. 896; Humes v. Third Nat. Bank, 4 C. C. A. 668, 13

U. S. App. 86, 54 Fed. 917; Hardee v. Wilson, 146 U. S.

180, 36 L. ed. 933, 13 Sup. Ct. Rep. 39; Fordyce v. Trigg,

175 U. S. 723, 44 L. ed. 337, 20 Sup. Ct. Rep. 1024.

The defendants in this case (Tr. 2) were A. T. Ham-
mons, Superintendent of Banks of the State of Arizona,

J. S. Dodson, Special Deputy Superintendent in charge

of the Bank of Winslow and its assets, George J. Schaef-

fer. Treasurer of Navajo County, and Navajo County, a

quasi public corporation organized and existing under

and by virtue of the laws of the State of Arizona witli

power to sue and be sued. The prayer (Tr. 16) asked

that the said defendants immediately list the credits and

offsets due the county as they existed on tlie 4th day of

October, 1924, between the County and the Bank of Wins-
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low, the said date being the date when the bank closed, and

that the amount due the County from the Bank in the

hands of the State Superintendent of Banks and his dep-

uty be satisfied and discharged to the extent of the war-

rants, both registered and unregistered, owned on the

4th day of October, 1924, by the Bank of Winslow, and

also to the extent of the value of the Improvement Bonds

of the town of Winslow held by the County Treasurer,

the defendant Schaeffer, on that date. The decree (Tr.

216), a joint judgment against the defendants Hammons,
Schaeffer,and Navajo County, found that the sum of mon-

ey due the County was thirty-seven thousand seven hun-

dred fifty-two and 44-100 dollars ($37,752.44), and that

the complainant should have as offsets against the Coun-

ty, the warrants listed in the sum of nine thousand four

hundred seventeen and 37-100 dollars ($9,417.37), and

that defendant, Navajo County, and the defendant, Ham-
mons, and the defendant Schaeffer as County Treasurer,

carry out the terms of the decree so that the offset should

become effective. The decree then provides that the com-

plainant shall pay the defendant Schaeffer the balance

due after the offset is allowed, and that the defendant

Schaeffer shall turn over the Town of Winslow Improve-

ment Bonds which he returned to the defendant Dodson

after the bank closed so that if the complainant paid the

balance due after the offset was allowed, it could be sub-

rogated to the right of the County to these bonds and

should have possession of the same.

It is evident that the finality of that decree against

all the defendants can only be determined in an appeal to

which defendant Schaeffer and defendant Navajo County

were parties. There is no averment in the record, nor any

showing of a summons and severance as to the said de-

fendants. Certainly the decree against the several de-
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fendants is joint in substance. It deals with the interests

of the several defendants in one subject matter, to-wit,

the right of the complainant in the lower court to an off-

set and to be subrogated to the bonds returned by Schaef-

fer to Dodson after the closing of the bank. The record

lails to show that the defendant Schaeffer and the defend-

ant Navajo County filed a twenty-one page answer to the

first amended bill of the complainant, which amended

bill is the one appearing in the record to which reference

has already been made frequently. The record fails to

disclose that this answer to the amended bill called upon

the plaintiff to pay into court the **just and full sum of

forty thousand dollars with interest thereon at the rate

of six per cent per annum from October 4th, 1924, for the

use and benefit of the defendant corporation, that the bill

of complaint be dismissed as to both of these answering

defendants". This omission from the record will be dis-

cussed later in the point raised as to the failure to file

and serve a praecipe in this appeal.

It is the law ithat the omission of the defendants

against whom a joint judgment has been entered from an

appeal is jurisdictional unless there has been a summons

and severance. Continental and Commercial Trust and

Savings Bank et al. v. Corey Brothers Construction Co.

et al. (C. C. A. 9th Circuit) 205 Fed. 282; Ibbs v. Archer,

185 Fed. 37 (C. C. A. 3rd Circuit) ; Loveless v. Ransom, 46

C. C. A. 515, 107 Fed. 626; Hook v. Mercantile Trust Co.

36 C. C. A. 645, 95 Fed. 41-49; Kidder v. Fidelity Ins.

Trust & S. D. Co. 44 C. C. A. 593. 105 Fed. 821 ; Ayres v.

Polsdorfer, 45 C. C. A. 24, 105 Fed. 737; Dolan v. Jen-

nings, 139 U. S. 387, 35 L. ed. 217, 11 Sup. Ct. Rep. 584;

Estes V. Trabue, 128 U. S. 230, 32 L. ed. 437, 9 Sup. Ct.

Rep. 58; Planrick v. Patrick, 119 U. S. 163. 30 L. ed. 402,

7 Sup. Ct. Rep. 147. The Columbia, 15 C. C. A. 91, 29 U.

'
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S. App. 647, 67 Fed. 942; Fitzpatrick v. Graham, 56 C. C.

A. 95, 119 Fed. 353 ; Hedges v. Seivert Cylinder Oil Cup

Co. 1 C. C. A. 594, 3 U. S. App. 25, 50 Fed. 643.

There has been no siunmons or severance in this case.

The record discloses that the appellants, Hammons and

Dodson made no application to the Judge in the lower

court for a severance, and no request upon the defend-

ants Schaeffer and Navajo County for them to join in

the appeal. Without such showing there is no jurisdiction

in this court of the appeal. Faulkner v. Hutchins, 61 C.

C. A. 425, 126 Fed. 362 ; Copland v. Waldron, 66 C. C. A.

271, 133 Fed. 217 ; Provident Life & Trust Co. v. Camden

& T. R. Co. 101 C. C. A. 68, 177 Fed. 854; Detroit v.

Guaranty Trust Co. 93 C. C. A. 604, 168 Fed. 610; Ingle-

hart V. Stansbury, 151 U. S. 68, 38 L. ed. 76, 14 Sup. Ct.

Rep. 237 ; Beardsley v. Arkansas & L. R. Co. 158 U. S.

123, 39 L. ed. 919, 15 Sup. Ct. Rep. 786.

Objection may be made at any time since the matter

is jurisdictional. Loveless v. Ransom, 46 C. C. A. 515,

107 Fed. 626; Ayres v. Polsdorfer, 45 C. C. A. 24, 105

Fed. 737.

Under the foregoing authorities this appeal should

be dismissed.

No praecipe for record was filed, and there is no

proof that appellants pursued the requirements of Equity

Rule Seventy-five (226 U. S. 671). The answers of the

defendant Schaeffer and the defendant Navajo County,

are not included in the record. Those answers are ma-

terial portions of the record in that they disclose the de-

fense of those defendants to be substantially that of de-

fendants Hammons and Dodson and that Schaeffer and

Navajo County are jointly defendants with them making

common cause against the plaintiff. The appeal should

be dismissed. Wade et al. v. Leach, 2 F. (2nd) 367.
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The transcript was not filed in time. The last ex-

tension granted was thirty days from and after March

31st, 1927 (Tr. 265), and the record was filed on May
2nd, 1927,—two days too late (Tr. 267). There is noth-

ing to show that the orders extending the time (Tr. 261 to

265), were ever filed with the Clerk of this Court. Cham-

berlain Transportation Co. v. South Pier Coal Co. 126

Fed. 165 ; In re Alden Electric Co. 123 Fed. 425.

The certificate of the clerk of the lower court (Tr.

213) is insufficient. He does not certify that the trans-

cript is complete. Ruby v. Atkinson, 93 Fed. 577 ; Meyer

V. Mansur Implement Co. 85 Fed. 874, 875; Farmers'

Loan and Trust Co. v. Eaton, 114 Fed. 14.

The certificate does not show that there was any

stipulation of counsel, or that the clerk was guided by

Equity Rule Seventy-five in preparing the transcript.

Burnham v. North Chicago St. Ry. Co. 87 Fed. 168. See

also. Cutting v. Tavares 61 Fed. 150. The clerk certifies

that he has omitted his endorsements by request of the

solicitors for the appellants. It is apparent that those en-

dorsements are as much a portion of the record as the

pleadings themselves, and the failure to include them has

no basis, so far as we know, in any correct preparation of

an appeal. Certainly the appellee did not agree to any

such omission which might well be material, especially in

connection with the orders entered after the appeal was

granted, and especially as to the filing of the alleged state-

ment of the evidence. Thus, there is no proper record

before this court. (Tr. 266).
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POINT II.

THE LOWER COURT HAD JURISDICTION OF
THE CAUSE

The bill in the lower court shows the requisite diver-

sity of citizenship and amount involved to give the United

States District Court for the District of Arizona, juris-

diction. The banking code of Arizona appears in the

Special Session! Laws of 1922. Suits of this character

have been sustained in the Federal Courts. Allen Bank
Commissioner et al. v. United States, 285 Fed. 678, 683

(C. C. A. 1st Circuit). The laws of Massachusetts upon

the subject construed in the above case are substantially

those of the State of Arizona. There is a New York sta-

tute of a similar character, and the New York courts have

consistently held that the superintendent may sue and be

sued. In re Carnegie Trust Co. 146 N. Y. S. 809. The

same is true in California, Mercantile Trust Co. v. Miller

137 Pac. 913, 916. It is not necessary to obtain leave of

court to sue a Receiver of a National Bank appointed by

the Comptroller of the Currency. Ex Parte Chetwood,

165 U. S. 443, 41 L. ed. 782. See also. Strain v. U. S.

Fidelity & Guaranty Co. 292 Fed. 694; Duke v. Jenks 291

Fed. 282; Fidelity and Deposit Co. v. Duke, 293 Fed. 661.

In the case cited and depended upon by counsel for appel-

lants, the decision was by the United States District Court

for the Southern District of New York, and the court did

not hold that it was necessary to obtain permission of the

State Court before bringing the suit against the State

Superintendent of Banks. The matter involved was a

question of preference and not one of setoff or of an un-

lawful attempt to acquire property by the State Super-

intendent of Banks to which he was not entitled as the

liquidator of the Bank of Winslow. The case is not in
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point. As to all of the other cases cited by counsel, the

points involved and decided arose from receiversliip cases

in which either the State or the Federal Court had first

taken possession of the trust estate by the appointment of

a receiver, and the courts denied the right of any other

court than that which had first so, taken possession to

attempt to take jurisdiction over the res in another pro-

ceeding. The case at bar is in no respect the same.

The powers of the superior court over the statutory

receivership are defined by the laws of the State of Ari-

zona as shown by the excerpt from those laws appearing

on page sixteen of appellees' brief. The court does not

take into its possession through the receiver the assets of

the bank and has no control over them except in cases of

sale of the property of the bankrupt bank. The Superin-

tendent of Banks collects the debts due, and for such pur-

poses is authorized to institute, maintain and defend suits

irrespective and apart from any authority by or from the

Superior Court. Section 48 of the Act requires the claim-

ants to make proof of claims to the Superintendent of

Banks with which the court has nothing to do, and the

Superintendent of the Banks passes on the justice and

validity of the claim, and can reject the same without any

order or intervention of any character of the court, and

where a claim is rejected the claimant can bring suit upon

it six months after the service of notice upon him of such

rejection. The statute does not give the Superior Court

any supervision over these matters, or any right to inter-

vene in such cases. As a matter of fact, the surety com-

pany had no claim to present at the time when the suit

was instituted and had only an equitable right to the off-

sets and to the improvement district bonds by subroga-

tion as such surety, both of wliicli riglits liad been refused

and rejected by the defendants in the case.
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It cannot be questioned but that a suit in equity can

be maintained by a surety to compel an offset between its

principal and its creditor where special circumstances

intervene entitling the surety to equitable relief. The

rule as laid down in 21 R. C. L., page 1080, is as follows

:

*'It is the general rule that a surety, upon showing
some special equitable ground, as, for example, the

insolvency of his principal, may obtain a setoff in

equity. '

'

and the following cases sustain the right to maintain the

proceeding, especially where the principal is bankrupt:

Scholze V. Steiner (Ala.) 14 So. 552, 553; Perry v. Pye

(Mass.) 102 N. E. 653, 657; Mitchell v. Holman (Oregon)

47 Pac. 616 ; Becker v. Northway, 44 Minn. 61 ; 20 A. S. R.

543 ; Downer v. Dana, 17 Vt. 518 ; Brinson v. Sanders, 54

N. C. 210; Armstrong v. Warner, (Ohio) 31 N. E. 877,

17 L. R. A. 466; Willoughby v. Hall 18 Okla. 555; 90 Pac.

1017 ; Crutcher v. Trabne, 5 Dana 80. In Scholze v.

Steiner, supra, the Court said:

** Ordinarily, a surety, when sued upon his obliga-

tion, cannot avail himself of an independent cause of

action existing against the plaintiff in favor of his

principal as a defense or counterclaim. It is for the

principal to determine what use he will make of such

cause of action, and the surety cannot control his

discretion. Lasher v. Williamson, 55 N. Y. 619;

Morgan v. Smith, 7 Hun. 244. By statute in this state

(Code Sec. 2681) it is provided that a co-maker or

surety, sued alone, may with the consent of his co-

maker or principal, avail himself, by way of set-off,

of a debt or liquidated demand due from the plain-

tiff at the commencement of the suit to such comaker
or principal. But this statute by its terms is con-

fined to cases where the surety is sued alone, and



18

where lie has the consent of the principal to avail

himself of the set-off^ and, consequently, gives no

support to the bill in this case. Appellees' right of

set-off is independent of the statute, and is referable

to the jurisdiction in courts of equity arising in such

cases from the insolvency of the principal. The doc-

trine generally recognized is that, where the princi-

pal has a valid claim against the creditor, the surety

will not be compelled to pay the claim, and seek a

doubtful remedy against the insolvent principal, but,

on being sued on his contract, will be allowed in

equity to show the insolvency of his principal, and
set off the claim against the creditor. Morgan v.

Smith, supra; Gillespie v. Torrance, 25; N. Y. 306.

According to this rule, the insolvency of Lesser, the

principal, furnishes a special ground of equity, giv-

ing to the court jurisdiction of the question of set-

off presented by the bill, and sufficiently establishes

the right of appellees, in equity, to set off pro tanto

the judgment of Allen & Taylor against Herman
Scholze, which was purchased by Lesser, unless that

right is defeated by the prior transfer by Herman
Scholze to Robert Scholze of his judgment against

Lesser and appellees. Watts v. Sayre,75 Ala. 397,

400."

Passing on the general question, the Court in Beck-

er V. Northway, supra, defined the law as follows

:

**The author may here state the rule more broadly

than the decided cases will justify; for the interpo-

sition of a court of equity to enforce set-offs that

would not be allowed at law was based on the con-

dition that otherwise the surety would be witliout

adequate remedy. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the

principal debtor presents such a case; for if the sure-

ty be, in such case, compelled to pay, and resort to

an action against the bankrupt or insolvent principal

debtor, he is practically without remedy. So where a
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remedy may be afforded him without prejudice to

the creditor suing him,—and ordinarily he cannot be

prejudiced by setting off a debt he owes the princi-

pal against the principal 's debt to him, for which, he

is suing the surety,—equity will furnish that remedy

;

Ex parte Hanson, 18 Ves. 232 ; Cheetham v. Crook,

McClel. & Y. 307 ; Wathen v. Chamberlin, 8 Dana,

164; Gillespie v. Torrance, 25 N. Y. 306; 82 Am. Dec.

355 ; Hiner v. Newton, 30 Wis. 640.

"We do not mean to intimate that the surety, when
sued alone, may, in that action, have the set-off ; for

a court will if possible, avoid the litigation of a debt

when only one of the parties to the debt is before it.

The surety might have to bring a separate action

against the creditor and principal debtor to enforce

the set-off, and, pending that action enjoin the action

against him."

In the case of Armstrong v. Warner, supra, the Court

held that the allowance of an offset under such circum-

stances as existed in the instant case is not a preference

to the Surety over other creditors of a general character

and the language of the Court is instructive

:

"This section, as we understand it, does not prohibit

the allowance of any vaild set-off, legal or equitable,

which a debtor of a bank may have against any obli-

gation owing to it by him at the time of its insolvency.

The allowance of such a set-off is not the creation of

a preference, but an ascertainment of the just

amount due. To exact the payment of more than

that would be unjust, and the section, we think, does

not require that to be done. Warner's equitable

right of set off existing at the time of the failure of

the Fidelity Bank, and his obligations, having passed

to the Receiver subject to that right, only the balance

due on those obligations after deducting the off-seta

constituted assets of the bank in the receiver's hands
for disposition in accordance with the provisions of
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the Federal statutes. Counsel for plaintiff, in error

cite the case of Armstrong v. Scott, 36 Fed. Rep. 63,

as maintaining a contrary doctrine. But the later

cases of Snyders Sons Co. v. Armstrong, 37 Fed. 18,

and Yardley v. Clothier, 49 Fed. Rep. 337, after a

full review and discussion of many authorities, and
a careful consideration of the statutes, decline to

follow Armstrong v. Scott. Those decisions are in

accord with the views as we have expressed, and
render it unnecessary to enlarge the discussion

here."

That there is equity in the bill is obvious from the

foregoing.

POINT III

UNDER THE SETTLED LAW OF THE STATE OF
ARIZONA THE LOWER COURT PROPERLY

ALLOWED THE OFF-SETS

The Supreme Court of the State of Arizona has de-

cided that a depositor in an insolvent bank in the hands

of the Superintendent of Banks is entitled to set off,

against his indebtedness to the bank on a note, the amount

of his deposit. Hammons v. Grant, et al. (Ariz.) 225 Pac.

485. It is clear that the salary fund warrants aggregat-

ing two thousand three hundred eleven and 4-100 ($2,311.-

04) dollars, and the road fund warrants aggregating sev-

en hundred ninety-two and 95-100 dollars ($792.95) are

within the case of Jarvis, County Treasurer, vs. Ham-
mons, State Superintendent, 256 Pac. 362, in which the

Supreme Court of Arizona was called upon to pass u])on

the question of an off-set claimed by the county against

a defunct bank in the hands of the State Superintendent

of Banks for countv warrants. It was hohl that the cri-
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terion as to whether such an off-set would lie was whether

an action would lie against the county to recover the in-

debtedness for which the warrants were given as evi-

dence. The record in the case at bar clearly discloses

that the lower court was correct in this particular (Tr.

216) and the decision by the Supreme Court of Arizona

upon a matter of law under the statutes of the State, is

controlling here. On the rehearing of the above case

reported page 985, Vol. 257 Pac. Rep., the court reversed

its ruling on the matter of school warrants and sustained

an off-set on that account. The exhibit page 181 of the

Transcript shows that the school warrants were issued as

an order upon the Treasurer of the County to pay the

payee, and all of these warrants were registered ,thus

bringing them within the rule stated in the case on re-

hearing. All of the school warrants were issued in the

same form as the one appearing on page 181 of the

Transcript.

In view of the foregoing decision by the Supreme

Court of the State of Arizona, the lower court was cor-

rect in its findings and decision as regards the off-sets

allowed on account of registered warrants (Tr. 216).

POINT IV

THE COMPLAINANT IN THE LOWER COURT WAS
ENTITLTD TO BE SUBROGATED TO THE CLAIM
OF THE COUNTY IN THE IMPROVEMENT BONDS
OF THE TOWN OF WINSLOW UPON PAYMENT OF
THE AMOUNT FOUND DUE TO THE COUNTY BY

THE DEFUNCT BANK.

On April 23, 1923, Improvements Bonds of the town

of Winslow^ were pledged to the County of Navajo as

security for the deposits of the County in the Arizona
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State Bank of Winslow as the same are listed in the

Transcript, pages 192, 193. After that date there was a

merger of the Arizona State Bank with the Bank of Wins-

low and the assets of the Arizona State Bank were trans-

ferred to the Bank of Winslow (Tr. 140). The defendant

Dodson testified that he received seven thousand dollars

worth of these Improvements Bonds from the defendant

Schaeffer after the bank was closed, and that he listed

them as assets of the Bank of Winslow (Tr. 153). The
defendant Schaeffer testified that he held these Bonds

after the merger and that the Bank of Winslow raised no

objection as security for the deposits of the Bank of

Winslow (Tr. 86). The bonds were pledged jointly with

the surety company bonds and the county warrants to

secure the deposits of the County in the Bank, and the

County Treasurer liquidated the county warrants

pledged, and enough of the Improvement Bonds to reduce

the liability of the bank to the county from $51,209.75 to

$37,752.44, for which there was security surety bonds in

the sum of forty thousand dollars, and the balance of the

Improvement Bonds amounted to seven thousand dollars,

but on October 23, 1924, the County Treasurer returned

seven thousand dollars of those bonds to the Assistant

Bank Examiner, thereby altering the condition existing

at the time the bank closed, to-wit, October 4, 1924, and

destroying the right of the surety company to be subro-

gated to the right of the county to these bonds if and

when the surety company paid the loss. The surety com-

pany was prepared to pay the loss, but the county hav-

ing destroyed the right of the surety company to be sub-

rogated to these bonds by returning tliem to Dodson, it

became necessary to enforce that right by proceedings in

the lower court to the end that the bonds might be re-

turned to the countv or turned over to the suretv com-
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pany when the loss is paid after the off-sets were allowed.

The principle involved is one of subrogation and of

course, the surety company was not obligated to pay until

the off-sets were properly allowed, which had been re-

fused by the County and the State Superintendent of

Banks. In fact, until those off-sets had been allowed, the

amount due from the surety company to the county could

not be determined. The lower court having determined

those questions the amount due was fixed by it and the

right of the surety company to become subrogated to the

bonds upon the payment of that amount also became fixed

by the decree of the lower court. It is elementary that

whenever a party discharges an obligation in perform-

ance of a legal duty, to-wit, an obligation for the per-

formance of which he was legally bound, where his lia-

bility was subsequent to that of another party, his prin-

cipal, to-wit, in the case at bar the Bank of Winslow, he is

entitled to be subrogated to and to have the benefit of all

the rights of the creditor to all securities which may at

any time have been put into the creditor's hands by the

principal debtor. We do not deem it necessary to submit

authority upon so elementary a proposition of law. The

creditor in this case, Navajo County and the Treasurer

thereof, had in its hands when the bank closed the bonds

of the Improvement District of the Town of Winslow, and

when the bank closed the status of those bonds became

fixed and could not thereafter be altered by any act of

the creditor whereby the right of the surety to be subro-

gated to the right of the county in these bonds could be

destroyed. It is also elementary that where the creditor

destroys by its act this right of subrogation and such

rights are released to the prejudice of the surety, the sure-

ty is released from its obligation, at least pro tanto. We
do not| understand that appellants deny the foregoing,
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and in fact we gather that they admit the law to be as

stated. The contention seems to be on the part of the

appellants that the surety has ^not paid and therefore

cannot claim any rights of subrogation in the bonds in

question. This would be true if it had been possible at

any time material to the 'cause of action in the lower

court for the correct amount to have been ascertained in

order that the payment could have been made by the

plaintiff. Failure in this connection was not attributable

to the fault of the plaintiff but to the defendants who

refused the off-sets and, thus, it became necessary to file

the suit in the lower court to determine just what the

plaintiff did owe when the off-sets should be allowed. The

decree in the lower court gives no right to the plaintiff in

the bonds until the amount is paid, and thus follows the

law and does not depart from it, to the effect that until

the full amount of the indebtedness as therein found to be

due is fully discharged by the plaintiff, it shall not have

the benefit of the bonds by subrogation. It is of course,

the intent of the plaintiff to pay the jud.mnent and then

to claim the bonds by virtue of its subrogated rights to

the rights of the county. Since the appeal of the appel-

lants it has been impossible to carry out that portion of

the decree. Appellants seem to argue only that as the

plaintiff has not paid it cannot be subrogated, and as this

is the only point argiied, we point to the provision of the

decree (Tr. 217, 218) to show that plaintiff can obtain no

rights in the bonds until it has paid in full the balance

due to the county. Thus, the decree is fully in accord

with the law upon the subject and gives the plaintiff no

rights which the law does not properly accord to the sure-

ty under the circumstances stated and admitted in this

case.
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CONCLUSION

There appears in the record a series of schedules (Tr.

239 to 257) which apparently have no place there. They

do not seem to be exhibits, nor yet are they evidence in

any respect so far as the record discloses. We submit

that these pages should be disregarded by the court in

this appeal.

We submit that in view of the foregoing

:

(a) The appeal should be dismissed and the lower

court affirmed.

(b) That in any event there is no error in the record

and the decree of the lower court should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

FRANCIS, C. WILSON, ESQ.,
Santa Fe, New Mexico

FRANK E. CURLEY
SAMUEL L. PATTEE

Tucson, Arizona
Solicitors for Appellee.
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On the 4th day of October, 1924, the Bank of

Winslow, a state bank, was insolvent and on that

day the Appellant Hammons, in his official capacity

as Superintendent of Banks, and under authority

of the Arizona Banking Code, took possession of the

bank and its assets, and appointed Appellant Dod-

son Special Deputy, for the purpose of taking

charge of, and liquidating the affairs of the bank.

The powers of these officers v^7ere such as designated

by the banking code, and their relation to the Supe-

rior Court of Navajo County, the county of Arizona

in v/hich the insolvent bank was doing business, was
that similar to receivers appointed by said state

court, and subject to the same jurisdiction and

authority of said court as if in fact by it appointed

receiver in said matter. (Sec. 46, Banking Code,

appears on page 225 of Transcript of Record in

Assignment of Error No. 11.)

That the Bank of Winslow v/as a depositary of

county funds of the County of Navajo to the stipu-

lated amount of $51,209.75, at the date of its in-

solvency. Of this am.ount $15,000.00 was "inactive

funds'* and the balance "active funds". The in-

active funds were in fact funds raised by taxation

to retire when due the bonded debts of the county

and its school districts. The active funds were funds

raised for general county purposes, and in fact,

under the "budget law" of the state, consisted of

as many different funds as there were county pur-

poses, and in fact distinctly appropriated to specific

amounts for each such purpose; this active fund

also included money collected by the county for



school district purposes, and which included

amounts collected under general county tax levy

for school purposes, special district levies for extra

expenses of distinct districts, and became subject to

warrants drawn for the purposes of each district

after the County Superintendent of Schools had
officially distributed the gross collections for school

purposes, to the particular districts. (The "budget''

of Navajo County appears in Transcript on pages

239-257.) So far as the ''active funds" were con-

cerned, and in the deposit, these were balances of

previous fiscal years, none of the school or other

funds collected upon the 1924 tax-rolls, v\^ere shown
to have been deposited in the Bank of Winslow.

(See testimony of Treasurer Schaefer, page 114 of

Transcript, that $10,000.00 w^as available some-

where in some bank for school purposes, and page

117, 118, of transcript, when apportioned to various

districts by School Superintendent.) There is an

entire lack of evidence of any such apportionment,

and it appears that all of the school warrants which

are included in the set-off allowance of the decree

were registered as against the school funds of spe-

cial districts, and were warrants draw^n for the

purposes of only eight out of twenty-five school

districts, and with only $10,000.00 collected and
available on October 4, 1924, and this not yet

apportioned among the twenty-five districts, it

would be impossible to say that the registered school

warrants, amounting to $6313.38, allowed in the

decree as a set-off, were payable out of the gross un-

distributed $10,000 collected for purposes of all the

school districts of the county. The bill alleges



that prior to suit, in negotiations between the coun-

ty treasurer and defendant Dodson, the bank debt

had been partially adjusted to an extent that the

remaining debt of the bank to the county was $37,-

752.44, and in which settlement certain warrants

had been paid, certain bonds been sold by the treas-

urer of Navajo county, and $7000.00 of these bonds

returned to the Receiver Hammons, and in its. Bill

seeks to have all of the registered warrants, not yet

called for redemption, held in status quo, and the

$7000.00 of bonds also so held, until the District

Court of the United States could determine the al-

leged right of plaintiff below to a set-off through

subrogation of the amount of such warrants, and

upon payment of the remaining balance of its liabil-

ity as surety, to have delivered to it the $7000.00

of bonds. Asked for and obtained in the District

Court an injunction pending final hearing of the

suit to the above end and result.

The defendants interposed their motion to dis-

miss both the original Bill, and again the amended

Bill, upon grounds of entire absence of showing of

equity, and upon the grounds that the state court

through its receiver was actually in control of the

assets and directing the matters of a liquidation of

the insolvent Bank of Winslow, prior to the Bill,

the District Court was without jurisdiction to en-

tertain the Bill, or grant any relief involving those

matters and assets. (For motion to dismiss see

Transcript, page 38). This motion was overruled.

The District Court granted the injunctive relief.

Defendants answered, and in that answer and upon

the hearing of the cause insisted upon in their de-



fense, and still insist upon that the decree is er-

roneous for the reasons specified in the various as-

signments of error, which errors here briefly stated

are:

(1) The jurisdiction of the state court having

attached to the subject matters and assets involved

in j:his suit prior to the filing of the bill, the District

Court was without jurisdiction to grant plaintiff

any relief by injunction or otherwise directed to

those subject matters and assets.

(2) That the suit is an attempt to enjoin and
supervise by injunction proceedings in a state court.

(3) That equity follows the law, and in this

case the statutes of the state of Arizona having

specifically declared that warrants may in the

hands of the original payee be used in payment of

debts due the county, and it appearing that the

Bank of Winslow acquired its warrants by purchase

only, it is urged that neither the general statute

of set-offs, nor any theory of equitable set-off can

be applied to the relief of Plaintiff.

(4) It being an admitted fact that all of the

warrants involved are registered warrants, and

that no call had been made for payment of such

warrants, the Bank itself, prior to its insolvency

could not have demanded payment, and its surety

has no greater right through the fact of insolvency

than did the bank. The insolvency simply preser-

ves existing rights and equities, but does not create

new ones as against the estate of the bank.

(5) There was no showing in the record that



any funds had been apportioned to any of the

school districts the warrants of which are used as

set-off in the decree, and it would compel the Coun-

ty to divert public funds to purposes, and at times

without legal authority, if a set-off be enforced on

account of any funds at all in the bank of Winslow
at the time of its failure.

(6) Thei^ exists no authority in the banking

law of the state of Arizona under vrhich a state

bank may pledge its assets to secure a surety upon
its repositaiy bond to a county, that the pui*pose

of the depositaiy bond is to protect the general de-

positors, and the effect of the decree in this case

would be to prefer a surety over the general credit-

ors of the bank, and thus defeat the veiy purpose

of the bond itself.

(7) That the state laws of Arizona control as

to the time when and the manner in which regis-

tered county warrants are to be paid, and it is

urged that the courts cannot advance the time nor

change the manner of payment, for the benefit of

the holder of any such warrants nor anyone claim-

ing through subrogation or otherwise to the rights

of the holder. That the public policy connected

with the collection, use, and appropriation of public

funds requires that eveiy law regulating the time

of use be enforced and not evaded, and persons who
take registered warrants take them subject to the

law, and without equities in their favor contraiy

thereto, and in this case the set-off allowed in the

decree evades and is contraiy to the laws of the

state.
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ARGUMENT AND CITATION OF

AUTHORITIES.

Appellant urges as assignment No. 1, that the

Court erred in overruling the motion of Appellants

to dismiss the complaint for the jurisdictional rea-

son that the state Court and its receiver had ob-

tained and was exercising jurisdiction over the

assets and property of the insolvent bank, prior to

this suit, all as appears in the assignment itself on

page 223 of Transcript of Record.

The facts which support this motion appear in

the amended Bill itself, as well as in the original

Bill. Those facts, with reference to the Bill, are

and appear as follows:

—

(A) The Maryland Casualty Company became

and was surety upon the depositary bond of the

Bank of Winslow to the aggregate amount of

$40,000.00 prior to insolvency of the bank, and
was so liable at the date of insolvency. (Transcript

page 2, Bill par. 2.)

(B) That on the 4th day of October, 1924, the

Bank of Winslow closed its doors . . was insolvent

. . and pursuant to the laws of the State of Arizona,

the Defendant A. T. Hammons, Superintendent of

Banks took over said bank, and appointed the said

Defendant J. S. Dodson, Special Superintendent

of Banks his agent to take charge of said bank for

the purpose of liquidation, and the said defendant

J. S. Dodson, is now and ever since has been, the

agent in charge of said bank. (Transcript page

4, Bill par. 3)



(C) It appears from the report of the Defendant

Dodson, acting as agent of the State Superintendent

of Banks, filed by him in the Superior Court of

Navajo County, Arizona, that at the date the said

Bank of Winslow suspended payments, the said

bank was the holder and owner for value of certain

warrants of Defendant, County of Winslov/a, as

follows: (Here follows a list of v/arrants so held

and reported to the Court). (See Transcript page

5, Par. 5 of Bill.)

(D) It appears that Defendant Dodson at the

time of filing the Bill of complaint, was holding as

assets of the insolvent bank not only all the regis-

tered warrants of Navajo County, but $7000.00 of

improvement Bonds of Town of Winslow, latter

obtained from the County treasurer of Navajo

County, after a partial adjustment of the relations

between the county and the bank. (See Transcript

page 9, Par. 7 of Bill.)

(E) It appears from the Bill that the above

bonds, and registered warrants held by Defendants

for the benefit of the trust estate of the bank,

(Transcript page 9.) and fairly construed the only

threatened action of the Defendants was an intent

to convert said bonds and warrants into cash, for

the benefit of the trust estate of the Bank.

(F) There v/as no allegation whatever as to

what other assets over and above $23,691.60 of

registered warrants, and the $7000.00 of improve-

ment bonds of Town of Winslow, were held by the

Defendants as qimsi receivers of the bank. If these

were all the assets then the Bill of complaint, with
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the injunction granted thereon, operated as an in-

junction restraining proceedings in the state court,

by absolutely restraining all further power of the

Superintendent of Banks directed to any further

liquidation of the affairs of the insolvent bank.

If those were not all the assets, then the injunctive

relief granted by the district court, operated to that

extent, to enjoin and restrain the liquidation of

those assets under the authority of the state court.

The motion to dismiss the Bill for want of juris-

diction was of course directed to matters of allega-

tions appearing upon the face of the Bill. Admis-
sions by Plaintiff in the Bill as to existing facts.

Appellants urge that these admissions, so appearing

were sufficient to defeat the jurisdiction of the

District Court, under the rule of the cases applic-

able to such a state of facts that:

—

"The law is well settled, that the Court which

first acquires jurisdiction over the i^es will hold

it to the exclusion of all other courts. The
rule applies to suits to enforce liens against

specific property, to marshal assets, admin-

ister trusts, liquidate insolvent estates, etc."

Mace V. Mayfield 10 Federal (2nd Ed.) 231,

citing Covell v. Heyman, 111 U. S. 176.

Other cases in which the same rule has been ap-

plied are, in part as follows:

—

Heidritter v. Elizabeth Oil Cloth Co. 112 U.

S. 294, at page 305.

McKinney v. Langdon 209 Fed. 330.
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Dickenson v. Willis 239 Fed. 171 at page 174.

Wabash Railroad Co. v. Adelbert Collegs 208

U. S. 38.

Murphy v. John Hoffman Company, 211 U.

S. 562.

In re Bologh, 185 Fed. 825.

These cases do not by any means exhaust the

cases, but appear to be leading cases, wherein many
more cases are cited to the same effect and rule of

comity.

The only possible question in connection with an
application of the rule of comity as between state

and federal courts, as announced in above cases,

is as to whether as a matter of fact and lav/, the

Superior Court of Navajo County Arizona had
been given through statutory provisions, or by

procedure therein, jurisdiction of the assets and
matters connected with the liquidation of the in-

solvent bank of Winslow.

Under the constitution of the state of Arizona,

its superior courts are vested with jurisdiction:

—

"In all cases of equity and in all cases of lav/

which involve the title to, or the possession of

real property, . . . and in all other cases in

which the demand or value of the property in

controversy amount to two hundred dollars ex-

clusive of interest and costs . . . The superior

Court shall also have original jurisdiction in

all cases and of all proceedings in which juris-
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diction shall not have been vested exclusively

in some other court."

Arizona Const. Art. VI Sec. 6.

As applied to the present case, the legislature of

the State of Arizona, at its special session in 1922,

(Session Laws S. S. 1922 Sees, forty-four, forty-

five, and forty-six, and Forty-nine,) did provide

for jurisdiction in its superior Courts, and define

the relations of the Superintendent of Banks there*

to, in cases of insolvent banks, as follows:

—

"METHOD OF LIQUIDATION OR REOR-
GANIZATION. Whenever it shall appear to

the Superintendent of Banks that any bank has

violated the provisions of its articles of incor-

poration or any law of this state, or is con-

ducting its business in an unsafe or unauthor-

ized manner, or if the capital of any bank is

impaired, or if any bank shall refuse to sub-

mit its books, papers and concerns to the in-

spection of any examiner, or if any officer

thereof shall refuse to be examined upon oath

touching the concerns of any such bank or

if any bank shall suspend payment of its obli-

gations, or if from any examination or report

provided for by this Act the Superintendent

of Banks shall have reason to conclude that

such bank is in an unsound or unsafe con-

dition to transact the business for which it is

organized, or that it is unsafe and inexpedient

for it to continue business, the Superintendent

of Banks may forthwith take possession of the

property and business of such bank and retain
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such possession until such bank shall resume
business, or its affairs be finally liquidated as

herein provided.

On taking possession of the property of any
bank, the Superintendent of Banl« shall notify

the Governor and the Attorney General in

writing of his action and shall forthwith give

notice of such fact to all banks, trust com-
panies and individuals or firms holding or in

possession of its assets. No bank, trust com-

pany, savings bank, firm or individual, know-
ing of such taking possession by the Superin-

tendent of Banks or notified as aforesaid, shall

have a lien or charge for any payment, advance

or clearance thereafter made, or liability there-

after incurred, against any of its assets. Such
bank, may with the consent of the Superin-

tendent of Banks, resume business upon such

conditions as may be approved by him. When-
ever any such bank, of whose property and
business the Superintendent of Banks, has

taken as aforesaid, deems itself aggrieved

thereby, it may at any time within ten days

days after taking such possession apply to the

Superior Court of the County in which such

bank is located to enjoin further proceedings;

and said court after notifying the Superin-

tendent of Banks to show cause why further

proceedings should not be enjoined and after

hearing the allegations and proof of the parties

and determining the facts, may upon the

merits, dismiss such applications or enjoin the

Superintendent of Banks, from further pro-
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ceeding and direct him to surrender such busi-

ness and property to such bank."

"ASSETS OF INSOLVENT BANKS
VESTED IN SUPERINTENDENT OF
BANKS. Upon taking charge of the property

and business of such bank, the Superintendent

of Banks shall forthwith be vested at law and
in equity with the sole, exclusive and uncon-

ditional ownership and title in himself, his

successors in office and assigns, of all of the

property and assets of said bank, whether the

same are situated within this State or else-

where, such ownership and title in the Superin-

tendent of Banks to be free and unaffected by
any levy, judgment, attachment or other lien

obtained thereafter as against the property of

said bank through legal proceedings and free

from and unaffected by any equity arising in

favor of or obtained by third persons after the

Superintendent of Banks has taken charge, as

aforesaid, but subject to any and all equities in

favor of third persons which have arisen or

been obtained as against any of said property

or assets prior to the taking charge thereof

by said Superintendent of Banks; and with

respect to the property and assets of any bank
in his hands and unadministered upon at the

date when this amendment takes effect, such

title and ownership of the Superintendent of

Banks shall relate back and be deemed to have

vested in him as of the date when he took

charge of the business of any such bank. All

levies, judgment, attachments, or other liens,
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obtained through legal or equitable proceedings

in this State or elsewhere, as against any bank

organized under the laws of this State, at any-

time within thirty days prior to the taking

charge by the Superintendent of Banks of the

property and affairs of said Bank, shall be

null and void in case the Superintendent of

Banks takes charge of its property and affairs,

and the property affected by such levy, judg-

ment, attachment or other liens so obtained

obtained shall be forthwith wholly discharged

and released from the same, and shall pass to

the Superintendent of Banks as a part of the

estate of said bank; provided that nothing

herein contained shall have effect to destroy or

impair the title obtained by such levy, judg-

ment, attachment or other lien, of a bona fide

purchaser for value who shall have acquired

the same without notice of reasonable cause

for inquiry. Upon taking possession of the

proi^erty and business of any bank the Superin-

tendent of Banks is authorized to collect money
due it, and to do such other acts as are neces-

sary to consei've its assets and business, and

shall proceed to liquidate the affairs thereof as

hereinafter provided. The Superintendent of

Banks shall collect all debts due and claims be-

longing to it, and for such purposes is author-

ized to institute, maintain and defend suits

and other proceedings in this State and else-

where, and upon the order of the Superior

Court of the county in which it is doing busi-

ness, may sell or compound all bad or doubtful

debts, and on jike order may sell all its real and
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personal property on such terms and at public

or private sale, as the court shall direct, and
if necessary to enforce in this State or else-

where the liabilities of its stockholders.

'TOWERS OF SUPERIOR COURT. The
Superior Court shall have the power to make
ordei^ for sale of the property and assets of

the bank, real, personal and mixed, and orders

confirming such sales; and all orders made
prior to the date of the adoption and approval

of this amendment, by the Superior Court of

this State authorizing or confirming sale of

the property and assets of banks administered

therein shall be and hereby are validated."

''RELATIONS OF COURT AND SUPER-
INTENDENT OF BANKS WPIEN ACTING
AS LIQUIDATING AGENT. When the

affairs of any bank have come into the hands

of the Superintendent of Banks for liquidation

the relations between the Superior Court and
the Superintendent of Banks shall be the same
as the relations of the Superior Court and a

receiver under the laws now existing, and the

Superior Court shall have the same authority

and jurisdiction over the Superintendent of

Banks in such matters of liquidation as it

would over receivers appointed by the court,

unless in this Act otherwise provided."

"Section 49. SUPERINTENDENT OF
BANKS TO MAKE RETURN OF INVEN-
TORY. Upon taking possession of the prop-

erty and assets of such bank, the Superinten-
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dent of Banks shall make an inventory of the

assets in duplicate, one to be filed in the office

of the Superintendent of Banks, and one in the

office of the Clerk of the Superior Court in

the County in which the said institution was
doing business, and the Clerk of said Court

shall give such case a number on the Superior

Court Docket etc."

(It appears in the transcript that the above

provisions was followed, that the case was
docketed and still pending in the Superior

Court of Navajo County. Testimony of Miss

Tandy, pages 141-142 of Transcript.)

The Federal Court in New York in passing upon

the question of a conflict of jurisdiction between the

state and federal court which arose in connection

with the Superintendent of Banks in that state

and over the matters and assets of an insolvent

bank, under a statute almost identical with the

Arizona statute, says:

—

'The Superintendent of banks in taking

charge of a banking institution does so by

virtue of his authority as such superintendent

under the statute, and not as the result of any
proceeding in court. His authority is some-

what analygous to that of a receiver of a

National bank appointed by the Comptroller

of the Currency. Sectig^n 19, of the banking

code, however, provides that the administra-

tion in certain respects shall be subject to the

action of the Supreme Court of the State of

New York.
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**It does not seem necessaiy or proper for

this Coiut to pass upon these questions of

priority* because I think the determination of

these questions is vested by law in the Supreme
Court of the State of New York. The provis-

ions in Section 19 of the banking law that the

dividends to be declaimed by the Superintendent

of Banks ai*e "to be paid to such persons and in

such amounts and upon such notice as may be

directed by the Supi*eme Court in the Judicial

District in which the coi-poi-ation or individual

banker is located" in my opinion confers upon
the New York Supreme Court the sole power
of detennining what ci'editoi's of the trust

company are entitled to preference and what
amounts shall be paid them as dividends."

In re Bologh 185 Fed 825.

The following language of Mr. Justice

Mathews, in Heiritter v. Elizabeth Oil Cloth

Co., 112 U. S. 305, 5 Sup. Ct. Rep. 135, ex-

presses fully by view upon this point: ("It is

merely an application of the familiar and
necessaiy i*ule, so often applied, which governs

the relation of couit of concuiTent jurisdiction,

where as in the case here, it concerns those of

a state and of the United States, constituted

by the authority of district governments,

though exercising juiisdiction over the same
territorv'. That rale has no reference to the

supremacy of one tribunal over another; nor to

the superiority' in rank of the resp^ective claims,

in behalf of which the conflicting jurisdictions

are invoked. It simply requires, as a matter
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of necessity, and therefore, of comity, that

when the object of the action requires the con«

trol and dominion of the property involved in

the litigation, that court which first acquire i

possession, or that dominion which is equiva-

lent, draws to itself the exclusive right to dis-

pose of it, for the purposes of its jurisdiction."

Heidritter v. Elizabeth Oil Cloth Co. 112

U. S. 305

The rule in respect to the jurisdiction of a

receivership court which obtains priar posses-

sion of the property was well set forth in the

case of McKinney v. Landon, 209 Fed. 300

where Judge Hook said: "The action in the

state court was begun first, but the federal

court first appointed receive!^. Did the sub-

sequent appointment of receivers by the state

court relate back so that it may be said that

it was in constructiove possession of the prop-

erty from the time the action was commenced-

It is a maxim of the law that a court having

possession of property can not be deprived

thereof until its jurisdiction is surrendered or

exhausted, and that no other court has a right

to interfere. It is a principle of right and of

law which leaves nothing to the discretion of

another court and may not be varied to suit

the convenience of litigants. Merritt v. Ameri-

can Steel Range Co., 24 C. C. A. 530, 79 Fed.

228. It is essential to the dignity and author-

ity of every judicial tribunal and is especially

valuable for the prevention of unseemly con-

flicts between federal courts and the courts of
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the states. As between them it is reciprocally

operative—mutually protective and prohibitive

.

The most difficulty arises in determining when
possession of property has been taken, when
jurisdiction has attached to the exclusion or

postponement of that of other courts. It is

settled, however, that actual sizure or posses-

sion is not essential, according to that jurisdic-

tion may be acquired by acts which, according

to established procedure, stand for dominion

and in effect subject the property to judicial

control. It may be by the mere commencement
of an action the object, or one of the objects

of which is to control, affect, or direct its dis-

position. See Mound City Co. v. Castleman,

110 C. C. A. 55 187 Fed. 121, and the cases

cited. The principle often applies "where suits

are brought to enforce liens against specific

property to marshal assets, administer trusts,

or liquidate insolvent estates, and in suits of

a similar nature where, in the progress of the

litigation, the court may be compelled to

assume the possession and control of the prop-

erty to be affected.' Farmers' Loan & Trust

Co. vs Railroad, 177 U. S. 51, 20 Sup. Ct. 564,

44 L. Ed. 667. The mere fact that an

exigency calling for a receiver may arise does

not make the jurisdiction of the court in that

respect relate to the beginning of the action

(Shields v. Coleman, 157 U. S. 168, 178 15

Sup. Ct. 570, 39 L. Ed. 660) as perhaps

where it is an ordinary aid to execution on a

final judgment and dependent upon conditions

or circumstances that may or may not occur.
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But where the declared purpose of an action in

whole or in part is directed to specific property,

and the full accomplishment thereof may re-

quire judicial dominion and control, jurisdic-

tion of the property attaches at the beginning

of the action. And it is so if dominion and

control are essential to the action, though not

yet exercised. We think enough has been said

of the nature of the action in the state court

to show that it is within the principle invoked.

Judicial dominion of the combined and co-

mingled properties of the offending corpora-

tions is vitally necessary to the purposes of

the action. In no other way could the marshal-

ing and separation be effectually accomplished.

"It is urged that the jurisdictions of the

state and federal courts are not concurrent

with respect to the subject-matters of the suits,

but in questions like that before us the test is

prior possession, actual or constructive, and
not concurrency of jurisdiction. The subject

matter of which the one court has jurisdiction

may be wholly without the power of the other.

Prior possession by a court having jurisdiction

of the case before it according to the laws of

the sovereignty under which it was organized

entitled it to hold until it is through."

In the case of Dickenson vs. Willis 239 Fed. 171

we quote the following from the opinion commenc-
ing on page 174.

"After a careful study of the cases I am
satisfied that the line must be drawn between



22

those cases which seek to recover a judgment
against the receiver in the nature of damages
and those cases which involve the possession

of the property in the hands of the receiver,

or the use of such property or the management
thereof—the administration of the property in

his hands. As to questions of possession, use,

and management, I am satisfied that the ap-

pointing court, whether it be state or federal,

has exclusive jurisdiction. In 34 Cyc. 416, it

is said: ^The rule requiring leave to sue a

receiver is sometimes modified by local statutes,

and has been changed by act of Congress so

far as the court of the United States are con-

cerned, by permitting a receiver appointed by
those courts to be sued in another jurisdiction

in cases where his act is drawn in question in

transactions connected with the property in his

hands, arising during the discharge of his

duties as such official. Such provision does not

authorize the bringing of all actions without

limitation, but only such as are of the class

mentioned; as to others, leave of court should

be obtained. Thus a state providing that a re-

ceiver may be sued in respect to any act or

transaction in carrying on the business con-

nected with the property intrusted to him does

not authorize a suit against the receiver, with-

out leave for the corpus of the estate, and the

operation of the federal statute has been re-

stricted in the same manner to causes in re-

spect to acts or transactions of the receiver,

and does not limit the power of the court which
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appointed the receiver to protect the property

in his custody from external attack."

Justice Moody, in Wabash Railroad Co. v. Adel-

bert College, 208 U. S. 38, 28 Sup. Ct. 182, 52 L.

Ed 379, says:

''When a court of competent jurisdiction has,

by appropriate proceedings, taken property

into its possession through its officers, the

property is thereby withdrawn from the juris-

diction of all other courts. The latter courts,

though of concurrent jurisdiction, are without

power to render any judgment which invades

or disturbs the possession of the property while

it is in the custody of the court which has

seized it. For the purpose of avoiding in-

justice which otherwise might result, a court

during the continuance of its possession has,

as incident thereto and as ancillary to the suit

in which the possession has acquired, jurisdic-

tion to hear and determine all questions re-

specting the title, the possession, or the control

of the property. In the courts of the United

States this incidental and ancillary jurisdiction

exists, although in the subordinate suit there is

no jurisdiction arising out of diversity of cit-

izenship or the nature of the controversy.

Those principles are of general application, and

not peculiar to the relations of the courts of

the United States to the courts of the states.

They are, however, of especial importance with

respect to tho relations of those courts, which

exercise independent jurisdiction in the same
territory, often over the same property, per-
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sons, and controversies. They are not based

upon any supposed superiority of one court

over the others but serve to prevent a conflict

over the possession of property, which would
be unseemly and subversive of justice and have

been applied by this court in many cases, somr*

of v/hich are cited, sometimes in favor of the

jurisdiction of the courts of the states, and
sometimes in favor of the jurisdiction of the

courts of the United States, but always, it is

believed, impartially and with a spirit of re-

spect for the just authority of the states of the

Union" (Citing many cases.)

In Murphy v. John Hoffman Co., 211 U. S. 562,

29 Sup. Ct. 154, 53 L. Ed. 327, it is said:

''Where a court of competent jurisdiction

has taken property into its possession, through

its officers, the property is thereby withdrawn
from the jurisdiction of all other courts. The
court, having possession of the property, has

an ancillary jurisdiction to hear and determine

all questions respecting the title, possession, or

control of the property. In the courts of the

United States this ancillary jurisdiction may be

exercised, though it is not authorized by any

statute. The jurisdiction in such cases arises

out of the possession of the property, and is

exclusive of the jurisdiction of all other courts,

although otherwise the controversy would be

cognizable in them. Wabash R. Co. v. Adelbert

College, 208, U. S. 38, 54, 28 Sup. C. R. 182,

52 L. Ed. 379, 386."
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Whatever rights the Plaintiff may have had, or

has, could and should properly, have been urged in

the state court. Presumably, and in the theory

upon which the rule of comity is based, those

rights would have been fully protected by the state

Court.

Appellant urges the point that the Bill is with-

out equity. Just what difference can it possibly

make to the Plaintiff, what becomes of the other

securities held by the County of Navajo to secure

its deposits in the insolvent bank. Or what possible

difference can it or could it have made, whether the

registered warrants were sold, or presented for

payment and paid by the County, when if as a

matter of law, or by the rule of subrogation, those

bonds and those warrants should pro rate to reduce

the liability of Plaintiff as surety. If the county

had dissipated or lost its other securities, or was
bound to accept its registered warrants as payment

upon its bank deposit, it seems quite certain that

the Plaintiff could have been relieved of liability

to the proper amount, without all the circuity of an

injunction suit, the impounding of assets, and the

other interference with the actions of the Appel-

lants directed to the liquidation of the assets and

affairs of the insolvent bank. The Plaintiff could

have refused to pay its liability upon its depositary

bond to the county, until the county allowed any

proper set off. Appellants have at all times been

unable to appreciate why they should be drawn into

a suit upon a matter primarily between the county

of Navajo and the Plaintiff. And to Appellants

the whole proceeding from which the appeal is taken
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seems as matter which could have been fully de-

termined in a suit at law, and if so, the suit is

without equity, and the Bill should have been dis-

missed.

Returning to the main argument as to the juris-

diction. If the federal court had jurisdiction to

tie up any portion of the assets of the insolvent

bank, then it could tie up all the assets, pending

a determination of the alleged rights of litigations

as to those assets. In this case, the Superintendent

of Banks would in the first instance be subject to

the orders of the state court, as to how, and to

whom he should distribute the assets. By the de-

cree from which he appeals, that Superintendent

is ordered to do thus and so, with a portion of the

assets. The question is, which order must he obey.

If counsel for appellants understand the rule of

comity laid down by the cases cited in this hiief,

the purpose of that rule is to avoid any such con-

flict and confusion to be attached to the liquidation

of the assets of insolvents.

Assignment of error No. II was made and in-

tended to point out to this Court the statutory re-

lations of the Superintendent of Banks to the state

court in those cases in which an insolvent bank

comes into the hands of that officer. The statute

already quoted in full in connection Avith Assign-

ment No. 1, says that "when the affairs of any bank

have come into the hands of the Superintendent of

Banks for liquidation the relations between the

Superior Court and the Superintendent of Banlcs

shall be the same as the relations of the Superior

Court and a receiver under the laws now existing,
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and the Superior Court shall have the same author-

ity and jurisdiction over the Superintendent of

Banks in such matters as it would over receivers

appointed by the Court, unless in this act other-

wise provided."

A reading of the above provision confirms the

position that the Superintendent of Banks becomes

a statutory receiver, from the time that officer takes

possession of the affairs of an insolvent bank for

the purposes of liquidation. The Bill in this case

in Paragraph 3, page 4 of Transcript alleges and

thus admits the possession for the purposes of

liquidation, and that being so the jurisdiction of

the state court attached to the property and affairs

of the insolvent bank without any further act.

The Arizona Supreme Court has construed the

above provision according to its plain reading, in

Hammons v. Grant, 225 Pac. 485.

In the Bolough case, 185 Fed. 825 above quoted

the Court says:— The provisions of Sec. 19 of the

banking law . . confers upon the New York Su-

preme Court the sole power to determine what

creditors of the trust Company are entitled to

preferences and what amounts shall be paid to them

in dividends."

The fundamental principle involved in this case

is that the Legislature of the state of Arizona has

provided a procedure for the winding up of the

affairs of insolvent state banks therein. It has

vested judicial jurisdiction of matters connected

with such liquidations, in the Superior Courts of

the county in which the insolvent bank has its place
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of business. The control of the state court is thus

made complete and exclusive as to every question

which can arise as between the receiver, i. e. the

Superintendent of Banks, treated as a receiver

and persons having claims of any land or nature

against the estate or its assets in the hands of that

officer. The officer takes the assets as he finds

them. In this case the warrants which the decree

of the district Court allowed as a set-off in favor

of Plaintiff surety Company, were admitted among
the assets so taken over. The $7000.00 of improve-

ment bonds of the Town of Winslow, became assets

in the hands of the Superintendent after a partial

adjustment of affairs between the bank and the

County of Navajo. If the Plaintiff had a claim of

any nature connected with those assets, then under

the plain provisions of Section 48, of the 1922

Banking Code of Arizona it could and should have

presented it to the Superintendent for allowance

or rejection.
,
,That Section 48, in part reads as

follows

:

"The Superintendent of Banks shall cause

notice to be given by advertisement in such

newspapers as he may direct weekly for eight

sonsecutive weeks, calling on all persons who
may have claims against it to present the sam?

to him and make legal proof thereof at a place

and at a time to be fixed by the Superintendent

of Banks. . . If the Superintendent of Banks

doubts the justice and validity of any claim he

may reject the same. . . . An action upon a

claim so rejected must be brought within si\'

months after such service.**
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There is no allegation nor is there any proof the

Plaintiff surety company ever attempted to make
legal proof of its claims as asserted in the present

Bill.

There is no allegation in the Bill that the pro-

visions of the state banking code of Arizona, fail

to provide adequate remedies for adequate relief

to plaintiff whatever its claim may have been

against the assets, or claim for priority, preference,

or what not, it might have. The Bill does not allege

that the State Banking law denies Plaintiff any

constitutional right, nor does the Bill allege the un-

constitutionality of the act itself.

Under this condition and state of the law of

Arizona, and the facts as alleged, Appellants again

urge that the state has the power to provide for a

liquidation of the affairs of its insolvent banks, a

power to place the judicial determination of all

matters pertaining to such liquidations in the state

courts. That when that jurisdiction has attached

as it does when the Superintendent tSkes possession

of the property of an insolvent bank, as admittedly

done in this case, the jurisdiction of the state court

is complete, adequate, and exclusive, to the extent

that the Federal Courts have no judicial power to

undertake to direct the conduct of the receiver of

the state Court as to any matter at all connected,

directly or indirectly with the estate of the insolvent

bank, claims against it, or the distribution of its

assets.

Again we urge that the District Court should

have dismissed the Bill upon motion, and erred in



30

refusing to do so, and erred in rendering the de-

cree which is appealed from in this appeal.

Assignments of error Nos. IV, and XII, Pages
227 and 236, will become so closely connected in any
argument directed to the errors therein pointed

out, that a presentation of the two assignments to-

gether will save prolixity and perhaps avoid con-

fusions.

In connection with these two assignments tvv^a

points are raised:

(A) That when the legislature in Paragraph
2462, Revised Statutes of Arizona, 1913, Civil Code,

provided with respect to county warrants the con-

ditions under which holders of such warrants could

use such warrants in payment of debts due the

county, that provision became and was a special

provision, excluded all other statutes relating to

set-offs, and it not appearing that the Bank of

Winslow as to any of the warrants was a payee

named therein, it nor its subrogee could not use

those warrants to liquidate any debt of the bank
due the county.

(B) That when the legislature in paragraph

4642 and 4643, of 1913 Civil Code, made provision

for depositary bonds, and made the condition of

such bonds, ''that such bank will promptly pay out

to the parties entitled thereto, all public money in

its hands, upon lawful demand therefor, and will,

whenever required by law% pay over . . to tlie

county treasurer such moneys, with interest as

hereinafter provided", the legislature thereby pro-

vided in such manner as to exclude any possibility
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that any question of any relation of or similar to

that of ordinary debtor and creditor could arise as

between a county and its depositary bank, and thus

excluded any idea that any question of set-off as

between those deposits and county warrants held

by the bank acquired by it in due course.

(C) That in the two provisions of statute above

referred to the state legislature has said in effect,

a county will pay its registered warrants at time^

when same are called for payment, but regardless

of any such warrants held by a bank, latter must
pay out county money v/hen demanded, except that

if the bank is payee named in a warrant it may be

used, when accompanied with sufficient money to

pay its entire debt to the county. Not otherwise.

The statute as to set-offs in case of county war-

rants is set out in full in Assignment No. IV, Page
227 of Transcript, and reference is made thereto.

Provision is made in the statutes of Arizona,

Civil Code 2440, for the registration of w^arrants,

in cases where the fund upon which those registered

warrants is insufficient to pay the particular war-

rants when presented for payment. These warrants

were all registered. It is presumed that the officer

did his duty when registering same and that no

funds for payment existed in fact. And the set-off or-

dered by the court ignores the plain law as to time

when such v/arrants become payable, and with that

presumption of lack of funds available to pay the

particular warrants still applying, the decree of the

Court requiring the county to accept warrants

drawn upon funds not sufficient, out of depositary
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moneys, belonging to other public funds and ap-

propriated for other public county purposes, ap-

pears to require the county officers to do unlawful

acts.

Upon the propositions above presented, attention

is called to citations and cases as follows:

15 Corpus Juris. 605, Sec. 313

15 Corpus Juris 606 Sec. 313,

First National Bank of Garden v. Commrs
52 Pac. 580.

La Forge v. McGee 6 Cal. 285.

15 Corpus Juris 584,

Bartol V. Holmes 41 Pac. 906.

Diggs V. Lobits, 43 Pacific 1069 at 1071

Ostling vs. People, 140 Pac. 173.

Rollins V. Board of Commrs. 199 Fed. 71 at

79.

Stryker v. Board of Commrs. 77 Fed. 537

at 574.

State V. Ownes 56 So. 296.

Forbes v. Bd. of Commrs. 47 Pac. 388.

King Iron Bridge & Mfg. Co. v. Otie Co. 124

U. S. 483.

Talley v. State 180 S. W. 330.

From the above cases it will appear that there

exists a difference between "public funds" and
"public money", in cases where public warrants are
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drawn against and payable from particular funds,

as in the case at bar. We quote as follows:

—

a
'As a general rule orders or warrants

against counties can be satisfied only out of

the revenue available for the payment of the

claims represented by such orders and war-
rants."

15 Corpus Juris, 605, Sec. 313.

When the order in which county warrants

shall be paid is fixed by statute, it must be

followed, it cannot be changed by county

boards or courts.

15 Corpus Juris, 606, Sec. 313, cases in

Notes 45 and 46.

"Notwithstanding a judgment has been re-

covered against a county upon its registered

warrants, the amounts due thereon are prop-

erly payable in the same order as if such war-

rants had not been reduced to judgment, out

of county funds available for the payment of

registered warrants."

First Natl. Bank of Garden v. Comrs. 52

Pac. 580.

"In a number of states express provision is

made for the setting apart of special funds for

particular purposes. . . Whereas special county

funds are authorized, and are in fact raised

for particular purposes they must be applied

thereto, and cannot be diverted to any other

purpose, or transferred to any other fund."
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15 Corpus Juris, page 584. Notes 65 and

66, for cases.

"If this could be done, the money belonging

to any fund of the county might be taken there-

from, and placed to the credit of a different

fund which the commissioners might see fit tot

create or designate, and the administration of

municipal affairs would be placed in hopeless

confusion. (Decision was against any power
of transferring money from the fund to v/hich

it belonged to a specially created fimd.)

Bartob v. Holmes 41 Pacific, 906. (Wash.)

"A person who deals with a municipal cor-

poration deals with it with reference to the

law governing such corporation, and is bound
by such law. The law providing the means
and manner of payment by a municipal cor-

poration is incorporated into and becomes a

part of, any cotract between such corporation

and any other person. When the Plaintiff in

this case accepted his warrants from the mu-
nicipal authorities, he took it subject to the

conditions and on the terms presented by law
for its payment.

Diggs V. Lobitz, 43 Pacific 1089 at p. 1071.

Under a law pertaining to cities and towns,

which recfLiired the passage of an annual appro-

priation bill, in which such authorities may appro-

priate such sum or sums of money as may be

deemed necessary to defray all necessary expenses

and liabilities of such corporation, and in such

ordinance shall specify the objects and purposes
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for which such appropriations are made, and the

amount appropriated for each object or purpose.

With other provisions similar to but not as

specifically restricting as the provisions of 4839-

4842 of Revised Statutes of Arizona as amended
in Chapter 52 Laws of 1921. The law provides

for registration of warrants, and their payment
upon call when funds are in the treasury applicable

thereto. In brief from the pleadings and the stipu-

lations of facts the city challenges the right of the

realtor to have the funds in the hands of the treas-

urer, realized and to realized from the revenues

for the fiscal year beginning April 1913, applied

to payment of such w^arrant issued prior thereto,

and claims the right to use such funds to discharge

warrants drawn to meet current expenses for that

period. The Court says:

—

As applicable to the facts of this case, the

general rule is that a cause of action does not

exist against a city upon a warrant until a

fund for its payment Jms been collected.

Forbes v. Grand County 47 Pac. 388. The
fact that the revenues for a particular year

are inadequate to meet the warrants for that

year, payable out of such revenues, does not

render the city liable thereon until a fund
which can be applied to their payment, is raised

or might have been, in the manner provided

by law. . . Persons purchasing warrants take

them subject to the mode of payment that the

General assembly has provided. Stryker v.

Board of Comm'rs of Grand Co. 77 Fed. 567.

Ostling V. People, 140 Pac. 173 at 175-6.
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Following and citing Forbes v. Grand Coun-
ty, 47 Pac. 388.

King Iron Bridge Co. v. Otoe Co. 124 U. S.

459.

"Usually warrants purport to be for immed-
iate payment, but where the city or county is in

an embarrassed condition such payment cannot

be made; and when the legislature provides

they shall be paid in the order of registration

this is equivalent to inserting in such v/arrant

'Tayable at any time when the cash in the

fund is sufficient to pay this and all previous

presented and registered warrants'^ and the

law fixes the date of payment."

Rollins V. Board of Comm'rs. 199 Fed. 71

at 79 Following 77 Fed. 567.

"But when the laws of a state do prescribe

the methods of paying an indebtedness which

a municipal corporation has contracted and

limit the rate of taxation for that purpose,

such method of payment is exclusive. No Court

has power to vary the mode of payment, or to

increase the rate of taxation, although it may
be that the means provided by law are defec-

tive or insufficient. Persons who become pur-

chasers of the securities of a municipal cor-

poration, whether bonds or warrants, must take

notice of any limitations that have been im-

posed upon the power of taxation for their

payment and of the provisions of law that have

been to that end. Where some provision has

been made to enable a municipal corporation
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to discharge its debts, the fact that the pro-

vision so made is inadequate, will not authorize

a court to devise a different plan, or to compel

a larger exercise of the power of taxation.

U. S. V. Macon County, 99 U. S. 582.

Stryker v. Board of Commr's 77 Fed. 567 at

574.

"Where special county funds are authorized

for a particular purpose they must be applied

thereto and cannot be diverted to any other

purpose, or be transferred to any other fund.'*

15 CORPUS JURIS 584.

There is no statutory authority for the use

of the term "General Fund" in county taxation.

All funds are special in the sense that they

may be applied only to such purposes as may be

properly embraced therein ... In making up

of the millage to be levied, there may be many
miscellaneous or contingent items which can be

more conveniently grouped under one heading,

but this grouping does not constitute a general

fund for all purposes including those for which

special levies are made, it yet remains a special

fund for such purposes only as may be em-

braced therein.

State V. Ownes 56 So. 296 (Fla.)

In Colorado the statutes as to presentation of

county warrants and payment thereof, or registra-

tion thereof to draw interest, are similar to Ari-

zona statutes. In a case of a suit upon registered
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warrants to compel payment thereof, the Court

says :

—

"It is very evident, from these pro\'isions

that it was the intention of the legislature to

provide for the payment of county warrants, in

the order of their presentation, out of a fund

to be realized from the levy and collection of

the 10 mills provided for general county pur-

poses, and not until such a fund had been

collected, and was applicable to the payment
of the warrant in its order of presentation,

could the holder require payment thereof, and

not until such time would any right of action

accrue upon such warrant or order against

the county, unless, perhaps, the board has been

derelict in its duty in levying the amount of

taxes authorized. King Iron Bridge & Mfg.

Co. V. Otoe County, 124 U. S. 459, Brewer v.

Otie County, 1 Neb. 373. The fact that the tax

provided proves inadequate to meet such obliga-

tions of the county does not render the county

liable for their payment in some other man-
ner."

Forbes v. Bd. of Commr's of Grand Co. 47

Pac. 388.

"Whoever deals with a county and takes in

payment of his demand a warrant in the

character of these. (Registered warrants in-

volved) no time of payment being fixed, does

so under the implied agreement that if there

are no funds in the treasury out of which it

can be satisfied, he will wait until the funds
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can be raised in the ordinary mode of collecting

such revenues. He is presumed to act with

reference to the actual condition of the laws

regulating and controlling the business of the

county. He cannot be permitted, immediately

upon the receipt of such warrant, to resort to

the courts to enforce payment by judgment

and execution, without regard to the condition

of the treasury at the time, or the laws by

which the revenues are raised and disbursed.'*

Brewer v. Otie County, 1 Neb. 373, 382, 384.

Quoted and followed in,

Kink Iron Bridge and Mafg. Co. v. County

of Otie 124 U. S. 483.

In an Arkansas case, the right of set-off was
asserted by sureties upon depositary bond of in-

solvent depositary bank, on account of warrants

held by the bank when failed, the Court says :

—

"The bank held the bridge warrants the same

as they had been in the hands of any other

holder who merely had the right tto present

them to the county treasurer and received pay-

ment out of the funds appropriated for that

purpose. It appears from the evidence that

the depositary had only $100.00 of that fund,

which was insufficient to meet the warrants,

or, so far as the evidence goes, either one of

them. There was, at any rate, no right of set-

off; for, even if there had been funds in the

county treasuiy to meet the warrants, the only

right the bank had, as the holder of the war-

rants, was to present them to the treasurer for
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payment in the same manner that any other

holder of warrants could have done. The ob-

ligation of the bank, as the depositary of public

funds, and the sureties on its bond, was to pay
the money over on demand, and the failure to

pay over the money cannot be justified pro

tanto by shovvdng that the depositary was the

owner at the time of county warrants.

Talley v. State, 180 S. W. 330.

If it is true as shown by above authorities that

the courts have refused to require warrants to be

paid out of funds other than those upon which they

are drawn. If it is true that persons who take

warrants take them subject to the law regulating

the time of payment, especially of registered war-

rants, and the courts have refused to make them
payable except when current revenues have been

collected to the funds upon which those warrants

are drawn sufficient to pay them, then it is true

that there was no such mutuality of credits as

between the Bank of Winslow and the County oc

Navajo as would support any application of any

rule of equitable set-off in this case. The County

trusted the Bank only upon and in accordance with

its depositaiy bond. A bond conditioned ''to paj

upon demand" all county m.oneys deposited. The

Bank did not purchase the county warrants relying

upon the fact that the county had a deposit in the

bank, as a means of ultimately paying those war-

rants. The county in its warrants agreed to pay

the holder "when in funds sufficient and available

for the purposes for which the warrants were

drawn."
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The County of Navajo could have demanded
every dollar of its deposit from the Bank of Wins-
low immediately prior to its failure, and if that

demand had not been met, could have sued upon
its depositary bond, and under the cases the bank
could not have "set-off" the registered warrants
now in question. The surety, Plaintiff would be in

better position than the bank itself in that case.

The Talley case 180 S. W. 330 holds that such

a set-off could not be made, in favor of a surety.

The question is, does insolvency change the

equities or rather the strict law as applied to matur-
ity and payment of warrants.

We urge that it does not.

The liability of the Plaintiff upon its surety bond

was not fixed until the bank became insolvent. It

has never in fact paid any amount upon its liability

as surety for the bank. Hence it was not a creditor

of the bank at the time of its insolvency.

The Arizona Supreme Court in the case of,

Hammons, Supt, of Banks v. U. S. Fidelity

& Guaranty Co. 248 Pacific, 1086

says:

"Surety on depositary bond did not become

creditor of depositary until it paid obligees,

and that happened after the Superintendent

of Banks took charge of the bank as insolvent,

it was not entitled, either as subrogee or as

assignee to off-set its claim therefor on fidelity

bond on which it was surety for the bank's

cashier."
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We understand the general rule to be that when
one of two or sureties commonly or concurrently,

for the same principal, has paid then he may pur-

sue the others. We also understand the rule that

if a principal hold collateral as security, and is also

secured by surety bond for the same debt, if the

surety pays, then that surety is entitled to the

benefit of the collateral. The converse of that rule

is equally true, until the surety does pay, it is

immaterial v/hat other security the creditors may
have. The payment alon is the step to be taken as

the first elemtn necessary in any subrogation in

favor of such a surety. In this case that elemtn is

absolutely lacking. The Plaintiff has not as yet

become a creditor of the Bank, and under the gen-

eral rule of above case can not avail itself of any
right of set off.

The fact must not be overlooked that the very

purpose of a depository bond, is to protect the other

depositors and creditors of an insolvent bank, from

what might have been a preference in favor of pub-

lic deposits in such banks. This purpose is dis-

cussed by the Arizona Supreme Court as follows :

—

"We think the plan for lending and safe-

guarding public moneys of the state and coun-

ties, provided in title 44 Civil Code, supra, in

allowing the state to exact security from the

depositary, where as no other depositor or pa-

tron of the bank is given the same privilege,

must have been intended as a substitute for

the common law prerogative." (Referring to

a possible preference to the public in funds

of an insolvent bank.)
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As was well said in Smith v. Arnold, 176
S. W. 983 : . . The law and sound public policy

will not favor preferences in the liquidation of

an insolvent bank; and in the absence of statu-

tory provisions to the contrary, we see no rea-

son why the funds deposited in the designated

depoistary, in obedience to the statute should

stand on any higher ground than the funds of

other depositors. It was to protect the funds
so deposited that the bond was required of the

bank ; and we will not countenance any effort to

relieve the bond by an attempt to obtain a

priority in the disbursements of the banks'

assets, to the prejudice of the other depositors."

Central Bank of Wilcox v. Lowdermilk.

205 Pacific, at page 916.

"Ky. St. Sec. 4693, requiring state deposi-

taries to give security for public funds, con-

templated as such security the indorsements of

individuals or a solvent bonding company, and

not the pledging of assets of the depositary

bank." And a pledge of such assets, to secure

the public depositor and the surety upon a de-

positary bond, was held to be void.

We have pointed out in assignment No. V.

(Transcript pages 228, 229, 230, and 231, the

provisions of law which permits the Boards of

Supervisors to create an expense fund, and therein

and therefrom a "salary fund". It has already

been pointed out that the expense fund was over-

drawn some $47,000.00 at all times during the

period of registering of the warrants in question.
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That provision contemplates that current expenses,

and current salaries be paid in cash. It also pro-

vides that when the purpose has been accomplished

and there remains an excess in the funds, the

Board of Supervisors may by resolution return

that excess to the general funds and thereafter

same shall be available for redemption of registered

warrants in manner provided by law. There is no

allegation of any such order having been made,

nor any proof thereof. Hence this court may assume

that registered ''salary warrants" were not yet

payable out of any funds in the treasurer's hands,

and so were not due for any purpose of this case.

We respectfully submit that for reasons urged

above the Appellants are entitled to a judgment

of this Court, reversing the decree of the District

Court, and dismissing the Plaintiff's Bill of Com-
plaint. Etc., etc.
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